
1 

REGULAR MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING 

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TRUTH OR 
CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO, TO BE HELD IN THE COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3RD 
ST., ON WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 14, 2024; TO START AT 9:00 A.M. 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INTRODUCTION
1. ROLL CALL

Hon. Rolf Hechler, Mayor  
Hon. Amanda Forrister, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Hon. Destiny Mitchell, Commissioner 
Hon. Merry Jo Fahl, Commissioner 
Hon. Ingo Hoeppner, Commissioner 

2. SILENT MEDITATION
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

C. PRESENTATIONS
1. Presentation of City of Truth or Consequences Employee Service Anniversary

Awards. City Manager Gonzales and Department Supervisor

D. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Rule Applies)

E. REPORTS
1. City Manager

a. Water Update: Arnie Castaneda, Water/Wastewater Director
2. City Commission
3. City Attorney

F. CONSENT CALENDAR
1. City Commission Regular Minutes, July 10, 2024
2. City Commission Regular Minutes, July 24, 2024
3. July 2024 Accounts Payable
4. Take Home Vehicle Form

 

 

Rolf Hechler 

Mayor 

Amanda Forrister 

Mayor Pro-Tem 

Merry Jo Fahl 

Commissioner 

Destiny Mitchell 

Commissioner 

Ingo Hoeppner 

Commissioner 

Angie Gonzales 

City Manager 

505 Sims St. 

Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

P: 575-894-6673  F: 575-894-7767 

www.torcnm.org 



2 

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS (5 Minute Rule Applies)
1. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action: Ordinance 766 Amending the City of Truth or 

Consequences Municipal Code of Ordinances, Amending Chapter 11 Pertaining to 
Solid Waste. Assistant City Manager Alvarez

2. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 767 
Authorizing the Execution and delivery of a loan agreement and intercept 
agreement by and between the City of T or C, and the New Mexico Finance 
Authority, evidencing a special limited obligation of the governmental unit to pay a 
principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000, together with interest thereon for the 
purpose to acquire, construct, renovate, furnish, equip, beautify and improve a 
public safety building for the benefit of the city and its residents. Chris Muirhead, 
Modrall Sperling 

3. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action: Final Adoption of Ordinance 768, Amending 
Sec. 3-98 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances pertaining to safekeeping of animals 
by the animal shelter. OJ Hechler, Community Services Director

H. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS/ZONING
1. Discussion/Action: Resolution 05 24/25 Establishing Solid Waste and Recycling 

Service and Collection Center Rates for The City of Truth or Consequences. 
Assistant City Manager Alvarez

2. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 11 24/25 Amendment to City Park Rental fees. 
OJ Hechler, Community Services Director

3. Discussion/Action:  Resolution 12 24/25 Approval of the State of New Mexico 
Environment Department Capital Appropriation Project Water Distribution Line 
Grant Agreement and Authorizing the Assignment of Authorized Officers and 
Agents. Assistant City Manager Alvarez

I. NEW BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: Revised Parcel Survey for Property Appraisal. Assistant City 

Manager Alvarez
2. Discussion/Action: Approval of FY25 Clean and Beautiful Grant. OJ Hechler, 

Community Services Director
3. Discussion/Action: Extending the swimming pool season beyond Labor Day to a 

date yet to be determined. OJ Hechler, Community Services Director
4. Discussion/Update: City of T or C Comprehensive Plan Revision Update. Assistant 

City Manager Alvarez
5. Discussion/Action: Aging & Long-term Services Department (ALTSD) Junior Bill 

Appropriations Agreement. Assistant City Manager Alvarez
6. Discussion/Action: Acceptance of USDA Letter of Conditions WSPI-2 (Water 

System Performance Improvements 2) Project and Authorization for 
Predevelopment Financing. Assistant City Manager Alvarez

7. Discussion/Action: GRO Special Appropriation Intergovernmental Services 
Agreement with South Central Council of Governments as Fiscal Agent. City 
Manager Gonzales

8. Discussion/Action: Approval of Purchase Requisitions over $20,000. City Manager 
Gonzales

9. Discussion/Action: Review, Approve and/or Allocate Funds for Sierra County Rock 
& Gem Society (SCRAGS) Application #1 for 2025 Sierra Co. Rock & Gem Show. 
Tammy Gardner, Executive Assistant



3 

 

 
 

 
       I. NEW BUSINESS Continued… 

10. Discussion/Action: Review, Approve and/or Allocate Funds for Geronimo Trail 
Scenic Byway Application #3 for the National Park Journal. Tammy Gardner, 
Executive Assistant 

11. Discussion/Action: Review, Approve and/or Allocate Funds for Veterans Memorial 
& Museum Application #3 for a Billboard Rental. Tammy Gardner, Executive 
Assistant 

12. Discussion/Action: Review, Approve and/or Allocate Funds for MainStreet  
Application #1 for the 2025 Desert Ultra. Tammy Gardner, Executive Assistant 

 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

The meeting will be broadcast live through KCHS on 101.9 FM. 
 

 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign 

language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the 

hearing or meeting please contact the City Clerk’s Office, at 505 Sims Street, Truth or 

Consequences, New Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6673 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting 

or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in 

various accessible formats. Please contact the City Clerk’s Office if a summary or other type of 

accessible format is needed. 

 
 
 

NEXT REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING AUGUST 28, 2024 



III:IIY  Ol-  T[)UNI-l  O[)  € 0!%S[ € )U[_S € [%
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

MEETING  DATE:  August  14,  2024  Age'da I'em #: Q

SUBJECT:  Presentation  of  Service  Anniversary  Awards.

DEPARTMENT:  Finance

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  6, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Alona  Niebergall

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE  ITEM:  City  Manager  Gonzales  and  department  supervisor

Summary/Background:

Employee  Anniversary:  Hechler,  OJ -  7 YEARS  Employee  Anniversary:  O'Hanlon,  Pat  -  31 YEARS
Employee  Anniversary:  Niebergall,  Alona  -  4 YEAR  Employee  Anniversary:  Montoya,  William  -14  YEARS

Employee  Anniversary:  Bowles,  Jessica  -  3 YEARS  Employee  Anniversary:  Martinez,  Katy -  4 YEARS
Employee  Anniversary:  Loera,  Rene  -  5 YEARS  Employee  Anniversary:  Marin,  Rafael  -  8 YEARS

Employee  Anniversary:  Nunez,  Phillip-1  YEAR

Recommendation:

None.  Presentation  Only.

Attachments:

@-

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  No

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  No

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  [X Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  [X City  Clerk  % Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  IZ City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No..  Ordinance  No..

Continued  To: . Referred  To:  .

€  Approved  €  Denied  [10ther:  Cli=k  h-:re  ra €'t':lr'r  iqxt.

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-24



€ ,ITY  Or  T[)UTtl  O[)  € 0!%IS[ € )U[S € [S
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

. .ai MEETINGDATE:Augustl4,2024 Age"dahem #: Fal
SUBJECT:  City  Commission  Regular  Minutes,July  10,  2024

DEPARTMENT:  City  Clerk's  Office

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  6, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Angela  A. Torres,  Clerk-Treasurer

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Consent  Calendar

Summary/Background:

Minutes  approval.

Recommendation:

Approve  the  minutes.

Attachments:

@-

Fiscal Impact  (Finance): N/A

SO.OO

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  N/A

None.

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  € Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  g City  Clerk  []  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Clid< here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  [Z City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  - Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

[1] Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-24



CITY  COMMISSION  MEETING  MINUTES

CITY  OF TRUTH  OR CONSEQUENCES,  NEW  MEXICO

CITY  COMMISSION  CHAMBERS,  405  W. 3RD St.

WEDNESDAY,  JULY  10,  2024

A. CALL  TO  ORDER:

The  meeting  was  called  to order  by Mayor  Rolf  Hechler  at 9:00  a.m.,  who  presided  and

Angela  A. Torres,  City  Clerk-Treasurer,  acted  as Secretary  of  the  meeting.

B. INTRODUCTION:

1.  ROLL  CALL:

Upon  calling  the  roll, the  following  Commissioners  were  reported  present.

Hon.  Rolf  Hechler,  Mayor

Hon.  Amanda  Forrister,  Mayor  Pro-Tem

Hon.  Destiny  Mitchell,  Commissioner  was  absent

Hon.  Merry  Jo Fahl,  Commissioner  via  telephone

Hon.  Ingo  Hoeppner,  Commissioner

Also  Present:  Angie  Gonzales,  City  Manager

Traci  Alvarez,  Assistant  City  Manager

Jay  Rubin,  City  Attorney

Angela  A. Torres,  City  Clerk-Treasurer

Arnie  Castaneda,  Water/VS/astewater  Director

Luis  Tavizon,  Chief  of Police

There  being  a quorum  present,  the  Commission  proceeded  with  the  business  at hand.

2.  SILENTMEDITATION:

Mayor  Hechler  called  for  fifteen  seconds  of silent  meditation.  He asked  that  everyone

keep  the  community  of Ruidoso  in their  thoughts  and  prayers.

3.  PLEDGE  OF ALLEGIANCE:

Mayor  Hechler  led the  Pledge  of  Allegiance.

4. APPROV  AL  OF  AGENDA:

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  made  a motion  to approve  the  agenda  with  the  following

changes,  Items  C1 (Presentations)  and  E 1-3  (Reports)  are  to be moved  after  New

Business,  and  items  F1,  H5,  and  H7  will  be  removed  from  the  agenda.

Commissioner  Hoeppner  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by the  Clerk-

Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

C. PRESENT  ATIONS:

1.  Presentation  of  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  Employee  Service

Anniversaiy  Awards:

The  item  was  moved  after  New  Business.

D. PUBLIC  COMMENT  (3 Minute  Rule  Applies):

Tara  Manning  addressed  the  Commission  with  comments  related  to:

*  Jordan's  Way  will be here  on Tuesday,  July  I 6'h from  10:00  a.m.  to 1 :OO p.m.  for

our  live Facebook  event.  We  secured  our  dunk  tank.  In the  years  past  we  raised

the $10,000  to dunk  Chief, and we  were  also getting pies thrown in our face. We
are going  to be doing  a slime  bucket  challenge,  and all sorts  of good  stuff  so

please  stay tuned and help  us raise  money.  If we  don't  raise  $3,000  then I'll have
to shave  my head.

Christy  Sallee  addressed  the  Commission  with  comments  related  to:

*  I am here  to request  an extension  on my variance  for my mobile  home.  The

variance  was  approved  almost  a year  ago,  but  I was  not  able  to afford  to get  the

land  developed,  so I am asking  for more  time  because  I have  someone  who  is

going  to buy  the  trailer.  I already  got  approval  from  the  trailer  owner  to establish  a

new  contract  as long  as she  gets  her  variance  approved.  Her  variance  is on the

17th of July.  Once  she  gets  that  approval,  then  we can do the contract  for her.

She  already  has  movers  established  and  she  has  a quote  for  the  trailer  to be set

for her once  it is moved  to her property  in Williamsburg.  I am asking  for an

extension  up until  August  20'h.

E. REPORTS:

The  item  was  moved  after  New  Business  and  Presentations.

F. PUBLIC  HEARINGS  (5 Minute  Rule  Applies)

1.  Public  Hearing/Discussion/Action:  Final  Adoption  of  Ordinance  No.  766

amending  Chapter  1l  pertaining  to  Solid  Waste.

This  item  was  removed  from  the  agenda.

G. CONSENT  CALENDAR:

1. June  2024  Accounts  Payable

2. Take  Home  Vehicle  Forms

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to  approve  the  Consent  Calendar  as submitted.

Commissioner  Hoeppner  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-

Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

Page 2 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

H. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS/ZONING:

1. Discussion/Action:  Resolution  No.  01  24/25  0pen  Meeting  Act

Resolution.

City  Clerk  Torres:  This  is the  first  Resolution  that  we do each  fiscal  year.  The only

changes  we made  pertained  to the posting  locations.  We updated  the location  for  the

County  Admin  office,  and we changed  the Post  Office  location  from  Mainstreet  to the

Post  Office  on Date  Street.

Mayor  Hechler:  It sounds  like  the  hours  we are keeping  are working.  I've been  on the

Commission  when  we've  had both  evening  and morning  meetings,  and it seems  like

these  are  working  the  best  for  everyone.

Commissioner  Hoeppner  moved  to  approve  Resolution  No.  01 24/25  0pen

Meeting  Act  Resolution.  Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call

was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

2.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  No.  02 24/25  South  Central  Council  of

Governments  Annual  Dues

City  Manager  Gonzales:  This  is an annual  resolution  for  the  South  Central  Council  of

Governments  (SCCOG)  Annual  Dues.  This  resolution  states  what  our  membership  fee

is, and  that  we  are  a member  of  the  South  Central  Council  of  Governments.

Mayor  Hechler  thanked  Ms. Rael  and  the  South  Central  Council  of  Governments

(SCCOG)  support  over  the  last  year.  He has  been  a lot more  involved  with  SCCOG  this

year  and  he understands  a lot more  about  what  you  all do. You  are  a great  advocate  for

our  community  as well  as others  and  we  appreciate  the  relationship.

Angela  Rael,  South  Central  Council  of Governments:  Thank  you.  Even  if different

things  come  up that  you  aren't  used  to asking  the  SCCOG  about,  we  can  either  help

you  directly  or find  the  resources  to be able  to connect  you  to the  right  people.  We

appreciate  your  membership  very  much  and  we  value  you  as a member  of  the  South

Central  Council  of  Governments  (SCCOG).

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to  approve  Resolution  No.  02 24/25  South  Central

Council  of Governments  Annual  Dues.  Commissioner  Hoeppner  seconded  the

motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

Page 3 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024 REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

3.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  03 24/25  Authorizing  Acceptance  of

Colonias  Infrastructure  Fund  Project  No.  6442-CIF;  WWTP  Bar  Screen

Replacement  from  The  New  Mexico  Finance  Authority.

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  This  item  and  the  next  one  are  grants  that  are  offered

through  the  New  Mexico  Finance  Authority.  The  city  submits  a notice  of intent  to NMFA

for  the  Colonias  or Water  Trust  Board  applications.  That  does  not  require  a commission

action.  NMFA  reviews  it to ensure  that  we  are  eligible  to apply,  and  then  they  open  up

the  application  process,  and at that  time  we  come  to the  City  Commission  with  a

resolution  to approve  us to apply  for  that  funding  and  submit  an application.  This  is the

second  step.  Once  we  submit  the  application  and  we  are  approved  for  funding,  they

give  us a notice  of  award  and  the  commission  has  to accept  the  award  by resolution

and  there  are  some  steps  that  we have  to go through.  There  are  items  that  we  have  to

submit  to NMFA,  and  once  those  are  all submitted,  they  do their  process  through  their

authorities,  and  their  board,  and  then  we  will  come  back  to the  commission  a 3rd time  on

this  with  the  loan  and  grant  agreement  that  the  commission  will  have  to review  and

accept.  This  particular  award  is for  the  \/\/\/\/TP  Bar  Screen  Replacement.  It is a 1 0%

loan in the amount  of $30,540  and  a 90% grant  in the amount  of $274,860  with a cash

match requirement  of $30,540.  This  will  cover  the design  only  for  the Bar  Screen.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to approve  Resolution  03 24/25  Authorizing

Acceptance  of Colonias  Infrastructure  Fund  Project  No. 6442-CIF;  WWTP  Bar

Screen  Replacement  from  The New  Mexico  Finance  Authority.  Commissioner

Fahl  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion

carried  unanimously.

4.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  04 24/25  Authorizing  Acceptance  of

Colonias  Infrastructure  Fund  Project  No.  6441-CIF;  Waterline

Replacement  from  the  New  Mexico  Finance  Authority.

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  We  were  lucky  enough  to receive  two  awards  from

Colonias.  This  one  is for  the  Waterline  Replacement,  and  it was  for  a I 0% loan  in the

amount  of $440,000  with a 90% grant in the amount  of $3,960,000  and  a cash  match in

the amount  of  $440,000.

Mayor  Hechler:  If we  get  all of  the  funding  for  this  project,  it probably  won't  happen  until

the  end  of next  year,  so folks  please  be patient  with  us.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to approve  Resolution  04 24/25  Authorizing

Acceptance  of Colonias  Infrastructure  Fund  Project  No.  6441-CIF;  Waterline

Replacement  from  The  New  Mexico  Finance  Authority.  Commissioner  Hoeppner

seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried

unanimously.

Page 4 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

5.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  05 24/25  Establishing  Solid  Waste  and

Recycling  Service  and  Collection  Center  Rates  for  The  City  of  Truth  or

Consequences.

This  item  was  Tabled.

6.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  06 24/25  Infrastructure  Capital

Improvement  (ICIP)  Plan,

ASSistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  At  the  last  meeting  you  reviewed  and ranked  your

priority  projects,  so I am presenting  a draft  of  the  2026-2030  ICIP  with  the  projects,

hopefully  in the  order  that  you  recommended.  I am requesting  that  you  review  the  list.

We  can  make  any  last-minute  changes  if we  need  to. This  has  to be accepted  by

resolution  today,  so if we can  accept  if pending  the  requested  changes.  It has  to be

submitted  no later  than  Friday.  This  was  required  to be submitted  a month  and  a half

earlier  than  the  normal  schedule.

Commissioner  Fahl:  This  list  seems  shorter  than  the  one  from  last  year.  Is that  because

we  combined  some  of  the  items?

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  Yes,  you  all had suggested  that  we  combine  some  of

our  split  projects  like city  hall  or facility  improvements.  There  were  also  some  items

listed  that  had  been  funded  so those  were  removed  as well.  There  were  also  a couple  of

new  additions  on there.

Mayor  Hechler:  Arrowhead  wasn't  listed  on  the  ICIP.  What  are  our  plans  for

Arrowhead?

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  The  plan  moving  forward  on that  is the bond  money

that  we  have.  Our  Streets  Manager  is getting  quotes  to do that  in-house.  The  finalization

will  be sometime  this  year,  but  it will  all depend  on Bartoo's  schedule,  but  it is something

he is going  to move  on sooner  rather  than  later.  o

Mayor  Hechler:  I also  noticed  that  Gold  Street  was  removed  from  the  list. I wanted  that

on the  list a long  time  ago,  mainly  because  it is a major  thoroughfare  to the  hospital  off

of 3rd Street  and it is in pretty  bad shape.  Can  that  be put in with  another  packet,  or is

that  outside  of our  traffic  study?  What  is happening  with  that?

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  It could  be added.  We  removed  streets  that  we don't

have  as our  top  priority  for  waterline  replacement  because  we  didn't  want  to go through

and  put  in a brand-new  road  when  we  haven't  done  the  waterlines.

Mayor  Hechler:  That  makes  perfect  sense  so thank  you  for  that.

Page 5 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

AsSistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  I had to replace  the resolution  that  we had in the

agenda  packet.  My computer  didn't  save  the correct  one and  DFA updated  their

resolution  template,  so everything  mentioned  on the  agenda  and the agenda  request

form  all refer  to the  right  thing.  It was  just  the  resolution  that  was  included  in the  packet

that  was  incorrect.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to approve  Resolution  06 24/25  Infrastructure

Capital  Improvement  (ICIP)  Plan.  Commissioner  Fahl  seconded  the  motion.  Roll

call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

7.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  No.  07  24/25  Budget  Adjustment

Request.

The  item  was  removed  from  the  agenda.

8.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  08  24/25  Participation  in  Local

Government  Road  Fund  Program  and  Request  for  Match  Waiver

Administered  By  New  Mexico  Department  of  Transportation.

ASSiStant  City Manager  Alvarez:  At your  last meeting  you  accepted  the award  offer  from

the New Mexico Department  of Transportation  Map funding for $138,667.  This is for
Pershing  and Second  Street  where  we replaced  the waterline  in the MSD  project.  This

is a $104,000  grant with a $34,667 cash match. The New Mexico Department  of
Transportation  is  now accepting  request for match waivers,  so  that is what this
resolution  is for. It's to request  a waver  for the cash match of $34,667.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to approve  Resolution  08 24/25  Participation  in

Local  Government  Road  Fund  Program  and  Request  for  Match  Waiver

Administered  by  New  Mexico  Department  of Transportation.  Commissioner

Hoeppner  seconded  the motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by the Clerk-Treasurer.

Motion  carried  unanimously.

Commissioner  Fahl  was  excused  from  the  remainder  of  the  meeting.

1. NEW  BUSINESS:

1.  Discussion/Update:  Water  Update.

Arnie  Castaneda,  Water/\/Vastewater  Director  gave  a water  update  presentation.

(presentation  attached  hereto  and  made  a part  hereof).

Page 6 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024 REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez  noted  that  our  funded  water  replacement  projects  also

include  the  fire  hydrant  replacements.

2.  Discussion/Action:  1401  Platinum  request  for  extension  on  variance

revocation.

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  You  heard  from  the  property  owner.  The  Planning  &

Zoning  Commission  recommended  revoking  the  variance  at 1401 Platinum  at their  June

12'h meeting.  We  brought  this  to you  on the  26'h because  the  applicant  is requesting  an

extension  because  I believe  July  1 5'h is the  deadline  of  when  she  needed  to have  it
removed  before  we  would  start  the  property  abatement  process.  The  commission

denied  the  extension  at the  last  meeting  because  she  was  unable  to attend  the  meeting,

so she  requested  to come  back  before  you  to request  the  extension.

Mayor  Hechler:  We  did hear  from  her  earlier  today.  I think  you  requested  August  20'h. I

think  anytime  we have  dialog  with  people  that  we  are  dealing  with  in these  variances,  it
is important  to us, and  we  are  willing  to work  with  folks,  so we  appreciate  you  giving  us

the  dialog  with  a date  of  when  you  will  have  this  alleviated.

City  Attorney  Rubin:  Ms. Salle,  in our  packet  there  was  a letter  that  was  sent  to you  on

June  I Ith and  it identified  you  as a contact  person  and  Mr. Bryan  as the  owner.  Do you

have  authority  to make  an agreement  on behalf  of  the  owner?

Christy  Sallee,  applicant:  As far  as I know  I do. He has  really  helped  me  with  all of  this.

He was  letting  me buy  the property,  and still is if I chose  to so I don't  think  he is too

concerned  with  anything  that  happens  with  it.

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  He was in attendance  at the Planning  & Zoning

Meeting  during  the  request  for  the  variance  to allow  the  mobile  home  on the  property.

City  Attorney  Rubin:  Are  we in agreement  right  now  that  the  mobile  home  is in violation.

Is that  correct?

Christy  Sallee,  applicant:  Yes.

City  Attorney  Rubin:  So, the basis  for  you  asking  for  an extension  is because  you  may

be buying  the  property?

Christy  Sallee,  applicant:  No. I have  another  lady  who  is going  to buy  the  trailer  and  you

can't  sell  what  you  don't  own,  so I spoke  to the  mobile  home  owner  and he said  as long

as she  gets  her  variance  approved  for  it to be moved  to Williamsburg,  he will  go ahead

and  get  another  contract  written  up, so she  would  not  be taking  over  my payments,  she

would  have  her  own  contract  for  it.

City  Attorney  Rubin:  So, you  think  all of  this  will  happen  before  the  20'h of  August?

Page 7 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Christy  Sallee,  applicant:  We've  already  started  this  process  and  we are  just  waiting  for

her  variance  to get  approved  on July  l7'h  so she  can  move  it to Williamsburg.  After  that

we  can  proceed  with  whatever  follows.

City  Attorney  Rubin:  Thank  you,  Ms. Sallee.  Commissioners,  I would  say  if you  wanted

to do the extension  that's  fine.  I think  I just  want  to have  on record  that  if August  20'h

comes  and goes  and nothing  is done,  we have  on record  that  the party  agrees  that

there  is a violation  so they  can go in and do whatever  they  need  to do with  that  and

come  back  to the  City  Commission.

Mayor  Hechler:  Ms. Sallee,  you are confident  that  you will have  a resolution  to this

problem  by August  201h?

Christy  Sallee,  applicant:  Yes.

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  So, if we  grant  the extension,  and  that  date  comes  and

goes,  and nothing  has been  done,  do I come  back  to the Commission  with  our  normal

property  abatement?

City  Attorney

you  at that  poi

Rubin:  Yes,  we would  have  to draw  up a resolution  and bring  it back  to

Mayor  Hechler:  I just  want  to thank  the Planning  & Zoning  Committee  for  taking  the

stance  that  they  did. We  are not usurping  their  power,  we are working  with  one  of our

citizens  to try and get  this  thing  done.  I appreciate  their  efforts  and I am in favor  of

granting  the  extension.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to  approve  the  140'l  Platinum  request  for

extension  on variance  revocation  until  August  20kh. Commissioner  Hoeppner

seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried

unanimously.

3.  Discussion/Action:  Approval  of  Contract  with  Coppler  Law  Firm  for

the  2024-25  fiscal  year.

City  Manager  Gonzales:  This  is our  annual  contract  with  the  Coppler  Law  Firm.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to approve  the  Contract  with  Coppler  Law  Firm

for  the  2024-25  fiscal  year.  Commissioner  Hoeppner  seconded  the  motion.  Roll

call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

Page 8 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

4.  Discussion/Action:  Approval  of  Purchase  Requisitions  over  $20,000.
City  Manager  Gonzales

City Manager  Gonzales  reviewed  the Purchase  Requisitions  over $20,000 provided in
the packet.

Commissioner  Hoeppner  moved  to approve  the Purchase  Requisitions  over
$20,000.  Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  seconded  the motion.  Roll call was taken by
the Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously,

The  commission  proceeded  back  to CI.  Presentation,  and  E1-3  Reports.

C. PRESENT  ATIONS:

1.  Presentation  of City  of Truth  or Consequences  Employee  Service

Anniversary  Awa  o

City  Manager  Gonzales  and  Chief  Tavizon  presented  an Employee  Service  Anniversary
Award  to  Margaret  Clanton  for  13  years  of service  with  the  City  of Truth or
Consequences.

City  Manager  Gonzales  presented  an Employee  Service  Anniversary  Award  on behalf
of Patrick  Lovell  for  6 years  of service  with  the  City  of Truth  or Consequences.

City  Manager  Gonzales  and Tara  Manning,  Animal  Shelter Manager  presented an
Employee  Service  Anniversary  Award  to Mark  Hopkins  for  4 years  of service  with the
City  of  Truth  or Consequences.

City  Manager  Gonzales  presented  an Employee  Service  Anniversary  Award  to Ray

Slade  for  2 years  of service  with  the  City  of  Truth  or Consequences.

E. REPORTS:

City  Manager  Gonzales  reported  the  following:

*  She  thanked  the  staff  for  sitting  through  the  entire  meeting.

*  It seems  like McAdoo  Street  is cursed.  They  poured  the concrete  for the curb
yesterday,  and I think  it is under  water  right  now.  We seem  to take a centimeter
forward  and  we go a mile  backwards.  I am hoping  that we will be able to move
another  centimeter  forward  next  week  and  we can  move  forward.

Page 9 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

*  It has  been  an extremely  busy  end  of  the  fiscal  year.  We  are getting  the FY 24/25

final  budget  ready  to be presented  to you on the  241h. The  staff  closed  out  the

fiscal  year  and  we started  up the  new  fiscal  year.

*  I watched  the rainfall  last  night  on Marie  Street  and it sure  was  coming  down.

This  little  town  with  all of these  valleys  and arroyos  going  into it, we sure  do get

flooded.  The  Streets  Department  is out  there  right  now  cleaning  the roads  and

draining  the  downtown  area.  We  are  trying  to do what  we  can,  but  there  is just  so

much  that  needs  to be done.

City  Commission  Reports:

Commissioner  Hoeppner  reported  the  following:

*  Recycling  is very  important  where  I grew  up in Germany,  and I hope  that  we  can

find some  middle  ground  here  for everybody.  I hope  that  the  departments  here

can get  some  funding  to keep  it alive  because  we  try our  best  to educate  people

about  how important  revenue  is for  the city when  we do recycling.  The  blue

containers  are  not  trashcans.  They  are  for  recycling  cardboard,  and  when  we  put

trash  in those  bins,  we can't  recycle  the  cardboard  and sell it and that  is hurting

the  cost  of recycling  as well  as the  city.

*  When  I became  a Commissioner,  I spoke  with  the  Sierra  County  Manager,  and

she  told  us that  they  are  working  on getting  a shuttle  back  from  Elephant  Butte  to

Williamsburg.  I haven't  heard  anything  from  that,  but I have  spoken  to multiple

small  businesses  in the downtown  area,  and they  hoped  that  we could  get  the

shuttle  started  so we can get  some  of the  people  from  Elephant  Butte  to come

and visit  us. I think  we  should  maybe  look  into  establishing  a shuttle  bus  system

here  and  collaborate  with  everyone.  I think  that  would  help  everybody  because  a

lot of  people  from  T or C would  like  to visit  the  lake  and vice  versa.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  reported  the  following:

*  I've been  noticing  a lot of people  on Facebook  still  hounding  on waterlines  and

why  are  we not  fixing  them,  we have  money.  They  do not  understand  that  it is a

process,  and it takes  time  so they  have  to be patient  because  we  are doing  the

best  that  we can. I wish  more  people  would  show  up and come  and listen  to

these  things  because  if they  did, then  they  would  be well  informed  that  we are

trying  to get  the  ball  rolling.  I also  hear  a lot of complaints  about  us taking  plans

for  the  ballfield  when  we should  be fixing  our  water.  People  just  don't  understand

that  those  are  two  separate  pots  of money.  I just  heard  the other  day  someone

saying  something  about  us buying  a building  and not using  that  for  waterlines,

again,  it's two  different  pots  of money.  I just  want  to keep  the public  informed

that  we  are  doing  what  we  can,  and  there  are  different  pots  of money  for  different

things,  so when  we buy  a building  downtown,  it is not  the  water  money  that  we

are using.

Page 10 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Mayor  Hechler  reported  the  following:

@ On June  26'h we were  supposed  to have  a meeting  with  Senator  Brantley  and

Secretary  Kenney,  but Secretary  Kenney  was  not able  to make  that  meeting.

Senator  Brantley  got  a little  fire in her  eye,  and she said  we are not  done  with

this,  so the  next  day  we  collaborated  quite  a bit on this  thing,  and she  asked  me

to send  the program  that  we  developed  for  Secretary  Kenney  to Michael  Bowers

who  is  the  Collaboration  Coordinator  for  the  New  Mexico  Environmental

Department.  That  was  with  the idea  that  he was  going  to talk  with  Secretary

Kenney.  We basically  made  the argument  that  between  project  funding  and

bidding,  we were  short  of funds  and had to cut out some  components  of the
original  project.  How  the process  works  is we get funded  for  $9 million,  then we
go out  to bid and the project  comes  in at $'l2 million,  so then we have cut out
components  and we don't  get  what  we  went  to get  funding  for  in the  first  place.

This  has  happened  to us several  times,  so the argument  that  we made  to Mr.

Bowers  and Secretary  Kenney  is that  there  is such  a huge  lag in between  the
time  we are funded  and when  we get  quotes,  that  many  of the projects  aren't

able  to be finished  all the way  and we wanted  some  help  with  that.  They  are

looking  into that  right  now. I don't  have  a timeframe  on it. Hopefully  we'll  hear

from  them  soon.  I'll follow  up with  that  as soon  as I can, but I think  that  is an

important  proponent  of  what  we  are  trying  to achieve  so in the  future  we can  get
fully  fu  .

*  On July  2nd I attended  a ribbon  cutting  for  the roundabouts  and made  a short

speech.  Cabinet  Secretary  Serna  was  there.  The  district  1 Engineer  Chavarria

was  also  there.  It was  a very  nice  ceremony,  and I am pleased  to say  that  all of

the weeds  were  chopped  before  we actually  had the ceremony.  We are not
completely  done  yet. 1 have  a call into them  for the landscaping  part of that
segment  because  I know  that  the city  is going  to take  that  part  of it over,  but  we

need  a walk  through  with  the  landscaping  department  and our  streets  department

manager  so when  we  do take  it over,  we'll  know  where  everything  is.

*  On July  3rd I attended  a function  at the Fire Department.  We have  a new  Fire

Truck.  Paul  Tooley  was  able  to get  for  our  volunteers.  It's a brand-new  pumper

truck,  and that  truck  is being  transferred  to Williamsburg,  so Deb Stubblefield

was  there.  She  and I were  able  to meet  there  and  help  dedicate  that  firetruck  and

get  it to Williamsburg  to keep  our  community  safe.

*  We had a South  Central  Council  of Governments  meeting  a couple  of weeks

ago.  We had a speaker  there  who  spoke  on the federal  side  for economic

development  administration,  and  there  are  some  funding  opportunities  there  that
we are going  to look  into.  We'll  let you  know  what  those  are  once  we  figure  out
what  we  want  to do. It was  a very  worthwhile  meeting,  and we  will  look  into that.

*  Emily  Hartshorne  is a legislative  assistant  to the  honorable  Gabe  Vasquez.  She

has  gone  ahead  and  forwarded  our  Clancy  Street  project  to  the  house

appropriations  committee.  We submitted  for it, and I got a letter  asking  what  I

thought  about  the project,  and I was  asked  to give  a statement,  so I did that. I

was  then  told  that  we didn't  get  funded,  and now  we are being  to!d  that it was

sent  to the  legislature,  and  we  may  be funded.  This  has  to go through  the system

and it is at the  federal  level  now,  so the  house  has to approve  the  budget  and

Page 11 of  12



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  10, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

then  the  senate  has  to approve  the  budget,  and  the  president  has  to sign  off  on

it, so it will  be a while  before  we  know,  but  we are  not  dead  in the  water,  and  the

Clancy  Street  project  may  happen  anyway.

*  The  last time  we had public  comment  Robin  Matson  came  in about  3rd street

sidewalk  issues.  That  sidewalk  on 3rd Street  is a highway  department  situation.  I

think  we would  have  had it fixed  by now  if it was  a city  thing,  but since  it is a

highway  department  thing,  we notified  them  and they  are going  to look  into the

situation,  and hopefully  they  will get  it rectified  down  the road.  We can't  go in

there  and fix it because  of liability  concerns.  If we  did something  and someone

got  hurt  on it, it would  be our  hind  end on the  line.  This  way  we  are  going  through

the  appropriate  measures  to get  that  sidewalk  repaired  with  the Department  of

Transportation  and hopefully  we'll  get  through  that  and  get  some  results  for  Ms.

Matson.

City  Attorney  Rubin  had  no reports.

J.  ADJOURNMENT:

Mayor  Hechler  adjourned  the  meeting  at  10:19  a.m.

Passed  and  Approved  this  14th  day  of  , 2024.

Rolf  Hechler,  Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela  A. Torres,  CMC,  City  Clerk

Page 12 of  12



Project  Milestones
Late  May

QAugust 2023 Q@ :aH:h

Hospital  called  aborit  not  able

to pass  testing  for  tlieir  t'ire

srip  press  ion.

First  call  from  the

school

personnel  begin  tate  June  :)o:24

f  cliecking vah-es and
comparxng PreSSL'eS : Hospital  called  again

along 011r upper zone : about  fire  suppression

Received additional call from ,, II

liospital not passi+ig fii'e lovssuppression

Call  into  Daripler  aborit

10V17 pressure

ers  a

fire  hydrant  at

Elementary  Scliool.

School  district

personnel  made  a

presentation  at

commission  meeting.

Met  witli  SCIIOOI

personnel  and  DOT  on

tlie  same  dav.

()2024""



August  2023

Sierra Vista  Hospital  made the first  documented  call in  gust of 2023  (we received a call as
early  as May 2023),  about  not  being able to pass the test for  their  fire  suppression  system

Our  crew  went  out  to investigate.  They  talked  to  the  Maintenance  personnel  and

our  pressures  were  adequate.

explained  that



Hydrant  Meters  Feading APRIL  ,2024

DAY HOSPITAL  MAIN HOSF'lTAL  EMERGENCY ELEMENTARY  SCHOOL INmALS COMMENTS

I

2

j

I

I

(

1(

1)

12

13

14

25 60 6€ PL

le 5[] 5€ TH

1; 5 45 TH

18 45 as TH

19 45 45 TH

X as 45 TH

2!

22

23 as a Tit

24 45 45 'n4

25 45 45 'nl

26 45 45 TH

27 45 4! TH

28

29

3H 45 45 TH

February  2024

After  this  call  we installed  2 pressure

gauges  and  read  them  on  a daily  basis.



March  2024

After  investigation  we learned  that  the

off  the  water  to  that

A call was made to the office on March  ist, 2024.  This
elementary  school.

About  project  had  turned

Water  was  later  restored.

area.

to ask  about  water  being  off  at the

contractors  working  on  the  Round-



May  2024

On May  15',  2024  we received  a call via Daupler,
our  dispatch  system.  This  call  was  for  low  water

pressure.  A  crew  went  out  and  found  there  was

adequate  water  pressure  at  the  nearest  fire

hydrant.

On May  :z3rd, 2024  another  call was made  to
Daupler  and  the  City  Manager's  office.  This  was

again  for  low  water  pressure.  A  crew  went  to

investigate  and  found  adequate  pressure  again.

In  late  May  we  began  checking  valves  and

comparing  pressures  in  our  upper  zone.  We  later

obtained  a list  of  isolation  valves  from  our  engineer

and  all  valves  checked  out.  Our  data  showed  a

consistent  pressure  of  38-45psi  along  the school

C.

NMED  RECOMMENDED

STANDARDS  FOR  WATER

FACILITIES

8.2.2  Water  Pressure

The  system  should  be designed  to maintain  a minimum  pressure  of 20 psig  at

ground  level  at all service  connections  and fire hydrants  under  all conditions  of  flow,

including  the following  conditions:

1. User  Maximum  Hour  Demand,  and

2. User  Average  Day  Demand  plus  the  Design  Fire Flow  Demand.

area.



June 2024
After  the call on May  z3rd 2024  the water  department
order  2 data  collecting  hydrant  pressure  gauges.  They

took  :  weeks  to arrive  however  and  were  installed  on

June 17'  2024.
This  gauges  show  a consistent  pressure  of  between

38-45PSI.

On June zxs' 2024,  the water  department  crew went
out to test 5 different  hydrants  in and around  the
Round-Abouts.  They  also  identified  and  checked

valves  to  make  sure  they  were  all  open.  Everything

pointed  to a stable  pressure  and  valves  were  fully

Open.

Psi Reodings  at

Smifli  and  Silver  35,5  PSI

Smith  sf 31.5  PSI

Testons  51.5  PSI

First Rourid-o-bout  53 PSI

Walmarf  Fire hydt-ant  42.5  PSI

€ @



July  2024
On July  8'h 2024,  a meeting  was scheduled  at the
Elementary  school.  Attended  by  Mayor  Rolf

Hechler,  Arnulfo  Castaneda Water/  Wastewater
director,  and  Chad  Spitzer  Facilities  Director  of

Tor  C school.  We  checked  our  gauge  outside

school  property  that  was showing  4o.6 psi, inside
school  property  their  gauges  were  showing  20  psi.

At that  time  the city  was delivering  4o psi to the
school,

City  Staff  also  met  with  DOT  and  their  contractors

to  discuss  the  water  valves  at  the  round  abouts.

We  knew  that  at  least  one  valve  was  missing  from

our  maps.  DOT  and  their  contractors  along  with

some  of  the  Water  Department  found  and

uncovered  the  missing  valve.  All  the  valves  were

found  to  be  open.

There  is a third  valve  that  is missing  and  buried

by  the  DOT  contractors

and vetllled  that It li  are open

Icunently  iindet  pavamentl

6a valve exposed

Found to be opened

6 mch watetllne



July  2024
July  g'  2024,  water  crew removed,  inspected  and
cleaned  the  meter  at the  Elementary  School.  The meter

was  found  to  be in  proper  working  condition.



Findings  for  city  water
All  isolation  valves  that  could  have  a negative  impact  on  area

pressures  we  found  to  be  working  in  proper  order.  We  found

no  closed  valves.  Other  than  the  one  that  is missing.

All  pressures  were  consistent  along  North  Date,  Smith  and

Silver  streets. Pressures were between  4o -5o psi along
North  Date and 4o-45  psi along Smith  and Silver  streets.
These  are  normal  operating  pressures  for  a healthy  water

system.

We  have  continued  to  check  pressures  in  the  area  and  have

made  them  a daily  routine.  Pressures  have  been  consistent

for  the  last  few  months.

A  local  contractor  excavated  the  area  where  DOT  contractors

did  the  tie  in  and  the  connection  is fine.

ystem
Elem School psi 38-42



Pending  Solutions

1.  We  have  reached  out  to our  water  engineers  for  assistance  with  the  pressure  issue  and  are

awaiting  their  consultation.

2.  We  have  scheduled  a third  party  to inspect  the  backflow  preventor  at the  Elementary  school,  as

well  as their  private  system  for  any  obvious  issues.

3. We will  ask for a full  report  of  their  fundings.

4. Additional  data loggers have been installed  along the main  line to continue  monitoring  static
pressures



Hydrant  Meters  Read  ng APR L 2024

DAY HOSPIT  AL MAIN HOSPITAL  EMERGENCY ELEMENTARY  SCHOOL INITIALS COMMENTS

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15 60 60 PL

16 50 50 TH

17 45 45 TH

18 45 45 TH

19 45 45 TH

20 45 45 TH

21

22

23 48 48 TH

24 45 45 TH

25 45 45 TH

26 45 45 TH

27 45 45 TH

28

29

30 45 45 TH



Hydrant  Meters  Read  ng MAY  2024

DAY HOSPIT  AL M AIN HOSPITAL  EMERGENCY ELEMENTARY  SCHOOL INITIALS COMMENTS

1

2 45 45 TH

3 45 45 TH

4 40 40 TH

5 40 40 PL

6

7 45 45 TH

8 45 45 TH

9 45 45 TH

10

11 45 45 TH

12

13

14 45 45 TH

15 45 45 TH

16 45 45 TH

17 45 45 TH

18

19

20 45 45 TH

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28 45 45 TH

29 45 45 TH

30 45 45 TH



Hydrant  Meters  Read  ng JUNE  2024

DAY HOSPITAL  MAIN HOSPITAL  EMERGENCY ELEM  ENT  ARY SCHOOL INITIALS COMMENTS

1

2

3 45 45 TH

4 45 45 TH

5 45 45 TH

6 45 45 TH

7 45 45 TH

8

g 45 40 30 AC

10 45 45 TH

11 45 45 TH

12 45 45 TH

13 45 45 TH

14 38.2

15 40 40 38.9 TH

16 39.7

17 42.9

18 45 45 40.5 TH

19 45 45 38.3 TH

20 45 45 41.2 TH

21 45 45 TH

22 45 45 TH

23

24

25 45 45 39.5 TH

26 45 45 38.2 TH

27 45 45 42.3 TH

28 45 45 43.5 TH

29

30



Hydrant  Meters  Reading JULY, 2024

DAY HOSPIT  AL M  AIN HOSPITAL  EMERGENCY ELEMENTARY  SCHOOL NURSING  HOME INITIALS COMMENTS

1 50 50 TH

2

3 50 50 40 TH

4

5 45 45 40 TH

6 45 45 40 TH

7

8 40 40 40 PL

9 45 45 40 TH

10 45 45 38 TH

11 45 45 38 TH

12 45 45 38 TH

13

14 45 45 40 TH

15 45 45 42 TH

16 45 45 35 TH

17 45 45 40 TH

18 45 45 40 TH

19 40 40 35 35 PL

20 40 40 40 PL
SCHOOL

METER

WAS

t'ULLED

FOR

REPAIRS

21 50 45 44.3 TH

22 50 45 44.8 TH

23 50 45 46.5 TH

24

25

26

27

28

29

30



- CITY  (ff  T[)UTtl  O[)  (,OSS[I € )U[_!% € [S

AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

MEETINGDATE:Augustl4,2024  Age"daI'em#:Fa2
I

SUBJECT:  City  Commission  Regular  Minutes,  July  24,  2024

DEPARTMENT:  City  Clerk's  Office

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  6, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Angela  A. Torres,  Clerk-Treasurer

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Consent  Calendar

Summory/Bockground:

Minutes  approval.

Recommendation:

Approve  the  minutes.

Attachments:

@-

Fiscal Impact  (Finance): N/A

SO.OO

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  N/A

None.

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  € Department  Director

Reviewedby:  € CityClerk  € Finance  € Legal  € Other:Clickheretoentertext

FinalApproval:  [X City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  - Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-24



CITY  COMMISSION  MEETING  MINUTES

CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES,  NEW  MEXICO

CITY  COMMISSION  CHAMBERS,  405  W. 3RD St.

WEDNESDAY,  JULY  24,  2024

A. CALL  TO ORDER:

The  meeting  was  called  to order  by Mayor  Rolf  Hechler  at 9:00  a.m.,  who  presided  and

Angela  A. Torres,  City  Clerk-Treasurer,  acted  as Secretary  of  the  meeting.

B. INTRODUCTION:

1.  ROLL  CALL:

Upon  calling  the  roll, the  following  Commissioners  were  reported  present.

Hon.  Rolf  Hechler,  Mayor

Hon.  Amanda  Forrister,  Mayor  Pro-Tem

Hon.  Destiny  Mitchell,  Commissioner

Hon.  Merry  Jo Fahl,  Commissioner

Hon.  Ingo  Hoeppner,  Commissioner

Also  Present:  Angie  Gonzales,  City  Manager

Traci  Alvarez,  Assistant  City  Manager

Jay  Rubin,  City  Attorney

Angela  A. Torres,  City  Clerk-Treasurer

Arnie  Castaneda,  Water/\/\/astewater  Director

Luis  Tavizon,  Chief  of  Police

OJ Hechler,  Community  Services  Director

There  being  a quorum  present,  the  Commission  proceeded  with  the  business  at hand.

2. SILENT  MEDIT  ATION:

Mayor  Hechler  called  for  fifteen  seconds  of  silent  meditation.

3.  PLEDGE  OF ALLEGIANCE:

Mayor  Hechler  called  for  Commissioner  Hoeppner  to lead  the  Pledge  of  Allegiance.

4. APPROV  AL  OF  AGENDA:

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to  approve  the  agenda  with  the  following  changes,

move  item  H2 affer  public  comment,  item  H8 and  defer  the public  hearing  of

Ordinance  N0.  767  to  the  August  14th meeting.  Commissioner  Hoeppner  seconded

the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried

unanimously.



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

C. PUBLIC  COMMENT  (3 Minute  Rule  Applies):

Ron  Pacourek  addressed  the  Commission  with  comments  related  to:

@ He lives  on Riverside  and  when  the  dam  is open  and  there  is heavy  rain,  there  is

a soot  build  up. He wanted  to know  if there  was  anything  the  city  could  do as far

as turning  the  dam  down  during  the  heavy  rains  so there  is no flooding.  He  emailed

photos.

Bruce  Swingle  addressed  the  Commission  with  comments  related  to:

*  Mr. Swingle  stated  he would  wait  till H8.

George  Henson  addressed  the  Commission  with  comments  related  to:

*  I feel  that  we have  a cancer  in the  town,  partly  because  we can't  fix the water.

Randy  Ashbaugh  was  here  a year  ago  and  said  that  it's important  to get  it fixed.

@ I'm going  to correlate  with  the raises  that  Traci  Alvarez  got. It seems  like it's the

same  time  our  water  stopped  getting  fixed.  So, your  assistant  manager  needs  to

go, and  your  attorney  needs  to go. I had  to try  and  be a lawyer  myself  several  times

and  your  Santa  Fe lawyers  were  attacking  me  saying  I would  go bankrupt  ifl  would.

Becca  Eza  addressed  the  Commission  with  comments  related  to:

@ We  had  a successful  business  breakfast  in July.  We  had about  15 people  attend.

We have  another  one  coming  up in October  and we would  love  for  you  guys  to

come.

*  We started  planning  for Fiesta.  We had our  first  big meeting,  and we are still

looking  for  dedicated  volunteers  to take  some  large  roles  in directing  committees.

*  MainStreet,  along  with the city has received  the clean  and beautiful  grant  so

congratulations.  Especially  to OJ and  Kathy  who  are  the  main  people  writing  that.

*  The  city  will  be setting  picnic  tables  and  benches  and  Blue  Star  and  Evelyn  Renfro

Park  and MainStreet  is going  to get  some  money  to do another  round  of  trashcan

painting  by local  artists  and  artistic  people.

*  There  will  be a sign  competition  for  earth  day  for  the  youth  to create  some  kind  of

anti-litter  campaign  sign.

*  I started  working  with  some  people  from  the  state's  MainStreet  who  are  graphic

designers,  and who  have  worked  on projects  in Tucumcari  and Taos.  We are

working  on getting  a steering  committee  together  for  some  first  steps  for  some  new

wayfinding  signs  for  town.  We  will be looking  for  a couple  of people  from  the  city

to be on that  steering  committee  to help  represent.  Pretty  soon  we  will  be putting

out  a public  survey  and having  public  meetings  to get  input  from  the  community.

*  We  are  looking  at maybe  6 to 8 months  to having  a nice  proposal  in place  that  can

help  us then  get  some  grant  money.

*  I want  to take  off  my MainStreet  hat  and  just  say  something  as a private  citizen  as

someone  who  lives  here  because  of  access  to trails  and  the  outdoors.  I just  want

to emphasize  to you guys  how  important  the Healing  Waters  Trail  is as a local

asset.  I am a runner,  and I run it several  times  a week,  and I see  other  people

using  it. Not  a ton,  but  there  is always  someone  out  there  walking  their  dog  or  going

Page 2 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

for  a stroll  or looking  for rocks.  So, I have  heard  that  you  guys  are looking  of  to

selling  off  some  city  properties  to put  them  back  on the  tax  rolls  which  absolutely

makes  sense,  but  please  consider  the  importance  of  the  Healing  Waters  Trail,  and

protecting  the use,  and protecting  that  trail  when  you  look  at what  might  be done

with  the  land  and  also  access  to the  river.  I feel  it's important  for  the  quality  of life.

Ron  Fenn  addressed  the  Commission  with  comments  related  to:

*  I want  to talk  about  item number  7 on H6. I do not understand  why  the police

department  is seeking  a grant  for  a minimal  purchase  of  S$l I,000  which  out of  their
$30,000  a month GRT can more than easily buy radios if they are necessary.  If
you have  not read  that  contract  30 pages  or 26 pages,  I hope  that  will  table  this

issue  or cancel  it all together  because  it doesn't  just  have  strings  attached  it has

ropes  not ropes  nooses  to hang  you.  This  is months,  years  beyond  the  life of  the

equipment  you  are  going  to be buying.  You  are  going  to be doing  quarterly  reports

to the  federal  government  not  only  on those  pieces  of equipment  but on other

financial  dealings  with  the  police  department.  If you  have  not  read  that  contract  do

not  vote  for  that  today.  You  will  be creating  a tremendous  problem  for  the  city  and

who  knows  we may  have  to add  some  more  administrative  personnel  just  to take

care  of it for $11,000.  Chief, it's your  money  why aren't  you spending  it? Why are
you not having  city  codes  enforced?  I see code  violations  all over  the city  and

nothing  is done,  and  the code  compliance  officer  says  I am not certified.  I don't

know  what  kind  of certification  he needs  but  the sign code  for  one  in the city  is

atrocious.  The  violations  are  everywhere.  We  have  a sheriff's  department,  we  have

bars,  and we have  gun shops  with  illegal  signs.  We  have  illegal  signs  outside  of

the  police  department.  Why  isn't  somebody  paying  attention  to it. You  want  to look

like  a nice  city,  get  rid of  the  illegal  signs,  and  you  will  get  much  more  benefit  from

the  city  than  you  will  with  this  illegality.

Sid Bryan  addressed  the  Commission  with  comments  related  to:

*  I have  a petition  that  I would  like  to read.  This  petition  is to support  the  T or C City

Commission  in its potential  purchase  of the PNC  building  for  the  new  home  of  the

T or C police.  We  are  in favor  of  this  purchase  and believe  it will  be beneficial  to

all of T or C. I didn't  have  much  time  to circulate  but I got  all the owners  on

Broadway  and a lot on Main  St. All of which  I didn't  have  to say  anything.  They

signed  it at Mile  Marker  7. We  think  we  would  be better  off  with  the  police  in that

location  where  it would  be visible  and  certainly  a lot cheaper  than  when  they  were

going  to go to the  other  location.  We  are all in favor  of  that.  I will  give  you  a copy

of that.

An unknown  resident  addressed  the  Commission  with  comments  related  to:

*  I've  only  lived  here  for  2 years  but  I have  been  coming  for  5 and  there  are  all kinds

of leaks  everywhere.  I did see  in the  paper  last  week  that  there  are  45-48  leaks

that  they  are  working  on. I did talk  to Arnie  I hadn't  done  it before.  I got  his phone

number.  But  do you  guys  also  answer  questions.  Are  there  just  not  enough  people

to work  to take  care  of  all the  problems?  Also,  I read  in the  paper  several  months

ago,  is it the  state  that  declared  an emergency?

Page 3 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

This  item  H2 was  moved  after  public  comment.

H2. Presentation/Discussion/Action:  Electronic  Message  Board.

David  Johnson  Facility  Management:  We  do have  a small  presentation  if you  guys  want

to take  a look  about  our  sign.

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  I brought  my  truck  as a demonstration  to

show  Watchfire  Signs  are  one  of  the  best  and  most  reliable  led signs  in the  industry.  We

are  going  to show  you  what  we do. We  are  out  of Illinois.  That  is where  we create  and

manufacture  the  signs.  We  have  different  resolutions  of  our  signs.  I know  a lot of people

in cities  and jurisdictions  are afraid  of digital  signs  saying  they  might  interrupt  the

community.  I will say  this  about  Watchfire  signs  are one  of  the most  code  compliance

signs  in the  industry.  They  actually  lower  the  light  levels  down  at nighttime  and  then  pick

themselves  up in the  evening.  We  have  been  doing  this  for  a long  time.  If you  have  any

questions  regarding  city  code  compliance  with  it we  will  be happy  to talk  with  you  about

it. All the  training  required  for  it is free  for  you  for  the  life the  life of the  sign.  We  usually

see  about  10 to 12 years  out  of our  signs.  We  do have  a demonstration  outside  for  you

to see.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister:  Are  we  waiting  on your  partner  because  we can  move  you?

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  He will  be here  if you  have  any  questions

for  him.  If not, we will be happy  to show  you  the  demonstration  so you  can  see  what  a

Watchfire  Sign  looks  like  we  have  several  throughout  the  industry  our  service  and  support

is probably  one  of  the  best.  We  will  be here  for  you  for  the  life of  the  sign.  We  have  a lot

of  dark  sky  limits  that  we  deal  with  in Arizona,  that's  where  I'm from.  I fully  understand

that  if there  is anybody  in the  audience  today  that  has  a concern  or question  about  dark

sky  ordinances,  we  actually  respect  that.  So,  all of  our  signs  have  a dim  down  at nighttime

for  code  compliance  as well.  Our  goal  here  at Watchfire  is to sell a sign  that  you  will  be

able  to get  your  money  back  with  it, put up different  ads,  make  ad revenue  with  some  of

the  community  events  going  on but  also  on the  local  business  you  want  to promote  you

want  to promote  the  local  business  especially  in town  out  here.  That's  one  way  you  can

make  your  money  back.

Mayor  Hechler:  One  of  the  questions  that  came  up outside  from  Dean  Lamana  was  if we

could  operate  this  device  with  a handheld  like  a phone  or what  would  you  recommend?

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  Our  recommendation  is to not use a

phone  but  to use  a table  or a laptop.  It is a cloud-based  service  one  of the  top  security

wise  we  have  a GPS  protocol  for  all our  stuff.  Your  IT team  for  the  city  does  not  need  to

get  involved  in this  either  cause  it all cloud  based  it is secured  we have  manager  reign

within  the  sign  that  you  could  set  for  managers  who  can  get  in a change  the  data  that  is

on the  sign,  and  we  also  have  others  who  can  be designers.  Keep  in mind  this  is all cloud

based  and  you  do it from  anywhere.

Page 4 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Mayor  Hechler:  Can  you have  multiple  users,  or do you  recommend  just  one?

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  You  can  have  multiple  users  and  they  are

all secured  by password.  We  also  have  security  protection  in a two-step  verification.  Our

signs  are built  to last. We get  12 years  out  of them  by that  time  usually  you  want  to

upgrade.  Over  the  years  10  to 12 years,  you're  going  to get  your  money's  worth  especially

for  the  community.

Mayor  Hechler:  How  often  do you  have  sofiware  upgrades  available?

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  That's  the  nice  thing  about  being  cloud

based  there  are  no soffware  upgrades  we  do  that  for  you.  If there  is an issue  with  the  sign

you  call  out  to Watchfire  we  will  help  you.  We  can remote  into  the  sign  and  diagnose  it.
We  will  save  you  guys  money  in the  long  run instead  of calling  a side  company  out  every

time  there  is an issue.  if there  is an issue  say  a night  a power  surge  and  the  sign  shuts

down  call  Watchfire  we  want  to do that  for  you  want  us to reset  the  sign  or talk  with  one

of  your  technicians  onsite  you  can  actually  ask  us to flip  the  braker  get  us back  up and it
will  reset.  That's  what  we  would  like  to do for  you,  it will  save  a lot of  money  over  time.  If

there  is an issue  our  signs  are built  on 12x12  squares  so if there  is an issue  with  one  of

the panels  over  the  years  somebody  has shot  a panel  out  it's a single  panel  it's not a

whole  sign  we  are  replacing.  Nice  thing  about  Watchfire  if you  look  around  town,  I did see

there  are some  digital  signs.  Theres  is some  that  look  really  well  that  is a reason  for  that

because  Watchfire  takes  a lot of  pride  in their  signs  if we  give  you  another  panel  it's going

to match  the  sign  that  you  currently  have  its not  going  to be pixelated  where  you  see  a

bunch  of clouds  all over  the  place,  we  don't  want  that.

Mayor  Hechler:  So, the  plan  is if you  didn't  know  is that  we  were  going  to use  the  City's

portion  of lodgers  tax  to pay  for  the  sign  if we  wanted  to acquire  it. One  other  issue  right

now  is that  I just  got  another  quote  yesterday  from  another  company,  so we need  to

evaluate  those.  I don't  know  if you got it Dave  or not so you and I should  have  our

discussion  and  see  what  we want  to do. Then  we  will  have  another  presentation  to the
commission  and  our  final  decision.  We  will  have  to get  into  the  nuts  and  bolts  of  it whether

we  want  the  10 or the  16.

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  The  ones  I would  recommend  especially

for  your  location  that  I currently  read  about  the 10 or the 8. I have  a 6 in my  truck  that's

my  top  of the  line  it all depends  on how  your  budget  is. I'm not  here  to sell  you  a sign  I'm

here  to educate  you  so the  8 is right  in between  the  6 and the  10 that's  a great  one  to go

with.  I think  if you  go with  the  10 is great  if that's  what  you  want  to go with.  Just  be very

careful  with  the  competitors  out  there  because  when  they  are usually  in their  first  year,

they  usually  have  a side  company,  but  I like  I said  I'm here  to educate  you  and  that's  it.

Mayor  Hechler:  Is the  sign  that  we  are  proposing  is it 2 sided  like  the  one  out  here  or is it
one  sided.

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  It's  a double  face.

Page 5 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Commissioner  Fahl:  I have  a question  about  the  pixels  so, the  one  on the  other  side  that's
a 10 right  but  where  you  had us stand,  I'm assuming  you're  going  to put  the  sign  out there
where  the civic  center  sign  is? Right  and so people  are driving  by that  there where  we

were  standing,  they  are  going  to be further  away  I don't  see  how  they are  going  to be able
to see  it as well.

David  Johnson  Facility  Management:  they  should  be able  to see  it just  fine  because  the
sign  is high  not  only  that  its closer  to the road  than  this  when  we were  standing  out  in

front  of  it.

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  What's  the distance  to the road from
where  the  sign  is at.

David  Johnson  Facility  Management:  I would  say  about  1 0ff.

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  So,  about 10ft so that's why we
recommend  either  going  to the  8. Depending  on budget  wise  this  is a great  example  that
why  I brought  this  truck  out.  You're  going  to buy  something  for  the  community  to love  and

I'd hate  for  out  in a 10 and  so ok this  is it, 10 is a great  unit  don't  get me wrong  but if it's
that  close  might  want  to look  at the  next  one  which  is an 8 best thing now  is it would  be
worth  it in the long run.

Commissioner  Fahl: Right,  because  if we are going  to fork  that  out  and if people  are

walking,  I mean  both  of  those  that  distance  that  we  were  standing  it's a little  bit closer  so

if we  are  going  to do this  let's  do the  quality  one.

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  Keep  in mind  with  budgets  LED  signs  are

not  all equal  out  there  so there  will  be a lot of price  differences  in LED  signs.  Watchfire

and  a couple  of  my  competitors  out  there  stand  by our  pricing  because  of  what  we  do. So

be careful  if you  see  one  that's  $I0,000  off  it's probably  a reason  for  that  it comes  across

in a box  and  everybody  puts  it together  and  everything  else,  just  keep  that  in mind  when

comes  down  to budget.  I fully  understand  Watchfire  is not  cheap  I will  say  that  and  there

is a reason  for that. There  are also  other  manufacturers  that  believe  in the same

statements  as we do.

Commissioner  Fahl:  That's  good  that  we  get  to pay  for  it out  of lodger's  tax  but  if we  are

going  to do that.  Let's  do it right.

Mayor  Hechler:  You  coordinate  the  electric  to the  sign,  the  placement  and  permit  all those

things?  So, it's a ready  project,  turn  keep  project?  If we  wanted  2 signs,  one  on each  end

of  town  are  they  intergraded  together?  Can  we operate  them  separately?

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  Since  its cloud  based,  I can put multiple
signs  around  the  city  from  once  dashboard  you  can  actually  see  each  sign  if you have  a

comment  on one  and you  want  to bring  it over  to the  other  you  can  put  it on each  sign  its
what  we  call  different  domain.

Page 6 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  RF,GULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister:  So, they  can be intergraded  and  be the  same  or we  could  do

separate  things  on them.

David  Edwards  Superior  Signs  Representative:  Yes.  The  nice  thing  about  our  stuff  too  is

that  you  can just  drag  and drop.  One  thing  I say  is have  administrative  rights  and then

people  that  are  designers.  If you  are  the  only  one  that  is the  administrator,  you  have  the

content  of  that  because  you  have  people  who  are  in and  out  of  the  chamber,  I understand

that.  You  want  to make  sure  you  fill them  in. If at nighttime,  you  want  to turn  the  signs  off

its one  button  maybe  and midnight  then  go back  on. It's up to you  how  you  want  to do

that.  There  is a lot of  functionality,  but  we  are  going  to teach  you  guys.  This  is fully  turnkey

we help  you  with  it we teach  you.  You  get  new  people  that  come  in you  call  us and  we

will  do the  training  for  you  again  you're  never  going  to be leff in the  dark.  If there  is an

issue  you  call  Watchfire  first,  we  will help  you  and  then  we  call  Pablo  out  we  try  to make

it as seamless  as possible.

Mayor  Hechler  moved  to  table  this  item  to  the  next  meeting  so  they  can  look  at

another  bid  that  came  in for  the  Electronic  Message  Board.  Mayor  Pro-Tem

Forrister  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion

carried  unanimously.

D. REPORTS:

City  Manager  Gonzales  reported  the  following:

@ We  were  finishing  up the  budgets  yesterday.

*  Arnie  is here  to address  the  water  concerns.  I do want  to say  that  we  hear  you,

and  we are  trying.  Yes,  we have  been  in here  talking  about  how  wonderful  it was

that  we have  gotten  all these  millions  of  dollars,  but  just  because  we  get  it

doesn't  mean  we have  it. There  is a process.  If you  think  local  government  is

bureaucratic,  wait  until  what  we  have  to deal  with  on bureaucrat  side.  We  have  to

deal  with  state  and  federal.  We  have  to make  sure  our  financials  are  in order  and

we have  to make  sure  our  part  of  the  reports  are  in order.  There  is lots  of  that

stuff  that we have  to do from an $I1,000  JAG grant  to a $11 million  dollar  USDA
grant.  I just  want  to make  sure  we  address  it, and  we are  working  on it, but  it is

going  to take  time.

City  Commission  Reports:

Commissioner  Fahl  reported  the  following:

*  The  Recreation  & Tourism  board  meets  quarterly,  and they  meet  shortly  before

the  second  Tuesday.  They  have  representation  for  Chloride,  Hillsboro,  Kingston,

and  they  talk  about  things  that  are  going  on in the  tourism  world  to keep  us up to

date.  We  always  get  emails  from  Kim  Skinner  who  is the  president,  to what  is

going  on in the  hospitality  and  tourism  world,  and  recreation  is always  very

informative.

Page 7 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

*  I'm excited  about  the  work  that  the  Black  Range  Ranger  District  and  Forrest

Service  is doing.  Years  ago,  the  forest  had actual  trail  crews,  and  they  went  out

horseback  for  2 weeks  at a time  and  worked  on those  trails.  The  funding  for  trails

kept  going  away.  The  trails  have  been  in terrible  shape  for  probably  20 years

because  they  just  don't  have  the  money  or the  people  to work  on them.  The

money  that  came  from  the  black  fire  and  the  rehab.  Jim  Apodaca  is the

recreation  specialist  for  the  Black  Range  Ranger  District,  and he told  us that  they

have  already  done  20 miles  of  trail  improvements,  and  they  have  a lot more  they

are  going  to be able  to get  to. A professor  that  went  to the  Ladder  and  stayed  at

Hermosa  for  several  years  is retired,  and  he created  and non-profit  and  worked

on an agreement  with  the  Ladder  Ranch,  and  he purchased  that  Hermosa  town

site.  That  organization  hosts  young  kids  all the  time  for  education  and  for

conservation.  They  partnered  with  the  Forest  Service,  and  they  house  people,

and  work  on trails  out  of  there.  That's  going  to be a really  big asset  for  our

community,  and  for  recreation  in our  county.

*  The  Turtleback  Trail  group  meets  every  other  month,  and  they  met  this  month.

We  had the  Recreation  Specialist  from  the  BLM  office  in Las  Cruces  attend  by

phone  this  time.  That's  the  first  time  he has  participated.  They  are  a key

component  in the big development  of  that  plan  because  we  want  to open  up the

land  on the  other  side  of  the  river  on public  land,  so that  we  can  actually  develop

specific  trails  for  hiking  and  biking.  Some  of us have  been  here  a long  time.

Bruce  probably  remembers  when  we  did how  many  versions  of  the  tri county

plan  with  the  BLM.  It's been  going  on for  25 years  probably,  and  when  federal

agencies  have  to re-do  their  management  plans,  they  are  supposed  to do them

every  10 years  well  they  have  been  working  on this  plan  for  25 years  but  they  are

getting  close  to getting  it done.  They  are  going  to come  back  out  again  for  public

comment.  What  I would  like  the  city  to think  about  doing  and  you  know  do your

research  with  how  the  formatting  that  it would  be good  for  the  city  Deb  is going  to

have  the  Village  of  Williamsburg  do it also,  to send  letters  to the  BLM  soon  within

the  next  couple  of months  to ask  them  to look  at doing  more  trail  development

while  they  are  finalizing  their  tri county  plan.  It's not  going  to cost  us anything  but

for  them  to think  about  it I think  that  would  be a really  good  thing.

*  The  Jornada  RC&D  is going  to apply  for  a recreation  plus  trails  grant  for  signage

on interpretive  panels  on the  other  side  of  the  river  for  the  Turtleback  trail  if a

rural  area  it's a 2 to 1 match  and it could  be in-kind,  and  the  education  committee

has  that  lined  up and  we  are  going  to apply  for  that  this  fall.  The  dam  owner's

coalition  meeting  is going  to meet  in northern  New  Mexico  in late  April  early  May

hopefully  not  during  fiesta  week,  but  we  are hoping  to have  it in Taos  because

they  have  a big dam  on the  reservation,  but  the  community  is in charge  of it so

that's  pretty  complex  so put  that  in the  back  of  your  mind  maybe  some  of  you  can

go.

Commissioner  Mitchelle:  Are  they  not  doing  one  in October?

Commissioner  Fahl:  The  dam  owners  had  meetings  usually  in the  spring  and  then  covid

ended  they  wanted  to have  them  right  away,  but  we  are  going  to stay  away  from  the  fall

Page 8 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

because  there  is a lot of  engineers  that  attend  these  conferences  and  there  is a whole

bunch  of  them  in the  fall.

Commissioner  Hoeppner  reported  the  following:

*  I hope  that  here  soon  we  can  sit  together  with  the  New  Mexico  Department  of

Transportation  and  talk  about  Main  Street  and  Broadway,  and  find  a solution  for

drainage,  so we  don't  have  standing  water.  Especially  during  the  heavy  rains.  I'm

also  pro-outdoor  recreation,  and I see  our  county  as an outdoor  recreation  place

to be for  New  Mexico  and  I think  that  when  the  state  is developing,  we  should  try

our  best  to maintain  and  expand  even  our  healing  waters.

*  I'm also  standing  for  the  for  the  police  station  and its location  as a business

owner.

Commissioner  Mitchell  reported  the  following:

@ We  are  planning  our  75'h anniversary  for  Fiesta,  and  we are  wanting  to make  it

bigger,  better  and longer  and  we  still  need  volunteers.  The  next  meeting  will  be

on August  20'h at the  MainStreet  office  if anyone  is interested.

*  We  will  begin  free  swimming  lessons  in August.  I ended  up getting  over  40 kids

signed  up. I also  have  a mommy/baby  class  which  has  20 people  in it.

*  The  swim  team  went  to state,  and  they  did well.  We  will  have  the  awards  party

this  weekend.

*  We  have  the  RC&D  meeting  tomorrow.

*  National  Night  Out  is on August  6'h at the  Albert  Lyon  Center.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  reported  the  following:

*  We  just  wrapped  up volleyball  camp  at the  high  school  for  kindergarten  through

5fh grade.  We  had about  26 kids  attend  and  that  was  really  fun.

*  I want  to give  a shout  out  to the  water  and  wastewater  department.  I believe  you

were  there  on 3rd street  last  night  working  on some  stuff.

*  August  3rd is going  to be a busy  weekend.  We  have  a volleyball  round  robin,  as

well  as the  Winston  Fiesta,  in conjunction  with  the  Peterson  Memorial  Rodeo.

*  We  need  to get  NMDOT  down  to Main  Street  to figure  out  what  is going  on with

the  drainage.

Mayor  Hechler  reported  the  following:

@ On the  river  issues,  I did call  the  local  BOR  representative  and  asked  him to give

a presentation  in the  near  future,  but  just  in a nutshell,  by the  time  they  get  the

information  to shut  down  the  dam,  it takes  3 or  4 hours  for  the  water  to actually

recede,  so it's not  going  to do anything.  The  other  night  the  rain caused  the

arroyos  to flood  to the  side  equal  to the  river  in town,  and  when  that  happens  the

river  fills  up quickly,  and  even  if you  turn  the  dam  off  it would  have  no effect.  We

do need  an emergency  action  plan  of  some  sort.  We  will  talk  about  those  things

in the  future.

@ I want  to thank  Sid Bryan  and  Susie  Buhler  for  coming  and  speaking  on behalf  of

Ordinance  767  even  though  we  tabled  it. We  tabled  it not  for  our  reasons.  The

state  had some  wording  in their  documentation  that  needed  to be changed  and

Page 9 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024 REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

they  requested  us to table  it, and  we  did.  With  that  in mind,  I hope  the  community

supports  this  move  to the  building.  This  building  is different  than  the  armory.

When  you  factor  in the  cost  of  this  building,  it's  a third  of  the  cost  that  the  armory

would  have  been.  When  you  talk about  the armory,  it's $4.5 million  then almost
$7 million  dollars  by the time you pay  it off. The total for the PNC building is going
to be $2 million  or real close to that. If we borrow  $1.68 million, and I'm not
advocating  that we borrow  the whole  $1.68 million. I want  to borrow  the least
amount  possible  to get  the  building  up and running  for  our  police  department.  I

think  the  chief  is in line  with  that,  so we  are  going  to work  that  end.  It's good  that

the  police  department  will  remain  downtown  as requested  by many  of our  citizens

and  they  signed  the  petitions  for  that.  I thank  them  for  doing  that  for  us. The  cost

of new  construction  for  a new  building  and  we  talked  about  putting  a new  building

where  the municipal  court is. Its $200,000  to $250,000  per square  foot a new
building  would  be between  $1.4 million  and  $1.75 million from the ground up and
that's  not  furnishing  with  technologies,  security,  furniture  and  things  like  that  that

not furnishing,  so we  are  talking about  $2.5 million dollars,  and  we  are talking
about  2 years  down  the  road.  That  is not  an immediate  solution.  The  PNC  bank

is under  $2 million,  and it can be done,  and  it can be moved into within 6 to 8
months.  This  gets  us out  of  an old mortuary  which  has  issues  all of its own  and

they  are  well  documented  issues.  This  building  solves  the  problem  of relocating

the police  department  at the  best  cost.  It's the  best  location,  and it's under  the

best  terms.  I'm really  hoping  the  community  stands  up for  us in this  regard.

*  Last  week  I met  with  Jay  Armijo  and  Angela  Rael  of  the  South  Central  Council  of

Governments,  and I'm really  pleased  to see  Gary  Whitehead  is now  working

there.  We  all know  Gary  Whitehead  as a former  county  manager,  and he has

been  in our  community  for  a long  time.  I went  there  specifically  to do a couple

things.  We have  been  successful  in getting  money  for  our  community  in the  form

of water.  A long list  of  things  that  come  along  ofien  require  us to go out  for  a

loan,  and  we  have  several  of these things  out. For  instance,  with the $1.6 million

loan  that we had to take out, we had  to take out a $440,000  loan.  I'm asking the
City  Manager  to show  us a spreadsheet  and  build  all those  things  up to see  how

much  money  we  got  flowing  out  the  door,  and  how  much  money  we  got  flowing  in

the  door  to see  if we  can  continue  to keep  asking  for  money  because  it's  getting

to be a problem  for  us. I wanted  to ask  the  South  Central  Council  of

Governments  to jump  in and advocate  for  us. I know  we're  not  the  only

community.  I'm sure  a lot of small  communities  have  the  same  problems  that  we

have.  We  have  also  sent  the  information  to our  lobbyist.  I think  it's important  that

she  gets  on board  with  us in that  regard,  and  we  start  fighting  for  our  small

communities  and  we  see  if we  can  either  forgive  our  matches,  or not  require  us

to have  these  matches  so we  don't  slow  down  trying  to get  money  for  our

community  and  fix the  problems  that  we  have.  I think  that's  going  to be an

important  initiative  for  us and  we  need  to work  on that.

*  The  other  things  I wanted  to talk  about  are  funding  for  things  like the  recreation

center,  maybe  the  Lee  Belle  Johnson  Center  to fix our  water.  There  is a specific

grant under  the EDA. It's a government  program  where  they fund  $1.2 million. I
asked  Jay  and his crew  to talk  to the  program  manager  for  this  fund,  and  ask

Page 10 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024 REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

them  which  would  be the best  one  for  us to apply  for, and that  was  for  the
recreation  center,  the Lee Belle  Johnson  Center.  Knowing  that  we are a

distressed  community,  and that's  one  of  the criteria  under  this  grant,  I think  we

have  a good  chance  of applying  for  that  money,  and we will work  on trying  to get
that.

@ We  know  our  elementary  school  is suffering  from  low water  pressure,  but  we
don't  know  the genesis  of that.  We know  that  our  hospital  has some  issues  with

low  water  pressure,  and it's had those  issues  for  a while.  Here  is a timeline  of

what  we have  been  doing  to try and get  ahead  of it and get  help.  The  start  of that

when  I wrote  an email  to Mr. Bowers  with  the Environment  Department  on June
27'h of last year  with  that,  we sent  a presentation  about  the  water  issues  and the

highlights  of concern  regarding  the disparity.  One  of the  things  was  the  disparity

that  we have  between  the award  money  that  we get  for  to fix the water  for  $12
million  to fix a certain  project  then  we got  the bid, and the  bid is coming  in at $'l6

million  or $15  million  there is a disparity  there. So, we end up shaving  up portions
of those  projects  and we don't  get  the things  done  that  we need  to get  done.  I

want  to make  sure  that  our  Governor  and our  Governor's  secretary  know  what

those  disparities  are, and how  it worked.  We had a meeting  scheduled  for  July

22nd. Senator  Brantley  was  there,  and Secretary  Kenney  was  not able  to attend
so we had to table  that.  I generated  some  email  in the presentation  we had, and I

sent  them  to Secretary  Kenney  and Mr. Bowers  we have  support  to help  us with

that  disparity  that  I just  discussed,  and we sent  them  actual  illustrations  of $8

million  to $IO  million  in projects where  we have  those issues.  They  are well
aware  of what  is going  on and we have  an opportunity  here.  Shortly  after  I

became  involved  in the  water  pressure  issues  that  we have  with  the elementary

school  and the hospital  We  have  the  highway  department  and the  construction
engineers  on site at the roundabouts  to try and determine  if the water  pressure

issues  are a result  of  that  construction,  nothing  was  discovered.  We opened  and

closed  every  valve.  We believe  they  may  have  been,  but  we weren't  sure.  We

met  with  the  maintenance  supervisor  at the schools,  and Arnie  as well  as some

other  people  and we tried  to see  what  the  problem  was.  We  believe  we are

delivering  water  pressure  to the  hydrants  but  from  the hydrants  to their  facility

there  is an I 8-to-20-pound  drop.  We  don't  know  why  we are trying  to figure  that
out. The  city  has called  Pure  Ops,  a private  company  out  of Las Cruces,  to help

us diagnose  the problem.  They  got  hit with  covid  and strep,  so they  had to cancel

the  meeting.  If you remember  Rebecca  Rue, she  is the  infrastructure  specialist

we met  with  earlier  in the year.  I sent  an email  to her and illustrated  the  issues

we are having  and asked  for assistance.  She  directed  me to the governor's

office,  and I talked  with  them.  I provided  the new  information  to the governor's

office  regarding  the water  pressure  issues  and  that  was  sent  to Secretary

Kenney  and Mr. Bowers.  This  resulted  in a second  meeting  scheduled  for  this

Friday  at noon  to discuss  all those  things  that  I have  just  related.  I have  invited

Superintendent  Burgin  from  the  schools  and the hospital  CEO  Cochran.  They  will

either  be there  or have  representation  there,  so we know  that  their  story  is going

to be heard.  Also  attending  will be Governor's  Cabinet,  Secretary  Kenney,

Deputy  Lenamon,  and Director  John  Rodrick.  I had a long  talk  with  John  Rodrick

Page  11 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

who  seems  to be well  versed  with  these  water  issues  and  the  integration

between  the  city  issues  and  these  major  community  issues  with  the  buildings  like

schools  and hospitals  and  things  like  that.  Hopefully  we  will  get  some  answers

and  get  ahead  of  this  thing.  Superintendent  Burgin  did say  that  they  have

emergency  things  in place  to put  portable  washing  stations  at the  elementary

school  so the  kids  can  go to school  they  don't  get  to use  the  bathrooms.  Right

now  they  are having  to physically  change  the  water  from  the  kitchen  to the

bathrooms  and  vise  verse  whichever  one  is going  to be in use  they  can't  wash

the  dishes  if the  bathroom  are  flushing  and  things  like  this.  We  have  to get  this

rectified.  Right  now,  we  don't  know  if it's a city  problem,  if at school  or hospital

problem  to me it's a community  problem.  Wherever  the  chips  fall  we  are  going  to

get  it fixed.  I've  had  these  discussions  with  the  superintendent  and  Frank  and if

the  problem  is on their  side  they  will  pay  for  it. If the  problem  is on our  side

obviously,  we  are  going  to pay  for  it, but  we have  to get  through  it.

City  Attorney  Rubin  reported  the  following:

*  I wanted  to explain  the  reason  why  we  tabled  Ordinance  No. 767.  The  problem

wasn't  really  on our  end.  I talked  to Chis  Muirhead  yesterday,  and it will  come

back  at the  next  meeting  on August  l4'h.  There  may  be some  minor  changes  to

what  is currently  in the  packet,  and  I am hopeful  that  Mr. Muirhead  will  be here  to

clarify  a few  points  for  us.

E. CONSENT  CALENDAR:

1. City  Commission  Regular  Minutes,  June  26, 2024

2.  City  Commission  Special  Minutes,  July  2, 2024

3. Acknowledge  Public  Utility  Advisory  Board  Minutes,  June  17,  2024

4. Acknowledge  Public  Arts  Advisory  Board  Minutes,  June  4, 2024

5.  Subrecipient  FY 23/24  4th  Quarter  Repom

6.  Take  Home  Vehicle  Form

Commissioner  Fahl  moved  to  approve  the  Consent  Calendar  as submitted.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by the  Clerk-

Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

F. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS/ZONING:

1.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  No. 08 24/25  approval  of final  2023-24

Budget  Adjustments.

City  Manager  Gonzales:  This  is our  budget  adjustment  resolution  for  the  end  of  the  fiscal

year  23/24.  At the  end  of  the  fiscal  year,  we have  to go through  and make  sure  that  no

funds  are  in the negative.  We  had  to increase  some  expenses  and revenues  on the  294,

280,  509,  403  and 315  funds.

Page 12 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024 REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to approve  Resolution  No.  08 24/25  approval  of

final  2023-24  Budget  Adjustments.  Commissioner  Fahl  seconded  the  motion.  Roll

call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

2.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  No. 09 24/25  approval  of FY 23/24  4th

Quarter  Report.

City  Manager  Gonzales  reviewed  Resolution  No. 09 24/25  approval  of FY 23/24  4th

Quarter  Report.

Commissioner  Fahl  moved  to  approve  Resolution  No.  09 24/25  approval  of  FY

23/24  4th  Quarter  Report.  Commissioner  Mitchell  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call

was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

3.  Discussion/Action:  Resolution  No. 10 24/25  to accept  the  final  2024-25

Budget.

City  Manager  Gonzales  reviewed  Resolution  No. 10 24/25  to accept  the  final  2024-25

Budget.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to  approve  Resolution  No. 10  24/25  to accept  the

final  2024-25  Budget.  Commissioner  Mitchell  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was

taken  by the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

4.  Discussion/Action:  Amendment  to Resolution  03 22/23  Animal  Shelter

Fees.

Tara  Manning,  Animal  Shelter  Manager:  We  are  amending  some  of the  wording  on this

resolution  in order  to benefit  everyone.  For  example,  in court  cases,  animals  not  picked

up within  72 hours  affer  court  release  shall  become  property  of  the  animal  shelter  because

we  have  had cases  where  people  abuse  that.  Same  with  the  mandatory  quarantines.  We

are  also  no longer  calling  it a safekeep  hold.  It is now  being  called  an incarceration  hold

or a hospitalization  hold.  The  incarceration  hold  is up to five  (5) calendar  days.  Affer  five

(5) days  the  animal  may  become  the  property  of  the  shelter.  A boarding  fee  will  be applied

after  72 hours.  A medical  hold  will  be up to ten  (10)  calendar  days.  Affer  ten  (10)  days  the

animal  may  become  the property  of the  shelter.  A boarding  fee  will be applied  affer  72

hours.

Page 13 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to approve  Amendment  to Resolution  03 22/23

Animal  Shelter  Fees.  Commissioner  Hoeppner  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was

taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

Mayor  Pro-  Tem  Forrister  made  a motion  to move  item  H6 after  item  F4.

Commissioner  Mitchell  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-

Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

H6.  (New  Business)  Discussion/Update:  PD Update.

Chief  of  Police  Tavizon:  I want  to start  off  by thanking  you  for  your  continued  support.

There  is no way  you could  ever  be accused  of malfeasance.  You  are doing  your  due

diligence  to address  issues  that  I brought  up, and  I appreciate  that.  As  you  are  aware,  my

goal  for  the Police  Department  is to eventually  become  accredited  with  the Municipal

League,  and  part  of  the  accreditation  is the  building  itself.  My guest  here  today  is Roberta

Baca  from  the Office  of the State  Investigations.  She  also  works  with  the Municipal

League  and the  New  Mexico  Association  of Chiefs  of Police.  She  works  on accrediting

agencies.  I was  working  on our  policies  and  some  of  our  software  that  we  were  doing,  but

I wanted  the  community  to understand  what  it is about  our  current  facility  that  is going  to

prevent  us from  future  accreditation.

Roberta  Baca,  New  Mexico  Office  of  State  Investigations:  It's an honor  to be here  before

you.  We  have  an office  in Albuquerque,  and one  in Santa  Fe. I run the  statewide  Auto

Theft  Authority  which  is also  a big deal  in New  Mexico.  There  are not  just  problems  in

Albuquerque.  There  are problems  everywhere,  and as we push  out  from  Albuquerque,

those  problems  become  our  smaller  community's  issues.  And  we are  aware  of  that.  I've

been  doing  this  job  off  and on for  about  26 years,  so I have  a lot of  experience.  I am the

president  of the Standards  Council,  and  we  travel  around  the  state  looking  at different

Police  Departments.  Your  Chief  and law  enforcement  staff,  and civilian  staff  should  be

commended.  They've  done  a really  great  job.  One  of the  things  I think  is very  important

to remember  is that  a Police  Department  that  is accredited  in today's  day  and  age  means

that  we  adhere  to a higher  standard.  It also  means  that  if you  are insured  with  the  New

Mexico  Municipal  League  Risk  Program,  you  get  a discount  for  good  behavior  for  Police

Departments,  so it cuts insurance  premiums.  One  of the things  I want  to remind  the

community  about  is that  you  wouldn't  pass  accreditation  today.  I inspected  your  current

building.  You  are  aware  of all of  the  other  issues,  but  I think  some  of  the  things  that  the

community  doesn't  think  about  are some  of the  things  that  citizens,  or this  council  may

have  to pay  for  such  as ADA  fines,  and OSHA  compliance  fines.  There  could  also  be

some  work  compensation  injuries  that  could  occur  with  some  of  the  issues  you  have  with

the  building.  I think  the  biggest  one  is the  Civils  Rights  Compliance  Act,  and  it doesn't  just

apply  to Police  Officers.  People  forget  that  it's any  public  body,  or any  public  person.  It's

$2 million  per incident, but I want to remind  the public  that they have  a pass  from  the
attorney  fees,  because  our  legislators  are  mostly  attorneys,  and  a lot of  them  are  defense

attorneys.  We  can  say  we  are  going  to be capped  at $2 million  per  person,  but you  don't
know  what  the  attorney  fees  will  be, and  there's  not  a cap  on those.  What  we're  seeing

Page 14 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

right now  in the trend is close  to $3 million  for  attorney  fees. You  can have  one incident
that costs you  $2 million,  and the attorneys  are going to be paid about $3 million. These
are  some  of  the  costs  that  we  don't  put  in the  budget,  because  it doesn't  occur  to us until

a major  disaster  or something  else  happens.  I commend  this  body  and  your  Police  Chief,

and  the  people  that  keep  your  streets  safe  every  single  day  because  they're  taking  these

steps  to really  mitigate  your  risk.  And  that  is a public  service.  I also  want  to remind  the
public  that  it's a "pay  me now"  or "pay  me later"  situation,  and it really  hurts  for  the "pay

me  later"  situation  because  with  a small  council  like  this,  and  a budget  that,  I'm looking  at

perhaps  $5 million.  Risk  premiums  would wipe a lot of issues out, be it water, sewer  or
other  things,  so we really  want  to mitigate  our  risks.  I also  want  to thank  you  for  being  in

support  of a new  building.  We look  forward  to coming  back  out  when  you do get  them

moved,  and really  working  with  the  Chief  to get  them  accredited.  Again,  that  applies  to

your  risk  premium.  There  are  around  20 or 30 employees  that  are there,  and you  get  a

discount  on all of them.  You  are  also  making  an investment  in a reduction  in other types

of  premiums.

Commissioner  Fahl:  Thank  you  for  coming  in and  trying  to explain  this  to our  community.

Mayor  Hechler:  Ms. Baca,  do you  have  any  examples  of a community  that  had issues

that  we  could  potentially  be facing,  and  what  the  result  was?

Roberta  Baca,  New  Mexico  Office  of  State  Investigations:  There  are  smaller  communities

that  are  similar  in size  like Moriarity,  and Edgewood,  and  their  Police  Departments  have

had some  issues  with  their  evidence  rooms,  where  they  have  been  sued  for  civil  rights
issues,  safe  keeping  issues,  and  safety  issues.  Those  losses  have  resulted  in

approximately  a $5 million  to $7 million settlement.  Again,  we have insurance  for a reason,
but  the  problem  is that  once  the  self-insurers  pool  dries  up, the  cost  to buy  a re-insurance

risk  premium  policy  is almost  15%  to 16%  higher  in New  Mexico,  than  they  are in any

other  place  in the  nation  because  of  the  liabilities  that  we  don't  necessarily  take  care  of. I

think  the  citizens  and  people  of  this  state  really  need  take  a look  at what  our  risks  are  in

government.  The  Police  Department  is probably,  and  unfortunately,  one  of  the biggest.
We  want  to keep  them  safe,  and  we want  to keep  your  community  safe.  These  dollars

that  we  invest  in the  public  safety  realm  are  to do just  that.  Another  example  right  now

that  they  are  facing  is something  that  is going  on in Las Cruces,  and they  are probably

looking  closer  at a $10 million  or $20 million settlement,  and that does not include  attorney
fees.  I am an attorney,  and  I have  been  for  26 years.  It is a little  disconcerting.  A lot of my

colleagues  are  charging  anywhere  from  $300 and  $500 an hour for these cases, and their
paralegals  and assistants  are charging  anywhere  from  $75 to $150 an hour. Which
means,  when  you call your  attorney  and the receptionist  answers  the phone,  they  are

charging  you  some  amount  of $75 because  they get to charge all of these fees. Again,
when  we look  at caps  of  $2 million,  we are  not looking  at those attorney  fees. They vary
depending  on how  long a case  will  drag  out, which  is why  sometimes  we are settling
cases.  We  are  very  quick  to settle.  I think  it's  going  to be a very  delicate  balance  moving

forward  into  the  future,  and  it's  going  to be something  that  we  all have  to deal  with. It could

be  the  City  Clerk,  it could  be your  legal  office,  or it could  be any  one  of  us. It's any  public

person  now,  so it could  be any  one  of us that  something  is brought  against.  It doesn't

Page 15 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

mean  that  the  claim  is viable,  but  a lot of  the  time,  your  city  attorney  will  tell  you  let's  settle

this  because  litigation  is really  expensive.  You're  rolling  the  dice  when  you  have  I 2 people

on a jury,  because  they  can  wake  up today  and  feel  really  great  about  city  government,

or they  could  wake  up tomorrow  and  feel  really  bad about  it, so it's really  important  to be

mindful.

Mayor  Hechler:  Thank  you.  That  illustrates  to us that  we  need  to mitigate  all the  risks  that

we  can  upfront  when  we  can,  and by doing  some  of  those  things,  I think  it not  only  helps

us with  our  premiums,  but  it also  reduces  the  risk  of  lawsuits,  and  that  is important  for  us.

Roberta  Baca,  New  Mexico  Office  of  State  Investigations:  Internally,  I think  if people  had

to actually  visit  your  police  department  and  see  that  some  of  the roof  is almost  actually

caving  in, and  they  are  probably  going  to have  to move  some  desks  around  until  you  can

get  them  moved  because  you  don't  want  that  falling  in or anything  else  on anybody  who

internally  works  there  either.  Work  comp  claims  are  just  as expensive  as anything  else.  I

think  these  are  things  we  don't  think  about  as everyday  citizens,  but  I think  that  all of  our

citizens  need  to think  about  it because  nobody  wants  to pay  more  taxes.  We  live  in a very

poor,  rural  state.  We  all live paycheck  to paycheck,  including  myself.  We are in public

service  for  a reason,  because  we love  it, and  we're  trying  to serve  the  people  where  we

live. I think  the less  that  we  pay,  and  the  more  we  get  to keep  in our  pocket  is good  for  all

of us. It's a win/win,  and we really  need  to look  at it like  that.

Chief  of Police  Tavizon:  I just  wanted  to bring  up a concern  that  one  of  the  citizens  had

earlier  about  one  of the  grants.  When  it comes  to government  work,  we are  required  to

answer  for  any  kind  of  money  that  we  get,  whether  it's  just  for  our  budget  or anything  else.

This  is free  money  that  we are  getting  through  a grant.  We've  already  worked  with  this

grant  in the  past.  We  were  able  to purchase  15 laptops  for  our  officers'  docking  stations.

I am familiar  with  these  grants.  I'm the  one  who  does  the  monthly  and quarterly  reports.

When  you get  in the  groove  of  things,  it's part  of the  routine,  and I am quite  capable  of

continuing  to take these grants. These  are smaller  grants. It's just under  $12,000  for
handheld  radios  for  the officers.  The  ones  we have  are  outdated.  It has been  the past

practice  to get  loans  for  the  equipment  that  is needed,  but  I am totally  against  getting  a

loan  for  anything  that  we  can  get  for  free.  All  we  have  to do is a little  bit  of paperwork  for

it. There  is no cash  match or nothing. We  got close  to $60,000 last year  in equipment
from  the  same  grant.  This  year  there  were  a few  more  people  who  applied  so the  funding

was  a little  bit less.  I will  always  continue  to look  for  funding  out  there  for  anything  that  is

available  for  law  enforcement  or  for  community  benefit.  I'm sure  there  are  grants  out  there

that  will get  us a sign put up for  the PNC  Bank  to advertise  and slow  people  down.

Whatever  the  case  may  be. The  Officers  are  extremely  busy  again  this  month.  We  can't

seem  to get  crashes  under  control.  We've  utilized  the  traffic  safety  grants  that  we  get.  Our

officers  have  worked  overtime  in addition  to their  regular  duties  so they  can address

certain  problem  areas  in our  community.  We  sent  an officer  to the  State  Academy,  and

we  are  sending  officers  to First  Line  Supervisor  training  and investigation  training.

Page 16 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Calls  for  Service  in July:

*  238  Traffic  Stops.

*  158  Citations/warnings  (lncluding  handwritten)

-  580  CFS  calls.

*  80 ACO  calls.

-  6 SCI (CYFD)  calls.

@ 2 DWI/Dul.

*  II  Arrests

Commissioner  Mitchell:  I wanted  to remind  everyone  that  the  JAG  grant  is not  something

that  is brand  new. It is something  we have  received  every  year,  and we are going  to

continue  to utilize  it for  the  benefit  of  our  community.

Chief  Tavizon:  It may be just a little under  $12,000  but that's  free money  that I don't  have
to spend  out of my budget. It's a smaller  amount,  but it will open  it up to larger  amounts
down the road. Some of the other areas get bigger  amounts. I got around $97,000 for
equipment  right before  I left Deming.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister:  I would  like to challenge  those  citizens  that  make  those

comments  to come  with  us with  some  constructive  ideas.  If they  can  find  money  that  is

for  free  out  there  that  we don't  have  to do any  paperwork  with,  then  please  let us know

where  to find  that.

Commissioner  Fahl: Chief,  I want  to thank  your  Animal  Control  Officer  and Code

Enforcement.  He is doing  both  jobs,  and he is doing  what  he can.  We  understand  that

people  are  frustrated,  but  when  you  can't  meet  your  staffing  needs,  there  is only  so much

time  in the  day.

F5.  (Ordinances,  Resolutions,  Zoning):

Discussion/Action:  Publication  of  Ordinance  768,  Amending  Sec.  3-98  of

the  Municipal  Code  of  Ordinances  pertaining  to safekeeping  of  animals  by

the  animal  shelter.

OJ Hechler,  Community  Services  Director:  We kind  of hit on this  a little  bit earlier  with

Exhibit  A of  the  Animal  Shelter  fees.  We  are  removing  the  title  of  safekeep,  and  we are

going  to call it an incarceration  hold  or hospitalization  hold.  The  length  of  time  we  came

up with  is a reasonable  amount  of  time  for  an animal  owner  to get  their  animals  from  the

shelter.  If the  animal  owner  cannot  get  their  animals  from  the  shelter,  they  are  responsible

for  finding  a designated  party  or organization  to come  for  the  animal.  We  have  had some

issues  with  the  safekeeps  because  we  don't  know  what  we  are  doing  with  these  animals

so if they  can make  contact  with  the  Animal  Shelter,  there  may  be circumstances  where

we  can  hold  the  animals  up for  longer  with  a boarding  fee  applied.  I feel  like  this  is very

reasonable.  Most  responsible  animal  owners  know  that  their  animal  is at the  shelter,  and

they  come  and  get  their  animals.

Page 17 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister:  What  do we  do if they  don't  want  their  animal  and it has  been

there  for  a long  period  of  time.  Do we go after  them  to pay  the  fees?

OJ Hechler,  Community  Services  Director:  We  should.  If you  look  at that  last  sentence,  it
says"Owners  who  knowingly  abandon  or  fail  to arrange  for  pickup  of  their  animal(s)  at

the Animal  Shelter  may  be prosecuted  under  other  sections  within  the Municipal  Code"

so we  may  go after  them.  That  is a possibility.  We  have  everything  logged.  Tara  does  an

amazing  job  entering  everything  into our  IWorQ  system  and that  saved  us on a couple

cases  because  we had everything  logged.  People  don't  know  behind  the  scenes  is that

when  that  animal  is there  for  19 days,  sometimes  those  animals  turn  or become  feral  or

they  get  sick,  or they  have  kennel  stress.  Things  of  that  nature,  so we  also  have  to take

into  consideration  what  is best  for  the  animal.

Mayor  Hechler:  Do you  guys  make  efforts  to contact  them?  You  don't  just  rely  on them  to

contact  you?  You  also  try  to track  them  down,  correct?

OJ Hechler,  Community  Services  Director:  Tara  calls  the hospitals,  the jails,  and she

listens  in on court  hearings.  She  does  all of  this  to make  every  attempt  to find  a way  to

make  contact.  The  goal  is always  to get  the  animal  back  to its owner.  We  just  need  some

sort  of  communication  from  them.  One  other  issue  that  we fall into  when  they  get  out  of

jail  is that  most  people  don't  have  the  money  to pay  the  boarding  fee  when  they  get  out

of  jail,  so those  are other  things  that  we have  to take  into consideration.  We  changed

some  verbiage  in here  from  "may"  to "shaT  because  those  are  very  important  key  words.

What  we are  trying  to do is grant  a little  bit more  reasonable  time  for  the  animal  owners

to get  their  animals  from  the  shelter.  We've  done  better  with  the  72-hour  rule  than  we

have  ever  done  bad.  We  want  to get  this  in writing  so we  can have  it posted  at  the  shelter.

There  is one  more  sentence  that I would  like to  point  out," due  to  unforeseen

circumstances"  to me  that  is something  that  is not  planned.  I want  to make  sure  that  was

included  as well.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to  approve  Publication  of  Ordinance  768,

Amending  Sec.  3-98  of  the  Municipal  Code  of  Ordinances  pertaining  to  safekeeping

of  animals  by the  animal  shelter.  Commissioner  Fahl  seconded  the  motion.  Roll

call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

Tara  Manning,  Animal  Shelter  Manager  gave  an update  on the  Jordan's  Way  event:

*  It was  supposed  to be a 3-hour  event,  but  an hour  into  the  event  the  towers  went

down,  they  came  back  for  20 minutes  and  then  it went  down  permanently.  That

was  before  I got  slime(d)  and before  Chief  got  dunked.  The  Chief  and  the  Mayor

got  locked  in a dog  kennel.  The  last  time  they  came  they  separated  us into  teams.

I was  one  team  lead  and  Mark  was  the  other  one,  and  they  did the  same  thing  this

year.  I won  the first year,  but Mark  won  this year.  The  first year  we raised  $4,800
and this year  we raised a little over $7,600.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  mentioned  that  Tara  was  named  as one  of  those  who  make  a

difference  in our  community,  and  the  shelter  was  mentioned  as well  in the  article.

Page 18  of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024 REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

G. PUBLIC  HEARINGS  (5 Minute  Rule  Appfies)

1.  Public  Hearing/Discussion/Action:  Final  Adoption  of  Ordinance  No. 767

Authorizing  the  Execution  and  delivery  of  a loan  agreement  and  intercept

agreement  by  and  between  the  City  of  T or  C, and  the  New  Mexico  Finance

Authority,  evidencing  a special  limited  obligation  of  the  governmental  unit

to pay  a principal  amount  not  to exceed  $2,000,000,  together  with  interest
thereon  for  the  purpose  to acquire,  construct,  renovate,  furnish,  equip,

beautify  and  improve  a public  safety  building  for  the  benefit  of  the  city  and

its  residents.

The  item  was  deferred  to the  August  14'h Meeting.

H. NEW  BUSINESS:

1.  Discussion/Action:ApprovalofPurchaseAgreementfor210Mainand

Authorization  of  continued  city  action.

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  In your  packet  is the  purchase  agreement  for  the  210

Main  and  Authorization  of continued  city  action.  This  is for  us to purchase  the  PNC

Bank.

City  Manager  Gonzales:  The  tax  parcel  is included.  I think  it is pretty  well  known  what  it

is. I just  wanted  to bring  it to you  for  your  approval.

City  Attorney  Rubin:  The  title  company  is working  on the  title  search  right  now.  I should

have  that  by the  end  of  the  day  today.

Commissioner  Fahl:  I think  that  it is very  important  that  we  do this.  We  got  an excellent

amount  for  that,  for  what  we  are  going  to spend.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister:  You  did an excellent  job,  and  we  appreciate  your  hard  work,

Mayor.

Mayor  Hechler:  Well,  we  had an opportunity,  and I couldn't  pass  it up. I didn't  have  the

authority  on my  own,  so thank  you  folks  for  jumping  in.

City  Manager  Gonzales  thanked  Commissioner  Hoeppner  for  his help  as well.

Commissioner  Mitchell  moved  to  approve  the  Purchase  Agreement  for  210  Main

and  Authorize  continued  city  action.  Commissioner  Hoeppner  seconded  the

motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

Page 19 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

2.  Presentation/Discussion/Action:  Electronic  Message  Board.

This  item  was  moved  after  public  comment.

3. Discussion/Action:  Approval  of Purchase  Requisitions  over  $20,000.

City  Manager  Gonzales  reviewed  the  Purchase  Requisitions  over  $20,000  provided  in the
packet.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to approve  the  Purchase  Requisitions  over

$20,000.  Commissioner  Mitchell  seconded  the motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by the
Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

4.  Discussion/Action:  Amendment  to the  Letter  of  Agreement  between  the

Truth  or  Consequences  Animal  Shelter  and  Sierra  County  Animal  Rescue

Society.

OJ Hechler,  Community  Services  Director:  we've  been  in this  agreement  for  a couple  of

years,  and  we  are  actually  growing  a little  bit  with  our  partnership.  It used  to say  up to one

time  per  week  and we are  going  to change  that  to a minimum  of one  time  per  week.  We

are  actually  doing  this  a couple  of  times  a week  now.  This  partnership  means  so much  to

our  community  because  we are spearheading  a long-term  solution  to our animals,

especially  with  the  cats.  SCARS  traps  kittens,  they  have  them  fixed  and  they  have  their

vaccinations  done.  They  don't  always  have  a place  to put their  animals,  so we are

charging  them  the owner  surrender  fee. That  is what  we have  to do according  to our

setup,  and  this  will  allow  us to also  help  find  a placement  for  these  animals.

Commissioner  Mitchell  moved  to  approve  the  amendment  to  the  Letter  of

Agreement  between  the  Truth  or  Consequences  Animal  Shelter  and  Sierra  County

Animal  Rescue  Society.  Commissioner  Hoeppner  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call

was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

5.  Discussion/Update:  Water  Update.

Arnie  Castaneda,  Water/\/\/astewater  Director  presented  a water  update.  (Presentation

attached  hereto  and  made  a part  hereof).

Mayor  Hechler:  As far  as the  school  is concerned,  I appreciate  your  efforts.  I know  it's

been  tough  and we're  stretching  everybody  to the  limits  trying  to figure  this  out, but  as I

said  earlier,  this  is a community  problem.  We've  got  to help  them  get  through  this  thing.  I

guess  what  I'm concerned  with  is that  we've  done  everything  that  we  can  on our  end,  but

Page 20 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

our  obligation  is to deliver  at least  40 Ibs. of  pressure  to their  property,  but  what  is really

mystifying  to me is that  between  the hydrant  and  their  facility,  there  is 30 yards,  and  the

water  pressure  drops  20 Ibs., and we don't  understand  that. It may  be debris  in the

system.  I don't  know  if it is or not. There  is no way  to flush  their  systems,  so that's  why  I

reached  out  to the governor's  office.  They'll  be coming  down  on Friday,  and they  are

bringing  their  specialist.  Hopefully  we'll  be able  to come  up with  a solution.  If there  is an

issue  with  the  water  pressure,  and  it's on us to provide  more  pressure,  then  we  will  have

to figure that out. Our  first tranche  of money  is $4.4 million  that we're  getting from  the
governor's  office.  I'm going  to request  that  DFA  release  that  early  to us. We'll  have  to

change  some  engineering  things  on our  end  to try and  figure  out  a way  to get  adequate

pressure  or water  to the  school,  and  to the  hospital.  I think  that  should  be a priority  for  us.

6.  Discussion/Update:  PD Update.

This  item  was  moved  up on the  agenda.

7.  Discussion/Action:  Accept  2023  Edward  Byrne  Memorial  Justice

Assistance  Grant  (JAG)  Award.

Chief  of  Police  Tavizon:  I got  a notice  of  funding  for  the  JAG  Grant.  There  are  two  different

JAG  Grants  that  are  available.  They  are  both  federal,  but  one  id filtered  through  the  state

and  the  other  one  is directly  through  the  feds.  This  one  is through  the  state.  I asked  for

funding  to purchase  some  radar  units. They  are around  $3,500 apiece.  We  also  need
new  handheld  radios.  They  wanted  to focus  on public  safety.  When  you submit  your

application,  you have  to list what  you  are  wanting  to buy, you can't  just  request  money

and use it for whatever  you want.  You  have  to stay  within  the parameters.  We were

approved  for  a little under  $12,000  for  I 5 handheld  radios.  If this is approved  and signed,
then  we  will  send  it up to the  cabinet  secretary  and  they  will release  those  funds.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  moved  to  accept  the  2023  Edward  Byrne  Memorial

Justice  Assistance  Grant  (JAG)  Award.  Commissioner  Fahl  seconded  the  motion.

Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

8. Discussion/Action:  Revised  Parcel  Survey  for  Property  Appraisal.

This  item  was  tabled.

Page 21 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024 REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

9.  Discussion/Action:  Reed  Rocket  Minimum  Offer  Acceptance.

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  Affer  the  Public  Arts  Board  recommendation  and

Commission  approval  on the  potential  sale  of  the  Reed  Rocket.  The  request  was  to find

out  how  much  it was  worth  as scrap  metal.  Scrap  metal  prices  are extremely  low right

now  so it would  actually  be less  than $50  so we  are  requesting  that the Commission  come
up with  a minimum  bid offer,  so we  don't  under  value  the  Reed  Rocket  and post  it for  sale

and  accept  offers  no less  than  the  amount  you  come  up with.

Commissioner  Fahl:  How  much  did the  city  pay  for  it?

ASSiStant  City  ManagerAlvarez:  We  paid  for  it both  through  the  city  and  the  Sierra  County

Arts  Council.  The  records  that  I've been  able  to locate  show  that  the  final  payment  that

the  city  made  was  close  to $3,000.  I want  to say  the  total  was  somewhere  around  $6,000

or $7,000.  Some  of  that  was  for  storage,  and  some  were  for  changes  that  Mainstreet  had
requested  at the  time.

Mayor  Hechler:  So, the history  is that  we weren't  able  to put it up in a public  space

because  of insurance  requirements.  It had some  moving  parts  and  people  were

concerned  with  pinch  points  and things  of that  nature,  so the  state  wasn't  comfortable

with  us putting  it up anywhere  on city  property,  so it's been  in storage  since  then.  The

objective  now  is, that  we believe  that  someone  from  the  arts  community  or likewise  will

be able  to purchase  this  piece  of art, and when  they  do that,  we'll  put it up on private

property  where  it can  still be displayed,  and the city  won't  have  any  liability.  That's  the

plan,  so we need  to establish  a minimum  value  of it so we're  not  giving  it away,  and

hopefully  we'll  be able  to sell it to a person  who  is going  to be able  to put  it back  to use,

and it will come  back  to our  community  at some  point.

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  Once  we  advertise  it for  sale,  any  offers  that  come  in will

come  to the  Commission  for  acceptance  of  the  offer.  If it is your  will,  once  you  come  up

with  a minimum  bid, anybody  that  makes  offers  will  be requested  to come  to you  so you

can  ask  them  any  questions  that  you  want  before  making  a decision  to accept  an offer.

Commissioner  Fahl: If it was worth $6,000  then we should at least get $I,000  for it.

Mayor  Hechler:  We're  hoping  a local  artist  buys  it and  we  are  able  to put  it out  for  display.

Commissioner  Fahl:  I just  don't  want  us to give  it away.  The  community  $6,000  into  it, so

I think  selling  it for  $100  is crazy.

Commissioner  Mitchell:  Is any  of the money  that  we sell it for going  back  to the  Arts

Council?

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  I think  we would  have  to do our  due  diligence  to see  if

we can  find  the records  to find  out  where  the  cost  came  from  because  I think  it was  a

Page 22 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

combination  overall  of the Sierra  Arts  Board,  the City  Public  Arts  Board  and the city's

general  fund,  if I remember  correctly.

Commissioner  Mitchell:  If we are  going  to end  up splitting  it with  money  going  back  to the

Arts Council,  and  we  set a minimum  bid at $2,000  then  that  is a guarantee  that  we  at least
get  some  compensation  for  both  organizations.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister:  I get  what  you  all are  saying,  but  we  are probably  looking  at

somebody  who  is wanting  to purchase  it that  can't  afford  it at that  cost.

Mayor  Hechler:  I would  be very  surprised  if we  got  any  kind  of bid over  a couple  hundred

dollars.  I've  already  received  some  calls  from  our  community  members  that  they  have  a

vested  interest.  Our  previous  Mayor  Steve  Green  was  kind of  worried  about  it, and he

wanted  us to donate  it to Spaceport,  if they  would  accept  it because  we want  it to be

visible  so it can be displayed  in our community  somewhere.  If we don't  accept  the

minimum  bid, then  it's going  to stay  in storage  for  another  5 years.

Commissioner  Fahl: Well, I want  it to be $I,000.  I'm just going to throw  that out there, so
we can  debate  the  amount.

Mayor  Hechler:  When  we  get  the  bids  in then  we  can  make  that  decision.

Commissioner  Fahl:  Yes,  but  we have  to set  a minimum  bid. I think  the minimum  bid

should  be $I,000.

Mayor  Hechler:  Ms. Alvarez:  Do you  have  any  indication  that  our  bid is going  to be more

than $100?

Assistant  City  Manager  Alvarez:  No. The  ones  that  have  come  in, and even  the artist

when he came in wanted  us to sell it for $I.OO because  he had somebody  who  potentially
would  be interested  in purchasing  it, like  the  art  park  that  is over  by the  Police  Department.

We  can't  give  it to them,  and we  can't  give  it back  to him,  so he asked  if we  could  put  it

up for sale at $1.00.

Mayor  Hechler:  So, we have  to establish  a minimum  value  for  it.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister:  Why  don't  we just  set a low minimum  and just  see what

happens.

Mayor  Hechler:  We can suggest  a minimum  bid of $I,000,  but we can take all bids.

Mayor  Pro-Tem  Forrister  made  a motion  to allow  the offer  amount  of  $I,000  but  all
offers  will  be reviewed  for  the  Reed  Rocket  Sculpture.  Commissioner  Mitchell

seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by  the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried

unanimously.

Page 23 of  24



CITY  COMMISSION  JULY  24, 2024  REGULAR  MEETING  MINUTES

10.  Discussion/Action:  Approval  of  the  Records  Inventory  List  for

destruction.

City  Clerk  Torres:  This  item  is to approve  the  records  destruction  of 28 additional  boxes

for  the  Municipal  Court.  In your  packet  is the  list  of  records  and  we recommend

approval.

Commissioner  Fahl  made  a motion  to approve  the  Records  Inventory  List  for

destruction.  Commissioner  Mitchell  seconded  the  motion.  Roll  call  was  taken  by

the  Clerk-Treasurer.  Motion  carried  unanimously.

1. ADJOURNMENT:

Mayor  Hechler  adjourned  the  meeting  at  12:02  p.m.

Passed and Approved this 14th day of A3,  2024.

Rolf  Hechler,  Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela  A. Torres,  CMC,  City  Clerk

Page 24 of  24



H,,71 i Modern Web Client RONALD PACOUREK

-"  a-""="'T"'?T"l-"""I"4)+0,;#0!
r\

' Good morning  here  are  some more  pictures  of my neighbors two doors up the river

shoving  sift  off  their  deck.

The  other  picture  is sift  covering  my sidewalk  and it over an inch deep.
The  point  is that  sift  has been building  up for  years.  I have lived here

for  25 years  and have not  seen  the  Rio Grande ever been channeled... ,
The  river  is runriirig  higher  than  normal  also; is it because they are Jetting more
water  out  and or the  sift  build  up over  the  years.

This  can be a danger  to.our  community.  as our  representatives  what will you

' do to protect  us and our  natural  resource  (Rio Grande) river?

Thi$  iS out my window  and what  it looks like  when it a heavy rain )iere in Tor C.
It  has been scaray to' see at'he river  come up and almost  in my yard.  '

I  have asked  this  question  years  ago with  no resporise  from  the  city  commissioners,

is there  any Procedure  or Protocall  by the  city  in place  in reference  to the Dam

iri case of  an emergency?  How can we the  people  who live on the Grande River

and m Tor  C be protected  from  our river  from  overflowirig  when the river
is runriing  and raining?  What  can the  city  and corrimissioners  do to 'protect  our community

from  this  happening?,,,,,,,,,,,  Like  what  happened  in Las Vegas NM.

Thanks

Qon Pacourek

575-740-4747

ps I  have videos of it raining,  but my internet  provider  said the film  are too big to send.
I  will send more  pictures  by themself.

Any  questions  please  doti't  hesitate  to contact  me.



ji
 '

i 
I

"a
 a

"t

-l : 
'. 

..
 

:.
 
,J



Im
l

'i.. I

i:i"i

llli'
Ili 

' 11 j,,

. (11rllp'
 

I 
, l' I  

 i i

'W
kLl.kl

 
'



Saturday,  July  20, 2024

Petition  to  support  the  T or  C City  Commission  in its

potential  purchase  of  the  PNC  Building  for  the  new

home  of  the  T or  C police.  We  the  undersigned  are  in

favor  of  this  purchase  and  believe  it would  be

beneficial  to  all  of  T or  C

Subjectto

NAME BUSINESS

1



NOTICE  OF TORT  CLAIM

ly) 0rder  tO Submit 70Llr Claim, '10u must Complete  thiS farm and Submit  ittO the Ma70r  Of the MLlnl
(he occurrence.  The Municipality  viill  then forward  your  claim  to the New Mexico  Self-Insurers'  F

gou  may expect to be contacted  by a Fund representative  regarding  your  claim.  Please call (800) 4

(SOS)982-5573  if you have questions.

t.

Witness  Name: Contact  #: ( )

Please  list  all persons  and/or  property  for  which  you  are claiming  damages:

., 060

TOT  AL AMOUNT  OF CLAIM

Pleasg attach  all estimates,  bills,  or other  information  to  support  the amount  of  your  claim.

:<2";u7' p-,;"nt::-l "(!"ire

*This  information  is required  by the  federal  government.  No payment  can be made  without  this  information.



THIS SIDE FOR MUNICIPALOFFICIAL  USE ONU/.

Notice  of  Tort  Received  By

Name Title

Date: Time: AM/PM (Circle One)

Persons  having  knowledge  of  the  circumstances  surrounding  this  claim:

Name: Phone:  (

Name: Phone:  (

Name: Phone:  (

Name: Phone:  (

Attached  are the  following  reports,  statements  or  other  documentation  which support  our understanding of the facts
relating  to this  ciaim:

Please descraibe any other informataion whaich you feet is pertinent  to this claim:

Submitted  by:

Signature Print  Name

Title: Phone:  (

Upon receipt  of  this  claim,  please  provide  the  above  information  and  immediately  send to:

New  Me:xico  Self-Insurers'  Fund

P.0.  Box 846

Santa  Fe, NM 87504

(800)  432-2036  or  (505)  982-5573

Fax (SOS) 820-0670



July 10 2024

Re. motion  dismiss  filed Santa fe  date  6 / 24

; CaSe 0721/  CVi'2024  / €k'A)70.

FILED
7th JUDICIAL  DISTRICT  COURT

Sierra County
7 /11 /2024  11 :49 AM

MARY  MORA
CLERK  OF THE COURT

A response  to exhibits  tendered
Elizabeth  A Sheele

I am abie to give  evidence  and iiave  witness  and also can show  at) effort  and energy.

possible  from  a pro sey and extremely  damaged  homeoyvner

All available  fight  and exhaustive  contacts  over  more  than a reasonabte  defenses

my case has more  than  lega( ease the  (ack and capricious  , constitutional  trutb  can follow,

as a senior  with  a iack of power  to resist,  my need,  cor+tinues  for  tbe  cocrt  at LONG LAST

to bring  city  code  to a standard  that  does not  cause and constitute  crue) and unusual,

interference  of all coricepts  to a freedom,  arid good  home.

7,i
./:/

George  A Henson

July 11,  2024



A
'i"

 
=

+
'a

"

l-

'1
. 

I

'l 
"'r

t'-
.-

V
.II

N
r



Water  and

Wastewater  update
Ju  y 2024



ate
Current  num

Leaks  fixed  in t  nths-34

a Vactruckwasout  orrepairfor

approximately  1 month.

We  are  working  on purchasing  a hydro-

excavator  (approved  thru  the  budget  process)

that  will  allows  us  to  have  to  working  crews.



ShE ementa  c  oory
- Pressure  at the  Elementary  school  is consistently  38-45  psi.  Normal  operating  pressure  is

40-50  psi,  pressure  at  the  school  is currently  within  range.

a City  water  system  is providing  adequate  pressure  to  the  school.  We  witnessed  a 20psi

pressure  drop  within  the  school  grounds.

- We  have  met  with  district  personnel  and  have  discussed  all  the  options  with  them.

a All  the  valves  that  feed  the  school  are  open  and  functioning  properly  including  the  valves

at the  round  about.  We  met  with  DOT  and  the  roundabout  utility  contractor  onsite  and

located  all the  valves.  All  valves  were  open.

An  average  of  40 PSI is more  than  the  standard  of  20 PSI.





- CITY  Ol-  It)UTtl  O[)  € €)SS[ € )U[!%i € [i
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

ii MEETINGDATE:Augustl4,2024  Age"daI'e"l#:Fa3
?
i

SUBJECT:  July  2024  Accounts  Payable

DEPARTMENT:  Finance

DATE SUBMITTED:  August  2, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Silke Kapela,  Accounts  Payable

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Consent  Calendar

Summary/Background:

According  to Sec. 2-28  of  the  Municipal  Code  related  to Publication  of  expenditures:

Each month  there  may  be published  a summary  of  expenditures  made  during  the  preceding  calendar  month,

which  shall  include  a list  of  the  total  expenditures  during  the  month,  the  amount  spent  in connection  with

each  budgetary  item,  and a summary  of  all receipts;  provided,  however,  that  the  publication  mentioned  in

this  section  shall  be made  only  at the  discretion  of  the  Commission  if it shall  deem  such publication

necessary  in the  public  interest.

Recommendation:

A-pprove  the  Accounts  Paya-ble  summary  fo-r July  2024

Attachments:

*  End of  Month  Accounts  Payable  Report  by Fund

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

All Funds  Summary  is a total  of  5 1,346,195.01

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  N/A

N/A

Approved  For  Submittal  By: €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  % City  Clerk  [Z Finance  €  Legal  % Other:  Silke Kapela,  Account  Payable

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution No. N/A  Ordinance No. N/A
Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  '.licit  h=:'= aix "-ritit'  l';:_ -l:

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-2024



Accounts  Payable  Transfer  Sheet  - 2024  - 2025  FY
Post  Date  Ending:  7/5, 7/12,  7/18,  7/26,

E

$62,578.08 $56,999.77 $29,817.66 $72,908.29 $222,303.80

$2,420.00 $2,420.00

$419.88 $754.70 $1,547.27 $314.26 $3,036.11

$980.11 $836.87 $2,640.03 $4,457.01

$17,010.02 $17,010.02

$19,419.72 $1,385.90 $802.75 $21,608.37

$0.00

$6,048.90 $6,048.90

$317.34 $268.69 $586.03

$1,803.72 $48.82 $4,125.09 $5,977.63

$426.75 $134.99 $561.74

$0.00

$0.00

$236.09 $236.09

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$34,767.72 $34,767.72

$0.00

$0.00

$216,165.11 $216,165."l1

$0.00

$19,427.31 $19,427.31

$0.00

$22,748.77 $22,748.77

$1,062.33 $1,062.33

$6,41  6.33 $390.57 $15,508.50 $22,315.40

$24,119.61 $363,261.43 $76,195.13 $1,851.88 $465,428.05

$35,436.44 $8,271.97 $810.29 $6,553.40 $51,072.10

$13,433.65 $64,780.90 $29,026.20 $12,568.97 $119,809.72

$23,517.02 $10,982.54 $10,503.i5 $6,272.98 $51,275.69

$0.00

$126.72 $4,553.53 @i,os<.gz $5,7  45.22

$25,595.41 $80.41 $8,434.28 $34,110.10

$267.00 $73.23 $17,681.56 $18,021.79

$226,128.50 $556,028.50 $155,689.55 $408,348.46 I $li346il95.02J'

"101

201

209

211

214

216

217

260

294

295

296

298

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312

313

314

315

316

320

321

360

370

380

403

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

600

Fund

Descrmtion

Fund  Totals

7/5/2024 7/12/2024

General

Local  Government  Corrections

State  Fire

Law  Enforcement  Protection

Lodger's  Tax

Street  Renovation

Municipal  Recreation

Fiscal  Recovery  Funds

State  Library

Municipal  Pool

PD-GRT  Fund

PD-Donations

Electrical  Construction

Veterans  Memorial

SJOA  - Grants

Capital  Improvement  General

Captial  Improvement  Joint  Utility

Golf  Course  Improvements

USDA  -Sweeper

USDA-Wastewater

R&R-Emergency

R&R-Sewer

R&R-Airport

R&R-Water

CDBG  - Grant

Cl Reserve-  Non  Capital  Equipment

Emergency  Reserve

USDA  Water  System  Improvements

Water  System  Improvements

NMFA  Projects

Water  Trust  Board  Projects

Community  Development

Pledge  State  Tax

Cemetery

Utility  Office

Electric  Dept

Water  Dept

Solid  Waste

WasteWater

Solid  Waste  Landfill/Collection

Golf  Course

Municipal  Airport

Internal  Service  Fund

Grand  Total-Accounts  Payable

7/18/2024 7/26/2024

GRAND  TOTAL

TRANSFERS

E!!!S!
Numbers

10"l

201

209

211

214

216

217

260

294

295

296

298

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312

313

314

315

316

320

321

360

370

380

403

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

600



Truth  or  Consequences

hereby  approve  the  issuance  of  these  payments.

PAYABLE APPROV  AL

AP EOM  REPORT
By Fund

Payment  Dates  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

FINANCE DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE DATE:

Vendor  Name

Fund: 101-  General

Payable Number Post  Date

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 025-467207  07/05/2024

TYLERTECHNOLOGIES,INC. 025-467207  07/05/2024

TYLERTECHNOLOGIES,INC. 025-470592  07/05/2024

KIMBERLYHOFFMAN 07012024  07/05/2024

TURTLEBACK PEST CONTROLI... 101530  07/05/2024

MIKETORRESDBACDTECHN... 1026  07/05/2024

POLICARPIO V BUSTAMANTE-...106.24  07/OS/2024

STANTECCONSuLTINGSERVl... 2250405 07/05/2024

STANTECCONSULTINGSERVI... 2250585 07/05/2024

STANTECCONSULTINGSERVI... 2251757  07/05/2024

STANTECCONSULTINGSERVI... 2251757  07/05/2024

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY ... 25JUN2024 07/05/2024

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY ... 25JUN2024 07/05/2024

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY ... 25JUN2024 07/05/2024

TRANS UNION RISK & ALTERN... 485949-202406-1  07/05/2024

JAIME F. ROBIN LLC 7124 07/OS/2024

MPGSERVICESLLC 7954 07/05/2024

VERIZONWIRELESS 996852497  07/05/2024

VERIZONWIRELESS 996852497  07/05/2024

CITYUTILITIES C-D7-5-2024  07/05/2024

LASTING PAWS PET MEMORIA...LOO391-l-0052  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-OS-28 07/OS/2024

NMRETIREEHEALTHCARE PPE2024-06-28  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2€)24-06-28  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-OS-28 07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/OS/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/OS/2024

SCRDA 07009024  07/12/2024

WEXBANK  07012024  07/12/2024

WEXBANK  07012024-ACO  07/12/2024

WEXBANK  07012024-PD  07/12/2024

WILLIAMI.BUHLER  071024  07712/2024

SUN VALLEYINC 175454-6,  175460-6,  175540-6..07/12/2024

NM MUNICIPALLEAGUE 17621  07/12/2024

BAKER&TAYLORINC  20383557922,2038357923,2...07/12/2024

SIERRACOUNTYSENTINEL 2643 07/12/2024

ALARM CONTROL TECHNOLOG..34628, 34629 07/12/2024

NU-WAY LAUNDRY & CLEANE... 39476 07/12/2024

SIERRA VISTA HOSPIT AL / SIER...4100005S 07/12/2C)24

Description  (Item) Account  Number

ADMIN ANNUALSUBSCRIPTI... 101-1004-43815

PD ANNUALSUBSCRPTION FEE..101-1007-43815

TRAINING - FIXED ASSETS 101-1004-42720

DEPOSIT REFUND - RALPH ED... 101-10!J)-34348

TURTLEBACK PEST CONTROL S...101-1014-43403

IT SERVICE GENERAL FUND op... 101-1018-48598

OPEN PO-LANDSCAPING SERV... 101-1009-47415

EVALUATION & DEVELOPMEN... 101-1010-48598

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW LOVES..101-1010-48598

SILVERCITYNMGRT@8.0%  101-1010-48598

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 101-1010-48598

ANIM AL SHELTER OPEN Pa FY... 101-1018-43780

NM WORKFORCE CONNECTI... 101-1018-43780

GENERAL OPEN Pa FY24/25 101-1018-43780
TLO SERVICES FOR 4 MONTHS... 101-1007-43815

GRT 101-1000-43597

REPAIR A/C AT BALL FIELDS p... 1014014-43403
101-1007-43775

ANIM AL CONTROL OPEN PO F... 101-1008-43775

GENERAL FUND CYCLE C&D o... 101-1018-43780

ANIMAL CREMATION

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-OS-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

PPE 2024-06-28

SCRDA BILL FOR FY 24-25

101-1006-48598

101-1001-41226

101-1003-41226

101-1004-41226

101-1006-41226

101-1007-41226

101-1008-41226

101-1009-41226

101-1010-41226

101-1011-41226

101-1012-41226

101-1013-41226

101-1014-41226

101-1016-41226

IC)1-1007-48599

WEX FUEL FOR ANIMAL CONT... 101-1008-43316

WEX FU EL FOR ANI M AL CONT... 101-1008-43316

FUEL USAGE MAY/ JUNE 2024... 101-1007-43316

FISH POND WATER RIGHTS FY ...101-1009-43770

OPEN p.o. FORTHE MONTH O...101-1014-44607

NMLZOSEMI-ANNUALWORK...  101-1008-42720

LIBRARY MATERIALS FOR PLlBL..lm4(n6-44830

HELP WANTED ADS - FY24-25-..101-1004-437  40

FIRE ALARM MONITORING op... 101-1014-47  410

CARPETSERVICESOPENP.0.... 101-1014-44607

COLLECTION DRUG TEST FEE ... 101-1004-48599

Amount

11,307.04

11,307.04

346.80

25.00

1,07  4.00

8,632.82

900.00

7,163.81

2,129.10

81.14

1,0(10.00

29.04

32.01

423.55

131.00

4,212.43

146.50

205.65

123.39

8,797.07

1,425.20

154.87

167.25

250.32

126.65

1,196.25

4C).20

107.36

98.69

sig.si

124.32

77.30

214.22

208.55

45,568.25

89.12

78.12

5,979.92

450.00

180.22

200.00

106.36

386.08

53.82

gs.io

50.00

' : " l  ' I -l l ' (' S I  t'  :  " a i  - l it : l



AP EOM  REPORT Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

Vendor  Name Payable  Number Post  Date

BRADY INDUSTRIES,  LLC

XEROX CORP - OLD

XEROX CORP - OLD

XEROX CORP - OLD

AM  AZON  CAPIT  AL SERVICES

CITY UTILITIES

NM MUNICIPAL  LEAGUE

CITY UTILITIES

GALLS PARENT HOLDINGS,  LLC.. 028455338

KATH  RYN ELLIOTT DB A CIVI LIT... 92

GALLS PARENT HOLDINGS,  LLC...028455338

A-N-J  CARPET AND  TILE CLEAN...00011124

9031218

AB7182024

07  /12/2024

BRADYlNDuSTRIES,LLC  9031218  07/12/2024

ARENAS  VALLEY  ANIMAL  CLIN... 90981,  91157,  91593  07/12/2024

QUEST  DIAGNOSTICS,  INC.  9210496112  07/12/2024

WEXBANK  98064332-FL  07/12/2024

WEXBANK  98064332-FM  07/12/2024

NTERNATIONALASSOCIATION..M24-C683824  07/12/2024

TERESAVARELA  07152024  07/17/2024

021646316,  021646315,  0216...  07/18/2024

021646316,  021646315,  0216...  07/18/2024

021646316,  021646315,  0216...  07/18/2024

WILSON  & COMPANYINC  ENG.. 127662  07/18/2024

INTY-Q71C-W4H9  07/18/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  INTY-Q71C-W4H9  07/18/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  INTY-Q71C-W4H9  07/18/2024

THECARWASH  5 07/18/2024

XEROXCORP  5972805  07/18/2024

XEROXCORP  5972805  07/18/2024

XEROXCORP  5972805  07/18/2024

XEROXCORP  5972805  07/18/2024

XEROXCORP  5972805  07718/2024

XEROXCORP  5972805  07/18/2024

MORRIS  APPRAISALSERVICEI...  71224  07/18/2024

7152024  07/18/2024

8153  07/18/2024

07  /18/2024

07/18/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07 /26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07 /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

2692,  2696  07/26/2024

ALBUQUERQLIE  PUBLISHING  ... 2918C], 61030,  61210  07/26/2024

OFFICE  DEPOT  374752221001,  37475399400...  07/26/2024

SILVERSKY,INC.  508304-51  07/26/2024

MPGSERVICESLLC  8042  07/26/2024

9969100093  o-i/26/2024

9969100093  07/26/2024

9969100093  07/26/2024

22872106

22872106

22872106

22872106

22872106

22872106

14651

14602

14585

07182024

06302024

06/01/2024-06/30/2024

06/01/2024-OS/30/2024

06/01/2024{)6/30/2024NTERNALSERVICE  FUND

EWING  IRRIGATION

VERIZON  WIRELESS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

EWING  IRRIGATION

EWING  IRRIGATION

EWING  IRRIGATION

EWING  IRRIGATION

SIERRA  COUNTY  SENTINEL

EWING  IRRIGATION

STANTECCONSULTINGSERVI...  2213912-2

STANTECCONSULTINGSERVI...  2213912

REED'S  TIRE CENTER

REED'S  TIRE CENTER

REE[)'S  TIRE CENTER

STANTECCONStlLTINGSERVl...  2213912

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  IRXY-DQP-W4TG

WILSON  & COMPANYINC  ENG.. 128059

ANIM  AL CARE EQUIPMENT  & ... 126916

NM  SELF INSURERS FUND

INTERN  AL SERVICE FUND

TDS

WINDSTREAM  CORPORATION  07182024

SIERRAVISTA  HOSPITAL  /S1ER...06/30/24

INTERNAL  SERVICE FLIND

Description  (Item)  Account  Number

TOILET TISUE/CASE  101-1014-44607

CENTERPULLHANDTOWELS  101-1014-44607

VETSERVICES  101-1006-48598

SCREENING  & MRO FEE FY 24,,,  101-1 €)04-48599

OPEN Pa  FOR FUEL MARCH-1...  101-1012-43316

WEX BANK FUEL CARD OPEN p.. 101-1014-43316

MEMBERSHIP  RENEWAL  101-1007-42720

DEPOSIT  REFUND FOR RALPH ... 101-1099-34348

CITYMANAGERXEROXEQUI...  101-1003-43465

POLICE XEROX EQUIPMENT  c... 101-1007-43465

FLEET XEROX EQUIPMENT  ON... 101-1012-43465

ONCALLGRANTMANAGEME...  101-1010-48598

UNIFORM  SHIRTS 101-1006-42620

LABELS 101-1006-44606

SHELTER SuPPLIES  101-1006-44607

CAR WASH  VOUCHERS  FOR po..  101-1007-47  420

CLERKS OFFICE OPEN Pa FY24... 101-1(101-43465

CITY MANAGER  OPEN Pa FY2... 101-1003-43465

FINANCE  OFFICE OPEN PO FY... 101-1(X)4-43465

POLICE DEPT OPEN PO FY24/25  101-1007-43465

PARKS DEPT OPEN Pa FY24/25  101-1009-43465

FACILITIES DEPT OPEN Pa FY2... 101-1014-43465

Property  Appraisal  210 Main  S...101-1010-48598

GENERAL  FUND OPEN Pa FY2... 101-1018-43780

ANNUAL  MEMBERSHIP  7/1/24..  1014000-43770

GOVERNMENT  RELATIONS  101-1(X)C)-43598

GENERAL  FUND CYCLE A&B  o... 101-1018-43780

CARPET CLEANING  FOR PD 101-1007-48598

JAG CONTINGENCY  FUNDING  ... 101-1007-44613

JAG CONTINGENCY  FUNDING  ... 101-1007-80845

SERVICE/M  AINT FOR DEPT VE... 101-1006-47  420

SERVICE/M  AINT  FOR DEPT VE... 101-1009-47  420

SERVICE/MAINT  FOR DEPT VE... 101-1010-47  420

GRT DISTRIBUTION  FY 2024-  ... 101-1017-48599

LIABILITY  DEDuCTIBLE  CLAIM ... 101-1007-46732

CITY MANAGER  OPEN Pa FY2... 101-1003-43775

GENERAL  OPEN PO FY24/25  101-1018-43780

FIELD SIJPPLIES FOR ANIM  AL ... 1014008-44607

ON CALL GRANT  MANAGEME...  101-1010-48598

265/70R17  101-lm3-47420

265 70/17  101-1009-47420

265 70R17  101-1(X]7-47420

SHELTER SUPPLIES  101-1006-44607

DEVELOPMENTREVIEW611...  101-1010-48598

SILVER CITY NMGRT  @ 8.237...  101-1010-48598

DEVELOPMENT  REVIEW  LOVES..101-lm0-48598

125-04-R  HUNTER  1 ULTRA 41N.. 101-1009-44607

125-04-SS  HUNTER  1 ULTRA 41N 101-1009-44607

120-04-SS  HUNTER  3/4  ULTRA...  101-1009-44607

COMMERCIALRNDPOINTSH...  101-1009-44607

LEAF RAKE ALUM  HANDLE  101-1009-44607

5550  STEEL BOW RAKE ALUM  ... 101-1009-44607

LEGALAD'SFORRFP'SFORM...  101-1004-43740

LEG AL AD'S FOR RFP'S FOR M... 1014004-437  40

OFFICE SUPPLIES  lCn-1007-44606

GENERAL  FUND OPEN Pa FY2... 101-1018-43815

NSTALLA/CGOLFCOURSEA...  101-1014-43403

CITY CLERK OPEN Pa FY24/25  101-1001-43775

CITY MANAGER  OPEN PO FY2... 101-1003-43775

FINANCE  OPEN PO FY24/25  101-1004-43775

Amount

814.84

603.25

536.88

346.20

540.67

852.94

65.00

25.00

177.74

431.01

64.69

1,794.38

746.56

12.98

151.11

1,008.(10

244.11

352.75

292.93

585.86

244.11

73.23

3,245.63

12.60

10,875.00

3,238.13

6,241.84

212.12

148.88

66.57

38.37

52.50

36.35

37,984.96

1,566.48

90.27

3,951.14

767.81

2,528.11

680.00

580.00

170.00

30.54

5,245.00

425.50

4,258.20

928.00

1,022.55

801.55

114.60

67.97

166.20

227.02

550.54

767.41

1,450.32

1,161.47

279.29

259.03

251.81

-.' l  : -) ' I



AP EOM  REPORT Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

Vendor  Name

VERIZON  WIRELESS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH  CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH  CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

Payable  Number

9969100093

99Ef)100093

9969100093

ggsgioooga

ggsgiooog:i

9969100093

9969100093

9969100093

PPE 2C)24-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

Fund:  201  - Corrections

SIERRACOUNTYTREASURER  07012024

Post  Date

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/05/2024

BRAD  SPENCER

Fund:209  - Fire

NEW  MEXICO  GAS COMPANY  ... 25JuN2024  07/OS/2024

NEW  MEXICO  GAS COMPANY  ... 251UN2024  07/05/2024

CITYUTILITIES  C-D7-5-2024  07/05/2024

NATHANMAULDIN  7324  07/11/2024

JAMIESANDERS  7324  07/11/2024

7324  07/11/2024

07/12/2024

07712/2024

7324  07/12/2024

021646316,  021646315,  0216...  07/18/2024

1511  07/18/2024

07/18/2024

CITYUTILITIES  AB7182024  07/18/2024

WINDSTREAM  CORPORATION  07182024  07/26/2024

VERIZONWIRELESS  9969100093  07/26/2024

MEGAHERTZCOMPUTER  CON... 10C)685

PETER BACA

DEE BROWN

LYNN'S  LANDSCAPE

XEROX  CORP

XEROX  CORP - OLD

7324

5972805

Fund:  211-  Law  Enforce  Prot

THE LINE LLC

GLINHER'S  LLC

2658,  2659

722024

NM DEPT OF PUBLIC  SAFETY T... 2025-4006

THE LINE LLC 2662

NTERNALSERVICE  FUND (16/01/2024-06/30/2 €)24

SHANE  JEFFERS 07242024

AM  AZON  CAPIT  AL SERVICES 14X1-RDV  4-V33M

ADVANCEDCOMMuNICATlO...  300995

Fund:  214  - Lodgers  Tax

SUNNY  SOS 2370

INTEGRATED  ENVIRONMENTA...334

Fund:  216  - Muni  Street

WILSON  & COMPANYINC  ENG.. 127354

WILSON  & COMPANYINC  ENG.. 127634

07  /12/2024

07/12/2024

07/18/2024

07/18/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2C)24

07/26/2024

07/C)5/2024

07/OS/2024

07/05/2024

07/12/2024

Description  (Item) Account  Number

ANIMAL  SHELTER OPEN Pa FY... 101-1006-43775

POLICE DEPT OPEN Pa FY24/25  101-1007-43775

ANI  M AL CONTROL  OPEN PO F... 101-1008-43775

PARKS DEPT OPEN PO FY24/25  101-1009-43775

COMMUNITY  DEVELOPEMENT..  101-1010-43775

STREETS DEPT OPEN Pa FY24/...  101-1011-43775

FLEET DEPT OPEN PO FY24/25  101-1012-43775

FACILITIES  DEPT OPEN Pa FY2... 101-1014-43775

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

PPE 2024-07-12

101-1001-41226

101-1003-41226

101-1004-41226

101-1006-41226

101-1007-41226

101-1008-41226

ioi-ioog-aizzs

101-1010-41226

101-1011-41226

101-1012-41226

101-1013-41226

101-1014-41226

101-1016-41226

Fund  101  - General  Total:

OPEN PO - CARE OF PRISONERS 201-1903-48710

Fund  201 - Corrections  Total:

FIRE SOUTH  STATION  OPEN P... 209-1603-43780

FIRE ST ATION  OPEN Pa FY24/...  209-1603-43780

FIRE DEPT CYCLE C&D OPEN ... 209-1603-43780

20% PER DIEM NM STATE FIR... 209-1603-42310

20% PER DIEM NM STATE FIR... 209-1603-42310

20% PER DIEM NM STATE FIR... 209-1603-42310

INTERNET  SERVICE/NORTH  Fl... 209-1603-43775

20% PER DIEM NM STATE FIR... 209-1603-42310

20% PER DIEM NM STATE FIR... 209-1603-42310

FIRE XEROX EQUIPMENT  CON... 209-1603-43465

OPENPOFORMONTHLYCLE...  209-1603-47415

FIREDEPTOPENPOFY24/25  209-1603-43465

FIRE DEPT CYCLE A&B  OPEN p,,, 209-1603-43780

FIRE DEPT OPEN PO FY24/25  209-1603-43775

FIREDEPTOPENPOFY24/25  209-1603-43775

Fund  209  - Fire  Total:

UNIFORM  ITEMS FOR OFFICERS 211-2003-44573

FIREARMS  EQUIPMENT  FOR o...  211-2003-44607

NSTRUCTOR  CERTIFICATION  ... 211-2003-42535

OPEN Pa  FOR MISC. ITEMS NE...211-2003-44573

SERVICE/MAINT  FOR DEPT VE... 211-2003-47  420

REIMBURSEMENT  FOR SHOOT...211-2003-44607

CAMERAS  AND ACCESSORIES ... 211-2003-44607

REPAIRS ON HANDHELD  RADI... 211-2003-44615

Fund  211  - Law  Enforce  Prot  Total:

ADVERTISING  AND MARKETI...  214-2503-47406

RENT/CAM  CHARGES FOR co...  214-2540-43466

Fund  214 - Lodgers  Tax  Total:

PROFESSIONAL  ENG PLANNIN...  216-7026-48598

VISION  ZERO SAFETY ACTION ... 216-7025-48Ef)8

Amount

110.50

1,961.69

126.50

145.83

69.35

152.28

86.49

122.14

156.36

168.28

250.32

137.g8

1,244.08

40.20

101.30

100.66

321.58

125.11

77.30

216.31

213.47

222,303.80

2,42C).00

2,420.00

3178

40.27

347.83

98.60

98.60

167.77

54.19

167.77

167.77

251.74

471.43

244.11

szg.gg

125.39

188.87

3,036.11

831.14

148.97

10.00

826.87

275.97

87.32

i,sgg.so

377.24

4,457.01

15,13  4.7Ei

1,875.26

17,010.02

19,419.72

226.01



AP EOM  REPORT

Vendor  Name  Payable  Number

B & H OIL CO. BH7224

INTERNALSERVICEFUND  06/01/2024-06/30/2024

BOOTBARN  097790

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  IXKC-9YLP-V6F6

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  IXKC-9YLP-V6F6

MARLIN  LEASING CORPORATI...  21346109

Fund:260  - Fiscal  Recovery  Funds

WILSON  & COMPANY  INC ENG.. 127698

Fund:  294  - State  Library

XEROX  CORP 5972805

TDS 08/03/2024

VERIZON  WIRELESS  9969100093

Fund:295  - Muni  Pool

JESSICA ADKINS  06202024

NEW  MEXICO  GAS COMPANY  ... 25JUN2024

CITY UTILITIES  C-D 7-5-2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28

XEROX  CORP 5972805

LINDAADKINS  07182024

VERIZON  WIRELESS  9969100093

THEFARLEYGROUPINC  JOOO432

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-07-12

Fund:  296  - PD GRT

BARTOOSAND&GRAVELINC  M46636

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  80360

Fund  :303  - Vet  Wall

WINDSTREAM  CORPORATION  07182024

Fund:  315  - Cl Reserve

ADV  ANCED  BUILDING  SOLUTI...  00054

Post  Date

07/12/2024

07/26/2024

07 /26/2024

07 /26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07 /18/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/05/2024

07/05/2024

07/OS/2024

07/05/2024

07/18/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07 /26/2024

07/26/2024

07 /18/2024

07/26/2024

07 /26/2024

07 /26/2024

Fund:  321 - WATER  SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

WILSON  & COMPANYINC  ENG.. 120395,  121331,  122112,  122...  07/26/2024

Fund:  370  - WATER  TRLIST BOARD  PROJECTS

WILSON  & COMPANY  INC ENG.. 127601

Fund:403  - Pledge  State

NEW  MEXICO  FINANCE  AUTH...  063024

NEW  MEXICO  FINANCE  AUTH...  07012024

NEW  MEXICO  FINANCE  AUTH...  07012024

NEW  MEXICO  FINANCE  AUTH...  07012024

Fund:501  - Cemetary

CITY UTILITIES  AB7182024

Fund:502  - Util  Office  - Pool

TYLERTECHNOLOGIES,INC.  025-467207

CITY UTILITIES  C-D 7-5-2024

SPECTRUM  NEW MEXICO  LLC ... IC-24-856

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28

XEROX  CORP 5972805

07 /OS/2024

07 /12/2024

07/12/2024

07/12/2024

07 /12/2024

07 /18/2024

07/05/2024

07/05/2024

07/05/2024

07/OS/2024

07/18/2024

Description  (Item)

Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

AccountNumber  Amount

1 ,159.89

32.00

200.00

179.00

igg.oo

192.75

21,608.37

RED DIESEL- OPEN Pa FY 23/24  216-4503-43316

SERVICE/MAINT  FOR DEPTVE...  216-4503-47420

BOOTSFORJOEYEVANS  216-4503-44615

UNDERSEATSTORAGEBOX  216-4503-47420

RUNNING  BOARDS  216-4503-47420

STREETDEPTSHARPEQUIPM...  216-4503-43465

Fund  216  - Muni  Street  Total:

PROFESSION  AL SERVICES FOR... 260-7031-48598

Fund  260  - Fiscal  Recovery  Funds  Total:

LIBRARY OPEN Pa FY24/25  294-5003-43465

NTERNET  SERVICE LIBRARY O... 294-5003-60834

LIBRARY OPEN Pa FY24/25  294-5003-43775

Fund  294  - State  Library  Total:

DEPOSIT REFLIND - POOL PAR... 2%-4803-34355

SWIMMING  POOL OPEN Pa F... 295-4803-43780

POOL CYCLE C&D OPEN Pa F... 295-4803-43780

PPE 2024-06-28  295-4803-41226

POOL OPEN Pa FY24/25  295-4803-43465

POOL PARTY DEPOSIT REFUND  295-4803-34355

POOL OPEN PO FY24/25  295-4803-43775

POOLTARP  295-4803-80845

PPE 2024-07-12  295-4803-41226

Fund  295  - Muni  Pool  Total:

TOW  SERVICE FOR ABANDON...  296-2403-48598

WORK  BOOTS FOR EVIDENCE ... 296-2403-44615

Fund  296  - PD GRT Total:

6,048.90

6,048.90

317.34

99.95

168.74

586.03

50.00

225.86

1,487.76

40.10

48.82

50.00

109.99

3,925.00

4 0.10

5,977.63

426.75

134.99

561.74

VETERANS  WALL  OPEN Pa FY... 303-4703-43775

Fund  303 - Vet  Wall  Total:

236.09

236.09

INSTALLEVAPORATIVECOOL...  315-8004-43403

Fund  315  - CI Reserve  Total:

34,767.7!

34,767.72

WASYSTEM  PERFORMANCE  l... 321-7017-80860  216,165.11

Fund  321 - WATER  SYSTEM  IMPROVEMENTS  Total:  216,165.11

ENGINEERING  SERVICES CANT...  370-7019-80847

Fund  370  - WATER  TRUST  BOARD  PROJECTS Total:

INTEREST  & ADMIN  FEES FOR ... 403-1203-90925

NMFA  LOAN  PYMT TORC 18  403-1203-12918

NMFALOANPYMTTORC19  403-1203-12919

NMFA  LOAN PYMT PPRF-5652  403-1203-12952

Fund  403  - Pledge  State  Total:

CEMETERY  CYCLE A&B  OPEN ... 5014803-43780

Fund  501  - Cemetary  Total:

UTILITY  BILLING  ANNUAL  suti...  502-3601-43815

UTILITY  BILLING  OFFICE CYCLE.. 502-3601-43780

10,000  #10  WINDOW  & 10,0...  502-3601-437  40

PPE 2024-06-28  502-3601-41226

UTILITY  BILLING  OPEN Pa FY2... 502-3601-43465

19  427.31

19,427.31

124.70

tigo.ss

7,598.75

14,33  4.7  4

22,748.77

1,062.33

1,062.33

4,090.70

407.90

1,724.91

192.82

390.57

- -'  i l  I '  -  "



AP EOM  REPORT Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

Vendor  Name

POSTMASTER

PITNEY BOWES  INC.

VERIZON  WIRELESS

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

Payable  Number Post  Date

07242024  07/26/2024

8000-9090-0951-4238-61124  07/26/2024

9969100093  07/26/2024

PPE 2024-07-12  07/26/2024

XEROX CORP - OLD

QUILL  CORPORATION

MARTO  ENERGY

NEW  MEXICO  ONE CALLINC

Fund:  503  - Electric

TYLERTECHNOLOGIES,INC.  025-467207  07/OS/2024

MIKETORRESDBACDTECHN...  1026  07/OS/2024

NEW MEXICO  GAS COMPANY  ... 25JuN2024  07/05/2024

CITYUTILITIES  C-D7-5-2024  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH  CARE PPE 2024-06-28  07/OS/2024

TRI-STATEGENERATION&TR...  304712  07/12/2024

ALTECINDUSTRIESINC  51466131  07/12/2024

SIERRAELECTRICCO-OPINC  7022024,07082024  07/12/2024

SIERRAELECTRICCO-OPINC  7022024,07082024  07/12/2024

CURTIS W THOMAS  DBA TRAI... 00268109  C)7/18/2024

021646316,  021646315,  0216...  07/18/2024

071224-01  07/18/2024

153010415  07/18/2024

07/18/2024

07/18/2024

07  /18/2024

07/18/2024

07/18/2024

07/18/2024

07  /18/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07  /26/2024

07  /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07 /26/2024PPE 2024-07-12

ggsgioooga

14640

135727

12618094

508304-Sl

07182024

9%8162887

AB7182024

7152024

5972805

3942663,  39446753

ALTEC INDUSTRIES  INC

NM RETIREE HEALTH  CARE

REED'S TIRE CENTER

SILVERSKY,  INC.

LANDIS+GYR  TECHNOLOGY  INC 90396263

VERIZON  WIRELESS

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  ICLP-RXR3-Y44Q

SAFETY FLARE, INC.

WESTERN  AREA POWER  ADM...  JJPB1798AO624

CITY UTILITIES

CITY uTILITlES

TDS

VERIZON  WIRELESS

XEROX CORP

Fund:  504  - Water

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES,  INC. 025-467207

MIKE  TORRES DBA CD TECHN...  1026

NEW  MEXICO  GAS COMPANY  ... 25JuN2024

SMITHCO  CONSTRUCTION  INC 595-24-004

CITY UTILITIES

BOOT  BARN

BOOT  BARN

NM RETIREE HEALTH  CARE

C-D 7-5-2024

NVOO370608

INVC)0370609

PPE 2024-06-28

DAUPLERINC 000846

FERGUSON  US HOLDINGS  INC 0543136

TAXATION  AND REVENUE

SIERRA  COUNTY  SENTINEL

063024

2650

CITY UTILITIES

B & H OIL CO.

FERGUSON  US HOLDINGS  INC SC21194

07  /05/2024

07/05/2024

07/05/2024

07 /OS/2024

07/05/2024

07/OS/2024

07  /05/2024

07/05/2024

07/12/2024

07/12/2024

07 /12/2024

07/12/2024

07/12/202456639,  56644

SUN VALLEYINC  175490,  175507,  175740,  175...  07/18/2024

BAKER UTILITY StJPPLY CORP  322096  07/18/2024

AB7182024  07/18/2024

07  /18/2024

NTERNALSERVICEFuND  06/01/2024-06/30/2024  07/26/2024

TDS 07182024  07/26/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  1GN9-376P-QXND  07/26/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  1TQ4-7YXL-Y49K,11XL-3H11-...  07/26/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  1X17-FDH6-QW3P  07/26/2024

SILVERSKY,INC.  508304-51  07/26/2024

BULLOCKS,  INC.  5820,  7307,  3151,  6289,  1833,...07/26/2024

Description  (Item) Account  Number

POSTAGECITYMAILFY24/25  502-3601-43735

PITNEY BOWES FY 24/25 5€)2-3601-43  465

UTILITY BILLING  OPEN Pa FY2... 502-3601-43775

PPE 2024-07-12 502-3601-41226

Fund  502  - util  Office  - Pool  Total:

ELECTRIC DEPT ANNUAL  SUBS... 503-3702-43815

IT SERVICE ELECTRIC DEPT op...  503-3702-48598

ELECTRIC DEPT OPEN Pa FY24...  503-3702-43780

ELECTRIC DEPT CYCLE C&D o... 503-3702-43780

PPE 2024-06-28 503-3702-41226

POWER  SERVICE- OPEN PO FY... 503-3702-50795

REPIACEORINGONOUTRIG...  503-3702-47420

MIMS  CITY LIGHTS-  OPEN Pa ... 503-3702-43780

POWER SERVICES-OPEN  Pa FY...503-3702-50795

CDLTRAINING-IESUSNAVAR...  503-3702-42720

ELECTRIC XEROX EQUIPMENT  ... 503-3702-43465

POLEREPLACEMENT-MCDO...  503-3702-47415

QUARTERLY  ALLOCATION  us... 503-3702-43770

OFFICE SUPPLIES- ELECTRIC 503-3702-44606

ELECTRIC DEPT OPEN Pa FY24...  503-3702-43465

ELECTRIC DEPT OPEN Pa FY24...  503-3702-43780

SaaS MONTHLY  FLAT FEE- op... 503-3702-43770

ELECTRIC DEPT OPEN Pa FY24...  503-3702-43775

ELECTRIC DEPT CYCLE A&B  op...  503-3702-43780

BASE DEMAND  & BASE ENER...  503-3702-50795

ELECTRIC DEPT OPEN Pa FY24...  503-3702-43780

VEHICLE MAINTEANCE,  09616...  503-3702-47420

RECHARGE FIRE EXTINGUISHE...  503-3702-44607

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE,  124...  503-3702-47420

SAFETY BOOTS-  CHRIS REES 503-3702-44615

ELECTRIC DEPT OPEN Pa FY24...  503-3702-43815

ELECTRIC DEPT OPEN Pa FY24...  503-3702-43775

PPE 2024-07-12 503-3702-41226

Fund  503  - Electric  Total:

WATER  DEPT ANNuALTYLER  ... 504-3803-43815

IT SERVICE WATER  DEPT OPEN..  504-3803-48598

WATER  DEPT OPEN PO FY24/... 504-3803-43780

EMERGENCY  RIVESIDE V ALVE ... 504-3803-47  415

WATER  DEPT CYCLE C&D op... 504-3803-43780

PANTS FOR JAMIE  FOREMAN  -...504-3803-42620

BOOTS FOR LOUS RUDDER  504-3803-44615

PPE 2C)24-06-28  504-3803-41226

DAUPLER  RESPONSE & CALLO... 504-3803-48598

WATER  AND  SEWERTAP  PART...504-3803-44607

WATER  CONSERV  ATION  FEE FY..504-3803-43797

WTR-CCR-NEWSPAPER  504-3803-43740

OPEN PO FY 24-25  FUEL WTR ... 504-3803-43316

WW/W-  OPEN PO FOR MAY  & ..504-3803-44607

8 WRAP  CLAMP  504-3803-44607

WATER  DEPT CYCLE A&B  OPEN..504-3803-43780

FINANCECHARGES  FORFY20...504-38 €)3-44607

SERVICE/M  AINT  FOR DEPT VE... 504-3803-47  420

WATER  DEPT OPEN PO FY24/... 504-3803-43780

WORK  GLOVES  504-3803-44615

LOCKING  MULTITOOL,  FRIGER... 504-3803-44607

OFFICE SUPPLIES  504-3803-44606

WATER  DEPT OPEN Pa FY24/... 504-3803-43815

OPENPOMAY&JUNE  504-3803-44607

Amount

15,000.00

119.20

192.62

196.68

22,315.40

18,006.22

664.07

29.04

5,016.48

403.80

34,473.30

178.48

562.35

328,047.30

7,600.00

ga.si

18,423.75

491.95

191.60

122.05

6.30

1,630.00

58.91

227.73

47,3  48.03

434.82

246.07

27.47

230.25

iga.gg

111.57

193.38

413.33

465,428.05

13,540.10

664.06

31.47

7,618.84

12,727.21

215.94

200.00

438.82

4,950.00

7B7.74

1,591.81

812.81

129.61

77.23

173.40

556.04

3.62

472.65

434.82

go.ss

512.35

185.09

111.56

84.41

' , ,  i    .,  . i



AP EOM  REPORT Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

Vendor  Name Payable  Number

07/26/2024

94758455  07/26/2024

ggsgioooga  07/26/2024

NVOO425267,  INVOO421723,  ... 07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

SMITHCO  CONSTRUCTION  INC 595-24-005

ESRI INC.

VERIZON  WIRELESS

USA BLUEBOOK

BAKERUTILITYSUPPLYCORP  INV323834

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-07-12

Fund:  505  - Solid  Waste

Post  Date

TYLERTECHNOLOGIES,INC.  025-467207  07/05/2024

MIKETORRESDBACDTECHN...  1026  07/05/2024

NEW  MEXICO  GAS COMPANY  ... 25JUN2024  07/05/2024

NEW  MEXICO  GAS COMPANY  ... 25JUN2024  07/05/2024

CITYUTILITIES  C-D7-5-2024  07/05/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE  PPE 2024-06-28  07/05/2024

CITY OF LAS CRUCES  102681  07/12/2024

AUTOZONESTORES,LLC  2529258122  07/12/2024

IACKSONCOMPACTION  30763  07/12/2024

WEXBANK  98064332  07/12/2024

Rl BORDER  INTERNATIONALT...  R400031987.01  07/12/2024

XEROX CORP-OLD  021646316,  021646315,  0216...  07/18/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  IVGN-7ML1-QTJM  07/18/2024

XEROXCORP  5972805  07/18/2024

CITYUTILITIES  7152024  07/18/2024

RJ BORDER  INTERNATIONALT...  R400031971.01  07/18/2024

PARKHILLSMITH&COOPER  04118823.00-7  07/26/2024

PARKHILLSMITH&COOPER  04342124.00-1  07/26/2024

INTERNALSERVICEFUND  06/01/2024-06/30/2024  07/26/2024

TDS 07182024  07/26/2024

SILVERSKY,INC.  508304-Sl  07/26/2024

RED WING  SHOES OF LAS CRU... 5804  07/26/2024

RED WING  SHOES OF LAS CRu...  5804  07/26/2024

RED WING  SHOES OF LAS cptu...  5804  07/26/2024

RED WING  SHOES OF LAS CRU... 5804  07/26/2024

CNASURETY  9-10-2024  07/26/2024

VERIZONWIRELESS  9%9100093  07/26/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE  PPE 2024-07-12  07/26/2024

Fund:  506  - WWTP

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES,  INC. 07/05/2024

07/05/2024

07/05/2024

07/OS/2024

07/12/2024

FERGUSON  US HOLDINGS  INC 0543136  07/12/2024

VILLAGEOFWILLIAMSBURG  063024  07/12/2024

TERIICATESDBATLCPESTC...  32442  07/12/2024

B&HOILC0.  56633,56634,56645,56650  07/12/2024

EtJROFINSENVIRONMENTAL...  8850004167  07/12/2024

EuROFlNSENVIRONMENTAL...  8850004464,8850004309,88...07/12/2024

EUROFINSENVIRONMENTAL...  8850004464,8850004309,88...07/12/2024

EUROFINSENVIRONMENTAL...  8850004464,88500C)4309,88...07/12/2024

EUROFINSENVIRONMENTAL...  8850004464,885000430!),88...07/12/2024

EUROFINSENVIRONMENTAL...  8850004464,8850004309,88...07/12/2024

EIJROFINSENVIRONMENTAL...  8850004464,8850004309,88...07/12/2024

EUROFINSENVIRONMENTAL...  8850004583  07/12/2024

EUROFINSENVIRONMENTAL...  8850004583  07/12/2024

XEROX  CORP-OLD  021646316,  021646315,  0216...  07/18/2024

14HQ-PFIW-PRC7  07/18/2024

SUN VALLEYINC  175490,  175507,  175740,  175...  07/18/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  IVJQ-7VCK-7HD3  07718/2024

025-467207

MIKE  TORRES DBA CD TECHN...  1026

CITY UTILITIES

NM RETIREE HEALTH  CARE

DAUPLER  INC

AM  AZON  CAPIT  AL SERVICES

C-D 7-5-2024

PPE 2024-06-28

000846

Description  (Item)

TAP ON MORGAN

Account  Number

504-3803-47415

ONLINE  SUBSCRIPTION  FOR A... 504-3803-43770

WATER  DEPT OPEN PO FY24/...  504-3803-43775

SAFETY GLASSES 504-3803-44615

WATERTAPPARTSFORMOR...  504-3803-44607

PPE 2024-07-12 504-3803-41226

Fund  504  - Water  Total:

SANITATION  ANNUALSUBSCR...505-3904-43815

IT SERVICE SANIT  ATION DEPT ... 505-3904-48598

RECYCLE CENTER OPEN Pa FY... 505-3904-43780

V ACU U M ST ATION  OPEN Pa F... 505-3904-43780

SANITATION  DEPT CYCLE C&D...505-3904-43780

PPE 2024-06-28

SCSWA  WASTE  DISPOSAL

SP-DEF SHOP PRO DEF

505-3904-41226

505-3904-45601

505-3904-44607

DIAGNOSTICS/REPAIRS,  l.ABOR..505-3904-47420

WEX-  DIESEL & GASOLINE

SWITCH/DIAG

sos-ggoa-aa:iis

505-3904-47  420

SOLID WASTE  XEROX EQUIPM...  505-3904-43465

CLEANING  FIELD SuPPLIES 505-3904-44607

SOLID WASTE  OPEN Pa FY24/...  505-3904-43465

SAN IT ATION  DEPT OPEN Pa F... 505-3904-45601

REPAIRS ON 62818

REGISTRATION  RENEWAL

505-3904-47  420

505-3904-48599

TECHNICAL  SUPPORT  SERVICE... 505-3904-48599

SERVICE/MAINT  FOR DEPT VE... 505-3904-47  420

SANITATION  OPEN Pa FY24/25  505-3904-43780

SOLID WASTE  DEPT OPEN Pa ... 505-3904-43815

SAFETY BOOTS-  MATHEW  HILL  505-3904-44615

SAFETY BOOTS-ANDRES  A AL... SOS-3904-44615

SAFETY BOOTS-  GARY CARRE...  505-3904-44615

SAFETY BOOTS-  VICTOR  GARC... 505-3904-44615

RENEWAL  BOND  # 62153207  ... 505-3904-43770

SANITATION  OPEN Pa FY24/25  505-3904-43775

PPE 2024-07-12 505-3904-41226

Fund  505 - Solid  Waste  Total:

WASTE  WATER  DEPT ANNU  AL... 506-4005-43815

IT SERVICE WASTE  WATER  op...  506-4005-48598

WASTE  WATER  DEPT CYCLE c... 506-4(X)5-43780

PPE 2024-06-28 506-4005-41226

DAUPLER  RESPONSE & CALLO... 506-4005-48598

WATER  AND SEWER T AP PART...506-4005-44607

SEWER RECEI PTS FY 2024  - 20... 506-4005-48798

PEST CONTROL 506-4005-47  425

OPEN Pa FOR DIESEL,OIL  AND...  506-4005-43316

TEST FOR LIQUID  WASTE  ou...  506-4005-44605

EPA 200.8  METALS/200.7  ME... 506-4005-48598

TAX ON LABOR 7.875%

EPA METHOD  624  VOCS

SM5210B-BOD

EPA METHOD  625 SVOCS

BOTTLE CHARGE

506-4005-48598

506-4005-48598

506-4005-48598

506-4005-48598

soti-aoos-assgs

EPA200.8METALS/200.7ME...  506-4005-48598

TAX ON LABOR  7.875% 506-4005-48598

WASTEWATER  XEROX EQUIP...  506-4005-43465

SIGNS 506-4005-44607

WW/W-  OPEN Pa FOR MAY & ..506-4005-44607

OFFICE SUPPLIES 506-40C)5-44606

Amount

392.58

3,278.35

262.35

77.55

211.20

439.94

51,072.10

11,307.04

664.06

29.54

31.47

823.55

577.99

57,668.38

232.56

981.85

3,986.g7

1,911.14

30.18

184.14

122.05

21,992.04

6,697.79

3,381.30

6,498.44

510.42

434.82

111.56

200.C)0

179.99

200.00

200.00

100.00

166.58

585.86

119,809.72

11,307.04

664.06

11,393.66

152.26

4,950.00

196.94

4,458.26

86.70

255.27

zoa.ag

245.00

53.54

100.00

120.00

225.00

12.00

70.00

5.34

158.20

83.34

77.22

78.78



AP EOM  REPORT Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

Vendor  Name Payable  Number Post  Date

XEROX  CORP 07/18/2024

07 /18/2024

07 /18/2024

07/18/2024

07/26/2024

TDS 07182024  07/26/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  1GN9-376P-QXND  07/26/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  1TQ4-7YXL-Y49K,11XL-3H11-...  07/26/2024

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  1XJ7-FDH6-QW3P  07/26/2024

SILVERSKY,INC.  508304-51  07/26/2024

BuLLOCKS,  INC. 5820,  7307,  3151,  6289,  1833,...07/26/2024

ESRIINC.  94758455  07/26/2024

VERIZONWIRELESS  9969100093  07/26/2024

TALON  SEPTIC & POTTY SERVI... 11659  07/26/2024

USA BLUEBOOK  INVOO425267,  1NVOO421723,  ... 07/26/2024

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE  PPE 2024-07-12  07/26/2024

CITY UTILITIES

CITY UTILITIES

5972805

7152024

AB7182024

TALON  SEPTIC & POTTY SERVI...  11669, 11670

NTERNAL  SERVICE FUND 06/01/2024-06/30/2024

Fund  :508  - Golf  Course

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE PPE 2024-06-28

EASY PICKER GOLF PRODUCTS  0207757-N

M ASEK ROCKY MOUNT  AIN co..  02-87255

AMAZONCAPITALSERVICESI...  17H9-GKWV-LR3Y

XEROX  CORP

CITY UTILITIES

TDS

5972805

AB7182024

C)7182024

AM  AZON  CAPIT  AL SERVICES

AM  AZON  CAPIT  AL SERVICES

AM  AZON  CAPIT  AL SERVICES

VERIZON  WIRELESS

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

1G6H-HR9Q-L7PM

IQGQ-3MW6-RKL4

IYXP-GNFW-YNPN

9969100093

PPE 2024-07-12

07/05/2024

07/18/2024

07/18/2024

07 /18/2024

07/18/2024

C)7/18/2024

07 /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07 /26/2024

07/26/2024

XEROX  CORP - OLD

Fund:  509 - Muni  Airport

CH AD ROSACKER DBA TECH 45..1111R  07 /12/2024

CHA[)  ROSACKER DBATECH  45..1112  07/12/2024

SIERRAELECTRICCO-OPINC  2154-7224  07/12/2024

021546316,  021646315,  0216...  07/18/2024

XEROXCORP  5972805  07/18/2024

WINDSTREAM  CORPORATION  07182024  07/26/2024

VERIZONWIRELESS  9969100093  07/26/2024

LUCAS  FRANCKE DBA REAL  ST... FINAL  DRAW  07/26/2024

Fund:  600-Internal  Serv

RJ BORDER  INTERN  ATION  AL T... X4C)0110523.01

XEROX  CORP 5972805

JOSE LUIS SIMENT  AL SR 12449

Rl BORDER  INTERN  ATION  AL T... X400110353.01

Rl BORDER  INTERNATIONALT...  X40Cnl050l.Ol

RJ BORDER  INTERN  ATION  AL T... X400110570.01

Rl BORDERINTERNATIONALT...  X400110942.01

07/12/2024

07/18/2024

07 /26/2024

07/26/2024

07/26/2024

07 /26/2024

07/26/2024

Description  (Item) Account  Number

WASTE  WATER  OPEN Pa FY24...  506-4005-43  465

WASTE  WATER  DEPT OPEN po..  506-4005-43780

WASTE  WATER  DEPT CYCLE A... 506-4005-43780

EMERGENCY  PUMP  OUT  OF s... 506-4005-48598

SERVICE/M  AINT  FOR DEPT VE... 506-4005-47  420

WASTE  WATER  OPEN Pa FY24...  506-4005-43780

WORK  GLOVES 506-4005-44615

LOCKING  MULTITOOL,  FRIGER... 506-4005-44607

OFFICE SU PPLI ES 506-4005-44606

WASTE  WATER  DEPT OPEN po..  506-4005-43815

OPEN PO MAY  & JUNE 506-4005-44607

ONLINE  SUBSCRIPTION  FOR A... 506-4005-43770

WASTE  WATER  DEPT OPEN po..  506-4005-43775

RODEO ARENA  PUMP  OUT

SAFETY GLASSES

PPE 2024-07-12

506-4005-48598

506-4005-44615

506-4005-41226

Fund  506  - WWTP  Total:

PPE 2024-06-28 508-4303-41226

FLAG POLES, NuMBERED  FLA... 508-4303-44607

GOLF CART LEASE FY 24-25  M... 508-4303-43465

A/C  WINDOW  UNIT FOR PRO ... 508-4303-44613

GOLF COURSE OPEN PO FY24/...508-4303-43465

GOLF COURSE CYCLE A&B  op...  508-4303-43780

GOLF COURSE OPEN Pa FY24/...508-4303-43780

RANGE BALLS 508-4303-44607

BLISS LOW-PEAK  FUSE LPI-100...508-4303-44607

CUSTOM  IMPRINTED  GOLF BA...508-4303-44607

GOLF COURSE OPEN Pa FY24/...  508-4303-43775

PPE 2024-07-12 508-4303-41226

Fund  508  - Golf  Course  Total:

MONTHLY  MANAGEMENT  FEE...509-4403-48598

MONTHLY  MANAGEMENT  FEE...509-4403-48598

OPEN Pa FOR UTILITIES  AT Al... 509-4403-43780

AI RPORT XEROX EQUI PM ENT ... 509-4403-43  465

AIRPORT  OPEN Pa FY24/25  509-4403-43465

AIRPORT  OPEN PO FY24/25

AIRPORT  OPEN Pa FY24/25

509-4403-43775

509-4403-43775

DOORREPAIRFORSTORAGE...  509-4403-43403

Fund  509 - Muni  Airport  Total:

LUCASOILFUELTREATMENT  600-7003-43316

FLEET DEPT OPEN Pa FY24/25  600-7003-43465

DUAL  AC RECOVERY MACHINE  600-7003-80845

SHOP SUPPLIES 600-70tI)3-44607

BULK ORDER OF FILTERS/BAT...  600-7003-44607

MGA  49430

H ARDWARE  BR AKE KIT

600-70 €)3-44607

600-7003-44607

Fund  600  - Internal  Serv  Total:

Grand  Total:

Amount

292.93

1,046.43

1,306.87

7,459.38

70.65

434.82

90.56

512.35

185.09

111.56

84.42

3,278.34

407.38

868.00

77.55

152.26

51,275.69

126.72

477.60

979.28

458.79

244.11

2,393.75

434.82

152.60

160.00

108.96

80.60

127.99

5,745.22

11772.24

7,000.00

823.17

31.58

48.83

443.85

124.18

7,866.25

34,110.10

267. € 0

73.23

12,594.70

3,504.74

1,360.96

150.18

70.98

18,021.79

1,346,195.01

- ].  l I -, :



AP EOM REPORT

Fund  Summary

Fund

101  - Genera

201-  Corrections

209 - Fire

211-  Law Enforce  Prot

214 - Lodgers  Tax

216 - Muni  Street

260  - Fiscal Recovery  Funds

294 - State  Library

295 - Muni  Pool

296-PD  GRT

303 - Vet  Wall

315 - CI Reserve

321-WATERSYSTEM  IMPROVEMENTS

370-WATER  TRUST BOARD  PROJECTS

403 - Pledge  State

5€)1 - Cemetary

502  - Util  Office  - Pool

503 - Electric

504  - Water

505 - Solid  Waste

506  - WWTP

508 - Golf  Course

509 - Muni  Airport

60 €) - Internal  Serv

Grand  Total:

Account  Number

101-1000-43597

ioi-iooo-aasgs

101-1000-43770

101-1001-41226

101-1001-43465

101-1001-43775

101-1003-41226

101-1003-43465

101-1003-43775

101-1004-41226

101-1004-42720

101-1004-43465

101-1004-437  40

101-1004-43775

101-1004-43815

101-1004-48599

101-1006-41226

101-1006-42620

101-1006-43775

101-1006-44606

101-1006-44607

101-1006-47  420

101-1006-48598

101-1007-41226

101-1007-42720

IC)1-1007-43316

101-1007-43465

101-1007-43775

101-1007-43815

Account  Summary

Account  Name

ATTORNEY  FEES-GOVER...

PROFESSION  AL SERV-G...

SUBSCRIPTION  & DUES

RETIREE INSURANCE

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

TELEPHONE

RETIREE INSURANCE

RENT OF EQUIPM  ENT

TELEPHONE

RETIREE INSURANCE

EMPLOYEE  TRAINING-A...

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

PRINTING/PUBLISHING

TELEPHONE

SOFTWARE  LIC/SOFTWA...

OTHER CONTRACnJAL  s...

RETIREE INSURANCE

UNIFORMS  LINEN-ANIM...

TELEPHONE

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FIELD SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE  VEH/EQU..

PROFESSION  AL SERVICES

RETIREE INSURANCE

EMPLOYEE  TRAINING-P...

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

TELEPHONE

SOFTWARE

Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

Report  Summary

Payment  Amount

222,303.80

2,420.00

3,036.11

4,457.01

17,010.02

21,608.37

6,048.90

586.03

5,977.63

561.74

236.09

34,767.72

216,165.11

19,427.31

2:,748.77

1 ,062.33

2 2,315.40

465,428.05

51,072.10

119,809.72

51,275.69

5,7  45.2!

34,110.10

18,021.79

1,346,195.01

Payment  Amount

4,212.43

3,238.13

10,875.00

311.23

244.11

279.29

335.53

530.49

349.30

500.64

346.80

zgz.g:i

1,163.64

251.81

11,307.04

396.20

264.63

746.56

110.50

12.98

181.65

38.37

1,962.08

2,440.33

65.00

5,979.92

1,016.87

2,167.34

11,438.04



AP EOM  REPORT Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

Account  Number

101-1007-44606

101-1007-44613

101-1007-46732

101-1007-47  420

101-1007-48598

101-1007-48599

101-1007-80845

101-1008-41226

101-1008-42720

101-1008-43316

101-1008-43775

lCn-1008-44607

ioi-ioog-zii,i:s

101-1009-43  465

101-1009-43770

101-1009-43775

101-1009-44607

101-1009-47  415

101-1009-47  420

101-1010-41226

101-1010-43775

101-1010-47  420

101-1010-48598

101-1011-41226

101-1011-43775

101-1012-41226

101-1012-43316

101-lm2-43465

101-1012-43775

101-1013-41226

101-1013-47  420

101-1014-41226

101-1014-43316

101-1014-43403

101-1014-43465

101-1014-43775

101-1014-44607

101-1014-47  410

101-1016-41226

101-1016-44830

101-1017-48599

101-1018-43780

101-1048-43815

101-1018-48598

101-1099-3  4348

201-1903-48710

209-1603-42310

209-1603-43  465

209-1603-43775

209-1603-43780

209-1603-47  415

211-2003-42535

211-2003-44573

211-2003-44607

211-2003-44615

211-2003-47  420

214-2503-47  406

214-2540-43  466

Account  Summary

Account  Name

OFFICE SUPPLIES

NON-CAPIT  AL ITEMS

GENERAL  LIABILITY  INSU...

M AI NTEN  ANCE VEH ICLE...

PROFESSION  AL SERVICES

OTHER CONTRACTUAL  s...

CAPIT  ALIMPROVEMENT...

RETIREE INSURANCE

EMPLOYEE  TRAINING-C...

GAS & OIL

TELEPHONE

FIELD SuPP-CODE  ENF/...

RETIREE INSURANCE

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

SUBSCRIPTION  & DUES

TELEPHONE

FIELD SUPPLIES-MuNI  R...

M AINTENANCE-REPAIRS..

MAINTENANCE  VEHICLE...

RETIREE INSURANCE

TELEPHONE

M AINTEN  ANCE-VEHICLE...

PROFESSION  AL SERVICES

RETIREE INSURANCE

TELEPHONE

RETIREE INSURANCE

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

TELEPHONE

RETIREE INSURANCE

MAINTENANCE  VEHICLE...

RETIREE INSllRANCE

GAS & OIL

REGULAR BUILDING  MA...

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

TELEPHONE

FIELD SUPPLIES-FACILITY...

MAINTENANCE  CONTRA...

RETIREE INSLIRANCE

CITY BOOK PURCHASING...

OTHER CONTRACTUAL  S...

UTILITIES

SOFTWARE  LIC/SOFTWA...

PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES

RENT OF PUBLIC FACILIT...

CARE OF PRISONERS-CO...

PER DIEM-STATE  FIRE F...

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

M AINTENANCE-REPAIRS..

EMPLOYEE  TRAINING

UNIFORM  & EQLIIPMENT

FIELD SUPPLIES

SAFETY EQUIPMENT

M AINTEN  ANCE-VEHICLE...

PROMOTIONAL/ADVERT...

RENT OF LAND/BUILDING

Payment  Amount

767.41

148.88

1,566.48

1,178.00

212.12

45,568.25

66.57

80.40

200.00

167.24

249.89

767.81

208.66

244.11

450.(10

145.83

3,100.87

goo.oo

732.50

199.35

69.35

36.35

27,870.87

641.09

152.28

249.43

540.67

64.69

86.49

154.60

680.00

430.53

852.94

2,381.97

73.23

122.14

1,696.41

53.82

422.02

106.36

37,984.g6

19,487.25

1,450.32

8,632.82

50.00

2,420.00

700.51

495.85

368.45

999.87

471.43

10.00

1,658.01

2,135.79

377.24

275.97

15,134.76

1,875.26



AP EOM  REPORT Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

Account  Number

216-4503-43316

216-4503-43465

216-4503-44615

216-4503-47  420

216-7025-48598

216-7026-48598

260-7031-48598

294-5003-43465

294-5003-43775

294-5003-60834

zgs-asoa-aa:iss

295-4803-41226

295-4803-43465

295-4803-43775

295-4803-43780

295-4803-80845

296-2403-44615

296-2403-48598

303-4703-43775

315-8004-43403

321-7017-80860

azo-yoig-sosaz

403-1203-12918

403-1203-12919

403-1203-12952

403-1203-90925

501-1803-43780

502-3601-41226

502-3601-43  465

502-3601-43735

502-3601-437  40

502-3601-43775

502-3601-43780

502-3601-43815

503-3702-41226

503-3702-42720

503-3702-43465

503-3702-43770

503-3702-43775

503-3702-43780

503-3702-43815

503-3702-44606

503-3702-44607

503-3702-44615

503-3702-47  415

503-3702-47  420

503-3702-48598

503-3702-50795

504-3803-41226

504-3803-42620

504-3803-43316

504-3803-437  40

504-3803-43770

504-3803-43775

504-3803-43780

504-3803-43797

504-3803-43815

504-3803-44606

Account  Summary

Account  Name

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

SAFETY EQUIPMENT

M AINT.VEHICLE/FU  RN/...

Professional  Serv/Contra...

Professional  Serv/Contra...

Professional  Serv/Contra...

RENT OF EQIIIPMENT

TELEPHONE

STATE LIBRARY GRANT-S...

POOL DEPOSIT/RENT  AL

RETIREE INStlRANCE

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

TELEPHONE

UTILITIES-MUNI  POOL

CAPIT  AL IMPROVEMENT...

SAFETY EQUIPMENT

PROFESSION  AL SERVICES

TELEPHONE

REGULAR  BUILDING  MA...

NFRASTRUCTURE

ROADWAYS  AND  BRIDG...

CWPA  PPRF-2513  TORC ...

CWPA  PPRF-2737  TORC ...

PPRF-5652  ELECTRIC TR...

COMMITMENTS  & OTHE...

uTILITIES

RETIREE INSURANCE

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

POST AGE & M AIL SERVI ...

PRINTING/PLIBLISHING

TELEPHONE

uTILITlES

SOFTWARE  LIC/SOFTWA...

RETIREE INStlRANCE

EMPLOYEE  TRAINING-EL...

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

SUBSCRIPTION  & DUES

TELEPHONE

uTILITlES

SOFTWARE  LIC/SOFTWA...

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FIELD SUPPLIES

SAFETY EQUIPMENT

M AINTENANCE-REP  AI RS..

M AINTEN  ANCE-VEHICLE...

PROFESSION  AL SERVICES

WHOLESALE  POWER  co...

RETIREE INSURANCE

UNIFORM/LINEN-WATER..

GAS & OIL

PRINTING/PuBLISHING

SUBSCRIPTION/DUES

TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

WATER  CONSERV  ATION...

SOFTWARE  LIC/SOFTWA...

OFFICE SUPPLIES

' -l - 's I

Payment  Amount

1 ,159.89

192.75

2C)0.00

410.00

226.01

19,419.72

6,048.90

317.34

168.74

gg.gs

100.00

80.20

48.82

iog.gg

1,713.62

3,925.00

134.99

4 26.75

236.09

34,767.72

216,165.11

19,427.31

690.58

7,598.75

14,334.74

124.70

1,062.33

389.50

509.77

15,000.00

1,724.91

192.62

407.90

4,090.70

817.13

7,600.00

216.86

2,121.95

252.29

6,276.72

18 ,117.79

19 1.60

27.47

lg4.gg

18,423.75

654.80

664.07

409,868.63

878.76

215.94

129.61

812.81

3,278.35

262.35

13,7  ag.s  4

1,591.81

13,651.66

185.09



AP EOM  REPORT

Account  Summary

Account  Number

504-3803-44607

504-3803-44615

504-3803-47  415

504-3803-47  420

504-3803-48598

505-3904-41226

505-3904-43316

505-39C]4-43  465

505-3904-43770

505-3904-43775

505-3904-43780

sos-agoa-a:isis

505-3904-44607

505-3904-44615

505-3904-45601

sos-agoa-oa;io

505-3904-48598

505-3904-48599

506-4005-41226

506-40C)5-43316

506-4005-43  465

506-4005-43770

506-4005-43775

506-4005-43780

506-4005-43815

506-4005-44605

506-4005-44606

506-4005-44607

5C)6-4(X]5-44615

506-4005-47  420

506-4005-47  425

sos-aoos-assgs

5C)6-4005-48798

508-4303-41226

508-4303-43  465

508-4303-43775

508-4303-43780

508-4303-44607

508-4303-44613

509-4403-43  403

5(19-4403-43  465

509-4403-43775

509-44 €)3-43780

sog-ziao:i-assgs

600-7003-43316

600-7003-43  465

600-7003-44607

600-7003-80845

Account  Name

FIELD SUPPLIES-WATER  ...

SAFETY EQUIPMENT

M AINTEN  ANCE-REP  AIRS..

M AINTEN  ANCE-VEHICLE...

PROFESSION  AL SERVICES

RETIREE INSURANCE

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

SUBSCRIPTION  & DUES

TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

SOFTWARE  LIC/SOFTWA...

FIELD SUPPLIES-SOLID  ...

SAFETY EQUIPMENT

WASTE  DISPOSAL

M AINTENANCE-VEHICLE...

PROFESSION  AL SERVICES

OTHER CONTRACTtJAL  S...

RETIREE INSURANCE

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

SUBSCRIPTION  & DIJES

TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

SOFTWARE  LIC/SOFTWA...

CHEMICALS/LABORATO...

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FIELD SUPPLIES-WASTE...

SAFETY EQUIPMENT

M AINTEN  ANCE-VEHICLE...

OTHER MAINTENANCE-...

PROFESSION  AL SERVICES

VILLAGE  OF WILLIAMSB...

RETIREE INSURANCE

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

TELEPHONE

uTILITIES

FIELD SUPPLIES

NON-CAPITAL  ITEMS

REGULAR BUILDING  MA...

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

TELEPHONE

uTILlTIES

PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

Fl ELD SU PPLI ES

CAPIT  ALIMPROVEMENT...

Grand  Total:

Project  Account  Key

"None"'

Project  Account  Summary

Grand  Total:

i j i iq

Payment  Dates:  7/1/2024  - 7/31/2024

Payment  Amount

1,849.95

368.10

8,011.42

472.65

5,614.06

1,163.85

3,986.97

152.23

100.00

166.58

1,319.38

11,418.60

416.70

zzg.gg

79,660.42

10,101.20

664.06

9,879.74

304.52

255.27

451.13

3,278.34

407.38

14,181.78

11,418.60

204.49

263.87

954.27

168.11

70.65

86.70

14,772.32

4,458.26

254.71

1,223.39

80.60

2,828.57

899.16

458.79

7,866.25

80.41

568.03

823.17

24,772.24

267.00

73.23

5,086.86

12,594.70

1,346,195.01

Payment  Amount

1,346,195.01

1,346,195.01



A!q!-,LAk cior  T[U"Th D[ €DSS[OU(N€
[Jli%l,  A5tivUAKtQUt51 t-uKIVl

41Jfi=!Ntm>
%d?JlJGj MEETING DATE: August 14, 2024

)Igenda  Item  #: F.4

' K4iipP'
SUBJECT:  Take  Home  Vehicle  Form

DEPARTMENT:  City  Clerk's  Office

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  7, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Angela  A. Torres

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Consent  Calendar

Summary/Background:

In accordance with Resolution No. 12 21/22, all take-home  vehicle requests must be approved by the City
Commission.  The  take-home  vehicle  request  is for  Phillip  Nunez  in the  Parks  Department.  His commute  is 20

miles.

Recommendation:

Approve  take  home  vehicle  form.

Attachments:

@-

Fiscal Impact  (Finance): N/A

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  N/A

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  % Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Clid< here  to enter  te><t

FinalApproval:  € City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  - Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

[3 Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-2024



, r (J:ityof'I'mtFtorConsequertces
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

- ,! 'ka 3gewra item x: Q
it  MEETING DATE: August 14, 2024

SUBJECT: Public Hearing/Discussion/Action  -  Ordinance  766 Amending  the City of Truth or
Consequences  Municipal  Code  of  Ordinances,  Amending  Chapter  11  Pertaining  to  Solid  Waste

DEPARTMENT:  Community  Development

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  5, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Traci  Alvarez

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Traci  Alvarez  -  Assistant  City  Manager

Sumrnory/8ockground:
Staff  has  revised  and  updated  Chapter  11  of  the  Municipal  Code.  The  City  Commission  approved  publication

of  Ordinance  766  at its meeting  on 6-12-24.  This  is for  public  hearing  and  final  adoption  of  Ordinance  766

Recommendation:

Approve  Final  Adoption  Ord.  766

Attachments:

@ Ordinance  766

*  Public  Hearing  Notice

Fiscal Impact  (Finance): N/A

Click  l'iere to enter  text

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Click  here  to enter  text

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  € Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  Click  l"iere  to ei"iter  text.  Ordinance  No.  Clid<  liere  to  eriter  'text.

Continued  To: Click  l'iere  to  enter  a d.:ite.  Referred  To:  Click  here  to  enter  text.

€  Approved  € Denied  € Other:  Clid<  I-iere  to  ei'iter  text.

File Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24



CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES

ORDINANCE  766

AN  ORDINANCE  AMENDING  THE  CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES

MUNICIP  AL  CODE  OF  ORDINANCES,  AMENDING  CHAPTER  11 PERTAINING  TO

SOLID  WASTE

BE  IT ORDAINED  BY  THE  BOARD  OF COMMISSIONERS,  CITY  COMMISSIONERS  OF

THE  CITY  OF TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES:

Section  one.  That  Chapter  11 of  the Code  of  Ordinances  of  the City  of  Truth  or Consequences

be amended  so that  such  Chapter  shall  read  as follows:

CHAPTER  11 SOLID  WASTE  M.1NA(.EMENT  RECYCLING  & WASTE

COLLECTION  CENTER

ARTICLE  I. IN  GENERAL

See. 11-1.  Definitions.

The  following  words,  terms  and  phrases,  when  used  in  this  chapter,  shall  have  the meanings

ascribed  to them  in this  section,  except  where  the context  clearly  indicates  a different  meaning:

City  means  and includes  the  City,  its  duly  authorized  agents,  contractors,  servants,

employees,  or licensees.

Refuse means any garbage, rejected or waste food, offal, swill, carrion, ashes, dirt, slop,
wastepaper,  trash,  rubbish,  waste,  or unwholesome  material  excepting,  however,  recognizable

industrial  byproducts

(Code  1962,  § 8-3-1)

See. 11-2.  Police  power  exercised.

This  chapter  shall  be deemed  an exercise  of  the police  power  of  the City  acting  in its

governrnental  capacity  for the protection  and preservation  of health,  welfare,  safety,  and

cleanliness;  and all of  its provisions  shall  be liberally  construed  for  the accomplishment  of  that

purpose.  All  persons  having  City  water  or electric  connection  shall  also be liable  for  garbage

collection  fees,  if  garbage  collection  is available.

(Code  1962,  S, 8-3-2)

Sec. 11-3.  City  to haul  refuse.

The  City  shall  have  the exclusive  right  to gather  and collect  refuse,  and it shall  be unlawful

for  any  person,  except  as otherwise  provided  in  this  chapter,  to collect  or gather  refuse.

(Code  1962,  F§ 8-3-3)



See. 11-4.  Permit-Required.

It shall  be unlawful  for  any  person  other  than  the City  to collect  or convey  through,  over,  or

under  any  street  or alley  any refuse,  for  persons  other  than  themselves,  without  first  securing  a

permit  from  the City.  The  City  Commission  shall  set the  permit  fee by Resolution.

(Code  1962,  § 8-3-4,,  Ord.  No.  593,  § 1, 10-14-08)

Sec. 11-5.  Same-Revocation.

Any  person  hauling  refuse  under  a permit  issued  by the City  shall  dispose  of  such  refuse  in

a safe and sanitary  manner  and shall  obey  the ordinances  of  the City  and the laws  of  the State  of

New  Mexico  as well  as the rules  and regulations  of  the Governing  Body  of  the City  with  regard

to the storage  and disposal  of  refuse.  Failure  to obey  the noted  ordinances,  laws,  or rules  and

regulations  shall  be grounds  for  revocation  of  the  permit  issued  by the City.

(Code  1962,  J§ 8-3-5)

See. 11-6.  Containers-Requirements.

(a)  It shall  be unlaw'Jul  for  any owner  or occupant  of  any  public  or private  premises  to permit

the accumulation  upon  such  premises  of  any refuse  except  in covered  containers  approved

by the City.  Such  containcts  shall  be constructed  of  mctal  in such  a manner  as to be strong,

not  easily  corrodiblc,  rodcntproof,  with  two  handlcs,  a capacity  of  not  more  than  30 gallons,

and with  tight  covers.  These  containers  shall  be maintained  in a sanitary  condition  at all

times  and  shall  be kept  on a rack  or in  some  location  which  will  prevent  the containers  from

being  overturned  by animals.  City-furnished  containers  must  be used  where  available  and as

designated  by the City.

(b)  At  those  locatiots  wherc  thc  City  furnishes  a container,  the City  owned  containcrs  shall  bc

the only  ones uscd.  No  rocks,  bricks,  metal,  except  food  and bcvcrage  containcrs,  or othcr

items  of  lilce consistency  shall  be deposited  in the City  ovvncd  containets.  ,'i  clcaning  fee

may  be imposcd  if  loosc  wct  refuse  is depositcd  in  a City  owned  container.

(b)  The  City-owned  containers  shall  be the  only  containers  used.  Construction  demolition

material,  including  scrap  metal,  rocks,  bricks,  organic  yard  debris,  household

furnishings,  or large  utility  appliances,  hazardous  waste,  special  waste,  burn  barrels,

ash waste,  medical  or  infectious  waste,  sludge  waste  or livestock  manure,  dead

animals,  or mortality  waste,  asbestos  pipes,  or residues,  automotive  fluids,  are  NOT

allowed  in or  around  residential  or  commercial  solid  waste  containers.  Only  regular

household/business  bagged  garbage  shall  be deposited  in the  City-owned  containers.  A

cleaning  fee may  be imposed  if  loose  wet  refuse  is deposited  in a city-owned  container.

(c)  All  container  lids  will  need  to be closed.  No items,  bagged,  bundled,  or  otherwise  may

be placed  for  pick  up  outside  of  the  container.

(Code  1962,  § 8-3-6)



See.  11-7,  Same-City  handling;  scavengers  prohibited;  penalty.

(a)  It shall  be unlawful  for  any  person  other  than  the City  to interfere  in  any  manner  with  any

receptacle  intended  for  the prirpose  of  receiving  and  holding  re'fuse,  to remove  any such

receptacle,  or to remove  anything  from  any  such  receptacle  unless  such  item  was  deposited

there  accidentally  by  the  person  removing  the  item.  Scavenger  activities  are prohibited,  and

in addition,  it shall  be unlawfiil  for  any  person  to climb  into,  disturb,  or enter  any such

containers  furnished  by  the  City,  except  insofar  as necessary  to deposit  refuse  therein.

(b)  Any  person  who  violates  any  of  the provisions  of  this  section  shall  be deemed  guilty  of  a

misdemeanor  and,  upon  conviction  thereof,  shall  be punished  by  a fine  as follows:

(1) First  offense$.....  25.00

(2)  Second  offenselOO.OO

(3) Third  and  subsequent  offenses200.00

Scavenger  activities,  including  poking  and  hunting  through  refuse  previously  deposited  in City-

owned  containers,  shall  be considered  a separate  offense  for  each  such  container  so disturbed.

(c)  In addition  to the foregoing  misdemeanor  fines,  the City  may  collect  a civil  penalty  for

cleaning  each  garbage  container  disturbed  by  scavengers.

(Code  1962,  § 8-3-7)

See.  11-8.  Governing  Body  to  make  rules  and  regulations.

The  Governing  Body  of  the City  shall  have  the  power  to make  rules  and  regulations  for  the

storage  and  disposal  of  refuse  to effectuate  and  facilitate  the  provisions  of  this  chapter.

(Code  1962,  § 8-3-8)

See.  11-9.  Accumulation  of  refuse  prohibited.

It shall  be unlawful  for  any  person  to deposit,  collect,  or accumulate  or permit  the deposit,

collection,  or  accumulation  of  any  re'Juse  within  the  City.

(Code  1962,  § 8-3-9)

See.  11-10.  Collection  fees.

Collection  fees  shall  be set  by  the  City  Commission

Thc  monthly  fccs  shall  bc  as follows:

(1) Rcsidcnccs:  $22.37

(2)  Conmqcrcial  cstablishmcnts:



rlryvv  T T riarti>h  /Fyq+rirai  vty;+T'ini'f  T'inrr  r'lannarknh  krirmht  r'hritiri  T'imaknr  r_'hrinr' 'EAA_3S
&L€aa _ U'6LJ  (IIILUIIIII)  VYILIIL  uia=  L1111L11LJ5  uvy  JllpJi  llll  JllpJ5

T  17  rkriyr  iarira1r  r<lairiyri  :t'nvrrJmi  rrtriyrih  qririri'i'm'tit'vn  1rizril  i'xria:rn1  iani'il  riri+ri+ri

-i4J77  . Ll  g

tt. l  . N . ;31 IU  P  ;J, l  U L  l(  J  l  IU  p  J,  J L VN' L  11 ) J LLI l  U i_), ul.< !  U ul  ltll  %,  1L6LL1,  11 lUu  lLul,  l  Ll.ll  Li_) L41LL,

;yrn'nanyrio  tlcivi+ril  ril'Fipnra  nyrl  :rrira1nyrirnir  rital  hkritairi  'fk.[ri+nlr  kri+rJlr  rinrl
lllOulffllL!,  uLllLtll  UIIILU;_)  Llllu  llllJLUlll.lllL;Llu;_t  Jlllull  JllLlpJ.  lYltJL!lJ,  11ULLlJ,  1111Ll

nynny+ri  vii;+1ai  lrivuoy  +'l'iny  *rsrs  ii'i'i:+r  ri'i'ia  D  V  Dn'ialrri  vii;+k  &vuri'r  +Lriy  *r:sr*  r'riqrarir
11P ill  Ll 1  IL  1 ILJ W I Ll  11  L W I.il Ll  ll.u  l L!  11 ul  11 lJ Lll  lu  1'(  Y 1 Lll  jl  J VN l  Ll 11  Iv VY L  l 11 lLu  l tlill  J  pLlLL  iJ.

k /"  lrivv  TT T rirlrvrir  /'Frn+ritwrai  vvi;'tkrni+  krnah  yrirarrizri  n_+rirrir  t'u;+1'iriii+  kniah  hritaty:rip !!
ff !  6 Lea i) 11. l_i l_l u  6  U ;_) 311 a  lUl  llul  ) VY l  llltJ  u  l Ll ul  a, p  uvzyug  u a ILII  U J 'r 'l  l  LI ILI u  L Ll ul  J I  J u  l V 1 u  %i

n+n+;rit'in  rvtvru-vrsr  rnll  rrvyrvnmr  r+riyrir  krirly+  hlairiiaih  hri11  l"II'l'F(I(1  1mvnrlia;nra  Flriiairi+ri

n

uLuLlUllO,  gulug!J,  JIIILIII  61ULUl)  JLUILLI,  LllJg7  JIIL!pU,  Jlllt.lll  Lul!J,  luulltlllUJ)  11LlllJLJ

Ply  A riiavi  nll  vxn'iarik  run  r1:  city  rv  ki  iravri  or  rrih  Th fri+ri1  r  h  ts*rsl  r> qy  A riHq  4Hlr  ivy;+k  +rih  trs  Q n
ullu  ;_illlull  111Ll  l.<llllllulLlll%  LI IJ;JlllU  LIJLJ.  IN IL)  LLI  J, IIIJ  LLIJ,  LtllLl  LqJut  1111!11tLI  VY l  Lll  LLII  LIJ Aa t/

i'm;'th  rn'irl  D V  Drir1rh  vu;+k  +riti  +ri  'lr}  cynrvnr
'1111J  ull  l'l  "  u"'J"  YILII  Lull  L   JpUUJ-

/'  lrrvrr  TTT T:)mar  nyrl  yqrJt'rirrn  h'h"naph  :YI  rirn'i:i'mri+:riy  vty:+1i  knrca  n"inrl:'ni'y  h;qpr1  ci+riiari i
7 &u00  jJ  ura  Ill  _uvxyugv  JIUI!J  l'l  !UIIJIIIUIIUII  VYILII  lJi  IIIUIIII  JIV  JL'U

kii:lrl;yzri  orl;ivnn  r;a-rria  ynr+mvtany+ri  niairl  rin-Fr'ih  rit'irl  rrrrviqny+n1  riFFirarir  A./l'n+ri1h

4

U l-111 11116  J5 111U ll  J-1111 J 1 J_'  j-11 '  J ILI  Lll  Lll  I LJ (-tl lj-l  '  Lll  '  J (11j-A 6  U 'l  Ll  l  l_lll!11  LLLI U llllj  U J - l  Yl  IJ Llj  l  J5

kri+rilh  niairl  rit'irifft'iairii'ri+ri  vii;+k  'I  1 *rs  Irl  vnn:+h  i'ihrl  T;' 17  Drir1rri  vui+'k  'I  1 *rs  In  hi'irir"rir
11LJ LL I J5  ulllJ  llp  ul  1111S.<11 L J  % Y l  All A- l  LU J V ulll  IJ Lll  ILI 11  Y 1 Ill  1(J  VY 1 LI I A-l  LU J l/ J  p  Ilu  u  J -

,L rlrinty  TTr' noynffrit'f  ra+rirriri  rlta'nrr  tvfriianri  niirl  krn'ilrri  kfirs*rslrr  kri+rJr  niirl  rivintatnipn+p (C1 /In  Q(1
tt:  I (4+) +) I j ' - 1-I  '  p  (-11 11 1 IUII  L J Ll-) l  '  J  Ij-kl  L16 J lU  l  IJ J jllj-A  Ll jll_l(J  - l  'V l  l_l LU l  J ) 11j-} LU I J5 (l  lj-l  (p  jl  Ll 11Vll  L J

vrr;+k  I  1 +A  A rS 'i'n'i:+h  i'itir1  D  ST Drirlrr  vt.;+1'i  11  +ri  A n riynririri

Lll l  11j-  Aa U

VNILIIJI  L'-  IVlllllJl-'"'"N  11-II(J  VNILIIJI  LI  IJplljUJ-

{'  lrinry  T7 T nyryn  vnr+miyni'i+r  lnvrrri  rrtariripmi  h+rnarih  Lririy;+nlr  +iari:lriia  iainialrri  ?k.flri+i:i1r ffi
ff tuaa  ?'- uigv  lLJLullulllJ5  lul6U  giuvvhy  JlUlVJi  IlUJplLlJi  IIIIUI  pllkJ-  1'lLV'J5

1airs*rslcs  nyrl  rnavn'ffzy+r  viri+k   riyri  +kni'i  A n iiiai:+r'  runrl  D  S T D'n'1rc'  tin  +k rirri  +knn  A n

4

l  ILI  LL  10,  ffl  lu  up  ul  Ll  l  l!  l  ltLI  Vl  l  Ll  111  ILI  l  L  kl  ILII  l  It}  ul  11  L J  W  ILI  11  I  l  W  l(  J  VN l  111 11  11.!  l  L  kl  ILII  I  It}

4

(3) Reserved.

(4) Reserved.

(Code 1962, § 8-3-11; Ord. No. 405, 2-8-93; Ord. No. 411, 1-10-94; Ord. No. 454, 53 1, 3-23-98;
Ord.  No.  477,  § 1, 7-24-00;  Ord.  No.  495,  {S) 1, 7-9-01;  Ord.  No.  503,  § 1, 11-26-01;  Ord.  No.

510, § 1, 3-11-02; Ord. No. 519, Ffi 1, 6-10-02; Ord. No. 522, § 1, 11-12-02; Ord. No. 544, 7-25-
05; Ord. No. 547, 10-24-05; Ord. No. 630, 53 1, 11-13-12; Ord. No. 647, § 1, 11-12-13)

Editor's  note(s)-Ord.  No.  630,  § 1, adopted  Nov.  13,  2012,  changed  the  title  of  § 11-10  from

"Collection  fees  generally"  to "Collection  fees."

Sec.  11-11.  Payment;  when  due.

All  collection  fees  shall  be  payable  at the  utility  offices  of  the  City  of Truth  or

Consequences  on a monthly  basis.  All  fees assessed  for  collection  shall  become  delinquent  90

days  a'fter  the  due date.  The  City  Clerk  shall,  at the end  of  each  quarter  of  the  year,  prepare  an

assessment  roll  in  accordance  with  state  law.

(Code  1962,  § 8-3-12)



Sec. 11-12.  Delinquency;  }ien,  generally;  business  establishments.

(a)  On or before  October  1 of  each year,  the Municipal  Clerk  shall  certify  to the Governing

Body  a list  containing  any delinquent  assessments  with  a penalty  added  for  nonpayment  of

the assessment  at the rate of  one percent  per month  of  any assessment  confirmed  by

resolution  and describe  the parcel  of  real  estate  to which  the assessment  is applicable.  After

the certified  list  is accepted  by the Governing  Body,  the assessment  shall  be a lien,  when

processed,  against  the parcel  of  real  estate  and shall  be processed  as provided  in state law.

Any  such  lien  shall  be a lien  superior  to all  other  liens  except  general  properiy  taxes  upon

the property  so charged  and a personal  liability  of  the owner  of  the property  so charged.  The

notice  of  lien  shall  comply  with  the requirements  of  the  New  Mexico  Municipal  Code  and

shall  bear  interest  at the rate of  eight  percent  per annum  from  the date of  assessment.  The

lien  may  be foreclosed  as provided  by law.

(b)  A  penalty  of  one percent  per  month  shall  be charged  in  all  cases where  payment  is not  made

when  delinquent.

(c)  For  purposes  of  this  section,  "business  establishment"  shall  mean  each location  at which

business  is conducted  by an individual,  associate,  or corporate  entity  and each  business  at a

cornrnon  location  which  is separately  conducted  from  other  business  at such common

location.

(Code  1962,  § 8-3-13)

See. 11-13.  Charge  for  release  of  lien.

There  shall  be collected  by the City  Clerk  the sum  of  $5.00 for  the release  of  any lien  for

delinquent  garbage  fees in addition  to the delinquent  garbage  fees plus  penalty  and interest.  This

charge  shall  be collected,  whether  release  is sought  prior  to or after  the commencement  of

foreclosure  proceedings,  to enforce  the lien  for  delinquent  garbage  assessments.

(Code  1962,  § 8-3-14)

See. 11-14.  Residential/commercial  poly-carts  and  dumpsters.

Garbage  and refuse  containers  (poly-carts/dumpsters)  shall  be provided  by the City  to

applicable  account  holders  and shall  be made  of  metal  or plastic  with  tight-fitting  covers.

Residential  customers:  The  City  shall  provide  one minimum  %  96 -gallon  eml  container  to

each applicable  account  holder  in the order  determined  by thc City  Solid  'ATaste Dcpartmcnt

except  in circumstances  detcrmincd  by the Solid  Waste  Department  that  a rcsidcncc  will  be

better  scrviced  with  a dumpstcr  Rccycling  & Waste  Collection  Center.  Additional  

containers  may  be  provided  at the  currcnt  adoptcd  rate  per month  set by Resolution.

Residential  accounts  will  be  sen'iced  one (l)  time  per  week.  (maximum  two  carts per

customcr  account.)

Commercial  containers:  The City  shall  provide  either  one minimum  9-S 96-gallon  emc

container  or size appropriate  dumpster(s)  as determined  by thc City  solid  Waste  Dcpartmcnt

Recycling  & Waste  Collection  Center.  Additional   containers  may  be provided  at



thc  currcnt  adoptcd  ratc  per  month  set  by  Resolution.  Commercial  account  service  provided  is

set by Resolution with a minimum  service requirement  of one (l)  time per week. 4
two  carts  pcr  customcr  account.)

Thc  account  holder  shall  be chargcd  at the  current  adoptcd  ratc  pcr  month  for  onc  pick  up a

week.  Thc  solid  wastc  shall  not  cxcccd  thc  rcccptaclc  capacity,  and  thc containers  lid  must  be

sccurcly  closed  whcn  not  in  usc.

(Ord.  No.  636,  Fg 1, 4-9-13;  Ord.  No.  648,  11-12-13)

Editor's note(s)-Ord.  No. 648, adopted Nov. 12, 2013, changed the title of 83 11-14 from "Solid
waste  collection  center  fees"  to  "Residential/commercial  poly-carts  and dumpsters."

Sec.  11-14.1.  [F-ees Collection  Practices.]

(a) Collcction fecs.

NumbcrRcsidcntialRcsidcntialRcsidcntialBasic

Week

dditional  Dumpster  CommercialComuicrcialDumpstcr

N/A  -  Not  applicablc/not  availablc

Dny1ririoiypz+  yrJti u
11LpluLLlll!yllL  pal) Q

Each  July  of  every  ycar  hereafter  the  fees  shall  be adjusted  automatically  to rcflcct  a fivc  pcrccnt

{h)(a)  Precollection  practices.



(1) All  residential  and commercial  users  shall  comply  with  the rules  and  regulations

established  by the City  for  the  use, care  and  location  of  solid  waste  containers  and

shall  keep  the lids  and covers  furnished  for  such  containers  closed  at all  times

except  when  they  are being  filled,  emptied  or cleaned.  All  garbage  and  refuse

containers  provided  by  the City  shall  be kept  in  neat  and  sanitary  condition  at all

times.  Containers  shall  be only  loaded  in such  a manner  as they  will  self-empty

when  inverted.

(2)  Construction  demolition  material,  including  scrap  metal,  rocks,  bricks,

organic  yard  debris,  household  furnishings,  or  large  utility  appliances,

hazardous  waste,  special  waste,  burn  barrels,  ash  waste,  medica}  or  infectious

waste,  sludge  waste  or  livestock  manure,  dead  animals,  or  mortality  waste,

asbestos  pipes,  or  residues,  automotive  fluids,  are  NOT  allowed  in residential

or  commercia}  solid  waste  containers.  Only  regular  household/business  bagged

garbage  shall  be deposited  in  the  City-owned  containers.

Q(3)No  person  shall  remove  for  their  own  use,  someone  else's  receptacle.  To do so,

shall  result  in  fines  and  penalties  and  could  be prosecuted  to the  fullest  extent  of  the

law.  It is unlawful  for  any  person  to deposit,  or  cause  to be deposited,  any  refuse  in

any  container  that  he/she  does  not  own  or is not  entitled  to use as a tenant  (article

II,  utility  department,  section  14-31,  taking  service-without  authority).  All

receptacles  are  assigned  by property  address.  Owners  of  multiple  addresses

are not  a}}owed  to exchange  or remove  to/from  their  other  properties  for

usage.

l(4)The  owner, occupant, tenant, or lessee of  each premises shall store the containers
(poly-cart)  on their  property  for  the  purpose  of  and  in such  a manner  to keep  the

containers  from  being  overturned  or upset  and  the bagged  contents  scattered.  This

will  also  keep  the sidewalks  and  sides  of  the streets  clear.   Containers

are to be placed  at the designated  pick  up area  on assigned  pick  up day  only.  It is

the responsibility  of  the account  holder  to notify  the utility  department  when

vacating  premises  so that  the  assigned   containers  will  be removed  by  the

Sanitation  Department.  Failure  to do so could  result  in  a replacement  charge  to the

account  holder.

p(5)It  is unlawful  to maliciously  damage  any  refuse  container  owned  by  the  City.  Any

person  that  damages  any  container  provided  for  the  residential  or  commercial  users

shall  be liable  to the  City  for  the  cost  of  repair  or  replacement  of  such  container  at

the  current  market  rate  including  freight  for  such  container.  It  is prohibited  for  any

person,  including  children,  to be on  or  in  sanitation  containers.  All  account  holders

shall  be responsible  for  lost,  stolen  or  burnt  poly-  carts.  Replacement  poly-carts  are

available  at the  current  adopted  rate.  The  City  shall  be entitled  to seek  restitution

for  all  maintenance  repairs  or  loss  occasioned  by  the  negligent  or  intentional  acts  of

third  parties  from  such  responsible  third  parties.  Replacement  poly-carts  will

require  a security  deposit  amount  of  which  to  be determined  by  current  replacement

rate  (article  II, utility  department,  section  14-37,  security  deposits,  payment

guarantees).



(e)(b)  Collection  day.  On  the day curbside  collection  is scheduled  for  any  premises,  or not

earlier  than  6:00  p.m.  of  the  night  before  collection  is scheduled,   container  may

be placed  at curb  unless  otherwise  specified  by  thc  City  Solid  Waste  Dcpartmcnt  Rccycling

& Waste  Collection  Center.  The   container  may  be placed  at the edge  of  the

resident's  property,  next  to the  street  and  front  of  poly-cart  facing  the  street.  There  must  be a

minimum  of  five  feet  of  clearance  from  parked  vehicles,  street  signs,  lampposts,  trees,

mailboxes  and  other  obstructions.   Containers  must  be set apart  a minimum  of  16
inches.  The  containers,  when  placed  at curbside,  shall  not interfere  with

pedestrian  or vehicular  traffic.  Accounts  will  be serviced  one (1) time  per  week.  Only

regular  household/business  bagged  garbage  shall  be deposited  in the City  owned

containers.  All  container  lids  wil}  need  to be closed  or  will  result  in  a no service/delay

of  service  and  wil}  be charged  an  additional  fee,  set  by  resolution  if  dispatched  back  on

said  route.  Collection  will  begin  at 6:30  a.m.  Monday  through  Friday  in an order

determined  by the  City  Solid  'MTastc  Dcpartmcnt  Rccycling  &  Waste  Collection  Center.  It

shall  be the responsibility  of  the resident  to deliver  the  container(s)  to such

point  for  collection  and  return  the  empty   container(s)  from  such  points  to the

usual  place  of  storage,  within  24 hours  of  collecting.  No items,  bagged,  bundled  or

otherwise  may  be placed  for  pick  up outside  of  the   container(s).  ,'ill  collcctions

madc  by  the city  for  other  than  qualificd  physically  disablcd  residents,  (see cxcmpt  service

collection),  shall  be madc  at curbsidc  from  thc  streets,  except  where  special  circumstanccs

warrant  othcrvvisc  and arc approvcd  by the City  Solid  Wastc  Dcpartmcnt.  Scc spccial

sct'iccs  and  fccs  subscctions  (d)  and  (e).

(d)  Spccial  scrviccs.  Upon  request  and  for  a fcc  (rcfcr  to subscction  (e))  A  spccial  pickup  will

be provided  for  itets  that  caru'iot  bc placcd  in poly  cart  or dumpstets  such  as trash

overflow,  discarded  furniturc,  applianccs,  yard  waste,  trees,  tree and  shrubbcry  trimmings,

ctc.  Customcts  must  call  thc  officc  and  malce  an appointmcnt  for  thc  rcmoval  of  such  itcms.

On  thc  agrccd  appointmcnt  date  and  time  customerr,  will  have  itcrns  placed  at thc  location

spccificd  by thc  Solid  uTaste  Departmcnt  and  dccmcd  acccptablc  and  safely  acccssiblc  for

thc  city  to rcmove  such  itets.  .'ill  costs  and  fccs  associatcd  with  this  spccial  scrvice  are

payablc  at the  time  of  removal  and  may  not  bc applicd  to customers  monthly  bill.

(e) Spccial scrvicc fccs. (,'ill fees subject to currcnt GRT). Customer will  bc chargcd a fee of
$50.00 (fee includes one employcc,  trash truck or standard truck, fucl charges, and
maximum  one hour  of  labor)  for any spccial services  described  above in subsection  (d)

(minimum  one  hour  charge).

."!.11 loads  picked  up will  be subjcct  to disposal  fcc  at the  current  adopted  rate  (Scc  scction  11 M).

Loads  rcquiring  spccial  or extra  equipmcnt,  morc  than  onc  cmployee  and  for  sct'iccs  rcquiring

morc  than  onc  hour  (scc  bclow):

Qn1irl  XVne4'n  linn;ymnn# ('netfllnnr
iiii  fY JI  flPll

rrsrs*  rsnta  t'nav'iiiln'uriri
JL pal  lllplJUU 4

-3-



T]l1lYlfi  haviri1r u
l/  ul  l  IP tl  uu  l(

Th

Th

[

D  rinp  l rinr1  hpnrli  haiirilr A_
llLl.ll  lULLu  LILIJII  LlLlul( ?

n+hnr  prin;iiiyrin+ A[[lJIl
(}  Llllll  Lq  ulplllLllL m

Each  July  of  cvetay year  hcrcaftcr  thc  fccs  shall  bc adjustcd  automatically  to rcflcct  a five  (5)

pcrccnt  incrcasc.

(Ord.  No.  648,  11-12-13)

See.  11-14.2  Exempt  Service  Collection  is hereby  repealed  as shown  below.

Sec.  11 11.2.  Exempt  service  collection.

Excrnpt  scrvicc  collcction  mcans  thc  rcsidcnt  is physically  unable  and  does  not  havc  anyone

else  at thc  rcsidcncc  to roll  thc  poly  cart(s)  to the  curb  or  dcsignated  location  for  collcction.

To quali:5' for Excmpt Service Collection the resident must:

a Havc  a physical  disability  preventing  you  from  rolling  thc  carts  to thc  curb  or spccificd

collcction  point.

a Submit  the completed  application  to thc Solid  Wastc  Dcpartmcnt  (!,CO  application  for

Subllll!:iSlOn  OpilOnS).

Not  have  any  other  occupant  or long  term  gucst  rcsiding  in  thc  homc  with  thc  ability  to

roll  the  cart  to the  curb  or spccificd  collcction  point.

Have  your  physician  complete  the  physician',  scction  of  thc  application  and  return  to the

Solid  Waste  Department.

Within  one week  of  receiving  the request  for  Excmpt  Scrvicc  Collcction,  a rcprcscntative

from  the Solid  Waste  Department  will  contact  you  by phonc  and schcdulc  an appointment  to

mcet  at your  residence  for  completion  of  thc  Excmpt  Collcction  Scrvicc  ,"lpplication.  i'iT  that

mccting  he,",he  will  confirm  thc  mcmbcrs  of  your  houschold  and  acccpt  or  dcny  your  application.

Upon  acceptance  of  your  application  hc/shc  will  advisc  you  of  thc  propcr  location  for  your  poly

m

Your  cart's  location  must  bc:

a In  front  of  or  bt-,idc  your  rcsidcncc.

a LCS!, than  100  fcct  from  thc  strcct.

a Visiblc  from  thc  strcct.



a Out  of  dangcr  of  any  dogs.

.'.pplicationa  must  bc rcncwcd  by  July  I of  cach  ycar.

Exempt  Scrvicc  Collection  shall  not  be provided  for  pcrsons  who  havc  not  complied  with

thc  above  requirements  of  this  scction.

Customcrs  rccciving  Excmpt  Scrvicc  Collcction  arc  subjcct  to all  fees  as statcd  in  collcction

fees,  [subscction  (a) and  spccial  sct'ices  and  fecs  subsectiots  (d)  and  (e)  as warrantcd.

(Ord.  No.  648,  11 12 13)

See. 11-14.2 Reserved.

Sec.  11-15.  Reserved.

See. 11-16.  Disposal  fees for  residential/commercial  haulers  and  for  the  roll-off  from  the

Sierra  County  Convenience  Center  is hereby  repealed  as shown  below.

Sec. 11  16.  Disposal  fees for  residential/commercial  hau  oll  off  from  the

Sierra  County  Convenience  Center.

(a)  Dcfinitions.

Construction  and  dcinolition  (C&D)  dcbris  meats  materials  gcncrally  considcrcd  to be

not  water  soluble  and nonhazardous  in nature,  including,  but  not  limitcd  to, steel,  glass,

brick,  concrete,  asphalt  roofing  materials,  pipc,  gypsum  wallboard  and lumber  from  the

construction  or destruction  of  a structurc  or projcct,  and  includes  rocks,  soil,  trcc  rcmains,

trccs  and  othcr  vcgctativc  mattcr  that  normally  rcsult  from  land  clearing.  If  construction  and

dcmolition  dcbris  is mixed  with  any  othcr  types  of  solid  waste,  it losts  its claasification  as

construction  and dcmolition  debris.  Construction  and dcmolition  dcbris  docs  not  include

asbcstos  or liquids,  including,  but  not  limited  to,  wastc  paints,  solvcnts,  scalcrs,  adhcsives  or

potcntially  hazardous  matcrials.

Fcrrous  nqctal  means  any  iron  or steel  scrap  that  has an iron  contcnt  sufficient  for

magnctic  scparation.

Municipal  solid  wastc  (MSWT')  refers  to  all solid  wastc  gcncratcd  by rcsidcntial,

cornmcrcial  and  institutional  sources,  and  all  solid  wastc  gcncratcd  at trcatmcnt  works  for

watcr  and  wastc  water,  which  are collected  and  transportcd  undcr  the arithorization  of  a

jurisdiction,  or are self  hauled.  Municipal  solid  wastc  docs  not  includc  construction  and

demolition  (C&D)  waste,  agricultural  crop  residucs,  animal  manurcs,  mining  waste  and  fuel

extraction  wastc,  forestt'  waste,  and  ash  from  industrial  boilcrs,  furnaccs  and  incinerators.

No4crrous  mctals means any scrap metals that havc valuc and arc dcrivcd from metals
othcr  than  iron  and  its alloys  in steel.  Nonferrous  mctals  includc  aluminum,  coppcr,  brass,

bronzc,  lcad,  zinc,  and  other  metals.  A  magnet  will  not  adhcrc  to nonfcrrous  mctals.

Opcrational  costs  mcans  thosc  costs  incurred  while  maintaining  the  ongoing  opcration

of  a program  or  facility,  and  do not  includc  capital  costs.



M7astc divcrsion  means  to divert  solid  wastc,  in  accordance  with  all  applicablc  fcdcral,

state and  local  requiremcnts,  from  disposal  at solid  wastc  landfills  for  rccycling,  rcusc,

composting,  or  bcncficial  usc.

H'hitc  goods  mcans  discarded,  cnamcl  coated  major  applianccs,  such  as washing

machincs,  clothes  dryers,  hot  watcr  hcatcrs,  stovcs  and  refrigcrators.

Yard  wastc  means  any  wastcs  gcncrated  from  thc  maintcnancc  or alteration  of  public,

commercial  or  residential  landscapes  including,  but  not  limitcd  to,  grass  and  yard  clippings,

lcaves,  trcc  trimmings,  pruning,  brush,  and  wccds.

(b)  On or about,'ipril  13, 2010,  thc City  Commission  of  the  City  of  Truth  or Conscqucnces

approvcd  and  adopted  Resolution  No.  25 09/10  which  imposcd  disposal  fees  for

residcntial/comrncrcial  haulcrs  and for  the roll  off  from  thc Sierra  County  Convcnicncc

Centcr.  The  City  Commission  has dctcrmincd  that  Rcsolution  No. 25 09/10  has bccn

cffcctive.  Thc  City  Commission  hcrcby  codificd  thc  provisions  of  the said  Rcsolution  into

this  scction  as dcscribed  below.

(c)  ,'. disposal  fcc of  $3.00  pcr  cubic  yard  plus  groaa  rcccipts  tax  will  bc chargcd.  ,%y

unloading  on off  days  will  rcquirc  approval  prior  to unloading  and  an additional  $25.00  plus

tax  shall  be addcd  to cach  load.

(d)  .'ill  haulem  will  bc  billcd  on  a monthly  basis.  ,"lll  collcction  fccs  shall  bc payablc  to thc  City

of  Truth  or Conscqucnccs  Utility  Office.  ,%y  dclinquent  payments  aftcr  30 days  will  rcsult

in latc  fcc  chargcs  and  may  result  in that  particular  hauler  bcing  proibitcd  from  using  the

(c)  Unloading  of  commercial  trucks  will  not  be allowcd  until  thc loads  arc inspcctcd  by the

landfill  operator  or assistant,  and all  load  slips  must  be signed  and  complctcly  fillcd.  Thc

City's  landfill  opcrator  rcscrves  the  right  to rcfusc  any  load  that  docs  not  comply  with  state

or  fcdcral  rcgulations.  ,'ill  rates  may  be adjustcd  for  fuel  or  operational  cost.

Commercial  ratc  fccs  of  $57.63  plus  gross  tax  rcceipt  will  be added  to any  comtncrcial  or

contractor  if  load',  arc  mixed.  Residents  shall  pay  the  $2.00  per  percent  of  mixcd  wastc  pcr  cubic

yi

(f)  Commercial/rcsidential  haulers  must  submit  a request  to the  City  of  Truth  or Conscqucnces

Utility  Officc  before  using  the  City  landfill.  No  hauler  will  be allowcd  to dispose  of  waste

without  ivrittcn  consent  from  thc  utility  office.

(g)  Tirc  disposal  fcts  will  be as follows:

,'iTV,  motorcyclc,  bicyclcs,  wheel  barrel's,  est.$l.OO  cach

Rcgular  car  tires  and  rcgular  truck  tirc2.00  cach

Large  irrcgular  truck  tircs3.00  each

Semi  truck,  dump  truck,  trash  truck  or bus  tireslO.OO  each

Farm  cquipmcnt  tires  or small  tractor  tircslO.OO  each

Construction  carth  moving  cquipmcnt  (consists  of)25.00  cach



Baclchoc  consists  of  two  whccl  drivc  or  four  wheel  drivc

Bobcat  or  skid  steer  loadcrs

Large  construction  forklifts

Sanitation  Dircctor  may  rcfusc  or  pcrmit  any  company,  busincss  or  rcsidcnts  from

dclivcring  tirc.

(Ord.  No.  631,  § 1, 11-27-12)

Sec.  11-16  Reserved.

Sees.  11-17-11-35.  Reserved.

ARTICLE  II.  RESERVED'

lEditor's  note(s)-Section  I of  Ord.  No. 644,  adopted  Nov.  12,  2013,  repealed  former  art.  11, §§ 11-36-11-54,

which  pertained  to litter,  and derived  from  the  1962  Code,  §§ 6-7-1-6-7-18;  Ord.  No. 481,  E) 1, adopted  Aug.

14,  2000;  Ord.  No. 632,  § 1, adopted  Nov.  27, 2012;  and Ord.  No. 649,  E) 1, adopted  Nov.  12,  2013.



Sees. 11-36-11-54.  Reserved.

Section  hvo.  Effective  date. The  provisions  of  this  Amended  Ordinance  shall  become  effective

PASSED,  APPROVED,  and  ADOPTED  by the GOVERNING  BODY  of  the CITY  OF

TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUNCES  this   day  of  2024.

ROLF  HECHLER  -  Mayor

ATTEST:

ANGELA  A.  TORRES,  CMC,  City  Clerk-Treasurer



Rolf  Hecliler
Ma)ior

Antanda  Foriister

Mayor  Pro-Tem

Merry  Jo  Falil

Commissioiier 505  Sims  St.

Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico  8 7902

P: 575-894-6673  + F: 575-894-7767
H)WH].tOr Cling. Org

Destiii)i  Mitdiell

Cominissioiier

Ingo  Hoeppner

Coininissioner

Angie  Gonzales

City  Manager

NOTICE  OF PUBLIC  HEARING

NOTICE  is hereby  given  that  the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  City  Commission  will  hold  a

Public  Hearing  during  their  regular  scheduled  meeting  on Wednesday,  July  10,  2024,  to  receive

additional  input  regarding  the  following:

Public Hearing/Discussion/Action:  Final Adoption  of Ordinance  No. 766 amending  Chapter  11
pertaining  to  Solid  Waste.

The  meeting  will  be held  in the  City  Commission  Chambers,  405  W. Third,  Truth  or

Consequences,  New  Mexico  starting  at 9:00  a.m.

Please contact  me at (575) 894-6675  or by email  at aatorres@torcnm.orz  should  you have any
questions  regarding  this  Public  Hearing.

The  agenda  may  be obtained  on Friday,  July  5, 2024  on the  city  website  calendar  at

www.torcnm.org;  by  contacting  the  City  Clerk's  Office  at 575-894-6673;  or  by  email  to:

torcclerk@torcnm.org.

/s/  Angela  A. Torres,  CMC, City Clerk

Publish  on the  following  date:

*  Sentinel-Thursday,June20,2024



Ja  ci-wor-rpti-rt-lot>coxstotitxcts
i_k

iW4j!!"'!_!N,f  A(LNUAKLQUt51FURM

r$?:>
4!d)!is4a MEETING DATE: August 14, 2024 ;%enda Item #: C7.2

' %Q%iA-4pi?-
SUBJECT: Public Hearing/Discussion/Action:  Final Adoption  of Ordinance No. 767 Authorizing  the Execution
and  delivery  of  a loan  agreement  and intercept  agreement  by and between  the  City  of  T or C, and the  New

Mexico  Finance  Authority

DEPARTMENT:  Community  Development

DATE SUBMITTED:  August  7, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Angela  Torres

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Chris  Muirhead

Summary/Background:  Final Adoption  of Ordinance No. 767 Authorizing  the Execution and delivery  of a
loan  agreement  and intercept  agreement  by and between  the  City  of  T or C, and  the  New  Mexico  Finance

Authority,  evidencing  a special  limited  obligation  of  the  governmental  unit  to pay  a principal  amount  not  to

exceed  S2,000,000, together  with  interest  thereon  for  the purpose to acquire, construct,  renovate,  furnish,
equip,  beautify  and improve  a public  safety  building  for  the  benefit  of  the  city  and its residents.

Recommendation:

Public  hearing  and final  adoption.  -

Attachments:

@ Bond  Ordinance

*  Publication

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  TBD

Click  here  to enter  text

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Approved  For  Submittal  By: €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  [g City  Clerk  €  Finance  [Z Legal  €  Other:  Click here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  g City  Manager

CITY CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolui!on  NO. CNCk Iqere tO enter ieXt.  Ord!nance  NO. -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24



STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
COUNTY OF SIERRA )  
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES  ) 

The City Commission of the City of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico, met in regular 
session in full conformity with law and the rules and regulations of the City Commission at the City 
Commission Chambers, 405 West Third Street, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico, being the 
regular meeting place of the City Commission, on the 14th day of August, 2024, at the hour of 9:00 
a.m. Upon roll call, the following members, which constitute a quorum of the City Commission, 
were found to be present: 

Mayor: 

Commissioners: 

Absent: 

Thereupon, there was officially filed with the Mayor, each Commissioner and the City Clerk 
a copy of a proposed bond ordinance in final form. 



2 
 

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO 
ORDINANCE NO. 767 

 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN 
AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO (THE 
“GOVERNMENTAL UNIT”) AND THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY 
(THE “FINANCE AUTHORITY”), EVIDENCING A SPECIAL, LIMITED 
OBLIGATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT TO PAY A PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $2,000,000, TOGETHER WITH INTEREST 
THEREON, FOR THE PURPOSE TO (1) ACQUIRE, CONSTRUCT, 
RENOVATE, FURNISH, EQUIP, BEAUTIFY AND IMPROVE A PUBLIC 
SAFETY BUILDING FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE CITY AND ITS RESIDENTS, 
(2) FUND A DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCOUNT, AND (3) PAY COSTS OF 
ISSUANCE; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT DUE UNDER THE LOAN 
AGREEMENT SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES OF THE 1/4 OF ONE 
PERCENT (0.25%) INCREMENT OF MUNICIPAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX 
IMPOSED ON ALL PERSONS ENGAGING IN BUSINESS IN THE 
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT PURSUANT TO SECTION 7-19D-9 NMSA 1978 AND 
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT ORDINANCE NO. 606 ADOPTED JUNE 14, 2011 
(THE “GROSS RECEIPTS TAX”); APPROVING THE DELEGATION OF 
AUTHORITY TO MAKE CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS REGARDING THE 
LOAN PURSUANT TO THE SUPPLEMENTAL PUBLIC SECURITIES ACT; 
PROVIDING FOR THE DISTRIBUTIONS OF THE REVENUES OF THE GROSS 
RECEIPTS TAX FROM THE STATE TAXATION AND REVENUE 
DEPARTMENT TO BE REDIRECTED TO THE FINANCE AUTHORITY OR ITS 
ASSIGNS PURSUANT TO THE INTERCEPT AGREEMENT FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE ON THE LOAN 
AGREEMENT; RATIFYING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN; REPEALING 
ALL ACTION INCONSISTENT WITH THIS ORDINANCE; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE 
INTERCEPT AGREEMENT. 

Capitalized terms used in the following recitals have the same meaning as defined in Section 
1 of this Ordinance unless the context requires otherwise. 

 WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a legally and regularly created, established, 
organized and existing municipality under the general laws of the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined and hereby determines that the Project 
may be financed with amounts borrowed under the Loan Agreement and that it is in the best interest 
of the Governmental Unit and its residents that the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement be 
executed and delivered and that the financing of the Project take place by executing and delivering 
the Loan Agreement; and 
 



3 
 

 WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit may use the Pledged Revenues to finance the Project 
and the Project will provide for the public health, peace and safety of the Governmental Unit and its 
residents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit has imposed a one-fourth of one percent (1/4%) 
increment of municipal gross receipts tax imposed on all persons engaging in business in the 
Governmental Unit pursuant to Ordinance No. 606, adopted June 14, 2011, with an effective date of 
January 1 2012, which tax equals, subject to the exemptions specified in Section 7-19D-9 NMSA 
1978, one-fourth of one percent (1/4%) of the gross receipts of all persons engaging in business in 
the Governmental Unit for the month in which the tax is distributed to the Governmental Unit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined that it may lawfully pledge the Pledged 
Revenues for the payment of amounts due under the Loan Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, except as described in the Term Sheet, the Pledged Revenues have not 
heretofore been pledged to secure the payment of any obligation which is currently outstanding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Loan Agreement shall be a special, limited obligation of the Governmental 
Unit, payable solely from the Pledged Revenues and shall not constitute a general obligation of the 
Governmental Unit, or a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the Governmental Unit or the 
State; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to provide that distributions of the Pledged 
Revenues be redirected to the Finance Authority or its assigns pursuant to an Intercept Agreement 
between the Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority (the “Intercept Agreement”) for the 
payment of amounts due under the Loan Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Loan Agreement shall be executed and delivered pursuant to Sections  
3-31-1 through 3-31-12, NMSA 1978, as amended, and with an irrevocable first lien, but not 
necessarily an exclusive first lien, on the Pledged Revenues; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body intends by this Ordinance to authorize the execution and 
delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement in the amount and for the purposes set 
forth herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there have been presented to the Governing Body and there presently are on 
file with the City Clerk this Ordinance and the forms of the Loan Agreement and Intercept 
Agreement, which are incorporated by reference and considered to be a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby determines that the Project to be financed with the 
Loan is to be used for governmental purposes of the Governmental Unit and will not be used for 
purposes which would cause the Loan Agreement to be deemed a “private activity bond” as defined 
by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 6-14-8 through 6-14-12 NMSA 1978, as amended (the 
“Supplemental Public Securities Act”), the Commission is authorized to adopt an ordinance 
delegating to one or more of its members, Governmental Unit officers, or Governmental Unit 



4 
 

employees, the authority to sign a contract for the purchase or sale of public securities or to accept 
a binding bid for public securities and to determine the sale for public securities to be issued so 
long as such sale is within the parameters established by an authorizing ordinance adopted in 
conformity with the Supplemental Public Securities Act; and  

WHEREAS, in order to, among other things, allow the Governmental Unit flexibility in 
setting the pricing date of the Loan and optimize debt service costs to the Governmental Unit, the 
Governing Body desires to grant to the Mayor, Manager, Finance Director or any other employee of 
the Village when designated by a certificate signed by the Mayor (collectively, the “Designated 
Officers”), the authority (a) to determine any or all of the following terms of the Loan: (i) the 
interest and principal payment dates, (ii) the principal amounts, denominations, and maturity dates, 
(iii) the sale prices, (iv) the interest rates, (v) the interest payment periods, (vi) the redemption and 
tender provisions, (vii) the procurement of municipal bond insurance and any related covenants or 
agreements, (viii) the creation of any capitalized interest or debt service reserve funds, including the 
size and funding of such funds, and (ix) the amount of underwriting discount, if any; and (b) to 
make any changes with respect thereto from those terms which were before the Governing Body at 
the time of adoption of this Ordinance, provided such terms do not exceed the parameters set forth 
for such terms in this Ordinance (the “Parameters,” as further described herein); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit will approve the specific terms of the sale of the Loan 

in the Sale Certificate; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all required authorizations, consents and approvals in connection with (i) the 
use and pledge of the Pledged Revenues to the Finance Authority (or its assigns) for the payment of 
amounts due under the Loan Agreement, (ii) the use of the proceeds of the Loan Agreement to 
finance the Project, and (iii) the authorization, execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and 
Intercept Agreement which are required to have been obtained by the date of this Ordinance, have 
been obtained or are reasonably expected to be obtained. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES THAT:  
 

Section 1. Definitions.  As used in the Ordinance, the following terms shall, for all 
purposes, have the meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise (such 
meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and the plural forms of the terms defined): 

“Act” means the general laws of the State, including Sections 3-31-1 through 3-31-12, 
NMSA 1978, as amended, Sections 6-14-8 through 6-14-12, NMSA 1978, as amended,  Sections 6-
21-1 through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978, as amended, and Sections 7-19D-9, NMSA 1978, as amended, 
and enactments of the Governing Body relating to the Loan Agreement and the Intercept 
Agreement, including this Ordinance. 

“Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement” means the total principal and interest 
payments due and payable pursuant to the Loan Agreement and on all Parity Obligations secured by 
a pledge of the Pledged Revenues for any one Fiscal Year. 

“Authorized Officers” means the Mayor, City Manager, and Finance Director of the 
Governmental Unit. 



5 
 

“Bonds” means public project revolving fund revenue bonds, if any, issued hereafter by the 
Finance Authority to fund or reimburse the Loan Agreement. 

“Closing Date” means the date of execution, delivery and funding of the Loan Agreement. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable 
regulations thereunder. 

“Completion Date” means the date of final payment of the cost of the Project. 
 
“Distributing State Agency” means the department or agency of the State, as described on 

the Term Sheet, authorized to distribute the Pledged Revenues on behalf of the Governmental Unit. 
 
“Expenses” means the cost of execution of the Loan Agreement and the costs of issuance of 

the Bonds, if any, and the periodic and regular fees and expenses incurred by the Finance Authority 
and the Trustee in administering the Loan Agreement, including legal fees. 

 
“Finance Authority” means the New Mexico Finance Authority. 

“Finance Authority Debt Service Account” means the debt service account in the name of 
the Governmental Unit established under the Indenture and held by the Finance Authority to pay 
principal and interest on the Loan Agreement as the same become due. 

“Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on July 1 in each calendar year and ending on 
the last day of June of the next succeeding calendar year, or any other twelve-month period which 
any appropriate authority may hereafter establish for the Governmental Unit as its fiscal year. 

“Governing Body” means the City Commission of the Governmental Unit, or any future 
successor governing body of the Governmental Unit. 

“Governmental Unit” means the City of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 

“Herein,” “hereby,” “hereunder,” “hereof,” “hereinabove” and “hereafter” refer to the entire 
Ordinance and not solely to the particular section or paragraph of the Ordinance in which such word 
is used. 

“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of June 1, 1995, as 
amended and supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, or the 
Subordinated General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as supplemented, 
by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as determined by the Finance Authority 
pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture (as defined in the Indenture). 

“Intercept Agreement” means the Intercept Agreement dated the Closing Date between the 
Governmental Unit and Finance Authority providing for the direct payment by the Distributing 
State Agency to the Finance Authority of Pledged Revenues in amounts sufficient to pay principal 
and interest due on the Loan Agreement, and any amendments or supplements to the Intercept 
Agreement. 



6 
 

“Loan” means the funds to be loaned to the Governmental Unit by the Finance Authority 
pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 

“Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement dated the Closing Date between the Finance 
Authority and the Governmental Unit which provides for the financing of the Project and requires 
payments by or on behalf of the Governmental Unit to the Finance Authority and/or the Trustee and 
any amendments or supplements thereto, and including the exhibits attached to the Loan 
Agreement. 

“Loan Agreement Principal Amount” means the original principal amount of the Loan 
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet. 

“Loan Agreement Reserve Account” means the loan agreement reserve account in the name 
of the Governmental Unit established under the Indenture, funded from the proceeds of the Loan 
Agreement, and administered by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement” means, with respect to the Loan, the amount 
shown as the Loan Agreement Reserve Account Deposit on the Term Sheet, which amount shall not 
to exceed the least of (i) ten percent (10%) of the Loan Agreement Principal Amount, (ii) 125% of 
the average annual principal and interest requirements under the Loan Agreement, or (iii) the 
maximum annual principal and interest requirements under the Loan Agreement.  

“NMSA 1978” means the New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978 compilation, as amended 
and supplemented. 

“Ordinance” means this Ordinance as adopted by the Governing Body on August 14, 2024, 
approving the Loan Agreement and pledging the Pledged Revenues to the payment of the Loan 
Agreement, as amended from time to time. 

“Parity Obligations” means the Loan Agreement and any other obligations, now or hereafter 
issued or incurred, payable from or secured by a lien or pledge of the Pledged Revenues and issued 
with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on parity with the Loan Agreement, including those 
obligations described on the Term Sheet, if any. 

“Pledged Revenues” means the revenues derived from the one-fourth of one percent (1/4%) 
increment of municipal gross receipts tax imposed on all persons engaging in business in the 
Governmental Unit by Ordinance No. 606, adopted June 14, 2011, with an effective date of January 
1, 2012, which tax equals, subject to the exemptions specified in Section 7-19D-9 NMSA 1978, 
one-fourth of one percent (1/4%) of the gross receipts of all persons engaging in business in the 
Governmental Unit for the month in which the tax is distributed to the Governmental Unit. 

“Program Account” means the account in the name of the Governmental Unit established 
pursuant to the Indenture and held by the Trustee for the deposit of the net proceeds of the Loan 
Agreement for disbursal to the Governmental Unit for payment of the costs of the Project. 

“Project” means (i) acquiring, constructing, furnishing, equipping, beautifying, or making 
improvements to a public safety building for the City, (ii) funding the Loan Agreement Reserve 
Account, and (iii) paying Expenses. 



7 
 

“Sale Certificate” means one or more certificates executed by the Mayor, Manager or 
Finance Director dated on or before the date of delivery of the Loan, setting forth the following 
final terms of the Loan: (i) the interest and principal payment dates; (ii) the principal amounts, 
denominations and maturity amortization; (iii) the sale prices; (iv) the interest rate or rates; (v) the 
interest payment periods; (vi) the redemption and tender provisions; (vii) the creation of any 
capitalized interest fund or a debt service reserve account, including the size and funding of such 
fund(s); (viii) the amount of underwriting discount, if any; and (ix) the final terms of agreements, if 
any, with agents or service providers required for the purchase, sale, issuance and delivery of the 
Loan, all subject to the parameters and conditions contained in this Ordinance; provided that in no 
event shall the Sale Certificate specify a net effective interest rate on the Loan in excess of the 
statutory maximum of twelve percent (12%) per annum. 

“State” means the State of New Mexico. 
 
“Term Sheet” means Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement. 

“Trustee” means BOKF, NA, or any successor trustee company, national or state banking 
association or financial institution at the time appointed Trustee by the Finance Authority. 

Section 2. Ratification.  All action heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the provisions 
of this Ordinance) by the Governing Body and officers of the Governmental Unit directed toward 
the Project and the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement be, 
and the same hereby are, ratified, approved and confirmed. 

Section 3. Authorization of the Project, the Loan Agreement, and the Intercept 
Agreement.  The Project and the method of financing the Project through execution and delivery of 
the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement are hereby authorized and ordered.  The Project is 
for the benefit of the Governmental Unit. 

Section 4. Findings.  The Governmental Unit hereby declares that it has considered all 
relevant information and data and hereby makes the following findings: 

A. The Project is needed to meet the needs of the Governmental Unit and its 
residents and the issuance, execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement is necessary and 
advisable. 

B. Moneys available and on hand for the Project from all sources other than the 
Loan are not sufficient to defray the cost of the Project. 

C. The Pledged Revenues may lawfully be pledged to secure the payment of 
amounts due under the Loan Agreement. 

D. It is economically feasible to defray, in whole or in part, the costs of the 
Project by the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement. 

E. The Project and the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the 
Intercept Agreement pursuant to the Act to provide funds for the financing of the Project are 



8 
 

necessary and in the interest of the public health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the 
Governmental Unit.   

F. The Governmental Unit will finance the Project, in whole or in part, with the 
net proceeds of the Loan. 

G. Other than as described in the Term Sheet, the Governmental Unit does not 
have any outstanding obligations payable from Pledged Revenues which it has incurred or will 
incur prior to the initial execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement. 

H. The net effective interest rate on the Loan shall be less than 12% per annum, 
the maximum rate permitted by State law as specified in the Sale Certificate. 

 Section 5. Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement - Authorization and Detail. 

A. Authorization.  This Ordinance has been adopted by the affirmative vote of a 
three-fourths majority of all of the members of the Governing Body.  For the purpose of protecting 
the public health, conserving the property, protecting the general welfare and prosperity of the 
residents of the Governmental Unit and completing the Project, it is hereby declared necessary that 
the Governmental Unit, pursuant to the Act, execute and deliver the Loan Agreement and the 
Intercept Agreement evidencing a special, limited obligation of the Governmental Unit to pay a 
principal amount of not to exceed $2,000,000, plus interest, and the execution and delivery of the 
Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement are hereby authorized.  The terms of the Loan shall 
be approved in the Sale Certificate. The Governmental Unit shall use the proceeds of the Loan to 
finance the Project.  The final maturity of the Loan shall not be greater than twenty years. 

B. Detail.  The Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement shall be in 
substantially the forms presented at the meeting of the Governing Body at which this Ordinance was 
adopted.  The Loan shall be in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $2,000,000, shall be 
payable in installments of principal due on the dates designated in Exhibit “B” to the Loan 
Agreement and bear interest payable on the dates and at the rates designated in Exhibit “B” to the 
Loan Agreement. 

 Section 6. Approval of Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement.  The forms of the 
Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement as presented at the meeting of the Governing Body at 
which this Ordinance was adopted are hereby approved.  Authorized Officers are hereby 
individually authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Loan Agreement and the Intercept 
Agreement with such changes, insertions and omissions as are consistent with this Ordinance and 
the Sale Certificate and as may be approved by such individual Authorized Officers, and the City 
Clerk is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Governmental Unit on the Loan Agreement and 
the Intercept Agreement and attest the same.  The execution of the Loan Agreement and the 
Intercept Agreement by an Authorized Officer shall be conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 Section 7. Special Limited Obligation.  The Loan Agreement shall be secured by the 
pledge of the Pledged Revenues as set forth in the Loan Agreement and shall be payable solely from 
the Pledged Revenues.  The Loan Agreement, together with interest thereon and other obligations of 
the Governmental Unit thereunder, shall be a special, limited obligation of the Governmental Unit, 
payable solely from the Pledged Revenues as provided in this Ordinance and the Loan Agreement 



9 
 

and shall not constitute a general obligation of the Governmental Unit or the State, and the holders 
of the Loan Agreement may not look to any general or other fund of the Governmental Unit for 
payment of the obligations thereunder.  Nothing contained in this Ordinance, the Sale Certificate, 
the Loan Agreement, or any other instruments, shall be construed as obligating the Governmental 
Unit (except with respect to the application of the Pledged Revenues), as incurring a pecuniary 
liability or a charge upon the general credit of the Governmental Unit or against its taxing power, 
nor shall a breach of any agreement contained in this Ordinance, the Loan Agreement, or any other 
instrument impose any pecuniary liability upon the Governmental Unit or any charge upon its 
general credit or against its taxing power.  The Loan Agreement shall never constitute an 
indebtedness of the Governmental Unit within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or 
statutory limitation and shall never constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the 
Governmental Unit or a charge against its general credit or taxing power.  Nothing herein shall 
prevent the Governmental Unit from applying other funds of the Governmental Unit legally 
available therefor to payments required by the Loan Agreement, in its sole and absolute discretion. 

 Section 8. Disposition of Proceeds:  Completion of the Project. 

A. Program Account, Loan Agreement Reserve Account, and Finance Authority 
Debt Service Account.  The Governmental Unit hereby consents to creation of the Finance 
Authority Debt Service Account to be held and maintained by the Finance Authority and to the 
Program Account and Loan Agreement Reserve Account to be held and maintained by the Trustee 
pursuant to the Indenture, each in connection with the Loan.  The Governmental Unit hereby 
approves the deposit of the proceeds of the Loan Agreement in the Program Account and Loan 
Agreement Reserve Account. 

 The proceeds derived from the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement shall 
be deposited promptly upon the receipt thereof in the Program Account and the Loan Agreement 
Reserve Account, all as provided in the Loan Agreement, Sale Certificate and the Indenture. 

 Until the Completion Date, the money in the Program Account shall be used and 
paid out solely for the Project in compliance with applicable law and the provisions of the Loan 
Agreement and the Indenture. 

 The Governmental Unit will complete the Project with all due diligence. 

B. Completion of the Project.  Upon the Completion Date, the Governmental 
Unit shall execute and send to the Finance Authority a certificate stating that payment for the 
Project has been completed.  As soon as practicable after the Completion Date, and, in any event, 
not more than sixty (60) days from the Completion Date, any balance remaining in the Program 
Account shall be transferred and deposited into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account, as 
provided in the Loan Agreement and the Indenture. 

C. Finance Authority and Trustee Not Responsible.  The Finance Authority and 
the Trustee shall in no manner be responsible for the application or disposal by the Governmental 
Unit or by its officers of the funds derived from the Loan Agreement or of any other funds herein 
designated. 



10 
 

 Section 9. Deposit of Pledged Revenues, Distributions of the Pledged Revenues and 
Flow of Funds. 

A. Deposit of Pledged Revenues.  Pursuant to the Intercept Agreement, the 
Pledged Revenues shall be paid directly by the Distributing State Agency to the Finance Authority 
for deposit in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account and remittance to the Trustee in an 
amount sufficient to pay principal, interest, premium, if any, and other amounts due under the Loan 
Agreement. 

 
B. Termination on Deposits to Maturity.  No payment shall be made into the 

Finance Authority Debt Service Account if the amounts in the Finance Authority Debt Service 
Account and Loan Agreement Reserve Account total a sum at least equal to the entire aggregate 
amount to become due as to principal and interest on, and any other amounts due under, the Loan 
Agreement in which case moneys in such accounts in an amount at least equal to such principal and 
interest requirements shall be used solely to pay such obligations as the same become due, and any 
moneys in excess thereof in such account shall be transferred to the Governmental Unit and used as 
provided below. 

C. Use of Surplus Revenues.  After making all the payments hereinabove 
required to be made by this Section, any moneys remaining in the Finance Authority Debt Service 
Account shall be transferred to the Governmental Unit on a timely basis and shall be applied to any 
other lawful purpose, including, but not limited to, the payment of any Parity Obligations or bonds 
or obligations subordinate and junior to the Loan Agreement, or other purposes authorized by the 
Governmental Unit, the Constitution, and laws of the State, as the Governmental Unit may from 
time to time determine. 

 Section 10. Lien on Pledged Revenues.  Pursuant to this Ordinance and the Loan 
Agreement, the Pledged Revenues are hereby authorized to be pledged to, and are hereby pledged, 
and the Governmental Unit grants a security interest therein for, the payment of the principal, 
interest, and any other amounts due under the Loan Agreement subject to the uses thereof permitted 
by and the priorities set forth in this Ordinance.  The Loan Agreement constitutes an irrevocable and 
first lien, but not necessarily an exclusive first lien, on the Pledged Revenues with the lien thereon 
of the Parity Obligations as set forth herein and in the Loan Agreement.  The Governmental Unit 
shall not create a lien on the Pledged Revenues superior to that of the Loan Agreement. 

 Section 11. Authorized Officers.  Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized 
and directed to execute and deliver any and all papers, instruments, opinions, affidavits and other 
documents and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for 
carrying out this Ordinance, the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement and all other transactions 
contemplated hereby and thereby.  Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized to do all 
acts and things required of them by this Ordinance, the Loan Agreement and the Intercept 
Agreement for the full, punctual and complete performance of all the terms, covenants and 
agreements contained in this Ordinance, the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, 
including but not limited to, the execution and delivery of closing documents in connection with the 
execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, and the publication of 
the summary of this Ordinance set out in Section 18 of this Ordinance (with such changes, additions 
and deletions as may be necessary). 



11 
 

Pursuant to the Supplemental Public Securities Act, Section 6-14-8 et seq., NMSA 1978, the 
Mayor and City Manager are each hereby delegated authority to execute the Sale Certificate and to 
determine any or all of the final terms of the Loan, subject to the parameters and conditions 
contained in this Ordinance. The Mayor or City Manager shall present the Sale Certificate to the 
Governing Body in a timely manner, before or after execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement, 
at a regularly scheduled public meeting of the Governing Body. 

 Section 12. Amendment of Ordinance.  Prior to the date of the initial delivery of the Loan 
Agreement to the Finance Authority, the provisions of this Ordinance may be supplemented or 
amended by ordinance or resolution of the Governing Body with respect to any changes which are 
not inconsistent with the substantive provisions of this Ordinance.  This Ordinance may be amended 
by ordinance of the Governing Body without receipt by the Governmental Unit of any additional 
consideration, but only with the prior written consent of the Finance Authority. 

 Section 13. Reimbursement.  The Governmental Unit presently intends and reasonably 
expects to finance the acquisition and improvement of the Project with moneys currently held in 
Governmental Unit’s General Fund. The Governmental Unit presently intends and reasonably 
expects to participate in a tax-exempt borrowing within 18 months of the date of the expenditure of 
moneys on the Project or the date upon which the Project is placed in service or abandoned, 
whichever is later (but in no event more than three years after the date of the original expenditure of 
such moneys), and to allocate an amount not to exceed $1,680,000 of the proceeds thereof to 
reimburse the Governmental Unit for its prior expenditures in connection with the Project. 

 Section 14. Ordinance Irrepealable.  After the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement 
have been executed and delivered, this Ordinance shall be and remain irrepealable until all 
obligations due under the Loan Agreement shall be fully paid, canceled and discharged, as provided 
therein. 

 Section 15. Severability Clause.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 
Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

 Section 16. Repealer Clause.  All bylaws, orders, resolutions and ordinances, or parts 
thereof, inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency.  This 
repealer shall not be construed to revive any bylaw, order, resolution or ordinance, or part thereof, 
heretofore repealed. 

 Section 17. Effective Date.  Upon due adoption of this Ordinance, it shall be recorded in 
the book of the Governmental Unit kept for that purpose, authenticated by the signatures of the 
Mayor and the City Clerk of the Governmental Unit, and the title and general summary of the 
subject matter contained in this Ordinance (set out in Section 18 below) shall be published in a 
newspaper which maintains an office and is of general circulation in the Governmental Unit, or 
posted in accordance with law, and such Ordinance shall be in full force and effect thereafter, in 
accordance with law. 



12 
 

 Section 18. General Summary for Publication.  Pursuant to the general laws of the State, 
the title and a general summary of the subject matter contained in this Ordinance shall be published 
in substantially the following form: 
 

(Form of Summary of Ordinance for Publication) 
 

City of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 
Notice of Adoption of Ordinance 

 
 Notice is hereby given of the title and of a general summary of the subject matter contained 
in Ordinance No. 767 duly adopted and approved by the City Commission of the City of Truth or 
Consequences, New Mexico, on August 14, 2024.  A complete copy of the Ordinance is available 
for public inspection during the normal and regular business hours of the City Clerk, 214 S. Love 
Street, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 
 

The title of the Ordinance is: 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN 
AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO (THE “GOVERNMENTAL 
UNIT”) AND THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE “FINANCE 
AUTHORITY”), EVIDENCING A SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE 
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT TO PAY A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $2,000,000, TOGETHER WITH INTEREST THEREON, FOR THE 
PURPOSE TO (1) ACQUIRE, CONSTRUCT, RENOVATE, FURNISH, EQUIP, 
BEAUTIFY AND IMPROVE A PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING FOR THE 
BENEFIT OF THE CITY AND ITS RESIDENTS, (2) FUND A DEBT SERVICE 
RESERVE ACCOUNT, AND (3) PAY COSTS OF ISSUANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
THE PAYMENT DUE UNDER THE LOAN AGREEMENT SOLELY FROM THE 
REVENUES OF THE 1/4 OF ONE PERCENT (0.25%) INCREMENT OF 
MUNICIPAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX IMPOSED ON ALL PERSONS 
ENGAGING IN BUSINESS IN THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 7-19D-9 NMSA 1978 AND GOVERNMENTAL UNIT ORDINANCE 
NO. 606 ADOPTED JUNE 14, 2011 (THE “GROSS RECEIPTS TAX”); 
APPROVING THE DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO MAKE CERTAIN 
DETERMINATIONS REGARDING THE LOAN PURSUANT TO THE 
SUPPLEMENTAL PUBLIC SECURITIES ACT; PROVIDING FOR THE 
DISTRIBUTIONS OF THE REVENUES OF THE GROSS RECEIPTS TAX FROM 
THE STATE TAXATION AND REVENUE DEPARTMENT TO BE 
REDIRECTED TO THE FINANCE AUTHORITY OR ITS ASSIGNS PURSUANT 
TO THE INTERCEPT AGREEMENT FOR THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND 
INTEREST DUE ON THE LOAN AGREEMENT; RATIFYING ACTIONS 
HERETOFORE TAKEN; REPEALING ALL ACTION INCONSISTENT WITH 
THIS ORDINANCE; AND AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS 
IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE LOAN 
AGREEMENT AND THE INTERCEPT AGREEMENT.  

 



13 
 

 A summary of the subject matter of the Ordinance is contained in its title.  This notice 
constitutes compliance with Section 6-14-6, NMSA 1978. 
 

(End of Form of Summary for Publication) 
 

(Signature Page Follows) 



14 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 14th DAY OF AUGUST, 2024. 
 
 
      CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, 

NEW MEXICO 
 
 
             
ATTEST:     Rolf Hechler, Mayor 
 
 
      
Angela A. Torres, City Clerk    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

$1,680,000 
 
 

LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
 
 

dated 
 
 
 

[CLOSING DATE] 
 
 
 

by and between the 
 
 

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 

And the 
 
 

CITY  OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Certain interests of the New Mexico Finance Authority under this Loan Agreement 
may be assigned to BOKF, NA, as trustee under an Indenture, as defined in Article 
I of this Loan Agreement. 



1 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

LOAN AGREEMENT 

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT dated [CLOSING DATE] is entered into by and between the 
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Finance Authority”), and the CITY  OF TRUTH 
OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO (the “Governmental Unit”), a political subdivision duly 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Mexico (the “State”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority is a public body politic and corporate constituting a 
governmental instrumentality, separate and apart from the State, duly organized and created under 
and pursuant to the laws of the State, particularly Section 6-21-1 et seq., NMSA 1978, as amended 
(the “Finance Authority Act”); and 

WHEREAS, one of the purposes of the Finance Authority Act is to implement a program 
to permit qualified entities, such as the Governmental Unit, to enter into agreements with the 
Finance Authority to facilitate financing of public projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a political subdivision duly organized and existing 
under and pursuant to the laws of the State and is a qualified entity under the Finance Authority 
Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Governmental Unit has determined that it is in the 
best interests of the Governmental Unit and its residents that the Governmental Unit enter into this 
Loan Agreement with the Finance Authority and accept a loan from the Finance Authority to 
finance the costs of the acquisition, construction and renovation of an existing building for law 
enforcement for the Governmental Unit as more fully described on the Term Sheet attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the Governmental Unit to use the Pledged Revenues to 
finance the Project and to enter into this Loan Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a disadvantaged qualified entity within the meaning 
of Section 8(B)(4)(b) of the Finance Authority’s Amended Rules and Regulations Governing the 
Public Project Revolving Fund Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority has determined that the Project is important to the 
overall capital needs of the residents of the State and that the Project will directly enhance the 
health and safety of the residents of the Governmental Unit; and 

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit has entered into the Intercept Agreement by and 
between the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit whereby the Pledged Revenues due to 
the Governmental Unit from the Distributing State Agency are intercepted by the Finance 
Authority, or the Trustee, as its assignee, to make payments due under this Loan Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority may assign and transfer this Loan Agreement to the 
Trustee pursuant to the Indenture; and 



2 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

WHEREAS, except as described on the Term Sheet, the Pledged Revenues have not been 
pledged or hypothecated in any manner or for any purpose at the time of the execution and delivery 
of this Loan Agreement, and the Governmental Unit desires to pledge the Pledged Revenues 
toward the payment of this Loan Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the obligation of the Governmental Unit hereunder shall constitute a special, 
limited obligation of the Governmental Unit, limited to the Pledged Revenues, and shall not 
constitute a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Governmental Unit or a charge against 
the general credit or ad valorem taxing power of the Governmental Unit or the State; and 

WHEREAS, the execution, performance and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the 
Intercept Agreement have been authorized, approved and directed by all necessary and appropriate 
action of the Governing Body pursuant to the Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the execution and performance of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept 
Agreement have been authorized, approved and directed by all necessary and appropriate action 
of the Finance Authority. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises 
and covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Capitalized terms defined in the foregoing recitals shall have the same meaning when used 
in this Loan Agreement unless the context clearly requires otherwise.  Capitalized terms not 
defined in the recitals and defined in this Article I shall have the same meaning when used in this 
Loan Agreement including the foregoing recitals, unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 

“Act” means the general laws of the State, including Sections 3-31-1 through 3-31-12, and 
Sections 7-19D-9 and 7-1-6.15, NMSA 1978, as amended, and enactments of the Governing Body 
relating to this Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement, including the Ordinance.  

“Additional Payment Obligations” mean payments in addition to Loan Agreement 
Payments required by this Loan Agreement, including, without limitation, payments required to 
replenish the Loan Agreement Reserve Account and payments required pursuant to the provisions 
of Article IX and Article X hereof. 

“Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement” means the total principal, interest, and 
premium payments, if any, due and payable pursuant to this Loan Agreement and on all Parity 
Obligations secured by a pledge of the Pledged Revenues for any one Fiscal Year. 

“Authorized Officers” means, in the case of the Governmental Unit, Mayor, City Manager 
and City Clerk-Treasurer, and, in the case of the Finance Authority, the Chair, Vice-Chair and 
Secretary of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer or any other officer or 
employee of the Finance Authority designated in writing by an Authorized Officer.  



3 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

“Blended Interest Rate” means the rate of interest on this Loan Agreement as shown on the 
Term Sheet. 

“Bond Counsel” means nationally recognized bond counsel experienced in matters of 
municipal law, satisfactory to the Trustee and listed in the list of municipal bond attorneys, as 
published semiannually by The Bond Buyer’s Municipal Marketplace, or any successor 
publication, acting as loan counsel to the Finance Authority. 

“Bonds” means public project revolving fund revenue bonds, if any, issued hereafter by 
the Finance Authority to fund or reimburse this Loan Agreement. 

“Closing Date” means the date of execution, delivery and funding of this Loan Agreement 
as shown on the Term Sheet. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable 
regulations thereunder. 

“Distributing State Agency” means the department or agency of the State, as described on 
the Term Sheet, authorized to distribute the Pledged Revenues to or on behalf of the Governmental 
Unit. 

“Event of Default” means one or more events of default as defined in Section 10.1 of this 
Loan Agreement. 

“Expenses” means the costs of issuance of this Loan Agreement and the Bonds, if any, and 
periodic and regular fees and expenses incurred by the Finance Authority in administering this 
Loan Agreement, including legal fees.  

“Finance Authority Debt Service Account” means the debt service account established in 
the name of the Governmental Unit within the Debt Service Fund, as defined in the Indenture, held 
and administered by the Finance Authority to pay principal and interest, if any, on this Loan 
Agreement as the same become due.  

“Fiscal Year” means the period beginning on July 1 in each calendar year and ending on 
the last day of June of the next succeeding calendar year, or any other twelve-month period which 
any appropriate authority may hereafter establish for the Governmental Unit as its fiscal year. 

“Governing Body” means the duly organized City Commission of the Governmental Unit, 
and any successor governing body of the Governmental Unit. 

“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of June 1, 1995, as 
amended and supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor 
trustee, or the Subordinated General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as 
supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor trustee, as 
determined by the Finance Authority pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture 
(as defined in the Indenture). 



4 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

“Independent Accountant” means: (i) an accountant employed by the State and under the 
supervision of the State Auditor; or (ii) any certified public accountant or firm of such accountants 
duly licensed to practice and practicing as such under the laws of the State, appointed and paid by 
the Governmental Unit who: (a) is, in fact, independent and not under the domination of the 
Governmental Unit; (b) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, with the 
Governmental Unit; and (c) is not connected with the Governmental Unit as an officer or employee 
of the Governmental Unit, but who may be regularly retained to make annual or similar audits of 
the books or records of the Governmental Unit. 

“Intercept Agreement” means the Intercept Agreement dated [CLOSING DATE], between 
the Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority providing for the direct payment by the 
Distributing State Agency to the Finance Authority of the Pledged Revenues in amounts sufficient 
to pay Loan Agreement Payments, and any amendments or supplements to the Intercept 
Agreement. 

“Interest Component” means the portion of each Loan Agreement Payment paid as interest 
on this Loan Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto. 

“Loan” means the funds in the Loan Agreement Principal Amount to be loaned to the 
Governmental Unit by the Finance Authority pursuant to this Loan Agreement. 

“Loan Agreement” means this loan agreement and any amendments or supplements hereto, 
including the exhibits attached to this loan agreement. 

“Loan Agreement Balance” means, as of any date of calculation, the Loan Agreement 
Principal Amount less the aggregate principal amount paid or prepaid pursuant to the provisions 
of this Loan Agreement. 

“Loan Agreement Payment” means, collectively, the Principal Component and the Interest 
Component, if any, to be paid by the Governmental Unit as payment of this Loan Agreement as 
shown on Exhibit “B” hereto. 

“Loan Agreement Payment Date” means each date a payment is due on this Loan 
Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto. 

“Loan Agreement Principal Amount” means the original principal amount of this Loan 
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet. 

“Loan Agreement Reserve Account” means the loan agreement reserve account established 
in the name of the Governmental Unit funded from the proceeds of this Loan Agreement and 
administered by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement” means, with respect to the Loan, the amount 
shown as the Loan Agreement Reserve Account deposit on the Term Sheet which amount does 
not exceed the least of: (i) ten percent (10%) of the Loan Agreement Principal Amount; (ii) one 
hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the average annual principal and interest requirements 
under the Loan Agreement; or (iii) the maximum annual principal and interest requirements under 
the Loan Agreement. 



5 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

“Loan Agreement Term” means the term of this Loan Agreement as provided under 
Article III of this Loan Agreement. 

“NMSA” means the New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978 compilation, as amended and 
supplemented. 

“Ordinance” means the Governmental Unit Ordinance No. ________ adopted by the 
Governing Body on August 14, 2024 approving this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement 
and pledging the Pledged Revenues to the payment of the Loan Agreement Payments as shown on 
the Term Sheet. 

“Parity Obligations” means this Loan Agreement, and any other obligations, now 
outstanding or hereafter issued or incurred, payable from or secured by a lien or pledge of the 
Pledged Revenues and issued with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on a parity with this Loan 
Agreement, including any such obligations shown on the Term Sheet. 

“Permitted Investments” means securities which are at the time legal investments of the 
Governmental Unit for the money to be invested, as applicable, including but not limited to the 
following, if permitted by law:  (i) securities that are issued by the United States government or 
by its agencies or instrumentalities and that are either direct obligations of the United States, the 
federal home loan mortgage association, the federal national mortgage association, the federal 
farm credit bank, federal home loan banks or the student loan marketing association or that are 
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government; (ii) negotiable securities of the 
State; (iii) money market funds which invest solely in obligations described in clause (i) above 
which are rated in the highest rating category by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or S&P Global 
Ratings; and (iv) the State Treasurer’s short-term investment fund created pursuant to Section 6-
10-10.1, NMSA 1978, as amended, and operated, maintained and invested by the office of the 
State Treasurer. 

“Pledged Revenues” means the revenues derived from the one-fourth of one percent (1/4%) 
increment of municipal gross receipts tax imposed on all persons engaging in business in the 
Governmental Unit by Ordinance No. 606, adopted June 14, 2011, with an effective date of 
January 1, 2012, which tax equals, subject to the exemptions specified in Section 7-19D-9 NMSA 
1978, one-fourth of one percent (1/4%) of the gross receipts of all persons engaging in business in 
the Governmental Unit for the month in which the tax is distributed to the Governmental Unit.  
Pledged Revenues also includes (i) the portion of the gross receipts tax distribution to the 
Governmental Unit to be made pursuant to Section 7-1-6.46 NMSA 1978, which represents the 
amount of Pledged Revenues set forth in the sentence above that would have been remitted to the 
Governmental Unit but for the deductions provided by Sections 7-9-92 and 7-9-93 NMSA 1978 
and (ii) any similar distributions made to the Governmental Unit in lieu of Pledged Revenues, but 
Pledged Revenues do not include any similar distributions in lieu of any other local option gross 
receipts tax revenues. 

 “Principal Component” means the portion of each Loan Agreement Payment paid as 
principal on this Loan Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto. 



6 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

“Program Account” means the account in the name of the Governmental Unit established 
pursuant to the Indenture and held by the Trustee for the deposit of the net proceeds of this Loan 
Agreement for disbursal to the Governmental Unit for payment of the costs of the Project. 

“Project” means the project(s) described on the Term Sheet. 

“Term Sheet” means Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

“Trustee” means BOKF, NA, Albuquerque, New Mexico, or any successor trust company, 
national or state banking association or financial institution at the time appointed the Trustee by 
the Finance Authority. 

“Unassigned Rights” means the rights of the Finance Authority to receive payment of the 
administrative expenses, reports and indemnity against claims pursuant to the provisions of this 
Loan Agreement which are withheld in the granting clauses of the Indenture from the pledge, 
assignment and transfer of this Loan Agreement to the Trustee. 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1 Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Governmental Unit.  The 
Governmental Unit represents, covenants and warrants: 

(a) Binding Nature of Covenants.  All covenants, stipulations, obligations and 
agreements of the Governmental Unit contained in this Loan Agreement shall be deemed to be the 
covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Governmental Unit to the full extent 
authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall 
be binding upon the Governmental Unit and its successors and upon any board or body to which 
any powers or duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be 
transferred by or in accordance with law.  Except as otherwise provided in this Loan Agreement, 
all rights, powers and privileges conferred and duties and liabilities imposed upon the 
Governmental Unit by the provisions of this Loan Agreement and the Ordinance shall be exercised 
or performed by the Governmental Unit or by such members, officers, or officials of the 
Governmental Unit as may be required by law to exercise such powers and to perform such duties. 

(b) Personal Liability.  No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement 
contained in this Loan Agreement shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or 
agreement of any officer, agent or employee of the Governmental Unit or member of the 
Governing Body in his or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the Governing Body 
nor any officer, agent or employee of the Governmental Unit executing this Loan Agreement shall 
be liable personally on this Loan Agreement or be subject to any personal liability or accountability 
by reason of the execution and delivery thereof. 

(c) Authorization of Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement.  The 
Governmental Unit is a political subdivision of the State and is duly organized and existing under 
the statutes and laws of the State.  Pursuant to the Act, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, the Governmental Unit is authorized by the Act to enter into the transactions contemplated 
by this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder 



7 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

and thereunder.  The Governmental Unit has duly authorized and approved the execution and 
delivery of this Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement, and the other documents related to the 
transaction. 

(d) Use of Loan Agreement Proceeds.  The Governmental Unit shall proceed 
without delay in applying the proceeds of this Loan Agreement (less the deposits to the Loan 
Agreement Reserve Account, if any, and the Finance Authority Debt Service Account) to the 
acquisition of the Project. 

(e) Payment of Loan Agreement.  The Governmental Unit shall promptly pay 
Loan Agreement Payments, as specified in Exhibit “B” hereto, according to the true intent and 
meaning of this Loan Agreement.  Loan Agreement Payments are payable solely from the Pledged 
Revenues or from the proceeds of refunding bonds or other refunding obligations which the 
Governmental Unit may hereafter issue in its sole discretion and which are payable from the 
Pledged Revenues; and nothing in this Loan Agreement shall be construed as obligating the 
Governmental Unit to pay Loan Agreement Payments from any general or other fund of the 
Governmental Unit other than such special funds.  Nothing contained in this Loan Agreement, 
however, shall be construed as prohibiting the Governmental Unit in its sole and absolute 
discretion, from making such payments from any moneys which may be lawfully used, and which 
are legally available, for that purpose. 

(f) Acquisition and Completion of Project.  The Project will consist of the 
acquisition, construction and renovation of an existing building for law enforcement for the 
Governmental Unit.  The Project will be acquired and completed so as to comply with all 
applicable ordinances, resolutions and regulations, if any, and any and all applicable laws relating 
to the acquisition and completion of the Project and to the use of the Pledged Revenues. The Project 
complies with Sections 7-1.6.1 and 7-1-6.4, NMSA 1978, as amended. 

(g) Necessity of Project.  The acquisition of the Project under the terms and 
conditions provided for in this Loan Agreement is necessary, convenient and in furtherance of the 
governmental purposes of the Governmental Unit and is in the best interests of the Governmental 
Unit and its residents. 

(h) Legal, Valid and Binding Special Obligation.  The Governmental Unit has 
taken all required action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement 
and the Intercept Agreement, and this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement constitute 
legal, valid and binding special obligations of the Governmental Unit enforceable in accordance 
with their terms. 

(i) Loan Agreement Term.  The weighted average maturity of _______ years 
of the Loan Agreement does not exceed 120% of the reasonably expected life of the Project which 
is at least ________ (  ) years. 

(j) Use of Project.  During the Loan Agreement Term, the Project will at all 
times be used for the purpose of benefiting the Governmental Unit as a whole. 



8 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

(k) No Private Activity.  The Governmental Unit is a “governmental unit” 
within the meaning of Sections 103 and 141(b)(6) of the Code.  In addition, no amounts disbursed 
from the Program Account and used to finance the Project shall be used in the trade or business of 
a person who is not a “governmental unit” within the meaning of Sections 103 and 141(b)(6) of 
the Code. 

(l) No Excess Loan Agreement Proceeds.  The amount loaned to the 
Governmental Unit under this Loan Agreement as set forth on the Term Sheet does not exceed the 
sum of: (i) the cost of the Project; (ii) the Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement; and (iii) an 
amount necessary to pay the costs related to issuance of the Bonds, if any. 

(m) No Breach or Default Caused by Loan Agreement or Intercept Agreement.  
Neither the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, nor the 
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions in this Loan Agreement and the 
Intercept Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein, 
conflicts with or results in a breach of terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any 
agreement or instrument to which the Governmental Unit is a party or by which the Governmental 
Unit is bound or any laws, ordinances, governmental rules or regulations or court or other 
governmental orders to which the Governmental Unit or its properties are subject, or constitutes a 
default under any of the foregoing. 

(n) Irrevocable Enactments.  While this Loan Agreement remains outstanding 
and unpaid, any ordinance, resolution or other enactment of the Governing Body applying the 
Pledged Revenues for the payment of this Loan Agreement, including the Ordinance, shall be 
irrevocable until this Loan Agreement has been paid in full as to both principal and interest, and 
shall not be subject to amendment or modification in any manner which would in any way 
jeopardize the timely payment of Loan Agreement Payments. 

(o) Outstanding Debt.  Except for the Parity Obligations, if any, described on 
the Term Sheet, there are currently no outstanding bonds, notes or other obligations of the 
Governmental Unit which are payable from and secured by a parity lien on the Pledged Revenues. 
No additional indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Governmental Unit payable on a priority ahead 
of the indebtedness herein authorized out of the Pledged Revenues shall be created or incurred 
while this Loan Agreement remains outstanding.  Prior to entering into additional indebtedness to 
be secured by a parity lien on the Pledged Revenues, the Governmental Unit shall comply with the 
terms of Section 5.5 hereof and shall seek the written consent of the Finance Authority, such 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  During the term of this Loan Agreement, prior to 
entering into any indebtedness secured by a subordinate lien on the Pledged Revenues or a lien on 
any revenues of the Governmental Unit other than the Pledged Revenues, the Governmental Unit 
shall notify the Finance Authority in writing of such indebtedness. 

(p) No Litigation.  To the knowledge of the Governmental Unit, no litigation 
or proceeding is pending or threatened against the Governmental Unit or any other person affecting 
the right of the Governmental Unit to execute or deliver this Loan Agreement or the Intercept 
Agreement or to comply with its obligations under this Loan Agreement or the Intercept 
Agreement.  Neither, the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept 
Agreement by the Governmental Unit nor compliance by the Governmental Unit with the 



9 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

obligations under such agreements, requires the approval of any regulatory body, or any other 
entity, which approval has not been obtained or which is not reasonably expected to be obtained. 

(q) No Event of Default.  No event has occurred and no condition exists which, 
upon the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, would 
constitute an Event of Default on the part of the Governmental Unit under this Loan Agreement or 
the Intercept Agreement. 

(r) Pledged Revenues Not Budgeted.  The portion of the Pledged Revenues 
necessary to pay the Loan Agreement Payments, as and when due, is not needed or budgeted to 
pay current or anticipated operational or other expenses of the Governmental Unit.  

(s) Expected Coverage Ratio.  The Pledged Revenues (giving credit for any 
increase in Pledged Revenues which has received final approval of the Governing Body and 
become effective) from the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the Closing Date were equal to or 
exceeded, and, on an ongoing basis during each year of the Loan Agreement Term, are reasonably 
expected to equal or exceed, one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the maximum Aggregate 
Annual Debt Service Requirement. 

(t) No Extension of Interest Payments.  The Governmental Unit will not extend 
or be a party to the extension of the time for paying any interest on this Loan Agreement. 

(u) Governmental Unit’s Existence.  The Governmental Unit will maintain its 
corporate identity and existence so long as this Loan Agreement is unpaid, unless another political 
subdivision by operation of law succeeds to the liabilities and rights of the Governmental Unit 
without adversely affecting to any substantial degree the privileges and rights of the Finance 
Authority. 

(v) Continuing Disclosure.  The Governmental Unit covenants that it shall 
provide continuing disclosure to the Finance Authority, as the Finance Authority may require, that 
shall include, but not be limited to:  annual audits, operational data required to update information 
in any disclosure documents used to assign or securitize the Loan Agreement Payments by 
issuance of Bonds by the Finance Authority pursuant to the Indenture, and notification of any event 
deemed material by the Finance Authority. 

(w) Tax Covenants.  The Governmental Unit covenants that it shall restrict the 
use of the proceeds of this Loan Agreement in such manner and to such extent, if any, as may be 
necessary so that this Loan Agreement will not constitute an arbitrage bond under Section 148 of 
the Code and that it shall pay any applicable rebate to the Internal Revenue Service.  Authorized 
Officers are hereby authorized and directed to execute an Arbitrage and Tax Certificate as may be 
required by the Finance Authority and such additional certificates as shall be necessary to establish 
that this Loan Agreement is not an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code 
and the Treasury Regulations promulgated or proposed with respect thereto, including Treasury 
Regulation Sections 1.148-1 through 1.148-11, 1.149 and 1.150 as the same currently exist, or may 
from time to time hereafter be amended, supplemented or revised.  The Governmental Unit 
covenants to comply with the provisions of any such Arbitrage and Tax Certificate and the 
provisions thereof will be incorporated herein by reference to the same extent as if set forth herein.  



10 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

The Governmental Unit covenants that no use will be made of the proceeds of this Loan 
Agreement, or any funds or accounts of the Governmental Unit which may be deemed to be Gross 
Proceeds (as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(b)) of this Loan Agreement, which 
use, if it had been reasonably expected on the Closing Date, would have caused this Loan 
Agreement to be classified as an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.  
Pursuant to this covenant, the Governmental Unit obligates itself to comply throughout the Loan 
Agreement Term with the requirements of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and the 
regulations proposed or promulgated with respect thereto.  The Governmental Unit further 
represents and covenants that no bonds or other evidence of indebtedness of the Governmental 
Unit payable from substantially the same source as this Loan Agreement have been or will be 
issued, sold or delivered within fifteen (15) days prior to or subsequent to the Closing Date.  The 
Governmental Unit hereby further represents and covenants to comply with Section 7.6 hereof, 
which designates this Loan Agreement as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for the purposes of 
Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  

(x) Pledged Revenues Covenants.  Pursuant to Sections 7-19D-9 and 7-1-6.15, 
NMSA 1978, as amended, the State collects gross receipts taxes from business locations within 
the Governmental Unit, on land owned by the State within the exterior boundaries of the 
Governmental Unit, and outside the exterior boundaries of the Governmental Unit on land owned 
by the Governmental Unit, and distributes each month to the Governmental Unit an amount equal 
to one-fourth of one percent (1/4%) of the gross receipts of all persons engaging in business in the 
Governmental Unit for the month in which the tax is distributed to the Governmental Unit. 

Section 2.2 Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Finance Authority.  The 
Finance Authority represents, covenants and warrants for the benefit of the Governmental Unit as 
follows: 

(a) Authorization of Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement.  The Finance 
Authority is a public body politic and corporate constituting a governmental instrumentality, 
separate and apart from the State, duly organized, existing and in good standing under the laws of 
the State, has all necessary power and authority to enter into and perform and observe the 
covenants and agreements on its part contained in this Loan Agreement and the Intercept 
Agreement and, by proper action, has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Loan 
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement based upon the Finance Authority’s findings that: 

(i) The Governmental Unit is a disadvantaged qualified entity in that 
its median household income is $28,685, which is less than eighty percent (80%) of the State 
median household income of $58,733. 

(ii) The Project is important to the overall capital needs of the State and 
directly enhances the health and safety of the residents of the Governmental Unit. 

(b) Assignment of Rights.  The Finance Authority may not pledge or assign the 
Pledged Revenues, the Loan Agreement Payments or any of its other rights under this Loan 
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement except to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture. 



11 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

(c) No Breach or Default Caused by Loan Agreement or Intercept Agreement.  
Neither the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement, nor the 
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept 
Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated in this Loan Agreement or the 
Intercept Agreement, conflicts with or results in a breach of the terms, conditions and provisions 
of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Finance Authority is a party or by 
which the Finance Authority is bound or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing and will 
not conflict with or constitute a violation of any constitutional or statutory provision or order, rule, 
regulation, decree or resolution of any court, government or governmental authority having 
jurisdiction over the Finance Authority or its property, and which conflict or violation will have a 
material adverse effect on the Finance Authority or the financing of the Project. 

(d) No Litigation.  To the knowledge of the Finance Authority, there is no 
litigation or proceeding pending or threatened against the Finance Authority or any other person 
affecting the right of the Finance Authority to execute or deliver this Loan Agreement or the 
Intercept Agreement, or to comply with its obligations under this Loan Agreement or the Intercept 
Agreement.  Neither, the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept 
Agreement by the Finance Authority, nor compliance by the Finance Authority with its obligations 
under this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, requires the approval of any regulatory 
body, or any other entity, which approval has not been obtained. 

(e) Legal, Valid and Binding Obligations.  This Loan Agreement and the 
Intercept Agreement constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Finance Authority 
enforceable in accordance with their terms. 

(f) Tax-Exempt Reimbursement of Amount Loaned.  The Finance Authority 
intends to reimburse the public project revolving fund (as defined in the Finance Authority Act) 
for the amount of the Loan from the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds which the Finance Authority 
expects to issue within eighteen (18) months of the Closing Date. 

ARTICLE III 
LOAN AGREEMENT TERM 

The Loan Agreement Term shall commence on the Closing Date and shall not terminate 
until this Loan Agreement has been paid in full or provision for the payment of this Loan 
Agreement has been made pursuant to Article VIII hereof. 

ARTICLE IV 
LOAN; APPLICATION OF MONEYS 

On the Closing Date, the Finance Authority shall transfer the Loan Agreement Principal 
Amount as follows: 

(a) To the Trustee, the amount shown on the Term Sheet as the Program 
Account deposit shall be deposited into the Governmental Unit’s Program Account to be 
maintained by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture and disbursed pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof 
at the direction of the Governmental Unit as needed by the Governmental Unit for the Project; and 



12 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

(b) To the Trustee, the amount shown on the Term Sheet as the Loan 
Agreement Reserve Account deposit shall be deposited in the Governmental Unit’s account 
maintained in the Loan Agreement Reserve Fund by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture; and 

(c) To the Finance Authority, the amount shown on the Term Sheet as the 
Finance Authority Debt Service Account deposit shall be deposited into the Finance Authority 
Debt Service Account to be maintained by the Finance Authority or its assignee and utilized as 
provided in Section 5.2 hereof. 

ARTICLE V 
LOAN TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT; 

PAYMENTS BY THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT 

Section 5.1 Loan to the Governmental Unit; Payment Obligations Limited to Pledged 
Revenues; Pledge of Pledged Revenues.  The Finance Authority hereby lends to the Governmental 
Unit and the Governmental Unit hereby borrows from the Finance Authority an amount equal to 
the Loan Agreement Principal Amount.  The Governmental Unit promises to pay, but solely from 
the sources pledged herein, the Loan Agreement Payments as herein provided.  The Governmental 
Unit does hereby convey, assign and pledge unto the Finance Authority and unto its successors in 
trust forever all right, title and interest of the Governmental Unit in and to: (i) the Pledged 
Revenues to the extent required to pay the Loan Agreement Payments on parity with the Parity 
Obligations; (ii) the Finance Authority Debt Service Account, such account being held by the 
Finance Authority; (iii) the Program Account and the Loan Agreement Reserve Account, such 
accounts being held by the Trustee, and; (iv) all other rights hereinafter granted, for the securing 
of the Governmental Unit’s obligations under this Loan Agreement, including payment of the Loan 
Agreement Payments and Additional Payment Obligations; provided, however, that if the 
Governmental Unit, its successors or assigns, shall well and truly pay, or cause to be paid, all Loan 
Agreement Payments at the time and in the manner contemplated by this Loan Agreement, then, 
upon such final payment or provision for payment by the Governmental Unit, this Loan Agreement 
and the rights created thereby shall terminate; otherwise, this Loan Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect.  The Loan Agreement Payments shall, in the aggregate, be sufficient to pay the 
Principal Component and Interest Component when due, the payment schedule of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” 

The pledge of the Pledged Revenues and the lien thereon shall be effective upon 
the Closing Date.  The Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority acknowledge and agree that 
the Loan Agreement Payments of the Governmental Unit hereunder are limited to the Pledged 
Revenues, and that this Loan Agreement shall constitute a special, limited obligation of the 
Governmental Unit.  No provision of this Loan Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as 
creating a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Governmental Unit within the meaning 
of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation.  No provision of this Loan Agreement shall be 
construed to pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of Governmental Unit moneys other 
than the Pledged Revenues, nor shall any provision of this Loan Agreement restrict the future 
issuance of any bonds or obligations payable from any class or source of Governmental Unit 
moneys other than the Pledged Revenues.  In addition, to the extent not required for the payment 
of obligations of the Governmental Unit hereunder, the Pledged Revenues may be utilized by the 
Governmental Unit for any other purposes permitted by law. 



13 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

Section 5.2 Payment Obligations of Governmental Unit.  The Finance Authority Debt 
Service Account shall be established and held by the Finance Authority and the Loan Agreement 
Reserve Account shall be established and held by the Trustee, each on behalf of the Governmental 
Unit.  All Pledged Revenues received by the Finance Authority pursuant to this Section 5.2 shall 
be accounted for and maintained on an ongoing basis by the Finance Authority in the Finance 
Authority Debt Service Account and all Loan Agreement Payments shall be remitted to the 
Trustee. The amounts on deposit in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account and Loan 
Agreement Reserve Account shall be expended and used by the Finance Authority or the Trustee, 
as the case may be, only in the manner and order of priority specified below. 

(a) As a first charge and lien, but not an exclusive first charge and lien, on the 
Pledged Revenues (on a parity with the lien on the Pledged Revenues created by any outstanding 
Parity Obligations), the Governmental Unit shall remit to the Finance Authority, and the Finance 
Authority shall transfer and deposit into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account the following 
from the Pledged Revenues received pursuant to the Intercept Agreement from the Governmental 
Unit, which the Finance Authority shall transfer to the Trustee in accordance with the Indenture: 

(i) Interest Components. (A) Monthly, beginning on the first day of the 
second month following the Closing Date, an amount in equal monthly installments which is 
necessary to pay the first maturing Interest Component coming due on this Loan Agreement 
(which is December 1, 2024), and (B) on the first day of each month thereafter, one-sixth (1/6) of 
the amount necessary to pay the next maturing Interest Component on this Loan Agreement as 
described in Exhibit “B”; 

(ii) Principal Payments.  (A) Monthly, beginning on the first day of the 
second month following the Closing Date, an amount in equal monthly installments which is 
necessary to pay the first maturing Principal Component (which is June 1, 2025), and (B) on the 
first day of each month thereafter, one-twelfth (1/12) of the amount which is necessary to pay the 
next maturing Principal Component on this Loan Agreement during the Loan Agreement Term, as 
described in Exhibit “B”. 

(b) Each Loan Agreement Payment shall be transferred by the Finance 
Authority from the Finance Authority Debt Service Account to the Trustee. 

(c) As a second charge and lien on the Pledged Revenues received from the 
Governmental Unit after deposits in (a) and (b) have been made, the Trustee shall transfer and 
deposit to the Loan Agreement Reserve Account any amounts necessary to replenish the Loan 
Agreement Reserve Account to the Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement.  Moneys in the Loan 
Agreement Reserve Account shall be held and administered by the Trustee and shall be used only 
to prevent deficiencies in the payment of the Principal Component and Interest  Component of the 
Loan Agreement Payments resulting from a failure to deposit into the Finance Authority Debt 
Service Account sufficient funds to pay debt service requirements on the Loan; provided, that the 
final two Interest Components  and the final Principal Component on the Loan shall be payable 
from the Loan Agreement Reserve Account.  If funds are withdrawn from the Loan Agreement 
Reserve Account to pay debt service on the Loan, at the direction of the Finance Authority or the 
Trustee, additional Pledged Revenues shall be deposited into the Loan Agreement Reserve 
Account in amounts in equal monthly installments sufficient to restore the amount on deposit 



14 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

therein to the Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement within one (1) year following such 
withdrawal; provided, that no additional Pledged Revenues shall be intercepted to replenish the 
Loan Agreement Reserve Account following the transfer of the amount in the Loan Agreement 
Reserve Account to the Finance Authority Debt Service Account for payment of the final two 
Interest Components  and the final Principal Component.  

Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof, the Finance Authority shall have the 
right to waive the requirement of the Loan Agreement Reserve Account and the Loan Agreement 
Reserve Requirement, and any moneys in the Loan Agreement Reserve Account may, at the 
written direction of the Finance Authority, be applied to the Finance Authority Debt Service 
Account, applied to the prepayment of the Loan pursuant to Article VIII hereof, or released to the 
Governmental Unit for the Project or used for any other purposes provided by law.  If amounts in 
the Loan Agreement Reserve Account are released by the Finance Authority, the references in this 
Loan Agreement to the Loan Agreement Reserve Account and the Loan Agreement Reserve 
Requirement shall be of no further force and effect. 

(d) Subject to the foregoing deposits, the Finance Authority or the Trustee shall 
annually use the balance of the Pledged Revenues received, if any, at the request of the 
Governmental Unit: (i) to credit against upcoming Loan Agreement Payments; or (ii) to distribute 
to the Governmental Unit for any purpose permitted by law. 

Section 5.3 Manner of Payment.  All payments of the Governmental Unit hereunder 
shall be paid in lawful money of the United States of America to the Finance Authority at the 
address designated in Section 11.1 herein, for remittance to the Trustee.  The obligation of the 
Governmental Unit to make payments hereunder, from and to the extent of the available Pledged 
Revenues, shall be absolute and unconditional in all events, except as expressly provided 
hereunder, and payment hereunder shall not be abated through accident or unforeseen 
circumstances.  Notwithstanding any dispute between the Governmental Unit, the Finance 
Authority, the Trustee, any vendor or any other person, the Governmental Unit shall make all 
deposits hereunder, from and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues, when due and shall 
not withhold any deposit hereunder pending final resolution of such dispute, nor shall the 
Governmental Unit assert any right of set-off or counterclaim against its obligation to make such 
deposits required hereunder. 

Section 5.4 Disposition of Payments by the Trustee.  The Trustee shall deposit all 
moneys received from the Finance Authority under this Loan Agreement in accordance with the 
Indenture. 

Section 5.5 Additional Parity Obligations.  No provision of this Loan Agreement shall 
be construed in such a manner as to prevent the issuance by the Governmental Unit of additional 
Parity Obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues, nor to prevent the issuance of bonds or 
other obligations refunding all or a part of this Loan Agreement; provided, however, that before 
any such additional Parity Obligations are actually issued (excluding refunding bonds or refunding 
obligations which refund Parity Obligations but including parity refunding bonds and obligations 
which refund subordinate obligations as provided in Section 5.6 hereof), the Governmental Unit 
shall obtain the written consent of the Finance Authority and it must be determined that: 



15 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

(a) The Governmental Unit is then current in all of the accumulations required 
to be made into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account and the Loan Agreement Reserve 
Account as provided herein. 

(b) No default shall exist in connection with any of the covenants or 
requirements of the Ordinance or this Loan Agreement. 

(c) The Pledged Revenues received by or credited to the Governmental Unit 
for the Fiscal Year or for any twelve (12) consecutive months out of the twenty-four (24) months 
preceding the date of the issuance of such additional Parity Obligations (the “Historic Test Period”) 
shall have been sufficient to pay an amount representing one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) 
of the combined maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement coming due in any 
subsequent Fiscal Year on the then outstanding Parity Obligations and the Parity Obligations 
proposed to be issued (excluding the accumulation of any reserves therefor). 

(d) A written certification or opinion by the Governmental Unit’s Treasurer or 
chief financial officer or by an Independent Accountant that the Pledged Revenues for the Historic 
Test Period are sufficient to pay said amounts, shall be conclusively presumed to be accurate in 
determining the right of the Governmental Unit to authorize, issue, sell and deliver the Parity 
Obligations proposed to be issued. 

(e) With prior written notice to the Finance Authority, no provision of this Loan 
Agreement shall be construed in such a manner as to prevent the issuance by the Governmental 
Unit of additional bonds or other obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues constituting a 
lien upon such Pledged Revenues subordinate and junior to the lien of this Loan Agreement nor to 
prevent the issuance of bonds or other obligations refunding all or part of this Loan Agreement as 
permitted by Section 5.6 hereof. 

(f) The Governmental Unit shall not issue bonds or other obligations payable 
from the Pledged Revenues having a lien thereon prior and superior to this Loan Agreement. 

Section 5.6 Refunding Obligations.  The provisions of Section 5.5 hereof are subject to 
the following exceptions: 

(a) If at any time after the Closing Date, while this Loan Agreement, or any 
part thereof, is outstanding, the Governmental Unit shall find it desirable to refund any outstanding 
bonds or other outstanding obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues, this Loan Agreement, 
such bonds or other obligations, or any part thereof, may be refunded (but the holders of this Loan 
Agreement or bonds to be refunded may not be compelled to surrender this Loan Agreement or 
their bonds, unless this Loan Agreement, the bonds or other obligations, at the time of their 
required surrender for payment, shall then mature, or shall then be callable for prior redemption at 
the Governmental Unit’s option), regardless of whether the priority of the lien for the payment of 
the refunding obligations on the Pledged Revenues is changed, except as provided in subparagraph 
(e) of Section 5.5 hereof and in subparagraphs (b) and (c) of this Section. 

(b) No refunding bonds or other refunding obligations payable from the 
Pledged Revenues shall be issued on a parity with this Loan Agreement unless: 



16 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

(i) The outstanding obligations so refunded are Parity Obligations and 
the refunding bonds or other refunding obligations do not increase any aggregate annual principal 
and interest obligations evidenced by such refunded obligations; or 

(ii) The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations are issued in 
compliance with Section 5.5 hereof. 

(c) The refunding bonds or other obligations so issued shall enjoy complete 
equality of lien on the Pledged Revenues with the portion of this Loan Agreement or any bonds or 
other obligations of the same issue which is not refunded, if any; and the holder or holders of such 
refunding bonds or such other refunding obligations shall be subrogated to all of the rights and 
privileges enjoyed by the holder or holders of this Loan Agreement or the bonds or other 
obligations of the same issue refunded thereby.  If only a part of this Loan Agreement or the 
outstanding bonds and any other outstanding obligations of any issue or issues payable from the 
Pledged Revenues is refunded, then such obligations may not be refunded without the consent of 
the holder or holders of the unrefunded portion of such obligations, unless: 

(i) The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations do not increase 
any aggregate annual principal and interest obligations evidenced by such refunded obligations 
and by the outstanding obligations not refunded on and prior to the last maturity date of such 
unrefunded obligations; or 

(ii) The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations are issued in 
compliance with Section 5.5 hereof; or 

(iii) The lien on the Pledged Revenues for the payment of the refunding 
obligations is subordinate to each such lien for the payment of any obligations not refunded. 

(d) Any refunding bonds or other refunding obligations payable from the 
Pledged Revenues shall be issued with such details as the Governmental Unit may provide by 
ordinance or resolution, but without any impairment of any contractual obligations imposed upon 
the Governmental Unit by any proceedings authorizing the issuance of any unrefunded portion of 
such outstanding obligations of any one or more issues (including, but not necessarily limited to, 
this Loan Agreement). 

Section 5.7 Investment of Governmental Unit Funds. Money on deposit in the Finance 
Authority Debt Service Account established by the Finance Authority for the Governmental Unit 
may be invested by the Finance Authority in Permitted Investments at the discretion of the Finance 
Authority.  Money on deposit in the Program Account and the Loan Agreement Reserve Account 
held by the Trustee and created hereunder may be invested by the Trustee in Permitted Investments 
at the written direction of the Finance Authority or at the discretion of the Trustee.  Any earnings 
on any of said accounts shall be held and administered in each respective account and utilized in 
the same manner as the other moneys on deposit therein.  

Section 5.8 Governmental Unit May Budget for Payments.  The Governmental Unit 
may, in its sole discretion, but without obligation and subject to the Constitution of the State, 
governing laws, and its budgetary requirements, make available properly budgeted and legally 



17 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

available funds to defray any insufficiency of Pledged Revenues to pay Loan Agreement 
Payments; provided, however, the Governmental Unit has not covenanted and cannot covenant to 
make such funds available and has not pledged any of such funds for such purpose. 

ARTICLE VI 
THE PROJECT 

Section 6.1 Agreement to Acquire the Project.  The Governmental Unit hereby agrees 
that to effectuate the purposes of this Loan Agreement and to effectuate the acquisition and 
completion of the Project, it shall make, execute, acknowledge and transmit any contracts, orders, 
receipts, writings and instructions with any other persons, firms or corporations and, in general, do 
all things which may be requisite or proper to acquire the Project.  The Governmental Unit agrees 
to acquire and complete the Project through the application of moneys to be disbursed from the 
Program Account pursuant to Section 6.2 of this Loan Agreement.  

Section 6.2 Disbursements From the Program Account.  So long as no Event of Default 
shall occur, the Trustee shall disburse moneys from the Program Account in accordance with 
Section 6.2 of the Indenture upon receipt by the Trustee of a requisition substantially in the form 
of Exhibit “C” attached hereto signed by an Authorized Officer of the Governmental Unit. 

No disbursement shall be made from the Program Account without the approval of Bond 
Counsel: (i) to reimburse the Governmental Unit’s own funds for expenditures made prior to the 
Closing Date; (ii) to refund or advance refund any tax-exempt obligations issued by or on behalf 
of the Governmental Unit; (iii) to be used, directly or indirectly, to finance a project used or to be 
used in the trade or business of a person who is not a “governmental unit,” within the meaning of 
Section 141(b)(6) of the Code; or (iv) to expend funds after the date that is three (3) years after the 
execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement. 

Section 6.3 Completion of the Project.  Upon completion of the Project, an Authorized 
Officer of the Governmental Unit shall deliver a certificate to the Finance Authority and the 
Trustee substantially in the form of Exhibit “D” attached hereto stating that, to the best of his or 
her knowledge, the Project has been completed and accepted by the Governmental Unit, and all 
costs have been paid.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, such certificate shall state that it is given 
without prejudice to any rights against third parties which exist at the date of such certificate or 
which may subsequently come into being. 

Section 6.4 Application of Loan Agreement Proceeds Subsequent to Completion of the 
Project.  Upon completion of the Project as signified by delivery of the completion certificate 
contemplated in Section 6.3 hereof or in the event that the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall 
not have received a certificate of completion as required by Section 6.3 hereof by the date three 
(3) years from the Closing Date (or such later date as is approved in writing by Bond Counsel), 
the Trustee shall transfer the amounts remaining in the Program Account (except amounts 
necessary for payment of amounts not then due and payable) to the Finance Authority Debt Service 
Account and such amounts shall be used for the payment of Loan Agreement Payments. 



18 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

ARTICLE VII 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

AND RULES; OTHER COVENANTS 

Section 7.1 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments.  The Finance Authority and 
the Governmental Unit agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, 
or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further 
instruments as may reasonably be required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect description 
of the Project or of the Pledged Revenues, or for otherwise carrying out the intention hereof. 

Section 7.2 Finance Authority and Governmental Unit Representatives.  Whenever 
under the provisions hereof the approval of the Finance Authority or the Governmental Unit is 
required, or the Governmental Unit or the Finance Authority is required to take some action at the 
request of the other, such approval or such request shall be given for the Finance Authority or for 
the Governmental Unit by an Authorized Officer of the Finance Authority or the Governmental 
Unit, as the case may be, and any party hereto shall be authorized to act on any such approval or 
request. 

Section 7.3 Requirements of Law.  During the Loan Agreement Term, the 
Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority shall observe and comply promptly with all current 
and future orders of all courts having jurisdiction over the parties hereto, the Project or the Pledged 
Revenues. 

Section 7.4 First Lien; Equality of Liens.  The Loan Agreement Payments constitute an 
irrevocable first lien (but not necessarily an exclusive first lien) upon the Pledged Revenues.  The 
Governmental Unit covenants that the Loan Agreement Payments and any Parity Obligations 
herein authorized to be issued and from time to time outstanding shall be equitably and ratably 
secured by a first lien on the Pledged Revenues and shall not be entitled to any priority one over 
the other in the application of the Pledged Revenues regardless of the time or times of the issuance 
of such obligations, it being the intention of the Governmental Unit that there shall be no priority 
between the Loan Agreement Payments and any such Parity Obligations regardless of the fact that 
they may be actually issued and delivered at different times. 

Section 7.5 Expeditious Completion.  The Governmental Unit shall complete the 
Project with all practical dispatch. 

Section 7.6 Bank Designation of Loan Agreement.  For purposes of and in accordance 
with Section 265 of the Code, the Governmental Unit hereby designates this Loan Agreement as 
an issue qualifying for the exception for certain qualified tax-exempt obligations to the rule 
denying banks and other financial institutions 100% of the deduction for interest expenses which 
is allocable to tax-exempt interest.  The Governmental Unit reasonably anticipates that the total 
amount of tax exempt obligations (other than obligations described in Section 265(b)(3)(C)(ii) of 
the Code) which will be issued by the Governmental Unit and by any aggregated issuer during the 
current calendar year will not exceed $10,000,000.  For purposes of this Section 7.6, “aggregated 
issuer” means any entity which: (i) issues obligations on behalf of the Governmental Unit; 
(ii) derives its issuing authority from the Governmental Unit; or (iii) is controlled directly or 
indirectly by the Governmental Unit within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-



19 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

1(e).  The Governmental Unit hereby represents that: (a) it has not created and does not intend to 
create and does not expect to benefit from any entity formed or availed of to avoid the purposes of 
Section 265(b)(3)(C) or (D) of the Code; and (b) the total amount of obligations so designated by 
the Governmental Unit, and all aggregated issuers for the current calendar year, does not exceed 
$10,000,000. 

Section 7.7 Arbitrage Rebate Exemption.  The Governmental Unit hereby certifies and 
warrants, for the purpose of qualifying for the exception contained in Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the 
Code, to the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings from investments of the proceeds of the Loan 
Agreement (the “Rebate Exemption”), that: (i) this Loan Agreement is issued by the Governmental 
Unit which has general taxing powers; (ii) neither this Loan Agreement nor any portion thereof is 
a private activity bond as defined in Section 141 of the Code (“Private Activity Bond”); (iii) all of 
the net proceeds of this Loan Agreement are to be used for local government activities of the 
Governmental Unit (or of a governmental unit, the jurisdiction of which is entirely within the 
jurisdiction of the Governmental Unit); and (iv) neither the Governmental Unit nor any aggregated 
issuer has issued or is reasonably expected to issue any Tax-Exempt Bonds other than (A) Private 
Activity Bonds (as those terms are used in Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code) and (B) issued to 
refund (other than to advance refund (as used in the Code)) any bond to the extent the amount of 
the refunding bond does not exceed the outstanding amount of the refunded bond, during the 
current calendar year, which would in the aggregate amount exceed $5,000,000.  For purposes of 
this paragraph, “aggregated issuer” means any entity which: (a) issues obligations on behalf of the 
Governmental Unit; (b) derives its issuing authority from the Governmental Unit; or (c) is 
controlled directly or indirectly by the Governmental Unit within the meaning of Treasury 
Regulation Section 1.150-1(e).  The Governmental Unit hereby represents that it has not created, 
does not intend to create and does not expect to benefit from any entity formed or availed of to 
avoid the purposes of Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code. 

Accordingly, with respect to the Loan Agreement, the Governmental Unit will qualify for 
the rebate exemption granted under Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code and the Governmental Unit 
shall be treated as meeting the requirements of paragraphs (2) and (3) of Section 148(f) of the Code 
relating to the required rebate of arbitrage earnings to the United States. 

The Governmental Unit hereby further represents and covenants that if it is determined that 
rebatable arbitrage, as that term is defined under Section 148 of the Code and related regulations, 
is required to be paid to the United States, that it will pay such rebatable arbitrage. 

ARTICLE VIII 
PREPAYMENT OF LOAN AGREEMENT PAYMENTS 

Section 8.1 Prepayment.  The Governmental Unit is hereby granted the option to prepay 
any of the Principal Components of this Loan Agreement in whole or in part on any day on or after 
ten (10) years following the Closing Date without penalty or prepayment premium.  The 
Governmental Unit may designate the due dates of any Principal Components being prepaid in the 
event of a partial prepayment.  Notice of intent to make such prepayment shall be provided to the 
Finance Authority and the Trustee by the Governmental Unit no less than forty-five (45) days prior 
to the prepayment date.  The Trustee shall recalculate the Loan Agreement Payments due under 



20 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

this Loan Agreement in the event of a partial prepayment in a manner which is consistent with the 
manner in which the Bonds, if any, are prepaid. 

Section 8.2 Defeasance.  Should the Governmental Unit pay or make provision for 
payment of the Loan such that all amounts due pursuant to this Loan Agreement shall be deemed 
to have been paid and defeased, then the Loan Agreement Payments hereunder shall also be 
deemed to have been paid, the Governmental Unit’s payment obligations hereunder shall be 
terminated, this Loan Agreement and all obligations contained herein shall be discharged and the 
pledge hereof released.  Such payment shall be deemed made when the Governmental Unit has 
deposited with an escrow agent, in trust, (i) moneys sufficient to make such payment, and/or 
(ii) noncallable Government Obligations maturing as to principal and interest in such amount and 
at such times as will ensure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment and when 
all necessary and proper expenses of the Finance Authority have been paid or provided for.  In the 
event the Governmental Unit makes provisions for defeasance of this Loan Agreement, the 
Governmental Unit shall cause to be delivered (1) a report of an independent nationally recognized 
certified public accountant verifying the sufficiency of the escrow established to pay this Loan 
Agreement in full when due or upon an irrevocably designated prepayment date, and (2) an opinion 
of Bond Counsel to the effect that this Loan Agreement is no longer outstanding, each of which 
shall be addressed and delivered to the Finance Authority.  Government Obligations within the 
meaning of this Section 8.2, unless otherwise approved by the Finance Authority, shall include 
only (1) cash, (2) U.S. Treasury Certificates, Notes and Bonds (including State and Local 
Government Series – “SLGs”), and (3) obligations the principal of and interest on which are 
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America. 

ARTICLE IX 
INDEMNIFICATION 

From and to the extent of the Pledged Revenues, to the extent permitted by law, the 
Governmental Unit shall and hereby agrees to indemnify and save the Finance Authority and the 
Trustee harmless against and from all claims, by or on behalf of any person, firm, corporation or 
other legal entity arising from the acquisition or operation of the Project during the Loan 
Agreement Term, from: (i) any act of negligence or other misconduct of the Governmental Unit 
or breach of any covenant or warranty by the Governmental Unit hereunder; and (ii) the incurrence 
of any cost or expense in connection with the acquisition or operation of the Project in excess of 
the Loan Agreement proceeds and interest on the investment thereof.  The Governmental Unit 
shall indemnify and save the Finance Authority and the Trustee harmless, from and to the extent 
of the available Pledged Revenues, from any such claim arising as aforesaid from (i) or (ii) above, 
or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon and, upon notice from the Finance 
Authority or the Trustee, shall defend the Finance Authority or the Trustee, as applicable, in any 
such action or proceeding. 

ARTICLE X 
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 10.1 Events of Default Defined.  Any one of the following shall be an Event of 
Default under this Loan Agreement: 



21 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

(a) Failure by the Governmental Unit to pay any amount required to be paid 
under this Loan Agreement on the date on which it is due and payable; 

(b) Failure by the Governmental Unit to observe and perform any covenant, 
condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Loan Agreement, other 
than as referred to in paragraph (a), for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying 
such failure and requesting that it be remedied is given to the Governmental Unit by the Finance 
Authority or the Trustee unless the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall agree in writing to an 
extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice 
can be wholly cured within a period of time not materially detrimental to the rights of the Finance 
Authority or the Trustee but cannot be cured within the applicable thirty (30) day period, the 
Finance Authority and the Trustee will not unreasonably withhold their consent to an extension of 
such time if corrective action is instituted by the Governmental Unit within the applicable period 
and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected; and provided, further, that if by reason of force 
majeure the Governmental Unit is unable to carry out the agreements on its part herein contained, 
the Governmental Unit shall not be deemed in default under this paragraph (b) during the 
continuance of such inability (but force majeure shall not excuse any other Event of Default); 

(c) Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the 
Governmental Unit contained in this Loan Agreement or in any instrument furnished in 
compliance with or in reference to this Loan Agreement is false or misleading in any material 
respect; 

(d) A petition is filed against the Governmental Unit under any bankruptcy, 
moratorium, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or 
liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, and is not dismissed within 
thirty (30) days after such filing, but the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall have the right to 
intervene in the proceedings prior to the expiration of such thirty (30) days to protect their interests; 

(e) The Governmental Unit files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy or seeking 
relief under any provision of any bankruptcy, moratorium, reorganization, arrangement, 
insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now 
or hereafter in effect, or consents to the filing of any petition against it under any such law; or 

(f) The Governmental Unit admits insolvency or bankruptcy or its inability to 
pay its debts as they become due or is generally not paying its debts as such debts become due, or 
becomes insolvent or bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a custodian 
(including, without limitation, a receiver, liquidator or trustee) of the Governmental Unit for any 
of its property is appointed by court order or takes possession thereof and such order remains in 
effect or such possession continues for more than thirty (30) days, but the Finance Authority and 
the Trustee shall have the right to intervene in the proceedings prior to the expiration of such thirty 
(30) days to protect their interests. 

Section 10.2 Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default has occurred and is 
continuing and subject to Section 10.3 hereof, the Finance Authority or the Trustee may take any 
or all of the following actions as may appear necessary or desirable to collect the payments then 



22 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

due and to become due or to enforce performance of any agreement of the Governmental Unit in 
this Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement: 

(a) By mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to 
enforce the rights of the Finance Authority and the Trustee under this Loan Agreement and the 
Intercept Agreement against the Governmental Unit, and compel the Governmental Unit to 
perform or carry out its duties under the law and the agreements and covenants required to be 
performed by it contained herein; or 

(b) By suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate 
the rights of the Finance Authority or the Trustee; or 

(c) Intervene in judicial proceedings that affect this Loan Agreement or the 
Pledged Revenues; or 

(d) Cause the Governmental Unit to account as if it were the trustee of an 
express trust for all of the Pledged Revenues; or 

(e) Take whatever other action at law or in equity may appear necessary or 
desirable to collect amounts then due and thereafter to become due under this Loan Agreement or 
to enforce any other of its rights thereunder; or 

(f) Apply any amounts in the Program Account toward satisfaction of any of 
the obligations of the Governmental Unit under this Loan Agreement. 

Section 10.3 Limitations on Remedies.  A judgment requiring a payment of money 
entered against the Governmental Unit may reach only the available Pledged Revenues. 

Section 10.4 No Remedy Exclusive.  Subject to Section 10.3 hereof, no remedy herein 
conferred upon or reserved to the Finance Authority or the Trustee is intended to be exclusive, and 
every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given 
hereunder as now or hereafter existing at law or in equity.  No delay or omission to exercise any 
right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed 
to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as 
often as may be deemed expedient.  In order to entitle the Finance Authority or the Trustee to 
exercise any remedy reserved in this Article X, it shall not be necessary to give any notice, other 
than such notice as may be required in this Article X. 

Section 10.5 Waivers of Events of Default.  The Finance Authority or the Trustee may 
in its  discretion waive by written waiver any Event of Default hereunder and the consequences of 
such an Event of Default provided, however, that there shall not be waived: (i) any Event of Default 
in the payment of the principal of this Loan Agreement at the date when due as specified herein; 
or (ii) any default in the payment when due of the interest on this Loan Agreement, unless prior to 
such waiver or rescission, all arrears of interest, with interest at the rate borne by this Loan 
Agreement on all arrears of payments of principal and all expenses of the Finance Authority or the 
Trustee, in connection with such Event of Default shall have been paid or provided for, and in case 
of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the Finance Authority or the 
Trustee on account of any such Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned or 



23 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

determined adversely, then and in every such case, the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall be 
restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, but no such waiver or 
rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other Event of Default, or impair any right consequent 
thereon. 

Section 10.6 No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver.  In the event that any 
agreement contained herein should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other 
party, such waiver shall be in writing and limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not 
be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder. 

Section 10.7 Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses.  In the event that the 
Governmental Unit shall default under any of the provisions hereof and the Finance Authority or 
the Trustee shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of payments 
hereunder, or the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on 
the part of the Governmental Unit herein contained, the Governmental Unit agrees that it shall on 
demand therefor pay to the Finance Authority or the Trustee, as applicable, the fees of such 
attorneys and such other expenses so incurred, to the extent that such attorneys’ fees and expenses 
may be determined to be reasonable by a court of competent jurisdiction; provided, however, that 
the obligation of the Governmental Unit under this Section shall be limited to expenditures from 
and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues. 

ARTICLE XI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 11.1 Notices.  All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall 
be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered as follows: if to the Governmental 
Unit, City of Truth or Consequences, 505 Sims Street, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 
Attention: City Manager; if to the Finance Authority, New Mexico Finance Authority, 207 Shelby 
Street, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501, Attention:  Chief Executive Officer; and if to the Trustee, 
BOKF, NA, 100 Sun Avenue NE, Suite 500, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109, Attention:  Trust 
Division.  The Governmental Unit, the Finance Authority, and the Trustee may, by notice given 
hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or 
other communications shall be sent. 

Section 11.2 Binding Effect.  This Loan Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the Finance Authority, the Governmental Unit and their respective successors and 
assigns, if any. 

Section 11.3 Amendments.  The Governmental Unit agrees that this Loan Agreement 
will not be amended without the prior written consent of the Finance Authority, and, if the Loan 
has been pledged under the Indenture (as defined herein), without the prior written consent of the 
Trustee (as defined herein), the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit, pursuant to the 
Indenture. 

Section 11.4 No Liability of Individual Officers, Directors or Trustees.  No recourse 
under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in this Loan Agreement shall be 
had against any member, employee, director or officer, as such, past, present or future, of the 



24 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

Finance Authority, either directly or through the Finance Authority, or against any officer, 
employee, director, trustee or member of the Governing Body, past, present or future, as an 
individual so long as such individual was acting in good faith.  Any and all personal liability of 
every nature, whether at common law or in equity, or by statute or by constitution or otherwise, of 
any such officer, employee, director, trustee or member of the Governing Body or of the Finance 
Authority is hereby expressly waived and released by the Governmental Unit and by the Finance 
Authority as a condition of and in consideration for the execution of this Loan Agreement. 

Section 11.5 Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Loan Agreement, other 
than the requirement of the Governmental Unit to pay hereunder, shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

Section 11.6 Execution in Counterparts.  This Loan Agreement may be simultaneously 
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute 
but one and the same instrument. 

Section 11.7 Assignment by the Finance Authority.  Pursuant to the Indenture, this Loan 
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement may be assigned and transferred by the Finance Authority 
to the Trustee, which assignment and transfer is hereby acknowledged and approved by the 
Governmental Unit. 

Section 11.8 Compliance with Governing Law.  It is hereby declared by the Governing 
Body that it is the intention of the Governmental Unit by the execution of this Loan Agreement to 
comply in all respects with the provisions of the New Mexico Constitution and statutes as the same 
govern the pledge of the Pledged Revenues to payment of all amounts payable under this Loan 
Agreement. 

Section 11.9 Applicable Law.  This Loan Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the laws of the State. 

Section 11.10 Captions.  The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in 
no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Loan 
Agreement. 

(Signature pages follow)



S-1 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Finance Authority, on behalf of itself, and as approved by 
the Board of Directors of the Finance Authority on July 25, 2024, has executed this Loan 
Agreement in its corporate name by its duly authorized officer; and the Governmental Unit has 
caused this Loan Agreement to be executed in its corporate name and the seal of the Governmental 
Unit affixed and attested by its duly authorized officers.  All of the above are effective as of the 
date first above written. 

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
By        

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer 
 
PREPARED FOR EXECUTION BY OFFICERS 
OF THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY: 
Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional Corporation 
As Loan Counsel 
 
 
By        

Suzanne Wood Bruckner 
 
APPROVED FOR EXECUTION BY OFFICERS OF 
THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY: 
 
 
By        

Daniel C. Opperman, Chief Legal Officer 



S-2 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

CITY  OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW 
MEXICO 
 
 

[SEAL]     By        
Rolf Hechler, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By        

Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer  
 
 
 
 
6918724 
 



A-1 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

EXHIBIT “A” 

TERM SHEET 

New Mexico Finance Authority Loan No. PPRF-6486 

Governmental Unit: CITY  OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW 
MEXICO 

Project Description: Acquisition, construction and renovation of an existing 
building for law enforcement for the Governmental Unit. 

Loan Agreement 
Principal Amount: $1,680,000 

Disadvantaged Funding Amount: $168,000 

Pledged Revenues: Revenues derived from the one-fourth of one percent (1/4%) 
increment of municipal gross receipts tax imposed on all 
persons engaging in business in the Governmental Unit by 
Ordinance No. 606, adopted June 14, 2011, with an effective 
date of January 1, 2012, which tax equals, subject to the 
exemptions specified in Section 7-19D-9 NMSA 1978, one-
fourth of one percent (1/4%) of the gross receipts of all 
persons engaging in business in the Governmental Unit for 
the month in which the tax is distributed to the Governmental 
Unit, for the month for which the distribution is made, 
subject to any increase or decrease made pursuant to Section 
7-1-6.15, NMSA 1978, and after any disbursements for tax 
audits, refunds, payments of interest and administrative 
costs. Pledged Revenues also includes (i) the portion of the 
gross receipts tax distribution to the Governmental Unit to 
be made pursuant to Section 7-1-6.46 NMSA 1978, which 
represents the amount of Pledged Revenues set forth in the 
sentence above that would have been remitted to the 
Governmental Unit but for the deductions provided by 
Sections 7-9-92 and 7-9-93 NMSA 1978 and (ii) any similar 
distributions made to the Governmental Unit in lieu of 
Pledged Revenues, but Pledged Revenues do not include any 
similar distributions in lieu of any other local option gross 
receipts tax revenues. 

Coverage Ratio: 125% 

Distributing State Agency: State of New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department 

Currently Outstanding Parity 
Obligations:  



A-2 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

Additional Parity Bonds Test: 125% 

Authorizing Legislation: Ordinance No. 767 adopted on August 14, 2024 

Closing Date: [CLOSING DATE] 

Blended Interest Rate: __________% 

Program Account Deposit: $1,555,000 

Loan Agreement Reserve  
Account Deposit: $125,000 

Finance Authority Debt Service  
Account Deposit: $0.00 
 
First Interest Payment Date: December 1, 2024 

First Principal Payment Date: June 1, 2025 

Final Payment Date: June 1, 2044 

PROGRAM ACCOUNT DEPOSITS MUST BE USED WITHIN THREE YEARS UNLESS A 
LATER DATE IS APPROVED IN WRITING TO THE TRUSTEE AND THE FINANCE 

AUTHORITY BY BOND COUNSEL TO THE FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 
 



 

B-1 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

EXHIBIT “B” 

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE FOR LOAN REPAYMENT 

[SEE ATTACHED] 

 



 

D-1 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

EXHIBIT “C” 

FORM OF REQUISITION 
 
RE: $1,680,000 Loan Agreement by and between the City  of Truth or Consequences, New 

Mexico, and the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”). 
 
TO: BOKF, NA  

c/o New Mexico Finance Authority  
 PPRF@nmfa.net  
 
 
You are hereby authorized to disburse from the Program Account – City of Truth or Consequences, 
New Mexico (2024 Police Facility Loan), with regard to the above-referenced Loan Agreement 
the following: 
 
LOAN NO.:  PPRF-6486   CLOSING DATE: [CLOSING DATE] 
 
REQUISITION NUMBER:  __________________ 
 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF PAYEE:  _____________________________________________ 
 
AMOUNT OF PAYMENT:  $___________________ 
 
PURPOSE OF PAYMENT:  ______________________________________________________ 
 
Each obligation, item of cost or expense mentioned herein is for costs of the Project, is due and 
payable, has not been the subject of any previous requisition and is a proper charge against the 
Program Account – City  of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico (2024 Police Facility loan). 
 
All representations contained in the Loan Agreement and the related closing documents remain 
true and correct and the City  of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico, is not in breach of any of 
the covenants contained therein. 
 
If this is the final requisition, payment of costs of the Project is complete or, if not complete, the 
City  of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico, shall, and understands its obligation to, complete 
the acquisition of the Project from other legally available funds. 
 
Capitalized terms used herein, are used as defined or used in the Loan Agreement. 
 
DATED: August 14, 2024 
 By:  _________________________________ 

Authorized Officer of Borrower 
 
Title:  Rolf Hechler, Mayor 

 

mailto:PPRF@nmfa.net


 

D-2 
Loan Agreement 
Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

EXHIBIT “D” 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 
 
 
RE: $1,680,000 Loan Agreement by and between the City of Truth or Consequences, New 

Mexico and the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”). 
 
 
TO: New Mexico Finance Authority  
 PPRF@nmfa.net  
 
 Susen Ellis 
 Vice President, Corporate Trust 
 BOKF, NA  
 100 Sun Avenue NE, Suite 500 
 Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109 
  
 
LOAN NO.:  PPRF-6486   CLOSING DATE: [CLOSING DATE] 
 
In accordance with Section 6.3 of the Loan Agreement, the undersigned states, to the best of his 
or her knowledge, that the acquisition of the Project has been completed and accepted by the 
Governmental Unit, and all costs have been paid as of the date of this Certificate.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, this certification is given without prejudice to any rights against third parties which 
exist at the date of this Certificate or which may subsequently come into being. 
 
Capitalized terms used herein, are used as defined or used in the Loan Agreement. 
 
 
 
DATED: August 14, 2024 By:  _________________________________ 

Authorized Officer of Governmental Unit 
 
Title:   Rolf Hechler, Mayor  

 

mailto:PPRF@nmfa.net


PPRF-6486 

INTERCEPT AGREEMENT 

This INTERCEPT AGREEMENT is made and entered into August 14, 2024, by and 
between the NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Finance Authority”), a public body 
politic and corporate constituting a governmental instrumentality separate and apart from the State 
of New Mexico (the “State”) under the laws of the State and the CITY OF TRUTH OR 
CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO, a political subdivision duly organized and existing under the 
laws of the State (the “Governmental Unit”).A 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978, as amended, authorized the 
creation of the Finance Authority within the State to assist in financing the cost of public projects 
of participating qualified entities, including the Governmental Unit, such as the acquisition, 
construction and renovation of an existing building for law enforcement for the Governmental 
Unit; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978, as amended, and 
Sections 3-31-1 through 3-31-12, NMSA 1978, as amended (collectively, the “Act”), the Finance 
Authority and the Governmental Unit are authorized to enter into agreements to facilitate the 
financing of the Project as described in the Loan Agreement by and between the Finance Authority 
and the Governmental Unit of even date herewith (the “Loan Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to acquire the Project and such acquisition is 
permitted under the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority has established its Loan Program (the “Program”) 
funded by its public project revolving fund (as defined in the Act) for the financing of infrastructure 
and equipment projects upon the execution of the Loan Agreement and the assignment of loan 
agreements to a trustee (the “Trustee”); and 

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to borrow $1,680,000 from the Program for 
the purpose of financing the acquisition of the Project, which Loan is to be governed by this 
Intercept Agreement and by the Loan Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Act confers upon the Finance Authority the authority to loan funds to the 
Governmental Unit to finance the Project, and Sections 7-19D-9 and 7-1-6.15, NMSA 1978, as 
amended, authorizes the Governmental Unit to direct that its distribution of State Shared Gross 
Receipts Tax Revenues (the “Pledged Revenues”) from the State Taxation and Revenue 
Department (the “Distributing State Agency”) be paid to the Finance Authority or its assignee, to 
secure payments under the Loan Agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree: 

Unless otherwise defined in this Intercept Agreement and except where the context by clear 
implication otherwise requires, capitalized terms used in this Intercept Agreement shall have for 
all purposes of this Intercept Agreement the meanings assigned thereto in the Loan Agreement and 
the Indenture, as defined in the Loan Agreement. 



Intercept Agreement 2 
City of Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

Section 1. Authorization to the Finance Authority.  The Governmental Unit hereby 
recognizes that the Finance Authority has made a Loan to the Governmental Unit in the amount 
of $1,680,000 to finance the acquisition of the Project.  Pursuant to the Loan Agreement and this 
Intercept Agreement, the Loan and all Loan Agreement Payments on the Loan made by or on 
behalf of the Governmental Unit shall be collected by the Finance Authority and remitted to the 
Trustee.  All payments due on the Loan from the Pledged Revenues shall be paid by the 
Distributing State Agency to the Finance Authority or its designee, on behalf of the Governmental 
Unit, from scheduled distributions of the Pledged Revenues in accordance with the Intercept 
Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Intercept Schedule”) 

This Intercept Agreement shall be deemed a written certification, authorization and request 
by the Governmental Unit to the Distributing State Agency to pay to the Finance Authority, on 
behalf of the Governmental Unit, sums shown on the Intercept Schedule from distributions of the 
Pledged Revenues pursuant to Sections 7-19D-9 and 7-1-6.15, NMSA 1978, as amended, to insure 
compliance with the Loan Agreement and repayment of the Loan.  Upon written notice to the 
Distributing State Agency from the Finance Authority, the amount of the Pledged Revenues to be 
paid to the Finance Authority shall be increased from the amounts shown on Exhibit “A” to defray 
any delinquencies in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account or Loan Agreement Reserve 
Account, if any, established for the Governmental Unit.  Any accumulation of the Pledged 
Revenues in an amount in excess of the next Loan Agreement Payment and the Loan Agreement 
Reserve Requirement, if any, shall be redirected by the Finance Authority to the benefit of the 
Governmental Unit on a timely basis as provided in Section 5.2 of the Loan Agreement. 

To the extent applicable and to the extent that the Pledged Revenues are insufficient to 
meet the debt service requirements due on the Loan and other Parity Obligations (as defined in the 
Loan Agreement) now or hereafter issued or incurred, the amounts intercepted under this Intercept 
Agreement shall be applied to allow partial payment on a pro-rata basis of the debt service due and 
owing on the Loan Agreement and other Parity Obligations.  

Section 2. Term; Amendments.  This Intercept Agreement will remain in full force and 
effect from its effective date as herein provided until such time as the Loan made pursuant to the 
Loan Agreement and this Intercept Agreement have been paid in full.  Nothing herein shall be 
deemed in any way to limit or restrict the Governmental Unit from issuing its own obligations, 
providing its own program or participating in any other program for the financing of public projects 
which the Governmental Unit may choose to finance.  This Intercept Agreement may be amended 
only by written instrument signed by the parties hereto. 

Section 3. Authorization.  The execution and performance of the terms of this Intercept 
Agreement have been authorized and approved by Ordinance No. 767, passed and adopted on 
August 14, 2024  by the Governing Body of the Governmental Unit, which Ordinance is in full 
force and effect on the date hereof. 

Section 4. Severability of Invalid Provisions.  If any one or more of the provisions 
herein contained shall be held contrary to any express provisions of law or contrary to the policy 
of express law, though not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall for any reason 
whatsoever be held invalid, then such provision shall be null and void and shall be deemed 



Intercept Agreement 3 
City of Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

separable from the remaining provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of any of the other 
provisions hereof. 

Section 5. Counterparts.  This Intercept Agreement may be simultaneously executed 
in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 

Section 6. Further Authorization.  The Governmental Unit agrees that the Finance 
Authority shall do all things necessary or convenient to the implementation of the Program to 
facilitate the Loan to the Governmental Unit. 

Section 7. Effective Date.  This Intercept Agreement shall take effect on the Closing 
Date of the Loan. 

Section 8. Initial Intercept Date.  As indicated on the Intercept Schedule, the first 
distribution of the Pledged Revenues that is to be intercepted by the Distributing State Agency 
under the terms of this Intercept Agreement consist of Pledged Revenues due to the Governmental 
Unit distributed in ___________, 2024. 

Section 9. Final Intercept Date.  Once the Loan has been fully paid off and satisfied, 
Finance Authority shall provide written notice to the Distributing State Agency to discontinue the 
interception of the Governmental Unit’s Pledged Revenues. 

[Remainder of page left intentionally blank] 

[Signature page follows] 



Intercept Agreement 4 
City of Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Intercept Agreement have caused their names 
to be affixed hereto by the proper officers thereof as of the date first above written. 

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
By        

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW 
MEXICO 
 
 
By        

Rolf Hechler, Mayor 
 
[SEAL] 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By        

Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer  
 
 
 
Acknowledged: 
 
 
 
By         
 ______________, Taxation and Revenue Department 
 
 
Date     
 



Intercept Agreement 5 
City of Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

EXHIBIT “A” 

INTERCEPT SCHEDULE 

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO 

Payment Dates Pledged Revenues Amount 

Monthly, beginning: 

2024 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

2030 

2031 

2032 

2033 

2034 

2035 

2036 

2037 

2038 

2039 

2040 

2041 

2042 

Revenues derived from the one-fourth of 
one percent (1/4%) increment of 
municipal gross receipts tax imposed on 
all persons engaging in business in the 
Governmental Unit by Ordinance No. 
606, adopted June 14, 2011, with an 
effective date of January 1, 2012, which 
tax equals, subject to the exemptions 
specified in Section 7-19D-9 NMSA 
1978, one-fourth of one percent (1/4%) of 
the gross receipts of all persons engaging 
in business in the Governmental Unit for 
the month in which the tax is distributed 
to the Governmental Unit, for the month 
for which the distribution is made, subject 
to any increase or decrease made pursuant 
to Section 7-1-6.15, NMSA 1978, and 
after any disbursements for tax audits, 
refunds, payments of interest and 
administrative costs. Pledged Revenues 
also includes (i) the portion of the gross 
receipts tax distribution to the 
Governmental Unit to be made pursuant 
to Section 7-1-6.46 NMSA 1978, which 
represents the amount of Pledged 
Revenues set forth in the sentence above 
that would have been remitted to the 
Governmental Unit but for the deductions 
provided by Sections 7-9-92 and 7-9-93 
NMSA 1978 and (ii) any similar 
distributions made to the Governmental 
Unit in lieu of Pledged Revenues, but 
Pledged Revenues do not include any 
similar distributions in lieu of any other 
local option gross receipts tax revenues. 

$__________ 



Intercept Agreement 6 
City of Truth or Consequences, Loan No. PPRF-6486 

2043 

2044 

 

 
 
 
7203963 



STATE  OF NEW  MEXICO,

SS.

County  of  Sierra

Marsha  Wriglit,  being  first  duly  sworn,  ott  lier  oatli  says:  That  slie  is the

publisher  of  tlie  Sierra  County  SENTINEL,  a newspaper  published  in the

Town  of  Truth  or  Conseqriences,  in  the County  of  Siena  and  State  of  New

Mexico,  and that  said  newspaper  is now,  and was  at all  tin'ies  lierein

mentioned, a newspalier  of geiieral circulation.

Tliat  tlie adveitisen'ient,  a copy  of  whicli  is hereto  attaclied,  was  published

in said  herein  before  mentioned  newspaper  once  eacli  and  evei'y

week  for  One  (1 )consecutive  week(s),  the first  publication  thereof

liaving  been  made  on tlie  25tli  day of  July  , A.D.

2024,  and tlic  last  publication  tliereof  haviiig  been  made  ort the

25tli  day of   , A.D.  2024.

Tliat  said newspaper  was regularly  printed,  publislied  and issued  willi

said  notice  tlierein  upon  tlie  following  dates,  to-wit:

July  25 , 2024.,

/s/

Subscribed  aixd sworn  to before  me tliis  of

July

Notaiy  Public

My  conunission  expires  January  29"',  2025

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NOTARY PUBLIC
FRANCES LUNA

COMMISSION # 1132440
EXPIRES JANUARY 29, 2025

CITY OF TRUTH  OR
00NSEQUENCES,

Na7V MEXR,O
NOTICE  OF MEETING,
PUBL.IC HEAFIING  AND

INTENT  TO ADOPT
ORDINANCE

The City of Truth or Cori-
'sequences,  New Mexico,

herpl'y gi9esinotk,e'.of a
regula(  qity t':pmmission
meeting for l'/Vednesday,

City Commibsl('in  will con-
slder  for adopti;on  thq ordi-
nanc6  dnscribed  below.
Complete  copie)i  of the pro-
posed' ordinancei  am avail
able for put'lk,  inspeatlon
dLrlng the norrr)ial. and reg-
ular business  )'iq;iurs of the
qity'Clerk, Truth;or  Conse-
qLrences, 'New Mlexico.

AUTFIORIZIN'<3  ' THE
EXECUTION  ANI')  IDELIV-
EFIY OF A-LOAN  AGREE-
MENT AND INaiTERCEPT
AGREEMEN1'  B'i?"AND BE-
TWEEN' ThlE  lCilTY OF
TRUTH  OR  CONSE-

UNIT") AND  T:HE  NEW
MEXICO  .FINANO;E. Atil-
THOFIITY  (THE "FIINANC,E
AUTHOFll'jY"),  EV'lDENC-i
ING A SPECIAL,  U,IMITED
OBLIGATION  Or"  THE
GC)VEFINMEN'TAL  UNIT
TO. PAY A PFllrSICIPAL
AMOUNT  OF NOTiTO  EX-
CigED  $2,000,000.1,  T0-
GETHEFI WI:T'H IN'TiEFlEST
THEFIEON,  FOR  THE

RENOVATE,  PUFilNISH.  I
EQUIP  BEAUTIFY  AND
IMPROVE  A PlJt3LIC
SAFETY  BUIIDING  FOR I
THE  BENEFIT  OF  THE
CITY  AND ' ITS RESI-
DENTS,  (2) IFUND A 'DEBT
SERVICE: :FlESERVEE AC

CO8TS  OF ISS.UANCE
PFIOVIDING  FOR '..'THE
PAYMENT  DIJE  UNIDER
THE LOAN AGFlEE&llENT

INCREMENT OF MUfi91Cl-
PAL GROSS FIECEIIPTS
TAX IMPOSED  ON ' ALL

SUANT  TO  SECTION
7-19D-9  'NMSA  1978  AIND
GOVERNMENTAL  U'NIT
ORDINANCE  N(E). 1"i06

ADOPTED  JUNE' 44. .2i.)1.1
(THE "GROSS  FIECEIP.ITS

TAX"); APPFIOVING  THE
DELEGATION  QEAU-
:THOFli'TY TO MAKE  CEFl-
'TAIN DETEFIMiNATIONS
HEGAFIDING  THE LOAN
PUFISUANTTO  THE SUP-
PLEMENTaAL.PUBLIC  SE'
(;'URITIE8  ACT
PROVIDING  FOFI THE
DlSTFllBUaTION8  0F  THE.
FIEVENUES  OF . THE
GROSS RECEIPTS  TAX
j""FIOM THE STA'TE TAXA:
TION AND REVENUE  DE-
PARTMENT  TO  BE

RNA%?(,A:'X% X"'EoF:'
ITS ASSIGN'e  PURSUANT
TO. THE  INTERCEPT
AGREEMENT  FOR THE
PAYMENT  OF PRINCIPAL
AND INTEREST  DUE ON
THE LOAN AGFlEeMENT'
RATIFY'lNG  ACTIONS'
HERETOFORE  TAKEN:
REPEALlfXIG At;L ACTION
INCONSISTENT  WITH  
THIS ORDI,NANCE:  AND
AUTHOFllZlNCi  THE TAK-
ING OF OTHeFl  ACTIONS  '
IN CONNECTION  WITH
THE  EXECUTION  AND
DELIVERY  'OF THE LOAN
AGREEMENT  AND  THE
INTERCEPT.  ' AGFIEE-
MENT.

The title sets.-forth a gen'-
eral summary.of'the  subject
fnattei:.coritained.in  the Or-
dinant,e.  This.notite  consti-

tutes com@lia0ce  with
Section  3-1 7-3  NMSA
i9.78,,

Rub.: July.25,  2024
This legalposjeal at

www.hewrnexlcopublicnotlpes,.com



z!:tt.y- ci-wor-rgt,i-r-t-i5Q.9(i!js4(>lltxcr_s
i'  A(tNUAHtQUt51  K)KM

sl)!111Th
]M'  MEETING DATE: August 14, 2024 A ge"" I'em #: Q

SUBJECT: Discussion/Action:PublicHearing/FinalAdoptionofOrdinance768,amendingSec.3-98ofthe

Municipal  Code  of  Ordinances  pertaining  to safekeeping  of  animals  by the  Animal  shelter.

DEPARTMENT:  Animal  Shelter

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  7, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  o._i. Hechler

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  0.J.  Hechler,  Community  Service  Director

Summary/Background:
Change  title  of  Sec. 3-98  Safekeeping  of  Animals  by the  Animal  Shelter  to  Animal  Owner  Hospitalized  or

Incarcerated.  In this  amendment,  there  will  no longer  be a Safekeep  status.  Animals  will  go under  a Medical

Hold  status  or Incarceration  Hold  status.  Publication  was  approved  on 7-24  and now  it is being  brought  back

for  a public  hearing  and final  adoption.

Recommendation:

Public  Hearing  and  Final  Adoption

Attachments:

@ Ordinance  725

*  Amendment  to Sec. 3-98

*  Publication  Notice

Fiscal Impact  (Finance): N/A

50.00

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  N/A

Click  here  to enter  text

Approved  For  Submittal  By: €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Clid< here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No. - Ordinance  No. -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-24



CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES

ORDINANCE  768

AN  ORDINANCE  AMENDING  THE  CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES

MUNICIP  AL  CODE  OF  ORDINANCES,  BY  AMENDING  SECTION  3-98  PERT  AINING

TO  ANIMAL  OWNERS  HOSPITALIZED  OR  INCARCERATED

BE  IT  ORDAINED  BY  THE  BOARD  OF COMMISSIONERS,  CITY  COMMISSIONERS  OF

THE  CITY  OF TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES:

Section  one.  That  section  3-98  of  the Code  of  Ordinances  of  the City  of  Truth  or Consequences

be amended  so that  such  section  shall  read  as follows:

Sec. 3-98.  Animal  owner  hospitalized  or  incarcerated

Due  to unforeseen  circumstances,  a police  officer,  animal  control  officer,  or animal  owner

may  require  an animal  to be placed  in the care and  custody  of  the Animal  Shelter  to ensure  that

the animal  is properly  cared  for.  In situations  that  the owner  of  an animal(s)  is hospitalized  the

shelter  will  put  the animal(s)  on a Medical  Hold  status  and will  hold  the animal(s)  for  up to ten

(10)  days. After  the ten (10)  days,  if  there  has been  no contact  with  the shelter,  the animal(s)

shall  become  the property  of  the City.  After  the first  72 hours,  a boarding  fee will  be applied.

In situations  that  the owner  of  an animal(s)  is incarcerated,  the shelter  will  put  the animal(s)

on an Incarceration  Hold,  and the shelter  will  hold  the animal(s)  for  up to five  (5)  days.  After

the five  (5) days, if  there  has been  no contact  with  the shelter  the animal(s)  shall  become  the

property  of  the City.  After  the first  72 hours,  a boarding  fee will  be applied.

If  the owner  of  the animal(s)  cannot  pick  up the animal(s)  from  the shelter,  the owner  shall

be responsible  for  contacting  a designated  person  or organization  to pick  up  the animal(s).  All

contact  between  owner  and shelter  will  be Jogged  by shelter  staff.  If  no contact  has been  made  by

the owner  to the shelter  after  the ten  (10)  day Medical  Hold  or five  (5) day  Incarceration  Hold

the animal(s)  will  become  the property  of  the City.  If  contact  has been  made  with  the shelter,

there  may  be circumstances  the shelter  can hold  the animal(s)  for  a longer  period  of  time  with  a

boarding  fee applied.  After  the initial  holding  period  has expired  and no contact  has been  made

with  the  shelter,  the animal(s)  is no longer  classified  as a Medical  Hold  or Incarceration  Hold  and

the animal(s)  shall  be considered  abandoned  and property  of  the City.  No animal  shall  be

released  from  the Animal  Shelter  until  all  fees are paid  in full.  Owners  who  knowingly  abandon

or fail  to arrange  for  pickup  of  their  animal(s)  at the Animal  Shelter  may  be prosecuted  under

other  sections  within  the Municipal  Code.



Section  two.  Effective  date. The  provisions  of  this  Amended  Ordinance  shall  become  effective

August  19,  2024.

PASSED,  APPROVED,  and ADOPTED  by the  GOVERNING  BODY  of the CITY  OF

TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUNCES  this  14th day  of  August  2024.

Rolf  Hechler,  Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela  A.  Torres,  CMC,  City  Clerk-Treasurer



Rolf  Hecliler
Mayor

Antanda  Forrister

Mayor  Pro-Tem

Merry  Jo Falil

Cominissioner 505  Sims  St.

Trutli  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico  87901

P: 575-894-6673  # F:  575-894-7767

HnVW.tOrC Ilnl.Org

Destin)i  Mitchell

Cominissioner

[ngo  Hoeppner

Commissioner

Aiigie  Gonzales

City  Maiiager

NOTICE  OF PUBLIC  HEARING

NOTICE  is hereby  given  that  the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  City  Commission  will  hold  a

Public  Hearing  during  their  regular  scheduled  meeting  on Wednesday,  August  14,  2024,  to

receive  additional  input  regarding  the  following:

Public Hearing/Discussion/Action:  Final Adoption  of  Ordinance  768,  Amending  Sec. 3-98  of  the

Municipal  Code  of  Ordinances  pertaining  to safekeeping  of  animals  by the  animal  shelter.

The meeting  will  be held  in the  City  Commission  Chambers,  405 W. Third,  Truth  or

Consequences,  New  Mexico  starting  at 9:00  a.m.

Please  contact  me at (575)  894-6675  or by email  at aatorres@torcnm.or@  should  you  have  any

questions  regarding  this  Public  Hearing.

The  agenda  may  be obtained  on Friday,  August  9, 2024,  on the  city  website  calendar  at

www.torcnm.or@;  by contacting  the  City  Clerk's  Office  at 575-894-6673;  or  by email  to:

torcclerk@torcnm.org.

/s/  Angela  A. Torres,  CMC, City  Clerk

Publish  on the  following  date:

*  Sentinel-Thursday,July25,2024



ORDINANCE  N0.  725

AN  ORDINANCE  OF THE  CITY  OF TRUTI-I  OR  CONSEQUENCES,  PROVIDING  THAT

THE  CODE  OF ORDINANCES,  CITY  OF TRUTH  OR CONSEQUENCES,  BE AMENDED  BY

AMENDING  CHAPTER  3 PERTAINING  TO  ANIMALS:

Chapter  3. ANIMALS  shall  be amended  in its entirety  to read as follows:

Chapter  3 - ANIMALS

ARTICLE  I. - IN  GENERAL

Sec. 3-1.  - Short  title  of  chapter.

This chapter  shall be known  and may be cited  as the Truth  or Consequences  Animal  Control

Ordinaiice.  It is the interxt of  tlie City  Conu'nission  tliat  enactment  of  this chapter  will  protect  animals

from  neglect  and abuse, protect  residems  from  annoyance  and injury,  assist in providing  housiiig  for

animals  in a control  center,  and finance  the functions  of  the licensing  and recovery  of  such animals.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-1;  Ord.  No. 384, {§ 6-2-1,  7-22-91)

Sec. 3-2.  - Administration  of  chapter.

The City  Manager  is responsible  for the admiiiistration  of  this chapter. Reasonable  rules and

regulations  sliall  be prescribed  by the Commissioii  to carry  out  the intent  and purpose  of  this chapter,

pursuant  to standards  created  by tliis  cliapter.  Powers  to enforce  the chapter  are delegated  to the Trutli

or Consequences  Police  Depaitment  and tlie  Anin'ial  Control  Officer.

(Code 1962, § 6-2-3; Ord. No. 436, § 1, 5-13-96; Ord. No. 532, F:3 1, 10-14-03)

Sec. 3-3. - Definitions.

The following  words,  terms  and phrases,  wlien  used in this chapter,  sliall  havc the meanings

ascribed  to them  in tliis  section,  except  wliere  tlie context  clearly  indicates  a different  meaning:

Abandonment  of  animals means to leave any animal unattended and with no provision of food,
water  or shelter  for  inore  tlian  twenty-four  (24) hours  on one's  premises  or to dump  or leave off  any

animal  on property  other  tlian  one's  own  without  permission,  regardless  of  age or coridition.

Adoption  means  to take by choice  and assume  responsibility  for  proper  care in accordance  with  this

Ordinance.

Adeqxiate food  means access to and tlie provision of food that is appropriate to the species and of
sufficient  quantity  and nutritive  value  to maintain  each animal  in good  health,  to include:

1.  Easily  accessible  to each animal

2.  Prepared  so as to permit  ease of  consumption  for  the age, species,  condition,  size and type

of  each animal

3.  Provided  in a cleaii  and sanitary  manner

4. Placed  so as to minimize  contamination  by excrement  and pests



Adequate  living  area  means  adequate  space,  sliade,  and  shelter   suitable  to the age, size,

species  and  breed  of  animal.

Adequate  Sliade  means  provision  of  and access  to either  man  made  or natural  shade  suitable  for

species,  age, condition,  size  and  type  of  each  animal.

Adeqgiate  Slielter  means  provision  of  and  access  to slielter  that  is suitable  for  species,  age, condition,

size  and type  of  each  animal;  provides  adequate  space  for  each  animal;  is safe  and  protects  each  animal

from  injury,  rain,  sleet,  snow,  hail,  direct  sunlight,  the adverse  effects  of  heat  or cold,  physical

suffering,  and  impairment  of  health;  is properly  cleaned;  enables  each  ariimal  to be clean  and  dry.

Adequate  space  to  prevent  overcrosvdmg  means  liaving  sufficient  space  to allow  animals  restrairied

together  to be able  to move  freely,  turn  around  and lie  down.

Adequate  water  i'neans  constant  access  to a supply  of  unfrozen,  potable  water,  provided  in a sanitary

manner  suitable  for  species,  in sufficient  amounts  to maintain  good  health.

Animal  means  any veitebrate  member  of  the animal  kingdom,  excluding  t)ie liuman  species,  including

but  not  limited  to wild  ariimals,  doinesticated  animals,  aiid  livestock.

Animal  Slielter  or  Slielter  means  any  pourid,  lot,  premises,  and/or  building  rnairitained  by the City  for

the care  and custody  of  animals.  Tliis  shall  include  any  private  shelter  contracted  or recognized  by the

City  for  the  purpose  of  mairxtaining  care  and custody  of  animals.

Animal  Control Officer means any person designated by tlie Police Chief to enforce animal control
laws,  orders,  ordinances  and regulations.

,4nima/  fighting  ptirapliernaliti  means eqyiipment that any reasonable person would ascertain is used
for  animal  figliting  purposes  whicli  includes,  but  is iiot  limited  to:

1. instruments  designed  to be attached  to the leg  of  a bird,  such  as a boxing  gloves,  knife,  gaff,  or

otlier  sharp  instrument,

2. items  to train  and condition  animals  to fight  including,  but  not  limited  to, l'iides  or other  material

used  as hanging  devices  to strengthen  and/or  condition  dogs,  wooden  sticks  or handles  used  to

pry  open  dog's  jaws,  performance  enhancing  drugs  or substances,  or  food  or  water  additives.

Auctioii  means  any place  or facility  where  animals  are regularly  bought,  sold  or traded,  except  for

those  facilities  otherwise  defined  in this  cliapter.  Tbis  definition  does not  apply  to individual  sales  of

animals  by  owners.

Bait  aiiimal  means  any  animal  used  to train  and/or  condition  other  animals  to figlit  and are exposed  to

attack  by other  animals  used or trained  to be used in fighting  or to make  the attacking  animal  more

confident  and aggressive.

Eite  means  any  puncture,  tear,  scratcli  or  wound  of  the  skin  inflicted  by the  teeth  of  an animal.

Breeder  means  any  person  involved  in the  controlled  breeding  of  animals.  Breeders  are subject  to

City  of  Truth  or Consequences  Kennel  Pen'nit  requirements.



Canine  Hybrid  means  any  offspring  wliich  results  from  tlie  breeding  of  a domestic  species  or breed

of  canine  with  any  wild  species  or breed  of  canine,  such  as wolf  or coyote.  Any  animal  whicl'i  at any

time  lias been  or is advertised,  or otherwise  described  or  represented  as a canine  hybrid,  wolf-dog,  or

wolf  hybrid  by its owner  to an Animal  Control  Officer,  Veterinarian,  Police  Officer,  or Official  of  the

Depaitment  of  Healtli  sliall  be considered  a canine  hybrid  for  tlie  purpose  of  this  chapter.  An  animal

shall  not  be classified  to be a canine  hybrid  based  strictly  on  its appearance.

Care  means  responsibility  for  or attention  to health,  well-being,  and safety.

Collar  means  a strap made  of  leather  or other  strong  material  or a harness  tliat  is worn  around  the

rieck/torso  of  an animal  to which  a current  rabies  vaccination  and city  aiiimal  registration  tag can be

affixed.

Coidmed or Coiifinemeid  means restriction of an animal at all tiines by an owner or keeper in an
escape  proof  building  or otlier  enclosure  away  fron'i  otlier  animals  and the public.

Contiimally  means  a duration  that contimies  over  a long  period  of  time  but with  intervals  and

interrupttons.

Emergency  measures  means  any  action  taken  by animal  control  or its designated  agents  to preserve  the

healtli  and life  of  an animal  or human  being,  including  but  not  limited  to entering  vehicles  or premises,

with  probable  carise and/or  exigent  circumstance,  and impounding  an animal  to prevent  present  or

imn'iinent  suffering  to tlie  animal,  a human  being,  or  another  animal.

Enclosed  lot  means  parcel  of  land  or portion  thereof  in private  ownership  around  the perimeter  of

whicli  a wall  or fence  has been  erected.

Eiiclosure  means  an area  completely  surrounded  by a wall,  fence,  or animal  pen of  sufficient  height

and strength  to contain  the animal(s)  within.

Establisliment  means  a place  of  business  together  with  its grounds  and equipment.

Estray  or  Stray  means  any animal  found  ninning  at large  or unattended  beyond  the boundaries  of  the

premises  of  tlie  owner.

Feline  Hybrid  means  any  offspring  which  results  from  the breeding  of  a domestic  species  or breed  of

feline  with  any  wild  species  or breed  of  feline,  such  as an African  Serval  cat. Any  animal  which  at any

time  has beeii  or is advertised,  or otherwise  described  or represented  as a feline  hybrid  by  its owner  to

an Animal  Control  Officer,  Veterinarian,  Police  Officer,  or Official  of  the Department  of  Health  shall  be

considered  a feline  hybrid  for  the purpose  of  this  chapter.  An  animal  shall  not  be classified  to be a

feline  hybrid  based  strictly  on its appearance

FeralAnimal  means  an individual  animal  of  a domesticated  species  that  is not  behaviorally  compatible

with  humans,  and is tlierefore  not  suitable  to serve  as a pet,  companion  animal,  or work  animal.  Any

feral  animal  that  by  physical  aspect  and behavior  are deemed  to be un-owned  and have  been  trapped  for

the purpose  of  improving  public  health  and  limiting  reproduction.

Grooming  parlor  means  any  establishment,  or part  thereof,  or  premises  maintained  for  the  purpose  of

offering  animals  cosmetological  services  for  profit.



Heat,  Estrus  or  Season  means  a regularly  recurring  state  of  estrus  during  which  tlie  female  animal  is

capable  of  attracting  or accepting  the  male  for  breeding  or is capable  of  conceiving.

Imiyiediate  cotxtrol  means  direct  physical  control  over  an animal  by the owner/responsible  paity  by use

of:

1. A secure  collar  or liarness  aiid  leash  for  a dog;  or

2. A  secure  leasli  in conjunction  witli  a properly  fitting  harness  for  a cat  or ferret;  or

3. A secure  and appropriate  portable  animal  crate  or cage for  any  animal.

Houseliold  means  one or more  persons  occupying  tlie premises  and living  as a single  housekeeping

unit  as distinguished  from  a group  occupying  a boarding  house,  lodging  house  or liotel.

Kennel  area  means  a secure  space  within  which  an animal  is housed  that  is of  sufficient  heiglit  and

strength  to contaiii  tlie  aiiimal  within  and  provide  sufficient  room  for  the animal  to comfortably  move

around  within  the structure.

Kennel,  commercial  means  any premises  on whicli  a total  of  five  or more  dogs or cats, in any

combination  thereof,  four  months  of  age or older  are kept;  and/or  where  the business  of  buying,  selling,

breeding,  training  or boarding  of  dogs  and/or  cats is conducted.

Licensed  veterinarian  means a person  with  a Doctor  of  Veterinary  Medicine  degree,  licensed  to

practice  in  tlie  State  of  New  Mexico.

Livestock  means  horses,  cattle,  pigs,  sheep,  goats,  fowl,  or any  other  domestic  animals  typically  used  in

tlie  production  of  food,  fiber,  or otlier  products  or activities  defined  by tlie  city  manager  as agricultural.

Owner/responsible  paWy  means  a person  18 years  of  age or older  or the parent  or guardian  of  a person

under  18 years  of  age who  owns,  liarbors,  keeps  an animal,  lias one in liis/her  care,  or permits  an

animal  to remain  on or about  the premises  owned  or  coiitrolled  by  hii'n/her.

Pet  means  any domesticated  animal  kept  as a con"ipanion  animal,  and not  intended  to be used for

farming  or liuman  consumption.  Livestock  sliall  not  be considered  a pet  even  if  kept  as a companion

animal  and not  used for  farming  or l'uiman  consumption.

Pet  sliop  or  dealer  means  any commercial  establishment  or person,  including  wholesalers  engaged  in

the business  of  buying  and selling  or holding  pet animals  for  sale.  This  term  shall  not  include  livestock

auctions.

Potable  water  means  water  that  can be consumed  without  concern  for  adverse  healtli  effects.

Premises  means  a parcel  of  land  and/or  the  structure(s)  thereon.

Public  wisance  means  a situation  where  an animal  owner  fails  to prevent  its animal  from  urinating,

defecating,  disturbing  the peace,  emitting  noxious  odors  or otherwise  endangering  or offending  the

well-being  of  the inhabitants  of  the City  while:



Trespassing  on school  grounds,  public  or private  propeity;

Being  found  ruru'iing  at large;

Damaging  private  or public  property;  or

Barking,  whining,  or  howling  in an excessive  or continual  fashion.

Public  Way means  an alley,  avenue,  boulevard,  bridge,  cliannel,  ditch  easement,  express  freeway,

highway,  land,  parkway,  right-of-way,  road,  sidewalk,  street  subway,  tuiinel,  viaduct,  walk  or other

ways  in which  tlie general  public  or a public  entity  liave  a right,  or wl'iich  are dedicated,  whether

improved  or not.

Qiialified  service aninia/ means:

A. any  qualified  service  dog  or qualified  service  miniature  liorse  tliat  has beei'x or is being  trained

to provide  assistance  to an individual  with  a disability;

B. An  animal  recognized  as a service  animal  under  either  federal  regulations  in'iplementing  the

Americans  witli  Disabilities  Act,  or NMSA  1978,  Chapter  28, Article  11, whicli  is the New

Mexico  Service  Animal  Act,  and  as amended;

C. A qualified  service  animal  does not include  a pet, an emotional  support  aniinal,  a comfoit

animal,  or a therapy  animal  as defined  in NMSA  1978,  Section  28- 11- 2(B)  (2013).

Qgiarantine  means  detention  and isolation  of  an animal  in order  to observe  the aiiimal  suspected  of

contagion.

Respoiisible perism* pttrty for  tlie animal means tlie owner of tlie animal, or an adult person placed in
charge  of  the animal  in the absence  of  incapacitation  of  the  owner.

Restraint  means  any  of  the following:

1.  To be under  the immediate  control  of  a capable  and con'ipetei'it  person  on a leasli  or lead;  or

2.  To be secured  by a trolley  system  confining  the animal  within  the  owner'  s premises;  or

3.  To be secured  within  an escape  -proof  enclosure  wit}iin  the  owner's  premises.

Ruwitig  at large  or to rim  at large  means  an animal  that  is free  of  physical  restraint  beyond  the

boundaries  of  the premises  of  the owner/responsible  party.

Tetlier  means  to restrain  an animal  by means  of  a runner  cable  or similar  device  attached  to a running

line,  pulley  or trolley  system.

Tormeiding ofayiimals means the act of  bothering, aruioying, distracting or agitating an animal.

Un-weaned  means  of  an infant  or other  young  mammal  not  accustomed  to food  other  than  its mother's

milk



Vaccination  means  tlie  inoculation  of  an animal  with  a vaccine  administered  by a veterinarian  for  the

purpose  of  immunizing  tlie animal  against  rabies  as required  by the State of  New  Mexico  Rabies

Control  Act  of  1959.  Tlie  amount  giveri  should  be sufficient  to provide  immunity  from  rabies  for  a

minimum  of  one year.

Veterinary  hospital  or  clinic  means  any  establisl'iment  maintained  and operated  by  a licensed

veterinarian  for  surgery,  diagnosis  and treatment  of  diseases  and  injuries  to animals.

Acious  animal  means  any  animal  which  bites  or in ariy  otlier  manner  attacks  or attempts  to attack  any

person  or animal  within  the City,  except  that  any animal  tliat  bites,  attacks,  or attempts  to attack  any

person  unlawfiilly  upon  its owner's  or keeper's  premises,  or which  is provoked  to attack,  shall  not  be

deemed  a vicioris  animal.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-2;  Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-2,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  400,  § 1, 10-26-92;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 2,

5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  532, § 2, 10-14-03;  Ord.  No.  608,  § 1, 8-30-11;  Ord.  No.  659(1),  § 1, 1-13-15)

Cross  reference-  Definitions  and rules  of  construction  generally,  § 1-2.

Sec. 3-4.  - Service  animals.

(a) A  person  with  a disability  who  is using  a qualified  service  animal,  as defined  by tlie

American  Disability  Act  (ADA),  shall  be admitted  to any  building  open  to the public  and to all

otlier  public  accommodations  and shall  be allowed  access  to all  common  carriers;  provided  tliat

the qualified  service  animal  is under  tlie  control  of  an owner,  a trainer  or a handler  of  the

qualified  service  animal.  A  person  shall  not  deny  an individual  with  a qualified  service  animal

entry  to a building  open  to tlie  public  or to any  public  accommodation  or dei'iy  access  to a

commori  carrier,  regardless  of  any  policy  of  denying  pets  entry  to that  building,  public

accommodation  or common  carrier.  A  person  shall  not  be required  to pay  any  additional  charges

for  tl'ie qualified  service  animal,  but  may  be liable  for  any  damage  dorie  by  the  qualified  service

animal;  provided  that  persons  withorit  disabilities  would  be liable  for  similar  damage;  and

(b)  This  section  does not  require  a public  accommodation  or common  carrier  to permit  an

owner,  trainer  or liandler  using  a qualified  service  animal  to have  access  to a public

accommodation  or common  carrier  iii  circumstances  in whicli  the individual's  use of  the

qualified  service  animal  poses  a direct  tlireat  of  significant  harm  to the healtli  or safety  of

others.

Credits  L. 1989,  Ch. 242,  § 2; L. 1999,  Ch. 262,  § 2; L. 1999,  Ch.  288,  § 2; L. 2005,  Ch.  224,  § 3, eff.

June 17, 2005;  L. 2013,  Cli.  57, § 3, eff.  June  14, 2013.

§ 28-11-3.  Admittance  of  qualified  assistance  animals,  State  of  New  Mexico

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-23;  Ord.  No.  659(1),  § 1, 1-13-15)

Editor's  note-  Section  1 of  Ord.  No. 659,  adopted  Jan. 13, 2015,  changed  tlie  title  of  § 3-4 from

"Dogs  trained  to assist  the blind  and hearing  impaired  allowed  in public  places"  to read as herein  set

out.



Sec. 3-5.  - Cruelty.

(a)  Physicttl  abuse. It is unlawful  for  any person  to willfully  or maliciously  kill,  maim,  disfigure,

torture,  beat  with  a stick,  chain,  club,  or other  object,  mutilate,  buri'i,  or scald  any animal;  except

that  reasonable  force  may  be employed  to drive  off  vicious  or trespassing  animals.  When  a Law

Enforcement  Officer  or an Animal  Control  Officer  has probable  cause  to believe  that  an animal  has

been ciuelly  treated,  the officer  may  ii'npound  the animal  for  its protection  pending  appropriate

court  proceedings

(b) Work  crgielty.  It is unlawful  for  any  person  to drive  or work  any  animal  cruelly.

(c) Animal  in a Vehicle.  It shall  be unlawful  for  aiiy  owner/responsible  paity  to place  or confirxe  an

animal  in a motor  vehicle  without  allowing  cross-ventilation  and under  no circumstance  shall  a

person  confine  any animal  in any  parked,  closed  vehicle  on any  public  way  or private  street  for  any

amount  of  time  that  would  endanger,  or create  an adverse  condition  placing  at risk  tlie  health  or

well-beiiig  of such animal  due to temperature,  lack of  food  or potable  water  or such other

conditions  as may  be reasonably  expected  that  may  cause  suffering,  disability  or death.  Any  animal

control  or law  enforcement  officer  observing  an animal  kept  in violation  of  tliis  Section  may  take

emergency  measures,  as detmed  by the definitions  of  this article  and impound  tlie animal.  m
addition  to all other  defenses  and immunities  provided  by law,  any such  officer  taking  emergency

measures  for  the purpose  of  this  Section  shall  be immune  from  suit  or liability,  criminal  or civil,

caused  by or arising  from  tlie  emergency  measures  taken.

(d) Care  and  maiidenaiice.  It is unlawful  for  any person  to fail,  refuse,  or neglect  to provide  any

animal  iii  liis  charge  or custody,  as owner  or otherwise,  wit}'i:

(1)  Adequate  Food.

(2) Adequate  Water.

(3) Adequate  Shelter.

(4) Adequate  Shade.

(5)  Adequate  space

(e)  No  animal  shall  be left  unattended  for  inore  than  24 hours.

(f)  No owner  or responsible  party  shall  fail  to provide  necessary  groomixig  of  the coat in order  to

prevent  matting,  skin  irritation,  distress  or pain,  trapping  of  fecal  matter,  and loss of  tlie  ability  to

protect  tlie  animal  froin  adverse  weather  conditions.  An  animal  sliall  not  be so dirty  tliat  it becomes

matted  as to provide  a home  for  parasites  and  insects.  No  animal  shall  be allowed  to have  a foreign

object  embedded  in its hide,  fur  or skin  other  than  a microchip  or a medical  device  implanted  by a

licensed  veterinarian.

(g)  %erinary  care.  It is unlawful  for  a person  to have,  keep  or harbor  an animal  wliicl'i  is seriously

sick  or injured,  including  suffering  from  starvation,  or severe  tliirst  without  providing  proper

veterinary  care. An  animal  shall  be afforded  immediate  veterinary  care  if  it is known  or suspected

to be ill or injured.  No person  shall  perform  procedures  such  as ear-cropping,  de-barking,  tail

docking  on an animal,  or otherwise  endanger  an animals  well-being.  Procedures  completed  by a

licensed  veterinarian  in accordance  to their  standard  practices  shall  not  be considered  cruelty.



(h) Abatxdotunent.  It shall  be unlawful  for  any person  being  the owner/responsible  party  of  a dog, cat,

or other  domesticated  animal  or pet to abandon  such animal.  Abandonment  includes  dumping  of

an animal  from  a moving  or stationary  motor  vehicle.  This  section  shall  not apply  to voluntary

relinquishments  to an animal  rescue organization,  animal  control  center, animal  control  officer,

licensed  veterinarian,  or another  person.

(i)  Poisoning.  It is unlawful  for any person  to intentionally  or knowingly  poisons,  or attempts  to

poison  any domestic  animal.  For  purposes  of  tliis  section,  "poison"  or "attempt  to poisori"  includes

the act of  placing  food,  water,  or lure or another  soit  which  contaii'is  poison  or contains  health

threatening  foreign  objects,  such as glass or metal,  in a location  where  any animal  may be
attracted.

(j) Utscared-for animals. Whenever tlie animal control officer, Code Enforcement  Officer,  or
designated  representative  finds  that  any animal  is or will  be without  proper  care because  of  injury,

illness,  incarceration,  or other  involuntary  absence  of  the owner  or responsible  paity  for  the

care of  such animal,  tlie Animal  Control  Officer  shall make  arrangements  for the care  of  tlie

animal.

(k) Iiijxiry  by motorists.  Every  operator  of  a inotor  or other  self-propelled  veliicle  upon  the streets  and

ways  of  the City  shall  immediately,  upon  injuring,  striking,  maiming,  or running  down  any animal,

give sucli  aid as is reasoiiably  able to be rendered.  In tlie absence of  the owner,  lie/she  sliall

immediately  notify  the Police,  furnishing  sufficient  facts relative  to such ixijury.  It is tlic  duty  of

sucli operator  to remain  at or near the scene until  sucli  time  as tlie appropriate  authorities  arrive

and, uport tlie arrival  of  such person,  such operator  sliall  immediately  identify  themselves  to the

appropriate  authorities.  Alteriiatively,  in tlie absence  of  tlie owner,  a person  may  give  aid by taking

the animal  to a veterinary  hospital  or the Animal  Slielter  and notifying  the Police.  Such animal

shall be deemed an uncared-for  animal  witliin  tlie meaning  of subsectioi'i  (j) of  this section.

Emergency  vehicles  are excluded  from  this  provision.

(l)  Hobbling  livestock.  It is unlawful  for any person  to liobble  livestock  or otlier  animals  by any

n'ieans wliich  may  cause injury  or damage  to any animal.

(m) Keeping of diseased animals. It is unlawful for any person to have, keep, or harbor any animal
which  is infected  with  any dangerous  disease. The Animal  Control  Officer  may impound  such

diseased  animal  in accordance  with  t)ie provisions  of  tliis  aiticle.  All  such animals  impounded  may

be destroyed  humanely  as soon as is conveniently  possible.  In the case of  destruction  of  such

animal,  the Animal  Control  Officer  or designee  shall  not be required  to give any of  the notices

provided  in tliis  aiticle.  This  section  shall not be construed  to include  veteriiiary  hospitals  or

animals  under  active  veterinary  care.

(n) Fights.  It is unlawful  for  any person  to promote,  stage, hold,  manage,  conduct,  carry  on, or  attend

any game,  exhibition,  contest,  OF figlit,  or combat  between  one (l)  or more  animals  or between

animals  and humans  in which  one or more  animals  are engaged  for  the purpose  of  injuring,  killing,

maiming,  or destroying  tl'iemselves  or any other  animal.  This  includes  any animal  used as a "Bait

Animal"  as defined  in the definitions  of  this  ordinance.

(o) Fowl;  impoginding;  crating.  It is unlawful  for  any person  to confine  any wild  or domestic  fowl  or

birds  unless  provisions  are made  by each person  for  the proper  feeding  and tlie  furnishing  of  water

to such  fowl  or birds  at intervals  not longer  than 12 hours.  No  person  shall  impound  any  wild  or

domestic  fowl  or birds  in a crate,  box or other  enclosure,  which  does not permit  each fowl  or bird

impounded  therein  to stand in a naturally  erect  position.



(p)  Tormenting.  It shall  be unlawful  for  any  person  to willfully  torment  any and all animals  by any

means,  such  as tlirowing  rocks,  yelling  or giving  chase in any manner.  No  person  shall  purposely

cause a dog  to bark  unnecessarily  or ai'uioy  sucli  animal  to the point  the anin'ial  will  attempt  to

attack  a person  or other  animal.

(q) Songbirds,  killing  and robbing  of  nest  prohibited.  It is unlawful  for  any  person  to willfully  kill  any

songbird,  or to molest  or rob  tlie  nest  of  such  bird.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-24;  Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-24,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 3, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  659(1),  §

1, 1-13-15)

State Law reference-  Cruelty to animals, NMSA1978,  83 30-18-1.

Sec. 3-6.  - Sale.

(a) Use of  public properffl. No person shall display, sell, or offer for sale, barter, give away, or
otherwise  dispose  of  any animal  upon  any street,  sidewalk,  public  park  or private  business,  unless

said private  business  is properly  licensed  or sucli  person  is acting  on belialf  of  the Truth  or

Corisequences  Animal  Slielter  during  an adoption  event.

(b) Rabbits or fowl. No person shall sell, offer for sale, barter, or give away any baby rabbits under
four  weeks  of  age. Nothirxg  in this  section  shall  be construed  to prohibit  the raising  of  rabbits  and

fowl  by a private  individual  for  his  personal  use and  consuinption,  provided  tliat  lie shall  maintain

proper  brooders  and other  facilities  for  tl'ie care  and  containment  of  such  animals  while  they  are in

his possession.

(c) Premiums  and  novelties.  No  person  shall  offer  as a prcmirim  prize,  award,  novelty,  or incentive  to

purchase  mercliandise  any  live  animal.

(d)  Tiirtles.  No person  shall  offer  for  sale, sell,  barter,  or give  away  tuitles,  except  in conformance

wit}'i  appropriate  federal  regulations.

(e) Sale of  im-weaned animals. A person shall not sell, offer for sale, transfer, or adopt a dog, cat, or
ferret  under  eight  weeks  of  age, or a guinea  pig,  hamster,  or rabbit  under  four  weeks  of  age.

However,  in no event  shall  an animal  be sold,  traiisferred  or adopted  until  it is fully  weaned  and

capable  of  eating  on its own  to sufficiently  maintain  proper  body  condition  as determined  by the

breed  and species  of  tlie  animal.  Nothirig  herein  shall  proliibit  the transfer  of  animals  between

animal  slielters  and animal  rescue  organizations  or prohibit  the sale, transfer,  or adoption  of  an un-

weaned  animal  if  accompanied  by a nursing  female.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-25;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 4, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No. 532,  § 3, 10-14-03)

Sec. 3-7.  - Wild  animals  prohibited.

(a)  No  person  shall  keep  an animal  of  a species  prohibited  or protected  by Title  50 of  the Code  of

Federal  Regulations  or by the  appropriate  state  regulations  or statutes.

(b) No  person  shall  keep  any  animal  which  is wild,  fierce,  dangerous,  noxious,  or  naturally  inclined  to

do harm  except  where  1) adequate  protective  devices  are provided  to prevent  such  animals  from

escaping  or injuring  the public,  and  2) a proper  license  is obtained  in accordance  with  section  3-8.

If  such  requirements  are met,  they  may  be kept  in a zoological  park,  pet  shop,  veterinary  hospital,

animal  shelter,  public  laboratory,  circus,  amusement  show,  educational  facility,  scientific  facility,

or in the control  of  a humane  society.



(c)  Wild  animals  proliibited."Wild  animal"  means  any  animal  of  a species  tliat  in its natural  life  is

wild,  dangerous,  or  ferocious  and though  it may  be trained  and domesticated  will  remain

dangerous  to  otliers  and may  injure  or kill  a citizen  in the  City.  Tliose  animals,  however

domesticated,  shall  include  but  are not  limited  to:

(l)  Dog  family  (canidae).  All  except  domesticated  dogs,  including  wolf,  fox,  coyote,  dingo,  etc.

(2)  Cat  family  (felidae).  All  except  the comi'nonly  accepted  domesticated  cats, iiicluding  lions,

Dog  family  (canidae).  All  except  domesticated  dogs,  including  wolf,  fox,  coyote,  dingo,  etc.

Cat  family  (felidae).  All  except  the comi'nonly  accepted  domesticated  cats, iiicluding  lions,

pumas,  panthers,  mountain  lioris,  wild  cats,  etc.

(3) Bears  (ursidae).  All  bears,  including  grizzly  bears,  brown  bears,  black  bears,  etc.

(4)  Weasels  (mustelidae).  All,  including  weasels,  martins,  mink,  wolverine,  ferrets,  badgers,

otters,  ermiiie,  mongoose,  etc.

(5)  Porcupine  (erethizontidae).

(6) Venomous  snakes.

(7)  Venomous  lizards,  alligators,  and crocodiles.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-26;  Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-26,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 5, 5-13-96)

State  Law  reference-  Sale,  purcliase,  trade  and possessioii  of  certain  animals  regulated,  NMSA  1978,

§ 77-18-1.

Sec. 3-8.  - Licensing  wild  animals.

(a)  Any  person  owning  a wild  animal  covered  by tliis  section  at the time  of  enactment  of  this  Chapter

may  license  sucl'i animal  in accordance  with  law.  A fee set by  resolution  shall  be charged  for  sucli

licensing  through  tlie  City.

(b) For  the  purpose  of  l'aimanely  trapping  wild  animals  sucli  as skunks  and domesticated  dogs  or cats

which  may  be a menace  to the public,  the Animal  Control  Officer  n'iay maintain  such  traps  as are

constructed  for  the purpose  of  trapping  a live  animal  without  serious  risk  of  injury  to the trapped

animal  and wl'iich  may  be placed  on private  property  at the request  of  the owner  thereof.  Traps

shall  be baited  only  iiiside  tl'ie trap  and s}iall  be cliecked  not  less than  twice  a day  by the Animal

Control  Officer  or tlie  property  owner  requesting  the placement  of  such  traps.  All  such  trapping

shall  be in conforinity  with  state  law.

(Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-27,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 6, 5-13-96)

Sec. 3-8.1.  -  Multi-Animal  Site  Permit  and  Kennel  Permit.

(a)  It shall be unlawful  for a property  owner,  tenant,  lessee,  or authorized  resident  of  said

property,  to possess  or liarbor  more  than four  animals  in any combination  thereof,  three

months  of  age or older  on their  residential  or business  premises  without  a multi-animal  site

permit.

(b)  If  a business  premises  is being  used for  the buying,  selling,  breeding,  training,  fostering,

rescuing,  or boarding  of  animals,  said  business  shall  apply  for  a kennel  permit.



(c) Animals  belonging  to visitors  who  are located  within  city  limits  and who  stay  in a liousehold

or lodging  establishment  longer  than 30 days in a calendar  year  shall  be included  in the

calculation  of  total  animals  for  said  location  and the owner  of  the animal  shall  be required  to

comply  with  all  applicable  sections  contained  in this  chapter.

(d) No  person  shall  keep  or operate  a residential  or commercial  multi-animal  site  witbout  a permit

issued  by the city.  All  business  applicants  must  have  a valid  business  license  issued  through

tlie  city  at the time  of  application.

(e)  Veterinary  hospitals  or  clinics  shall  be exempt  from  t]ie  kennel  permit  licensure  requirement  of

this  chapter  unless  the veterinary  liospital  or clinic  engages  in the non-veterinary  medical

boarding  of  animals.

(f)  Any  person  wlio  operates  or proposes  to operate  a residential  or cominercial  multi-animal  site

shall  file  an application  for  a permit  with  the police  department,  describing  the location  of  the

site, and the purpose  for which  it is to be maintained.  An initial  non-refundable  fee,

establislied  by resolution,  for  residential  or commercial  multi-animal  sites must  accompany

any application  to defray  the  cost  of  processing  tlie  request.

(g) Upon  receipt  of  payment,  the police  depaitment  shall  forward  tlie  application  to the Planning

and Zoning  Department.  All  applicatioiis  for multi-animal  site and kennel  permits  shall

undergo  a special  use permit  process  pursuant  to the procedure  detailed  in section  11-5-6  of

the City's  Plaiming  and Zoning  Code.

(h) An  onsite  visit  of  the  premises  shall  occur  by  the animal  control  aiid  designated  zoning  official

or administrator  prior  to a liearing  before  the City's  Planning  and Zoiiing  Board  to verify

compliance  with  this section  and/or  other  applicable  zoning  regulations.  If  any  provision  of

this  section  is in conflict  with  tlie  provision  of  any applicable  zoning  regulation,  the provision

of  the zoning  regulation  sliall  control.

(i)  All  animals  listed  on the application  three  inontlis  of  age or  over  must  be vaccinated  for  rabies

and  possess  a city  animal  liceiise  tag.

(j)  All  multi-animal  residential  or commercial  site  permits  and  kennel  permits  must  be renewed

annually  at a fee established  by resolution.

(k) Tliere  sliall  not be more  than  seven animals  in any combination  thereof  for  multi-animal

residential  or commercial  site permits.  The  maximum  animal  occupancy  for  kei'uiel  permits

shall be  determined  based upon tlie  recommendation  of the animal  control  officer  or

designated  zoning  official  or administrator  to ensure  there  is adequate  space  and adequate

shelter  to ensure  sanitary  and  safe conditions.

(l)  An  application  may  be  denied  if  tlie  applicant  or  animal  owner  shows  a liistory  of

noncompliance  witli  sections  contained  in this  chapter  as evidenced  by  two  or  more

convictions  of  violations  during  the preceding  12 months.  Any  past city  permit  or license

revocations  may  be considered  in decision  making  process  of  whether  to approve  or deny  a

permit  under  this  section.

(m)  Multi-animal  site and kennel  permit  holders  shall  allow  the animal  control  officer,  police

officer,  designated  zoning  official  or  administrator  or  other  city  official  to enter  and  inspect  the

premises  for  compliance  with  this  section  and/or  any  other  city  municipal  code  or ordinances

during  normal  business  hours.



(n) A multi-animal  site permit  or kei'inel  permit  may  be revoked  when,  in the opinion  of  the

designated  zoning  official  or administrator  or animal  control  officer,  any one or more  the

following  conditions  exist:

(1)  The  premises  or enclosures  are not  maintained  in a clean,  safe, and sanitary  condition  and  are a

health,  fire,  or  public  safety  hazard  or  produce  noxious  odors.

(2) The  number  of  animals  exceeds  the  number  allowed  under  the permit.

(3)  Any  other  violation  listed  under  this  chapter  or sectioris.

(o) In cases where  a multi-animal  site  permit  or kennel  permit  is revoked,  tlie  permittee  sliall  be

notified  in writing  via  tl'ie mailing  address  listed  on their  permit  application.  The  revocation

letter  sliall  state the reasons  said  permit  lias been revoked  and tlie option  to file  a written

appeal  witli  tlie  City  Manager  or their  designee  witliin  ten business  days  of  the date  listed  on

t}'ie revocation  letter.  Written  appeals  shall  be hand  delivered  to City  Clerk's  Office  within  the

allotted  timeframe.  The  City  Manager  or tlieir  designee  may  review  the appeal  and  reverse  the

decision,  modify  the decision,  or deny  the appeal  and  uplield  the irxitial  revocation.

(p)  If  a niulti-animal  site permit  or kennel  permit  has been  revoked,  said applicant  and/or  location

of  wliere  the  permit  was issued  shall  not  be allowed  to apply  or obtain  anotlier  permit  witliin  city  limits

for  a period  of  at least  two  years  from  tlie  date  of  revocation.

(Ord.  No.  395,  Fg 1, 10-26-92;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 7, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  532,  § 4, 10-14-03;  Ord.  No.  609,  §

1, 8-30-11 ; Ord. No. 659(1), el 1, 1-13-15)

See. 3-8.2.  Sterilization  Agreement/deposit  for  Spaying  and  neutering  of  dogs  and  cats.

(a) It is tlie  irxtent of  the City  for  all dogs  and cats over  tlie  age of  6 montlis  to be spayed/neutered.

Therefore,  no cat or dog  sliall  be released  from  tlie  animal  shelter  to an adopting  person  rinless  it

lias been  spayed/neutered  or a sterilization  agreement  lias been signed  and a sterilization  deposit

set by  resolutioi  has been  paid.

(b) Tlie  sterilization  deposit  sliall  be  reimbursed  only  upon  presentation  of a receipt  from  a

veterinarian  that  the adopted  animal  has been  sterilized  witliin  30 days  of  the date of  adoption  for

cats/dogs  over  the age of  six  months  or by 6 months  of  age for  kittens  and puppies.

(c)  An unsterilized  animal  reclaimed  by its owner  sliall  be released  without  being  sterilized  upon

payment  of  the sterilization  deposit  and  impoundment/boarding  fees imposed  by the shelter  and  set

by resolution,  and the  owner  shall  sign  an agreement  stating  he/slie  will  sterilize  the animal  within

30 days  after  release  or will  obtain  a breeder  permit  or its equivalent.  The  sterilization  deposit  may

be reimbursed  upon  presemation  by the owner  of  a receipt  from  a veterinarian  that  the animal  has

been  sterilized  within  30 days  of  release.

(NM  Stat § 77-1-20  (2019)  History:  Laws  1993,  ch. 43,  § 3

(Ord.  No.  393,  § 1, 8-24-92;  Ord.  No.  532,  S, 5, 10-14-03;  Ord.  No.  610,  e) 1, 8-30-11)

Sec. 3-8.3.  Female  dogs  or  cats  in Estrus  (heat)  to be confined.

It shall  be unlawful  for  any  owner/responsible  party  to fail  to securely  confine  any  un-spayed  animal  in

the state of  estrus  (heat),  in a house,  building  or proper  enclosure,  in such  a manner  that  such  animal

caru'iot  come  in contact  with  another  animal  except  for  planned  breeding,  and such  that  the  animal  does

not create  a nuisance  by attracting  other  animals.  When  outside  on the property  of  the owner,  for

metabolic  waste  elimination,  the animal  must  be  physically  restrained  with  a hand-held  leash.



Owners/responsible  party  who  do not  comply  may  be ordered  to remove  the animals  in estrus  (heat)  to

a boarding  kennel,  veterinary  hospital  or animal  shelter.  All  expenses  incurred  as a result  of  the

confinement  shall  be paid  by the owner/responsible  party  of  the animal.  Failure  to comply  with  the

removal  order  sliall  be a violation  of  tliis  Section  and  tlie  animal  shall  tlien  be impounded  as prescribed

in this  Title.

(Ord.  No.  436,  § 8, 5-13-96)

Sec. 3-9.  -  Enforcement  and  Interference  with  Enforcement.

(a)  The  civil  and criminal  provisions  of  this  chapter  shall  be enforced  by tliose  persons  or agencies

designated  by the City  Manager.

(b) It sliall  be a violation  of  this  chapter  for  any person  to interfere,  hinder  or molest  any Animal

Control  Officer  or Police  Officer  in the performance  of  tlieir  duties.

(Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-28,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 9, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  532,  § 6, 10-14-03;  Ord.  No.

611,  § 1, 8-30-11)

See. 3-10.  - Reseiyed.

Editor's  note-  Section  l of  Ord.  No.  612,  adopted  Aug.  30, 2011,  repealed  § 3-10,  whicli  pertained  to

fines  and fees  and derived  from  Ord.  No.  384,  F3) 6, adopted  July  22, 1991;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 10, adopted

May  13, 1996;  and Ord.  No.  532,  § 7, adopted  Oct.  14,  2003.

Sec. 3-11.  - Penalty  for  violation  of  chapter.

Aiiy  person  wlio  violates  any  of  the provisions  of  this  chapter  s)iall  be deemed  guilty  of  a misdemeanor

and, IIPOII conviction tliereof, shall be punished in accordance with section 1-10, with each conviction
carrying  a mandatory  minimum  fine  of  $100.00.

(Codel962,  § 6-2-30;  Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-30,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  394,  § 1, 8-24-92;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 11,

5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  532,  § 8, 10-14-03;  Ord.  No.  613,  § 1, 8-30-11)

Sec. 3-12  Deceased  Animal  Disposal  Requirements.

A.  Owner  responsibility  -  The  owner/responsible  paity  having  care,  custody  or control  of  an animal

carcass  sliall  be responsible  for  its removal  witliin  twenty-four  (24)  hours  of  death  if  tlie  animal  is not

to be used  for  human  consumption.

l)  An  animal  carcass  may  be disposed  of  in one of  the following  ways:

a. Burial  of  the animal  carcass  on the owners  land  under  the following  conditions:

The  bottom  of  the burial  pit  must  be at least  3 ft. above  the water  table.

If  possible,  choose  a site where  the soil  is heavier  and less permeable.

Flat  areas are best.  Avoid  areas sloping  toward  water  or  arroyos.

Ensure  the pit  is sized  to allow  soil  to cover  mortalities  to a depth  of  at least  3 ft.



b. Cremation  by a licensed  facility  wliere  the remains  can  be sealed  in an acceptable  urn  for

return  to the animal  owner  or disposed  of  by the facility.

The  cremation  of  the carcass  will  be at the expense  of  tlie  animal  owner.

B. Removal  - The  Animal  Control  Officer  may  remove  any  animal  carcass  from  the roadway  or other

public  property.  The  Animal  Control  Officer  and/or  T or C Animal  Slielter  staff  shall  make  reasonable

efforts  to notify  the animal's  owner  if  known  in tlie  event  of  the animal's  death.

1) Animal  Control  Officer  may  dispose  of  tlie  animal  carcass  at the  T or C Animal  Shelter  as authorized

after  microchip  scanning  and  making  reasonable  efforts  to notify  the animal's  owner.  If  an owner  is

located  and  request  that  tlie  Animal  Sl'ielter  dispose  of  tlie  carcass,  then  the owner/responsible  party  will

be responsible  for  the disposal  fee.

2) Animal  Control  Officer  sliall  turn  over  any  tags  or other  identification  found  on an anin'ial  carcass  to

the T or C Animal  Shelter.

C. Removal  fee - The  Animal  Control  Officer  may,  but  is not  obligated  to, provide  for  the removal  of

an animal  carcass  from  private  propeity  at the request  of  tlie  animal  owner  or propeity  owner  for  a fee.

1) The  fee amorint  shall  be established  by  resolution  or

2) Tlie  fee amount  shall  be establislied  by most  current  rate  scliedule  as provided  by the current

licensed  facility,  contracted  with  tl'ie City  of  Trutli  or Consequerices,  for  cremation  services.

a. This  fee schedule  is based  on the weiglit  of  tlie  carcass.

Secs.  3-13  - 3-25.  - Reserved.

ARTICLE  II.  - CONTROL

DIVISION  1. - GENERALLY

Sec. 3-26.  - Authority  of  Animal  Control  Officers.

(a)  The  office  of  animal  control  officer  is hereby  created.  The  chief  of  police  will  assign  that  duty

as needed.  The  animal  control  officer  shall  be cliarged  with  all  duties  pertaining  to the enforcement  of

ordinances  regulating  or controlling  animals  and fowl  within  the  corporate  limits  of  the city  or in areas

of  other  areas  of  jurisdiction  as specified  in agreemerits  with  other  entities.

(b)  An  Animal  Control  Officer  shall  wear  a uniform  and shall  wear  a badge  identifying  such  officer

as an animal  control  officer.

(c)  It shall  be the duty  of  the animal  control  officer  to take  up and impound  any animal  or fowl

authorized  to be impounded  by this  Code  or by other  ordinances  within  the specified  agreements  with

other  entities.



(d)  It shall  be the duty  of  the animal  control  officer  to investigate  all reported  violations  of  animal

control  ordinances  and to attempt,  when  appropriate,  to solve  sucli  problems  through  conferences  and

issuance of citations or complaints filed with the approliriate  cotut.

(Code  1962,  {S, 6-2-4;  Ord. No.  436, § 12, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No. 532,  § 9, 10-14-03)

State  Law  reference-  Municipal  authority  to designate  animal  control  officer,  NMSA1978,  § 77-1-

15.1B.

Sec. 3-27.  - Establishment  of  Animal  Shelter.

There  is hereby  established  an Animal  Shelter  wliidi  sliall  be located  at a location  designed  by the

Con'imission.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-5)

Sec. 3-28.  - Animal  Shelter,  hours  of  business.

Tbe Animal  Shelter  of  tlie City  of  Truth  or Corisequences  shall  be kept  open to the general  public  for

the transaction  of  business  during  t]ie hours  set by tl'ie City  Manager.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-6;  Ord.  No.  436, § 13, 5-1-3-96)

Sec. 3-29.  - Impoundment.

It is the duty  of  the Animal  Control  Officer  to take up and impound  in t}ie Animal  Shelter  aiiy estray  or

any anii'nal  kept  or maintained  contrary  to this  chapter,  including  any animal  tliat  is allegedly  creating  a

public  nuisance.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-7;  Ord.  No.  384, § 6-2-7,  7-22-91)

State  Law  reference-  Municipal  autliority  to impound  and dispose  of  animals  running  at large,

NMSA  1978,  § 3-1 8-3A(3).

See. 3-30.  - Impounding  strays;  records;  redemption  fees; notice.

(a) No person  sliall,  witliout  tlie knowledge  or consent  of  tlie owner,  hold  or retain  possession  of  any

animal  of  which  he is not tlie owner  for  more  than  24 hours  without  first  reporting  t]ie possession

of  such animal  to the animal  control  officer,  giving  his/her  name and address,  a true and complete

statement  of  the circumstances  under  which  the animal  was taken,  and the location  where  such

animal  is confined.

(b) It is unlawful  for  any person  taking  up an animal  to fail  to give  the notice  required  in subsection  (a)

of  this  section  and for any person  having  such animal  in his/her  possession  to fail  or refuse  to

immediately  surrender  such animal  to the Animal  Control  Officer  upon  demand  thereof.

(c)  If  an stray  animal  is wearing  a license  or other  identification,  it shall  be returned  to the owner  and

a citation  may be issued. If  an stray  animal  is not wearing  a license  or other  identification,  the

animal  sliall  be confined  for a 72-hour  period  at the Animal  Shelter.  The Animal  Shelter  may

dispose  of  stray  animals  impounded  under  this  section  according  to their  policies  and procedures

the day  after  the required  impoundment  period.

(d) No dog or cat that has been impounded  by the Animal  Shelter  will  be sold for  the purpose  of

breeding  or  resale.

(e) An  animal  which  continues  to be an alleged  nuisance  may  be impounded  by the Animal  Control



Officer  until  such  time  as a judgment  is made  by  the  Municipal  Court.

(f)  Animals  confined/impounded  to the Animal  Shelter  may  be released  to tlie rightful  owner  or

designee  after  all applicable  fees liave  been  paid.  Owner  sliall  bear  the cost  of  any  expenditure

while  animal  is confined  including  veterinary  services.

(g)  Reserved.

(h)  Fines  for  violations  of  this  article  shall  be in accordance  witli  tlie  provisions  of  section  I-10.  In

addition,  upon  a finding  of  guilt,  tl'ie City  may  request  tliat  the Municipal  Court  sliall  order  a

defendant  to reimburse  the Animal  Control  Shelter  or Police  Department  for  any costs  associated

with  appreliending  and/or  impounding  the  animal.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-8;  Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-8,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 14, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  614,  § 1,

8-30-11)

Sec. 3-31.  - Restraint  of  animals.

(a)  Physical  restraint  - A  person  owning  or liaving  cliarge,  custody,  or care  over  an animal  shall  keep

the animal  under  humane  physical  restraint  at all  times.

(b)  Draggirxg;  }iobbling  - A person  shall  not  hobble  an animal,  or tetlier  or attacli  any  anii'nal  to any

object  tliat  can be dragged  or moved  by the animal.  SIICII arx animal,  if  not  otherwise  restrained  by

immediate  control  or  enclosure,  shall be  considered  by  the  animal  control  officer  to  be

unrestrairied.  This  shall  not  apply  to livestock  animals  being  properly  used  for  work  purposes.

(c) Owiier's  premises  - A person  owning  or liaving  care,  custody,  or  control  over  an animal  on his or

lier  premises  sliall  restrain  the animal  either  by a secure  enclosure  or by immediate  control.

(1) All  pens,  kennels,  stalls,  corrals,  or otlier  enclosures  used to  restrain  an  animal  shall  be

continuously  maintained  with  preservatives,  fasteners,  and  other  materials  to prevent  deterioration

and animal  escape.  Substantial  and acceptable  locking  or latcliing  devices  shall  be installed  on all

gates  and doors  to animal  enclosures  in such  a manner  as to be inaccessible  to animals  and small

c}iildren  in order  to prevent  animal  escape  and unauthorized  entry.

(2) A person  owning  or liaving  care,  custody,  or control  over  an animal  on his  or her  premises  may  use

a tether  as a means  of  restraint  only  if:

a. The  tetliered  animal  lias  access  to adequate  food,  water,  sliade  and shelter

b. A tether  rised  to restrain  a dog  shall  be at least  12 feet  in lengtli.  Such  tether  sliall  not

enable  the animal  to reach  beyond  the  owner's  propeity.

c. A  tether  used  to restrain  an animal  sliall  be affixed  to a properly  fitting  collar  or harness

worn  by the animal.  A  person  shall  not  wrap  a chain  or tether  directly  around  the  neck

or other  body  part  of  the  animal.

d. A  tetlier  used  to restrain  an animal  shall  be fastened  so that  the animal  may  sit,  walk,  and

lie down  rising  natural  motions.  Such  tether  shall  be unobstructed  by objects  that  may

cause the tether  or animal  to become  entangled,  strangled  or denied  access  to adeqriate

necessities.



(3)  Voice  con'irnands  are not  an acceptable  form  of  restraint.

(d)  Public  premises  - A  person  owning  or having  care,  custody,  or control  over  an animal  off  of  his or

her  premises  sliall  keep  the animal  under  immediate  control.

(1) While  restrained  off  premises  under  the immediate  control  of  the owner  or responsible  party,

the animal  must  be on a leasli  tliat  shall  enable  the handler  to maintain  control  of  tlie  animal.  The

leash  shall  not  exceed  six (6)  feet  in lengtli  while  the animal  is in and around  the inhabitants  of  the

city.

(2) A person  shall  not  carry  an animal  in or upon  any veliicle  in a cruel,  iiihumaiie,  or unsafe

manner.  Animals  carried  in an open  flatbed  vehicle  sliall  be crated  or restrained  upon  a non-slick

surface  and in a n'ianner  that  prevents  tlie  animal  from  falling  out  of  the veliicle.  At  no time  is an

animal  allowed  to sit or stand  in the drivers  lap while  the veliicle  is being  operated  on any public

roadway.

(3)  A  person  in cliarge  of  an ampliibian  or reptile  away  from  the owner's  premises  sliall  keep  the

animal  secured  within  a closed  container  that  will  not  expose  people  unexpectedly  to the animal.

(4)  Voice  commands  are not  an acceptable  form  of  restraint.

(e) Propeity  of  otliers  - A person  owning  or having  care,  custody,  or control  over  an animal  shall  not

detain  or restrain  an animal  upon  aiiother  person's  private  propeity  without  having  permission  from

tlie  resident  or owner  of  such  propeity.

(l)  If  the resident  or owner  does not permit  the animal  being  detained  or restrained  upon  sucli

propetty,  the animal  may  be taken  up and  impounded  by the animal  control  officer  at tlie  request  of

the resident  or owner.

(2) If  the owner  of  a rented  or leased  propeity  does  not  approve  of  an animal  being  restrained  or

detained  by t]ie resident  on such property,  the dispute  shall  be regarded  by the animal  control

officer  as a civil  matter.

(f) Multiple  dwelling  unit  - An  owner,  manager,  agent,  or governing  board  of  any multiple  dwelling

unit,  including  mobile  home  parks  and gated  communities,  shall  not permit  or authorize  any

animal  to be unrestrained  upon  the common  areas  of  the multiple  dwelling  unit,  except  upon  such

areas  and within  such  enclosures  specifically  designated  for  such  activity.

(g)  Exceptions

(1) A  working  dog  that  is under  tlie  control  and supervision  of  the owner  or handier  performing

such  acts as herding,  search  and rescue,  or police  work  shall  not be considered  as unrestrained

while  performing  or being  trained  for  such  duties.

(2) A  hunting,  tracking,  or show  dog that  is under  the control  and supervision  of  the owner  or

handler  shall  not be considered  as unrestrained  while  performing  in or being  trained  for  those

capacities.



Each  animal  cited  as a violation  under  this  section  is considered  a separate  offense.  Upon  a second

conviction  of  an offense  under  this  section,  an offender  may  be sentenced  to imprisonment  of  up to 90

days  at the discretion  of  tlie  court.  The  offender  shall  be fined  a minimum  of  $100.00  per  offense.  Upon

a tliird  or subsequent  conviction  of  an offense  under  this section,  an offender  may  be sentenced  to

imprisonn'ient  of  up to 90 days at the discretion  of  the court.  The offender  shall  be fined  a minimum

$250.00  per offense.  The  fine  penalties  imposed  pursuant  to tliis  paragraph  sliall  not  be suspended  or

deferred  or taken  under  advisement  by  the court.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-12;  Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-12,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 15, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  615,  e) 1,

8-30-11)

Sec. 3-32.  - Breaking  into  Animal  Control  Center,  animal  control  veliicle.

It is unlawful  for any person  to break  open  any pound,  center,  trap,  or animal  control  vehicle

wherein  animals  are impounded  by tlie  Animal  Control  Officer  of  the City,  or in any other  way  to

remove  or assiSt  in tlie  removal  of  any  animal  from  such  poruid,  center,  trap,  or vehicle  without  lawfiil

pelTnlSSlOIl

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-22)

Sec. 3-33.  - Seizure  of  Animals  Notice.

(a)  An  Animal  Control  Officer,  or designee  wlio  reasonably  believes  that  tlie life  or health  of  an

animal  to include  livestock  is endangered  due to cruel  treatment  may  apply  to t}ie municipal  court

in tlie  city  wliere  the anin'ial  is located  for  a warrant  to seize  the animal.

(b)  If  the court  finds  probable  cause  that  the animal  is being  cruelly  treated,  the court  sliall  issue a

warrant  for  the seizure  of  the anin"ial.  The court  shall  also schedule  a hearing  on the matter  as

expeditiously  as possible  within  10 business  days  unless  good  cause  is demonstrated  by  the city  for

a later  time  and such  extension  is approved  by tlie  municipal  court  judge.

(c)  Written  notice  regarding  the time  and location  of  the liearing  shall  be provided  to the owner  of  tlie

seized  animal.  Tlie  court  may  order  publication  of  a notice  of  the  hearing  in a newspaper  closest  to

tlie  location  of  tlie  seizure.

(d)  If  tlie  owner  of  the animal  cannot  be determined  or cannot  be located,  a written  notice  regarding

the circumstances  of  the seizure  shall  be conspicuously  posted  where  the animal  is seized  at the

time  the seizure  occurs.

(e)  At  the option  and expense  of  tlie  owner,  tlie  seized  animal  may  be examined  by a veterinarian  of

the  owner's  choice  if  approved  by  the municipal  couit  judge.

(f)  Iftheanimalisatypeoflivestock,seizureshallbepursuanttoChapter77,Articlel8NMSAl978.

NM  Stat  8, 30-18-1.1  (1996  through  1st  Sess 50th  Legis)

Sec. 3-34  Disposition  of  Seized  Animals

(a)  If  the court  finds  that  a seized  animal  is not  being  cruelly  treated  and  that  the animal's  owner  is

able  to provide  for  the animal  adequately,  the  court  shall  return  the animal  to its owner.



(b) If  the court  finds  that  a seized  animal  is being  cruelly  treated  or that  the animal's  owrier  is

unable  to provide  for  the animal  adequately,  the court  shall  hold  a hearing  to determine  the

disposition  of  the animal.

(c) An  animal  control  agency  operated  by  the municipality,  or  an animal  shelter  or otlier  animal

welfare  organization  designated  by an animal  control  agency  or an animal  shelter,  in the

custody  of  whicli  an animal  that  has been  cruelly  treated  has been  placed  may  petition  the court

to request  that  the animal's  owner  may  be ordered  to post  security  with  tl'ie court  to indemnify

the  costs  incurred  to care  and provide  for  the seized  animal  pending  the  disposition  of  any

criminal  cliarges  of  committing  cruelty  to animals  pending  against  the animal's  owner.

(d) The  cotut  shall  determine  the amorint  of  security  while  taking  irito  consideration  all of  the

circumstances  of  tlie  case including  the owner's  ability  to pay  and may  conduct  periodic  reviews

of  its order.  If  the posting  of  security  is ordered,  tlie  animal  control  agency,  animal  shelter  or

animal  welfare  organization  may,  with  permission  of  the court,  draw  from  the security  to

indemnify  tlie  costs  incurred  to care  and provide  for  the seized  animal  peiiding  dispositioi'i  of

the  criminal  charges.

(e) If  the owner  of  tlie  animal  does not  post  security  within  fifteen  days  after  the issuance  of  the

order,  or if,  after  reasonable  and diligent  attempts  the  owner  cannot  be located,  the animal  may

be deemed  abandoned  and  relinquished  to the animal  control  agency,  aniinal  shelter  or animal

welfare  organization  for  adoption  or luunane  destruction

(f) Notliing  in tliis  sectiori  shall  prohibit  an owner  from  vohmtarily  rclinquishing  an animal  to an

animal  control  agerycy  or slielter  in lieu  of  posting  security.  A voluntary  relinquisl'inient  sliall  not

preclude  fuitlier  prosecution  of  any  criminal  cliarges  alleging  that  the owner  has con'imitted

cruelty  to animals.

(g)  Upon  conviction,  the court  shall  place  the animal  witli  an animal  slielter  or animal  welfare

organization  for  placement  or for  humane  destruction.

(h) As  used in this  section,  "livestock"  means  all  domestic  or  don'iesticated  animals  that  are used  or

raised  on a farm  or ranch  and exotic  animals  in captivity  axid includes  horses,  asses, mules,

cattle,  slieep,  goats,  swine,  bison,  poultry,  ostriches,  emus,  rheas,  camelids  and farmed  cervidae

but  does not  include  canine  or feline  animals.

NM  Stat  § 30-18-1.2  (1996  throrigh  1st  Sess 50th  Legis)

See. 3-35  Costs  of  Seized  Animals

(a) Upon  conviction,  a defendant  shall  be liable  for  the  reasonable  cost  of  boarding  the animal

and all necessary  veterinary  examinations  and care  provided  to the animal.  The  amount  of

these  costs  shall  be offset  by the security  posted  pursuant  to Section  3-36.  Unexpended

security  funds  shall  be returned  to the owner.



(b) In the absence  of  a conviction,  the seizing  agency  shall  bear  the costs  of  boarding  the

animal  and all  necessary  veterinary  examinations  and care  of  the animal  during  the

pendency  of  the proceedings,  return  the animal,  if  not  previously  relinquished,  and all of  the

security  posted  pursuant  to Section  3-36.

NM  Stat § 30-18-1.3  (1996  through  1st  Sess 50tli  Legis)

Secs.  3-36  - 3-50.  - Reserved.

DIVISION  2. - RABIESm

Footnotes:

-(2)  -

Cross  reference-  Healtli  and sanitation,  cli. 6.

Sec. 3-51.  - Vaccinations.

(a)  It is tlie  duty  of  all persons  owning  or keeping  a cat or a dog  or any  member  of  tlie  canine  family

over the  age  of tluaee n'ionths  to  liave  such animals  vaccinated  against  rabies.  The  rabies

vacciiiation  shall  be given  in an amount  sufficient  to provide  iinmui'iity  from  rabies  for  tl'iree years

and shall  be administered  by a licensed  veterinarian.  A  certificate  from  a licensed  veterinarian  shall

be evidence  of  vaccination.  The  Commission  may  require  other  animals  to receive  annual  rabies

vaccination.

(b)  The  veterinarian  admiriistering  anti-rabies  vaccixie  to any  animal  shall  issue  to tlie  owner  or keeper

of  tlie animal  a numbered  vaccination  certificate.  The certificate  sliall  contain  tlie name and

address  of  the owner  or keeper  of  tlie  animal,  a description  of  the animal  vaccinated  tlie date of

vaccination,  and the expiration  date  of  the period  of  immunity.

(c)  It is unlawful  for  tlie  owner  or keeper  of  any  dog,  cat, or any  other  members  of  the canine  or feline

family  to fail  to exhibit  its certificate  of  vaccination  upon  demand  to any police  officer  or animal

control  officer.

(d)  It is the duty  of  all persons  who  adopt  a dog  to liave  sucli  dog  vaccinated  against  rabies,  distemper

complex,  aiid  parvo  virus  within  48 hours  of  adoption.  It is the duty  of  all persons  who  adopt  a cat

to have sucli  cat vaccinated  against  rabies  and feline  distemper  complex  within  48 hours  of

adoption.

(e) Each  animal  cited  as a violation  under  this  section  is considered  a separate  offense.  Upon  a

second  conviction  of an  offense  under  this  section,  an  offender  may  be  sentenced  to

imprisonment  of  up to 90 days at the discretion  of  the court.  The  offender  shall  be fined  a

minimum  of  $100.00  per offense.  Upon  a third  or subsequent  conviction  of  an offense  under

tliis  section,  an offender  may  be sentenced  to imprisonment  of  up to 90 days  at the discretion  of

the corirt.  The offender  shall  be fined  a minimum  $250.00 per offense.  The fine  penalties

imposed  pursuant  to  this  paragraph  shall  not be  suspended  or deferred  or taken  under

advisement  by  the court.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-9;  Ord.  No.  527,  §§ 1, 2, 7-14-03)



State  Law  reference-  Vaccination  of  dogs  and cats  against  rabies,  NMSA  1978,  § 77-l-3.

Sec. 3-52.  - Confinement  of  rabid  animal.

An  animal  tliat  has rabies  or sliows  signs  of  having  rabies,  and every  animal  bitten  by another  animal

afflicted  with  rabies  or that  has been  exposed  to rabies  shall  be confined  at once  in a secure  place  by the

owner.  A persori  who  knows  or who  lias reason  to know  that  an animal  is infected  witli  rabies  or has

been  exposed  to rabies  shall  immediately  upon  learning  of  this  notify  the  Animal  Control  Officer  as to

the place  where  tlie  animal  is confined  and shall  surrender  the animal  to the Animal  Control  Officer

upon  demand.  The  Animal  Control  Officer  shall  then  deal  with  the rabid  animal  pursuant  to state  law.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-10)

Sec. 3-53.  - Biting  dogs  or  other  biting  animals.

(a)  The  owner  of  an animal  that  bites  a person  and a person  bitten  by an animal  have  a duty  to report

that  occurrence  to tlie  Animal  Control  Officer  within  24 hours.  Tlie  owner  of  an animal  that  bites  a

person  shall  surrender  the animal  to an Animal  Control  Officer  to impound  sucli  animal  for a

period  of  observation.

(b) A  physician  who  renders  professional  treatment  to a person  bitten  by an animal  sliall  report  tlie  fact

tliat  lie/slie  has rendered  professional  treatment  to tlic  Chief  of  Police  or anAnii'nal  Control  Officer

within  24 hours  of  his/her  first  professional  attendance.  The  pliysician  shall  report  tlie  nan'ie,  sex,

and address  of  tlie  person  bitten  as well  as tlie  type  and location  of  the bite.  The physician  sl'iall

give  the name  and address  of  the owner  of  the animal  that  iiiflicted  tlie  bite  and other  facts  tliat

may  assist  the  Animal  Control  Officer  in asceitairxing  tlie  immunization  status  of  the animal.

(c)  An  animal  that  bites  a persoi'i  sliall  be confined  securely  at a place  and  for  a period  of  time  deemed

necessary  by the Animal  Control  Officer.  The  owner  of the  aniinal  sliall  bear t)ie  cost of

confinement.

(d)  A person  who  has custody  of  an animal  that  has bitten  a person  shall  immediately  notify  the

Animal  Control  Officer.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-11;  Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-11,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 16, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  616,  § 1,

8-30-11)

State  Law  reference-  Notice  to healt)i  officer  of  aiiimal  bites,  NMSA1978,  § 77-l-6.

Secs.  3-54-3-70.  - Resewed.

DIVISION  3. - LICENSING

Sec.  3-71.  - License  required.

(a)  Any  person  owning,  possessing  or harboring  any dog or cat three  months  of  age or over  shall

obtain  a license  for  each animal.  Application  for  such  license  shall  be made  as directed  and shall

state the name  and address  of  the owner,  the name,  breed,  color,  age and sex of  such  animal  and

any  other  information  deemed  necessary.  A current  rabies  vaccination  certificate  shall  be presented

at the time  of  application  for  the license.  Upon  payment  of  the license  fee, as prescribed  in

subsection  (d)  of  this  section,  a license  ceitificate  and  tag  for  each  animal  shall  be issued.  If  the  tag

is lost,  replacement  tags with  a cost  set by resolution  shall  be purchased.  The  license  shall  expire

on the  same  date  as the rabies  certificate  or one  year  whichever  is greater.



(b) A current  license  tag sliall  be affixed  to the licensed  dog  or cat at all times  in a reasonable  manner,

unless  the licerxsed  dog  or cat is being  kept  in an approved  kei'inel,  veterinary  hospital,  is appearing

in an approved  ShOW, or is being  trained.  Provided  that  the person  that  is training  the dog shall

have  in his personal  possession  the valid  license  tag for  each dog or cat and shall  immediately

display  such  upon  request  of  the  Animal  Control  Officer  or a regular  law  enforcement  officer.

(c)  Animals  belonging  to nonresidents  who  do not  keep  said  animals  within  the corporate  limits  of  the

city  for  30 consecutive  days  shall  be exempt  from  this  section,  provided,  however,  that  all otlier

provisions  of  this  division  be complied  with.

(d) Tlie  annual  license  fee shall  be set by resolution  for  eacli  neutered  or spayed  dog  or cat.  The  annual

license  fee shall  be set by resolution  for  each  unneutered  or un-spayed  dog  or cat. No  fee shall  be

cliarged  for  the licensure  of  qualified  service  animals  tliat  are trained  to lead partially  or totally

blind  persons,  aid liearing  impaired  persons  or assist  mobility  impaired  persons.  A fee shall  be

charged  for  each dog or cat that  has not been spayed  or neutered,  unless  the owner  presents  a

signed  statement  from  a licensed  veterinarian  stating  that  spaying  or neutering  would  be a surgical

risk  for  tlie  animal,  due to the animal's  age or condition.

(e)  Within  5 business  days  upon  change  of  owiiersliip  of  any dog  or cat,  tlie  new  owner  sliall  apply  for

a new  license  with  tlieir  personal  identifying  information.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-14;  Ord.  No.  384,  § 6-2-14,  7-22-91;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 17, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  564,  § 1,

11-14-06;  Ord.  No.  659(1),  (§ 1, 1-13-15)

State  Law  reference-  Municipal  autliority  to require  licensing  of  dogs,  NMSA  1978,  § 77-1-15.1.

Sec. 3-72.  - Unlawful  use of  license  tag.

It is unlawful  for any person  to remove  any license  tag from  one dog or cat to anotlier.  It shall  be

ui'ilawful  for  any person  to manufacture,  cause  to be manufactured,  or to have in his possession  or

under  his  control  a stolen,  counterfeit,  or forged  license  tag,  rabies  vaccinatiorx  ceitificate,  or otlier  form

of  licensing  as required  under  this  division.

(Codel962,§6-2-21)

(Ord.  No.  564,  § 1, 11-14-06)

Secs.  3-373-  3-90.  - Reserved.

DIVISION  4. - AT  LARGE,  VICIOUS,  NUISANCE

Sec. 3-91.  - Running  at large.

(a) It is unlawful  for  any  person  to allow  or permit  any  animal  to run  at large  in public  or on any public

street,  public  alley,  public  sidewalk,  private  or public  vacant  lot, or private  property  without  the

permission  of  the owner  thereof.  Any  animal  permitted  to run  at large  in violation  of  tliis  section  is

declared  to be a nuisance,  a menace  to the public  health  and safety,  and shall  be taken  up and

impounded  as provided  in  section  3-30.

(b) Each  anin'ial  cited  as a violation  under  this  section  is considered  a separate  offense.  Upon  a second

conviction  of  an offense  under  this  section,  an offender  may  be sentenced  to imprisonment  of  up to 90

days  at the  discretion  of  the court.  The  offender  shall  be fined  a minimum  of  $100.00 per  offense.  Upon

a third  or subsequent  conviction  of  an offense  under  this  section,  an offender  may  be sentenced  to



imprisonment  of  up to 90 days  at the discretion  of  the court.  The  offender  shall  be fined  a minimum

$250.00 per offense.  The  fine  penalties  imposed  pursuant  to this  paragraph  shall  not  be suspended  or

deferred  or taken  under  advisement  by the couil

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-15)

State  Law  reference-  Municipal  authority  to make  provision  for  the seizure  of  dogs  and cats running

at large,'  NMSA  1978,  § 77-1-12

(Code  1962,  § 6 2 16)

Sec.  3-392  - 3-93.  - Reseiaved.

Editor's  note-  Ord.  No.  436,  § 18, adopted  May  13, 1996,  repealed  § 3-93,  whicli  pertained  to

unenclosed  premises  and  derived  from  Code  1962,  e) 6-2-17.

Sec.  3-94.  - Vicious  animals.

It is unlawful  for  any person  to keep or liarbor  a vicious  animal  in the City.  Any  persori  attacked  by a

vicious  animal  may use necessary  force  to repel  said attack.  After  a judicial  determination  that  an

animal  is vicious,  the owner  or keeper  of  such  vicious  animal  shall  turn  sucli  animal  over  to tlie  Animal

Control  Officer,  who  shall  destroy  it humanely.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-18;  Ord.  No.  505,  § 1, 2-11-02;  Ord.  No.  621,  § 1, 11-22-11)

State  Law  reference-  Vicious  animals,  NMSA  1978,  § 77-1-10.

Sec. 3-95.  - Disturbing  tlie  peace.

It is unlawful  for  a person  owning  or having  the care,  custody  or control  of  an animal  to permit  tliat

animal  to liowl,  bark  or create  noise  which  disturbs  the comfort  and repose  of  any  person  of  ordinary

sensibilities  in the vicinity.  It shall  be a violation  of  this  section  if  tlie howling,  barking  or noise  is

frequent  or loiig  continued;  is audible  beyond  t}ie property  line  of  the premises  on which  the animal  is

located.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-19;  Ord.  No.  617,  § 1, 8-30-11  ; Ord.  No.  659(2),  § 1, 1-13-15)

Cross  reference-  Offenses  relating  to public  order  and safety,  § 8-31 et seq.

Sec.  3-96.  - Public  nuisance.

a. Propeity  damage;  nuisance.  A  person  owning  or liaving  care,  custody,  or  control  over  an

animal  shall  prevent  tlie  animal  from  causing  damage  or being  a nuisance  to tlie  person

or property  of  ai'iother.

b. Pet Waste.  A  person  owning  or having  care,  custody,  or  control  over  a pet  such  as a dog

or cat shall  dispose  of  the  waste  from  the animal  in a wateitight  and fly  tight  receptacle,

which  shall  be emptied  frequently  and  in such  a manner  so as to prevent  a nuisance  or

health  hazard  by  noxious  or offensive  odors.

c. Public  defecatioxi.  A  person  owning  or having  care,  custody,  or control  over  an animal

shall  not  permit  the animal  to defecate  on public  property  or  the property  of  another

unless  such  animal  waste  is immediately  removed  and  properly  disposed  of.

d. Feeding  animals  running  at large.  A  person  shall  not  feed  an animal  running  at large



It is unlawful  for  tl'ie owner  of  any  anin'ial  to be in violation  of  tlie  public  nuisance  definition  and sucli

violation  will  be punished  ixi accordance  with  section  1-10.

(Code  1962,  § 6-2-20;  Ord.  No.  436,  § 19, 5-13-96;  Ord.  No.  618,  § 1, 8-30-11)

Editor's  note-  Section  I of  Ord.  No.  618,  adopted  Aug.  30, 2011,  changed  the title  of  § 3-96  from

"Nuisances  on sidewalks,  public  parks,  alleys"  to "Public  nuisance."

Sec. 3-97.  - Dangerous  and  potentially  dangerous  dogs.

(a)  Short  title.  This  section  may  be known,  and  will  be cited,  as the "Dangerous  Dog  Ordinance".

(b)  Findings  cmd intent.

(1)  Every  year  innocent  people,  predominantly  children,  are injured  and sometii'nes  killed  as a

result  of  the actions  of  dangerous  dogs.

(2)  No  person  has an absolute  right  to keep  or liarbor  a dangerous  or potentially  dangerous  dog

within  the City.

(3)  Tliis  section  will  protect  the inhabitants  of  the City,

(4)  Tliis  section  will  provide  for  the proper  registration  and tracking  of  dangerous  or potentially

dangerous  dogs  witliin  the City.

(5)  Tliis  section  will  assist  in providing  control  over  dangerous  and potentially  dangerous  dogs.

(c) Definitions.

Animcd  control  ai.tthorit)i:  The Animal  Shelter  and Animal  Control  Officer(s)  of  tlie Police

Department  of  the City  is charged  with  addressing  animal  control  issues  within  the City.

Dangerous  dog:  A  dog  that  caused  a serious  injury  to a person  or domestic  animal.

Owner:  A person  who  possesses,  harbors,  keeps  or has control  or custody  of  a dog  or, if  that

person  is under  tlie  age of  18, tliat  person's  parent  or guardian.

Potentially  &mgerous  dog:  A dog  that  may  reasonably  be assumed  to pose  a threat  to public

safety  as demonstrated  by the following  behaviors:

(1)  Causing  an injury  to a person  or domestic  aiiimal  tliat  is less severe  than  a serious

lnJtlr)';  Or

(2)  Chasing  or menacing  a person  or domestic  animal  in an aggressive  manner  and without

provocation;  or

(3)  Acting  in a highly  aggressively  manner  within  a fenced  yard  or enclosure  and  appearing

able  to jump  out  of  the yard  or enclosure.

Proper  endosure:  Secure  confinement  indoors  or outdoors,  such as in a fenced  yard,  locked

pen or other  structure  that  is designed  to prevent  the animal  from  escaping  the confined  area  and

young  children  from  entering  tlie  confined  area  but  does  not  include  chaining,  restraining  or other

affixing  the  animal  to a stationary  object.

Serious  injury.'  A  physical  injury  that  results  in broken  bones,  multiple  bites  or disfiguring

lacerations  reqriiring  sutures  or reconstructive  surgery.

(d)  Exceptions.  A  dog  will  not  be declared  a dangerous  or potentially  dangerous  dog  if:

(1)  The  dog  is used  by a law  enforcement  official  for  legitimate  law  enforcement  purposes;  or



(2)  Tlie  threat,  injury  or damage  sustained  by a person  or domestic  animal  is the result  of  the

person  or domestic  animal:

a. Trespassing  upon  premises  occupied  by the owner  or tlie  dog;  or

b. Provoking,  tormenting,  abusing  or assaulting  the dog, or in the past has repeatedly

provoked,  tormented,  abused  or assaulted  tlie  dog;  or

c. Committing,  or attempting  to commit,  a crime;  or

(3)  The  dog  was:

a. Responding  to pain  or injury;  or

b.  Protecting  itself  or its offspring;  or

c. Protecting  or defending  a human  being  or domestic  animal  fron'i  attack  or assault.

(e) Seizure qf  dog-Petition  to court ofcompetent jurisdiction.

(l)  If  an animal  control  authority  has probable  cause  to believe  that  a dog  is a dangerous  dog

and poses  an imminent  threat  to public  safety,  the animal  control  authority  may  appiy  to a

couit  of  competent  jurisdiction  in the county  where  tlie  animal  is located  for  a warrant  to seize

the  animal.

(2)  If  an animal  control  autliority  lias probable  cause to believe  tliat  a dog is a potentially

dangerous  dog  and poses  a tlireat  to public  safety,  the animal  autliority  may  apply  to a court  of

competent  jurisdiction  in the county  where  the animal  is located  for  a warrant  to seize the

animal.

(3)  After  seizure,  the animal  control  autliority  will  impound  the dog  pending  disposition  of  the

case or until  the owner  lias  fulfilled  tlie  requirements  for  a certificate  of  registration  pursuant

to the provisions  of  subsection  (e) of  this  section.

(4)  After  seizure:

a. Tlie  owner  may  admit  that  the dog  is dangerous  or potentially  dangerous  aiid  comply  with

tlie  requirements  for  a certificate  of  registration  pursuant  to subsection  (e) of  this  section;

or

b.  Tlie  animal  control  autliority  may,  within  14 days  after  seizure  of  tlie  dog,  bring  a petition

in a court  of  competent  jurisdiction  seeking  a determiiiation  of whether  the dog is

dangerous  or potentially  dangerous.  If  the court  finds,  by clear  and convincing  evidence,

tliat  the dog  is dangerous  and poses  an imminent  threat  to public  safety  or potentially

dangerous  and poses  a threat  to public  safety,  the couit  shall  order  the owner  to comply

with  the registration  and handling  requirements  for  the dog  and obtain  a certificate  of

registration  within  30 days  or have  the dog  humanely  destroyed.  If  the court  does not

make  the required  findings  pursuant  to tliis  paragraph,  the court  shall  immediately  order

the release  of  the dog  to the  owner.

(5)  If  the owner  does not admit  that  the dog is dangerous  or potentially  dangerous  and the

animal  control  authority  does  not  bring  a petition  in court  within  14 days  of  seizure  of  the dog,

the coiut  shall  immediately  order  the release  of  the dog  to its owner.

(6)  If  the owner  admits  that  the dog is dangerous  and transfers  ownership  of  the dog  to the

animal  control  authority,  the animal  control  authority  may  humanely  destroy  the  dog.

(7)  A determination  that  a dog  is not  dangerous  or potentially  dangerous  shall  not  prevent  the



animal  control  authority  from  making  a subsequent  application  for  seizure  based  on tlie  dog's

subsequent  beliaviors.

(f)  Dangerous  arid  potentially  dcmgerous  dogs-Registration  required.

(1)  Upon  application,  an animal  control  autliority  shall  issue a certificate  of  registration  to tl'ie

owner  of  a dangerous  or potentially  dangerous  dog  if  the owner  establislies  that:

a. The  owiier  is able  to keep  the dog  rinder  control  at all  times;  and

b. A  license,  if  applicable,  has been  issued  pursuant  to tlie  requirements  of  the City;  and

c. The  dog  has a current  rabies  vaccination;  and

d. Tlie  owner  lias  a proper  enclosure  to the dog;  and

e. The  owner  has paid  an annual  fee set by  resolutioii  to register  a dangerous  or potentially

dangerous  dog.;  and

f.  The  dog  has been  spayed  or neutered;  and

g. The  dog  has  been  implanted  witli  a microchip  containing  owner  identification

information  that  is also  provided  to tlie  animal  control  authority;  and

li.  The owner  lias entered  the dog in a socialization  and behavior  program  approved  or

offered  by the animal  control  autliority.

(2)  If  a dog previously  determined  to be daiigerous  or potentially  dangerous  has not  exliibited

ariy of  the beliaviors  specified  in this section  for 36 consecutive  montl'is,  the owner  may

request  the animal  comrol  authority  in the City  to  lift  the requirements  for registration

pursuant  to this  section.  If  the animal  control  authority  lias no reasonable  basis  to believe  that

the dog  has exhibited  the behaviors  specified,  it shall  relieve  the owner  of  t]ie requirements  of

tliis  section.

(3)  An animal  control  authority  shall  issue a certificate  of  registration  to the owner  of  a

dangerous  dog  if  the owner,  in addition  to the requirements  of  subsection  (e)(l)  of  this  section,

establisl'ies  that:

a. Tlie  owner  has paid  aii ai'u'uial  fee set by resolution,  as established  by the animal  control

autl'iority  to register  a dangerous  dog;  and

b.  The owner  has written  permission  of  the propeity  owner  or liomeowner's  association

where  the dangerous  dog  will  be kept,  if  applicable;  and

c. The dangers  dog will  be maintained  exclusively  on the owner's  propeity  except  for

medical  treatment  or examination;  and

d.  Wlien  the dangerous  dog  is removed  fron'i  tlie  owner's  property,  tlie  dog  shall  be caged  or

muzzled  and restrained  witli  a lead  no longer  than  four  feet,  and the dog shall  be under

complete  control  at all  times;  and

e. The  dangerous  dog  will  not  be transported  in a vehicle  that  might  allow  the dog  to escape

or gain  access  to any  person  or animal  outside  the  vehicle;  and

f.  A clearly  visible  waianing  sign  with  a conspicuous  warning  symbol  indicate  there  is a

dangerous  dog  on tlie  premises  is posted  where  the  dog  is kept  and  is visible  from  a public

roadway  or from  50 feet,  whichever  is less.

(4)  An  animal  control  autliority  may  order  the immediate  impoundment  or humane  destruction



of  a dog previously  determined  to be a dangerous  dog if  the owner  fails  to comply  with  the

conditions  for  registration,  confinement  or handling  set forth  in this  section.

(g)  Prohibited  acts.

(1)  It is unlawful  for  an owner  of  a dangerous  or potentially  dangerous  dog to:

a. Keep  the dog witliout  a valid  certificate  of  registration;  or

b. Violate  the registration  and handling  requirements  for  the dog;  or

c. Fail  to notify  the aniinal  control  autl'iority  immediately  upon:

1. The  escape of  the dog;  or

2. An  attack  by the dog  upon  a liuman  being  or a domestic  animal;

d. Fail  to notify  the animal  coiitrol  arithority  of  the dog's  deatli  within  five  business  days; or

e. Fail  to notify  the animal  control  authority  within  24 hours  if  the dog lias been sold or

given  away and to provide  tlie name,  address  and telephone  number  of  tlie  new  owner  of

the dog;  or

f.  Fail  to surreiider  the dog to an animal  control  authority  for  safe confinement  pending  a

detern'iination  of  the case where  tliere  is reason  to believe  that  the dog poses an imminent

threat  to public  safety;  or

g. Fail  to comply  with  special  handling  or case requirements  for  tlie dog that  a court  has

ordered.

(2)  Whoever  violates  a provision  of  subsection  (g)(l)  shall  be charged  in the Municipal  Couit  iii

wliich  the aniinal  is located  with  a violation  of  tlie Dangerous  Dog Ordinance,  and upon

conviction  shall be sentenced  to a fine not to exceed $500.00,  or 90 days imprisonment,  or

botli  fines  and imprisonment.

(Ord.  No. 546, §§ 1-7,  10-11-05;  Ord.  No. 619, § 1, 9-27-11)

Editor's  note-  Ord.  No. 546, §§ 1-7,  adopted  Oct. 11, 2005,  set out  provisions  intended  for  use as FS)

3-101.  At  the editor's  discretion,  these provisions  have  been included  as e) 3-97.

Sec. 3-98.  -  Safekeeping  of  animals  by the  Animal  Shelter

Under  unforeseen  circumstances,  a police  officer,  animal  control  officer,  or  animal  owner  may  require

an animal  to be placed  in the care and custody  of  the Animal  Shelter  to ensure  that  the animal  is

properly  cared  for. In these situations,  the safekeeping  of  the animal  shall  only  occur  for  a period  of  not

more  than  72 hours  at tlie expense  of  tlie owner  pursuant  to fees established  by resolution.  The  owner

shall  be responsible  for  contacting  a designated  person  or organization  to pick  up the animal  from  the

Animal  Shelter  and tlie  owner  sliall  provide  written  authorization  to tlie  Animal  Shelter  as to the

responsible  person  or organization  taking  custody  of  the animal.  After  the initial  72 hour  period  has

expired,  the  animal  is no longer  classified  as a safe keep  and the animal  shall  be considered  abandoned

and property  of  the City  unless  the owner  or designated  paity  notifies  the City  in writing  of  a date and

time  tlie animal  will  be picked  up, not  to exceed  an additional  72 hours  at the owner's  expense.  No

animal  shall  be released  from  the Animal  Shelter  until  all fees are paid  in full.  Owners  who  knowingly

abandon  or fail  to arrange  for  pickup  of  their  animal  at tlie  Animal  Shelter  may be prosecuted  under

other  sections  within  the Municipal  Code.



See. 3-99.  -  Livestock  running  at large.

It is unlawful  for  the owners  of  livestock  to willfully  allow  the  livestock  to run  at large  within  the city

limits.  The  owners  of  the livestock  are subject  to prosecution  under  this  section  regardless  of  the

livestock's  origination.

As  used  in  this  section,  "livestock"  means  all  domestic  or domesticated  animals  that  are used  or raised

011 a farm  or ranch  arxd exotic  animals  in captivity  and  includes  horses,  asses,  mules,  cattle,  sheep,

goats,  swirie,  bison,  poriltry,  ostriches,  emus,  rheas,  camelids  and  farmed  cervidae  but  does  not  include

canine  or feline  animals.

BE  IT  ORDAINED  BY  THE  BOARD  OF  COMMISSIONERS.  CITY  COMMISSIONERS  OF

THE  CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES:

Section  1.  All  Ordinances  or  Resoh'itions,  or parts  thereof,  inconsistent  herewith  are  hereby

repealed  to the extent  only  of  sucli  inconsistency.  This  Repealer  shall  not  be construed  to revive  any

Ordinance  or Resolution  or part  thereof,  ]ieretofore  repealed.

Section  2. Tliis  Ordinance  shall  take  effect  on the  9"1 day  of  2022.

PASSED,  APPROVED  AND  ADOPTED  this  9'h day  of  February,  2022.

CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES,  NEW  MEXICO

anda  Forrister:

bal r.r

i.l'i "  Angela  A. Torres- City  Clerk



Oity of'l'rutFt or(J:ortsequences

AGENDA REQUEST FORM Age,a  Item .7J- H, II

,  MEETING  DATE:  August  14,  2024

SUBJECT: Discussion/Action  - Resolution 05 24/25 Establishing Solid Waste and Recycling Service
and  Collection  Center  Rates  for  The  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences

DEPARTMENT:  Community  Development

DATE  SUBMITTED:  July  4, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Traci  Alvarez

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE  ITEM:  Traci  Alvarez  -  Assistant  City  Manager

Summary/Background:
The  City  Commission  approved  the  Cost  of  Rate  Study  for  the  Solid  Waste  and  Recycling  Service  and

Collection  Center  on 2-28-2024.  Commission  approved  delaying  annual  rate  increase  at the  6-12-24

meeting  to allow  for  necessary  ordinance  changes.  Staff  is requesting  to  implement  new  rates  effective

November  1,  2024,  to  allow  for  ample  time  to  notify  customers  with  future  increases  taking  place  July  1 as

previously  established.

Recommendation:

Approve  Resolution 05 24/25

Attachments:

*  Resolution 05 24/25
*  Exhibits  A & B

*  Solid  Waste  and  Recycling  Cost  of  Service  and  Collection  Rate  Study

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

Annual  Increase  to  SW Dept  Revenue

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Click  here  to enter  text

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  []  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No. Click  here  to  enter  text.  Ordinance  No.  Click  t'iere  to eriter  text.

Continued  To: Click  tiei-e  to enter  a date.  Referred  To:  Chick here  to eriter  text.

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  Clid<  l'iere  ta ei'itertext.

File Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24



RESOLUTION  N0.  05 24/25

A  RESOLUTION  EST  ABLISHING  SOLID  WASTE  AND  RECYCLING  SERVICE  AND

COLLECTION  CENTER  RATES  FOR  THE  CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES

WHEREAS,  the City  of  Truth  or Consequences  owns  and  operates  the Truth  or Consequences

Sanitation  Department  and Recycling  and Solid  Waste  Collection  Center  and  is responsible  for

establishing  fees and other  charges;  and

WHEREAS,  The  City  procured  a rate study  to update  the  rates  for  the Sanitation  Department  and

Recycling  and  Solid  Waste  Collection  Center;  and

WHEREAS,  the goal  of  the rate study  is to gradually  work  towards  equitable  cost  of  service

across  all  classes  of  Solid  Waste  and Recycling  service  and  collection;  and

NOW  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED  by  the Governing  Body  of  the City  of  Truth  or

Conseqriences:

1.  The  Solid  Waste  and Recycling  Service  and Collection  fees as set forth  in Exhibit  "A

and  B"  attached  hereto  and  incorporated  herein  by  this  resolution,  will  be effective

October  1, 2024  and annually  thereafter  July  1st.

2.  The  Truth  or Consequences  Board  of  Cornrnission  or Designee  may  review  the  fees

set forth  in  Exhibit  A  and B annually.

PASSED,  APPROVED  AND  ADOPTED  on this  14th day  of  August,  2024.

Rolf  Hechler,  Mayor

Angela  Torres,  City  Clerk-Treasurer



City  ofTruth  or Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Dumpster  Proposed  Rates

EXHIBITA

Rates are applied  pet dumpstet  times  the amount  of collections  per  week

7__7at___7______7____[_________-i%f%-ii'7'aa..T'aasaaaa+a".aa=a'a'o"a'+'a'a'aaaaa"+'=-'a':--0aaaaa="='al
Container Collections  perWeek

Size (yrd) 1 2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

$ 69.57  $ 88.45 $ 123.29  $ 158.13  $ 192.96  $ 227.80

$ 69.57  $ 96.99  $ 13B.11  $ 175.22  $ 214.34  $ 253.45

FY 2025 Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  pet Week

Size iyrd) 1 2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

$ 30.00  $ 60.00 $ 90.00  $ 120.00  $ 150.00  $ 180.00

$ 30.00  $ 60.00 $ 90.00  $ 120.00  $ 150.00  $ 180.00

i":at-wt'-"h':4>+la":"'I:"-"a'.'m':"'"J%T.,:,7_,.am:aaQy_,.z._J%7_fg_aa_,,a?f':a'y.aalaax%aaa%t'%=%.:..l_.__'!1Y)I::*aL7.l1_m_ralajaall=a4a'"":""'-*-%::a':
Container Collections  per Week

Size (ytd) 1 2 3 4 5 €

1.5

3

$ 74.79  $ 95.08  $ 132.53  $ 169.9B  $ 207.44  $ 244.89

$ 74.79  $ 104.27  $ 146.32  $ 188.37  $ 230.41  $ 272.46

FY 2026 Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  perWeek

Size (yrd) 1 2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

$ 31.50  $ 83.00 $ 94.50  $ 126.00  $ 157.50  $ 189.00

$ 31.50  $ 63.00 $ 94.50  $ 126.00  $ 157.50  $ 189.00

f:J.l.'J7:'_a r..m.m_m_m_:m...m3_!Ni_}m___,  :m..i2.S.m._m__:m__::_..._'

Container Collections  per Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

$ 80.40  $ 102.21  $ 142.47  $ 182.73  $ 223.00  $ 263.26

$ 80.40  $ 112.09  $ 157.29  $ 202.49 $ 247.69  $ 292.90

FY 2027 Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  pet Week

Size (yrd) 1 2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

$ 33.08  $ 66.15 $ 99.23  $ 132.30  $ 165.38  $ 198.45

$ 33.08  $ 66.15 $ 99.23  $ 132.30  $ 165.38  $ 198.45

[,:::m:x__.w:_iwmwT::..:_________+y.]3?tLff______ ________- _..,_ay:__ ta___  1
Container Collections  per Week

Size (yrd) 1 2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

$ 86.43  $ 109.88  $ 153.16  $ 196.44  $ 239.72  $ 283.00

$ 86.43  $ 120.50  $ 189.09  $ 217.68 $ 266.27  $ 314.86

Schedule 11

FY 2028 Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4 5 e

1.5

3

$ 34.73  $ 69.46  $ 104.19  $ 138.92  $ 173.64  $ 208.37

$ 34.73  $ 69.46  $ 104.19  $ 138.92  $ 173.64  $ 208.37

Page 1 of 1

Prepared By NewGen Strategies and Solutions 7/4/2024



Schedule  12

City  of Truth or Consequences,  New Mexico

Solid Waste  Cost  of Service  Study

Collection  Center  Proposed  Rates

Exhibit  B

EY2Q2!i
Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) PerTon

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  lbs

MSW

YaTd Waste

$ 9.00 $ 18.00 $ 27.00 $ 3B.00 $ 54.00
$ g.oo $ is.oo  $ 27.00 $ ss.oo $ 54.00

$ go.oo
$ 90.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per Ton

Commercial 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  kbs

C&D

Yard  WaSte

$ 9.00 $ 18.00 $ 27.00 $ 36.00 $ 54.00

$ 9.00 $ 18.00 $ 27.00 $ 36.00 $ 54.00

$ 90.00
$ 90.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) PerTon

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-800  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  lbs

MSW

YaTd Wa!ite

$ io.so  $ 21.00 $ 31.50 $ 42.00 $ ss.oo
$ 10.50 $ 21.00 $ 31.50 $ 42.00 $ 63.00

$ 105.00
$ 105.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Commercial 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  lbs

C&D

Yard  WaSte

$ 10.50 $ 21.00 $ 31.50 $ 42.00 $ 83.00

$ 10.50 $ 21.00 $ 31.50 $ 42.00 $ B3.00

$ 105.00
$ 105.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) PerTon

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  lbs

MSW

YaTd WaSte

$ ii.so  $ 23.00 $ 34.50 $ 46.00 $ se.oo
$ 11.50 $ 23.00 $ 34.50 $ 46.00 $ 69.00

$ 115.00

$ 115.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) PerTon

Commercial 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,2004  lbs

C&D

Yard  Waste

$ 11.50 $ 23.00 $ 34.50 $ 48.00 $ 69.00
$ 11.50 $ 23.00 $ 34.50 $ 46.00 $ 69.00

$ 115.00

$ 115.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) PerTon

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  kbs

MSW

Yard  Waste

$ 11.50 $ 23.00 $ 34.50 $ 46.00 $ 69.00
$ 11.50 $ 23.00 $ 34.50 $ 4B.00 $ 69.00

$ 115.00

$ 115.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) PerTon

Commercial 0-200  201-400  401-600  801-800  801-1,200 1,200+  lbs

C&D

Yard  WaSte

$ 11.50 $ 23.00 $ 34.50 $ 48.00 $ 69.00
$11.50 $ 23.00 $ 34.50 $ 46.00 $ 69.00

$ 115.00

$ 115.00

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and Solutions

Page 1 oT 1

7/412024



m&Solutions Parkhill
www  newqenstrateqieb  riet

IJ

llil

e il'N

I I



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY  LEFT BLANK.]

Blank pages have been included to facilitate  double-sided  printing.



DocuSign  Envelope  IC: 00030F4C-EB5F-43D3-8FF5-08B421FCBF11

Solutions Parkhill

8140 Norili MopaeExpressway

Suite 1-240

Ausiin, TX 78759

Phone: (512) 806-7713

January  31, 2024

Ms.  Traci  Alvarez

Assistant  City  Manager

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences

505 Sims

Truth  or  Consequences,  NM 87901

Subject: Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  and  Rate  Design  Study  -  Final  Report

Dear  Ms. Alvarez:

The Project  Team  of Parkhill  and NewGen  Strategies  and Solutions,  LLC (NewGen),  as a subcontractor  to

Parkhill,  is pleased  to submit  the  enclosed  report  to  the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  (City)  detailing  the

analysis  and conclusions  resulting  from  the  Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  and Rate Design  Study  (Study).  The

Study  equitably  distributes  costs between  the appropriate  customer  classes, and designs  rates  to

safeguard  the  financial  integrity  of  the  solid  waste  utility,  while  ensuring  that  the  rate  structure  is fair  to

all customer  classes.

We  appreciate  the  opportunity  to  assist  the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  in this  engagement.  In addition,

we would  like to express  our  sincere  appreciation  to you and your  staff  for supplying  the needed

information  and data.  Please  contact  us if you have  any questions  concerning  this  Study.

Sincerely,

NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions,  LLC

DocuSigned  by:

500E94C76CC84BC

Dave  Yanke

President

Parkhill

d-=l(y-=
628FC65525C5422

Michael  Crepeau,  P.E.

Senior  Associate

Economics Strategy I Stakeholders
www.newgenstrategies.net

Sustainability



Table of Contents

Section  I  Introduction 1-1

Background......  .

Current  Solid  Waste  Services  and  Rates

. 1-1

1-1

Residential  Cart  Service

Commercial  Cart  Service.

Commercial  Dumpster  Collection  (Refuse).

Commercial  Dumpster  Collection  (Recycle).

Collection  Center

1-1

. 1-2

. 1-2

1-3

. 1-3

Project  Approach 1-3

Data  Request.

Project  Meetings.

. 1-3

. 1-4

Section  2 Cost  of  Service  Analysis

Methodology  Overview..

2-1

2-1

Development  of  the  Revenue  Requirement

Selection  of  the  Test  Year...

.2-2

. 2-2

Development  of  the  Revenue  Requirement  Forecast. 2-2

Allocation  to  Customer  Classes. 2-4

Determination  of  Billing  Units. . 2-5

Poly  Cart  Collection....

Commercial  Dumpster  Collection  (Refuse).

Commercial  Dumpster  Collection  (Recycle)

Collection  Center

. 2-5

2-6

. 2-6

2-7

Disposal. .2-7

Calculation  of  the  Cost  of  Service 2-7

Poly  Cart  Collection  Service

Commercial  Dumpster  Collection.

Collection  Center....

2-8

.2-9

2-10

Section  3 Key  Findings  and  Recommendations 3-1

Revenue  Reconciliation  from  Current  Rates 3-1

Rate  Recommendations. 3-1

Proposed  Poly  Cart  Rates......

Proposed  Commercial  Dumpster  Rates

Proposed  Collection  Center  Rates

Revenue  Recovery  from  Proposed  Rates

3-1

3-1

.3-2

3-3

m&  Solutions
Economics i Strategy l Stakeholders l Sustainability



Table  of Contents

List  of Tables

Table  1-1  Residential  Cart  Service.....  ...........................  .............................................1-1

Table  1-2  Commercial  Cart  Service.  ... ........ .....  ... . ........  .... .. .... .......  .... ...........  ....  .....1-2

Table  1-3  Commercial  DumpsterService......  .............  ........  ....  .............................  1-2

Table  1-4  Commercial  Classes............  ..............  .................  ................  .................,,,1-2

Table  1-5  Collection  Center  Current  Rates.......  ................................................  .......1-3

Table  2-1 Inflation  Factors.  .......  ....  .... .. ...  ...........  ....  ... . .........  . .. ..... ................  2-2

Table  2-2 Capital  Improvement  Plan/Rolling  Stock.....  ......  ...... ...... . ......... .........2-3
Table  2-3 Debt....  ...................  .... ..................  . ...............  .. ................................2-3

Table  2-4 Solid  Waste  Revenue  Requirement  Forecast........  ..... ..................................2-3

Table  2-5 Revenue  Requirement  by Service  Category............................................  ,,,,,24

Table  2-6 Recovery  Basis for  Service  Categories.....................  ............  .................  . ....:-s
Table  2-7 Poly  Cart  Units  .........  ...  . ......  ...  ..........  .................................  ..........2-5

Table  2-8 Commercial  Refuse  Dumpsters  Carts  Billing  Units  Forecast  ..... ..........................2-6

Table  2-9 Commercial  Recycle  Dumpsters  Billing  Units  Forecast..  ..................................2-6

Table  2-10  Collection  Center  Billing  Units  Forecast.........  ........  .. .......  .........  . .......2-7

Table  2-11  Tonnage  Forecast........  .. .......................  ...........  ..... .... ... ..........  ......2-7

Table  2-12  Poly  Cart  Revenue  Requirement..........  ...................  . ..................  ....... ..:2-s
Table  2-13 Poly  Cart  Monthly  Cost  of  Service  ... ..........  ..... ....... ..... ...........  ....... ....:2-s
Table  2-14  Commercial  Dumpsters  Revenue  Requirement  and Cost  of  Service.....................2-9

Table  2-15  Example  Monthly  Cost  of  Service....  ........  .........  ... ... . ........ . ...... .. .. .... 2-10

Table  2-16  Collection  Center  Revenue  Requirement  and Cost Per  Ton.......................  ...2-10

Table  3-1 Revenue  Recoveryfrom  Current  Rates....  ... ....... ...  .......................  ......  ........3-1

Table  3-2 Proposed  FY 2025  Commercial  Refuse  Dumpster  Rates............  . ......................3-2

Table  3-3 FY 2025  Commercial  Recycle  Dumpster  Proposed  Rates .......  ............  .......3-2

Table  3-4 FY 2025  Collection  Center  Proposed  Rates ............  . . ..................  ....  .. ..3-3

Table  3-5 Revenue  Recovery  from  Proposed  Rates.........  ..................  .........................3-3



Appendix

List  of  Schedules

Schedule  1:  Test  Year

Schedule  2: 10-Year  Capital  Improvement  Plan

Schedule  3: Rolling  Stock

Schedule  4: Debt

Schedule  5: Five-Year  Forecast

Schedule  6: Revenue  Requirement  Summary

Schedule  7: Poly  Cart  Cost  of  Service

Schedule  8: Dumpster  Refuse  and  Recycle  Cost  of  Service

Schedule  9: Collection  Center  Cost  of  Service

Schedule  10: Over/(Under)  at Current  Rates
Schedule  11:  Dumpster  Proposed  Rates

Schedule  12:  Collection  Center  Proposed  Rates

Schedule  13: Over/(Under)  at Proposed  Rates
Schedule  14:  Reserves

Table  of  Contents

(C2024  NewGen  Strategies  and Solutions,  LLC



Section  1

INTRODUCTION

In February  of 2023,  the  City of  Truth  or Consequences  (City)  retained  the  Project  Team  of Parkhill  and

NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions,  LLC (NewGen),  as a subcontractor  to Parkhill,  to  conduct  a Solid  Waste

Cost  of  Service  and Rate Design  Study  (Study  or Report)  for  the  Solid  Waste  Department  (Department  or

Utility).  The purpose  of  this  Report  is to determine  the  cost  of  providing  solid  waste  services,  equitably

distribute  the  costs to the appropriate  customer  classes,  and design  rates  to safeguard  the  financial

integrity  of  the  Utility.

This  section  of the  Report  describes  the solid waste  services  provided  by the City of Truth  or

Consequences.  For each  of  these  services  (also  called  service  categories),  NewGen  identified  the  cost  of

providing  each  of  these  services.

Batkground

The City  of Truth  or Consequences'  Solid  Waste  Department  currently  provides  solid  waste  collection

services  to approximately  3,076  residential  customers  via automated  side  load  cart  collection,  as well  as

commercial  refuse  customers,  via rear-load  dumpsters  and  automated  side  load  cart  collection.

The Department  is a self-supporting  enterprise  fund  and revenues  are derived  primarily  from  solid  waste

user  fees.  This revenue  must  adequately  fund  operations,  debt  service,  and cash funded  capital  outlays

(both  rolling  stock  and infrastructure  related).

Current  Solid Waste  Services  and Rates

Solid  waste  services  provided  by the  City  include  the  following:

Residential  Cart Service

Residential  services  provided  by the  City include  weekly  residential  refuse  cart  collection  serviced  via

automated  side  load  collection  vehicles.  The  City  provides  one  95-gallon  cart  to every  residential  property

with  cart  service  in the  City  at a current  rate  of  S34.69 per  month.  Residential  customers can also opt for
additional  carts.  As part  of this  monthly  user  fee,  all residents  receive  once  per  week  refuse  (garbage)

collection.

Table  1-1

Residential  Cart  Service

Cart  Type Rates

95 gallons $34.69

Additional Cart Fee $17.37

H&Solutions
Economics  i Strategy  l Stakeholders  l Sustainability



Se<tion  1

Commercial  Cart  Service

The City  offers  a cart  collection  service  for  commercial  customers.  Commercial  customers  can opt  for  a

minimum  of  one  95-gallon  cart.  The current  rates  are  listed  in Table  1-2.

Table  1-2

Commercial  Cart  Service

Cart  Type

95 gallons

Additional Cart Fee

Rates

$50.22

$25.10

Commercial  Dumpster  Colle<tion  (Refuse)

The  City  also  offers  refuse  dumpster  collection  service  for  commercial  customers.  Customers  can choose

either  a 1.5  or  3 cubic  yard  dumpster  container,  to  be serviced  up to  six times  per  week.  The current  rates

for  service  are shown  in Table  1-3.

Table 1-3

Commercial  Dumpster  Service

Commercial  Classes

Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Class 4

Class 5

Rates

$69.57

$110.87

$162.40

$217.50

$626.27

The  current  monthly  commercial  rates  are  based on  commercial  class  designations.  The current

commercial  class designations  are  shown  in Table  1-4.

Commercial

Classes

Table 1-4

Commercial  Classes

Description

Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

Class 4

Class 5

Lodges (fraternal) without bars, churches, beauty shops, barber shops, TV. shops, rock shops, jewelry stores,

accounting, legal, medical, real estate, insurance, dental offices, and miscellaneous small shops. Motels, hotels, and

apartments with fewer than 10 units and RV Parks with fewer than 10 spaces.

Lodges (fraternal) without bars, package stores without bars, service stations, garages, small grocery stores, body

shops, small cafes, laundries, florists, and small merchandising businesses. Motels, hotels, and apartments with 10

to 20 units and RV Parks with 10 to 20 spaces.

Bars and package stores in conjunction with bars, medium sized store buildings, medium sized restaurants and cafes

and governmental offices. Motels, hotels, and apartments with 21 to 30 units and RV Parks with 21 to 30 spaces.

Department stores, drug stores and banks. Motels, hotels, and apartments with 31 to 40 units and RV Parks with 31

to 40 spaces.

Large restaurants, large grocery stores, hospitals, trailer parks. Motels, hotels, and apartments with more than 40

units and RV Parks with more than 40 spaces.



Introduction

Commercial  Dumpster  Collection  (Recy<le)

Additionally,  the  City  offers  a recycling  dumpster  collection  service  for  commercial  customers.  Customers

can choose  either  a 1.5  or  3 cubic  yard  dumpster  container,  to  be  serviced  up  to  six  times  per  week.  The

City  does  not  currently  charge  a fee  for  this  service.

Collettion  Center

The  City  also  operates  a collection  center  for  residents,  private  haulers,  commercial  waste  haulers,  small

C&D  (construction  and demolition)  loads,  yard  waste,  and tree  branches.  The  current  rates  for  the

collection  center  are  shown  in Table  1-5.

Categories

Residential

MSW

Yard waste

Commercial

C&D

Yard waste

Tree  Branches

0-200 Ibs

$6.00

$6.00

O-100 Ibs

$20.00

$20.00

0-200 Ibs

$3.50

Table 1-5

Collection  Center  Current  Rates

201-400  Ibs

$11.22

$11.22

10'l-350  Ibs

$30.00

$30.00

2€)1-400 Ibs

$7.00

401-600  Ibs

$13.32

113.32

351-650  Ibs

$40.00

$40.00

401-600  Ibs

$10.50

Drop-Off  Tiers

601-800 Ibs

$18.84

$18.84

651-1000 Ibs

$50.00

$50.00

601+ Ibs (per  ton)

$35.00

80'l+lbs  (per  ton)

$60.00

$60.00

1,001-1,999  Ibs

$60.00

$60.00

2,000+ Ibs (per  ton)

$65.00

$65.00

Proiett Approach
The  goal  of  a cost  of service  and rate  design  study  is to determine  the  solid  waste  fees  required  to

adequately  recover  the  costs  of  providing  services.  NewGen  developed  a series  of  key  tasks  that  provided

the  foundation  for  the  conduct  of  the  Study.  The  methodology  is discussed  in Section  2 of  this  report.

NewGen  utilized  the  following  sources  of  information  regarding  the  City's  current  system  and  financial

requirements.

Data  Request

NewGen  submitted  a detailed  data  request  to  the  City  to  collect  historical  and  background  information

on  operations  and  practices.  The  information  requested  included:

N Detailed  Financial  Reports  and  Budgets

N Solid  Waste  Policies  and  Ordinances

N Customer  and  Container  Counts

N Personnel  Rosters

'  Solid  Waste  Tonnage  Reports

N Fleet  Inventory  Operating  Costs

1-3



Section  1

Proiect Meetings
The Project  Team  of  Parkhill  and NewGen  held  a kickoff  meeting  with  City  staff  to initiate  the  Study.  This

meeting  served  as a forum  to  confirm  the  scope  of  services,  discuss  the  data  already  collected,  and  finalize

the  solid  waste  and recycling  service  categories  to  be analyzed  in the  cost-of-service  analysis.

Parkhill  and NewGen  also  held  numerous  virtual  meetings  with  the  City  staff  throughout  the  course  of  the

project  to discuss,  plan,  and finalize  the  cost  of  service  analysis.

1-4



Section 2

COST OF SERVICE ANALYSIS

This  section  describes  the  tasks  involved  in conducting  the  solid  waste  cost  of  service  analysis  for  the  City.

Before  describing  each  of  the  tasks  in detail,  NewGen  has provided  below  a brief  overview  of  the  overall

cost  of  service  analysis  methodology.  This  section  of  the  Report  also quantifies  the  cost  of  service-based

rates  for  solid  waste  services.l

Methodology  Overview

This overview  provides  the  background  necessary  to  understand  how  data  compiled  in each  task  provides

the  information  required  to  determine  the  cost  of  service  and  fees  required  to  recover  the  cost  of  service.

N Development  of  the  "Test  Year"  -  The first  task  in conducting  the  cost-of-service  analysis  is the

development  of an annual  revenue  requirement  for a Test Year. The revenue  requirement

represents  the  total  revenue  that  the  solid  waste  operation  will  need  to recover  during  a year  to

fund  all expenses  incurred  in providing  solid  waste  services.  NewGen  worked  with  City  staff  to

select  a period  FY (Fiscal  Year)  2024  that  reflected  the  most  recent  budget,  adjusted  for  one-time

expenditures,  etc.  so as to reflect  the  "normal"  annualized  costs  of  operating  the  solid  waste  utility.

N DevelopmentoftheRevenueRequirementForecast-Afterdevelopingtherevenuerequirement

for  the  Test  Year,  NewGen  worked  with  City  staff  to project  changes  in costs  due  to inflation,  salary

increases,  new  equipment,  customer  growth,  etc.  This  resulted  in the  five-year  revenue

requirement  forecast.  NewGen"s  cost  of  service  and rate  design  forecast  was  focused  on a five-year

period  (FY 2024  -  FY 2028).

N Allocation  of  Costs  to  Service  Categories  -  NewGen  worked  with  City  staff  to assign  and allocate

costs  to the  appropriate  service  categories.  The service  categories  represent  the primary  solid

waste  services  provided  by the  City  and are listed  in this  section  of the  Report,  titled  Allocation  of

Costs  to Service  Categories.

N Allocation  to  Customer  Classes  -  NewGen  grouped  the  service  categories  based  on the  customer

classes  that  will  recover  each service  categories'  costs.  The customer  classes  include  poly  cart

customers,  commercial  dumpster  customers,  and collection  center  customers.

a DeterminationofBillingUnits-NewGenidentifiedtheappropriatebillingunitsforeachcustomer

class. For example,  the  poly  cart  customers  are charged  per  poly  cart,  so the  number  of  poly  carts

are utilized  as the  billing  units  for  this  customer  class.

N Calculation  of  the  Cost  of  Service  -  NewGen  distributed  the  costs  for  each  customer  class across

the  appropriate  number  of  billing  units  to  determine  the  cost  of  service  for  each  customer  class.

I It is important  to note  that  the cost of service  based rate may not be the actual  rate charged,  but  it is an essential

component  in establishing  the rates charged  residential  and commercial  customers  based on both  the cost of the

services,  operational  considerations,  and City policy.

!&Solutions
Economics  l Strategy  l Stakeholders  l Sustainability



Se<tion  2

Development  of the  Revenue  Requirement

Selection of the Test Year

In developing  the  Test  Year  revenue  requirement  for  the  City,  NewGen  used  the  FY 2024  interim  budget

as the  basis for  the  Test  Year. NewGen  compared  the  FY 2024  interim  budget  to historical  expenses  and

budgets  for  FY 2021  and FY 2022.  Through  this  comparison  and with  input  from  City  staff,  NewGen  made

adjustments  to ensure  that  the  Test  Year would  reflect  expenses  that  occur  on a regular  basis. All

adjustments  to the  FY 2024  interim  budget  made  in developing  the  Test  Year  are detailed  in Appendix,

Schedule  1.

Development  of the Revenue Requirement  Foreoast

In addition  to developing  the  Test  Year  revenue  requirement,  NewGen  forecasted  the  annual  revenue

requirement  for  FY 2024  through  FY 2028.  In order  to develop  this  forecast,  NewGen  projected  how  costs

would  change  over  the  years  due to a variety  of different  inflation  factors.  The assumptions  used to

develop  the  five-year  forecast  include  the  annual  inflation  factors  shown  in Table  2-1.  These  factors  were

developed  based  on NewGen"s  experience  in the  conduct  of financial  forecasts,  along  with  input  from

City  staff.

Year  1

Inflation  Factor  FY 2024

General

Labor

Benefits

Utilities

Capital Projects

None

O.O%

O.O%

O.O%

O.O%

O.O%

O.O%

Capital  Improvement  Plan

Table  2-1

Inflation  Factors

Year  2 Year  3 Year  4 Year  5

FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027  FY 2028

2.5%

4.0%

4.0%

5.0%

5.0%

O.O%

2.5%

4.0%

4.0%

5.0%

5.0%

O.O%

2.5%

4.0%

4.0%

5.0%

5.0%

O.O%

2.5%

4.0%

4.0%

5.0%

5.0%

O.O%

The revenue  requirement  incorporates  funding  for  the  Utility"s  capital  improvement  plan scheduled  to

occur  during  the FY 2024  -  FY 2028  forecast.  Currently,  the Utility  has a number  of capital  expenses

forecasted.  These  capital  expenses  include  the  collection  center's  registration  renewal,  tipping  floor

improvements,  and scale house  facility  improvements.  NewGen  has also incorporated  a rolling  stock

replacement  schedule  in the  capital  improvement  plan.  The City  should  closely  monitor  the  age of  their

fleet  and assess whether  the  forecasted  costs  for  vehicle  replacement  are sufficient  on an annual  basis.

To the  extent  that  additional  capital  projects  should  be considered,  the  proposed  rates  may  need  to be

increased  beyond  NewGen"s  recommendations  in Section  3.

Table  2-2 summarizes  the  capital  improvement  plan  and 5-year  average  annual  rolling  stock  replacement

costs  forecasted  for  FY 2024  -  FY 2028.  A detailed  capital  improvement  plan  and rolling  stock  replacement

forecast  are provided  in Appendix,  Schedule  2 and  Schedule  3.

2-2



Cost  of Service  Analysis

Rolling Stock

Table  2-2

Capital  Improvement  Plan/Rolling  Stock

Year  1 Year  2 Year  3

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026

$236,322  $236,322  $236,322

Year  4

FY 2027

$236,322

Year  5

FY 2028

$236,322

Collection Center Registration 20,800

Renewal

Solid Waste Tipping Floor 135,000

Improvements

Solid Waste Scale House Facility - 35,000
Improvements

Total $257,122 $371,322 $271322  $236,322 $236,322

Debt

The  revenue  requirement  also  incorporates  any existing  debt  issues  of  the  Utility.  To the  extent  that  any

additional  debt  is issued,  the  proposed  rates  may  need  to  be  increased  beyond  NewGen"s

recommendations  in Section  3.

Table  2-3 lists  the Utility's  current  Capital  One Public  Funding  debt  issue for  FY 2024  -  FY 2028.  A debt

schedule  is provided  in Appendix,  Schedule.

Table  2-3

Debt

Capital One Publlc  Funding

Principal

Interest Payment 'I

Interest Payment 2

Total Payment

Year  1

FY 2024

$105,000

6,419

6,419

$117,838

Year  2

FY 2025

$110,000

4,345

4,345

$118,690

Year  3

FY 2026

$1I0,000

2,173

2,173

$114,345

Year  4

FY 2027

$-

Year  5

FY 2028

$-

Revenue  Requirement

Table  2-4 shows  the  revenue  requirement  for  the  five-year  forecast.  The detailed  composition  of the

forecast  is provided  in Appendix,  Schedule  5.

Table  2-4

Solid Waste Revenue Requirement  Forecast

Year  1 Year  2 Year  3 Year  4 Year  5

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027  FY 2028

Total Revenue Requirement $2,101,950  $2,325,231 $2,300,946  $2,235,231 $2,322,601

2-3



Section  2

The City provides  a wide  variety  of  solid  waste  services  to its customers.  To determine  the  cost  for  each

service,  there  is a need  to allocate  costs  to service  categories  that  represent  the primary  solid  waste

services  provided.  These  categories  were  determined  through  a detailed  series  of discussions  with  City

staff  and are  shown  below.

ffl Poly Cart  Collection

8  Commercial  DumpsterTrash  Collection

ffl Commercial  Dumpster  Recycling  Collection

N Cart Maintenance  & Delivery

N Disposal/Hauling
'  Collection  Center  -  Garbage

N Administration

'  CollectionCenter-Recycling

Identification  of  the  total  costs  for  each  service  category  was  a critical  step  in determining  adequate  rates

that  reflect  the  cost  of providing  the  various  services.  These  costs  were  isolated  by service  category  in

order  to  fully  recover  the  total  revenue  requirement  by matching  those  customers  that  utilize  the  service

with  the  actual  cost  for  that  service.  Table  2-5 identifies  the  cost  of providing  each service  for  FY 2024

through  FY 2028.

Table  2-5

Revenue  Requirement  by  Service  Category

Service  Category

Year  1 Year  2

FY 2024  FY 2025

PolyCart  $152,736

Commercial Dumpster Trash Collection 350,724

Commercial Dumpster Recycling Collection 84,333

Can Maintenance & Delivery 64,287

Disposal/Hauling  590,U3

Collection Center - Garbage Operations 308,707

Administration  3'l3,627

Collection Center - Recycling, etc. 237,404

Total Revenue Requirement $2101950
1. Anyminorarithmeticdeviationisduetorounding.

$156,242

355,026

85,366

66,059

656,059

437,678

326,100

242,701

$2,325,231

Allocation  to Customer  Classes

Year  3

FY 2026

$162,195

364,784

87,713

67,897

692,306

335,277

338,988

251 ,786

$2,300,946

Year  4

FY 2027

$151 ,998

338,427

81,376

69,804

730,556

274,967

352,303

235,799

$2,235,231

Year  5

FY 2028

$157,433

347,098

83,463

71,782

770,920

281 ,777

366,061

244,066

$2,322,601

After  calculating  the  costs  for  each  service  category  over  the  five-year  period,  NewGen  allocated  the  costs

for  the  various  service  categories  to  each respective  customer  class. This process  identifies  the

appropriate  customers  to be charged  for  each service  provided.  Table  2-6 identifies  how  the  service

categories  were  grouped  and  the  cost  recovery  basis  for  each  service  category.

2-4



Cost of Service  Analysis

Table  2-6

Recovery  Basis  for  Service  Categories

Recovery  BasisService  Category

PolyCart  PolyCartCollection

Commercial  Dumpster  Trash Collection  Commercial  Refuse Dumpsters

Commercial  Dumpster  Recycling Collection  Commercial  Recycling  Dumpsters

Cart Maintenance  & Delivery  Poly Cart Collection

Disposal/Hauling  Distributed  to customer  classes  based on tons disposed  by each class.

Collection  Center - Garbage  Operations  Distributed  to customer  classes based on tons disposed  by each class.

Administration  Distributed  to all customer  classes  based on revenue requirement'

Collection  Center - Recyding,  etc.  Poly Cart Collection

1. Costs are distributed proportionally based on the customer classes respecUve porUon of the tevenue  tequirement

Determination  of Billing  Units

In orderto  calculate  the  appropriate  rates,  NewGen  determined  the  number  of  annual  billing  units  forthe

various  customer  classes.  NewGen  received  billing  data  for  each  customer  class from  City  staff  and

determined  the  cost  of  service  by dividing  the  revenue  requirement  for  each  service  category  by the

appropriate  number  of  billing  units.  In general,  billing  unit  forecasts  were  provided  by City  staff.

Poly Cart  Colle<tion

In most  cases,  the  number  of  households  represents  the  most  appropriate  billing  unit  for  the  purpose  of

recovering  the  cost  of  service  for  poly  carts.  The  projected  poly  cart  units  for  the  five-year  forecast  are

shown  in Table  2-7. The  poly  cart  unit  growth  projections  shown  in Table  2-7 assume  a O.5% annual

growth.  These  growth  projections  were  developed  by City  staff  based  on historical  customer  growth

patterns  and  are  conservative.

Table  2-7

Poly  Cart  Units

Year  1 Year  2 Year  3 Year  4 Year  5

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027  FY 2028

Poly Cart Units 3,189 3,204 3,220 3,236 3,252

2-5



Section  2

Commercial  Dumpster  Collection  (Refuse)

The City  provides  commercial  customers  with  refuse  collection  via dumpsters  up to  3 cubic  yards  in size.

The City bills these  customers  a monthly  fee based upon  their  designated  customer  class. The City

requested  NewGen  to come  up with  a monthly  fee based  on the  size of the  container  collected,  the

frequency  of  collection,  and the  number  of  containers.2  Therefore,  the  billing  units  for  commercial  refuse

collection  consist  of  three  components:

a Number  of  Containers:  Used  to recover  administration  costs.

'  Annual  Collections:  Used  to recover  the  cost  of  collection  operations.

ffi Annual  Disposal  Capacity:  Measured  in cubic  yards  and used  to recover  disposal  costs  based  on

cubic  yards  (CY) of  container  capacity.

Table  2-8 shows  the  projected  billing  units  for  the  commercial  dumpsters.

Table  2-8

Commercial Refuse Dumpsters Carts Billing Units Forecast

Billing  Units

Year  1 Year  2 Year  3 Year  4

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027

Year  5

FY 2028

Commercial  Refuse Dumpsters 372 372 372 372 372

Annual Dumpster Collections 59,696 59,696 59,696 59,696 59,696

Dumpster Disposal Capacity (CY) 156,702 156,702 156,702 156,702 156,702

Commer<ial  Dumpster  Collection  (Re<ycle)

The City  provides  commercial  customers  with  recycling  collection  via dumpsters  up to 3 cubic  yards  in

size. The  City  does  not  bill these  customers  a monthly  fee.  The  City  requested  NewGen  to come  up with  a

monthly  fee based  on the  size of  the  container  collected,  the  frequency  of  collection,  and  the  number  of

containers.  The City  sells  the  collected  recycling  materials  and is not  charged  a processing  fee.  Therefore,

the  billing  units  for  commercial  recycle  collection  consist  of  two  components:

ffi Number  of  Containers:  Used  to recover  administration  costs.

N Annual  Collections:  Used  to recoverthe  cost  of  collection  operations.

Table  2-9 shows  the  projected  billing  units  for  the  commercial  recycle  dumpsters.

Table 2-9
Commercial  Recycle  Dumpsters  Billing  Llnits  Forecast

Billing  Units

Year  1 Year  2 Year  3

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026

Year  4

FY 2027

Year  5

FY 2028

Commercial  Recycling  Dumpsters go 90 90 go 90

Annual Dumpster Collections 9,152 9,152 9,152 9,152 9,152

2 In conversations  between  NewGen  and City staff, NewGen  mentioned  that  the current  commercial  dumpster

billing  methodology  used by T or C is not  standard  within  the industry.  Therefore,  the City asked that  NewGen

develop  a billing  structure  for  dumpsters  that  was common  within  the industry.  The methodology  described  on the

following  pages is standard  within  the industry,  and one that  Mr. Dave Yanke, the project  manager  for  this  Study,

has used for countless  clients  over  the past 25+ years.

2-6



Cost  of Service  Analysis

Collection  Center

Additionally,  the  City also  operates  a collection  center  for  residents,  private  haulers,  commercial  waste

haulers,  small  commercial  and demolition  (C&D)  loads,  yard  waste,  and tree  branches.3  The billing  units

for  the  collection  center  consists  of  two  different  billing  factors:

a Pounds  of  waste  brought  to  the  collection  center  that  are  billed  using  the  tiered  rate  structure.

N Tons  brought  to  the  collection  center  that  are  billed  using  the  per  ton  rate.

Table  2-10  shows  the  projected  billing  units  for  the  collection  center.

Table 2-10

Collection  Center  Billing  Units Forecast

Billing  Units

Year  1 Year  2 Year  3 Year  4

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027

Annual Tiered Tonnage (billed in pounds) 1,016

Annual Per Ton Tonnage  4,2M

Annual Collection Center Tonnage  5,230

1. Any minor arithmetic deviation is due to rounding.

1,021

4,235

5,256

1,026

4,256

5,282

1,031

4,278

5,309

Disposal

Year  5

FY 2028

1,036

4,299

5,335

Disposal  units  are based  on the  annual  tons  delivered  to the  SCSWA landfill.  The projected  annual  tons

being  disposed  of, by customer  class,  are shown  in Table  2-11.  The projections  were  developed  based  on

the  annual  growth  rate  assigned  to  each  collection  service.

Table  2-11

Tonnage  Forecast

Year  1

FY

2024

Year  2 Year  3 Year  4

FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027

Disposal  Tonnage

Poly Carts

Commercial Refuse Dumpster

Commercial Recycling Dumpster

Collection Center

2,401

1,630

o

5,230

Total Disposal  Tonnage'  9,26al

1. Any minor arithmeUc deviation is due to rounding.

Calculation  of the Cost of Service

2,413

1,638

o

5,256

9,307

2,425

1,646

o

5,282

9,353

2,437

1,654

o

5,309

9,400

Year  5

FY 2028

2,449

1,663

o

5,335

9,447

NewGen  determined  the  cost  of service  for  each  of  the  solid  waste  services  provided  by the  City. It is

important  to  note  that  the  cost  of  service  based  rates  are not  necessarily  the  rates  NewGen  recommends

be  adopted  by the  City.  In Section  3 of this  report,  NewGen  provides  its  rate guidelines  and

3 All solid  waste  delivered  to the  Collection  Center  is then  loaded  on to 18-wheeler  long-haul  trucks  and

transported  to South Central  Solid Waste  Authority's  (SCSWA) landfill  in Las Cruces for  disposal.

2-7



Section  2

recommendations  based  on the  following  factors:  NewGen's  cost  of service  analysis;  the  City's  policies;

and NewGen's  solid  waste  rate  experience.

Poly  Cart  Collection  Servi<e

The total  poly  cart  service  revenue  requirement  for  the  five-year  forecast  is shown  in Table  2-12.  A

detailed  examination  of  the  residential  revenue  requirement  in each  year  of  the  forecast  is provided  in

Appendix,  Schedule  7.

The  total  poly  cart  revenue  requirement  includes:

N All direct  costs  identified  in Table  2-5.

N A proportional  share  of  the  administration  costs  (based  on the  percentage  of  the  total  revenue

requirement  the  direct  costs  represent).

a Aproportionalshareofdisposalcosts(basedonthepercentageoftotaltonnagepolycartcollection

service  represents).

N A proportional  share  of  collection  center  -  garbage  operations  costs  (based  on the  percentage  of

total  tonnage  poly  cart  collection  service  represents).

N Collection  center  recycling  costs  (based  on the  rationale  that  the  collection  center  is mainly  for

residents  to  drop-off  recycling).

Table  2-12  shows  the  projected  revenue  requirement  for  poly  cart  customers.

Table 2-12

Poly Cart Revenue Requirement

Service  Category

Poly Cart

Cart Maintenance & Delivery

Disposal/ Hauling

Administration

Collection Center - Garbage Operations

Collection Center - Recyding, etc.

Total  Revenue  Requirementl

1. Any minor atithmeUc deviaUon is due to rounding.

Year  1

FY 2024

$152,736

64,287

152,999

120,563

80,036

237,404

$808,026

Year  2

FY 2025

$156,242

66,059

'izo,ogi

122,107

113,473

242,701

$870,674

Year  3

FY 2026

$162,195

67,897

179,489

129,290

86,925

251 ,786

$877,582

Year  4

FY 2027

$151,998

69,804

189,406

134,396

71,288

235,799

$852,691

Year  5

FY 2028

$157,433

71,782

199,870

iag,a"ia

73,054

244,066

$885,819

The  monthly  cost  of  service  for  residential  customers  is shown  in Table  2-13.

Table 2-13

Poly Cart Monthly  Cost  of Seniice

Service  Category

Year  1 Year  2 Year  3 Year  4 Year  5

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027  FY 2028

95-galloncart  $2'l.11 $22.65
L Any minor arithmetic deviation is due to rounding.

$22.71 $21.96 $22.70

2-8



Cost  of Service  Analysis

Commercial  Dumpster  Colle<tion

The  total  commercial  dumpster  revenue  requirement  and  cost  of service  are shown  in Table  2-14.  The

detail  is provided  in Appendix,  Schedule  8. The  total  dumpster  collection  revenue  requirement  includes:

N All direct  costs  identified  in Table  2-5.

N A proportional  share  of  the  administration  costs  (based  on the  percentage  of  the  total  revenue

requirement  the  direct  costs  represent).

a A proportional  share  of disposal  costs (based  on the percentage  of total  tonnage  dumpster

collection  service  represents).

N A proportional  share  of  collection  center  -  garbage  operations  costs  (based  on the  percentage  of

total  tonnage  dumpster  collection  service  represents).

Table 2-14

Commercial  Dumpsters  Revenue Requirement  and Cost of Service

Service  Categoiy

Commercial Trash Collection

Commercial Recycling Collection

Disposal/ Hauling

Administration

Collection Center - Garbage Operations

Total Revenue Requirement

Billing Units

Annual Collections

Annual Capacity

Year  1 Year  2 Year  3 Year  4

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027

$350,724

84,333

103,852

104,038

54,327

$697,274

462

68,848

156,702

$355,026

85,366

115,454

103,234

77,023

$736,103

462

68,848

156,702

$364,784

87,713

121,833

109,427

59,002

$742,759

462

68,848

156,702

$338,427

81,376

128,564

ffl,655

48,389

$708,412

462

68,848

156,702

ContainerCost  $18.77

CostperCollection  $7.11

Disposal  Cost per Cubic  Yard  $0.66
L Any minor arithmeUc deviation is due to rounding.

$18.62

$7.52

$0.74

$19.74

$7.43

$0.78

$20.14

$6.80

$0.82

Year  5

FY 2028

$347,098

83,463

U5,667

115,217

49,587

$731 ,032

462

68,848

156,702

$20.78

$6.97

$0.87

To determine  the  monthly  cost  of  service  for  a refuse  container,  the  different  component  costs  should  be

summed  as follows:

N CostperContainer:!>18.77permonth(inFY2024)foradministrativecostsforeachdumpster;PLUS

ffi CostperCollection:57.11(inFY2024)timesthenumberofcollectionsperweek,times4.33;"

a Cost per  Cubic  Yard of  Capacity:  S0.66  (in FY 2024)  times  the  capacity  of  the  container  times  the

number  of  collections  per  week,  times  4.33.

To determine  the  monthly  cost  of  service  for  a recycle  container,  the  different  component  costs  should

be summed  as follows:

a Cost per  Container:  518.77  (in FY 2024)  for  each  dumpster  PLUS

@ Cost per  Collection:  !>7.11 (in FY 2024)  times  the  number  of  collections  per  week,  times  4.33.4

4 52 weeks  per year  / 12 months  = 4.33 weeks per month

2-9



Section  2

The  example  below  utilizes  the  components  listed  above  to  generate  a monthly  cost  of  service  for  a 1.5  CY

dumpster  collected  3 times  per  week.

Table  2-15

Example  Monthly  Cost  of Service

Cost Component Cost per Unit Multiplier

Container  Cost  $18.77/container  1 container"  3

CollectionCost  $7.11/collection  3collectionsperweek"4.33

1.5 CY container  "

DisposalCost $0.66/CYofcapacity 3collectionsperweek*4.33

Monthly  cost  to serve  1.5 CY refuse  container  3 times  per week

Totals

$18.77 1

3giioi

$12.82 1

$123.29

ContainerCost $18.77/container 1container"3  $18.77'

CollectionCost $7.11/collection 3collectionsperweek"4.33  $9"l.70'

Monthly cost to serve 1.5 CY recycle container 3 times per week2 $110.46
L Productmayvaryfromtotalduetorounding.ThedumpsterratematrixforeachcontainersizeandcollecUonfrequencycanbe

found in the Report in Appendix, Schedule 11.
2. DisposalisnotincludedinthecostofserviceforrecyclingastheUtililysellstheinecycledmatetials.

Colle<tion  Center

Table  2-16  lists  the  projected  cost  of  service  for  collection  center  operations  for  the  five-year  forecast.

The  details  are  provided  in Appendix,  Schedule  9. The  cost  of  service  includes:

N A proportional  share  of  the  administration  costs  (based  on the  percentage  of  the  total  revenue

requirement  the  direct  costs  represent).

N A proportional  share  of  disposal  costs  (based  on the  percentage  of  total  tonnage  the  collection

center  service  represents).

N A proportional  share  of  collection  center  -  garbage  operations  costs  (based  on the  percentage  of

total  tonnage  the  collection  center  service  represents).

Table  2-16

Collection  Center  Revenue  Requirement  and Cost  Per Ton

Service  Categoiy

Disposal/  Hauling

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Administration

Total  Revenue  Requirement

Revenue  Requirement  with  Revenue

Offset

Year  4 Year  2 Year  3

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026

$333,281

174,345

89,025

$596,651

$466,209

Annual  Billed  Collection  CenterTonnage  4,214

CostPerTon  $110.63

j. Any minor arithmetic deviation is due to rounding.

$370,514

247,181

100,759

$718,454

$587,360

4,235

$138.69

$390,985

189,350

100,270

$680,605

$548,856

4,256

$128.95

Year  4

FY 2027

$412,587

155,289

106,252

$674,127

$541,719

4,278

$126.64

Year  5

FY 2028

$435,382

159,136

ffl,232

$705,750

$572,680

4,299

$133.21

2-10



Section  3

KEY FINDINGS  AND  RECOMMENDATIONS

This  section  provides  NewGen's  FY 2024  -  FY 2028  rate  guidelines  and recommendations  for  the  solid

waste  services  provided  by the  City.

Revenue  Re<onciliation  from  Current  Rates

Prior  to  considering  any  rate  changes,  it is beneficial  to  evaluate  the  revenue  projected  under  the  current

rates  for  the  five-year  forecast.  Table  3-1  shows  the  forecasted  revenue  recovery  from  current  rates,

which is projected  to over-recover  the revenue  requirement  by approximately  S165,813 in FY 2024.
Table  3-1  also  shows  the  forecasted  revenue  recovery  from  current  rates  is projected  to  under-recover

the revenue  requirement  by approximately  5(17,557)  in FY 2028 if there are no rate increases
implemented  during  the  next  five  years.

Based  on  this  projected  under-recovery,  it is critical  that  the  City  put  in place  an equitable  and  transparent

rate  strategy  that  addresses  the  City's  primary  solid  waste  user  fee  mechanisms.  The  following  section

provides  NewGen's  recommended  approach  regarding  what  rate  increases  should  be made  over  the  next

five  years,  for  all customer  classes,  to  place  the  City  on  a path  to  secure  financial  sustainability.

Table  3-1

Revenue  Recovery  from  Current  Rates

Year 1
FY 2024

Revenue  Requirement  $2,101,950

Revenue  from Rates  2,267,763

Over/(Under)  Recovery'  $165,8U

Cumulative  Over/(Under)  l $165,813

1. Any minor arithmetic deviation is due to rounding.

Rate  Recommendations

Proposed  Poly Cart  Rates

Year 2
FY 2025

$2,325,231

2,276,757

$(48,475)

$117,339

Year 3
FY 2026

$2,300,946

2,286,176

$(1 4,770)

$102,569

Year  4

FY 2027

$2,235,231

2,295,605

$60,374

$162,943

Year  5

FY 2028

$2,322,601

2,305,043

$(17,557)

$145,386

NewGen  recommends  that  the  City  keep  their  current  residential  and commercial  poly  cart  rates

unchanged  at the  current  rates  as they  are  currently  recovering  their  cost  of  service.  These  rates  should

not  need  to  be raised  during  the  FY 2024  to  FY 2028  forecast  period.

Proposed  Commer<ial  Dumpster  Rates

NewGen  recommends  that  the  City  reconfigure  their  dumpster  fee  structure  from  a class  designation

(Class  1-5)  to  a dumpster  rate  matrix  which  considers  the  number  of  containers,  the  size  of  the  container

provided  and  the  frequency  of  collection.  This  is the  most  equitable  methodology,  and  is widely  used

within  the  solid  waste  industry  by both  municipalities  and by private  waste  hauling  companies.  The

Solutions

Economics  I Strategy  l Stakeholders  i Sustainability



Section  3

following  commercial  refuse  dumpster  rate  matrix  in Table  3-2  is recommended  to be implemented  at

the  start  of FY 2025.  Please  refer  to Appendix,  Schedule  11  for  a detailed  listing  of  commercial  refuse

dumpster  service  rate  increases  through  FY 2028.

Table  3-2

Proposed  FY 2025 Commercial  Refuse  Dumpster  Rates

Container  Size

i.5CY

3 CY

1

$69.57

$69.57

Collection  Frequency

234

$88.45  $123.29  $158.13

$96.99  $136.11  $175.22

5

$192.96

$214.34

6

$227.80

$253.45

NewGen  recommends  the  City begin  to implement  a similar  dumpster  rate  structure  for  recycling

dumpsters  as well.  The  following  commercial  recycling  dumpster  rate  matrixin  Table  3-3  is recommended

to  be implemented  at the  start  of  FY 2025.  Please  refer  to  Appendix,  Schedule  11  for  a detailed  listing  of

commercial  recycling  dumpster  service  rate  increases  through  FY 2028.

Table  3-3

FY 2025 Commercial  Recycle  Dumpster  Proposed  Rates

Container  Size

1.5CY

3 CY

1

$30.00

$30.00

Collection  Frequency

234

$60.00 $90.00 $120.00

$60.00 $90.00 $120.00

5

$150.00

$150.00

6

$iso.oo

$180.00

NewGen  recommends  that  the  City  engage  in a communication  outreach  effort  with  the  commercial

customers  who  will  be affected  by the  new  rate  structure  implementation  (flyers,  workshops,  etc.).  In

addition,  it is important  that  the  City  monitors  any  changes  in the  number  of  dumpsters  and  frequency  of

pick  ups  being  provided  to  commercial  customers  over  the  next  12  -  18  months.  Due  to  the  current  rate

structure  used  by the  City,  as the  City  moves  to  a more  cost-based  system,  NewGen  believes  some  folks

may  find  they  are  paying  for  more  "collection  capacity"  than  they  actually  need,  and  may  reduce  the  size

of  dumpster  or  frequency  of  collection.

To be  conservative,  and  prepare  for  such  an event,  NewGen  has  factored  in a 30%  decrease  in dumpsters

collected  by the  City  when  designing  the  rates,  to  prevent  an under-recovery.  To the  extent  that  fewer

dumpster  customers  "downsize"  their  collection  frequency,  the  City  may  be able  to   reduce  the

rate increases in FY 2027 and/or  FY 2028.

Proposed Collection  Center  Rates

The  City  is significantly  under-recovering  the  cost  to  operate  the  collection  center,  and  to  haul  and  dispose

of  its waste  at  the  SCSWA  landfill.  It is essential  that  the  City  increase  the  tipping  fee  charged  for  all  waste

coming  into  the  collection  center  to  recover  the  "true  cost"  of  operating  the  facility.

Therefore,  NewGen recommends  an increase of the per ton rate to S90 per ton in FY 2025, increased  to

S105 per ton in FY 2026, and finally  increased  to 5115 per ton in FY 2027.

NewGen  also  recommends  a standardization  of  the  collection  center's  rates  that  are  charged  for  smaller

loads  brought  into  the  collection  center  (0-200  pounds,  etc.).  Standardization  of  the  collection  center's

3-2



Key Findings  and  Re<ommendations

rates  would  mean  that  residential,  commercial,  and  yard  waste  customers  would  all pay  the  same  disposal

rates.  Since  there  is no difference  in the  type  of  waste  and it costs  the  same  to transport  and dispose  of

the  waste  it makes  sense  the rates be the  same.  It would  also simplify  the billing  process  when  the

materials  are  being  recorded  and billed  at the  scale  house,  with  one  standardized  rate  structure  for  all

customers.

The recommended  rates  for  FY 2025  are detailed  in Tables  3-4. This  table  shows  the  standardized  rate

structure  for  all trash  coming  across  the scale at the collection  center.  Please refer  to Appendix,

Schedule  12  for  a detailed  listing  of  the  collection  center's  rate  increases  through  FY 2028.

Table 3-4

FY 2025 Collection  Center  Proposed  Rates

Categories

All Trash 0.200

$9.00

201-400

$18.00

401.600

$27.00

Drop-Off  Tiers

601.800

$36.00

80l.i,200

$54.00

1200+  Ibs

$90.00

Revenue Retovery  from Proposed Rates

Table  3-5 shows  the  forecasted  revenue  recovery  from  proposed  rates,  which  will  ensure  the  solid  waste

utility"s  financial  integrity  through  FY 2028,  and also  allow  the  Utility  to  set  aside  any "excess  revenues"

in a reserve  for  future  capital  expenditures  or unexpected  expenses.

Details  ofthe  forecasted  revenue  recovery  and  forecasted  reserves  can be found  in Appendix,  Schedule  13

and Schedule  14.

Table 3-5

Revenue Recovery  from Proposed  Rates

Year  1

FY 2024

Revenue Requirement  $2,101,950

Revenue  from  Rates 2,267,763

Over/(Under) Recovery'  $165,813

Cumulative Over/(Under)  l $165,8U

1. Any minor arithmeUc deviation is due to rounding.

Year  2

FY 2025

$2,325,23"1

2,436,458

$ffl,226

$277,040

Year  3

FY 2026

$2,300,946

2,578,523

!5277,577

$554,616

Year  4

FY 2027

$2,235,231

2,693,493

$458,262

$1,012,878

Year  5

FY 2028

$2,322,601

2,7 44,650

$422,049

$1 ,434,927

3-3



Solutions Parkhill

ice



Appendix

COST OF SERVICE SCHEDULES

List  of  Schedules

Schedule  1:  Test  Year

Schedule  2: 10-Year  Capital  Improvement  Plan

Schedule  3: Rolling  Stock

Schedule  4: Debt

Schedule  5: Five-Year  Forecast

Schedule  6: Revenue  Requirement  Summary

Schedule  7: Poly  Cart  Cost  of  Service

Schedule  8: Dumpster  Refuse  and Recycle  Cost  of  Service

Schedule  9: Collection  Center  Cost  of  Service

Schedule 10:  Over/(Under)  at Current Rates
Schedule  11:  Dumpster  Proposed  Rates

Schedule  12:  Collection  Center  Proposed  Rates

Schedule 13:  Over/(Under)  at Proposed Rates
Schedule  14:  Reserves

m&Solutions
Economics  l Strategy  i Stakeholders  l Sustainability



Schedule  1

Line -FY2021FY202-1  FY2022 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 Test Inflation  Allocation
No.  Account  Number Description Budget Actual Budget Adual  Current Budget Interim Budget Adjustments  Year Fador  Fador  Notet

Expense  Department:  3904  - Solid  Waste

505-3!)04-40110  FuLLTIMEWAGES-SOLIDWASTEDM

505-3'i04-40125  0VERTIMEWAGES-SOLIDWASTEDIV

505-3904-40140  DEIAYEDCOMPENSATION-SOLIDWASTE

505-3!304-41205  FICA-REGulAR-SOLIDWASTEDMSION

SOS-3904-41210  FICA-MEDICARE-SOLIDWASTEDIVISION

SOS-3904-41215  PERA-SOLID  WASTE  DIVISION

505-3904-41225  HEALTHlNSuRANCE-SOLIDWASTEDIV

505-3904-41226  RETIREE INSURANCE

505-3904-41235  UNEMPLOYMENTlN5uRANCE-SOLID  WASTE

505-3!)04-41240  WORKER'S  COMP  ASSESSMENT

505-3!104-41785  WORKER'S  COMP.  PREMIUMS

505-3904-42620  UNIFORM/LINEN-SOLIDWASTEDIVISION

505-3904-42720  EMPLOYEETRAINING-SOLIDWASTEDIV

505-3904-43316  GAS & OIL

505-3904-43403  REGULAR  BUILDING  MAINT

SOS-3904-43465  RENTOFEQulPMENT

505-3904-43735  POSTAGE&MAILSERVICES

SOS-3904-43740  PRINTING/PuBLISHING

505-3904-43770  SUBSCRIPTION  & DOES

505-3!)04-43775  TELEPHONE

505-3904-43780  uTILITIES

505-3904-43815  SOFTWARE  LIC/SOFTWARE  UPDATE

505-3904-43"l99  0PERATING  COSTS

505-3904-44606  0FFICESIIPPLIES

SOS-3%4-44607  FlELDSuPPLIES-SOLIDWASTEDMSION

505-3904-44613  NON-CAPITAL  ITEMS

505-3904-44615  SAFETY EQUIPMENT

SOS-3904-45601  WASTE  DISPOSAL

505-3904-457!16  FRANCHISETA)t

505-3904-46731  PROPERTY  INSURANCE-SOLID  WASTE  DIV

505-3904-46732  GENERAL  LIABILITY  INSLIRANCE

SOS-3904-46733  VEHICLEINSURANCE

505-3904-46794  GOVTGROSSRECEIPTSTAX

50S-3')04-47410  MAINTENANCECONTRACTS

505-3904-47415  MAINTENANCE-REPAIRSGROUNDS-ROADWAYS

505-3904-47420  MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/EQUIP-SOLIDWAS

505-3904-48596  AUDITCONTRACT

505-3904-4!1598  PROFESSIONALSERVICES

505-3904-485!i!1  0THERCONTRACTUALSERVICES

SOS-3!104-80810  0THERCAPITAtEQUIPMENT-VEHICLES

SOS-3904-80845  CAPITALIMPROVEMENTSEQulPMENT

Total  Solid  Waste  Dept.  Expenses

44  Existing  Debt  Service

4s  Capital  One  Public  Funding

46  Total  Debt  Service

47  Proposed  Debt  Service

48  None

4!1 Total  Debt  Service

5 aag,zsg S
4,500

28,288

6,616

44,027

92,628

13,478

3,225

130

!),634

S,000

1,663

40,000

6,000

3,500

50

1,000

950

4,000

25 ,633

26 ,446

2,500

6,250

34,500

30,057

5,000

!104,704

5,5!)4

g,soi

6,586

18,487

85,861

81,676

414,809  S

gig

24,357

5,697

40,180

!12,628

12,307

181

108

9,634

3,259

37,310

2,973

2,342

575

800

2,14!

25,630

14,009

2,447

1,987

11,357

28,784

4,752

726,797

5,593

9,601

6,586

18,487

84,799

2,491

424,320  S

4,500

4,913

26,587

6,218

41,583

97,481

12,730

648

120

12,801

5,000

5,625

71,000

35,071

4 ,000

5 0

1,000

1,000

4,000

25,000

15,000

3,655

3,000

58,751

5,000

5,000

800,000

5,904

11,130

25,305

19,)'31

g3gga

406,227  !i

427

4,'113

24,321

5,688

39,175

77,896

11,992

9!)

12,800

3,906

550

61,347

22,454

1,831

750

1,!186

15,1!)Q

14,566

3,654

956

33,934

1,158

4,794

754,C)57

S,904

g,tioz

ti,:isg

g,gio

8!1,893

212

109,263

g,;iog

11,818

35,3!)0

y,ags

81473  83,374  122,000

10,000  !1,709  10,000

12,000  11,!118  11,824

62,567  30,954  47,016

250,000  238,983  23!1,841

7,395  7,395  148,768

S 2,286,278  S 1,975,773  S 2,406,421

148,478

5 1,940,141 S

4!17,300  S

4,500

479

31,112

7,276

51,222

97,481

14,919

648

120

14,000

5,000

10,625

70,000

3700

4 ,000

5 0

1,000

1,000

4,000

25,OOCI

29,400

25

3,OCIO

36,611

35,664

5,000

800,000

6,000

11,130

11 ,521

12 ,000

74,836

32,600

120,952

10,000

13,000

186,000

239,841

250,000

2,726,(112  !+

sos,osi  S
4,500

2,000

31,903

7,461

54,871

59,422

15,242

64tl

120

10,000

7,000

El,[100 2,ODD

90,000

10,000

4,000

508,061

4,500

2,000

:ii,gog

7,461

54,871

5!1,422

15,242

648

120

10,000

7,000

10,000

90,000

10,000

4,0(10

1,000

1,000

4,000

25,000

15,00 €)

3,000

4 5,000

35,000

5,00D

590,133

8,000

11 ,130

12 ,000

12,000

75,000

15,000

121,000

10,000

15,000

40,000

1,000

1,000

4,000

25,000

30,000  (15,00D)

3,000

4 5,000

35,000

5,000

900,000  1309,867)
8,000

11 ,130

12 ,000

12,000

75,000

15,000

121,000

10,000

15,000

211,000  (171,000)

120,000  (120,000)

2,472,358  S e 1,858,491

Labor

Labor

Labor

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

utilities

General

General

General

General

Genera!

Generaf

utilities

Genera[

Genera(

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

Capital

Capital

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

%rsonnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Fuel

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Administration

Adm  in istration

Administration

Personnel  Expense

Personnel  Expense

Administration

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Administration

Administration

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Administration

Personnel  Expense

Disposal/Hauling

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Administration

Administration

Commercial  Trash  Collection

Administration

Administration

Administration

Maintenance

Administration

Adm  inistration

Administration

Administration

CI P

117,838  S
117,838 S - S

117,838  None  ExistingDebt

117,838

None Proposed  Debt

Prepared  By NewGen Strajegiei  and Solutions

Page 1 of 2

12/20/2023



Schedule 1

Line  FY2021  FY2021  FY2022  FY2022  FY2023  FY2024  Test  Inflation  Allocation

Nn.  AccoumNumber  Description  Budget  Actual  Budget  Adual  CurremBudget  InterimBudget  Adjustments  Year  Fador  Factor  Notei

Cash  Caoital  Outlavs

Rolling  Stock

Collection  Center  Registration  Renewal

Solid  Waste  npping  Floor  Improvements

Solid  Waste  Scale  House  Facility  Improvements

Total  Cash  Capital  Outlays

56  Total  Expenses

Revenues

505-3904-30154

505-3904-30312

505-:1904-30315

505-3904-32700

505-3904-34355

505-3904-34524

505-3904-35544

505-3904-36410

505-3904-37546

Total  Revenue

GOVT.  GROSS RECEIPTS-TR-IT  UTILITY

GROSS RECEIPTS - ENVIRONMENTAL

GOVT  GROSS RECEIPTS TAX

OTHER  STATE GRANTS

TRANSFERSTATION  REVENUE

11TILITIES  SERVICES-SOLID  WASTE  DM

NON-PAYMENT  PENALTI  8%-SOLID  WASTE

NM  STO INVESTMENTINCOME

MISCIRECYCLING)-SOLIDWASTE  DIVIS

68  Revenue  Requirement

Footnotes:

1 Salary  increase  due to a salary  study.

2 Atljustment  made  per  conversation  with  City

3 Disposal  cost  paid to South  Central  Solid  Waste  Authority.

4 5% of  sanitation  bills.

5 See schedule  2 for  detailed  capital  improvement  plan.

S 236,322 S
20,800

S 257,122 S - S

2361322  None

20,800  None

None

None

257,122

S 2,286,278 S i,gys7za  S >,atis,an  S i,gao,tax  6 2,726,012 S 2,847,317 S (613,867) 9 2,233,450

S 68,513  S 73,313

87,700  go,aaz

9,700  11,791

y,g'zo

500,000  536,634

1,522,50[]  1,591,966

4,000  5,181

620

32,000  27,883

S 2,224,413  S 2,346,6!)1

S 77,487 S
101,791

10,000

77,4!10  S

101,792

12,269

539,279  539,279

1,704,835  1,704,681

g,so  g,uz

700  593

43,562  43,562

S 2,487,094  S 2,489,097  S

83,927  S

200

10,500

525,000

1 ,678,556

4,200

2,700

3 3,600

2,338,683  S

83,000  S

11,000

551,250  (551,250)

1 ,762,500  11,762,500)

4,500

8,000

25,000

2.445,250  S 12,313,750)  S

83,000  None

None

11,000  None

None

None

None

4,500  None

81000  None

25,000  None

131,500

S 61,865 S (370,!118) S (80,673) S 1548,!)56) § 387,329  S 402,067  S 1,6!)9,883  S 2,101,950

Replacement

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Administration

Admirustration

Administration

Administration

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Poly  Cart

Administration

Administration

Collection  Center  - Misc.

Prepared  By NewGen Strategies  and Solutions

Page 2 ol 2

12/20/2023



Schedule  2

City  of-TrutTh  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Seniice  Study

10-Year  Capital  Improvement  Plan

Line  Project  Fund Project Price Yearl---'  Year2 Year3 Year4 Year5 Year6 Year7 Year8 Year9 YearlO
No.  Listing  Source Year FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 PV2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032 FY2033 Notes

Rolling  Stock

Collection  Center  Registration  Renewal

Solid  Waste  Tipping  Floor  Improvements

Solid  Waste  Scale House  Facility  Improvements

TOTAL

S 236,322  S 236,322  S 236,322  S 236,322  S 236,322  S 237,560  S 398,742  5

20,800  26,547

- 135,000  -

35,000

S 257,122  S 371,322  S 271,322  S 236,322  S 236,322  :S 264,107  S 398,742  S

64,325  5 67,541  S 437,619

64,325  S 67,541  S 437,619

1

2

3

4

Footnotes

1 See Schedule  3.

2 Updated  price  provided  by Parkhill  via email  on April  20, 2023.  Registration  renewal  happens  every  5 years.

3 Provided  by Parkhill.

4 Provided  by the  City  for  fiscal  years  2024-2028.  (ICIP  2024-2028.pdf  )

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and Solutions

Page 1 of  1

12/20/2023



Schedule  3

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Rolling  Stock

ine  %rchase

No Year
Vehicle  Description

Purchase  FrontLine/  CityAssumed  NewGen  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5  Year6  Year7  Year8  Year9  YearlO
Noti

Price  Back  Up  Llseful  Life  Assumed  FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027  FY 2028  FY 2029  FY 2030  FY 2031  FY 2032  FY 2033

Front  Line

2019  2019  FreightlinerTrash  Truck

2021  2021  Freightliner  1085 €

2023  2023  Freightliner  M2  106

2017  20l71ohnDeere310SL

2022  2021lOHNDEERE410LBACKHOE

2012  2012  CaSe Skld Loader

2017  2017  Clark  C 30D

2017  2017  Chevy  Silverado  1500

2017  2017  Chevy  Silverado  2500  HD

2017  2017  Chevy  Si1verarlo  2500  HD

2018  2018  Chevy  Silverado

Front  Line  Total

5 185,209

238,983

239,841

99,7!14

137,466

30,000

36,742

22,623

25,699

25,6%

22,623

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

10-15  YRS

10-15  YRS

10-15  YRS

10-15  YRS

5 zso,sos S S-S-S-S-S

336.273

337,480

S 366,70175-S

7

7

5 140,420

5 15,000

7 20,000

7 40,000

10

10

10

10

IS,750

10,500

6,000

16,538

11,025

6,300

17!1,216

zg,  144

12,763

7,293

20,.lnl  21,107

13,401  14,071

7,658  8,041

22,162

14,775

8,443

23.270

15,513

8,865

17,364  18.233

11,576  12.155

6,615  6.!146

36,850

41,861

41,861

36,850

S 205,420 S 32,250 6 zga,rs'zo S 156,128 S 410,457 S zig,ais  S gyg,sao S 43,21EI S 45,37!1 S 414,349

14  0ther  Vehicles

15  2002  2002  Sterling  Acterra

16  1985  1985  F-700  (chippet  truck)

17  1996  1996  F-800  Flatbed  with  Crane

18  2003  2003  HD Bandit  Chipper  18%

19  0ther  Vehicles  Total

5 101,279  B

40,501

63,939

48,533

5-6  YRS -S

10,000  10,500  11,025  11,576  12,155  12,763  13,401  14,071  14,775  15,513  4

5,000  5,250  5,513  5,788  6,078  6,381  6,700  7,036  7,387  7,757  5

S 15,000  S IS,750  S 16,538  S 17,364  S 18,233  S 19,144  S 20,101  S 21,107  S 22,162  S 23,270

20  Back-Up

21  1!)97  1997  Case Forklift  586E

22  2008  2008GMCT8500

23  2011  2011AutocarXpeditor

24  2013  20)3Caterpillar420FBackhoe

25  2015  2015  Peterbilt  320

26  Back-Up  Total

27  Audion

28  l'i95  1!)95  Ftxd  L8000

29  2000  20001nternational  4900

30  2006  2006  GMCT8500

31  Auction  Total

S 40,785  B

155,274  B

134,969  B

9g.047  El

244,410  B

5 82,828  B

114,678  B

131,385  B

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

5-6  YRS

s s

s

32  TOTAL S 220,420 S 48,000 5 311,008 S 173,492 9 428,690 S 237,560 S 398,742 S 64,325 5 67,541 S 437,619

33  5 Year  Rolling  Stock  Average

i4  10  Year  Rolling  Stock  Average

S 236,322 S 236,322 S 236,322 S 236,322 S 236,322
S m,yari  S 238,740 S 238,740 S zis,yao  S 238,740 S zgg,yao S 238,740 S 238,740 S 238,7ao S 238,740

N tite:  City  prOVid  ed lifting  Of rolling  StOCk. Purchase  price  inflated  by 5%. E.g. iLine  2: i5185,209*ll+0.05)'7)=9260.6081

Footnotes:

1 Put  aside  §l5k/year  per  conversation  with  City.

2 Put  aside  §lOk/year  per  conversation  with  City.

3 Replacing  in FY 2024,  end  of  CY 2023.  i540k  m FY 20241.  Set aside  56k/year  going  forward  per  conversation  with  City.

4 Put  aside  510k/year  per  conversation  with  City.

s put  aside  55k/year  per  conversation  with  City.

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page 1 of  I

12/20/2023



Schedule  4

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Debt

Line  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5

No.  Item  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028  Notes

1

2

3

4

5

6

Capital  One  Public  Funding

Principal

Interest  Payment  1

Interest  Payment  2

Total  Existing  Debt

Footnotes:

1 For collection  center.

S ios,ooo  S
6,419

6,419

S 117,838  §

iio,ooo S
4,345

4,345

118,690  9

110,000  S
2,173

2,173

114,345  9

1

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page 1 of  1

12/20/2023



Schedule  5

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Five-Year  Forecast

Line  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5  Inflation

No.  AccountNumber  Oescrip4ion  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  F'/2027  FY2028  Factor  Notes

Expense  Department:  3904  - Solid  Waste

505-3904-40110  FULLTIMEWAGES-SOLIDWASTEDIVI

505-3'l04-40125  0VERTIMEWAGES-SOLIDWASTEDIV

505-3904-40140  DEIAYEDCOMPENSATION-SOLIDWASTE

SOS-3"l04-41205  FICA-REGULAR-SOLIDWASTEDIVISION

505-3904-41210  FICA-MEDICARE-SOLID  WASTE  DIVISION

505-3904-41215  PERA-SOLIDWASTEDIVISION

SOS-3904-41225  HEALTHINSURANCE-SOLIDWASTEDIV

505-3904-41226  RETIREE INSURANCE

SOS-3!)04-41235  UNEMPLOYMENT  INSURANCE-SOLID  WASTE

505-3904-41240  WORKER'S  COMP  ASSESSMENT

SOS-3"l04-417!15  WORKER'S  COMP.  PREMIIIMS

505-3904-42620  UNIFORM/LINEN-SOLIDWASTEDIVISION

505-3%4-42720  EMPLOYEETRAINING-SOLIDWASTEDIV

505-3"l04-43316  GAS&OIL

SOS-3904-43403  REGULAR  BLIILDING  MAINT

SOS-3904-43465  RENT OF EQUIPMENT

SOS-3904-43735  POSTAGE&MAILSERVICES

505-3904-43740  PRINTING/PUBLISHING

SOS-3904-43770  SUBSCRIPTION  & DUES

505-3904-43775  TELEPHONE

505-3904-43780  uTILITIES

505-3904-43815  SOFTWARELIC/SOFIWAREtlPDATE

505-3")04-439(19  0PERATING  COSTS

505-3904-44606  0FFICESuPPLIES

505-3904-44607  FIELDSuPPLIES-SOLIDWASTEDIVISION

SOS-3904-44613  NON-CAPITALITEMS

505-3904-44615  SAFETY EQUIPMENT

SOS-3904-45601  WASTE  DISPOSAL

505-3904-45796  FRANCHISETAX

505-3'l04-46731  PROPERTY  INSURANCE-SOLID  WASTE  DIV

505-3904-467:12  GENERALLIABILITYINSLIRANCE

SOS-3")04-46733  VEHICLE  INSURANCE

505-3904-46794  GOVTGROSSRECEIPTSTAX

505-3904-47410  MAINTENANCE  CONTRACTS

505-3904-47415  MAINTENANCE-REPAIRSGROUNDS-ROADWAYS

505-3904-47420  MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/EQUIP-SOLIDWAS

505-3!)04-485!)6  ALIDITCONTRACT

505-3904-48598  PROFESSIONALSERVICES

505-3')04-48599  0THERCONTRACTUALSERVICES

505-3"l04-!10810  0THERCAPITALEQUIPMENT-VEHICLES

505-3904-80845  CAPITALIMPROVEMENTSEQulPMENT

Total  Solid  Waste  Dept.  Expenses

44  Existing  Debt  Senilce

45  Capital  One  Public  Funding

46  Total  Debt  Service

47  Proposed  Debt  Service

48  None

49  Total  Debt  Service

Cash  Capital  Outlays

Rolling  Stock

Collection  Center  Registration  Renewal

Solid  Waste  Tipping  Floor  Improvements

Solid  Waste  Scale  House  Facility  Improvements

Total  Cash Capital  Outlays

56  Total  Expenses

S 508,061  S
4,500

2,000

31,903

7,461

54,871

59,422

15,242

648

120

10,000

7,000

10,000

90,000

10,000

4,000

1,000

1,000

4,000

25,000

15,000

3,000

4 5,000

35,000

5,000

590,133

8,000

11 ,130

12 ,000

12,000

75,000

15,000

121,000

10,000

15,000

40,000

528,383  S
4,6E10 ,

2,080

32,701

7,648

56,243

tio,gos

15,623

664

123

10,250

7,175

10,25C1

94,500

10,250

4,100

1,025

1,025

4,100

26,250

15,375

3,075

4 6,125

35,875

5,125

656,059

3200

11 ,408

12 ,30C1

12,300

76,875

15,375

124,025

10,250

15,375

41,000

549,519  S
4,867

2,163

3 3,518

7,839

57,649

62,430

16,014

681

126

10,506

7,354

10,506

99,225

10,506

4,203

1,051

1,051

4,203

27,563

15,759

3,152

4 1,2m

36,772

5,253

6 92,306

8,405

11,693

iz,tiog

12,608

78,797

15,759

127,126

10,506

15,75!1

42,025

571,500  S
5,062

2,250

34,356

8,035

59,090

63,991

16,414

sgs

12!1

10,769

7,538

10,769

104,186

10,769

4,308

1,077

1,077

4,308

28,941

16,153

3,231

4 8,460

37,691

5,384

730,556

!1,615

11 ,9E16

12 ,923

12,923

80,767

16,153

130,304

10,769

16,153

43,075

594,360

S,264

2,340

35,215

8,236

60,567

65,591

16,824

715

132

11,038

7,727

11,038

109,396

11,038

4,415

1,104

1,104

4,415

30,388

16,557

3,311

4 9,672

38,633

5,519

770,920

8,831

12 ,285

13 ,246

13,246

82,786

16,557

133,561

11,038

16,557

44,153

5 1,858,491 S 1,g66,719 S 2,046,779 5 2,130,409 S 2,217,779

S 117,838  S 118,690  S 114,345  S
S 117,838 S us,sgo S 114,345 S

Labor

Labor

Labor

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

lltilities

General

General

General

General

General

General

utilities

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

Capital

Capital

None

None

9 236,322  S 236,322  S 236,322  S 236,322  5 236,322  None

20,800  - - - None

135,000  - None

35,000  - None

S 257,122  S 371,322  S 271,322  S 236,322  S 236,322

S 2,233,450  6 2,456,731  5 2,432,446  S 2,366,731  6 2,454,101

Prepared By NewGen  lategiei  and Solutions
Page 1 ok 2

12/20/2023



Schedule 5

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Five-Year  Forecast

Line  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5  Inflation

No.  AccountNumber  Description  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FV2027  FY2028  Factor  Notes

Revenues

SOS-3(104-30154

505-3904-30312

sos-agoq-aosis

SOS-3904-32700

sos-agon-:i<:iss

505-3904-34524

505-3904-35544

505-3904-36410

505-3904-37546

Total  Revenue

GOVT.  GROSS RECEIPTS-TR-IT  UTILITY

GROSS RECEIPTS - ENVIRONMENTAL

GOVT  GROSS RECEIPTS TAX

OTHER  STATE GRANTS

TRANSFERSTATION  REVENUE

UTILITIES  SERVICES-SOLID  WASTE  DIVI

NON-PAYMENT  PENALTY  8%-SOLID  WASTE

NM  STO INVESTMENTINCOME

MISCiRECYCLlNG)-SOLID  WASTE  DMS

68  Revenue  Requirement

S 83,000 S gi,ooo  S E13,000 S si,otio  S g:i,otia

11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000

4,500  4,500  4,500  4,500  4,500

8,000  8,000  8,000  8,000  8,000

25,000  25,000  25,000  25,000  25,000

S 131,500  S 131,5 €10 S 131,SOD  S 131,SOD  S isi,soa

S 2,101,950  S 2,325,231  S 2,300,946  S 2,235,231  S 2,322,601

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Footnotes:

1 Disposal  cost  paid  to  South  Central  Solid  Waste  Authority.

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategiei  and Siilutioni
Page 2 ol 2

12/20/2023



Schedule  6

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Revenue  Requirement  Summary

Line  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5

No.  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028

1

2

3

4

s

6

7

8

9

Poly  Cart

Commercial  Trash  Collection

Commercial  Recycle  Collection

Cart  Maintenance  & Delivery

Disposal/  Hauling

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Administration

Collection  Center  - Recycling,  etc.

Total

S 152,736 !>

350,724

156,242  !>

355,026

162,195  S

364,784

151,998  S

338,427

84,333  85,366  87,713  81,376

64,287  66,059  67,897  69,804

590,133  656,059  692,306  730,556

308,707  437,678  335,277  274,967

313,627  326,100  338,988  352,303

237,404  242,701  251,786  235,799

S z,ioi,gso  S 2,325,231  S 2,300,946  S 2,235,231

157,433

347,098

83,463

71,782

770,920

281,777

366,061

244,066

S 2,322,601

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page 1 of  1

12/20/2023



Schedule  7

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Poly  Cart  Cost  of  Service

Line  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5

No.  Description  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

PolyCart

Cart  Maintenance  & Delivery

Disposal/  Hauling

Administration

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Collection  Center  - Recycling,  etc.

Total  Revenue  Requirement

152,736  S
64,287

152,999

120,563

80,036

237,404

808,026  S

156,242  S
66,059

170,091

122,107

113,473

242,701

870,674  S

162,195  S
67,897

179,489

129,290

86,925

251,786

877,582  S

151,998  S

69,804

189,406

134,396

71,288

235,799

852,691  S

157,433

71,782

199,870

139,613

73,054

244,066

885,819

8

9

10

11

Billing  Units  (Polycarts)

Residential

Commercial

Total  Polycarts

12  Total  Cost  Per  Polycart

Total  Revenue  Requirement

Projected  Polycart  Revenues

Over/(Under)

3,091

98

3,189

21.11  S

3,106

98

3,204

22.65  S

3,122

98

3,220

22.71  S

3,138

98

3,236

21.96  5

3,154

98

3,252

22.70

808,026  S 870,674  S 877,582 S 852,691 S 885,819
1,345,780 S 1,352,024 S 113581685  S 1,365,345 S 1,372,006

537,755  S 481,351 S 481,103  S 512,654 S 486,187

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page 1 of  1

12/20/2023



Schedule  8

--- ---C--ity ofTruth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Dumpster  Refuse  and  Recycle  Cost  of  Service

Line  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5

No.  Description  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Direct  Cost

Commercial  Trash  Collection

Commercial  Recycle  Collection

Disposal/  Hauling

Administration

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Total  Direct  Cost

8 Total  Dumpster  COS

S 350,724 S
84,333

103,852

104,038

54,327

S 697,274 ",

S 697,274 S

355,026  S

85,366

115,454

103,234

77,023

736,103  S

736,103  S

364,784  S
87,713

121,833

109,427

59,002

742,759  S

742,759S

338,427  S

81,376

128,564

111,655

48,389

708,412  S

708,412  S

347,098

83,463

135,667

115,217

49,587

731,032

731,032

Billing  Units  and  Costs  Per  Unit

Container  Cost

# of  Refuse  Containers

# of  Recycling  Containers

Monthly  Fee Per  Container

Administration

Collections

# of  Annual  Refuse  Collections

# of  Annual  Reycling  Collections

Total  Collections

Fee per  Collection

Disoosal  Costs

Yards  of  Capacity  (annual)

Fee per  Yard

372

go

462

18.77  S

59,696

9,152

68,848

7.11  S

156,702

S O.66 S

372

90

462

18.62  S

59,696

9,152

68,848

7.52  S

156,702

0.74  S

372

90

462

19.74  S

59,696

9,152

68,848

7.43  6

156,702

0.78  S

372

90

462

20.14  S

59,696

9,152

68,848

s.so S

156,702

0.82  S

372

go

462

20.78

59,696

9,152

68,848

6.97

156,702

0.87

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions Page 1  of  2



'(4!'!f'!ii
FY 2024  Refuse  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 123456

1.5

3

S 53.61 S 88.45 S 123.29 S 158.13 S 192.96 S 227.80

S 57.88 S 96.99 !' 136.11 !> 175.22 S 214.34 S 253.45

FY 2025  Refuse  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 123456

1.5

3

S 55.69 S 92.76 S 129.83 S 166.89 S 203.96 S 241.03
S 60.44 S 102.26 S 144.08 S iss.go  S 227.72 S 269.54

FY 2026  Refuse  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 12345 €

1.5

3

S 56.70 S 93.66 S 130.62 S 167.58 S 204.54 S 241.50
S 61.71 S 103.69 S 145.67 S 187.64 S 229.62 S 271.59

FY 2027  Refuse  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 123456

1.5

3

S 54.67 S 89.21 S 123.74 S 158.27 S 192.81 !> 227.34
S 59.97 e, 99.79 ';, 139.62 S 179.44 S 219.27 S 259.09

FY 2028  Refuse  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 123456

1.5

3

S 56.35 S 91.93 S 127.50 S 163.07 e, 198.64 S 234.22
S 61.94 S 103.10 S 144.25 S 185.41 S 226.57 S 267.72

a a tl'Ulm  a
FY 2024  Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 123456

3 S 49.33 S 79.90 S 110.46 S 141.03 S 171.59 S 202.16

FY 2025  Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 123456

1.5

3

S 50.94 S 83.25 S us.s';i  S 147.88 S 180.20 S 212.52
S 50.94 S 83.25 S 115.57 S 147.88 S 180.20 S 212.52

FY 2026  Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 123456

L.S

3

S 51.68 S 83.63 S 115.58 S 147.52 S 179.47 S 211.42
S 51.68 S 83.63 S 115.58 S 147.52 S 179.47 S 211.42

FY 2027  Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 12345 €

1.5

3

S 49.38 S 78.62 S 107.86 !> 137.11 S 166.35 S 195.59
S 49.38 S 78.62 S 107.86 S 137.11 S 166.35 S 195.59

FY 2028  Recyding  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 123456

1.5

3

S 50.77 S 80.76 S 110.75 S 140.74 S 170.72 S 200.71
S 50.77 S 80.76 S 110.75 S 140.74 S 170.72 S 200.71

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Schedule  8

Page  2 of  2



Schedule  9

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Collection  Center  Cost  of  Service

Line  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5

No.  Description  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028

1

2

3

4

Disposal/  Hauling

Collection  Center  - Garbage  Operations

Administration

Total

S 333,281 S 370,514 !>
174,345  247,1)31

89,025  100,759

S 596,651 S 718,454 S

390,985  S

189,350

100,270

680,605  9

412,587  S

iss,zsg

106,252

674,127  S

435,382

159,136

111,232

705,750

s Annual  Billed  Collection  Center  Tonnage' 4,214 4,235 4,256 4,278 4,299

# of  Drop-

Offs
Rate FY 2023  Revenue

FY 2024  FY 2025  FY 2026  FY 2027

Revenue  Revenue  Revenue  Revenue

Residential  MSW/Yard  waste

0-200  5,235  S
201-400  2,428

401-600  1,156

601-800  689

Commercial  C&D/Yard  waste

O-100  19  S
101-350  153

351-650  208

651-1000  186

1001-1999  282

6.00  S
11.22

13.32

18.84

20.00  S
30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

31,412  S 31,569  S
27,237  27,373

15,396  15,473

12,984  13,049

31,727  S 31,886  S
27,510  27,648

15,551  15,628

13,114  13,180

378  S 380  S 382  S 384  S
4,578  4,601  4,624  4,647

8,305  8,346  8,388  8,430

9,322  9,369  9,415  9,463

16,892  16,977  17,062  17,147

32,045  S
27,786

15,706

13,246

385  S
4,670

8,472

9 ,510

17,233

Tree  Branches

0-200  271  S 3.50  S 949  S 953  5 gss  S 963  S 968  S

201-400  196  7.00  1,372  1,379  1,386  1,393  1,400

401-600  92  10.50  967  972  977  982  987

Total  CC Drop-Off  Revenue  Offset  a "> 129,793  5 130,442  5 131,094  9 131,749  S 132,408  '>

6 COS With  Drop-Off  Revenue  Offset  5 466,209  5 587,360  5 548,856  5 541,719  S

7 lCostPerTon 5 110.63 6 138.69 9 128.95 6 126.64 9

SouthCentralSoridWasteAuthor'ityD'isposal s 57.01  s si.oo  s ss.zr  s ss.sa s n.gs  s
Rates  Per  Ton

Provided  by  SCSWA  staff.  7% increase  in 2024.  (957.01'!.07=961.00)  7% increase  in FY 2025  and  5% increase  in FY 26, FY 27, & FY 28.

FY 2028

Revenue

32,205

27,925

15,785

13,312

387

a,sg:i

8,515

9,557

17,319

973

1,407

992

133,070

572,680

133.21 l

75.56

Footnote

1: Collection  Center  Tonnage  =  tons  hauled  away  by SCSWA  9,261  tons  - 4,031  polycart  & dumpster  tonnage-  1,016  tons  in tiered  rates.

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and Solutions

Page 1 of  1

12/20/2023



Schedule 10

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Over/(Under)  at Current  Rates

Line  Description  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5

No.  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028

I

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Polycart  Cost of Service

Polycart  Rates

Residential

Commercial

Polycart  Revenue

Residential

Commercial

Total  Polycart  Revenue

Over/(Under)  Current  Rates

Cumulative  Over/(Under)

S 808,026  S 870,674  6 877,582  S 852,691  S 885,819

S 34.69  S

S 50.22  S

34.69  S 34.69  S 34.69  S 34.69

50.22  S 50.22  S 50.22  S 50.22

S 1,286,721  S 1,292,966

59,059  59,059

S 1,345,780  S 1,352,024

S 537,755  S 481,351

S 537,755  S 1,019,105

S 1,299,626  S 1,306,287

59,059  59,059

S 1,358,685  6 1,365,345

S 481,103  S 512,654

S 1,500,208  S 2,012,862

S 1,312,947

59,059

S 1,372,006

S 486,187

S 2,499,048

I'mlm'l  a i

13

Dumpster  COS

Total  Dumpster  COS

Total  Dumpster  Revenues

Over/(Under)  Current  Rates

Cumulative  Over/(Under)

S 697,274  S

S 697,274  S

S 539,112  S

S (158,162) S

S (158,162) ',

736,103  S

736,103  S

539,947  5

(196,157) S

(354,319) S

742,759  S

742,759  S

540,781  6

(201,977) !!)

(556,296) 9

708,412  S

708,412  S

541,616  5

(166,795) S

(723,092)  §

731,032

731,032

542,451

(188,581)

(911,672)

t'mH'mrm'm'ff

16

17

Collection  Center  COS

Total  Collection  Center  Revenues

Over/(Under)  Current  Rates

Cumulative  Over/(Under)

S 596,651  S

S 382,871  S

S (213,779) ',

S (213,779) S

718,454  S

384,786  6

(333,668) S

(547,448) 5

680,605  S 674,127  S 705,750

386,710  5 388,643  S 390,587

(293,895) S (285,484) S (315,163)

(841,343) S (1,126,827)  S (1,441,990)

Total  Revenue  Requirement

Total  Project  Revenue  at Current  Rates

Over/(Under)  Current  Rates

Cumulative  Over/(Under)

S 2,101,950  S 2,325,231  6 2,300,946  S 2,235,231  S 2,322,601

2,267,763  2,276,757  2,286,176  2,295,605  2,305,043

S 165,813  S (48,475) S (14,770) S 60,374  S (17,557)

S 165,813  S 117,339  S 102,569  5 162,943  S 145,386

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page 1 of 1

12/20/2023



Schedule  11

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Dumpster  Proposed  Rates

FY 2024  Refuse  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4  5 6

1.5

3

S 69.57  S 88.45  S 123.29  S 158.13  S 192.96  S 227.80

S 69.57 S 96.99 S 136.11  S 175.22  S 214.34  S 253.45

FY 2024  Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1 2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

S 30.00 S 60,00 S 90.00 S 120.00  S 150.00  S 180.00

!> 30.00 !' 60.00 S 90.00 S 120.00  S 150.00  S 180.00

% Increase

FY 2025 Refuse Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4  5 6

1.5

3

S 69.57 S 88.45  S 123.29  S 158.13  S 192.96  S 227.80

S 69.57  S 96.99  S 136.11  S 175.22  S 214.34  S 253.45

FY 2025  Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

S 30.00 S 60.00  S 90,00  S 120.00  S 150.00  S 180.00

S 30.00 !> 60.00 S 90.00  S 120.00  S 150.00  S 180.00

% Increase

FY 2026  Refuse  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

S 74.79  S 95.08  S 132.53  S 169.98  S 207.44  S 244.89

S 74.79  S 104.27  S 146.32  S 188.37  S 230.41  S 272.46

% Increase

FY 2026  Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1 2 3 4 5 6

1.5

3

S 31.50  S 63.00  !> 94.50  S 126.00  S 157.50  S 189.00

S 31.50  S 63.00  S 94.50  S 126.00  S 157.50  S 189.00

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page  1 of  2

12/20/2023



Schedule  11

% Increase

FY 2027  Refuse  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4  5 6

1.5

3

5 80.40  S 102.21  S 142.47  S 182.73  S 223.00  S 263.26
S 80.40  S 112.09  S 157.29  S 202.49  S 247.69  S 292.90

% Increase

FY 2027  Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4  5 6

1.5

3

S 33.08  S 66.15  S 99.23  S 132.30  S 165.38  S 198.45
S 33.08  S 66.15  S 99.23  S 132.30  S 165.38  S 198.45

% Increase

FY 2028  Refuse  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4  5 6

1.5

3

S 86.43  S 109.88  !' 153.16  S 196.44  S 239.72  !> 283.00

S 86.43  S 120.50  S 169.09  S 217.68  S 266.27  S 314.86

% Increase

FY 2028  Recycling  Rates

Container Collections  per  Week

Size (yrd) 1  2 3 4  5 6

1.5

3

S 34.73  5 69.46  S 104.19  S 138.92  S 173.64  S 208.37

S 34.73  S 69.46  S 104.19  S 138.92  S 173.64  S 208.37

DumpsterCollection  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028

Dumpster  COS

Total  Dumpster  COS

Total  Dumpster  Revenues

Over/(Under)  Proposed  Rates

Cumulative  Over/(under)

S 697,274  S 736,103  S 742,759  S 708,412  S 731,032

9 697,274  S 736,103  S 742,759  S 708,412  S 731,032

S 539,112  9 693,032  S 743,426  9 797,519  S 855,587

S (158,162) S (43,071) S 667 S 89,108  S 124,555

S (158,162) S (201,233) S (200,566) S (111,459) S 13,097

30%DumpsterCollection  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028

Dumpster  COS

Total  Dumpster  COS

Total  Dumpster  Revenues

S 697,274  S 736,103  S 742,759  S 708,412  S 731,032

S 697,274  6 736,103  S 742,759  S 708,412  S 731,032

S 539,112  S 485,123  S 520,398  S 558,264  S 598,911

Over/(Under)  Proposed  RateS S (158,162) S (250,981) S (222,361) S (150,148) S (132,121)

Cumulative  Over/(Under)  S (158,162) S (409,143) S (631,504) "> (781,652) " (913,773)

Page  2 of  2

Prepared  By NewGen Strategies  and Solutions  12/20/2023



Schedule  12

City  of  Truth  or Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Collection  Center  Proposed  Rates

CURRENT

Minimum  Fee  (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800 801+

MSW

Yard  waste

S 6.00 S 11.22 S 13.32  S 18.84

S 6.00 S 11.22 S 13.32 S 18.84

S 60.00

S 60.00

Minimum  Fee By Lbs Per  Ton

Commercial O-100  101-350  351-650  651-1,000  1,001-1,999 2,000+

C&D

Yard  waste

S 20.00 S 30.00 S 40.00 S 50.00 S 60.00

S 20.00 S 30.00 S 40.00 S 50.00 S 60.00

S 65.00

S 65.00

Min  Fee  (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Tree  Branches 0-200  201-400  401-600 601+

S3.50 S7.00 S10.50 S 35.00

Rate  Increase

Year  1 FY 2024

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800 801+

MSW

Yard  waste

S 6.00 S 11.22 S 13.32  S 18.84

S 6.00 S 11.22 S 13.32  S 18.84

S 60.00

S 60.00

Minimum  Fee By Lbs Per  Ton

Commercial O-100  101-350  351-650  651-1,000  1,001-1,999 2,000+

C&D

Yard  waste

S 20.00 S 30.00 5 40.00 S 50.00 S 60.00

S 20.00 S 30.00 S 40.00 S 50.00 S 60.00

S 65.00

S 65.00

Min  Fee  (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Tree  Branches 0-200  201-400  401-600 601+

S3.50 S7.00 S10.50 S 35.00

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page 1 of  3

12/20/2023



Schedule  12

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Collection  Center  Proposed  Rates

Year  2 FY 2025

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

MSW

Yard  waste

S 9.00 S 18.00 S 27.00 5 36.00 S 54.00
S 9.00 S 18.00 S 27.00 S 36.00 S 54.00

S 90.00
S 90.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Commercial 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

C&D

Yard  waste

S 9.00 S 18.00 9 27.00 S 36.00 9 54.00
S 9.00 S 18.00 S 27.00 S 36.00 S 54.00

S 90.00
S 90.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Tree  Branches 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

!9 9.00 S 18.00 S 27.00 S 36.00 S 54.00 S 90.00

PerTon  Rate  Increase

Year  3 FY 2026

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

MSW

Yard  waste

S 10.50 S 21.00 S 31.50 S 42.00 S 63.00
S 10.50 S 21.00 S 31.50 S 42.00 S 63.00

S 105.00
S 105.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Commercial 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

C&D

Yard  waste

S 10.50  S 21.00 S 31.50  S 42.00 S 63.00
S 10.50  S 21.00 S 31.50  S 42.00 S 63.00

S 105.00
S 105.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Tree  Branches 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

S 10.50  S 21.00 S 31.50  S 42.00 S 63.00 S 105.00

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page  2 of  3

12/20/2023



Schedule  12

PerTon Rate Increase S 10.00
Year  4 FY 2027

Minimum  Fee  (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

MSW

Yard  waste

5 ii.so  '.  23.00 S 34.50 S 46.00 !, 69.00

S 11.50 S 23.00 S 34.50 S 46.00 S 69.00

S 115.00

S 115.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Commercial 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

C&D

Yard  waste

S ii.so  '.  23.00 ',  34.50 S 46.00 S 69.00

S 11.50 S 23.00 S 34.50 S 46.00 S 69.00

S 115.00

S 115.00

Minimum  Fee  (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Tree  Branches 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

S 11.50 S 23.00 S 34.50 S 46.00 S 69.00 S 115.00

PerTon  Rate  Increase  S
Year  5 FY 2028

Minimum  Fee  (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Residential 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

MSW

Yard  waste

S 11.50 S 23.00 S 34.50 S 46.00 S 69.00

S 11.50 S 23.00 S 34.50 S 46.00 ',  69.00

S 115.00

S 115.00

Minimum  Fee (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Commercial 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

C&D

Yard  waste

S ii.so  S 23.00 S 34.50 S 46.00 S 69.00

S 11.50 S 23.00 S 34.50 S 46.00 S 69.00

S 115.00

S 115.00

Minimum  Fee  (lbs  tiers) Per  Ton

Tree  Branches 0-200  201-400  401-600  601-800  801-1,200 1,200+  Ibs

S 11.50 S 23.00 S 34.50 S 46.00 S 69.00 S 115.00

€amlmirmam?! - itti)-x!t!>l-itt->r-i!It}+i??-?7-

1  Collection  Center  COS 596,651 S 718,454 S 680,605 S 674,127 S 705,750

2 Total Collection Center Revenues "> 382,871 S 599,311 S egg,aao S 769,884 S 773,733

3 0ver/(Under)  Proposed Rates S (213,779) '9 (119,143) 5 18,835  "> 95,756 "> 67,983

4 CumulativeOver/(Under)  9 (213,779) 6 (332,923) "> (314,088) 9 (218,332) S (150,348)

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page  3 of  3

12/20/2023



Schedule  13

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Over/(Under)  at Proposed Rates

Line  Description  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5

No.  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028  No'es

1

5

6

7

8

Polycart  Cost of Service

Polycart  Rates

Residential

Commercial

Polycart  Revenue

Residential

Commercial

Total  Polycart  Revenue

Over/(Under)  Proposed Rates

Cumulative  Over/(Under)

S 808,026  S 870,674  S 877,582  S 852,691  S 885,819

34.69  !> 34.69  S 34.69  S

50.22  S 50.22  S 50.22  S

1,286,721  S

sg,osg  S

1,345,780  S

537,755  S

537,755  9

1,292,966  S

59,059  !>

1,352,024  '.

481,351  S

1,019,105  S

1,299,626  S

sg,osg  S

1,358,685  S

481,103  S

1,500,208  S

34.69  S 34.69

50.22  S 50.22

1,306,287  S 1,312,947

59,059  S 59,059

1,365,345  S 1,372,006

512,654  S 486,187

2,012,862  S 2,499,048

13

Dumpster  COS

Total  Dumpster  COS

Total  Dumpster  Revenues

Over/(under)  Proposed  Rates

Cumulative  Over/(under)

g&mlmi(mi

697,274  S

697,274  S

539,112  5

(158,162) 9

(158,162) S

736,103  S

736,103  S

485,123  S

(250,981) S

(400,143)  S

742,759  S

742,759S

520,398  6

(222,361) S

(631,504) S

708,412  S 731,032

708,412  S 731,032

558,264  S 598,911  1,2

(150,148) S (132,121)

(781,652) S (913,773)

16  Collection  Center  COS

17  Total  Collection  Center  Revenues

596,651  S

382,871  S

(213,779) S

(213,779) S

718,454  S

599,311  S

(119,143) '>

(332,923)  S

680,605  S

699,440  S

18,835  S

(314,088) S

674,127  S 705,750

769,884  S 773,733

95,756  S 67,983

(218,332) S (150,348)

2,101,950  S 2,325,231  5 2,300,946  S 2,235,231  S 2,322,601

2,267,763  2,436,458  2,578,523  2,693,493  2,744,650

165,813  S 111,226  S 277,577  S 458,262  S 422,049

165,813  S 277,040  S 554,616  S 1,012,878  S 1,434,927

Footnotes:

1 Dumpster  revenues  assumed a 30% reduction  in the number  of dumpsters  served.

2 If the  number  of dumpsters  served and the configuration  (frequency  of pickup  and size) remain unchanged,  listed below  would  be the

dumpster  collection  recovery.

24 TotalDumpsterRevenues  "  539,112  "  693,032  '>  743,426  S 797,519  S 855,587

25 0ver/(Under)  Proposed  Rates 5 (158,162) "> (43,071) '>  667 6 89,108  6 124,555

26 CumulativeOver/(under)  S (158,162) S (201,233) S (200,566) S (111,459) S 13,097

Prepared  By NewGen Strate(;ies  and Solutions

Page I of 1

12/20/2023



Schedule  14

City  of  Truth  or  Conseque-n-c-es,  New  Mexico

Solid  Waste  Cost  of  Service  Study

Reserves

Line  Fund  Yearl  Year2  Year3  Year4  Year5

No.  Account  FY2024  FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028

1 O&M  Costs  (excluding  debt) 9 2,115,613  S 2,338,041  S 2,318,101  S 2,366,731  S 2,454,101

2

5

90 days  of  O&M  Costs

Current  Reserve  Balance

Solid  Waste  Over/(Under)  Recovery

Ending  Reserve  Balance

Excess  Reserves

90 Day Reserve  Goal  Met

S 521,658  S 576,503  S 571,587  9 583,577  9 605,121

S - S 165,813  S 277,040  S 554,616 S 1,012,878
165,813  111,226  277,577  458,262  422,049

9 165,813  9 277,040  S 554,616  S 1,012,878  9 1,434,927

S 429,301  S 829,807

@Yes  @Yes

Prepared  By NewGen  Strategies  and  Solutions

Page  1 of  1

12/20/2023



NewGen
Strategies& Solutions Parkhill

8140  North  Mopac  Expressway,  Suite I -240

Abistin  TX 78759

Email tlyanke@newgenstrategies  net

(512)  649-1254

WWW  neWgenStrategleS  net



€ 111'  (F  T[)UTH  O[)  € 0!%IS[0U[!%ffl,[%
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

MEETINGDATE:Augustl4,2024  Age"daI'em#:H2

SUBJECT: Discussion/Action:  Resolution No. 11 24/25 Amendment  to City Park Rental fees.
DEPARTMENT:  City  Clerk's  Office

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  7, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Angela  A. Torres,  Clerk-Treasurer

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  03 Hechler,  Community  Services  Director  and  Angela  A. Torres,  City  Clerk

Summary/Background:

This  is an amendment  to  our  park  rental  fee  Resolution  to  include  the  use of  jumping  balloons  at various  city  parks

with  city  approval.

Recommendation:

Approval  of Resolution No. 11 24/25

Attachments:

*  Resolution No. 11 24/25

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance): N/A

SO.OO

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  N/A

None.

lApproved For  Submittal  By:  € Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  % City  Clerk  € Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  Z City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  - Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To:  - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  € Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-2024



RESOLUTION N0. 11 24/25

A RESOLUTION  OF THE  CITY  OF TRUTH  OR CONSEQUENCES  CITY  COMMISSION  ADOPTING  A

RESOLUTION  FOR FEES, DEPOSITS  AND  REGULATIONS  FOR USE OF THE CITY  PARKS.

WHEREAS,  the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  operates  and  maintains  various  City  Parks,  Rodeo

Arena,  Sports  Complex,  Tennis  Courts,  etc.,  and;

WHEREAS,  the  City  of  Truth  or Consequences  operates  and maintains  the  City  Parks  for  the

enjoyment  of  the  public,  and;

WHEREAS,  the  City  Parks  are  sometimes  used  by the  public  for  commercial  or  private  purposes,

and;

WHEREAS,  the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  finds  it necessary  to collect  fees,  and  deposits  in

order  to  cover  operational  costs,  and  to provide  on-going  maintenance  of  the  City  Parks:

The  following  are  the  fees  and  deposits  the  City  will  charge  for  use  of  the  City  Parks:

Those  who  wish  to use a park  on a first  come,  first  serve  basis  are not  required  to pay  a user

fee.  However,  private  and  commercial  events  that  are  expected  to bring  in a large  number  of

people  will  be required  to  pay  user  fees.

RALPH  EDWARDS  PARK:

Reserving  a Park  Shelter:

(Utilities  Not  included)

Small Shelter  - up to 2 hours:  S20.00

2 hours  to 4 hours:  S30.00

4 hours to all day 540.00

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental:  S25.00

Large Shelter:  up to 2 hours:  525.00

2 hours  to 4 hours:  S35.00

4 hours  to all day: S45.00

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental:  S25.00

Reserving  Gazebo:

(Utilities  not  included)

Up to 4 hours:  S30.00

4 hours  to 8 hours:  S50.00

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental:525.00

Use of  Utilities: Electricity:  S7 per outlet  per day

S50 per day south pedestals

Water  Fees: SIO single hose bib per day

S25 per event  (Multiple  hose bibs)

Page 1 of  6



JUMPING  BALLOONS

Reserving  Designated  Area for

Jumping  Balloon:
!>25.00  and requires  liability  insurance

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental:  SIOO.OO

Jumping  Balloons/Bouncy  Houses/Dunk  Tanks, etc. are only allowed in designated  areas

approved  by the city. Set-up must  be pre-approved  by the city and prior  to  any  events.

INFLAT ABLE WATER SLIDES ARE NOT ALLOWED

Commercial  Event  Application: Event Reservation:  550.00

Electricity:  S50.00 per event

Water  Fees: S10.OO per hose bib per day

(Refundable  Deposit)  per reservation:  !9100.00
Does not  incfude  group  shelters  or Gazebo

*  Set-upandtear-downwillbetheresponsibilityoftherenter.

FAMILY  PARK:

Reserving  a Park  Shelter:

(Utifities  not  induded)

Use of Utilities:

JUMPING  BALLOONS

Small Shelter  - up to 2 hours: S20.00

2 hours  to 4 hours:  S30.00

4 hours  to all day S40.00

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental:  S25.00

Large Shelter  - up to 2 hours:  S25.00

2 hours  to 4 hours:  935.00

4 hours  to all day S45.00

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental:525.00

Electricity:  S7 per outlet  per day

Jumping  Balloons/Bouncy  Houses/Dunk  Tanks, etc. require  liability  insurance  and a S100.OO
refundable  deposit.

Page 2 of  6



Commercial  Event  Application: Event Reservation:  S50.00

Electricity:  S35.00 per event

(Refundable  Deposit)  per reservation:  S100.OO
Does  not  include  group  shelters

*  Set-up and tear-down  will be the responsibility  of  the renter.

HEALING  WATERS  PLAZA:

Reserving  the  Pergola:

(Lltilities  not  induded)

Deposit  (Non-Commercial  Events)

Use of  Utilities:

Commercial  Event  Application:

Up to 2 hours:  S25.00

2 hours  to 4 hours:  S35.00

4 hours  to all day: !945.00

Refundable  Deposit  fee Per Rental: S25.00

Electricity:  S7 per outlet  per day

Event Reservation:  S50.00 (Does not include  pergola)

Electricity:  S50.00 per event

(Refundable  Deposit)  per reservation:  S100.OO

*  Set-upandtear-downwillbetheresponsibilityoftherenter.

EVELYN  RENFRO  PARK:

USE OF UTILITIES: Electricity:  S7 per outlet  per day

Water  Fees: SIO single hose bib per day

LOUIS  ARMuO  SPORTS  COMPLEX  :

Use of Field Lights:

Men/Women  Sports Leagues:

Youth  League  Teams:

925.00  per day

S150.00 per team  per season (includes  Field Lights)

S100.OO per team  per season (includes  Field Lights)

Guest Tournaments  (Men/Women):  S200.00 (Up to 3 consecutive  days)

Refundable  Deposit:

Use  of  Conference  Room:

950.00  per event

S15.00 per hour  up to 3 hours

S50.00 over  3 hours

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental  S25.00

Page 3 of  6



Use of  Concession  Stand: S15.00 per hour  up to 3 hours

S50.00 over 3 hours

SIOO.OO per season

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental  S50.00

*  Adult  Sports  Leagues  must  submit  By-Laws  with  application  for  season  use.

*  A season  being:  spring,  summer,  fall,  winter  (3-4  Months).

@ All leagues  must  provide  a season  schedule  at the  time  event  is booked.

*  Set-upandtear-downwillbetheresponsibilityoftherenter.

ROT  ARY  PARK:

Reserving  a Park  Shelter:

Use of  Utilities:

Commercial  Event  Application:

Small Shelter  - up to 2 hours:  S20.00

2 hours  to 4 hours:  S130.00

4 hours  to all day S40.00

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental:  S125.00

Large Shelter  - up to 2 hours:  S25.00

2 hours  to 4 hours:  S35.00

4 hours  to all day S45.00

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental:  S25.00

Electricity:  S7 per outlet  per day

Event Reservation:  S50.00

Electricity:  S35.00 per event

(Refundable  Deposit)  per reservation:  S100.OO

Does  not  include  group  shelters

@ Set-upandtear-downwillbetheresponsibilityoftherenter.

TENNIS  COURTS:

Use  of  tennis  court  lights:

Reserving  the  tennis  courts:

RODEO  ARENA:

Use  of  Arena  Lights:

S10.OO per use (no later  than 11 PM)

two  court  enclosure-  520.00  per day

(Refundable  Deposit)  per rental:  S25.00

S25.00 per day

Use  of  Arena: !>100  per event

Page 4 of  6



S40 Local  Youth  Group

Refundable  Deposit S100.OO per event

PA System: 525.00 per day (if available)

Additional  Tractor  Work: 5100.00 per day

Overnight  use of  stalls: SIO  per  stall  per  night  + S25 single  fee  deposit

RV Hookup: S20 per  RV Hookup  per  day  (electricity  and water)

Liability  Insurance  Certificate:  Renters  may be required  to submit  a Certificate  of Liability

Insurance  naming  the  City of  Truth  or Consequences  as additional  insured  for  a minimum  of

Sl,000,000  Per Occurrence.  A Hold Harmless  Agreement  is required  to be signed  by all

applicants.

Additional  Items:

Bleachers: S50.00  r set (includes  delivery)

Folding  Chairs: S1.OO per chair

Tables: S5.00  per  table

(Refundable  Deposit)  per  rental  §50.00

*  The fee for  bleachers  may  be waived  by the  City Manager  for  community  events  that

provide  a significant  public  benefit.

*  Rentals  of  bleachers,  chairs,  and tables  will  be per  event  not  to exceed  four  days.

(The location  of  the  event  will  be noted  on the  Rental  Agreement  Form)

NOTE:

Jumping  Balloons/Bouncy  Houses/Dunk  Tanks,  etc. may  be allowed  in other  City parks  with

approval  from  the  City.  Set-up  must  be pre-approved  by the  City  prior  to any events.

Reserving  Designated  Area: S25.00  and requires  liability  insurance

(Refundable  Deposit)  per  rental:  S100.OO

A Commercial  Event  Application:  is for  the use of a portion  of a park  for  events  that  are

expected  to draw  a large  number  of people  due  to their  nature,  interest,  location,  promotion,

or any combination  of  similar  influences  that  are to be held  in a City  Park.  This  includes  but  not

necessarily  limited  to vendors,  festivals,  solicitations,  or performances.  Vendors  selling  goods

Page 5 of  6



on public  property  must  have  a City  business  license.  All  Commercial  Event  Applications  must

be approved  by  the  City  Manager.

The cleaning/damage  deposit will be deposited in a City account, and will be refunded if the

facility  is cleaned  after  the  event  and  the  facility  has been  returned  to prior  condition  to  the

satisfaction  of  the  City.  If the  amount  of  deposit  is greater  than  the  cost  of  cleaning  or damage,

the  difference  will  be refunded.  If the  cost  of  cleaning  or  damage  is greater  than  the  amount  of

deposit  the  renter  will  be charged  accordingly.

Note:  The  City  Manager  or his/her  designee may impose other  use regulations  as he/she may
deem  necessary  as long  as those  regulations  do not  subvert  the  intent  of  this  policy.  Any

complaints  for  public  affray  may  affect  your  ability  to  use  City  Parks.

NOW  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED  by the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  Governing  Body,  that

the  fees,  deposits  and  regulations  described  herein  are  hereby  enacted.

BE IT FURTHER  RESOLVED  that  nothing  in the  Resolution  shall  prohibit  the  use or access  of  City

Parks  by  the  public  at large  for  free.

PASSED,  APPROVED  AND  AMENDED  this  14th  day  of  August,  2024.

CITY  OF TRUTH  OR CONSEQUENCES,  NEW  MEXICO

BY:

Rolf  Hechler,  Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela  A. Torres,  City  Clerk-Treasurer

Page 6 of  6



CITY  (F  Tl2UTtl  O[)  II;0!%IS[OU[!% € [S
, AGENDAREQUESTFORM

MEETING  DATE:  August  14,  2024  Age"da I'em #: -7'3

SUBJECT: Discussion/Action  - Resolution  12 24/25  Approval  of  the State of New Mexico  Environment
Department  Capital  Appropriation  Project  Water  Distribution  Line  Grant  Agreement  and  Authorizing  the

Assignment  of  Authorized  Officers  and  Agents

DEPARTMENT:  Community  Development

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  6, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Traci  Alvarez

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE  ITEM:  Traci  Alvarez  Assistant  City  Manager

Summary/Background:

The city received  a Capital  Appropriation  in the amount  of S4,400,000.00  for  water  system improvements.
Funds  will be overseen  by New  Mexico  Environment  Dept.

Recommendation:

Approval  of Resolution  12 24/25  and Grant  Agreement

Attachments:

*  Grant  Agreement

@

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

S4,400,000.00

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  C:lick hers  to enter  text  Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24



STATE  OF NEW  MEXICO

ENVIRONMENT  DEPARTMENT

CAPITAL  APPROPRIATION  PROJECT

T OR C WATER  DISTRIBUTION  LINE RPLC

SAP 24-12460-GF

THIS  AGREEMENT  between  the  New  Mexico  Environment  Department  hereinafter  called  the

"Department"  or NMED,  and  City  ofTruth  or Consequences  hereinafter  called  the  "Grantee"  becomes

effective  on the  date  signed  by the  NMED.

RECITALS

WHEREAS,  in the Laws of 2024,  Chapter  66, Section  20, Subsection  106  the Legislature  made  an

appropriation  to  the  Department,  funds  from  which  the  Department  is making  available  to  the  Grantee  pursuant

to  this  Agreement;  and

WHEREAS,  the  Department  is granting  to  Grantee,  and  the  Grantee  is accepting  the  grant  of, funds  from

this  appropriation,  in accordance  with  the  terms  and  conditions  of  this  Agreement;  and

WHEREAS,  NMED  is empowered  pursuant  to Section  74-1-6  B, NMSA  1978  to contract  in its own  name.

AGREEMENT

NOW,  THEREFORE,  in consideration  of the  mutual  covenants  and obligations  contained  herein,  the

parties  hereby  mutually  agree  as follows:

ARTICLE  I. PROJECT  DESCRIPTION,  AMOUNT  OF GRANT  AND  REVERSION  DATE

A. The  project  that  is the  subject  of  this  Agreement  is described  as follows:

SAP  24-12460-GF 64,400,000.00  APPROPRIATION REVERSION DATE: June 30, 2028

Laws  of 2024,  Chapter  66, Section  20, Subsection  106,  Four Million  Four Hundred  Thousand  Dollars,

(!>4,400,000.00),  from  the  General  Fund to plan, design and construct  water  system improvements,  including
replacement  of  water  distribution  lines,  in Truth  or  Consequences  in Sierra  county;

The  Grantee's  total  reimbursements  shall  not  exceed  Four  Million  Four  Hundred  Thousand  Dollars,

§4,400,000.00  (the  "Appropriation  Amount")  minus  the  allocation  for  Art  in Public  Places  ("AIPP  amount")l,  if

' The  AIPP  amount  is "an  amount  of  money  equal  to one  percent  or  two  hundred  thousand  dollars  ($200,000),  whichever  is less,  of

the  amount  of  money  appropriated  for  new  construction  or  any  major  renovation  exceeding  one  hundred  thousand  dollars  ($100,000)."
Section  13-4A-4  NMSA  1978.

Pagelof21 Revised  4.17.2024



applicable, Four Million Four  Hundred  Thousand  Dollars,  S4,400,000.00 (the "Adjusted  Appropriation
Amount").

In the event of a conflict among  the Appropriation  Amount,  the Reversion  Date, as defined  herein  and/or  the
purpose  of  the  Project,  as set  forth  in this  Agreement,  and  the  corresponding  appropriation  language  in the  laws

cited  above  in this  Article  I(A),  the  language  of  the  laws  cited  herein  shall  control.

This project  is referred  to throughout  the  remainder  of this  Agreement  as the  "Project";  the information

contained  in Article  I(A) is referred  to collectively  throughout  the  remainder  of  this  Agreement  as the  "Project

Description."  The  Grantee  shall  reference  the  Project's  number  in all correspondence  with  and  submissions  to

the  Department  concerning  the  Project,  including,  but  not  limited  to, Requests  for  Payment  and  reports.

ARTICLE  II. LIMITATION  ON DEPARTMENT'S  OBLIGATION  TO MAKE  GRANT  DISBURSEMENTTO  GRANTEE

A. Upon  the  Effective  Date  of  this  Agreement,  for  permissible  purposes  within  the  scope  of  the  Project

Description,  the  Grantee  shall  only  be reimbursed  monies  for  which  the  Department  has issued,  and  the  Grantee

has received  a Notice  of Department's  Obligation  to Reimburse2  Grantee  (hereinafter  referred  to as "Notice  of

Obligation").  This  Grant  Agreement  and  the  disbursement  of all amounts  of  the  above  referenced  Adjusted

Appropriation  Amount  are  expressly  conditioned  upon  the  following:

(i)  Irrespective  of any Notice  of Obligation,  the  Grantee's  expenditures  shall be made  on or before  the

Reversion  Date  and,  if applicable,  an Early  Termination  Date  (i.e.,  the  goods  have  been  delivered  and

accepted or the title to the goods has been transferred  to the Grantee and/or  the services have been
rendered  for  the  Grantee);  and

(ii)  The  total  amount  received  by the  Grantee  shall  not  exceed  the  lesser  of: (a) the  Adjusted  Appropriation

Amount  identified  in Article  I(A) herein  or (b) the  total  of  all amounts  stated  in the  Notice(s)  of  Obligation

evidencing  that  the  Department  has received  and accepted  the  Grantee"s  Third-Party  Obligation(s),  as

defined  in subparagraph  iii of  this  Article  11(A); and

(iii) The  Grantee"s  expenditures  were  made  pursuant  to the  State  Procurement  Code  and execution  of

binding  written  obligations  or purchase  orders  with  third  party  contractors  or  vendors  for  the  provision

of services,  including  professional  services,  or the purchase  of tangible  personal  property  and real

property  for  the  Project,  hereinafter  referred  to as "Third  Party  Obligations";  and

(iv) The  Grantee's  submittal  of  timely  Requests  for  Payment  in accordance  with  the  procedures  set  forth  in

Article  IX of  this  Agreement;  and

(v) In the  event  that  capital  assets  acquired  with  Project  funds  are to be sold,  leased,  or licensed  to or

operated  by a private  entity,  the  sale,  lease,  license,  or  operating  agreement:

a. must  be approved  by the  applicable  oversight  entity  (if  any)  in accordance  with  law;  or

b. if no oversight  entity  is required  to approve  the  transaction,  the  Department  must  approve  the

transaction  as complying  with  law.

Prior  to  the  sale, lease,  license,  or operating  agreement  being  approved  pursuant  to Articles  II(A)(v)(a)

and  II(A)(v)(b)  herein,  the  Department  may,  in its sole  and  absolute  discretion  and  unless  inconsistent

with  State  Board  of Finance  imposed  conditions,  reimburse  the Grantee  for  necessary  expenditures

2 "Reimburse"  as used  throughout  this  Agreement  includes  Department  payments  to the  Grantee  for  invoices  received,  but  not  yet

paid,  by the  Grantee  from  a third-party  contractor  or  vendor,  if  the  invoices  comply  with  the  provisions  of  this  Agreement  and  are a

valid  liability  of  the  Grantee.

Page2of21 Revised  4.17.2024



incurred  to develop  the Project  sufficiently  to make  the  sale, lease,  license,  or operating  agreement

commercially  feasible,  such  as plan  and  design  expenditures;  and

(vi)The  Grantee  shall request  approval  of its obligation(s)  by submitting  a Notice  of Obligation  form  as

provided  by the  Department.  The  Grantee"s  submission  of  documentation  of  all Third-Party  Obligations

and  amendments  thereto  (including  terminations)  to  the  Department  and  the  Department's  issuance  and

the  Grantee"s  receiving  of  a Notice  of  Obligation  for  a particular  amount  in accordance  with  the  terms  of

this  Agreement  shall  be governed  by the  following:

a. The Grantee  shall  submit  to the Department  one  copy  of all Third-Party  Obligations  and

amendments  thereto  (including  terminations)  as soon  as possible  after  execution  by the  Third

Party  but  prior  to  execution  by the  Grantee.

b. The  Grantee  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  if it chooses  to  enter  into  a Third-Party  Obligation

prior  to receiving  a Notice  of Obligation  that  covers  the  expenditure,  it is solely  responsible

for  such  obligations.

c. The Department  may, in its sole and absolute  discretion,  issue to Grantee  a Notice  of

Obligation  for  the  particular  amount  of that  Third  Party  Obligation  that  only  obligates  the

Department  to reimburse  Grantee"s  expenditures  made  on or before  the  Reversion  Date  or

an Early  Termination  Date.

d. The date  the Department  signs the  Notice  of Obligation  is the  date  that  the  Department's

Notice  of Obligation  is effective.  After  that  date,  the  Grantee  is authorized  to budget  the

particular  amount  set  forth  in the  Notice  of  Obligation,  execute  the  Third-Party  Obligation  and

request  the  Third  Party  to begin  work.  Payment  for  any  work  performed  or goods  received

prior  to  the  effective  date  of  the  Notice  of  Obligation  is wholly  and  solely  the  obligation  of  the

Grantee.

B. The  Grantee  shall  implement,  in all respects,  the  Project.  The Grantee  shall  provide  all necessary

qualified  personnel,  material,  and  facilities  to implement  the  Project.  The  Grantee  shall  finance  its share  (if  any)

of  the  costs  of  the  Project,  including  all Project  overruns.

C. Project  funds  shall  not  be used  for  purposes  other  than  those  specified  in the  Project  Description.

D. Unless  specifically  allowed  by law,  Project  funds  cannot  be used  to reimburse  Grantee  for  indirect

Project  costs.

ARTICLEIII.  NOTICEPROVISIONSANDGRANTEEANDDEPARTMENTDESIGNATEDREPRESENTATIVES

Whenever  written  notices,  including  written  decisions,  are  to be given  or received,  related  to  this  Agreement,

the  following  provisions  shall  apply.

The  Grantee  designates  the  person(s)  listed  on their  Resolution  of  Signatory  Authority  as their  representatives

with  all matters  concerning  this  Agreement.

The  Department  designates  the  persons  listed  below,  or  their  successors,  as the  Points  of  Contact  for  matters

related  to  this  Agreement.

Page3of21 Revised  4.17.2024



NMED  Program  Administrator

N MENV-cpbsap@state.nm.us
505-670-3418

505-670-3615

NMED  Project  Manager

Name:  Steven  Deal

Email:  steven.deal@env.nm.gov
Telephone:505-670-2926

The  Grantee  and  the  Department  agree  that  either  party  shall  send  all notices,  including  written  decisions,

related  to  this  Agreement  to the  above-named  persons  by email  or  regular  mail.  In the  case of  mailings,

notices  shall  be deemed  to have  been  given  and  received  upon  the  date  of  the  receiving  party's  actual  receipt

or  five  calendar  days  after  mailing,  whichever  shall  first  occur.  In the  case of  email  transmissions,  the  notice

shall  be deemed  to  have  been  given  and  received  on the  date  reflected  on the  delivery  receipt  of  email.

ARTICLE  IV. REVERSION  DATE,  TERM,  DEADLINE  TO EXPEND  FUNDS

A. As referenced in Article I(Al  the applicable  law establishes  a date by which Project funds must be
expended  by  Grantee,  which  is referred  to  throughout  the  remainder  of  this  Agreement  as the  "Reversion  Date."

Upon  being  duly  executed  by both  parties,  this  Agreement  shall  be effective  as of  the  date  of  execution  by the

Department.  It shall  terminate  on June  30, 2028  the  Reversion  Date  unless  Terminated  Before  Reversion  Date

("Early  Termination")  pursuant  to  Article  V herein.

B. The  Project's  funds  must  be expended  on or before  the  Reversion  Date  and, if applicable,  Early

Termination  Date  of this  Agreement.  For purposes  of this  Agreement,  it is not  sufficient  for  the  Grantee  to

encumber  the  Project  funds  on its books  on or before  the  Project's  Reversion  Date  or Early  Termination  Date.

Funds  are expended  and an expenditure  has occurred  as of the  date  that  a particular  quantity  of  goods  are

delivered  to and received by the Grantee  or title  to the goods is transferred  to the Grantee and/or  as of the date
particularservicesarerenderedfortheGrantee.  Fundsarenotexpended,andanexpenditurehasnotoccurred

as of  the  date  they  are encumbered  by the  Grantee  pursuant  to a contract  or  purchase  order  with  a third  party.

ARTICLE  V. EARLY  TERMINATION

A. Early  Termination  Before  Reversion  Date  Due  to  Completion  of  the  Project  or  Complete

Expenditure  of  the  Adjusted  Appropriation  or  Violation  of  this  Agreement

Early  Termination  includes:

(i)  Termination  due  to completion  of  the  Project  before  the  Reversion  Date;  or

(ii)  Termination  due  to complete  expenditure  of  the  Adjusted  Appropriation  Amount  before  the

Reversion  Date;  or

Termination  for  violation  of  the  terms  of  this  Agreement;  or

Termination  for  suspected  mishandling  of  public  funds,  including  but  not  limited  to,  fraud,

waste,  abuse,  and  conflicts  of  interest.

Page4of21 Revised  4.17.2024



Either  the Department  or the  Grantee  may  early  terminate  this  Agreement  prior  to the  Reversion  Date  by

providing  the  other  party  with  a minimum  of fifteen  (15) days'  advance,  written  notice  of early  termination.

Grantee  hereby  waives  any  rights  to  assert  an impairment  of  contract  claim  against  the  Department  or  the  State

of  New  Mexico  in the  event  of Early  Termination  of  this  Agreement  by the  Department  pursuant  to  Article  V(A).

B. Early  Termination  Before  Reversion  Date  Due  to  Non-appropriation

The terms  of this  Agreement  are expressly  made  contingent  upon  sufficient  appropriations  and

authorization  being  made  by the  Legislature  of  New  Mexico  for  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  Throughout

this  Agreement  the  term  "non-appropriate"  or "non-appropriation"  includes  the  following  actions  by the  New

Mexico  Legislature:  deauthorization,  reauthorization  or revocation  of a prior  authorization.  The Legislature

may  choose  to non-appropriate  the  Appropriation  referred  to in Article  I and, if that  occurs,  the  Department

shall  early  terminate  this  Agreement  for  non-appropriation  by giving  the Grantee  written  notice  of such

termination,  and such termination  shall  be effective  as of the  effective  date  of the law making  the  non-

appropriation.  The Department's  decision  as to  whether  sufficient  appropriations  or authorizations  are  available

shall  be accepted  by the  Grantee  and  shall  be final.  Grantee  hereby  waives  any  rights  to assert  an impairment

of  contract  claim  against  the  Department  or  the  State  of New  Mexico  in the  event  of Early  Termination  of  this

Agreement  by the  Department  pursuant  to  Article  V(B).

C. Limitation  on Department's  Obligation  to Make  Grant  Disbursements  to  Grantee  in the  Event  of

Early  Termination

In the  event  of  Early  Termination  of  this  Agreement  by either  party,  the  Department's  sole  and

absolute  obligation  to reimburse  the  Grantee  is expressly  conditioned  upon  the  limitations  set  forth  Article  II.

ARTICLE  Vl.  SUSPENSION  OF NEW  OR FURTHER  OBLIGATIONS

A. The  Department  may  choose,  in its sole  and  absolute  discretion,  to provide  written  notice  to the

Grantee  to  suspend  entering  into  new  and  further  obligations.  Upon  the  receipt  of  such  written  notice  by the

Grantee:

(i)  The  Grantee  shall  immediately  suspend  entering  into  new  or further  written  obligations  with  third

parties;  and

(ii)  The  Department  will  suspend  the  issuance  of  any  new  or  further  Notice  of  Obligation  under  this

Agreement;  and

(iii)  The  Department  may  direct  the  Grantee  to  implement  a corrective  action  plan  in accordance  with

Article  Vl(D)  herein.

B. In the  event  of  Suspension  of  this  Agreement,  the  Department"s  sole  and  absolute  obligation  to

reimburse  the  Grantee  is expressly  conditioned  upon  the  limitations  set  forth  in Article  II herein.

C. A suspension  of new  or further  obligations  under  this  Agreement  shall  remain  in effect  unless  or until

the  date  the  Grantee  receives  written  notice  given  by the Department  informing  the Grantee  that  the

Suspension  has  been  lifted  or  that  the  Agreement  has been  Early  Terminated  in accordance  with  Article  V herein.

If the  Suspension  is lifted,  the  Department  will  consider  further  requests  for  Notice  of Obligation.

D. Corrective  Action  Plan  in the  Event  of  Suspension

Page5of21 Revised  4.17.2024



If the  Department  chooses,  in its sole  and  absolute  discretion  to  direct  the  Grantee  to  suspend  entering  into

new or further  written  obligations with third parties pursuant to Article Vl(Al  the Department  may, but is not
obligated  to, require  the  Grantee  to develop  and  implement  a written  corrective  action  plan  to remedy  the

grounds  for  the  Suspension.  Such corrective  action  plan  must  be approved  by the  Department  and  be signed  by

the  Grantee.  Failure  to sign a corrective  action  plan  or meet  the  terms  and deadlines  set  forth  in the  signed

corrective  action  plan,  is hereby  deemed  a violation  of the  terms  of this  Agreement  for  purposes  of Early

Termination,  Article  V(A)(iii).  The  corrective  action  plan  is in addition  to,  and  not  in lieu  of, any  other  equitable

or  legal  remedy,  including  but  not  limited  to Early  Termination.

ARTICLE  Vll.  AMENDMENT

This  Agreement  shall  not  be altered,  changed,  or  amended  except  by instrument  in writing  duly

executed  by both  the  parties  hereto.

ARTICLE  Vlll.  REPORTS

A. Database  Reporting

The Grantee  shall report  quarterly  Project  activity  by entering  such Project  information  as the Department  and

the  Department  of Finance  and Administration  may require,  such information  entered  directlyinto  a database  maintained

by the Department  of Finance  and Administration.  Additionally,  the  Grantee  shall certify  on the  Request  for  Payment  form

that  updates  have been maintained  and are current  in the database.  The Grantee  hereby  acknowledges  that  failure  to

perform  and/or  certify  updates  into  the database  will  delay  or potentially  jeopardize  the reimbursement  of funds.  The
Department  shall  give the  Grantee  a minimum  of thirty  (30) days'  written  notice  of any changes  to the information  the

Grantee  is required  to report.

Quarterly  reports  are due on the last day of each quarter.  Quarter  end reporting  periods  are September  30'h,

December  31"', March  31",  and June 30'h.

B. Requests for  Additional  Information/Project  Inspection
During  the  term  of  this  Agreement  and  during  the  period  during  which  the  Grantee  must  maintain

records  pursuant  to Article  Vlll,  the  Department  may:

(i)  request  such  additional  information  regarding  the  Project  as it deems  necessary;  and

(ii)  conduct,  at reasonable  times  and  upon  reasonable  notice,  onsite  inspections  of  the  Project.

The  Grantee  shall  respond  to such  requests  for  additional  information  within  a reasonable  amount  of

time,  as established  by the  Department.

Page6of21 Revised  4.17.2024



ARTICLE  IX. REQUEST  FOR PAYMENT  PROCEDURES  AND  DEADLINES

A. The  Grantee  shall  request  payment  by submitting  a Request  for  Payment,  in the  form  provided  by

the  Department.  Payment  requests  are  subject  to  the  following  procedures:

(i)  The  Grantee  must  submit  a Request  for  Payment;  and

(ii)  Each Request  for  Payment  must  contain  proof  of  payment  by the  Grantee  or liabilities  incurred  by the

Grantee  showing  that  the  expenditures  are  valid  or  are liabilities  incurred  by the  Grantee  in the  form

of  actual  unpaid  invoices  received  by the  Grantee  for  services  rendered  by a third  party  or items  of

tangible  personal  property  received  by the  Grantee  for  the  implementation  of  the  Project;  provided,

however,  that  the  Grantee  may  be reimbursed  for  unpaid  liabilities  only  if the  Department,  in its sole

and  absolute  discretion,  agrees  to do so and  in accordance  with  any  special  conditions  imposed  by the

Department.

(iii)  In cases  where  the  Grantee  is submitting  a Request  for  Payment  to  the  Department  based  upon

invoices  received,  but  not  yet  paid,  by the  Grantee  from  a third  party  contractor  or  vendor,  if the

invoices  comply  with  the  provisions  of  this  Agreement  and  are  a valid  liability  of  the  Grantee,  the

Grantee  shall  make  payment  to  those  contractors  or  vendors  within  five  (5) business  days  from  the

date  of  receiving  reimbursement  from  the  Department  or  such  shorter  period  of  time  as the

Department  may  prescribe  in writing.  The  Grantee  is required  to certify  to  the  Department  proof  of

payment  to  the  third-party  contractor  or  vendor  within  ten  (10)  business  days  from  the  date  of

receiving  reimburseme'nt  from  the  Department.

B. The  Grantee  must  obligate  5% of  the  Adjusted  Appropriation  Amount  within  six months  of

execution  of  the  grant  agreement  and  must  have  expended  no less than  85% of  the  Adjusted

Appropriation  Amount  six months  prior  to the  reversion  date.

C. Deadlines

Requests  for  Payments  shall  be submitted  by Grantee  to  the  Department:

(i)  Immediately  as they  are  received  by the  Grantee  but  at a minimum  thirty  (30)  days  from  when

the  expenditure  was  incurred,  or liability  of  the  Grantee  was  approved  as evidenced  by an unpaid

invoice  received  by the  Grantee  from  a third-party  contractor  or  vendor;  or

(ii)  No more  than  twenty  (20)  days  from  date  of  Early  Termination;  or

(iii)  Forrevertingprojects,nomorethantwenty(20)daysafterJune30reversionunlessadvisedin

writing  differently.

D. The  Grantee"s  failure  to  abide  by the  requirements  set  forth  in Article  II and  Article  IX herein  will

resultin  the  denial  of  its Request  for  Payment  or  will  delay  the  processing  of  Requests  for  Payment.  The

Department  has the  right  to reject  a payment  request  for  the  Project  unless  and  until  it is satisfied  that

the  expenditures  in the  Request  for  Payment  are  for  permissible  purposes  within  the  meaning  of  the

Project  Description  and  that  the  expenditures  and  the  Grantee  are  otherwise  in compliance  with  this

Agreement,  including  but  not  limited  to,  compliance  with  the  reporting  requirements  and  the

requirements  set  forth  in Article  II herein  to provide  Third  Party  Obligations  and  the  Deadlines  set  forth

in Article  IX herein.  The  Department's  ability  to reject  any  Request  for  Payment  is in addition  to,  and  not

in lieu  of, any  other  legal  or  equitable  remedy  available  to the  Department  due  to the  Grantee"s

violation  of  this  Agreement.

Page  7 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



ARTICLEX. PROJECTCONDITIONSANDRESTRICTIONSiREPRESENTATIONSANDWARRANTIES

A. The  following  general  conditions  and  restrictions  are  applicable  to  the  Project:

(i)  The  Project's  funds  must  be spent  in accordance  with  all applicable  state  laws,  regulations,

policies,  and  guidelines,  including,  but  not  limited  to,  the  State  Procurement  Code  (or  local

procurement  ordinance,  where  applicable).

(ii)  The  Project  must  be implemented  in accordance  with  the  New  Mexico  Public  Works  Minimum

Wage  Act,  Section  13-4-10  through  13-4-17  NMSA  1978,  as applicable.  Every  contract  or project  in

excess  of sixty thousand  dollars (560,000)  that  the Grantee is a party  to for construction,  alteration,
demolition  or repair  or  any  combination  of  these,  including  painting  and  decorating,  of  public

buildings,  public  works  or public  roads  and  that  requires  or involves  the  employment  of  mechanics,

laborers  or  both  shall  contain  a provision  stating  the  minimum  wages  and  fringe  benefits  to be paid  to

various  classes  of laborers  and  mechanics,  shall  be based  upon  the  wages  and benefits  that  will  be

determined  by the  New  Mexico  Department  of  Workforce  Solutions  to be prevailing  for  the

corresponding  classes  of  laborers  and  mechanics  employed  on contract  work  of  a similar  nature  in the

locality.  Further,  every  contract  or  project  shall  contain  a stipulation  that  the  contractor,

subcontractor,  employer  or  a person  acting  as a contractor  shall  pay  all mechanics  and  laborers

employed  on the  site  of  the  project,  unconditionally  and  not  less often  than  once  a week  and  without

subsequent  unlawful  deduction  or  rebate  on any  account,  the  full  amounts  accrued  at time  of  payment

computed  at wage  rates  and  fringe  benefit  rates  not  less than  those  determined  pursuant  to  Section

13-4-11  (B) NMSA  1978  to be the  prevailing  wage  rates  and  prevailing  fringe  benefit  rates  issued  for

the  project.

(iii)  The  Project  may  only  benefit  private  entities  in accordance  with  applicable  law,  including,  but

not  limited  to, Article  IX, Section  14  of  the  Constitution  of  the  State  of New  Mexico,  the  "Anti-Donation

Clause."

(iv)  The  Grantee  shall  not  for  a period  of  10  years  from  the  date  of  this  agreement  convert  any

property  acquired,  built,  renovated,  repaired,  designed  or developed  with  the  Project's  funds  to uses

other  than  those  specified  in the  Project  Description  without  the  Department's  and  the  Board  of

Finance's  express,  advance,  written  approval,  which  may  include  a requirement  to reimburse  the  State

for  the  cost  of  the  project,  transfer  proceeds  from  the  disposition  of  property  to  the  State,  or

otherwise  provide  consideration  to  the  State.

(v)  The  Grantee  shall  comply  with  all federal  and  state  laws,  rules  and  regulations  pertaining  to

equal  employment  opportunity.  In accordance  with  all such  laws,  rules,  and  regulations  the  Grantee

agrees  to assure  that  no person  shall,  on the  grounds  of  race,  color,  national  origin,  sex, sexual

preference,  age, or handicap,  be excluded  from  employment  with  Grantee,  be excluded  from

participation  in the  Project,  be denied  benefits  or  otherwise  be subject  to  discrimination  under,  any

activity  performed  under  this  Agreement.  If Grantee  is found  to be not  in compliance  with  these

requirements  during  the  life  of  this  Agreement,  Grantee  agrees  to  take  appropriate  steps  to correct

any  deficiencies.  The  Grantee's  failure  to implement  such  appropriate  steps  within  a reasonable  time

constitutes  grounds  for  terminating  this  Agreement.

The  Grantee  hereby  represents  and  warrants  the  following:

The  Grantee  has the  legal  authority  to receive  and expend  the  Project's  funds.

Page8of21 Revised  4.17.2024



(ii)  This  Agreement  has been  duly  authorized  by the  Grantee,  the  person  executing  this  Agreement

has authority  to do so, and once  executed  by the  Grantee,  this  Agreement  shall  constitute  a binding

obligation  of  the  Grantee,  enforceable  according  to its terms.

(iii)  This  Agreement  and  the  Grantee's  obligations  hereunder  do not  conflict  with  any  law  or

ordinance  or resolution  applicable  to  the  Grantee,  the  Grantee's  charter  (if  applicable),  or  any

judgment  or  decree  to  which  the  Grantee  is subject.

(iv)  The  Grantee  has independently  confirmed  that  the  Project  Description,  including,  but  not

limited  to,  the  amount  and Reversion  Date,  is consistent  with  the  underlying  appropriation  in law.

(v)  The  Grantee's  governing  body  has duly  adopted  or passed  as an official  act  a resolution,

motion,  or  similar  action  authorizing  the  person  identified  as the  official  representative  of  the  Grantee

to sign  the  Agreement  and  to sign Requests  for  Payment.

(vi)  The  Grantee  shall  abide  by New  Mexico  laws  regarding  conflicts  of  interest,  governmental

conduct,  and  whistleblower  protection.  The  Grantee  specifically  agrees  that  no officer  or  employee  of

the  local  jurisdiction  or  its designees  or  agents,  no member  of  the  governing  body,  and no other  public

official  of  the  locality  who  exercises  any  function  or responsibility  with  respect  to this  Grant,  during

their  tenure  or for  one  year  thereafter,  shall  have  any  interest,  direct  orindirect,  in any  contract  or

subcontract,  or  the  proceeds  thereof,  for  work  to be performed  or goods  to be received,  pursuant  to

this  Grant.  Further,  Grantee  shall  require  all its contractors  to incorporate  in all subcontracts  the

language  set  forth  in this  paragraph  prohibiting  conflicts  of  interest.

(vii)  No funds  have  been  paid  or will  be paid,  by or on behalf  of  the  Grantee,  to  any  person  for

influencing  or attempting  to influence  an officer  or  employee  of  this  or any  agency  or body  in

connection  with  the  awarding  of  any  Third-Party  Obligation  and  that  the  Grantee  shall  require

certifying  language  prohibiting  lobbying  to be included  in the  award  documents  for  all subawards,

including  subcontracts,  loans,  and  cooperative  agreements.  All subrecipients  shall  be required  to

certify  accordingly.

ARTICLE XI. STRICT ACCOUNT ABILITI  OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTSi PROJECT RECORDS

A. The  Grantee  shall  be strictly  accountable  for  receipts  and  disbursements  relating  to the  Project's

funds.  The Grantee  shall  follow  generally  accepted  accounting  principles,  and,  if feasible,  maintain  a

separate  bank  account  or  fund  with  a separate  organizational  code,  for  the  funds  to assure  separate

budgeting  and  accounting  of  the  funds.

B. For  a period  of  six (6) years  following  the  Project's  completion,  the  Grantee  shall  maintain  all Project

related  records,  including,  but  not  limited  to,  all financial  records,  requests  for  proposals,  invitations  to

bid,  selection  and  award  criteria,  contracts  and  subcontracts,  advertisements,  minutes  of  pertinent

meetings,  as well  as records  sufficient  to  fully  account  for  the  amount  and disposition  of  the  total  funds

from  all sources  budgeted  for  the  Project,  the  purpose  for  which  such  funds  were  used,  and  such  other

records  as the  Department  shall  prescribe.

C. The  Grantee  shall  make  all Project  records  available  to  the  Department,  the  Department  of Finance

and  Administration,  and  the  New  Mexico  State  Auditor  upon  request.  With  respect  to  the  funds  that

are the  subject  of  this  Agreement,  if the  State  Auditor  or  the  Department  of  Finance  and

Administration  finds  that  any  or all of  these  funds  were  improperly  expended,  the  Grantee  may  be

Page9of21 Revised  4.17.2024



required  to reimburse  to the  State  of  New  Mexico,  to  the  originating  fund,  any  and  all amounts  found

to be improperly  expended.

ARTICLE  Xll. IMPROPERLY  REIMBURSED  FUNDS

If the  Department  determines  that  part  or  all the  Appropriation  Amount  was  improperly  reimbursed  to

Grantee,  including  but  not  limited  to,  Project  funds  reimbursed  to Grantee  based  upon  fraud,

mismanagement,  misrepresentation,  misuse,  violation  of law  by the  Grantee,  or  violation  of  this

Agreement,  the  Grantee  shall  return  such  funds  to  the  Department  for  disposition  in accordance  with

law.

ARTICLE  Xlll  LIABILITY

Neither  party  shall  be responsible  for  liability  incurred  because  of  the  other  party's  acts  or  omissions  in

connection  with  this  Agreement.  Any  liability  incurred  in connection  with  this  Agreement  is subject  to

immunities  and limitations  of  the  New  Mexico  Tort  Claims  Act.

ARTICLE  XIV. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This  Agreement  constitutes  the  entire  and  exclusive  agreement  between  the  Grantee  and Department

concerning  the  subject  matter  hereof.  The  Agreement  supersedes  all prior  or  contemporaneous

agreements,  understandings,  discussions,  communications,  and representations,  written  or verbal.

ARTICLE  XV. REQUIRED  NON-APPROPRIATIONS  CLAUSE  IN CONTRACTS  FUNDED  IN WHOLE  OR PART  BY

FUNDS  MADE  AVAILABLE  UNDER  THIS  AGREEMENT

The  Grantee  acknowledges,  warrants,  and  agrees  that  Grantee  shall  include  a "non-appropriations"

clause  in all contracts  between  it and  other  parties  that  are  (i) funded  in whole  or part  by funds  made

available  under  this  Agreement  and  (ii) entered  into  after  the  effective  date  of  this  Agreement  that

states:

"The  terms  of  this  Agreement  are  contingent  upon  sufficient  appropriations  and  authorization  being

made  by the  Legislature  of New  Mexico  for  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  If sufficient

appropriations  and  authorization  are  not  made  by the  Legislature,  the  SO CENTRAL  SWA  may

immediately  terminate  this  Agreement  by giving  Contractor  written  notice  of  such  termination.  The  SO

CENTRAL  SWA"s  decision  as to  whether  sufficient  appropriations  are  available  shall  be accepted  by the

Contractor  and  shall  be final.  Contractor  hereby  waives  any  rights  to assert  an impairment  of  contract

claim  against  the  SO CENTRAL  SWA  or  the  New  Mexico  Environment  Department  or  the  State  of  New

Mexico  in the  event  of immediate  or Early  Termination  of  this  Agreement  by the  SO CENTRAL  SWA  or

the  Department"

ARTICLE  XVI. REQUIRED  TERMINATION  CLAUSE  IN CONTRACTS  FUNDED  IN WHOLE  OR PART  BY FUNDS

MADE  AVAILABLE  UNDER  THIS  AGREEMENT

Page 10 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



Grantee  acknowledges,  warrants,  and  agrees  that  Grantee  shall  include  the  following  termination

clause  in all contracts  that  are  (i) funded  in whole  or part  by  funds  made  available  under  this

Agreement  and (ii) entered  into  after  the  effective  date  of  this  Agreement:

"This  contract  is funded  in whole  or in part  by funds  made  available  under  a New  Mexico  Environment

Department  Grant  Agreement.  Should  the  New  Mexico  Environment  Department  early  terminate  the

grant  agreement,  the  SO CENTRAL  SWA  may  early  terminate  this  contract  by providing  Contractor

written  notice  of  such  termination.  In the  event  of  termination  pursuant  to this  paragraph,  the  SO

CENTRAL  SWA]  only  liability  shall  be to pay  Contractor  for  acceptable  goods  delivered  and  services

rendered  before  the  termination  date."

Grantee  hereby  waives  any  rights  to  assert  an impairment  of  contract  claim  against  the  Department  or

the  State  of  New  Mexico  in the  event  of Early  Termination  of  this  Agreement  by the  Department.

ARTICLE  XVII.  COMPLIANCE  WITH  UNIFORM  FUNDING  CRITERIA.

A.  Throughout  the  term  of  this  Agreement,  Grantee  shall:

1.  submit  all reports  of  annual  audits  and  agreed  upon  procedures  required  by Section  12-

6-3(A)-(B)  NMSA  1978  by the  due  dates  established  in 2.2.2  NMAC,  reports  of  which  must  be a public

record  pursuant  to Section  12-6-5(A)  NMSA  1978  within  forty-five  days  of delivery  to  the  State

Auditor.

2. have  a duly  adopted  budget  for  the  current  fiscal  year  approved  by its budgetary

oversight  agency  (if  any);

3. timely  submit  all required  financial  reports  to its budgetary  oversight  agency  (if  any);

and

4. have  adequate  accounting  methods  and  procedures  to expend  grant  funds  in

accordance  with  applicable  law  and  account  for  and  safeguard  grant  funds  and  assets  acquired  by

grant  funds.

B. In the  event  Grantee  fails  to  comply  with  the  requirements  of Paragraph  A of  this  Article  XVII,

the  Department  may  take  one  or more  of  the  following  actions:

1.  suspend  new  or further  obligations  pursuant  to Article  Vl(A)  of  this  Agreement.

2. require  the  Grantee  to develop  and  implement  a written  corrective  action  plan  pursuant

to Article  Vl(D)  of  this  Agreement  to remedy  the  non-compliance.

3. impose  special  grant  conditions  to address  the  non-compliance  by giving  the  Grantee

notice  of  such  special  conditions  in accordance  with  Article  Ill of  this  Agreement;  the  special

conditions  shall  be binding  and  effective  on the  date  that  notice  is deemed  to have  been  given

pursuant  to Article  Ill; or

4. terminate  this  Agreement  pursuant  to  Article  V(A)  of  this  Agreement.

Page 11 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



[THIS  SPACE  LEFT BLANK  INTENTIONALLY]

Page  12 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



Authorization  Page

T OR C WATER  DISTRIBUTION  LINE RPLC SAP 24-12460-GF

IN WITNESS  WHEREOF,  the  parties  have  duly  executed  this  Agreement  as of  the  date  of  execution  by

the  Department.

GRANTEE

City of  Truth  or  Consequences

Entity  Name

Signature  of  Official  with  Authority  to Bind  Grantee

BY:
Rolf  Hechler

(Print  Name)

Its:  Mayor
(Title)

8-14-2024

Date

New  Mexico  Environment  Department

Judith  L. Kahl,  P.E., Bureau  Chief,  NMED  Construction  Programs  Bureau

Signed  pursuant  to  the  February  19,  2024  Secretary  of  Environment  Delegation  Order

Page  13 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



Exhibit  1-  Request  for  Payment

Not  for  NMED  use.  NMED  Disbursement  Form  is below.

l

k

yJ  di  fl!4ffPRflJCCl
In, I  lii  a,  @a

asasii

@tame:

Aamf&:

R. CI W  O eoa

O.OD
S O.OD

s n.oo

jl,,  i n @-i 44 f  ,,  %j, , )i, 07 i i n '
,s  II  I.  I I I . . }
Q

j j,II  II II I I , I Ill ,  *  Ij0 II  I I ,  I I II P ffl  f  viil4

haiiyaiy  l  " 'i.J.  ii "'  l'll!all'i  11ffl iiiaii

V-
0

j  ' "nb  ii  iai  u iii  3 "  iii  i ?ml!  miii  u i.iu*  & ii  ini  a I & a "

it!wlllJvpYl

Ir

NafflNaa

m

m@ Nffllffl&:

Dim

pi i s,  , , ,  ii  n 11

I M   l 1,1,,lli  ,l, I J  , ,, 11% II ! , I , ,i  i,  , , ffl ! 7' lm HP Vllllj!l IF,,  I Ill Ill lul, , ,  , li, Ill .,l  * Ili

ThA&.   Offl.y rNh libui-i  i !' 11' !  I if iii i 4.

j@aH

Page 14 of  21 Revised 4. 17.2024



Exhibit  2 -  Notice  of  Obligation

Not  for  NMED  Use, Contact  Project  Manager

Relics  iJObbmn  m  #ivn*  Gm  #

)DATB-

J%-m-iR.
J

FROM- GaaasEm$

O&fflRa:

SUBJECT, Notice of Ob%ation to R*ffibuts* Gtanve
Giunt  Nnmb*z:

GamT*maDam

-4TI the d*:vdtepz*ieatatim  ofth*  Depent  fox (want A@eamtiat numbez
steadiato  between  Gzantw  and  the  D*putm*nt,  I  eert  die  Gaatti*  bii  mbmui  to  dw  Depxament  the

VsdotmCama

Thm)Ob%mjka

VmdotagCommmx:

Thd(X%maaAmmaa

!  4daat  **  Stam is iui%  this Notice of  Ob%xtion to Reimbntie (tw  forpemiiuibl*  putpox*i mthin
the ti dda  pxoject detection,  mbiwt  to &  the fflmi  :uid eoaelitioai of  the xbom s&aac*d  Giant
A@eem*mt

Gamjkamm  @&ma Jkn'P ifa).

'naAsmmoiebffi  Nmmd

Th*TeaalAaamam*falhmedNmaem  ofOb%

Th*TmlAaofaaNmaiof(X%maamDm: $ 0.00

NatCswwwglami*wdyw  gw*hwkuyM%kwemaiahyagt

%amamRap-j

Tsag
F%ojed  Manager

%am

Dug

Page 15 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



New  Mexico  Environment  Department  (NMED)

Capital  Appropriations  Certification  Document

Article  IX. A. (ii) and  (iii)

T OR C WATER  DISTRIBUTION  LINE RPLC - SAP 24-12460-GF

Payment  Request  No

I certify  that  payment  to all vendors  on the  above  referenced  payment  request  were  paid  no more  than  five

(5) days  after  receiving  reimbursement  from  NMED.

Official  Representative,  Signed  Name,  Printed  Name,  Date

Page 16 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



Rev.  May  2024

A. NAME  OF ENTITY

NEW  MEXICO  ENVIRONMENT  DEPARTMENT

CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS BUREAU

NMED  DISBURSEMENT  REQUEST

SPECIAL  APPROPRIATIONS  PROGRAM  (SAP)

C. DISBURSEMENT  REQUEST  NUMBER

B. PROJECT  NUMBER D. GRANT  AMOUNT

PREVIOUS  EXPENDITURES CURRENT  EXPENDITURES CUMULATIVE FUNDS  REMAINING

NMED

PROGRAM

OTHER

FUNDS
NMED  PROGRAM

OTHER

FUNDS

NMED

PROGRAM

OTHER

FUNDS

NMED

PROGRAM  _

OTHER

,- FUNDS

Engineer  Fees $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Other  Professional $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Senrice  Fees $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Inspection  Fees $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Property  Acquisition $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Construdion  Cost $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Planning  Cost $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Equipment $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Other  Costs  (specify) $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Contingencies $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Article  rX.A.  (iii).  By checking  this  box  yo_i are  stating  that  payment  has  NOT  been  paid  to the  vendK:rrs

associated  with  this  request.  Upon  receipt  of  payment  from  NMED,  certification  of  payment  will  be sent

within  10  days  from  the  date  of receivinq  reimbursement.

I ,I
Article  IX. A. (ii).  By checking  this  box  you  are  certifying  that

the  vendors  associated  with  this  request  have  been  paid.

I '

New Mexico Constitution known as the "anti-donation" clause. l
Reporting  Certification:  I hereby  cevtify  to the  best  of  my knowledge  and belief,  that  the  database  reporting  is up to date;  to indude  the  accuracy  of  the  expenditures  and grant  balance,  project  status,  project

phase,  achievements  and milestones,  an:f in complieance  with  Artile  VIII  of  the  Capital  Outlay  Grant  Agreement.

Signature  of  Official  Representative:

x

Typed  or  Printed  Name: Phone:
I

Date:  r

I

I



A RESOLUTION  AUTHORIZING  THE  ASSIGNMENT  OF  AUTHORIZED  OFFICER(S)  AND  AGENT(S)

Resolution  12 24/25

Whereas,  the  City  Commission  of the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  of  County  of the  State  of New

Mexico  shall  enter  into a Grant  Agreement  with  the  State  of New  Mexico  Environment  Department,  and

Whereas,  the Agreement  is identified as Proiect  Number  SAP 24-12460-GF

NOW  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED  by the  named  applicant  that:

Rolf  Hechler,  Ma,  or successor  is authorized  to sign  the  Grant  Agreement  for  this  project,  and

Anqie  Gonzales  - City  Manaqer  and  Traci  Alavarez  - Assistant  City  Manaqer,  or successor  is the

OFFICAL  REPRESENTATIVE(S)  who  is authorized  to sign  all other  documents  necessary  to fulfill  the  Grant

Agreement  and  the  requirements  (Project  Description,  Disbursements  and  to act  as the  project  contact),  and

Trqgi  Ql3vBr@z,  Assistant  Ciiy  Mpnpq@r,  or successor  is the Capital Projects Monitoring System (CPMS)
contact  who  is designated  to update  the  CPMS  database  monthly  per Article  Vlll  A. of the Intergovernmental

Grant  Agreement.

Traci  Alvarez  - Assistant  City  Manager),  or successors  is the  CONTACT  who  is designated  to receive  Notice  of

Obligations  (NOO € S).

PASSED,  APPROVED,  AND  ADOPTED:  August  14",  2024

Rolf  Hechler,  Mayor,  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences,  NM

(Signature) Date

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

(Municipal  Clerk)

Page  18 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



Name  of  Grantee:  T OR C WATER  Project  Number:  SAP  24-12460-GF

Authorized  to Si'4n Agreement
Name Rolf  Hechler Name

Title Mayor Title

Signature Signature

Address 505  Sims  Street  T or  C, NM 87901 Address

Email rhechler@torcnm.org Email

Phone 575-894-6673 Phone

Official  Representatives  authorized  to  sign  Disbursement  Requests  and  all  other  documents.

Name Angie Gonzales Name

Title City Manager Title

Signatrire Signature

Address 505 Sims Street T or C, NM 87901 Address

Email agonzales@torcnm.org En'iail

Phone 575-894-6673 Phone

Alternate  Official  Representative,  to sign  Disbursement  Requests  and  all  other  documents  and  act  as

the  Point  of  C ontact.

Name Traci Alvarez Name

Title Assistant  City Manager Title

Signature Signatrire

Address 505 Sims Street  T or C, NM 87901 Address

Email talvarez@torcnm.org Email

Phone 575-952-0565 Phone

Designated  Agent  or  Employee  that  will  make  monthly  CPMS  updates

Name Traci Alvarez Name

Title Assistant City Manager Title

Signature Signature

Address 505 Sims Street T or C, NM 87901 Address

Email talvarez@torcnm.org Email

Pl'ione 575-952-0565 Phone

Notice  of  Obligations

(NOO's)

Name Traci Alvarez Name

Title Assistant  City Manager Title

Signature No  Signature  Required Signature No  Signature  Required

Address 505 Sims Street T or C, NM 87901 Address

Email talvarez@torcnm.org Email

Phone 575-952-0565 Phone

Page  19  of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



ATT  ACHMENT  B

TECHNICAL  REQUIREMENTS

NEW  MEXICO  ENVIRONMENT  DEPARTMENT

CAPIT  AL OUTLAY

ARTICLE 1 REVIEW

Upon  execution  of  the  grant  agreement,  the  Grantee  will  follow  the  procedures  listed  below  unless  waived  in

writing  by the  New  Mexico  Environment  Department  (NMED)  (payment  may be withheld  if any of these

procedures  are  not  followed  by the  Grantee).

A. The Grantee  must  submit  copies  to NMED  of all executed  contracts  entered  into  by the  Grantee  and

related  to the project  for  the  creation  of a notice  of obligation.  Only  approved  eligible  expenditures

incurred  after  the  effective  date  of  the  Grant  Agreement  shall  be reimbursed  or paid  from  these  funds.

B. If grant  funds  are used for  construction,  a site certificate  must  be submitted  prior  to project  bid

advertisement  that  certifies  all necessary easements, rights-of-way,  and/or  property  upon or through
which  the  project  is being  constructed  have  been  obtained.  The Site Certificate  must  be signed  by an

attorney,  engineer,  surveyor,  or  title  abstractor.

C. If grant  funds  are used  for  construction,  the  Grantee  will  submit  notice  of  the  award  and  a copy  of  the

executed  construction  contract  documents.

D. The Grantee  will  provide  a full-time  construction  inspector  during  construction  of the  project  unless

NMED  determines  that  part  time  inspection  is adequate  for  the  project.  This must  be requested  and

approved  by NMED  prior  to the  start  of  construction.

E. All daily  construction  inspection  reports  shall  be made  available  to  the  NMED  upon  request.

F. Notwithstanding  the  inspections  performed  by the  Grantee  and its engineer,  NMED  will  have  the  right

to examine  all installations  comprising  the  project,  including  materials  delivered  and  stored  on-site  for

use  on  the  project.  Such examinations  will  not  be considered  an inspection  for  compliance  with  contract

plans  but  will  be a general  NMED  review  as described  in Article  2 below.

ARTICLE 2 NMED  OVERSIGHT

NMED oversight  is only  for  purposes  of compliance  with  applicable  state  grant  requirements,  procedures,  statutes,  and

regulations.  NMED  approval  will  not be interpreted  as a warranty  or guarantee  of any kind. Responsibility  for  the  design

of the project  will  lie solely  with  the engineer  of record.  All defects  and their  correction  will  be the responsibility  of  the

Grantee  and its contractors  and engineers  or consultants.  Any questions  raised  by NMED during  its inspections  and reviews

shall be resolved  exclusively  by the Grantee.  The Grantee  and its contractors  and engineers  or consultants  will  remain

responsible  for  the completion  and success of the project.  No action  by NMED shall relieve  the owner,  engineer,  or

contractor  of legal responsibilities  for  the overall  integrity  of the project,  adequacy  of the design,  safety,  or compliance

with  all applicable  regulations.

Page  20 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



ARTICLE 3 CLOSEOUT

The project  will  not  be considered  complete  until  the  work  as defined  in this  agreement  has been  fully

performed,  and  finally  and unconditionally  accepted  by the  Grantee  and  the  engineer  of  record.

If the  grant  funds  are  used  for  purchase  of equipment,  final  payment  will  be made  after  receipt  of  the

equipment  and equipment  title,  if applicable.  Appraisal  reports  are required  for  the  purchase  of used

equipment.

If the  grant  funds  are  used  for  construction,  final  payment  will  be made  after  the  following  items,  unless

waived  by NMED,  have  been  provided  to NMED,  and  have  been  reviewed  and  approved  by NMED:

i. A certificate  of  substantial  completion  including  punch  list  items.

A final  certified  construction  pay  request  prepared  by the  Grantee's  project  engineer  and  approved

by the  Grantee.

iii.  A written  consent  of  the  surety,  if any,  to  final  payment.

Complete  and  legally  effective  releases  or  waivers  (satisfactory  to the  Grantee)  of  all liens  arising  out

of  the contract  documents  and the labor  services  performed  and the materials  and equipment

furnished  there  under.  In lieu  thereof  and  as approved  by the  Grantee,  contractor(s)  may  furnish

receipts  or releases  in full;  an affidavit  of  contractor  that  the  releases  and receipts  include  labor,

services,  materials,  and  equipment  for  which  a lien  could  be filed  and  that  all payrolls,  material  and

equipment  bills,  and other  indebtedness  connected  with  the  work  for  which  the  Grantee  or its

property  might  in any  way  be responsible,  have  been  paid  or otherwise  satisfied.

v. CertificationletterbytheGranteeandcontractorthattheLaborStandardsContractProvisionshave

been  met.

Certification  letter  of project  acceptance  by the  Grantee  and  the  Grantee's  project  engineer  stating

that  work  has been  satisfactorily  completed  and  the  construction  contractor  has fulfilled  all of  the

obligations  required  under  the  contract  documents  with  the  Grantee,  or if payment  and materials

performance  bonds  are  "called",  an acceptance  close-out  settlement  to  the  Grantee  and  contractors

will  be submitted  to NMED.

Certification  letter  from  the  Grantee  confirming  receipt  and  acceptance  of  the  record  drawings  and

operation  and  maintenance  manuals.

Page  21 of  21 Revised  4.17.2024



CITY  (F  Tl2UTTh  012  € 0M[ € )U[)%i € [i

AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

MEETING  DATE:  August  14,  2024  AEje"a hem #: II

SUBJECT: Discussion/Action  -  Revised Parcel Survey  for Property  Appraisal
DEPARTMENT:  Community  Development

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  5, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Traci  Alvarez

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE  ITEM:  Traci  Alvarez  Assistant  City  Manager

Summary/Background:
Parcel  3022079305341  did not  have  designated  trail  easement,  so parcel  survey  did  not  reflect  the  trail.

Survey  has  been  redone  to  account  for  a 10ft  maintenance  easement  for  the  trail.  Revised  survey  was

presented  to  Commission  on 6-12-24.  Commission  requested  to  speak  with  surveyor  pertaining  to  possible

parcel  amendment  options.  David  Senn,  Chaparral  Surveying  will  be available  to  answer  questions  for  the

Commission

Recommendation:

Review  revised  Survey  and determine  if further  parcel  amendments  are requested

Attachments:

*  Survey

@

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  TBD

Click  here  to enter  text

Legal  Review  (CityAttorney):  Yes

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  l'iere  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

ResolutionNo.t.'Ji.i-..k::ai=ta=;rtaitaxl  OrdinanceNo.-

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24





M  (;l  ()r T[oUTTh ()[2 €()QJ'k[DU[S€[_S

%  MEETING""'D'oA"TuE:"A"u:"usut'l'4n,=2u02"4";%ertda Item #: I.2
?

SUBJECT: Discussion/Action:  Approval  of FY25 Clean and Beautiful  Grant
DEPARTMENT:  Community  Services

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  8, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  0.J.  Hechler

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  0.J.  Hechler,  Community  Service  Director

Summary/8oc*ground:  The City of  Truth  or Consequences  is collaborating  with  Mainstreet  and has been

selected  to receive  a grant  award of S18,800.60  to aid in completing  designated  initiatives  that  consist  of  two
cleanup  events,  providing  access  to  proper  waste  disposal,  preventing  litter,  painting  of  trash  cans,  recycled

benches  and tables,  and  other  efforts  to  make  our  community  cleaner.

Recommendation:

Approve  grant  agreement

Attachments:

*  Award  Letter

@ Grant  Agreement

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  N/A

SO.OO

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  N/A

Click  here  to enter  text

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  - Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To:  - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-24



ST  ATE  OF NEW  MEXICO

Tourism  Department
Lamy  Building

491 0ld  Santa  Fe Trail

Santa  Fe, NM  87501

Phone:  (505)  795-0343

Michelle  Lujan Grisham
Governor

Lanclng  Adams
Acting Cabinet  Secretary

Howie  Moralea

Lt. Governor

Jennifer  Saavedra
Deputy Cabinet Secretary

July  18,  2024

Becca  Eza

director@torcmainstreet.org

Traci  Alvarez

Dear  City  ofTruth  or Consequences,

Thankyou  joryourinterestin  the  FY25  cycle  ojthe  New  Mexico  Tourism  Department's  Clean

and  Beautiful  grant  program.  After  careful  assessment,  the  NMTD  Tourism  Development

Division  is delighted  to  announce  that,  the  City  ofTruth  or  Consequences  has  been  selected

to  receive  a grant  award  of  $18,800.60  to  aidein  completing  designated  initiatives  outlined

in your  FY25  grant  appLication.  Please  know  that  we  were  very  impressed  by the  level  of

commitment  your  organization  has  for  the  community.

Your  grant  application  and  projects  illustrate  your  desire  to beautify  your  community

through  sustainable  tasks  that  encourage  civic  pride.  It is our  pleasure  to recognize  these

efforts  and  together  we  will  work  with  the  City  or  Truth  or Consequences  to  ensure  that  your

projects  are  successful.

PLease  confirm  your  interest  in participating  via e-mail  to Chantal  SandovaL,  Clean  and

Beautiful  Program  Coordinator  at chantaL.sandoval@td.nm.us  NO  LATER  THAN  Thursday,

July  25,  2024,  so that  we  may  proceed  with  the  grant  agreement  and  next  steps.

Best,

Holly  KeLley

Tourism  Development  Director

HolLy.KeLLey@td.nm.gov



,d  CITY (F T[)UTtl O[) (,ONS[€)U[!%1€[_S
/-l[tlNU/4  htqut:bi  tuhivl

#  MEETING DATE:August  14, 2024
)Igertda  Item  #:  I.3

7
SUBJECT: Discussion/Action:  Extending the swimming  pool season beyond Labor Day to a date yet to be
determined.

DEPARTMENT:  Swimming  Pool

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  8, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  0.J. Hechler

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Ashley  Galicia,  Pool  Supervisor

Summary/Background:
Swimming  pool  season  is from  Memorial  Day  through  Labor  Day.  The  pool  still  has lifeguards  available  to

work  beyond  Labor  Day  with  a modified  schedule.

Recommendation:

Discuss  and  Approve

Attachments:

*  Modified  Pool  Schedule

Fiscal Impact  (Finance): N/A

SO.OO

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  N/A

Click  here  to enter  text

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  € Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to  enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  - Ordinance  No. -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

[1 Approved  € Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-24



J.A HODGES

cMunicipal  Swimming  fool

2024  Extended  Schedule  Starting  September  3rd, 2024

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

Lap  Swim 7am  -  10am 7am-10am 7am-10am 7am-10am

Open

Swim
lO:30am  -  lpm

lO:30am-

lpm
lO:30am-lpm lO:30am-lpm lO:30am-lpm

Open
f___!_ l:30pm-4pm
)Wlm

Open
5:30pm-8pm 5:30pm-8pm

hwim

FEES  PER  SESSION:

Adults:

Youth/Senior:

2 &  Under:

Non-Swirnrners:

$5.00

$4.00

FREE

$2.00

*Schedule  is subject  to change!

EXPECT  CLOSURES  ONCE  A  MONTH  FOR

MAINTENANCE  AND  ST  AFF  TRAINING

*Private/party  rentals  available  upon  request  depending  on

availability

Have  Questions?  Call  us!

(575)  894-6151

PASS  PRICES:

10  Punch  pass  All  Ages

Adult  Season  Pass

Youth/Senior  Season  Pass

$35

$180

$145

"10  punch  pass is valid  30 days  from  the date  of  purchase.

Season  passes  are valid  for  one  season  (Memorial  Day-Labor

Day)



, CITY  €ff  T[)UTII  O[)  (; € )f%!S[OU[S € [j
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

MEETING  DATE:  August  14,  2024  AEje'da I'em #: [4
p

SUBJECT: Discussion/Update  -  City of  T or C Comprehensive  Plan Revision Update
DEPARTMENT:  Community  Development

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  9, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Traci  Alvarez

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE  ITEM:  Traci  Alvarez  Assistant  City  Manager

Summary/Background:
Update  Commission  on status  of  CDBG  Planning  Grant  Comprehensive  Plan

Recommendation:

Update  Only

Attachments:

*  Comprehensive  Plan/Downtown  Master  Plan/Affordable  Housing  Plan available  for  download
@

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  N/A
Click  here  to enter  (ext

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  N/A

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  t'Jiicx :isra  ia ente:- text.  Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24



At,,6_ _%?,l,, (,ITY (F T[)UTTh O[) (,0!%IS[€I)U[S€[S
/4mlNU/!l  KtLlUt:51  FORM

!laJir[l!24'a"" MEETINGDATE:Augustl4,2024 ;%ertda Item #: I.5

'%!7
SUBJECT: Discussion/Action-Aging&Long-termServicesDepartment(ALTSD)JuniorBillAppropriations
Agreement

DEPARTMENT:  Community  Development

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  9, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Traci  Alvarez

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Traci  Alvarez  Assistant  City  Manager

Summary/Background:

SJOA has received  a Junior  Bill Appropriation  in the amount  of  S35,000.00.  Funds will be used to reimburse
various  expenses  associated  with  the  SJOA. City  is the  Fiscal  Agent  for  these  funds.

Recommendation:

Approved  Agreement

Attachments:

*  Junior  Bill Appropriation  Agreement

*

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

City  will  receive  funds  and  distribute  to  SJOA

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Approved  For  Submittag  By:  €  Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  Click  hei-e to entei-  text  Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

[1 Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File  Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24



Aging  &  Long-Term  Services  Depaitment  (ALTSD)

Junior  Bill  Appropriations  Agreement

APPROPRIATION  RECIPIENT:  City  of  Trutli  or  Consequences

APPROPRIATION  NUMBER:

6200000000

APPROPRI  ATION  AMOUNT:

$35-Ooo June  30,  2025

REVERSION  r)ATF.:

APPROPRIATION  LANGUAGE

for  senior  meal  sites

Grant  funds  unexpended  by  June  30,2025,  will  be reverted  to  the  State  of  New  Mexico's  general  fund.

APPROPRIATION  REIMBURSEMENT

The  appropriation  funds  will  be disbursed  through  a reimbursement  process.  The  Appropriation  Recipient  will  subi'nit

to the  ALTSD  Exhibit  A:  Request  for  Payment  Form,  along  with  supporting  document(s)  that  evidence  the  expenses

to be reimbursed.  The  ALTSD  will  review  these  docui'nents  to ensure  all reimbursed  expenses  reflect  the intent  and

purpose  of  the  appropriation  language.  All  expenditures  for  which  the  Appropriation  Recipient  requests

reimbursement  must  occur  prior  to the  reversion  date.

CERTIFIC  ATION

I hereby  ceitify  that  :

1. Shall  only  use the appropriation  funds  to carry  out  or  perform  activities  described  in appropriation  language.

2. Shall  comply  with  the State  Procurement  Code  and  the  execution  of  binding  written  obligations  or  purchase  orders

with  third  party  contractors  or vendors  for  the provision  of  services,  including  professional  services,  or the

purchase  of  tangible  personal  propeity  and  real  property  for  the  project.

3.  Shall  ensure  tliat  the appropriation  funds  only  benefit  entities  in accordance  with  applicable  law,  including,  but

not  limited  to Article  IX,  Section  14 of  the  Constitution  of  the  State  of  New  Mexico,  "Anti-Donation  Clause."

4.  Shall  follow  the procedure  described  in  "Appropriation  Reimbursement"  section  for reimbursement  of

appropriated  funds.

Entity RolT Hechler  - Mayor  - City  of  Truth  or  Consequences Date

Cn/Stal WaltOn - Executive DkeCtOr - Sierra JOinl OfflCe On Aging
Entity Date

APPROVAL

In  accordance  with  the  authority  conferred  on  the  Aging  &  Long-Term  Services  Department  by  the  statute

appropriating  these  funds,  I hereby  approve  this  ceitification  for  appropriation  number  62000000000  in  the

amount  of.

ALTSD  Agency Date



, (,nY  (F  T[)UTtl  O[)  (,0!%IS[0U[N € [%

AGENDA REQUEST FORM A,e,a  hem  #: L 6
MEETING  DATE:  August  14,  2024

SUBJECT: Discussion/Action  -  Acceptance  of USDA Letter  of Conditions  WSPI-2  (Water  System  Performance

Improvements  2) Project  and Authorization  for  Predevelopment  Financing

DEPARTMENT:  Community  Development

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  9, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Traci  Alvarez

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Traci  Alvarez  Assistant  City  Manager

Summary/Background:

Project  was partially  obligated  by USDA previously  (Loan 52,673,000.00/Grant  Sl,652,891.01)  this is the
remaining  grant obligation  (S5,574,109.00)
The  project  includes  open  trench  replacement  of  approximately  5,257-LF  of  6-inch  waterline  with  an 8-inch

line  east  of  the  Main  Street  District  area  on East Riverside  Dr. as well  as replacement  of  approximately  8,726-

LF of  6-inch  with  a 10-inch  waterline  towards  Williamsburg  creating  a loop  starting  from  S. Broadway  and

Iron  Street  going  south,  turning  east  on Veater  street  and North  on Platinum  St to end back  on S Broadway

St. All the  waterline  replacements  will  be 3 to 5 feet  and run parallel  to the  existing  water  lines  with  3' wide

by  4' deep  trench.  No additional  land  requirements  are required  for  the  replacement  of  the  water  lines,  and

all new  water  lines  are within  the  existing  right-of-way.  The project  also includes  the  installation  of  new

meter  cans,  water  service  lines,  and connections  to  the  existing  system.  Site  work  will  include  roadway

asphalt  removal  and replacement  as needed.

Recommendation:

Accept:  USDA Letter  of  Conditions  for  WSPI-2  and authorization  for  Predevelopment  Financing

Attachments:

*  Notice  of  Obligations  1 and 2

*  Letters  of Conditions  I and 2

*  WSPI 2 PER Amendment  -  (WSPI-2  PER available  to download  under  the Water  Department  webpage  on the
City website  at https://torcnm.org)

_*

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

S9,900,000.01  (S2,673,000 Loan/57,227,000.01  Grant)

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

xa

Approved  For  Submittaf  By: [3 Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  € City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Clid< here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No. Click hei-e  to entei-  text  Ordinance  No. -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

[1 Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24



USDA
Form  RD 1940-1

(Rev.  08-10)
REQUEST  FOR  OBLIGATION  OF FUNDS FORM  APPROVED

OMB  No. 0670-0082

(/llie t{gi.lslori conlalned above In lhls /biiu iendls Itt denlnl. reducikm ru'crmcellarkm d  USDA nsskrwce. 3'ou iiiny nppenl rlils (/I!CISI(III arid /iapg (I liearlng or yori may ieqiiesr a rgvlgii' In Ilmi ofa limi'lng.
Plgma usg rhe jtin+i iva Imw hicliidedpr rTh Innliose.

Posltlon 2

ORIGINAL  - Borrower's  Case  Folder COPY  I - Finance  Office COPY  2 - Appllcant/Lender  COPY  3 - 8tate  Office

AccmdiuzlolliePcrpenvmkRediicikmAclojl995.tmtvgencymaymlcrmducrorrrponsm'.nndnlieiwmlsnorrequLredrnr'espwulroacollecrlmuifhririrlmnndesslrdlsphysnvaMOMDwm'olumnber. IYievnlld
OMIlconm>lninriber'Jrn'lldyh(hnialloncollecllrinls05700062. Tlialhnei'equli'erNocrnnpleieMsli(frmmnrloncolleciloulsasllmnkadroavamgal5nNnmesperi'esponsa.lnchidngiliailmeforravlmAnglnsrrvrcrkns.
sam'chlng aslslrng darn smwces. gnrhedngmid nmWaWng rlw. dala riaerled wd cnmldei% rmd ravlewliig rho collecflon oj4uwrkm.



CERTIF  ICAT  ION  APPROV  AL

For  All  Farmers  Programs EM,  OL,  FO, aim SW Loans

This  loan is approved  subject  to the availability  of  funds.  If  this loan does  not close  for  any reason  within  90 days  troin  the

date  of  approval  on tliis  docuinent,  tlie  approval  official  will  request  tipdated  eligibility  inforination.  The  undersigned  loan

applicant  agrees that  the approval  official  will  liave  14 working  days  to review  any updated  inforination  prior  to submitting

this  docun'ient  for  obligation  of  ftinds.  If  there  liave  been significant  changes  tliat  may  affect  eligibility,  a decision  as to

eligibility  and feasibility  will  be made  witliin  30 days  from  tlie  time  tlie  applicant  provides  tlie  necessary  information.

If  t)iis  is a loan approval  for  uihicli  a lien  and/or  title  search  is necessary,  the undersigned  applicant  agrees  tliat  tlie

15-working-day  loan  closing  requirement  may  be exceeded  for  tlie  ptirposes  of  the applicant's  legal  representative

completing  title  work  and completing  loan  closing.

35. COMMENTS  AND  REQUIREMENTS  OF CERTIFYING  OFFICIAL

Financial  assistance  is  subject  to:  1)  Availability

Conditions  dated  07/30/2024,  30  Letter  of  Intent  to

07/30/2024,  4)Closing  Instruction  issued  by  the  US
project  is  subject  to  BABAA  requirements.

of  funds  2)Letter  of

meet  Conditions  dated

of  General  Counsel,  and  5)This

36. I FfEREBY  CERTIFY  that I am tinable  to obtain  sufficient  credit  elsewliere  to finance  iny  acttial  needs at reasonable  rates

and terms,  taking  into  consideration  prevailing  private  and cooperative  rates and terms  in or near my  coinmtiiiity  for  loans

for  siinilar  purposes  and periods  of  tiine.  I agree  to tise tlie  stiin  specified  lierein,  subject  to and in accordance  witli

regulations  applicable  to tlie  type  of  assistance  indicated  above,  and request  payinent  of  sucli  sum.Iagree  to report  to

USDA  any inaterial  adverse  clianges,  financial  or  otherwise,  tliat  occur  prior  to loan  closing.  I ceitify  tliat  no pait  of  tlie  SLlm

specified  lierein  lias been  received.  Iliave  reviewed  tlie loan  approval  requireinents  and coinments  associated  witli  tliis  loan

request  and agree  to comply  with  tliese  provisions.

(For FP loans at eligible  terms only)  If  tliis  loan is appi'oved,  I elect  tlie intercst  rate to be cliarged  on iny loan to be the lower  of' tlie

interest  rate in effect  at tlie time of  loan approval  or loan closing.  II" I clieck  "NO".  tlie interest  rate cliarged  on my

loan will be The ratc specttlcd ui Item 28 or thrS t"Orin. y  ES NO

WARNING:

Date(,  )f,J2(i30

Whoever,  in any  matter  within  the  jurisdiction  of  any  department  or  agency  of  the  United  States

knowingly  and  willfully  falsifies,  conceals  or  covers  up by  any  trick,  scheme,  or  device  a material

fact,  or  makes  any  false,  fictitious  or  fraudulent  statements  or  representations,  or  makes  or  uses

any  false  writing  or  document  knowi  same  to contain  any  false,  fictitious  or  fraudulent

statement  or  entry,  shall  be fined  uentry,  shall  be fined  u i or  imprispned  not  more  than  five  years,  or  both.

Ar7gj  Gonzales,  City  Manager

(Srgnalure  oj'ilpplicant)

Date 20 

(Signature  of  Co-,4pplicarit)

37. I HEREBY  CERTIFY  tliat all of  tlie coinmittee and adininistrative  determinations and certifications  required by regulations
prerequisite  to providing  assistance  of  tlie  type  indicated  above  liave  been  inade  and that  evidence  thereof  is in the docket,  and

tliat  all  reqtiireinents  of  pertinent  regulations  liave  been con'iplied  witl'i.  I liereby  approve  tlie  above-described  assistance  in tlie

amount  set foitli  above,  and by this  docuinent,  sribject  to the availability  of  funds,  tlie  Governinent  agrees  to advancc  such

amount  to tlie applicant  for  the  ptirpose  of  and subject  to the  availability  prescribed  by regulations  applicable  to this  type  of

assistance.

Date  Approved:

(Signahwe  of  Approsiing  Official)

Typed  or Printed  Name:  Christine  Griego

Title:  Community  Program  Director

3'  TO THE APPLICANT:  AS Of  tll!S dare , tliis  is notice  tliat  yotir  application  for  financial  assistance

troin  tlie USDA  lias been approved,  as indicated  above,  subject  to tlie  availability  of  funds  and other  conditions  required  by

the USDA.  If  you  liave  any questions  contact  tlie  appropriate  USDA  Servicing  Office.



USDA
"-'a"'  UnitedStatesDepartmentofAgriculture

Rural Development  July  30,  2024

New  Mexico

State  Office

One  Sun  Plaza

100  Sun  Ave  NE

Suite  130

Albuquerque,  NM

87109

City  of  Truth  or  Conseqriences

Amanda  Forrister,  Mayor

505  Sims  Street

Truth  or  Consequences,  NM  87901

SUBJECT:  Letter  of  Conditions

Project  Name:  Water  System  Performance  Improvements  - 2

CFDANUMBER:  10.770-
Voice  (505)  761-4950

Fax  (855)  543-9499
Water  and  Waste  Disposal  Loans  and  Grants

(Section  306C)

Agency  Loan:

Agency  Grant:

Agency  Grant:

$2,673,000

$1,652,891.01-  Section  306(C),  Colonias

$5,574,109  -  Section  306(C),  Colonias

Dear  Mayor  Forrister:

This  letter  establishes  conditions  which  must  be understood  and  agreed  to by  you  before

further  consideration  may  be given  to your  application.  The  loan  and  grant  will  be

administered  on behalf  of  the  Rural  Utilities  Service  (RUS)  by  the  State  and  Area  staff

of  USDA  Rural  Development  (RD),  botli  of  which  are referred  to througliout  this  letter

as the  Agency.  Any  changes  in project  cost,  source  of  funds,  scope  of  project,  or  any

other  significant  changes  in  the  project  or  applicant  must  be reported  to and  concurred

with  by  the  Agency  by  written  amendment  to this  letter.  This  includes  any  significant

changes  in the  Applicant's  financial  condition,  operation,  organizational  strricture  or

executive  leadership.  Any  changes  made  witliout  Agency  concurrence  shall  be cause  for

discontinriing  processing  of  the  application.

This  letter  does  not  constitute  loan  and  grant  approval,  nor  does  it ensure  that  funds  are

or  will  be available  for  the  project.  The  funding  is being  processed  on  the  basis  of  a loan

not  to exceed  $2,673,000  and  a grant  not  to exceed  $7,227,000.01.  The  loan  and  grant  will

be considered  approved  on  the  date  Form  RD  1940-1,  "Request  for  Obligation  of  Funds"

is signed  by  the  Agency  approval  official.

The  applicant  will  ensure  projects  are completed  in  a timely,  efficient,  and  economical

manner.  You  must  meet  all  conditions  set  forth  under  Section  III  -  Requirements  Prior

to Advertising  for  Bids  within  l year  of  this  letter.  If  you  do not  meet  the  conditions  of

this  letter,  the  Agency  reserves  the  right  to withdraw  Agency  funding.

USDA  is an equal  opportunity  provider,  employer,  and Lender.

To file a program  complaint  of discrimination,  complete  the USDA  Program  Discrimination  Complaint  Form,  AD-3027,  found  online  at
htkp://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaintfilingcust.html,  and at any USDA  office  or  write  a letter  addressed  to USDA  and provide  in the letter  all of

the information  requested  in the form. To request  a copy  of the complaint  form,  call (866)  632-9992.  Submit  your  completed  form  or letter  to
USDA  by: mail at u.s. Department  of Agriculture,  Office  of the Secretary  for Civil Rights,  1400  Independence  Avenue,  S.W.,  Washington,  o.c.
2025C1-9410, by fax (202)  690-7442  or email  at program.intake@usda.gov.



2

If  you  agree  to meet  the  conditions  set  forth  in  this  letter  and  desire  further  consideration,  be

given  to your  application,  please  complete  and  return  the  following  forms  within  1 days:

Form  RD  1942-46,  "Letter  of  Intent  to Meet  Conditions"

Form  RD  1940-1,  "Request  for  Obligation  of  Funds"

All  parties  may  access  information  and  regulations  referenced  in  this  letter  at our  website  located

at: Water and Environmental Proqrams l Rural Development (usda.qov)

The  conditions  are as follows:

SECTION  I - PROJECT  SCOPE

1.  Project  Description  -  Funds  will  be rised  to rehabilitate  the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences'

water  distribution  system  by  replacing  roughly  13,983  linear  feet  of  existing  water  lines  with

new  and  larger  diameter  sized  pipe  as well  as the  installation  of  new  meter  cans  and  water

service  lines.

Facilities  will  be designed  and  constructed  in accordance  with  sound  engineering  practices  and

must  meet  the  requirements  of  Federal,  State,  and  local  agencies.  The  proposed  facility  design

must  be based  on  the  Preliminary  Engineering  Report  (PER),  prepared  by  Wilson  &  Company,

Engineers  &  Arcl'iitects,  Inc.  amended  August  16,  2023,  as concurred  with  by  tlie  Agency.

2. Proiect  Funding  -  The Agency  is offering  the following  funding  for yorir  project:

Agency  Loan  -

Agency  Grant  -

$ 2,673,000
$ 7,227,000.01

TOT  AL  PROJECT  COST  - $ 9,900,000.01

Any  changes  in  funding  socirces  following  obligation  of  Agency  funds  must  be reported  to  the

processing  official.  Prior  to loan  closing,  any  increase  in non-Agency  funding  will  be applied

first  as a reduction  to Agency  grant  funds,  up  to  the  total  amount  of  the  grant,  and  then  as a

reduction  to Agency  loan  funds.

The  applicant  must  certify  that  they  have  exhausted  all  other  funding  avenues  and  have  no

pending  funding  considerations  from  any  other  sources.  Further,  the  applicant  must  ceitify  that

they  do not  intend  to apply  anywhere  else  for  funding  for  this  project.  If,  after  obligation  of

Agency  funds,  other  funding  becomes  available,  the  Agency  reserves  the  right  to deobligate  any

and  all  funding  for  this  project  and  to re-underwrite.  This  may  result  in the  offering  of  a

different  funding  package  to for  this  project.

Prior  to advertisement  for  construction  bids,  you  must  provide  evidence  of  applicant

contributions  and  other  funding  sources.  This  evidence  should  include  a copy  of  the  commitment



3

letter.  Agency  funds  will  not  be used  to pre-finance  funds  committed  to the  project  from  other

sources.

3. Proiect  Budget  -  Funding from all sources has been budgeted for the estimated expenditures
as follows:

Project  Costs:

Development

Contingency

GRT  -  Development

Engineering  Fees

Includes:

Engineering  Admin.

Preliminaiy  Engineering  Report/

Environmental  Report

Design

Construction  Inspection

Construction  Admin.

GRT  - Engineering

Interest  -  Pre-Dev./Interim

Legal  Fees  - Local  Attorney

TOTAL

Total  Budgeted:

$6,834,703
$683,470
$629,647
$1,536,494

$186,000
$60,000

$789,108
$265,000
$125,254
$111,132

$171,252.01
$44,434

$9,900,000.01

Project  feasibility  and  funding  will  be reassessed  if  there  is a significant  change  in project  costs

after  bids  are  received.  Obligated  loan  and/or  grant  funds  not  needed  to complete  the  proposed

project  will  be deobligated.  Any  reduction  will  be applied  to Agency  grant  funds  first.  If  actual

project  costs  exceed  the  project  cost  estimates,  an additional  contribution  by  the  Owner  may  be

necessary.  An  "Amended  Letter  of  Conditions"  will  be issued  for  any  changes  to the  total

project  budget.

4. Proiect  Timeline  -  To ensure that the project proceeds in a timely  manner, key processing
milestones  have  been  established  in accordance  with  the  PER  or  other  Agency  approved

documentation.  Projects  should  be completed  and  Agency  funds  fully  disbursed  within

three  years  of  obligation.  By  agreeing  to the  terms  herein,  you  agree  to comply  with  the

milestones  identified  below.  If,  for  any  reason,  one  or  more  of  the  milestones  cannot  be met,  you

must  notify  the  Agency  in writing  at least  30 days  prior  to  the  referenced  date.  Should  your  final

completion  date  become  more  than  three  years  after  obligation  the  written  request  will  follow  the

procedures  outlined  in Section  VI  of  this  letter,  including  the  submission  of  not  less  than  90 days

prior  to the  benchi'nark.  The  correspondence  i'nust  contain  a valid  explanation  as to why  the

milestone  cannot  be met  and  include  a proposed  revised  project  completion  schedule.  If  the

Agency  agrees  to the  modification,  a written  confirmation  will  be issued.  The  Agency  reserves

the  right  to de-obligate  loan  and/or  grant  funds,  or  take  other  appropriate  action,  if  the

established  or  amended  deadlines  are not  met.



4

Milestone

Plans  &  Specifications,  and  Design  Complete

Initial  Adveitisement  for  Bids

Award  Contract(s)/Initiate  Construction

Substantial  Completion

Final  Completion

SECTION  II  -  RATES  &  TERMS

pgy

I1/2/2024

1/01/2025

3/3/2025

l1/28/2025

12/31/2025

5. Interest  Rates  and  Loan  Terms  -  The  interest  rate  will  be the  lower  of  the  rate  in effect  at

the  time  of  loan  approval  or  the  time  of  loan  closing,  unless  yori  request  otherwise.  Should  the

interest  rate  be reduced,  the  payment  will  be recalculated  to the  lower  amount.  The  payment  due

date  will  be established  as the  day  that  the  loan  closes.

Your  loan  will  be scheduled  for  repayment  over  a period  of  40  years.  Payments  will  be equal

monthly  amortized  installments,  beginning  one  month  a'fter  closing.  For  planning  purposes,  use a

2.125%  interest  which  provides  for  a monthly  payment  of  $8,287.  The  precise  payment  amount

will  be based  on  the  interest  rate  at which  the loan  is closed  and  may  be different  than  the  one

above.

6.  -  The  loan  will  be secured  by  a Revenue  bond  with  first  lien  position  in the  amount

of  $2,673,000.  The  bond  will  be fully  registered  as to both  principal  and interest  in the name  of
the  "United  States  of  America,  Acting  through  the  United  States  Department  of  Agriculture."

Bond  Counsel  will  be utilized  in preparation  of  these  documents.

The  bond  instrument  and  any  ordinance  or  resolution  relating  thereto  must  not  contain  any

provision  in conflict  with  the  Agency  Loan  Resolution,  applicable  regulations,  or  associated

laws.  There  must  be no defeasance  or  refinancing  clause  in conflict  with  the  graduation

requirements  of  7 U.S.C.  1983.

Additional  security  requirements  are  contained  in RUS  Bulletin  1780-27,  "Loan  Resolution

(Public  Bodies)  and  RUS  Bulletin  1780-12,  "Water  and  Waste  System  Grant  Agreement".  A

draft  of  all  security  instruments,  including  draft  bond  resolution,  must  be reviewed,  and

concurred  in by  the  Agency  prior  to advertising  for  bids.  Bond/loan  resolutions  must  be duly

adopted  and  executed  prior  to loan  closing.

The  Grant  Agreement  will  be executed  prior  to the  first  disbursement  of  grant  funds.  The

grantee  understands  that  any  property  acquired  or  improved  with  Federal  grant  funds  may  have

use  and  disposition  conditions  which  apply  to the  property  as provided  by  2 CFR  part  200  in

effect  at this  time  and  as may  be subsequently  modified.  The  grantee  understands  that  any  sale

or  transfer  of  property  is subject  to the  interest  of  the  United  States  Government  in the  market

value  in  propoition  to its  participation  the  project.



5

7.  -  Reserves  must  be properly  budgeted  and  set  aside  to maintain  the  financial

viability  and  sustainability  of  any  operation.  Reserves  are  important  to fund  unanticipated

emergency  repairs,  to assist  with  debt  service  should  the  need  arise,  ai'id  for  the  replacement  of

assets  which  have  a useful  life  less  than  the  repayment  period  of  the loan.  The  following

reserves  are required  to be established  as a condition  of  this  loan:

a. Debt  Service  Reserve  -  As  a part  of  tliis  Agency  loan  proposal,  you  must  establish  a

debt  service  reserve  fund  equal  to at least  one  annual  loan  installment  that  accumulates  at

the rate  of  10%  of  one  annual  payment  per  year  for  ten  years  or  until  the  balance  is equal

to one  annual  loan  payment.  For  planning  purposes,  10%  of  the  proposed  loan

installment  would  equal  $832 per  month;  this  amount  should  be deposited  monthly  until  a

total  of  $99,890  has accumulated.  Prior  written  concurrence  from  the  Agency  must  be

obtained  before  funds  may  be withdrawn  from  this  accormt  during  the  life  of  the  loan.

When  funds  are  withdrawn  during  the  life  of  the  loan,  deposits  will  continue  as

designated  above  until  the  fully  funded  amount  is reached.

b. Short-Lived  Asset  Reserve  -  In addition  to the  debt  seiyice  reserve  fund,  you  must

establish  a sliort-lived  asset  reserve  fund.  Based  on  the  PER,  you  must  deposit  at least

$182,347  into  the  short-lived  asset  reserve  fund  annually  for  the  life  of  the  loan  to pay  for

repairs  and/or  replacement  of  major  system  assets.  It is your  responsibility  to assess  your

facility's  short-lived  asset  needs  on a regular  basis  and  adjrist  the  amount  deposited  to

meet  those  needs.

SECTION  III  -REQUIREMENTS  PRIOR  TO  Al)VERTISING  FOR  BIDS

8. Organization  -  The  Bond  Counsel  transcripts  of  proceedings  must  show  that  your

organization  is a duly  incorporated  public  body  and  has continued  legal  existence.  Your

organization  must  have  the  authority  to own,  construct,  operate,  and  maintain  the  proposed

facility,  as well  as for  borrowing  money,  pledging  security  and  raising  revenues.

9. Suspension  and  Debarment  Screening  -  You  will  be asked  to provide  information  on  the

principals  of  your  organization.  Agency  staff  must  conduct  screening  for  suspension  and

debarment  of  the  entity,  as well  as its  principals  throrigh  the  Do  Not  Pay  Portal.

Principal  -

i.  An  officer,  director,  owner,  partner,  principal  investigator,  or  other  person

within  a participant  with  management  or  supervisory  responsibilities  related  to

a covered  transaction;  or

ii.  A  consultant  or  other  person,  whether  or  not  employed  by  the  participant  or

paid  with  federal  funds,  who  -

1.  Is in a position  to handle  federal  funds;

2.  Is in a position  to influence  or  control  the  use of  those  funds;  or,

3.  Occupies  a technical  or  professional  position  capable  of  substantially

influencing  the  development  or  outcome  of  an activity  required  to

perform  the  covered  transaction.  (2 CFR  §180.995)



6

10.  Environmental  Requirements  -  At  the  conclusion  of  the  proposal's  environmental  review

process,  specific  action(s)  were  determined  necessary  to avoid  or  minimize  adverse

environmental  impacts.

The  project,  as proposed,  has  been  evaluated  to be consistent  with  the  National  Environmental

Policy  Act.  Other  Federal,  State,  tribal,  and  local  laws,  regulations  and/or  permits  may  apply  or

be required.  If  the  project  or  any  project  element  deviates  from  or  is modified  from  the  originally

approved  project,  additional  environmental  review  may  be required.

11.  Engineering  Services  -  You  have  been  required  to complete  an Agreement  for

Engineering  Services,  which  should  consist  of  the  Engineers  Joint  Contract  Documents

Cominittee  (EJCDC)  documents  as indicated  in RUS  Bulletin  1780-26,  "Guidance  for  the  Use  of

EJCDC  Documents  on Water  and  Waste  Projects  with  RUS  Financial  Assistance,"  or  other

approved  fori'n  of  agreement.  The  Agency  will  provide  concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids

and  must  approve  any  modifications  to this  agreement.

12.  Contract  Documents,  Final  Plans,  and  Specifications-  All  development  will  be completed

by contract  in accordance  with  applicable  provisions  of  RUS  Instruction  1780,  Subpart  C -

Planning,  Designing,  Bidding,  Contracting,  Constructing  and  Inspections,  (copy  available  upon

request),  and  in compliance  with  all  statutory  requirements.  You  are responsible  to share  this

with  your  engineer  before  pre-design.

a.  Tlie  plans  and  specifications  and  all  proposals  required  by  law  must  be approved  by

b.  In preparing  final  design  and  providing  service  to the  planned  project  area,  you  and  your

engineer  will  comply  with  all  zoning  and  planning  requirements  of  the  appropriate

governing  bodies  where  service  is to be provided.

c.  Tlie  Agency  will  need  to concur  in the  plans  and  specifications  prior  to advertising  for

bids.  Tlie  Agency  may  require  an updated  cost  estimate  if  a significant  amount  of  time

has elapsed  between  the  original  project  cost  estimate  and  advertising  for  bids.

d.  The  use of  any  procurement  method  other  than  competitive  sealed  bids  must  be requested

in writing  and  approved  by  the  Agency.

e.  The  contract  documents  must  consist  of  the  EJCDC  construction  contract  documents  as

indicated  in RUS  Bulletin  1780-26  or  other  Agency-approved  forms  of  agreement.

13.  Build  America,  Buy  America  (BABAA)  Requirements  - Recipients  of  an award  of

Federal  financial  assistance  from  a program  for  infrastructure  are hereby  notified  that  none  of

the funds  provided  under  this  award  may  be used  for  a project  for  infrastructure  unless:

a.  all  iron  and  steel  permanently  installed  in the  project  are  produced  in the  United  States-

this  means  all  manufacturing  processes,  from  the  initial  melting  stage  through  the

application  of  coatings,  occurred  in the  United  States.



7

b.  all  manufactured  products  permanently  installed  in the  project  are  produced  in the  United

States-this  means  the  manufactured  product  was  manufactured  in the  United  States;  and

the  cost  of  the  components  of  the  manufactured  product  that  are mined,  produced,  or

manufactured  in the  United  States  is greater  than  55 percent  of  the  total  cost  of  all

components  of  the  manufactured  product,  unless  another  standard  for  determining  the

minimum  amount  of  domestic  content  of  the  manufactured  product  has been  established

under  applicable  law  or  regulation;  and

c.  all  construction  materials  permanently  installed  are manufactured  in the  United  States-

this  means  that  all  manufacturing  processes  for  the  construction  material  occurred  in the

United  States.

The  BABAA  requirement  applies  to the  entirety  of  an  infrastructure  project  even  if  only  a

portion  of  the  project  is funded  by  Federal  funds.

The  Buy  America  preference  only  applies  to articles,  materials,  and  supplies  that  are consumed

in, incorporated  into,  or  affixed  to an infrastructure  project.  As  such,  it does  not  apply  to tools,

equipment,  and  supplies,  such  as temporary  scaffolding,  brought  to the  construction  site  and

removed  at or  before  the  completion  of  the  infrastructure  project.  Nor  does  a Buy  America

preference  apply  to equipment  and  furnishings,  such  as movable  chairs,  desks,  and  portable

computer  equipment,  that  are used  at or  within  the  finished  infrastructure  project  but  are not  an

integral  part  of  the  structure  or  permanently  affixed  to the infrastructure  project.

Waivers

When  necessary,  recipients  may  apply  for,  and  the  agency  may  grant,  a waiver  from  these

requirements.  The  agency  should  notify  the  recipient  for  information  on  the  process  for

requesting  a waiver  from  tliese  reqriirements.

When  the Federal  agency  has made  a detertnination  that  one  of  the  following  exceptions  applies,

the  awarding  official  may  waive  the  application  of  the  domestic  content  procurement  preference

in any  case in which  the  agency  determines  that:

a. applying  the  domestic  content  procurement  preference  worild  be irtconsistent  witli  the

public  interest;

b.  the  types  of  iron,  steel,  manufactured  products,  or  construction  materials  are not  produced

in the  United  States  in sufficient  and  reasonably  available  quantities  or  of  a satisfactory

quality;  or

c.  the inclusion  of  iron,  steel,  manufactured  products,  or  construction  materials  produced  in

the United  States  will  increase  the  cost  of  the  overall  project  by  more  than  25 percent.

A  request  to waive  the  application  of  the  domestic  content  procurement  preference  must  be in

writing.  The  agency  will  provide  instructions  on  the  format,  contents,  and  supporting  materials



8

required  for  any  waiver  request.  Waiver  requests  are subject  to public  comment  periods  of  no

less  than  15 days  and  must  be reviewed  by the  Made  in America  Office.

Definitions
"Construction  materials"  includes  an aiticle,  material,  or  supply-other  than  an item  of  primarily

iron  or  steel;  a manufactured  product;  cement  and  cementitious  materials;  aggregates  such  as

stone,  sand,  or  gravel;  or  aggregate  binding  agents  or  additives-that  is or  consists  primarily  of:

*  non-ferrous  metals;

*  plastic  and  polymer-based  products  (including  polyvinylchloride,  composite  building

materials,  and  polymers  used  in fiber  optic  cables);

@ glass  (including  optic  glass);

*  lumber;  or

*  drywall.

"Domestic  content  procurement  preference"  means  all  iron  and  steel  used  in the  project  are

produced  in the  United  States;  the  manufactured  products  used  in  the project  are produced  in the

United  States;  or  the  construction  materials  used  in  the  project  are  produced  in the United  States.

"Infrastructure"  includes,  at a minimum,  the  struchires,  facilities,  and  equipment  for,  in the

United  States,  roads,  highways,  and  bridges;  public  transportation;  dams,  ports,  harbors,  and

other  maritime  facilities;  intercity  passenger  and  freight  railroads;  freight  and  intermodal

facilities;  airports;  water  systems,  including  drinking  water  and  wastewater  systems;  electrical

transmission  facilities  and  systems;  utilities;  broadband  infrastructure;  and  buildings  and  real

property.  Infrastructure  includes  facilities  that  generate,  transport,  and  distribute  energy.

"Project"  means  the  construction,  alteration,  maintenance,  or  repair  of  infrastructure  in the

United  States.

Owners  are  ultimately  responsible  for  compliance  with  the  evidence  standards  as outlined  in the

Build  America  Buy  America  (BABAA)  appendix  to this  Letter.  Owners  are required  to maintain

records  as specified  in  their  loan  or  grant  agreement,  but  in all  cases,  they  should  i'naintain

records  for  a minimum  of  tl'iree  years  after  the  final  expenditure  report.  Minimum  records

include  certifications  from  manufacturers,  the  architect/engineer,  and  the  prime  contractor.

Supporting  documentation  includes  purchasing  records  and  notes  and  photos  taken  by  the

Resident  Project  Representative  (RPR).  Further  guidance  regarding  ceitifications  will  be

provided  by  the  Agency.

14.  Legal  Seiavices  -A  legal  services  agreement  is required  with  your  attoriiey  and  bond

counsel,  if  applicable,  for  any  legal  work  needed  in  connection  with  this  project.  The  agreement

should  stipulate  an hourly  rate  for  the  work,  with  a "not  to exceed"  amount  for  the  services,

including  reimbursable  expenses.  RUS  Bulletin  1780-7,  "Legal  Setavices  Agreement,"  or  similar

format  may  be used. The  Agency  will  provide  concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids.  Any

changes  to  the  fees  or  services  spelled  out  in the  original  agreement  must  be reflected  in  an

amendment  to the  agreement  and  have  prior  Agency  concurrence.



9

15.  Property  Rights  - Prior  to adveitising  for  bids,  you  and  your  legal  counsel  must  furiiish

satisfactory  evidence  that  you  have  adequate  continuous  and  valid  control  over  the lands  and

rights-of-way  i'ieeded  for  the  project.  Acquisitions  of  necessary  land  and  rights  must  be

accomplished  in accordance  with  the  Uniform  Relocation  Assistance  and  Real  Property

Acquisition  Policies  Act.  Such  control  over  the  lands  and  rights  will  be evidenced  by  the

following:

a. Right-of-Way  Map  -  Your  engineer  will  provide  a map  clearly  showing  the  location  of

all  lands  and  rights-of-way  needed  for  the  project.  The  map  must  designate  public  and

private  lands  and  rights  and  the  appropriate  legal  ownership  thereof.

b.  Form  RD  442-20,  "Right-of-Way  Easement"  -  This  form,  or  similar  format,  may  be

used  to obtain  any  necessary  easements  for  the  proposed  project.

c.  Form  RD  442-21,  "Right-of-Way  Certificate"  -  You  will  provide  a certification  on this

form  that  all  right-of-way  requirements  have  been  obtained  for  the  proposed  project.

d.  Form  RD  442-22,  "Opinion  of  Counsel  Relative  to Rights-of-Way"  -  Your  attorney

will  provide  a certification  and  legal  opinion  on  this  fori'n  addressing  rights-of-way,

easements,  and  title.

The  approving  official  may  waive  title  defects  or  restrictions,  such  as utility  easements,  that  do

not  adversely  affect  the  suitability,  successful  operation,  security  value,  or  transferability  of  the

facility.  Any  such  waivers  must  be provided  by  the  approving  official  in writing  prior  to closing

or the  start  of  construction,  whichever  occurs  first.

You  are responsible  for  the  acquisition  of  all  propeity  rights  necessary  for  the  project  and  for

determining  that  prices  paid  are reasonable  and  fair.  The  Agency  may  require  an appraisal  by  an

independent  appraiser  or  Agency  employee  in order  to validate  the  price  to be paid.

16.  System  Policies,  Procedures,  Contracts,  and  Agreements  -  The  facility  must  be operated

on a sound  business  plan  whicli  involves  adopting  policies,  procedures,  and/or  ordinances

outlining  the  conditions  of  service  and  use of  the  proposed  system.  Mandatory  connection

policies  should  be used  where  enforceable.  The  policies,  procedures,  and/or  ordinances  must

contain  an effective  collection  policy  for  accounts  not  paid  in full  within  a specified  number  of

days  after  the  date  of  billing.  They  shorild  include  appropriate  late  fees,  specified  timeframes  for

disconnection  of  service,  and  reconnection  fees.  A  draft  of  these  policies,  procedures,  and/or

ordinances  must  be submitted  for  Agency  review  and  concurrence,  along  with  the  documents

below,  before  closing  instructions  may  be issued  unless  otherwise  stated.

a. Conflict  of Interest  Policy - Prior to obligation of funds, YOLI must certify in writing that
your  organization  has in place  up-to-date  written  standards  of  conduct  covering  conflict

of  interest.  The  standards  of  conduct  must  include  disciplinary  actions  in the  event  of  a

violation  by  officers,  employees,  or  agents  of  the  borrower.  The  standards  identified

herein  apply  to any  parent,  affiliate  or  subsidiary  organization  of  the  borrower  that  is not

a state  or  local  government,  or  Indian  Tribe.  Policies  and  accompanying  documents  shall

b e furnished  to Rural  Development  upon  request.



10

You  must  also  submit  a disclosure  of  planned  or  potential  transactions  related  to the  use

of  Federal  funds  that  may  constitute  or  present  the  appearance  of  personal  or

organizational  conflict  of  interest.  Disclosure  must  be in  the  form  of  a written  letter

signed  and  dated  by  the  applicant's  official.  A  negative  disclosure  in  the  same  format  is

required  if  110  coiiflicts  are  anticipated.

Sample  conflict  of  interest  policies  may  be found  at the  National  Council  of  Nonprofits

website,  https://www.councilofnonprofits.org/tools-resources/conflict-of-interest,  or  in

Internal  Revenue  Service  Form  1023,  Appendix  A,  "Sample  Conflict  of  Interest  Policy,"

at http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/il023.pdf.  Though  these  examples  reference  non-profit

corporations,  the  requirement  applies  to all  types  of  Agency  borrowers.

Assistance  in developing  a conflict  of  interest  policy  is available  through  Agency-

contracted  technical  assistance  providers  if  desired.

#b.  Water  User  Agreement  -  Projects  not  involving  mandatory  connection  require  users  to

execute  a Water  Users  Agreement.  The  draft  agreement  must  receive  Agency

concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids.  RUS  Bulletin  1780-9,  "Water  Users

Agreement,"  or  similar  format  may  be used.

#c.  Contracts  for  Other  Services/Iiease  Agreement  -  Drafts  of  any  contracts  or  other

fori'ns  of  agreements  for  other  services,  including  audit,  management,  operation,  and

maintenance,  or  lease  agreements  covering  real  property  essential  to the  successful

operation  of  tlie  facility,  must  be submitted  to tlie  Agency  for  review  and  concurrence

prior  to advertising  for  bids.

#d.  Parity/Intercreditor  Agreement  -  Projects  with  parity  liens  must  have  in  place  a written

agreement  between  the  parity  lenders.  The  draft  agreement  must  receive  Agency

concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids.

#e. Other  agreements  witli  governments  or  other  entities  regarding  joint  operation  of

facilities,  granting  authority  to Agency  borrower  for  providing  service  within  another

entity's  service  area,  etc.  -  Utility  service  Agreement  with  the  Village  of  Williamsburg  -

The  draft  agreement  must  receive  Agency  concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids.

Fully  executed  copies  of  any  policies,  procedures,  ordinances,  contracts,  or  agreements  above

must  be submitted  prior  to loan  closing,  with  the  exception  of  the  conflict  of  interest  policy,

which  must  be in place  prior  to obligation  of  funds.

17.  Closing  Instructions  -  The  Agency  will  prepare  closing  instructions  as soon  as the

requirements  of  the  previous  paragraphs  are complete,  as well  as a draft  of  the  security

instrument(s).  Both  your  bond  and  legal  counsel  must  comply  with  these  instructions  when

closing  the  Agency  loan/grant.

18.  System  Users  -  This  letter  of  conditions  is based  upon  your  indication  at application  that

there  will  be at least  2828  residential  users,  514  non-residential  users,  on  the  existing  system

when  construction  is completed.



11

Before  the  Agency  can  agree  to the  project  being  adveitised  for  construction  bids,  you  must

certify  that  the  number  of  users  indicated  at application  are  currently  using  the  system  or signed

up  to use the  system  once  it is operational.

If  the actual nrimber of existing and/or proposed users that have signed LIP for service is less than
the  number  indicated  at the  time  of  application,  you  must  provide  the  Agency  with  a written  plan

on  how  you  will  obtain  the  necessary  revenue  to adequately  cash  flow  tlie  expected  operation,

maintenance,  debt  service,  and  reserve  requirements  of  the  proposed  project  (e.g.,  increase  user

rates,  sign  up an adequate  number  of  other  users,  reduce  project  scope,  etc.).  Similar  action  is

required  if  there  is cause  to modify  the  anticipated  flows  or  volumes  presented  following

approval.

If  yori  are relying  on mandatory  connection  requirements,  you  rmist  provide  evidence  of  the

authorizing  ordinance  or statute  along  with  your  user  certification.

19.  Construction  Account  -  A  separate  construction  account  is not  required  for  project  funds.

However,  the  recipient  must  be able  to separately  identify,  report  and  account  for  all  Federal

funds,  including  the  receipt,  obligation  and  expenditure  of  funds,  in accordance  with  2 CFR

200.305.  These  funds  must  be deposited  in a bank  with  Federal  Deposit  Insurance  Corporation

(FDIC)  insurance  coverage.  If  the  balances  at  the  financial  institution  where  federal  funds

will  be  deposited  exceeds  the  FDIC  insurance  coverage,  the  excess  amount  must  be

collaterally  secured  up  to 100  percent  of  the  highest  amount  of  funds  expected  to be

deposited  in the  account  at  any  one  time,  per  the  Department  of  Treasury  regulations  and

requirements.

20.  Interim  Financing  -  The  Agency's  policy  is to utilize  interim  financing  for  all  loans

exceeding  $500,000.  Prepayment  penalties  on interim  financing  are not  allowed.  Borrowers  are

required  to seek  interim  financing  initially  from  private  or  cooperative  lenders  if  funds  can  be

borrowed  at reasonable  interest  rates  on an interim  basis  from  those  sorirces  for  the  construction

period.  The  fact  that  a commercial  lender's  rates  are higher  than  current  Agency  interest  rates

does  not  necessarily  mean  that  the  commercial  rate  is not  reasonable.

21.  Proposed  Operating  Budget  -  You  must  establish  and/or  maintain  a rate  schedule  that

provides  adequate  income  to meet  the  minimum  requirements  for  operation  and  maintenance  (O

and  M),  debt  service,  and  reserves.  Prior  to advertising  for  bids,  you  must  submit  a proposed

annual  operating  budget  to the  Agency,  as well  as your  proposed  rate  schedule.  The  operating

budget  should  be based  on  a typical  year  cash  flow  after  completion  of  the  construction  phase

and  should  be signed  by  the  appropriate  official  of  your  organization.  Form  RD  442-7,

"Operating  Budget,"  or  similar  format  may  be utilized  for  this  purpose.  It is expected  that  0  and

M  expenses  will  change  over  each  successive  year  and  user  rates  will  need  to be adjusted  on a

regular  basis.

Technical  assistance  is available  at no cost  to help  you  evaluate  and  complete  a rate  analysis  on

your  system.  This  assistance  is available  free  to your  organization.  If  you  are interested,  please

contact  our  office  for  information.



12

22.   -The  owner  or  responsible  party  will  be required  to obtain  all  applicable  permits

for  the  project,  prior  to adveitising  for  bids.  The  consulting  engineer  must  submit  written

evidence  that  all  applicable  permits  required  prior  to construction  have  been  obtained  with

submission  to the  Agency  of  the  final  plans,  specifications,  and  bid  documents.

23.  Risk  and  Resilience  Assessment/Emergency  Response  Plan  (RRA/ERP)  -The  Agency

requires  all  financed  water  and  wastewater  systems  to have  a RRA/ERP  in  place.  New  water  or

wastewater  systems  must  provide  a certification  that  an ERP  is complete  prior  to the  start  of

operation,  and  a certification  that  an RRA  is complete  must  be submitted  within  one  year  of  the

start  of  operation.  Borrowers  with  existing  systems  must  provide  a certification  that  an

RRA/ERP  has been  completed  prior  to advertising  for  bids.  Technical  assistance  is available  in

preparing these documents at no cost to YOLI.

Before  funds  are  drawn,  you  should  have  in place  a cybersecurity  plan,  a supply  cliain  plan,  and

a plan  to comply  with  cybersecurity  requirements  of  the  National  Institute  of  Science  and

Technology  and  the  Cybersecurity  and  Infrastructure  Security  Administration.  These  items

should  be addressed  in the  RRA/ERP.

The  RRA/ERP  documents  themselves  are  not  submitted  to the  Agency.  The  RRA/ERP  must

address  potential  impacts  from  natural  disasters  and  other  emergency  events.  It  should  include

plans  to address  impacts  of  flash  flooding  in areas  where  severe  drought  or  wildfires  occur.  Tlie

documents  should  be reviewed  and  updated  every  five  years  at a minimum.

24.  Bid  Authorization  - Once  all  the  conditions  outlined  in Section  III  of  this  letter  have

been  met,  the  Agency  will  authorize  you  to advertise  the  project  for  construction  bids.  Such

advertisement  must  be in accordance  with  applicable  State  statutes.

SECTION  IV  - REQUIREMENTS  PRIOR  TO  ST  ART  OF  CONSTRUCTION

25.  Disbursement  of  Agency  Funds  - Agency  funds  will  be disbursed  electronically  into  the

construction  account  as they  are  needed.  SF 3881,  "ACH  Vendor/Miscellaneous  Payment

Enrollment  Form,"  must  be completed  and  submitted  to the  Agency  prior  to coi'nmencement  of

construction.

The  order  of  disbursement  is as follows:  l)  Applicant  contribution,  2) other  funding  sources,  3)

interim  financing  or  Agency  loan  funds,  and  4)  Agency  grant  funds.  Interim  financing  or

Agency  loan  funds  will  be expended  after  all  other  funding  sources  unless  a written  agreement  is

reached  with  all  other  funding  sources  on  how  funds  are to be disbursed  prior  the  first

disbursement.  Interim  financing  funds  or  Agency  loan  funds  must  be used  prior  to the  use of

Agency  grant  funds.  Agency  Grant  funds  must  not  be disbursed  prior  to loan  funds  except  as

authorized  in 7 CFR  1780.45(d).

Grant  funds  are to be deposited  in an interest-bearing  account  (exception  provided  below)  in

accordance  with  2 CFR Part  200 and  interest  in excess  of  $500 per  year  remitted  to the  Agency.



13

The funds  should  be disbursed  by the recipient  immediately  upon  receipt,  and there  should  be

little  interest  accrual  on the Federal  funds. Recipients  shall  maintain  advances  of  Federal  funds

in interest-bearing  accormts,  unless:

*  The recipient  receives  less than $120,000  in Federal  awards  per  year.

*  The best reasonably  available  interest-bearing  account  would  not  be expected  to earn

interest  in excess of  $500  per year  on Federal  cash balances.

*  The depository  would  require  an average  or minimum  balance  so high  that  it would

not be feasible  within  the expected  Federal  and non-Federal  cash resources.

*  A foreign  government  or banking  system  prohibits  or precludes  interest-bearing

accounts.

26.  Bid  Tabulation  -  Immediately  after  bid  opening,  you  must  provide  the Agency  with  the

bid  tabulation  and your  engineer's  evaluation  of  bids  and recommendations  for  contract  awards.

If  the Agency  agrees that  the construction  bids  received  are acceptable,  adequate  funds  are

available  to cover  the total  project  costs,  and all the requirements  of  Section  III  of  this  letter  have

been satisfied,  the Agency  will  authorize  you  to issue  the Notice  of  Award.

a. Cost  Overruns  -  If  bids are higher  than expected,  or if  unexpected  construction

problems  are encountered,  you  must  utilize  all options  to reduce  cost overruns.

Negotiations,  redesign,  use of  bidding  alternatives,  rebidding  or other  means  will  be

considered  prior  to commitment  of  subsequent  funding  by the Agency.  Any  requests  for

subsequent  funding  to cover  cost  overruns  will  be contingent  on the availability  of  funds.

Cost  overruns  exceeding  20 percent  of  the development  cost at time  of  loan or grant

approval  or where  the scope  of  the original  purpose  has clianged  will  compete  for  funds

with  all other  applications  on hand as of  that  date.

b.  Excess  Funds  - If  bids are lower  than anticipated  at time  of  obligation,  excess funds  must

be deobligated  prior  to start  of  construction  except  in the cases addressed  in this

paragraph.  In cases where  the original  PER  for  the project  included  items  that  were  not

bid, or were  bid  as an alternate,  the State Office  official  may modify  the project  to fully

utilize  obligated  funds  for  those  items. Amendments  to the PER,  ER, and Letter  of

Conditions  may  be needed  for  any work  not included  in the original  project  scope.  In all

cases, prior  to start  of  construction,  excess  funds  will  be deobligated,  with  grant  funds

being  deobligated  first. Excess  funds  do not  include  contingency  funds  as described  in

this  letter.

27. Suspension  and  Debarment  Screening  -  In accordance  with  2 CFR  Part 180, Subpart  C, as

a condition  of  the transaction  and the responsibilities  to persons  at the next  lower  tier  with  whom

you  enter  into  transactions,  you  must  conduct  screening  for  suspension  and debarment  of  lower

tier  recipients  (e.g.,  vendors,  contractors,  etc.).

28.  Contract  Review  -  Your  attorney  will  ceitify  that  the executed  contract  documents,

including  performance  and payment  bonds,  if  required,  are adequate  and that  the persons

executing  these documeiits  have been properly  authorized  to do so in accordance  with  7 CFR

1780.61(b).



14

Once  your  attorney  has certified  that  they  are  acceptable,  the  contract  documents  will  be

submitted  to the Agency  for  concurrence.  Construction  cannot  commence  until  the  Agency  has

concurred  in the construction  contracts.

29.  Final  Rights  of  Way  -  Your  attorney  or  title  company  must  furnish  a separate  final  title

opinioi"i  or  Title  Insurance  Policy  on all  real  property  related  to the  facility,  now  owned  and  to be

acquired  for  this  project,  as of  the  day  of  loan  closing  or start  of  construction,  whichever  occurs

first.  Form  RD  1927-10,  "Final  Title  Opinion"  may  be used.

If  any  of  the  right-of-way  fortns  listed  previously  in this  letter  contain  exceptions  that  do not

adversely  affect  the  suitability,  successful  operation,  security  value,  or  transferability  of  the

facility,  the  approving  official  must  provide  a written  waiver  prior  to the  issuance  of  the  Notice

to Proceed.

30.  Insurance  and  Bonding  Requirements  - Prior  to the  start  of  construction  or  loan  closing,

whichever  occurs  first,  you  must  acquire  and  submit  to the  Agency  proof  of  the  types  of

insurance  and  bond  coverage  for  the  borrower  shown  below.  The  use of  deductibles  may  be

allowed,  providing  you  have  the  financial  resorirces  to cover  potential  claims  requiring  payment

of  the  deductible.  The  Agency  strongly  recommends  that  you  have  your  engineer,  attorney,  and

insurance  provider(s)  review  proposed  types  and  amounts  of  coverage,  including  any  exclusioiis

and  deductible  provisions.  It is your  responsibility  and  not  that  of  the  Agency  to assure  that

adequate  insurance  and  fidelity  bond  coverage  is maintained.

a. General  Liability  Insurance  -  Include  vehicular  coverage.

b.  Workers'  Compensation  -  In  accordance  with  appropriate  State  laws.

c. Guaranty  or  Fidelity  Insurance-Coverage  for  all  persons  who  have  access  to funds,

including  persons  working  under  a contract  or  management  agreement.  Coverage  may  be

provided  either  for  all  individual  positions  or  persons,  or  through  "blanket"  coverage

providing  protection  for  all  appropriate  employees.  Each  position  is to be insured  in an

amount  equal  to the  maximum  amount  of  funds  expected  to be under  the  control  of  that

position  at any  one  time.  The  minimum  coverage  allowed  will  be an amount  equal  to  the

total  annual  debt  service  payment  on  the  Agency  loans.  The  coverage  may  be increased

during  construction  based  on  the  anticipated  monthly  advances.

d.  National  Flood  Insurance  - If  the  project  involves  acquisition  or  construction  in a

designated  special  flood  area,  the  community  in which  the  acquisition  or  construction  is

situated  must  be currently  participating  in the  national  flood  insurance  program.

Additionally,  if  the  project  involves  acquisition  or  constriction  in  designated  special  flood

or  mudslide  prone  areas,  a flood  insurance  policy  must  be in place  at the  time  of  loan

closing.

e. Real  Property  Insurance  -  Fire  and  extended  coverage  will  nori'nally  be maintained  on

all  structures  except  reservoirs,  pipelines  and  other  structures  if  such  structures  are not

normally  insured,  and  subsurface  lift  stations  except  for  the  value  of  electrical  and

pumping  equipment.  The  Agency  will  be listed  as moitgagee  on the  policy  when  the

Agency  has a lien  on the  property.  Prior  to the  acceptance  of  the  facility  from  the



15

contractor(s),  you  must  obtain  real  property  insurance  (fire  and  extended  coverage)  on all

facilities  identified  above.

The  Agency  is to be listed  as "Other  Insured"  so as to receive  notifications  on all  insurance,

regardless  of  security.  Insurance  types  described  above  are  required  to be continued  througliout

the  life  of  the  loan.  See Section  VII.

31.  Initial  Civil  Rights  Compliance  Review  -  The  Agency  will  conduct  an initial  civil  rights

compliance  review  of  the  borrower  prior  to loan  closing  or  start  of  construction,  whichever

occurs  first,  in accordance  with  7 CFR  1901,  Subpart  E. You  are expected  to comply  with  the

completion  of  the review,  including  the  furnishing  of  any  documents,  records,  or  other  applicable

material.

SECTION  V  -  REQUIREMENTS  PRIOR  TO  CLOSING

32.  Interim  Financing.  Interim  financing  is being  used.  Generally,  loan  closing  will  occur  near

the  end  of  construction  when  interim  funds  are  fully  disbursed.  Documents  detailed  above  from

Sections  II and  III  regarding  security,  electronic  payments  (Form  3550-28),  and  system  policies,

procedures,  contracts,  and  agreements  must  be adopted  and/or  executed  and  submitted  to the

Agency  prior  to loan  closing.

33.  Electronic  Payments  -  Payments  will  be made  through  an electronic  preauthorized  debit

system.  You  will  be required  to complete  Form  RD  3550-28,  "Authorization  Agreement  for

Preauthorized  Payments,"  for  all  new  and  existing  indebtedness  to the  Agency  prior  to loan

closing.

34.  Other  Requirements  -  All  requirements  contained  in the  Agency's  closing  instructions,  as

well  as any  requirements  of  your  bond  counsel  and/or  attorney,  must  be met  prior  to loan  closing.

a.  System  for  Award  Management.  You  will  be required  to maintain  a Unique  Entity  ID

(UEI)  and  maintain  an active  registration  in the  System  for  Award  Management  (SAM)

database.  Renewal  can  be completed  online  at: http://sam.gov.  This  registration  must  be

renewed  and  revalidated  every  12 months  for  as long  as there  is an active  loan,  grant,  or

guaranteed  loan  with  the  Agency.

To  ensure  the  information  is current,  accurate  and  complete,  and  to prevent  the  SAM

account  expiration,  the  review  and  updates  must  be performed  within  365  days  of  the

activation  date,  commonly  referred  to as the  expiration  date.  The  registration  process

may  take  up  to 10 business  days.  (See  2 CFR  Part  25 and  the  "Help"  section  at

http://sam.gov).

b.   YOLI are required  to notify  the  Agency  within  30 days  of  receiving

notification  of  being  involved  in any  type  of  litigation  prior  to loan  closing  or  start  of

construction,  whichever  occurs  first.  Additional  documentation  regarding  the  situation

and  litigation  may  be requested  by  the  Agency.



16

c.  Certified  Operator.  Evidence  must  be provided  that  your  system  has or  will  have  a

ceitified  operator,  as defined  by  applicable  State  or  Federal  requirements,  available  prior

to the  system  becoming  operational,  or  that  a suitable  supervisory  agreement  with  a

ceitified  operator  is in effect.

SECTION  VI  -  REQUIREMENTS  DURING  CONSTRUCTION  AND  POST

CONSTRUCTION

35.  Construction  Completion  Timeframe  -  Following  the  benchmarks  established  in Section  I,

Item  4, Project  Timeline,  all  projects  should  be completed  and  Agency  funds  fully  disbursed

within  three  years  of  the  date  of  obligation.  If  funds  are not  disbursed  within  three  years  of

obligation  and  you  have  not  already  done  so per  Section  I, Item  4, you  must  submit  a written

request  for  extension  of  time  to the  Agency  with  adequate  justification  of  the  circumstances,

includii'ig  any  beyond  your  control.  The  request  must  be submitted  at least  90 days  prior  to the

end  of  the  three-year  timeframe  and  include  a revised  estimated  date  of  completion.  The  Agency

will  typically  only  allow  one  extension.  Subsequent  requests  for  waivers  beyond  the  initial

extension  or  requests  that  exceed  five  years  from  the  initial  date  of  obligation  will  be submitted

to the  RUS,  Water  and  Environmental  Programs  for  consideration.  The  Agency  retains  the  right

to de-obligate  any  loan  and/or  grant  monies,  or  take  other  appropriate  action,  related  to

unliquidated  funds  that  exceed  the  timeframes  above  and  are  not  under  an active  extension.

36.  Resident  Inspector(s)  -  Full-time  inspection  is required  unless  you  request  an exception.

Such  requests  must  be made  in writing  and  tlie  Agency  must  provide  written  concurrence.

Inspection  services  are to be provided  by  the  consulting  engineer  unless  other  arrangements  are

requested  in  writing  and  concurred  with  by  the  Agency.  A  resume  of  qualifications  of  any

resident  inspector(s)  will  be submitted  to the  owner  and  Agency  for  review  and  concurrence

prior  to  the  pre-construction  conference.  The  resident  inspector(s)  must  attend  the

preconstruction  conference.

37.  Preconstruction  Conference  -  A  preconsttuction  conference  will  be lield  prior  to the

issuance  of  the  Notice  to Proceed.  The  consulting  engineer  will  review  the  planned  development

with  the  Agency,  owner,  resident  inspector,  attorney,  contractor,  other  funders,  and  other

interested  parties,  and  will  provide  minutes  of  this  meeting  to the  owner  and  Agency.

38.   - The  Agency  requires  a preconstruction  conference,  pre-final,  final,  and

warranty  inspections.  Your  engineer  will  schedule  a warranty  inspection  with  the  contractor  and

the  Agency  before  the  end  of  the  11-  month  warranty  period  to address  and/or  resolve  any

outstanding  warranty  issues.  The  Agency  will  conduct  an inspection  with  you  of  your  records

management  system  at the  same  time  and  will  continue  to  inspect  the  facility  and  your  records

system  every  three  years  for  the life  of  the  loan.  See Section  VII  of  this  letter.

39.  Change  Orders  -  A  Change  Order  must  be submitted  for  all  modifications  to the  approved

scope  of  work,  including  existing  contracts.  This  includes  non-physical  modifications  such  as



17

any  time  extension  requests.  Prior  written  Agency  concurrence  is required  for  all  Change

Orders.

40.   -  Prior  Agency  concurrence  is required  for  all  invoices  and  requests  for  payment

before  Agency  funds  will  be released.  Requests  for  payment  related  to a contract  or  service

agreement  will  be signed  by  the  owner,  project  engineer,  and  contractor  or service  provider  prior

to Agency  concurrence.  Invoices  not  related  to a construction  contract  or  service  agreement  will

include  the  owner's  written  concurrence.

41.  Use  of  Remaining  Funds  -  As  stated  above,  applicant  contribution  and  connection  or  tap

fees  will  be tlie  first  funds  expended  in the  project.  Funds  remaining  after  all  costs  incident  to

the  basic  project  have  been  paid  or  provided  will  be handled  as follows:

a. Funds  rei'naining  after  the  applicant  contribution  and  connection  fees  may  be considered

in direct  proportion  to the  amounts  of  funding  obtained  from  each  source.  Tlie  use of

Agency  funding  will  be limited  to eligible  loan  and  grant  purposes,  provided  the  use will

not  result  in major  changes  to the   scope  of  work  and  tlie  purpose  of  the  loan  and

grant  remains  the  same.

b.  Any  reductions  in the  Agency  funding  will  be first  applied  to the  grant  funds.

c.  Grant  funds  not  expended  for  authorized  purposes  will  be cancelled  (de-obligated)  within

30 days  of  final  completion  of  project.  Prior  to actual  cancellation,  you,  your  attorney

and  engineer  will  be notified  of  the  Agency's  intent  to cancel  the  remaining  funds  and

given  appropriate  appeal  rights.

d.  Under  no circumstances  is it appropriate  to use remaining  funds  as contributions  to a new

project  oritside  the  scope  of  the  funded  project.

e.  Loan  funds  that  are not  needed  will  be cancelled  (de-obligated)  prior  to loan  closing.

42.  Technical,  Managerial  and  Financial  Capacity  - It is required  that  members  of  the  Board

of  Directors,  City  Council  members,  trustees,  commissioners  and  other  governing  members

possess  the  necessary  technical,  managerial,  and  financial  capacity  skills  to consistently  comply

with  pertinent  Federal  and  State  laws  and  requirements.  It is recommended  members  receive

training  within  one  year  of  appointment  or  election  to  the  governing  board,  and  a refresher

training  for  all  goveming  members  on a routine  basis.  The  content  and  amount  of  training  should

be tailored  to the  needs  of  the  individual  and  the  utility  system.  Technical  assistance  providers

are available  to provide  this  training  for  your  organization,  often  at no cost.  Contact  the  Agency

for  additional  information.

43.  Reporting  Requirements  Related  to  Expenditure  of  Funds-An  annual  audit  under  2

CFR 200 is required  if  you  expend  $750,000  or  more  in Federal  financial  assistance  per  fiscal
year.  The  total  Federal  funds  expended  from  all  sources  shall  be used  to determine  Federal

financial  assistance  expended.  Expenditures  of  interim  financing  are considered  Federal

expenditures.

All  audits  are  to be performed  in accordance  with  2 CFR  Part  200,  as adopted  by  USDA  through

2 CFR  Part  400.  Further  guidance  on preparing  an acceptable  audit  can  be obtained  from  the



18

Agency.  The  audit  must  be prepared  by  an independent  licensed  Ceitified  Public  Accountant,  or

a State  or  Federal  auditor  if  allowed  by State  law  and  must  be submitted  within  9 months  of  your

fiscal  year  end. Both  the  audit  and  accompaiiying  management  repoit  must  be submitted  for

review.

If  an audit  is required,  you  must  enter  into  a written  agreement  with  the  auditor  and  submit  a

copy  of  that  agreement  to the  Agency  prior  to  the  advertisement  of  construction  bids.  The  audit

agreement  may  include  terms  and  conditions  that  the  borrower  and  auditor  deem  appropriate;

however,  the  agreement  should  include  the  type  of  audit  to be completed,  the  time  frame  in

which  the  audit  will  be completed,  and  how  irregularities  will  be reported.

SECTION  VII  -  SERVICING  REQUIREMENTS  DURING  THE  TERM  OF  THE  LOAN

44.  Prepayment  and  Extra  Payments  - Prepayments  of  scheduled  installments,  or  any  portion

thereof,  may  be made  at any  time  at the  option  of  borrower,  with  no penalty.

Security  instruments,  including  bonding  documents,  must  contain  the  following  language

regarding  extra  payments,  unless  prohibited  by  State  statute:

Prepayments qf  scheduled installments, or any portion thereqf, may be made at any time
at the option of  borrower. Refitnds, extra payments and loarr proceeds obtainedfrom
outside sources for  the purpose of  paying dowri the Agency debt, shall, after payment of
interest,  be applied  to the installments  last  to become  due  vmder  this  note  and  shall  not

afjfect the obligation of  borrower to pay the remaining installments as scheduled in your
security  instruments.

45.  Annual  Financial  Reporting/Audit  Requirements  -  You  are required  to submit  an

annual  financial  report  at tlie  end  of  each  fiscal  year.  The  annual  repoit  will  be certified  by  the

appropriate  organization  official,  and  will  consist  of  financial  information,  a current  rate

schedule,  and  listing  of  board  members  with  their  terms.  Financial  statements  must  be prepared

on  an accrual  basis  of  accorinting  in accordance  with  generally  accepted  accounting  principles

(GAAP).  The  annual  report  will  include  separate  reporting  for  each  water  and  waste  disposal

facility,  and  itemized  cash  accounts  by  type  (debt  service,  short-lived  assets,  etc.)  under  each

facility.  All  records,  books  and  suppoiting  material  are  to be retained  for  three  years  after  the

issuance  of  the  annual  report.  Technical  assistance  is available,  at no cost,  with  preparing

financial  reports.

The  type  of  financial  information  that  must  be submitted  is specified  below:

a.  Audits  -  An  audit  under  the  Single  Audit  Act  is required  if  you  expend  $750,000  or  more

in Federal  financial  assistance  per  fiscal  year.  The  total  Federal  funds  expended  from  all

sources  shall  be used  to determine  Federal  financial  assistance  expended.  Expenditures

of  interim  financing  are  considered  Federal  expenditures.

See Section  Vl  for  additional  information  regarding  audits.



19

b. Financial  Statements  -  If  you  expend less  than  $750,000 in Federal  financial  assistance

per  fiscal  year,  you  may  submit  financial  statements  in lieu  of  ai'i audit  which  include,  at a

minimum,  a balance  sheet  and  an income  and  expense  statement.  You  may  use Form  RD

442-2,  "Statement  of  Budget,  Income  and  Equity,"  and  442-3,  "Balance  Sheet,"  or

similar  format  to provide  the  financial  information.  The  financial  statements  must  be

signed  by  the  appropriate  borrower  official  and  submitted  within  60 days  of  your  fiscal

year  end.

c.  Quarterly  Reports  -  Quarterly  Income  and  Expense  Statements  will  be required  until

the  processing  office  waives  this  requirement.  You  may  use Form  RD  442-2,  "Statement

of  Budget,  Income  and  Equity,"  or  similar  format  to provide  this  information.  The  reports

are to be signed  by  the  appropriate  borrower  official  and  submitted  within  30 days  of

eacli  quarter's  end. The  Agency  will  notify  you  in  writing  when  quarterly  reports  are no

longer  required.

46. Annual  Budget  and Proiected  Cash Flow  - Thirty  days prior  to tlie beginning  of  each
fiscal  year,  you  will  be required  to submit  an annual  budget  and  projected  cash  flow  to this

office.  The  budget  must  be signed  by  the  appropriate  borrower  official.  Form  RD  442-2,

"Statement  of  Budget,  Income  and  Equity,"  or  similar  format  may  be used.

Technical  assistance  is available  at no cost  to help  you  evaluate  and  complete  a rate  analysis  on

yorir  system,  as well  as completing  the  annual  budget.

47. Graduation  - By  accepting  this  loan,  you  are  also  agreeing  to refinance  (graduate)  the

unpaid  loan  balance  in  whole,  or  in  pait,  upon  request  of  the  Government.  If  at any  time  the

Agency  determines  you  can  obtain  a loan  for  such  purposes  from  responsible  cooperative  or

private  sources  at reasonable  rates  and  terms,  you  will  be requested  to refinance.  Your  ability  to

refinance  will  be assessed  every  other  year  for  those  loans  that  are five  years  old  or  older.

48.  Security/Operational  Inspections  -  The  Agency  will  inspect  the  facility  and  conduct  a

review  of  your  operations  and  records  management  system  and  conflict  of  interest  policy  every

three  years  for  the  life  of  the loan.  You  must  participate  in these  inspections  and  provide  the

required  information.

49.  System  for  Award  Management.  You  will  be required  to maintain  a Unique  Entity  ID

(UEI)  and  maintain  an active  registration  in  the System  for  Award  Management  (SAM)  database.

Further  information  can  be found  at  paragraph  33 of  this  letter.

50. Risk  and  Resiliency  Assessment/Emergencv  Response  Plan  (RRA/ERP)  -  The  RRA/ERP
is further  outlined  under  Section  III  of  this  letter.  You  will  be required  to submit  a certification

to  the  servicing  office  every  five  years  that  the  RRA/ERP  is current  and  covers  all  sites  related  to

the  facility.  The  RRA/ERP  documents  themselves  are  not  submitted  to the  Agency.  The

RRA/ERP  must  address  potential  impacts  from  natural  disasters  and  other  emergency  events.  It



20

should  ii'iclude  plans  to address  impacts  of  flash  flooding  in areas  where  severe  drought  or

wildfires  occur.  Technical  assistance  is available  in  preparing  these  documents  at no cost  to you.

51.  Insurance.  -  Insurance  requirements  are  further  outlined  in Section  IV  of  this  letter.  You

will  be required  to maintain  insurance  on the  facility  and  employees  as previously  described  in

this  letter  for  the  life  of  the  loan.

52.  Statutory  and  National  Policy  Requirements  -  As  a recipient  of  Federal  funding,  you  are

required  to comply  with  U.S.  statutory  and  public  policy  requirements,  including  but  not  limited

a. Section  504  of  the  Rehabilitation  Act  of  1973  -  Under  Section  504  of  the  Rehabilitation

Act  of  1973,  as amended  (29  U.S.C.  794),  no handicapped  individual  in the  United  States

sliall,  solely  by  reason  of  their  handicap,  be excluded  from  participation  in,  be denied  tlie

benefits  of,  or  be subjected  to discrimination  under  any  program  or activity  receiving

Agency  financial  assistance.

b.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  -  All  borrowers  are subject  to, and  facilities  must  be operated

in accordance  with,  Title  VI  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  (42  U.S.C.  2000d  

and  7 CFR  1901,  Subpart  E, particularly  as it relates  to conducting  and  reporting  of

compliance  reviews.  Instruments  of  conveyance  for  loans  and/or  grants  subject  to the

Act  must  contain  the  covenant  required  by  Paragraph  1901.202(e)  of  this  Title.

c.  The  Americans  with  Disabilities  Act  (ADA)  of  1990  -  This  Act  (42  U.S.C.  12101  et

) prohibits  discrimination  on the  basis  of  disability  in employment,  State  and  local

government  services,  public  transportation,  public  accommodations,  facilities,  and

telecommunications.

d.  Age  Discrimination  Act  of  1975  -  This  Act  (42  U.S.C.  6101  e  provides  that  no

person  in the  United  States  shall  on  the  basis  of  age,  be excluded  from  participation  in,  be

denied  the  benefits  of,  or  be subjected  to discrimination  under  any  program  or  activity

receiving  Federal  finai'icial  assistance.

e. Limited  English  Proficiency  (LEP)  under  Executive  Order  13166  - LEP  statutes  and

authorities  prohibit  exclusion  from  participation  in,  denial  of  benefits  of,  and

discrimination  under  Federally-assisted  and/or  conducted  programs  on  the  ground  of

race,  color,  or  national  origin.  Title  VI  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  covers  program

access  for  LEP  persons.  LEP  persons  are individuals  who  do not  speak  English  as their

primary  language  and  who  have  a limited  ability  to read,  speak,  write,  or  understand

English.  These  individuals  may  be entitled  to language  assistance,  free  of  charge.  You

must  take  reasonable  steps  to ensure  that  LEP  persons  receive  the  language  assistance

necessary  to have  meaningful  access  to USDA  programs,  services,  and  information  your

organization  provides.  These  protections  are pursuant  to Executive  Order  13166  entitled,

"Improving  Access  to Services  by  Persons  with  Limited  English  Proficiency"  and  further

affirmed  ii'i  the  USDA  Depaitmental  Regulation  4330-005,  "Prohibition  Against  National



21

Origin  Discrimination  Affecting  Persons  with  Limited  English  Proficiency  in Programs

and  Activities  Conducted  by  USDA."

f.  Controlled  Substances  Act  - Even  though  state  law  may  allow  some  activities,  as a

recipient  of  Federal  funding,  you  are subject  to  the  Controlled  Substances  Act.  Specific

questions  about  the  Controlled  Substances  Act  should  be directed  to the  Servicing

Official  who  will  contact  the  Office  of  General  Counsel,  as appropriate

53.  Compliance  Reviews  and  Data  Collection  -  Agency  financial  programs  must  be extended

without  regard  to race,  color,  religion,  sex,  national  origin,  marital  status,  age,  or  physical  or

mental  handicap.  You  must  display  posters  (provided  by  the  Agency)  informing  users  of  these

requirements,  and  the  Agency  will  monitor  your  compliance  with  these  requirements  during

regular  compliance  reviews.

The  Agency  will  conduct  regular  compliance  reviews  of  the  borrower  and  its operation  in

accordance  with  7 CFR  Part  1901,  Subpart  E, and  36 CFR  1191,  Americans  with  Disabilities  Act

(ADA)  Accessibility  Guidelines  for  Buildings  and  Facilities;  Architectural  Barriers  Act  (ABA)

Accessibility  Guidelines.  Compliance  reviews  will  typically  be conducted  in  conjunction  with

the  security  inspections  described  in  this  letter.

If  beneficiaries  (users)  are  required  to complete  an application  or  screening  for  tlie  use of  tlie

facility  or  service  that  you  provide,  you  must  request  and  collect  data  by  race  (American  Indian

or  Alaska  Native,  Asian,  Black  or  African  American,  White);  ethnicity  (Hispanic  or  Latino,  Not

Hispanic  or  Latino);  and  by  sex. The  Agency  will  utilize  this  data  as part  of  the  required

compliance  review.

SECTION  VIII  -  REMEDIES  FOR  NON-COMPLIANCE

Non-compliance  with  the  conditions  in  this  letter  or  requirements  of  your  security  documents

will  be addressed  under  the  provisions  of  Agency  regulations,  statutes,  and  other  applicable

policies.

We  look  forward  to working  with  you  to complete  this  project.  If  you  have  any  questions,  please

contact Elizabeth Ybarra at (505) 761-4963 or by e-mail at elizabeth.ybarra(,usda.zov.

Sincerely,

EL ZABETH

YBARRA

Digitally  signed  by  ELIZABETH  YBARRA

Date:  2024.08.02  5:59:09  -06'00'

Christine  Griego  by  Elizabeth  Ybarra  Acting

Community  Programs,  Program  Director



Attachments:

T or C WSPI-2  Form  RD  1942-46  Letter  of  Intent  to Meet  Conditions

T or C WSPI-2Fotam  RD  1940-lRequest  for  Obligation  of  Funds306(C)

T or C WSPI-2Form  RD  1940-lRequest  for  Obligation  of  FundsLoan

cc:  USDA  - Community  Programs  Director,  Christine  Griego

USDA  - Community  Programs  Interim  Engineer,  Lam  Ho

Angela  Gonzales  -  City  Manager  -  City  of  Truth  or Consequences

Traci  Alvarez  -  Asst.  City  Manager

Wilson  & Company  - Engineer



23

FORMS  and BULLETINS:

Form  AD-3031  "Assurance  Regarding  Felony  Convictions  or  Tax  Delinquent  Status  for
Corporate  Applicants"  -  Item  30

Internal  Revenue  Service  Form  1023,  Appendix  A, "Sample  Conflict  of  Interest  Policy"  - Item

15

Form  RD 440-22,  "Promissory  Note"  -  Item  6

Form  RD 442-2,  "Statement  of  Budget,  Income  and Equity"  -  Items  45 and 46

Form  RD 442-3,  "Balance  Sheet"  -  Item  45

Form  RD 442-7,  "Operating  Budget"  -  Item  20

Form  RD 442-20,  "Right-of-Way  Easement"  -  Item  14

Form  RD 442-21,  "Right-of-Way  Certificate"  -  Item  14

Form  RD 442-22,  "Opinion  of  Counsel  Relative  to Rights-of-Way"  -  Item 14
Form  RD 1927-9,  "Preliminary  Title  Opinion"  -  Item  14

Form  RD 1927-10,  "Final  Title  Opinion"  -  Item  28

Form  RD 1940-1,  "Request  for  Obligation  of  Funds"  -  Pages l and 2

Form  RD 1942-8,  "Resolution  of  Members  or Stockholders"  -  Item  6

Form  RD 1942-46,  "Letter  of  Intent  to Meet  Conditions"  -  Page 2

Form  RD 3550-28,  "Authorization  Agreement  for  Preauthorized  Payments"  -  Items  32 and 33
Form  UCC-1,  "Financing  Statement"  -  Item  6

Form  UCC-lAd,  "UCC  Financing  Statement  Addendum"  -  Item  6

SF 3881,  "ACH  Vendor/Miscellaneous  Payment  Enrollment  Form"  -  Item  24
RUS  Bulletin  1780-7,  "Legal  Services  Agreement"  -  Item  13

RUS  Bulletin  1780-9,  "Water  Users  Agreement"  - Items  15 and 17

RUS  Bulletin  1780-12,  "Water  and Waste  System  Grant  Agreement"  -  Item  6
RUS Bulletin  1780-26,  "Guidance  for  the Use of  EJCDC  Documents  on Water  and Waste

Projects  with  RUS  Financial  Assistance"  -  Items  11 and 12

RUS  Bulletin  1780-27,  "Loan  Resolution  (Public  Bodies)"  -  Item  6

RUS  Bulletin  1780-28,  "Loan  Resolution  Security  Agreement"  -  Item  6



24

Appendix  A

kllSlSi'lRll<!'l'l0NS'l'O  F'ltil.Dl

A.  Reporting  Total  Compensation  of  Recipient  Executives

In  the  rare  instance  in  which  all  of  the  following  apply,  please  contact  your  POB  Specialist  for

language  to include  in the  LOC:

1. The total  Federal  funding  authorized  to date under  this  award  is $30,000  or more;

2. In  the  preceding  fiscal  year,  the  applicant  received-

(A)  80 percent  or  more  of  their  annual  gross  revenues  from  Federal  procurement

contracts  (and  subcontracts)  and  Federal  financial  assistance  subject  to the

Transparency  Act,  as defined  at 2 CFR  170.320  (and  subawards);  and

(B) $25,000,000  or  more  in annual  gross  revenues  from  Federal  procurement
contracts  (and  subcontracts)  and  Federal  financial  assistance  subject  to the

Transparency  Act,  as defined  at 2 CFR  170.320  (and  subawards);  and

3. The  public  does  not  have  access  to information  about  the compensation  of  the  executives

through  periodic  reports  filed  under  section  13(a)  or 15(d)  of  tlie  Securities  Exchange  Act  of

1934  (15  U.S.C.  78m(a),  78o(d))  or  section  6104  of  the  Interiial  Revemie  Code  of  1986.  (To

determine  if  tlie  public  has  access  to  the  compensation  information,  see the  U.S.  Security  and

Exchange  Commission  total  compensation  filings  at

http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.)

B.  Subaward  and  Subrecipients

In  the  rare  instance  in  which  there  is a subrecipient  in  the  project,  please  contact  your  POB

Specialist  for  language  to include  in  the  LOC:

Subrecipient  means  an entity  that:

i. Receives  a subaward  from  the  recipient  under  this  award;  and



25

ii.  Is accountable  to the  recipient  for  the  use of  the  Federal  funds  provided  by  the

subaward.

a. Subaward  means  an award  provided  by  a pass-through  entity  to a subrecipient  for

the  subrecipient  to carry  out  part  of  a Federal  award  received  by  the  pass-through

entity.  It  does  not  include  payments  to a contractor  or  payments  to an individual

that  is a beneficiary  of  a Federal  program.



26



27

Appendix  B

Build  America,  Buy  America  Evidence  Standards

Manufacturers
For  each  item  to which  BABAA  applies  (every  item  permanently  installed  on the  project,  except

for  aggregate  and  aggregate  binding  materials),  a manufacturer's  certification  letter  or  other

document  demonstrating  compliance  is required.  It  must,  at a minimum,  identify  the  item  being

certified  (short  written  description  as well  as part  number,  if  applicable)  and  affirm  that  the  item

complies  with  BABAA.  This  document  must  be signed  by  an authorized  company

representative.

Architects  and  Engineers

Compliance  with  BABAA  will  be spelled  out  in agreements  for  services,  construction  contracts,

and  procurement  contracts.  Generally,  tlie  A/E  contract  should  include,  as a basic  service,

obtaining  and  maintaining  all  BABAA  documentation  (particularly  manufacturers'  certifications)

during  construction,  which  shall  be transferred  to the  Owner  upon  completion  of  the  project.  The

architect  or  engineer  will  need  to certify  to this  action  at the  project's  end.

Resident  Project  Representative  /  Resident  Inspector

As  pait  of  their  duties,  Resident  Project  Representative/Resident  Inspector  should  be instructed

to verify  items  delivered  to the  site  and  installed  are accompanied  by  documentation  of

coi'npliance  with  BABAA.  They  should  photograph  items  as appropriate.  RPR/RI  daily  logs  and

photographs  will  become  part  of  the  construction  record  and  can  be used  as supporting

information  during  audits,  providing  evidence  for  items  that  are buried  or  otherwise  inaccessible.

Contractors

Construction  contract(s)  must  inclride  a requirement  to procure  and  install  only  items  that

comply  with  BABAA  or are subject  to an approved  waiver.  Contractors  must  provide

manufacturers'  certifications  for  all  BABAA  compliant  items  to the  responsible  party  before  a

request  for  reimbursement  to the  Agency  is made.  At  completion,  the  contractor  will  be required

to certify  that  all  items  used  on  the  contract  complied  with  BABAA  and  that  all  manufacturers'

certifications  were  provided.



28

Appendix  B

Build  America,  Buy  America  Evidence  Standards

Ma-nufacturers
For  each  item  to which  BABAA  applies  (every  item  permanently  installed  on the  project,  except

for  aggregate  and  aggregate  binding  materials),  a manufacturer's  certification  letter  or  other

document  demonstrating  compliance  is required.  It  must,  at a minimum,  identify  the  item  being

certified  (short  written  description  as well  as part  number,  if  applicable)  and  affirm  that  the  item

complies  with  BABAA.  Tliis  document  must  be signed  by  an authorized  company

representative.

Architects  and  Engineers

Compliance  witli  BABAA  will  be spelled  out  in agreements  for  services,  construction  contracts,

and  procurement  contracts.  Generally,  the  A/E  contract  should  include,  as a basic  service,

obtaining  and  maintaining  all  BABAA  documentation  (paiticularly  manufacturers'  certifications)

during  construction,  which  shall  be transferred  to the  Owner  upon  completion  of  the  project.  The

architect  or  engineer  will  need  to certify  to this  action  at the  project's  end.

Resident  Project  Representative  /  Resident  Inspector

As  part  of  their  duties,  Resident  Project  Representative/Resident  Inspector  should  be instructed

to verify  items  delivered  to the  site  and  installed  are  accompanied  by  documentation  of

compliance  with  BABAA.  Tl'iey  sliould  photograpli  items  as appropriate.  RPR/RI  daily  logs  and

photographs  will  become  part  of  the  construction  record  and  can  be used  as suppoiting

information  during  audits,  providing  evidence  for  items  that  are  buried  or  otherwise  inaccessible.

Contractors

Construction  contract(s)  must  include  a requirement  to  procure  and  install  only  items  that

comply  with  BABAA  or are  subject  to an approved  waiver.  Contractors  must  provide

manufacturers'  ceitifications  for  all  BABAA  compliant  items  to  the  responsible  party  before  a

request  for  reimbursement  to the  Agency  is made.  At  completion,  the  contractor  will  be required

to certify  that  all  items  used  on  the  contract  complied  with  BABAA  and  that  all  manufacturers'

certifications  were  provided.



USDA
Fomi  RD 1940-1
(Rev.  (}B-10)

REQUEST  FOR  OBLIGATION  OF FuND8 FORM  APPROVE:D
OMB  No.  0670-008?.

INSTRUCTION8-TYPEINCAPITALIZEDELITETYPEIN8PACE8MARKED(  )

Complete  Items  I through  29 and  applicable  Items  30  through  3(.  8ee  FMI.

1. CASE  NUMBER

ST  CO  BORROWER  ID

3 6-026-ff***  014  4

LOAN  NUMBER FISCAL  YEAR

2023

:L BORROWER  NAME

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences

3. NUMBER  NAME  F1ELD8

I (I, 2, or 3 fmn Ilein 2)
4. 8T  ATE  NAME

New  Mexiao

5. COUNTY  NAME

Sierra

GENERAL  BORR)WEfVLOAN  INFORMATION

8. RACE/ETHNIC
CLA881FICAT10N

I _ )q  4  H18PANIC
2-BLM,K  6A11:T

13-AIIAIII

7. TYPE  OF APPLICANT
B - OR(1. CP FARMER8

4:q'Tg,,p  7-NONPROFIT-8ECiULAR
8 - NONPROFIT lAIT+l  BA8EDa-cotrpoMTloN

a _ PUBLIC BODY 9 - INDIAN TRIB!_
r 1aPllBLIOCOLtEGEluNlVER81T/, 5 A8SO0  0F

4 I puuvu=qs  tr-oTHu

B. COLLATERAL  CODE
I-  RIJL  ESTATE 4 - MA(iHINERY ONLY
BE(,11REO 6-LIVE8TOCKONLY
2.REAtESTATffi  BCRO1'30NLY
ANCH.HATTEL  7-8ECLIRED8Y

7 I a 'gAgr !iW a. t?8Nat%'r

9. EMPLOYEE
RELAT10N8H1P  CODE

1 4MPLOYEe
2-MEMBHR  OF FAMILY

I:: ::::.R!iLA'nvt
'  oa sEx cooE 4"OpARMGAN.'y uM:'LE OWNEO

6 14,:::, :,OR:A,NFE:A%:LEOW?:ED
11. MARITAL  STATUS

I 2'-::A:EIII  ""i::0'::W%l'E[ff"
12.  VETERAN  CODE

il:YE8
13. CREDIT  REPORT

21 2 ,;t3ti
14.  DIRECT  PAYMENT

2 I [Sea FMI)

16.  TVPE  OF PAYMENT

hMONTHLY  3-eEMMNNUALLY

21 2-ANNUALLY 4-QUARTERUV

16.  FEE  1N8PECT10N

1 -YEs

212 - NO !
I

17.  COMMUNITY  812 €

112-_'loOv(150ROOIORxL!ioaB ipsop"a O:FHLY?t) D
' 18.-1 ISm OF FuND8  CODE

: (See FMI)

COMPLETE  FOR  OBLIGATION  OF PUND8

19.  TYPE  OF
ASSISTANCE

o 61 I (See FMI)

20. PURPOSE  CODE

-l

21. 80URCE  OF FUND8

t

22. TYPE  OF ACTION

z -osuounoN  oNLY

1:::::;:l%l4;:ct4<HHu;
23. TYPE  OF 8UBM18810N

i-lNITIAt

2 1 29UBSEQU!NT

24. AMOUNT  OF LOAN

!?2,673,000.00

26. AMOUNT  OF GRANT

26. AMOUNT  OF
IfWIEDlATE  ADV  ANCE

27. DATE  OF
APPROVAL

MO  DAY  YR

28. INTERE3T  RATE

2.1250  %

2E1. REPAYMENT  TERMS

ao I
COMPLETEFORCOMMUNITYPROGFIAW  ANDGERTAINMuLTIPLE-FAMILYHOUSINGLOANS

30. PROFITTYPE

I i-FULLPROFIT 2:l:LlloMlilTpEFlDo";ITOFI" Ia$l;0-a%":;l%l,,aa".,!!l."$....s%a,,,,''3:a"<".::l,:j..l)"'Hla0Am,la%:11,'X'r#.l,,%,'i'

;..l.:.

!aj !
1; -% i

J
:l

l-l-_ll
J3+
kai'l'F
i1}a)

(la,:),yl"01}%,,:,

'!";""'l!Mo

j%lA,:191:1,

!"m)"il=,,ri%ll%'y,s0,,,,10,(1,al,,5:,'l\l'a""ql%:::o,'.+..l">s-%<'!Iy:"l)%:'JL'v:':':J_,%+J>>_.':)'11}y.sylaa'7'-.,_,1"'51(s,!"',1
COMP!ETE  FOR  EM LOANS  ONLY COMPLETE  FOR  CREDIT  SALE-ASSUMPTION

31. DISASTER  DESIGNATION  NUMBER

I ISea FMII
32. TYPE  OF SALE

I iCREOITSAljONLY 3:(::I':'T';:V::uB8EOuEN'TLOAN  ';a'B"8"E"0'll'EoNT'L"O'A"N
FINANCE  OFFICE  USE ONLY CONIPLETE  FOR  FP LOAN8  0NLY

33. OBllGATION  DATE

MO DA YR

34. BEG1NNING  FARMER/RANCHER

l(See FMI)

grha dacislorr conhlned ahriva in iiiAv prni  iysims iii denial iiiiiciiou  orcwcallmlnn d  USDA nssl.imucii, >viu uiny npyal ihLr rbt4.ylwtrnd have n hearrna oi' yoii may reqirerla i'gvletv lit ligii njn /iitirini:.
Pletue u.ig llie /lll'lll  ivc Iiave incliidedAr Ihis Innlnsq.

PosiUon 2

ORIG}NAL  - Borrower's  Case  Folder COPY  "l - Flnance  Offlco COPY  2 - Appllcant/Lender  COPY  3 - State  Office

xccrs*=ginsrepnprrnvoihnsr/irciimzcioliggs.mingem.ymnyuotcorithiciorspmhoi:mutnparswiznmi'equrieauiras)ximroncvner:r=iHiilpnnmnnnmiesurirraHhynvnrmounemumwnibai:  rhevnrm
OMH CmHlDl 11mllllerpl' lhl! I$l'mnllDll mlladlDll Is 057(k0062. Tlld llllli luqllllilO  CDln)llela 11119 ilfil'lllnllOn cdlemlllll U Jmnirmtt tti nvaray 15 Illlllilte.i/l?l'rt'4iollSe. illdlii/fil,g Llle lillle/OrrvVialTitlg nii{nrclliiur.
Smlalllng iiflXllllg kttm .iOllt.  got/iiiriiig nlllllllaLll(mlllllg fllg (I(II(l lleeaea, mldmlllp{El(11g rindniii{givfng 1118 €OlleCllOnOlilzlnlnlrOll.



CERTIFICATION  APPROV  AL

For  Al)  Fariners  Prograins EM,  OL,  FO,  and SW Loans

Tliis  loiui  is approved  stibject  to tlie itvailability  of  ftinds.  If  t)iis loan does  not  close  for  any reason  witliin  90 days rroin tlie

date  of  ap)iroval  on tliis  docuinent,  tlie approval  official  will  request  tipdated  eligibility  information.  Tlie  tindersigned  loan

applicant  agrees  that  the approval  official  will  liave  14 working  days  to review  any updated  infori'nation  prior  to submittino

this  docuinent  for  obligatioii  of  funds.  {f  tliere  have  been significant  clianges  tliat  inay  affect  eligibility,  a decision  as to

eligibility  and feasibility will be inade uiitliin 30 days from tlie time tlie aliplicant  provides tlie necessary information.

1€ this is a loan approval for wliich a lien and/or title searcli is i'iecessaiy, tlie tindersigncd aliplicant agrees tliat tlie
15-working-da)i  loan closing  reqtiirei'ncnt  inay  be exceeded  for  the )iurposes  of  tlie applicant's  legal  representative

coinpleting title work and coinlileting loan closing.

35. COM(vlENTS  AND  REQUlREfvlENTS  OF  CERTII:YING  OFFIC)AL

Financial  assistance  is  subject  to:  1)  Availability  of  funds  2)Let.ter  of

Conditions  dated  09/27/2023,  30 Letter  of  Intent  to  meet  Conditions  dated
09/27/2023,  4)Closing  Instruction  issued  by the  US of  General  Counsel,  and 5)This
project  is  subject  to  BABAA  requirements.

36. [ HEREB'i'  CERI"IFY  tliat  l ain tinable  to obtain  stifficient  credit  elsewliere  to finance  iny  actual  needs at reasonable  rates

aim terins, taking into consideration prevailing private and coo1ierative rates and terins in or near iny coi'i'imunity for loans
for siinilar ptiilioses and periods of tiine. I agree to tise tlie stiin s1iecified lierein, stibject to ai'id ii'i accordance with
regulations applicable to tlie type of assistance indicated above, and request payment of sticl'i stiin.  I agree to reliort  to
USDA  any material  adverse  changes,  financial  or  otlierwise,  tliat  occur  prior  to loan closing.  I certify  tliat  no )iart  of  tlie  suin

specified  lierein  lias been received.  I l'iave reviewed  tlie loan  approval  reqtiireinents  and conmients  associated  with  this  loan

request  and agree  to comply  witli  tliese  provisions.

(For FP loans at cligible  terms only)  It' tliis loiin  is approved,  [ elect  tlie interest  rate to lie cliiu'gtid  on my loan to be the lower  of" llie

interest  rate in effect  at llie tiiue oF loan iipproval  or loan closing.  Ital clieck  "NO".  tlic imcrcst  rate cliiirged  on iny

loiin will be llie rate specified in Itein 28 olatl'iis laorin. YES  NO

WARNING: Whoever,  In any  matter  within  the  jurisdiction  of  any  department  or  agency  of  the  United  States

knowingly  and  willfully  falsifies,  conceals  or  covers  up by any  trick,  scheme,  or  device  a material

fact,  or  makes  any  false,  fictitious  or  fraudulent  statements  or  representations,  or  makes  or  uses

any false writing or document knowing tl36'/same to contain any false, fictitious  or fraudulent

Gonzales,  City  Manager

(Sigrurlure  ofilpplicarit)

Ang

Deaite  September  28

Date 20  -

(Signalure  of  Co-r=lplilicam)

37. I HEREBY CERT[F'i' tliat all of tlie committee and administrative detertninations and ceitifications required by regulations
prereqtiisite  to providing  assistance  of  tlie  type  indicated  above  have  been  inade  and that  evidence  tliereof  is in the docket,  and

that  all reqtiireinents  of  peitinent  regulations  liave  been complied  witli.Iliereby  approve  the above-described  assistance  in the

an'iount  set fort)i  above,  and by tliis  doctiment,  stibject  to tlie  availability  of  latinds, the Government  agrees  to advance  such

ainount  to tlie applicant  for  the ptirpose  of  and stibject  to tlie  availability  prescribed  by regulations  applicable  to this  type  of

assistance.

(Signature  of  Approriing  Ol'j7cral)

arylied or Printed Naine: Christine  Griego

Date  Approved: 'f  i(IB; Communl L'j  Programs  Director

38- TOTHEAPPLICANT:ASOftb!Sdate  ,thisisnoticethatyourapplicationforfinancialassistai'ice

from tlie USDA lias been apliroved,  as indicated above, stibject to tlie availability of rtinds and otlier conditions required by
tlie  USDA.  If  you  liave  any qtiestions  contact  tlie  appropriate  USDA  Servicing  Office.



u8DA

Form  RD 1940-1

(Rev.  08-'10)
REQUEST  FOR OBLIGATION  OF FUNDS FORM  APPROVED

OMB  No.  057a-0062

lflhe declsvm conralmdabuve 111 Ihu pini  rendrs brdenkrl. reducllmi nrcmwgllailvn ojUSDA auurnnce, yoii mayaplsal  rhls dedslrui oud irnva n hearrngor you nmy n!qllejl a iwmii'  In IMn rfnham'ing.
Phrma ii.ig ihe/oiyu ipg haiia LirclirdedjoWds prrprme.

Pogltlon  2

ORIGINAL  - Borrower's  Case  Folder COPY  1 - Finance  Office COPY  2 - ApplicantlLender  €:OPY  3 - State  Offlce

AcwdmgrorliaPalienvm*RediaNonAalrfj995.wagewymayrmroondircrm'aprmsrii:nmlapar'sonlaw>mqrrhtdroreslmitoncollamkniqln/mvnmknumlesshdlsprnyavnlldOhflltvirhvJnmuber.  firamlkl
OMJIctndmlmunberJnNhlslqfmmmkmwllqmlwls0570-MI62.  TheNmarequiradiocnmpleierlrlsldonmNonrnllaaikmlsesdmamdhasmgal5mlnmesparnisponse.mcliidingrhellmejori'eviewlnglrnh'uml>s.
Senlulrlllg exlSllllg dnla 3011reel. ffllllal'h% mldlllnlrNnllllllg 1110 darn Neadtii allkiciilllpTallllg tmll l'eVlmlllg Ihe ur:dlecllOlI D%rmnllDll.



CERTIF  ICATION  APPROV  AL

For  All  Fanners  Prograins EM,  OL,  FO, and SW Loans

Tliis  loan is approved  stibject  to tlie availability  of  ftinds.  If  this loan does not close for any reason witliin  90 days froin  the
date of approval on tliis doctiment,  tlie a1:iproval official will reqtiest updated eligibility inforination. Tlie undersigned loan
applicant  agrees tliat  the approval  official  ivill  liave l 4 working  days to review  any tipdated  information  prior  to submitting
this doctiment  for  obligation  of  funds. If  there have been significant  c)ianges  tliat  inay affect  eligibility,  a decision  as to
eligibility  and feasibility  will  be made witliin  30 days from  tlie time  tlie applicant  provides  tlie  necessary  infonnation.

lf  tliis  is a loan approva!  for  wl'iicli  a lien  and/or  title  searc)i is necessary,  tlie tindersigned  applicattt  agrees that the
15-working-day  10all closing  reqtiireinent  ma:)/ be exceeded  far tile ptlrpOSeS Of the applicant's  legal representatlve
completing  title  work  and completing  loan closing.

35. COMMENTS  AND  REQUIREMENTS  OF CERTIFYING  OFFICIAL

Financial  assistance  is  subject  to:  1)  Availability  of  funds  2)Letter  of
Conditions  dated  09/27/2023,  30 Letter  of Intent  to  meet Conditions  dated
09/27/2023,  4)Closing  Instruction  issued  by the US of General  Counsel,  and 5)This
project  is  subject  to  BABAA  requirements.

36. l HEREBY  CERTtFY  tllat  [aln  tinalile  to Obtaill  StlffiCiellt  Credit  elsewhere  tO finance  nl)l ElCttlFll IleedS at reasonable  rates
and terins,  taking  into consideration  prevailing  private  and cooperative  rates aim tern'is in or near my coimnunity  for loans
for similar ptirposes and 1ieriods of tiine. Iagree to use tlie sum specified lierein, subject to imd in accordance witb
regulations  applicable  to tlie type of  assistance  indicated  above,  and request  payinent  of  sucli sutn.l  agree to repor(  (o
USDA  aiiy  material  adverse clianges,  financial  or otlierwise,  tliat  occtir  prior  to loan closing.  Icertify  tliat  no part of  tbe sum
s)iecified )iei'ein lias been received. I liavc reviewed tlie loan a1iproval  reqtiireinents aim cominents associated witli this loan
reqticst  and agree to coinply  witl'i  tl'iese provisions.

(For FP loans at eligible lcrins only) Illliis  loan is apliroved, I clect ilie intei'est rate to be cliarged on iny lonn to be the lower or  tlic
intercst rate in eft'ect at tlic lime or loan fit)l)I'OVlll Or loan closing. If  I clicck  "NO".  tlie interest i'atc charged on my
lonn will  be tlie rtitc spcciJied in ltciii  28 ollliis  iorin.  YES NO

WARNING:

Date  September  28

Whoever,  in any matter  within  the  jurisdk,tion  of  any  department  or agency  of  the  United  States
knowingly  and willfully  falsifies,  conceals  or covers  up by any  trick,  scheme,  or device  a material
fact,  or makes  any  false,  fictltlous  or  fraudulent  statements  or representations,  or makes  or uses
any false  writing  or  document  knowi  i, same  to contain  any false,  fictitious  or  fraudulent
statement  or entry,  shall  be fined  ui  this  jitle  or  impris  more  than  five  years,  or  both- ,-/  ,

28 20 23 ( (/. r("l  f)7Z
An  e Go-nza-les,  City  Manager

:Signahwe of  Applicant)

Date 'irl  

(Signature  qf  Co-Aplilicanl)

37. lt-IEREBY  CERTiFY  tliat  all of  tlie committee  aim adininistrative  deterininatioi'is  and ceitifications  required by REGULATIONS
prerequisite  to providing  assistance  of  tlie  type indicated  above have been made and that evidence  tliereofis  in the docket,  and
tliat  all requirements  of  pertinent  regulations  have been complied  with.lhereby  approve  the above-described  assistance  in the
amount  set fortli  above, and by tliis  document,  subject  to the availability  of  funds,  tlie Governi'nent  agrees to advance  stich
amount  to tlie applicant  for  the ptirpose  of  and subject  to tlie availability  prescribed  by regtilations  applicable  to this type of
assistance.

(Signatmae of  ilpprosiing  Official)

Typed  or Printed  Name:  Christine  Griego

Date  Approved: ap i(l(;; Cornmurut'y' ProgTam D.xrector

38. TO THE  APPL[CANT:  As of  this date  , tliis  is notice that  yotir  application  for  financial  assistance
from  tlie USDA  has been approvcd,  as indicated  above,  subject  to tlie ayailability  of  funds  and otlier  conditions  required  by
the USDA.  If  yoti  have ai'iy  questions  contact  the appropriate  USDA  Servicing  Office.



Form RD 1942-46

(Rev. 6-10)

%sirron  3

tJNlTED ST ATES DEPART'MEN'r OF AGRICUITURE
RURAL DEVELOPMEN'['

FORM  APPROVED

OMB  N0.  0575-0015

OMB  N0.  0570-0062

LETTER  OF  INTENT  TO  MEET  CONDiTIONS

Date  09-27-2023

TO: United  States Department  of  Agriculttire

Rural  Development

(Naine  of  USDA  Agency)

100  Sun  Avenue  NE Suite  130
Albuquerque,  NM 87109

(USDA  Agency  (Xfice  Address)

We liave  reviewed  and tinderstand  tlie coimitions set fortli  in yotir  letter  dated 09-27-2023  , It is our intent to mect all of

tl'ieinnotlatertlian  09-27-2024

BY. (,  o?j7dso;[lon
Angie  nzales,  City  Manager

(Title)

Accoirlrrig /O rhe Papei'ivork Reductron Acr of 19')5. an agenc3i may nor conduct or sponsor. cmd a per:sons is nor reqrriretl ro respond ro (l collecuon of irfor'marronurdess ii dislila)is a xialid Oi'vfB coritrol number. The sialid OMB conrrol munber for  Ms inlor'matrori collection is 0575-1)015 and 0570-0062. T/J(! rrme r'eqrrired rocompletetlirshfirmariorico(lecrronisesirmaietNoaveiaagelliourperrcsponse.
 inchrdmgiJietrmeforrevrewrriginstrucrions.searchinge.sistrngdamsrurrces.gmliering arid mamraining rhe dma. needed. and complerrng arid revresvhig rlie collecrron of  mlor'mmron.

Forin  RD 1942-46  (Rev.  6QlO)



USDA
b United  States  Department  of  Agriculture

Rural Development September  27,  2023

New  Mexico

State  Office

One  Sun  Plaza

100  Sun  Ave  NE

Suite  130

Albuquerque,  NM

87109

City  of  Truth  or Consequences

Amanda  Forrister,  Mayor

505 Sims  Street

Truth  or Consequences,  NM  87901

SUBJECT:  Letter  of  Conditions

Project  Name:  Water  System  Performance  Improvements  - 2

CFDANUMBER:  }0.770-
Voice  (505)  761-4950

Fax  (855)  543-9499
Water  and  Waste  Disposal  Loans  and  Grants

(Section  306C)

Agency  Loan:

Agency  Grant:

$2,673,000

$1,652,000.01-  Section  306(C),  Colonias

Dear  Mayor  Forrister:

This  letter  establishes  conditions  which  must  be understood  and agreed  to by  you  before

further  consideration  may  be given  to your  application.  The  loan  and grant  will  be

administered  on behalf  of  the Rural  Utilities  Service  (RUS)  by the State  and  Area  staff

of  USDA  Rural  Development  (RD),  both  of  which  are referred  to throughout  this  letter

as the  Agency.  Any  changes  in project  cost,  source  of  funds,  scope  of  project,  or any

other  significant  changes  in the project  or applicant  must  be reported  to and concurred

with  by  the  Agency  by  written  amendment  to this  letter.  This  includes  any  significant

changes  in the  Applicant's  financial  condition,  operation,  organizational  structure  or

executive  leadership.  Any  changes  made  without  Agency  concurrence  shall  be cause  for

discontinuing  processing  of  the application.

This  letter  does  not  constitute  loan  and  grant  approval,  nor  does  it ensure  that  funds  are

or will  be available  for  the project.  The  funding  is being  processed  on the  basis  of  a loan

not  to exceed  $2,673,000  and a grant  not  to exceed  $1,652,000.  The  loan  and  grant  will

be considered  approved  on the date  Form  RD  1940-1,  "Request  for  Obligation  of  Funds"

is signed  by the Agency  approval  official.

The  applicant  will  ensure  projects  are completed  in a timely,  efficient,  and  economical

manner.  You  must  meet  all  conditions  set forth  under  Section  III  -  Requirements  Prior

to Advertising  for  Bids  within  l year  of  this  letter.  If  you  do not  meet  the conditions  of

this  letter,  the  Agency  reserves  the  right  to withdraw  Agency  funding.

USDA  is an equal  opporiunity  provider,  employer,  and Lender.

To file a program  complaint  of discrimination,  complete  the USDA  Program  DiscriminaUon  Complaint  Form,  AD-3027,  found  online  at
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaintfilingcust.html,  and at any uSDA  office  or write  aletter  addressed  to IJSDA  and provide  in the letker  all of
the information  requested  in the form.  To request  a copy  of the complaint  form,  call (866)  632-9992.  Submit  your  completed  form  or letter  to
USDA  by: mail at u.s.  Department  of Agriculture,  Office  of the Secretary  for  Civil  Rights,  1400  Independence  Avenue,  S.W.,  Washington.  o.c.
20250-94'lO,  by fax (202)  690-7442  or email  at program.intake@usda.gov.



2

If  you  agree  to meet  the  conditions  set  forth  in this  letter  and  desire  further  consideration  be

given  to your  application,  please  complete  and  return  the  following  forms  within  I days:

Form  RD  1942-46,  "Letter  of  Intent  to Meet  Conditions"

Form  RD  1940-1,  "Request  for  Obligation  of  Funds"

All  parties  may  access  information  and  regulations  referenced  in this  letter  at our  website  located

at: Water  and Environmental  Proqrams  I Rural Development  (usda.qov)

The  conditions  are as follows:

SECTION  I - PROJECT  SCOPE

1.  Project  Description  -  Funds  will  be used  to rehabilitate  the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences'

water  distribution  system  by  replacing  roughly  13,983  linear  feet  of  existing  water  lines  with

new  and  larger  diameter  sized  pipe  as well  as the  installation  of  new  meter  cans  and  water

service  lines.

Facilities  will  be designed  and  constructed  in accordance  with  sound  engineering  practices  and

must  meet  the  requirements  of  Federal,  State,  and  local  agencies.  The  proposed  facility  design

must  be based  on  the  Preliminary  Engineering  Report  (PER),  prepared  by  Wilson  &  Company,

Engineers  &  Architects,  Inc.  amended  August  16,  2023,  as concurred  with  by  the  Agency.

2. Project  Funding  -  The  Agency  is offering  the  following  funding  for  your  project:

Agency  Loan  -

Agency  Grant  -

$ 2,673,000
$1,652,891.01

TOT  AL  PROJECT  COST  - $ 4,325,891.01

Any  changes  in funding  sources  following  obligation  of  Agency  funds  must  be reported  to the

processing  official.  Prior  to loan  closing,  any  increase  in non-Agency  funding  will  be applied

first  as a reduction  to Agency  grant  funds,  up  to  the  total  amount  of  the  grant,  and  then  as a

reduction  to  Agency  loan  funds.

The  applicant  must  certify  that  they  have  exhausted  all  other  funding  avenues  and  have  no

pending  funding  considerations  from  any  other  sources.  Further,  the  applicant  must  certify  that

they  do  not  intend  to apply  anywhere  else  for  funding  for  this  project.  If,  after  obligation  of

Agency  funds,  other  funding  becomes  available,  the  Agency  reserves  the  right  to deobligate  any

and  all  funding  for  this  project  and  to re-underwrite.  This  may  result  in  the  offering  of  a

different  funding  package  to for  this  project.

Prior  to  advertisement  for  construction  bids,  you  must  provide  evidence  of  applicant

contributions  and  other  funding  sources.  This  evidence  should  include  a copy  of  the  commitment



3

letter.  Agency  funds  will  not  be used  to pre-finance  funds  committed  to the  project  from  other

sources.

3. Proiect  Budget  -  Funding  from all sources has been budgeted for the estimated expenditures
as follows:

Proiect  Costs:

Development

Contingency

GRT  -  Development

Engineering  Fees

Includes:

Engineering  Admin.

Preliminary  Engineering  Report/

Environmental  Report

Design

GRT  - Engineering

Interest  -  Pre-Dev./Interim

Legal  Fees  - Local  Attorney

TOTAL

Total  Budgeted:

$2,609,441
$272,084.01
$237,297
$1,807,466

$186,000
$60,000

$759,473
$81,993

$108,224
$11,379

$4,325,891.01

Project  feasibility  and  funding  will  be reassessed  if  there  is a significant  change  in project  costs

after  bids  are received.  Obligated  loan  and/or  grant  funds  not  needed  to complete  the  proposed

project  will  be deobligated.  Any  reduction  will  be applied  to  Agency  grant  funds  first.  If  actual

project  costs  exceed  the  project  cost  estimates,  an additional  contribution  by  the  Owner  may  be

necessary.  An  "Amended  Letter  of  Conditions"  will  be issued  for  any  changes  to the  total

project  budget.

4. Project  Timeline  -  To  ensure  that  the  project  proceeds  in a timely  manner,  key  processing

milestones  have  been  established  in accordance  with  the  PER  or  other  Agency  approved

documentation.  Proiects  should  be completed  and Agency  funds  fully  disbursed  within
three  years  of  obligation.  By  agreeing  to the  terms  herein,  you  agree  to comply  with  the

milestones  identified  below.  If,  for  any  reason,  one  or  more  of  the  milestones  cannot  be met,  you

must  notify  the Agency  in writing  at least  30 days  prior  to the  referenced  date.  Should  your  final

completion  date  become  more  than  three  years  after  obligation  the  written  request  will  follow  the

procedures  outlined  in Section  VI  of  this  letter,  including  the  submission  of  not  less  than  90 days

prior  to  the benchmark.  The  correspondence  must  contain  a valid  explanation  as to why  the

milestone  cannot  be met  at+d include  a proposed  revised  project  completion  schedule.  If  the

Agency  agrees  to the  modification,  a written  confirmation  will  be issued.  The  Agency  reserves

the  right  to de-obligate  loan  and/or  grant  funds,  or  take  other  appropriate  action,  if  the

established  or  amended  deadlines  are  not  met.

Milestone



4

Plans  &  Specifications,  and  Design  Complete

Initial  Advertisement  for  Bids

Award  Contract(s)/Initiate  Construction

Substantial  Completion

Final  Completion

SECTION  II  -  RATES  &  TERMS

11/2/2024

1/01/2025

3/3/2025

11 /28/2025

12 /31  /2025

5. Interest  Rates  and  Loan  Terms  -  The  interest  rate  will  be the  lower  of  the  rate  in effect  at

the  time  of  loan  approval  or  the  time  of  loan  closing,  unless  you  request  otherwise.  Should  the

interest  rate  be reduced,  the  payment  will  be recalculated  to the  lower  amount.  The  payment  due

date  will  be established  as the  day  that  the  loan  closes.

Your  loan  will  be scheduled  for  repayment  over  a period  of  40  years.  Payments  will  be equal

monthly  amortized  installments,  beginning  one  month  after  closing.  For  planning  purposes,  use a

2.125%  interest  which  provides  for  a monthly  payment  of  $8,287.  The  precise  payment  amount

will  be based  on  the  interest  rate  at which  the  loan  is closed  and  may  be different  than  the  one

above.

6.  -  The  loan  will  be secured  by  a Revenue  bond  with  first  lien  position  in the  amount

of  $2,673,000.  The  bond  will  be fully  registered  as to both  principal  and  interest  in the  name  of

the  "United  States  of  America,  Acting  through  the  United  States  Department  of  Agriculture."

Bond  Counsel  will  be utilized  in preparation  of  these  documents.

The  bond  instrument  and  any  ordinance  or  resolution  relating  thereto  must  not  contain  any

provision  in conflict  with  the  Agency  Loan  Resolution,  applicable  regulations,  or  associated

laws.  There  must  be no defeasance  or  refinancing  clause  in conflict  with  the  graduation

requirements  of  7 u.s.c.  1983.

Additional  security  requirements  are contained  in RUS  Bulletin  1780-27,  "Loan  Resolution

(Public  Bodies)  and  RUS  Bulletin  1780-12,  "Water  and  Waste  System  Grant  Agreement".  A

draft  of  all  security  instruments,  including  draft  bond  resolution,  must  be reviewed,  and

concurred  in by  the  Agency  prior  to advertising  for  bids.  Bond/loan  resolutions  must  be duly

adopted  and  executed  prior  to loan  closing.

The  Grant  Agreement  will  be executed  prior  to the  first  disbursement  of  grant  funds.  The

grantee  understands  that  any  property  acquired  or improved  with  Federal  grant  funds  may  have

use and  disposition  conditions  which  apply  to  the  property  as provided  by  2 CFR  part  200  in

effect  at this  time  and  as may  be subsequently  modified.  The  grantee  understands  that  any  sale

or  transfer  of  property  is subject  to the  interest  of  the  United  States  Government  in the  market

value  in proportion  to its participation  the  project.

7.  -  Reserves  must  be properly  budgeted  and  set  aside  to maintain  the  financial

viability  and  sustainability  of  any  operation.  Reserves  are important  to fund  unanticipated



5

emergency  repairs,  to assist  with  debt  service  should  the  need  arise,  and  for  the  replacement  of

assets  which  have  a useful  life  less  than  the  repayment  period  of  the  loan.  The  following

reserves  are  required  to be established  as a condition  of  this  loan:

a. Debt  Service  Reserve  -  As  a part  of  this  Agency  loan  proposal,  you  must  establish  a

debt  service  reserve  fund  equal  to at least  one  annual  loan  installment  that  accumulates  at

the  rate  of  10%  of  one  annual  payment  per  year  for  ten  years  or  until  the  balance  is equal

to one  annual  loan  payment.  For  planning  purposes,  10%  of  the  proposed  loan

installment  would  equal  $832 per  month;  this  amount  should  be deposited  monthly  until  a

total  of  $99,890  has accumulated.  Prior  written  concurrence  from  the  Agency  must  be

obtained  before  funds  may  be withdrawn  from  this  account  during  the  life  of  the  loan.

When  funds  are  withdrawn  during  the  life  of  the  loan,  deposits  will  continue  as

designated  above  until  the  fully  funded  amount  is reached.

b.  Short-Lived  Asset  Reserve  -  In addition  to the  debt  service  reserve  fund,  you  must

establish  a short-lived  asset  reserve  fund.  Based  on the  PER,  you  must  deposit  at least

$ into  the  short-lived  asset  reserve  fund  annually  for  the  life  of  the  loan  to pay  for  repairs

and/or  replacement  of  major  systei'n  assets.  It is your  responsibility  to assess  your

facility's  short-lived  asset  needs  on a regular  basis  and  adjust  the  amount  deposited  to

meet  those  needs.

SECTION  III  -REQUIREMENTS  PRIOR  TO  AJ)VERTISING  FOR  BIDS

8. Organization  -  The  Bond  Counsel  transcripts  of  proceedings  must  show  that  your

organization  is a duly  incorporated  public  body  and  has continued  legal  existence.  Your

organization  must  have  the  authority  to own,  construct,  operate,  and  maintain  the  proposed

facility,  as well  as for  borrowing  money,  pledging  security  and  raising  revenues.

9. Suspension  and  Debarment  Screening  -  You  will  be asked  to provide  information  on  the

principals  of  your  organization.  Agency  staff  must  conduct  screening  for  suspension  and

debarment  of  the  entity,  as well  as its principals  through  the  Do  Not  Pay  Portal.

Principal  -

i.  An  officer,  director,  owner,  partner,  principal  investigator,  or  other  person

within  a participant  with  management  or supervisory  responsibilities  related  to

a covered  transaction;  or

ii.  A consultant  or  other  person,  whether  or  not  employed  by  the  participant  or

paid  with  federal  funds,  who  -

1.  Is in a position  to handle  federal  funds;

2.  Is in a position  to influence  or  control  the  use of  those  funds;  or,

3.  Occupies  a technical  or  professional  position  capable  of  substantially

influencing  the  development  or  outcome  of  an activity  required  to

perforin  the  covered  transaction.  (2 CFR  §180.995)



6

10.  Environmental  Requirements  -  At  the  conclusion  of  the  proposal's  environmental  review

process,  specific  action(s)  were  determined  necessary  to avoid  or  minimize  adverse

environmental  impacts.

The  project,  as proposed,  has been  evaluated  to be consistent  with  the  National  Environmental

Policy  Act.  Other  Federal,  State,  tribal,  and  local  laws,  regulations  and/or  permits  may  apply  or

be required.  If  the  project  or  any  project  element  deviates  from  or is modified  from  the  originally

approved  project,  additional  environmental  review  may  be required.

11.  Engineering  Services  -  You  have  been  required  to complete  an Agreement  for

Engineering  Services,  which  should  consist  of  the  Engineers  Joint  Contract  Documents

Committee  (EJCDC)  documents  as indicated  in RUS  Bulletin  1780-26,  "Guidance  for  the  Use  of

EJCDC  Documents  on Water  and  Waste  Projects  with  RUS  Financial  Assistance,"  or  other

approved  form  of  agreement.  The  Agency  will  provide  concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids

and  must  approve  any  modifications  to this  agreement.

12.  Contract  Documents,  Final  Plans,  and  Specifications-  All  development  will  be completed

by  contract  in accordance  with  applicable  provisions  of  RUS  Instruction  1780,  Subpart  C -

Planning,  Designing,  Bidding,  Contracting,  Constructing  and  Inspections,  (copy  available  upon

request),  and  in compliance  with  all  statutory  requirements.  You  are  responsible  to share  this

with  your  engineer  before  pre-design.

a. The  plans  and  specifications  and  all  proposals  required  by law  must  be approved  by

b.  In preparing  final  design  and  providing  service  to the  planned  project  area,  you  and  your

engineer  will  comply  with  all  zoning  and  planning  requirements  of  the  appropriate

governing  bodies  where  service  is to be provided.

c.  The  Agency  will  need  to concur  in the  plans  and  specifications  prior  to advertising  for

bids.  The  Agency  may  require  an updated  cost  estimate  if  a significant  amount  of  time

has  elapsed  between  the  original  project  cost  estimate  and  advertising  for  bids.

d.  The  use of  any  procurement  method  other  than  competitive  sealed  bids  must  be requested

in writing  and  approved  by  the  Agency.

e.  The  contract  documents  must  consist  of  the  EJCDC  construction  contract  documents  as

indicated  in RUS  Bulletin  1780-26  or  other  Agency-approved  forms  of  agreement.

13.  Build  America,  Buy  America  (BABAA)  Requirements  - Recipients  of  an award  of

Federal  financial  assistance  from  a program  for  infrastructure  are hereby  notified  that  none  of

the  funds  provided  under  this  award  may  be used  for  a project  for  infrastructure  unless:

a.  all  iron  and  steel  permanently  installed  in the  project  are produced  in  the  United  States-

this  means  all  manufacturing  processes,  from  the  initial  melting  stage  through  the

application  of  coatings,  occurred  in the  United  States;



7

b. all  manufactured  products  permanently  installed  in the  project  are produced  in the  United

States-this  means  the  manufactured  product  was  manufactured  in the  United  States;  and

the  cost  of  the  components  of  the  manufactured  product  that  are mined,  produced,  or

manufactured  in the  United  States  is greater  than  55 percent  of  the  total  cost  of  all

components  of  the  manufactured  product,  unless  another  standard  for  determining  the

minimum  amount  of  domestic  content  of  the  manufactured  product  has been  established

under  applicable  law  or  regulation;  and

c.  all  construction  materials  permanently  installed  are manufactured  in the  United  States-

this  means  that  all  manufacturing  processes  for  the  construction  material  occurred  in the

United  States.

The  BABAA  requirement  applies  to the  entirety  of  an infrastructure  project  even  if  only  a

portion  of  the  project  is funded  by  Federal  funds.

The  Buy  America  preference  only  applies  to articles,  materials,  and  supplies  that  are consumed

in,  incorporated  into,  or  affixed  to an infrastructure  project.  As  such,  it does  not  apply  to tools,

equipment,  and  supplies,  such  as temporary  scaffolding,  brought  to the  construction  site  and

removed  at or  before  the  completion  of  the  infrastructure  project.  Nor  does  a Buy  America

preference  apply  to equipment  and  furnishings,  such  as movable  chairs,  desks,  and  portable

computer  equipment,  that  are  used  at or  within  the  finished  infrastructure  project  but  are not  an

integral  part  of  the  structure  or  permanently  affixed  to the  infrastructure  project.

Waivers

When  necessary,  recipients  may  apply  for,  and  the  agency  may  grant,  a waiver  from  these

requirements.  The  agency  should  notify  the  recipient  for  inforination  on the  process  for

requesting  a waiver  from  these  requirements.

When  the Federal  agency  has made  a determination  that  one  of  the  following  exceptions  applies,

the  awarding  official  may  waive  the  application  of  the  domestic  content  procurement  preference

in any  case in which  the  agency  determines  that:

a.  applying  the  domestic  content  procurement  preference  would  be inconsistent  with  the

public  interest;

b.  the  types  of  iron,  steel,  manufactured  products,  or  construction  materials  are  not  produced

in the  United  States  in sufficient  and  reasonably  available  quantities  or  of  a satisfactory

quality;  or

c.  the inclusion  of  iron,  steel,  manufactured  products,  or  construction  materials  produced  in

the United  States  will  increase  the  cost  of  the  overall  project  by  more  than  25 percent.

A  request  to waive  the  application  of  the  domestic  content  procurement  preference  must  be in

writing.  The  agency  will  provide  instructions  on  the  format,  contents,  and  supporting  materials



8

required  for  any  waiver  request.  Waiver  requests  are  subject  to public  comment  periods  of  no

less  than  15 days  and  must  be reviewed  by  the  Made  in America  Office.

Definitiom
"Construction  materials"  includes  an article,  material,  or  supply-other  than  an item  of  primarily

iron  or  steel;  a manufactured  product;  cement  and  cementitious  materials;  aggregates  such  as

stone,  sand,  or  gravel;  or  aggregate  binding  agents  or  additives-that  is or  consists  primarily  of:

*  non-ferrous  metals;

*  plastic  and  polymer-based  products  (including  polyvinylchloride,  composite  building

materials,  and  polymers  used  in fiber  optic  cables);

*  glass  (including  optic  glass);

*  lumber;  or

*  drywall.

"Domestic  content  procurement  preference"  means  all  iron  and  steel  used  in the  project  are

produced  in the United  States;  the  manufactured  products  used  in  the  project  are  produced  in the

United  States;  or  the  construction  materials  used  in the  project  are produced  in the  United  States.

"Infrastructure"  includes,  at a minimum,  the  structures,  facilities,  and  equipment  for,  in the

United  States,  roads,  highways,  and  bridges;  public  transportation;  dams,  ports,  harbors,  and

other  maritime  facilities;  intercity  passenger  and  freight  railroads;  freight  and  intermodal

facilities;  airports;  water  systems,  including  drinking  water  and  wastewater  systems;  electrical

transmission  facilities  and  systems;  utilities;  broadband  infrastructure;  and  buildings  and  real

property.  Infrastructure  includes  facilities  that  generate,  transport,  and  distribute  energy.

"Project"  means  the  construction,  alteration,  maintenance,  or  repair  of  infrastructure  in the

United  States.

Owners  are  ultimately  responsible  for  compliance  with  the  evidence  standards  as outlined  in the

Build  America  Buy  America  (BABAA)  appendix  to  this  Letter.  Owners  are required  to maintain

records  as specified  in their  loan  or  grant  agreement,  but  in all  cases,  they  should  maintain

records  for  a minimum  of  three  years  after  the  final  expenditure  report.  Minimum  records

include  certifications  from  manufacturers,  the  architect/engineer,  and  the  prime  contractor.

Supporting  documentation  includes  purchasing  records  and  notes  and  photos  taken  by  the

Resident  Project  Representative  (RPR).  Further  guidance  regarding  certifications  will  be

provided  by  the Agency.

14.  Legal  Services  -A  legal  services  agreement  is required  with  your  attorney  and  bond

counsel,  if  applicable,  for  any  legal  work  needed  in connection  with  this  project.  The  agreement

should  stipulate  an hourly  rate  for  the  work,  with  a "not  to exceed"  amount  for  the  services,

including  reimbursable  expenses.  RUS  Bulletin  1780-7,  "Legal  Services  Agreement,"  or  similar

format  may  be used.  The  Agency  will  provide  concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids.  Any

changes  to  the fees  or  services  spelled  out  in the  original  agreement  must  be reflected  in an

amendment  to the  agreement  and  have  prior  Agency  concurrence.



g

15.  Property  Rights  - Prior  to advertising  for  bids,  you  and  your  legal  counsel  must  furnish

satisfactory  evidence  that  you  have  adequate  continuous  and  valid  control  over  the  lands  and

rights-of-way  needed  for  the  project.  Acquisitions  of  necessary  land  and  rights  must  be

accomplished  in accordance  with  the  Uniform  Relocation  Assistance  and  Real  Property

Acquisition  Policies  Act.  Such  comrol  over  the  lands  and  rights  will  be evidenced  by  the

following:

a.  Right-of-Way  Map  -  Your  engineer  will  provide  a map  clearly  showing  the  location  of

all  lands  and  rights-of-way  needed  for  the  project.  The  map  must  designate  public  and

private  lands  and  rights  and  the  appropriate  legal  ownership  thereof.

b.  Form  RD  442-20,  "Right-of-Way  Easement"  -  This  form,  or  similar  format,  may  be

used  to obtain  any  necessary  easements  for  the  proposed  project.

c.  Form  RD  442-21,  "Right-of-Way  Certificate"  -  You  will  provide  a ceitification  on  this

form  that  all  right-of-way  requirements  have  been  obtained  for  the  proposed  project.

d.  Form  RD  442-22,  "Opinion  of  Counsel  Relative  to  Rights-of-Way"  -  Your  attorney

will  provide  a certification  and  legal  opinion  on  this  form  addressing  rights-of-way,

easements,  and  title.

The  approving  official  may  waive  title  defects  or  restrictions,  such  as utility  easements,  that  do

not  adversely  affect  the  suitability,  successful  operation,  security  value,  or  transferability  of  the

facility.  Any  such  waivers  must  be provided  by  the  approving  official  in writing  prior  to closing

or  the  start  of  construction,  whichever  occurs  first.

You  are  responsible  for  the  acquisition  of  all  property  rights  necessary  for  the  project  and  for

determining  that  prices  paid  are reasonable  and  fair.  The  Agency  may  require  an appraisal  by  an

independent  appraiser  or  Agency  employee  in order  to validate  the  price  to  be paid.

16.  System  Policies,  Procedures,  Contracts,  and  Agreements  -  The  facility  must  be operated

on  a sound  business  plan  which  involves  adopting  policies,  procedures,  and/or  ordinances

outlining  the  conditions  of  service  and  use of  the  proposed  system.  Mandatory  connectioii

policies  should  be used  where  enforceable.  The  policies,  procedures,  and/or  ordinances  must

contain  an effective  collection  policy  for  accounts  not  paid  in full  within  a specified  number  of

days  after  the  date  of  billing.  They  should  include  appropriate  late  fees,  specified  timeframes  for

disconnection  of  service,  and  reconnection  fees.  A  draft  of  these  policies,  procedures,  and/or

ordinances  must  be submitted  for  Agency  review  and  concurrence,  along  with  the  documents

below,  before  closing  instructions  may  be issued  unless  otherwise  stated.

a.  Conflict  of  Interest  Policy  -  Prior  to obligation  of  funds,  you  must  certify  in writing  that

your  organization  has in place  up-to-date  written  standards  of  conduct  covering  conflict

of  interest.  The  standards  of  conduct  must  include  disciplinary  actions  in the  event  of  a

violation  by  officers,  employees,  or  agents  of  the  borrower.  The  standards  identified

herein  apply  to any  parent,  affiliate  or  subsidiary  organization  of  the  borrower  that  is not

a state  or local  government,  or  Indian  Tribe.  Policies  and  accompanying  documents  shall

b e furnished  to Rural  Development  upon  request.



"io

You  must  also  submit  a disclosure  of  planned  or  potential  transactions  related  to the  use

of  Federal  funds  that  may  constitute  or  present  the  appearance  of  personal  or

organizational  conflict  of  interest.  Disclosure  must  be in the  form  of  a written  letter

signed  and  dated  by  the  applicant's  official.  A  negative  disclosure  in the  same  format  is

required  if  no conflicts  are anticipated.

Sample  conflict  of  interest  policies  may  be found  at the  National  Council  of  Nonprofits

website,  https://www.councilofnonprofits.org/tools-resources/conflict-of-interest,  or  in

Internal  Revenue  Service  Form  1023,  Appendix  A,  "Sample  Conflict  of  Interest  Policy,"

at http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/il023.pdf.  Though  these  examples  reference  non-profit

corporations,  the  requirement  applies  to all  types  of  Agency  borrowers.

Assistance  in developing  a conflict  of  interest  policy  is available  through  Agency-

contracted  technical  assistance  providers  if  desired.

#b.  Water  User  Agreement  -  Projects  not  involving  mandatory  connection  require  users  to

execute  a Water  Users  Agreement.  The  draft  agreement  must  receive  Agency

concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids.  RUS  Bulletin  1780-9,  "Water  Users

Agreement,"  or  similar  format  may  be used.

#c.  Contracts  for  Other  Services/Lease  Agreement  -  Drafts  of  any  contracts  or  other

forms  of  agreements  for  other  services,  including  audit,  management,  operation,  and

maintenance,  or  lease  agreements  covering  real  property  essential  to the  successful

operation  of  the  facility,  must  be submitted  to the  Agency  for  review  and  concurrence

prior  to advertising  for  bids.

#d.  Parity/Intercreditor  Agreement  -  Projects  with  parity  liens  must  have  in place  a written

agreement  between  the  parity  lenders.  The  draft  agreement  must  receive  Agency

concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids.

#e.  Other  agreements  with  governments  or  other  entities  regarding  joint  operation  of

facilities,  granting  authority  to Agency  borrower  for  providing  service  within  another

entity's  service  area,  etc.  -  Utility  service  Agreement  with  the  Village  of  Williamsburg  -

The  draft  agreement  must  receive  Agency  concurrence  prior  to advertising  for  bids.

Fully  executed  copies  of  any  policies,  procedures,  ordinances,  contracts,  or  agreements  above

must  be submitted  prior  to loan  closing,  with  the  exception  of  the  conflict  of  interest  policy,

which  must  be in place  prior  to obligation  of  funds.

17.  Closing  Instructions  -  The  Agency  will  prepare  closing  instructions  as soon  as the

requirements  of  the  previous  paragraphs  are  complete,  as well  as a draft  of  the  security

instrument(s).  Both  your  bond  and  legal  counsel  must  comply  with  these  instructions  when

closing  the  Agency  loan/grant.

18.  System  Users  -  This  letter  of  conditions  is based  upon  your  indication  at application  that

there  will  be at least  2828  residential  users,  514  non-residential  users,  on  the  existing  system

when  construction  is completed.



11

Before  the  Agency  can  agree  to the  project  being  advertised  for  construction  bids,  you  must

certify  that  the number  of  users  indicated  at application  are  currently  using  the  system  or  signed

up  to use the  system  once  it is operational.

If  the  actual  number  of  existing  and/or  proposed  users  that  have  signed  up  for  service  is less  than

the  number  indicated  at the  time  of  application,  you  must  provide  the  Agency  with  a written  plan

on  how  you  will  obtain  the  necessary  revenue  to adequately  cash  flow  the  expected  operation,

maintenance,  debt  service,  and  reserve  requirements  of  the  proposed  project  (e.g.,  increase  user

rates,  sign  up an adequate  number  of  other  users,  reduce  project  scope,  etc.).  Similar  action  is

required  if  there  is cause  to modify  the  anticipated  flows  or  volumes  presented  following

approval.

If  you  are relying  on mandatory  connection  requirements,  you  must  provide  evidence  of  the

authorizing  ordinance  or  statute  along  with  your  user  certification.

19.  Construction  Account  -  A  separate  construction  account  is not  required  for  project  funds.

However,  the  recipient  must  be able  to separately  identify,  report  and  account  for  all  Federal

funds,  including  the receipt,  obligation  and  expenditure  of  funds,  in accordance  with  2 CFR

200.305.  These  funds  must  be deposited  in a bank  with  Federal  Deposit  Insurance  Corporation

(FDIC)  insurance  coverage.  If  the  balances  at  the  financial  institution  where  federal  funds

will  be deposited  exceeds  the  FDIC  insurance  coverage,  the  excess  amount  must  be

collaterally  secured  up  to 100  percent  of  the  highest  amount  of  funds  expected  to  be

deposited  in  the  account  at  any  one  time,  per  the  Department  of  Treasury  regulations  and

requirements.

20.  Interim  Financing  -  The  Agency's  policy  is to utilize  interim  financing  for  all  loans

exceeding  $500,000. Prepayment  penalties  on interim  financing  are not  allowed.  Borrowers  are

required  to seek  interim  financing  initially  from  private  or  cooperative  tenders  if  funds  can  be

borrowed  at reasonable  interest  rates  on an interim  basis  from  those  sources  for  the  construction

period.  The  fact  that  a commercial  lender's  rates  are higher  than  current  Agency  interest  rates

does  not  necessarily  mean  that  the  commercial  rate  is not  reasonable.

21.  Proposed  Operating  Budget  -  You  must  establish  and/or  maintain  a rate  schedule  that

provides  adequate  income  to meet  the  minimum  requirements  for  operation  and  maintenance  (O

and  M),  debt  service,  and  reserves.  Prior  to advertising  for  bids,  you  must  submit  a proposed

annual  operating  budget  to the  Agency,  as well  as your  proposed  rate  schedule.  The  operating

budget  should  be based  on a typical  year  cash  flow  after  completion  of  the  construction  phase

and  should  be signed  by  the  appropriate  official  of  your  organization.  Form  RD  442-7,

"Operating  Budget,"  or  similar  format  may  be utilized  for  this  purpose.  It is expected  that  0  and

M  expenses  will  change  over  each  successive  year  and  user  rates  will  need  to be adjusted  on a

regular  basis.

Technical  assistance  is available  at no cost  to help  you  evaluate  and  complete  a rate  analysis  on

your  system.  This  assistance  is available  free  to your  organization.  If  you  are interested,  please

contact  our  office  for  information.



12

22.   -The  owner  or  responsible  party  will  be required  to obtain  all  applicable  permits

for  the  project,  prior  to advertising  for  bids.  The  consulting  engineer  must  submit  written

evidence  that  all  applicable  permits  required  prior  to construction  have  been  obtained  with

submission  to the  Agency  of  the  final  plans,  specifications,  and  bid  documents.

23.  Risk  and  Resilience  Assessment/Emergency  Response  Plan  (RRA/ERP)  -The  Agency

requires  all  financed  water  and  wastewater  systems  to have  a RRA/ERP  in place.  New  water  or

wastewater  systems  must  provide  a certification  that  an ERP  is complete  prior  to the  start  of

operation,  and  a certification  that  an RRA  is complete  must  be submitted  within  one  year  of  the

start  of  operation.  Borrowers  with  existing  systems  must  provide  a certification  that  an

RRA/ERP  has been  completed  prior  to advertising  for  bids.  Technical  assistance  is available  in

preparing  these  documents  at no cost  to you.

Before  funds  are drawn,  you  should  have  in place  a cybersecurity  plan,  a supply  chain  plan,  and

a plan  to comply  with  cybersecurity  requirements  of  the  National  Institute  of  Science  and

Technology  and  the Cybersecurity  and  Infrastructure  Security  Administration.  These  items

should  be addressed  in the  RRA/ERP.

The  RRA/ERP  documents  themselves  are  not  submitted  to the  Agency.  The  RRA/ERP  must

address  potential  impacts  from  natural  disasters  and  other  emergency  events.  It should  include

plans  to address  impacts  of  flash  flooding  in areas  where  severe  drought  or  wildfires  occur.  The

documents  should  be reviewed  and  updated  every  five  years  at a minimum.

24.  Bid  Authorization  - Once  all  the  conditions  outlined  in Section  III  of  this  letter  have

been  met,  the  Agency  will  authorize  you  to advertise  the  project  for  construction  bids.  Such

advertisement  must  be in accordance  with  applicable  State  statutes.

SECTION  IV  - REOUIREMENTS  PRIOR  TO START  OF CONSTRUCTION

25.  Disbursement  of  Agency  Funds  - Agency  funds  will  be disbursed  electronically  into  the

construction  account  as they  are needed.  SF 3881,  "ACH  Vendor/Miscellaneous  Payment

Enrollment  Form,"  must  be completed  and  submitted  to the  Agency  prior  to commencement  of

construction.

The  order  of  disbursement  is as follows:  l)  Applicant  contribution,  2)  other  funding  sources,  3)

interim  financing  or  Agency  loan  funds,  and  4) Agency  grant  funds.  Interim  financing  or

Agency  loan  funds  will  be expended  after  all  other  funding  sources  unless  a written  agreement  is

reached  with  all  other  funding  sources  on  how  funds  are to be disbursed  prior  the  first

disbursement.  Interim  financing  funds  or  Agency  loan  funds  must  be used  prior  to the  use of

Agency  grant  funds.  Agency  Grant  funds  must  not  be disbursed  prior  to loan  funds  except  as

authorized  in 7 CFR  1780.45(d).

Grant  funds  are  to be deposited  in an interest-bearing  account  (exception  provided  below)  in

accordance  with  2 CFR  Part  200  and  interest  in excess  of  $500  per  year  remitted  to the  Agency.



13

The  funds  should  be disbursed  by  the  recipient  immediately  upon  receipt,  and  there  should  be

little  interest  accrual  on  the  Federal  funds.  Recipients  shall  maintain  advances  of  Federal  funds

in interest-bearing  accounts,  unless:

*  The  recipient  receives  less  than  $120,000  in Federal  awards  per  year.

*  The  best  reasonably  available  interest-bearing  account  would  not  be expected  to earn

interest  in  excess  of  $500 per  year  on  Federal  cash  balances.

*  The  depository  would  require  an average  or  minimum  balance  so high  that  it would

not  be feasible  within  the  expected  Federal  and  non-Federal  cash  resources.

*  A  foreign  government  or  banking  system  prohibits  or  precludes  interest-bearing

accounts.

26.  Bid  Tabulation  -  Immediately  after  bid  opening,  you  must  provide  the  Agency  with  the

bid  tabulation  and  your  engineer's  evaluation  of  bids  and  recommendations  for  contract  awards.

If  the  Agency  agrees  that  the  construction  bids  received  are  acceptable,  adequate  funds  are

available  to cover  the  total  project  costs,  and  all  the  requirements  of  Section  III  of  this  letter  have

been  satisfied,  the  Agency  will  authorize  you  to issue  the  Notice  of  Award.

a.  Cost  Overruns  -  If  bids  are higher  than  expected,  or  if  unexpected  construction

problems  are  encountered,  you  must  utilize  all  options  to reduce  cost  overruns.

Negotiations,  redesign,  use of  bidding  alternatives,  rebidding  or  other  means  will  be

considered  prior  to commitment  of  subsequent  funding  by  the  Agency.  Any  requests  for

subsequent  funding  to cover  cost  overruns  will  be contingent  on the  availability  of  funds.

Cost  overruns  exceeding  20 percent  of  the  development  cost  at time  of  loan  or  grant

approval  or  where  the  scope  of  the  original  purpose  has  changed  will  compete  for  funds

with  all  other  applications  on  hand  as of  that  date.

b.  Excess  Funds  - If  bids  are lower  than  anticipated  at time  of  obligation,  excess  funds  must

be deobligated  prior  to start  of  construction  except  in  the cases  addressed  in this

paragraph.  In  cases  where  the  original  PER  for  the  project  included  items  that  were  not

bid,  or  were  bid  as an alternate,  the  State  Office  official  may  modify  the  project  to fully

utilize  obligated  funds  for  those  items.  Amendments  to the  PER,  ER,  and  Letter  of

Conditions  may  be needed  for  any  work  not  included  in the  original  project  scope.  Ii  all

cases,  prior  to start  of  construction,  excess  funds  will  be deobligated,  with  grant  funds

being  deobligated  first.  Excess  funds  do not  include  contingency  funds  as described  in

this  letter.

27.  Suspension  and  Debarment  Screening  -  In accordance  with  2 CFR  Part  180,  Subpart  C, as

a condition  of  the  transaction  and  the  responsibilities  to persons  at the  next  lower  tier  with  whom

you  enter  into  transactions,  you  must  conduct  screening  for  suspension  and  debarment  of  lower

tier  recipients  (e.g.,  vendors,  contractors,  etc.).

28.  Contract  Review  -  Your  attorney  will  certify  that  the  executed  contract  documents,

including  performance  and  payment  bonds,  if  required,  are  adequate  and  that  the  persons

executing  these  documents  have  been  properly  authorized  to do so in accordance  with  7 CFR

1780.61(b).



14

Once  your  attorney  has certified  that  they  are  acceptable,  the  contract  documents  will  be

submitted  to the  Agency  for  concurrence.  Construction  cannot  commence  until  the  Agency  has

concurred  in the  construction  contracts.

29.  Final  Rights  of  Way  -  Your  attorney  or  title  company  must  furnish  a separate  final  title

opinion  or  Title  Insurance  Policy  on all  real  property  related  to the  facility,  now  owned  and  to be

acquired  for  this  project,  as of  the  day  of  loan  closing  or start  of  construction,  whichever  occurs

first.  Form  RD  1927-10,  "Final  Title  Opinion"  may  be used.

If  any  of  the  right-of-way  forms  listed  previously  in this  letter  contain  exceptions  that  do not

adversely  affect  the  suitability,  successful  operation,  security  value,  or  transferability  of  the

facility,  the  approving  official  must  provide  a written  waiver  prior  to the  issuance  of  the  Notice

to Proceed.

30.  Insurance  and  Bonding  Requirements  - Prior  to the  start  of  construction  or  loan  closing,

whichever  occurs  first,  you  must  acquire  and  submit  to the  Agency  proof  of  the  types  of

insurance  and  bond  coverage  for  the  borrower  shown  below.  The  use of  deductibles  may  be

allowed,  providing  you  have  the  financial  resources  to cover  potential  claims  requiring  payment

of  the  deductible.  The  Agency  strongly  recommends  that  you  have  your  engineer,  attorney,  and

insurance  provider(s)  review  proposed  types  and  amounts  of  coverage,  including  any  exclusions

and  deductible  provisions.  It is your  responsibility  and  not  that  of  the  Agency  to assure  that

adequate  insurance  and  fidelity  bond  coverage  is maintained.

a. General  Liability  Insurance  -  Include  vehicular  coverage.

b.  Workers'  Compensation  -  In accordance  with  appropriate  State  laws.

c.  Guaranty  or  Fidelity  Insurance-Coverage  for  all  persons  who  have  access  to funds,

including  persons  working  under  a contract  or  management  agreement.  Coverage  may  be

provided  either  for  all  individual  positions  or  persons,  or  through  "blanket"  coverage

providing  protection  for  all  appropriate  employees.  Each  position  is to be insured  in an

amount  equal  to the  maximum  amount  of  funds  expected  to be under  the  control  of  that

position  at any  one  time.  The  minimum  coverage  allowed  will  be an amount  equal  to the

total  annual  debt  service  payment  on  the  Agency  loans.  The  coverage  may  be increased

during  construction  based  on the  anticipated  monthly  advances.

d.  National  Flood  Insurance  - If  the  project  involves  acquisition  or  construction  in a

designated  special  flood  area,  the  community  in which  the  acquisition  or  construction  is

situated  must  be currently  participating  in the  national  flood  insurance  program.

Additionally,  if  the  project  involves  acquisition  or  constriction  in designated  special  flood

or mudslide  prone  areas,  a flood  insurance  policy  must  be in place  at the  time  of  loan

closing.

e.  Real  Property  Insurance  -  Fire  and  extended  coverage  will  normally  be maintained  on

all  structures  except  reservoirs,  pipelines  and  other  structures  if  such  structures  are not

normally  insured,  and  subsurface  lift  stations  except  for  the  value  of  electrical  and

pumping  equipment.  The  Agency  will  be listed  as mortgagee  on the  policy  when  the

Agency  has a lien  on the  propeity.  Prior  to the  acceptance  of  the  facility  from  the



15

contractor(s),  you  must  obtain  real  propeity  insurance  (fire  and  extended  coverage)  on  all

facilities  identified  above.

The  Agency  is to be listed  as "Other  Insured"  so as to receive  notifications  on all  insurance,

regardless  of  security.  Insurance  types  described  above  are  required  to be continued  throughout

the  life  of  the  loan.  See Section  VII.

31.  Initial  Civil  Rights  Compliance  Review  -  The  Agency  will  conduct  an initial  civil  rights

compliatyce  re'view  of  the  borrower  prior  to loan  closing  or  start  of  construction,  whichever

occurs  first,  in accordance  with  7 CFR  1901,  Subpart  E. You  are  expected  to comply  with  the

completion  of  the  review,  including  the  furnishing  of  any  documents,  records,  or  other  applicable

material.

SECTION  V  -  REQUIREMENTS  PRIOR  TO  CLOSING

32.  Interim  Financing.  Interim  financing  is being  used.  Generally,  loan  closing  will  occur  near

the  end  of  construction  when  interim  funds  are fully  disbursed.  Documents  detailed  above  from

Sections  II  and  III  regarding  security,  electronic  payments  (Form  3550-28),  and  system  policies,

procedures,  contracts,  and  agreements  must  be adopted  and/or  executed  and  submitted  to the

Agency  prior  to loan  closing.

33.  Electronic  Payments  -  Payments  will  be made  through  an electronic  preauthorized  debit

system.  You  will  be required  to complete  Form  RD  3550-28,  "Authorization  Agreement  for

Preauthorized  Payments,"  for  all  new  and  existing  indebtedness  to the  Agency  prior  to loan

closing.

34.  Other  Requirements  -  All  requirements  contained  in the  Agency's  closing  instructions,  as

well  as any  requirements  of  your  bond  counsel  and/or  attorney,  must  be met  prior  to loan  closing.

a.  System  for  Award  Management.  You  will  be required  to maintain  a Unique  Entity  ID

(UEI)  and  maintain  an active  registration  in  the  System  for  Award  Management  (SAM)

database.  Renewal  can  be completed  online  at: http://sam.gov.  This  registration  must  be

renewed  and  revalidated  every  12 months  for  as long  as there  is an active  loan,  grant,  or

guaranteed  loan  with  the  Agency.

To  ensure  the  information  is current,  accurate  and  complete,  and  to prevent  the  SAM

account  expiration,  the  review  and  updates  must  be performed  within  365  days  of  the

activation  date,  commonly  referred  to as the  expiration  date.  The  registration  process

may  take  up  to 10 business  days.  (See  2 CFR  Part  25 and  the  "Help"  section  at

http://sam.gov).

b.   You  are  required  to notify  the  Agency  within  30 days  of  receiving

notification  of  being  involved  in any  type  of  litigation  prior  to loan  closing  or  start  of

construction,  whichever  occurs  first.  Additional  documentation  regarding  the  situation

and  litigation  may  be requested  by  the  Agency.



16

c.  Certified  Operator.  Evidence  must  be provided  that  your  system  has or  will  have  a

certified  operator,  as defined  by  applicable  State  or  Federal  requirements,  available  prior

to the  system  becoming  operational,  or  that  a suitable  supervisory  agreement  with  a

certified  operator  is in effect.

SECTION  VI  -  REQUIREMENTS  DURING  CONSTRUCTION  AND  POST

CONSTRUCTION

35.  Construction  Completion  Timeframe  -  Following  the  benchinarks  established  in Section  I,

Item  4, Project  Timeline,  all  projects  should  be completed  and  Agency  funds  fully  disbursed

within  three  years  of  the  date  of  obligation.  If  funds  are  not  disbursed  within  three  years  of

obligation  and  you  have  not  already  done  so per  Section  I, Item  4, you  must  submit  a written

request  for  extension  of  time  to the  Agency  with  adequate  justification  of  the  circumstances,

including  any  beyond  your  control.  The  request  must  be submitted  at least  90  days  prior  to the

end  of  the  three-year  timeframe  and  include  a revised  estimated  date  of  completion.  The  Agency

will  typically  only  allow  one  extension.  Subsequent  requests  for  waivers  beyond  the  initial

extension  or  requests  that  exceed  five  years  from  the  initial  date  of  obligation  will  be submitted

to the  RUS,  Water  and  Environmental  Programs  for  consideration.  The  Agency  retains  the  right

to de-obligate  any  loan  and/or  grant  monies,  or  take  other  appropriate  action,  related  to

unliquidated  funds  that  exceed  the  timeframes  above  and  are  not  under  an active  extension.

36.  Resident  Inspector(s)  -  Full-time  inspection  is required  unless  you  request  an exception.

Such  requests  must  be made  in writing  and  the  Agency  must  provide  written  concurrence.

Inspection  services  are  to be provided  by  the  consulting  engineer  unless  other  arrangements  are

requested  in writing  and  concurred  with  by  the  Agency.  A  resume  of  qualifications  of  any

resident  inspector(s)  will  be submitted  to the  owner  and  Agency  for  review  and  concurrence

prior  to  the  pre-construction  conference.  The  resident  inspector(s)  inust  attend  the

preconstruction  conference.

37.  Preconstruction  Conference  -  A  preconstruction  conference  will  be held  prior  to the

issuance  of  the  Notice  to Proceed.  The  consulting  engineer  will  review  the  planned  development

with  the  Agency,  owner,  resident  inspector,  attorney,  contractor,  other  funders,  and  other

interested  parties,  and  will  provide  minutes  of  this  meeting  to the  owner  and  Agency.

38.   - The  Agency  requires  a preconstruction  conference,  pre-final,  final,  and

warranty  inspections.  Your  engineer  will  schedule  a warranty  inspection  with  the  contractor  and

the  Agency  before  the  end  of  the 11-  month  warranty  period  to address  and/or  resolve  any

outstanding  warranty  issues.  The  Agency  will  conduct  an inspection  with  you  of  your  records

management  system  at the  same  time  and  will  continue  to inspect  the facility  and  your  records

system  every  three  years  for  the  life  of  the  loan.  See Section  VII  of  this  letter.

39.  Change  Orders  -  A  Change  Order  must  be submitted  for  all  modifications  to the  approved

scope  of  work,  including  existing  contracts.  This  includes  non-physical  modifications  such  as



17

any  time  extension  requests.  Prior  written  Agency  concurrence  is required  for  all  Change

Orders.

40.   -  Prior  Agency  concurrence  is required  for  all  invoices  and  requests  for  payment

before  Agency  funds  will  be released.  Requests  for  payment  related  to a contract  or  service

agreement  will  be signed  by  the  owner,  project  engineer,  and  contractor  or  service  provider  prior

to Agency  concurrence.  Invoices  not  related  to a construction  contract  or  service  agreement  will

include  the  owner's  written  concurrence.

41.  Use  of  Remaining  Funds  -  As  stated  above,  applicant  contribution  and  connection  or  tap

fees  will  be the  first  funds  experided  in the  project.  Funds  remaining  after  all  costs  incident  to

the  basic  project  have  been  paid  or  provided  will  be handled  as follows:

a.  Funds  remaining  after  the  applicant  contribution  and  connection  fees  may  be considered

in direct  proportion  to the  amounts  of  funding  obtained  from  each  source.  The  use of

Agency  funding  will  be limited  to eligible  loan  and  grant  purposes,  provided  the  use will

not  result  in major  changes  to the   scope  of  work  and  the  purpose  of  the  loan  and

grant  remains  the  same.

b.  Any  reductions  in the  Agency  funding  will  be first  applied  to the  grant  funds.

c.  Grant  funds  not  expended  for  authorized  purposes  will  be cancelled  (de-obligated)  within

30 days  of  final  completion  of  project.  Prior  to actual  cancellation,  you,  your  attorney

and  engineer  will  be notified  of  the  Agency's  intent  to cancel  the  remaining  funds  and

given  appropriate  appeal  rights.

d.  Under  no circumstances  is it appropriate  to use remaining  funds  as contributions  to a new

project  outside  the  scope  of  the  funded  project.

e.  Loan  funds  that  are  not  needed  will  be cancelled  (de-obligated)  prior  to loan  closing.

42.  Technical,  Managerial  and  Financial  Capacity  - It is required  that  members  of  the  Board

of  Directors,  City  Council  members,  trustees,  commissioners  and  other  governing  members

possess  the  necessary  technical,  managerial,  and  financial  capacity  skills  to consistently  comply

with  pertinent  Federal  and  State  laws  and  requirements.  It is recommended  members  receive

training  within  one  year  of  appointment  or  election  to  the  governing  board,  and  a refresher

training  for  all  governing  members  on a routine  basis.  The  content  and  amount  of  training  should

be tailored  to the  needs  of  the individual  and  the  utility  system.  Technical  assistance  providers

are available  to provide  this  training  for  your  organization,  often  at no cost.  Contact  the  Agency

for  additional  information.

43.  Reporting  Requirements  Related  to  Expenditure  of  Funds-An  annual  audit  under  2

CFR  200 is required  if  you  expend  $750,000  or  more  in  Federal  financial  assistance  per  fiscal
year.  The  total  Federal  funds  expended  from  all  sources  shall  be used  to determine  Federal

financial  assistance  expended.  Expenditures  of  interim  financing  are considered  Federal

expenditures.

All  audits  are to be performed  in accordance  with  2 CFR  Part  200,  as adopted  by  USDA  through

2 CFR  Part  400.  Further  guidance  on preparing  an acceptable  audit  can  be obtained  from  the



18

Agency.  The  audit  must  be prepared  by  an independent  licensed  Certified  Public  Accountant,  or

a State  or  Federal  auditor  if  allowed  by  State  law  and  must  be submitted  within  9 months  of  your

fiscal  year  end. Both  the  audit  and  accompanying  management  report  must  be submitted  for

reVleW.

If  an audit  is required,  you  must  enter  into  a written  agreement  with  the  auditor  and  submit  a

copy  of  that  agreement  to the  Agency  prior  to the  advertisement  of  construction  bids.  The  audit

agreement  may  include  terms  and  conditions  that  the  borrower  and  auditor  deem  appropriate;

however,  the  agreement  should  include  the  type  of  audit  to be completed,  the  time  frame  in

which  the  audit  will  be completed,  and  how  irregularities  will  be reported.

SECTION  VII  -  SERVICING  RF,QUIREMENTS  DURING  THE  TERM  OF  THE  LOAN

44.  Prepayment  and  Extra  Payments  - Prepayments  of  scheduled  installments,  or  any  portion

thereof,  may  be made  at any  time  at the  option  of  borrower,  with  no penalty.

Security  instruments,  including  bonding  documents,  must  contain  the following  language

regarding  extra  payments,  unless  prohibited  by State  statute:

Prepayments of  scheduled installments, or any portion  thereof, may be made at any time
at the option of  borrower. Refunds, extra payments and loan proceeds obtainedfrom
outside sources for  the purpose of  paying down the Agency debt, shall, after payment of
interest,  be applied  to the installments  last  to become  due  under  this  note  and  shall  not

affect the obligation of  borrower to pay the remaining installments as scheduled in your
security  instruments

45.  Annual  Financial  Reporting/Audit  Requirements  -  You  are required  to submit  an

annual  financial  report  at the  end  of  each  fiscal  year.  The  annual  report  will  be certified  by  the

appropriate  organization  official,  and  will  consist  of  financial  information,  a current  rate

schedule,  and  listing  of  board  members  with  their  terms.  Financial  statements  must  be prepared

on  an accrual  basis  of  accounting  in accordance  with  generally  accepted  accounting  principles

(GAAP).  The  annual  report  will  include  separate  reporting  for  each  water  and  waste  disposal

facility,  and  itemized  cash  accounts  by  type  (debt  service,  short-lived  assets,  etc.)  under  each

facility.  All  records,  books  and  supporting  material  are  to be retained  for  three  years  after  the

issuance  of  the annual  report.  Technical  assistance  is available,  at no cost,  with  preparing

financial  reports.

The  type  of  financial  information  that  must  be submitted  is specified  below:

a.  Audits  -  An  audit  under  the  Single  Audit  Act  is required  if  you  expend  $750,000 or  more

in Federal  financial  assistance  per  fiscal  year.  The  total  Federal  funds  expended  from  all

sources  shall  be used  to determine  Federal  financial  assistance  expended.  Expenditures

of  interim  financing  are considered  Federal  expenditures.

See Section  VI  for  additional  information  regarding  audits.



19

b. Financial  Statements  -  If  you  expend  less  than  $750,000  in Federal  financial  assistance

per  fiscal  year,  you  may  submit  financial  statements  in lieu  of  an audit  which  include,  at a

minimum,  a balance  sheet  and  an income  and  expense  statement.  You  may  use Form  RD

442-2,  "Statement  of  Budget,  Income  and  Equity,"  and  442-3,  "Balance  Sheet,"  or

similar  format  to provide  the  financial  information.  The  financial  statements  must  be

signed  by  the  appropriate  borrower  official  and  submitted  within  60 days  of  your  fiscal

year  end.

c.  Quarterly  Reports  -  Quarterly  Income  and  Expense  Statements  will  be required  until

the  processing  office  waives  this  requirement.  You  may  use Form  RD  442-2,  "Statement

of  Budget,  Income  and  Equity,"  or  similar  format  to provide  this  information.  The  reports

are to be signed  by  the  appropriate  borrower  official  and  submitted  within  30 days  of

each  quarter's  end. The  Agency  will  notify  you  in writing  when  quarterly  reports  are no

longer  required.

46.  Annual  Budget  and  Projected  Cash  Flow  - Thirty  days  prior  to  the  beginning  of  each

fiscal  year,  you  will  be  required  to  submit  an annual  budget  and  projected  cash  flow  to this

office.  The  budget  must  be signed  by  the  appropriate  borrower  official.  Form  RD  442-2,

"Statement  of  Budget,  Income  and  Equity,"  or  similar  format  may  be used.

Technical  assistance  is available  at no cost  to help  you  evaluate  and  complete  a rate  analysis  on

your  system,  as well  as completing  the  annual  budget.

47.  Graduation  - By  accepting  this  loan,  you  are also  agreeing  to refinance  (graduate)  the

unpaid  loan  balance  in whole,  or  in part,  upon  request  of  the  Government.  If  at any  time  the

Agency  determines  you  can  obtain  a loan  for  such  purposes  from  responsible  cooperative  or

private  sources  at reasonable  rates  and  terms,  you  will  be requested  to refinance.  Your  ability  to

refinance  will  be assessed  every  other  year  for  those  loans  that  are five  years  old  or  older.

48.  Security/Operational  Inspections  -  The  Agency  will  inspect  the  facility  and  conduct  a

review  of  your  operations  and  records  management  systei'n  and  conflict  of  interest  policy  every

three  years  for  the  life  of  the  loan.  You  must  participate  in these  inspections  and  provide  the

required  information.

49.  System  for  Award  Management.  You  will  be required  to maintain  a Unique  Entity  ID

(UEI)  and  maintain  an active  registration  in the  System  for  Award  Management  (SAM)  database.

Further  information  can  be found  at paragraph  33 of  this  letter.

50.  Risk  and  Resiliency  Assessment/Emergency  Response  Plan  (RRA/ERP)  -  The  RRA/ERP

is further  outlined  under  Section  III  of  this  letter.  You  will  be required  to submit  a certification

to the  servicing  office  every  five  years  that  the  RRA/ERP  is current  and  covers  all  sites  related  to

the  facility.  The  RRA/ERP  documents  themselves  are not  submitted  to the  Agency.  The

RRA/ERP  must  address  potential  impacts  from  natural  disasters  and  other  emergency  events.  It



20

should  include  plans  to address  impacts  of  flash  flooding  in areas where  severe  drought  or

wildfires  occur.  Technical  assistance  is available  in preparing  these documents  at no cost  to you.

51. Insurance.  -  Insurance  requirements  are further  outlined  in Section  IV  of  this  letter. You

will  be required  to maintain  insurance  on the facility  and employees  as previously  described  in

this  letter  for  the life  of  the loan.

52. Statutory  and  National  Policy  Requirements  -  As a recipient  of  Federal  funding,  you  are

required  to comply  with  u.s. statutory  and public  policy  requirements,  including  but  not limited
to:

a. Section  504 of  the  Rehabilitation  Act  of  1973  -  Under  Section  504 of  the Rehabilitation

Act  of  1973,  as amended  (29 U.S.C.  794),  no handicapped  individual  in the United  States

shall,  solely  by reason  of  their  handicap,  be excluded  from  participation  in,  be denied  the

benefits  of, or be subjected  to discrimination  under  any program  or activity  receiving

Agency  financial  assistance.

b. Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  -  All  borrowers  are subject  to, and facilities  must  be operated

in accordance  with,  Title  VI  of  the Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  (42 U.S.C.  2000d  )

and 7 CFR  1901,  Subpart  E, particularly  as it relates  to conducting  and reporting  of

compliance  reviews.  Instruments  of  conveyance  for  loans and/or  grants  subject  to the

Act  must  contain  the covenant  required  by Paragraph  1901.202(e)  of  this  Title.

c. The  Americans  with  Disabilities  Act  (ADA)  of  1990  -  This  Act  (42 u.s.c. 12101 et

) prohibits  discrimination  on the basis  of  disability  in employment,  State and local

government  services,  public  transportation,  public  accommodations,  facilities,  and

telecommunications.

d. Age  Discrimination  Act  of  1975  -  This  Act  (42 u.s.c. 6101 ) provides  that  no

person  in the United  States  shall  on the basis of  age, be excluded  from  participation  in,  be

denied  the benefits  of, or be subjected  to discrimination  under  any program  or  activity

receiving  Federal  financial  assistance.

e. Limited  English  Proficiency  (LEP)  under  Executive  Order  13166  - LEP  statutes  and

authorities  prohibit  exclusion  from  participation  in, denial  of  benefits  of, and

discrimination  under  Federally-assisted  and/or  conducted  programs  on the ground  of

race, color,  or national  origin.  Title  VI  of  the Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  covers  program

access for  LEP  persons.  LEP  persons  are individuals  who  do not speak  English  as their

primary  language  and who  have a limited  ability  to read, speak,  write,  or understand

English.  These  individuals  may  be entitled  to language  assistance,  free of  charge.  You

must  take reasonable  steps to ensure  that  LEP  persons  receive  the language  assistance

necessary  to have meaningful  access to USDA  programs,  services,  and information  your

organization  provides.  These  protections  are pursuant  to Executive  Order  13166  entitled,

"Improving  Access  to Services  by Persons  with  Limited  English  Proficiency"  and further

affirmed  in the USDA  Departmental  Regulation  4330-005,  "Prohibition  Against  National



21

Origin  Discrimination  Affecting  Persons  with  Limited  English  Proficiency  in Programs

and  Activities  Conducted  by  USDA."

f.  Controlled  Substances  Act  - Even  though  state  law  may  allow  some  activities,  as a

recipient  of  Federal  funding,  you  are subject  to  the  Controlled  Substances  Act.  Specific

questions  about  the  Controlled  Substances  Act  should  be directed  to the  Servicing

Official  who  will  contact  the  Office  of  General  Counsel,  as appropriate

53.  Compliance  Reviews  and  Data  Collection  -  Agency  financial  programs  must  be extended

without  regard  to race,  color,  religion,  sex,  national  origin,  marital  status,  age,  or  physical  or

mental  handicap.  You  must  display  posters  (provided  by  the  Agency)  informing  users  of  these

requirements,  and  the  Agency  will  monitor  your  compliance  with  these  requirements  during

regular  compliance  reviews.

The  Agency  will  conduct  regular  compliance  reviews  of  the  borrower  and  its operation  in

accordance  with  7 CFR  Part  1901,  Subpart  E, and  36 CFR  1191,  Americans  with  Disabilities  Act

(ADA)  Accessibility  Guidelines  for  Buildings  and  Facilities;  Architectural  Barriers  Act  (ABA)

Accessibility  Guidelines.  Compliance  reviews  will  typically  be conducted  in  conjunction  with

the  security  inspections  described  in  this  letter.

If  beneficiaries  (users)  are  required  to complete  an application  or  screening  for  the  use of  the

facility  or  service  that  you  provide,  you  must  request  and  collect  data  by  race  (Ai'nerican  Indian

or  Alaska  Native,  Asian,  Black  or  African  American,  White);  ethnicity  (Hispanic  or  Latino,  Not

Hispanic  or  Latino);  and  by  sex. The  Agency  will  utilize  this  data  as part  of  the  required

compliance  review.

SECTION  VIII  -  REMEDIES  FOR  NON-COMPLIANCE

Non-compliance  with  the  conditions  in  this  letter  or  requirements  of  your  security  documents

will  be addressed  under  the  provisions  of  Agency  regulations,  statutes,  and  other  applicable

policies.

We  look  forward  to working  with  you  to complete  this  project.  If  you  have  any  questions,  please

contact  Elizabeth  Ybarra  at (505)  761-4963  or  by  e-mail  at elizabeth.ybarra(a,usda.gov.

Smcerely

CHR STINE

GRIEGO
Digitally  iigned  by

Christine  Griego

Community  Programs,  Program  Director

Attachments:

T or  C WSPI-2  Form  RD  1942-46  Letter  of  Intent  to  Meet  Conditions

T or  CWSPI-2Form  RD  1940-lRequest  for  Obligation  of  Funds306(C)

T or  C WSPI-2Form  RD  1940-1  Request  for  Obligation  of  FundsLoan



cc:  USDA  - Community  Programs  Director,  Christine  Griego

USDA  - Community  Programs  Engineer,  Eugenio  Valdez

Angela  Gonzales  -  City  Manager  -  City  of  Truth  or Consequences

Traci  Alvarez  -  Asst.  City  Manager

Wilson  &  Company  - Engineer



23

FORMS  and BULLETINS:

Form  AD-3031  "Assurance  Regarding  Felony  Convictions  or Tax  Delinquent  Status  for

Corporate  Applicants"  -  Item  30

Internal  Revenue  Service  Form  1023,  Appendix  A, "Sample  Conflict  of  Interest  Policy"  - Item

15

Form  RD 440-22,  "Promissory  Note"  -  Item  6

Fotm  RD 442-2,  "Statement  of  Budget,  Income  and Equity"  -  Items  45 and 46

Form  RD 442-3,  "Balance  Sheet"  -  Item  45

Form  RD 442-7,  "Operating  Budget"  -  Item  20

Form  RD 442-20,  "Right-of-Way  Easement"  -  Item  14

Form  RD 442-21,  "Right-of-Way  Certificate"  -  Item  14

Form  RD 442-22,  "Opinion  of  Counsel  Relative  to Rights-of-Way"  -  Item  14

Form  RD 1927-9,  "Preliminary  Title  Opinion"  -  Item  14

Form  RD 1927-10,  "Final  Title  Opinion"  -  Item  28

Form  RD 1940-1,  "Request  for  Obligation  of  Funds"  -  Pages 1 and 2

Form  RD 1942-8,  "Resolution  of  Members  or Stockholders"  -  Item  6

Form  RD 1942-46,  "Letter  of  Intent  to Meet  Conditions"  -  Page 2

Form  RD 3550-28,  "Authorization  Agreement  for  Preauthorized  Payments"  -  Itei'ns  32 and 33

Form  UCC-1,  "Financing  Statement"  -  Item  6

Form  UCC-lAd,  "UCC  Financing  Statement  Addendum"  -  Item  6

SF 3881,  "ACH  Vendor/Miscellaneous  Payment  Enrollment  Form"  -  Item  24

RUS  Bulletin  1780-7,  "Legal  Services  Agreement"  -  Item  13

RUS  Bulletin  1780-9,  "Water  Users  Agreement"  - Items  15 and 17

RUS  Bulletin  1780-12,  "Water  and Waste  System  Grant  Agreement"  -  Item  6

RUS  Bulletin  1780-26,  "Guidance  for  the Use of  EJCDC  Documents  on Water  and Waste

Projects  with  RUS  Financial  Assistance"  -  Itei'ns 11 and 12

RUS  Bulletin  1780-27,  "Loan  Resolution  (Public  Bodies)"  -  Item  6

RUS  Bulletin  1780-28,  "Loan  Resolution  Security  Agreement"  -  Item  6



24

A.  Reporting  Total  Compensation  of  Recipient  Executives

In the  rare  instance  in which  all of  the  following  apply,  please  contact  your  POB  Specialist  for

language  to include  in the LOC:

1. The total Federal funding  authorized  to date under this award is $30,000 or more;

2. In  the preceding  fiscal  year,  the  applicant  received-

(A)  80 percent  or more  of  their  annual  gross  revenues  from  Federal  procurement

contracts  (and  subcontracts)  and  Federal  financial  assistance  subject  to the

Transparency  Act,  as defined  at 2 CFR  170.320  (and  subawards);  and

(B)  $25,000,000  or more  in annual  gross  revenues  from  Federal  procurement

contracts  (and  subcontracts)  and  Federal  financial  assistance  subject  to the

Transparency  Act,  as defined  at 2 CFR  170.320  (and  subawards);  and

3. The  public  does  not  have  access  to information  about  the compensation  of  the executives

through  periodic  reports  filed  under  section  13(a)  or 15(d)  of  the Securities  Exchange  Act  of

1934  (15 U.S.C.  78m(a),  78o(d))  or section  6104  of  the Internal  Revenue  Code  of  1986.  (To

determine  if  the  public  has access  to the compensation  information,  see the U.S.  Security  and

Exchange  Commission  total  compensation  filings  at

http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.)

B. Subaward  and  Subrecipients

In the  rare  instance  in which  there  is a subrecipient  in the  project,  please  contact  your  POB

Specialist  for  language  to include  in the LOC:

Subrecipient  means  an entity  that:

i.  Receives  a subaward  from  the  recipient  under  this  award;  and

ii.  Is accountable  to the recipient  for  the use of  the Federal  funds  provided  by the

subaward.

a. Subaward  means  an award  provided  by a pass-through  entity  to a subrecipient  for

the subrecipient  to carry  out  part  of  a Federal  award  received  by  the pass-through



25

entity.  It  does  not  include  payments  to a contractor  or  payments  to an individual

that  is a beneficiary  of  a Federal  program.



26



27

Appendix  B

Build  America,  Buy  America  Evidence  Standards

Manufacturers
For  each  item  to  which  BABAA  applies  (every  item  permanently  installed  on the  project,  except

for  aggregate  and  aggregate  binding  materials),  a manufacturer's  certification  letter  or  other

document  demonstrating  compliance  is required.  It  must,  at a minimum,  identify  the  item  being

certified  (short  written  description  as well  as part  number,  if  applicable)  and  affirm  that  the  item

complies  with  BABAA.  This  document  must  be signed  by  an authorized  company

representative.

Architects  and  Engineers

Compliance  with  BABAA  will  be spelled  out  in  agreements  for  services,  construction  contracts,

and  procurement  contracts.  Generally,  the  A/E  contract  should  include,  as a basic  service,

obtaining  and  maintaining  all  BABAA  documentation  (particularly  manufacturers'  certifications)

during  construction,  which  shall  be transferred  to the  Owner  upon  completion  of  the  project.  The

architect  or  engineer  will  need  to certify  to this  action  at the  project's  end.

ResideM  Project  Represeritative  /  Resident  Inspector

As  part  of  their  duties,  Resident  Project  Representative/Resident  Inspector  should  be instructed

to verify  items  delivered  to  the  site  and  installed  are accompanied  by  documentation  of

compliance  with  BABAA.  They  should  photograph  items  as appropriate.  RPR/RI  daily  logs  and

photographs  will  become  part  of  the  construction  record  and  can  be used  as supporting

information  during  audits,  providing  evidence  for  items  that  are  buried  or  otherwise  inaccessible.

Contractors

Construction  contract(s)  must  include  a requirement  to procure  and  install  only  items  that

comply  with  BABAA  or are subject  to an approved  waiver.  Contractors  must  provide

manufacturers'  certifications  for  all  BABAA  compliant  items  to  the  responsible  party  before  a

request  for  reimbursement  to the  Agency  is made.  At  completion,  the  contractor  will  be required

to certify  that  all  items  used  on the  contract  complied  with  BABAA  and  that  all  manufacturers'

certifications  were  provided.



28

Appendix  B

Build  America,  Buy  America  Evidence  Standards

Manufacturers
For  each  item  to  which  BABAA  applies  (every  item  permanently  installed  on  the  project,  except

for  aggregate  and  aggregate  binding  materials),  a manufacturer's  certification  letter  or  other

document  demonstrating  compliance  is required.  It  must,  at a minimum,  identify  the item  being

certified  (short  written  description  as well  as part  number,  if  applicable)  and  affirm  that  the  item

complies  with  BABAA.  This  document  must  be signed  by  an authorized  company

representative.

Architects  and  Engineers

Compliance  with  BABAA  will  be spelled  out  in agreements  for  services,  construction  contracts,

and  procurement  contracts.  Generally,  the  A/E  contract  should  include,  as a basic  service,

obtaining  and  maintaining  all  BABAA  documentation  (particularly  manufacturers'  certifications)

during  construction,  which  shall  be transferred  to  the  Owner  upon  completion  of  the  project.  The

architect  or  engineer  will  need  to certify  to  this  action  at the  project's  end.

Resident  Project  Representative  /  Resident  Inspector

As  part  of  their  duties,  Resident  Project  Representative/Resident  Inspector  should  be instructed

to verify  items  delivered  to  the  site  and  installed  are accompanied  by  documentation  of

compliance  with  BABAA.  They  should  photograph  items  as appropriate.  RPR/RI  daily  logs  and

photographs  will  become  part  of  the  construction  record  and  can  be used  as supporting

information  during  audits,  providing  evidence  for  items  that  are  buried  or  otherwise  inaccessible.

Contractors

Construction  contract(s)  must  include  a requirement  to procure  and  install  only  items  that

comply  with  BABAA  or  are  subject  to an approved  waiver.  Contractors  must  provide

manufacturers'  certifications  for  all  BABAA  compliant  items  to  the  responsible  party  before  a

request  for  reimbursement  to the  Agency  is made.  At  completion,  the  contractor  will  be required

to certify  that  all  items  used  on  the  contract  complied  with  BABAA  and  that  all  manufacturers'

certifications  were  provided.



August  16,  2023

Elizabeth  Ybarra

Community  Programs  I,oan  Specialist

U.S  Department  of  Agriculiure  -  Rutal  Development

One  Sun  Plaza

100  Sun  Avenue  NE,  Suite  130

Albuquerque,  NM  87109

MJm!"a(W
&COMPANY
HIGHER  REIATIONSHIPS

4401  Mastliead  Street  NE. Suite  150

Albuquerque.  NM 87109

505  348  4000  (phone)
505  348  4055  (fax)

wilsonco  com

Re:  T  or  C Water  System  Performance  Improvements-2  (\X'SPI-2)  Amendment

Dear  Ms.  Ybarra,

This  letter  will  constitute  as an amendment  to the  Preliminary  Engineer  Report,  entitled  "Water  System

Performance  Improvements  2"  for  the  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  (City),  New  Mexico,  dated  November

2021.

BACKGROUND

The  changes  on  this  amendment  were  recommended  by  the  eng'neer  and  approved  by  the  city  to be ultimately

the  most  beneficial  improvements  to  the  existing  water  system.  The  original  PER  scope  included  the

replacement  of  existing  waterline  and  a new  water  source.  This  Amendment  1 removes  the  new  water  source,

which  revises  the  scope  to only  replacement  of  existing  waterline.  These  design  changes  affect  both  what  is to

be constructed  and  the  project  cost.  The  amendment  is also  necessary  to  increase  construction  cost  to  address

the  inflation  rate  since  the  PER  was  issued  and  the  post  Covid  material  costs.  This  amendment  does  not  change

the  intent  of  the  origmal  PER  recommended  alternative  of  managing  the  high-pressure  surges  that  caused  the

aging infrastructure to fail resulting in a vast numbet of  waterlines breaks evei7 )tear. These changes help solve
the  system  pressure  and  fire  flow  issues  in  more  areas  of  the  City  and  will  reduce  the  high-pressure  issues  and

pressure  spikes  that  cause  the  aging  inftastructure  to  fail,  which  leads  to  water  lines  breaks,  water  outages,  and

the  loss  of  potable  water.  All  clianges  wete  validated  by  the  hydraulic  model  and  were  confirmed  to  improve

upon  the  original  most  beneficial  to  the  City.

CHANGE  IN  SCOPE

The  following  sections  have  been  removed  from  the  scope:

@ Downtown  Pipeline  Replacement:  Approximately  618  feet  of  8"  line  will  be  installed  on  S Pershing  St

replacing  existing  4"  watcrline,  has been  removed  from  the  design  as well  as 4 service  connection

replacements.  This  area  was  determined  to  be sufficient  by  the  hydraulic  model,  therefore  was  removed

from  the  scope.  See  (A)  on  Figute  14.A.

*  East  Side  Pipeline  Replacement:  Approximately  649  feet  of  8"  line  will  be installed  on  East  Riverside

Dr  from  the  intersection  from  Cherry  ln to the crossing  at Arrowhead  Rd  replacing  existing  6"

waterline,  this  modification  also  removes  5 service  connection  replacements,  this  Une was  determined

to be adequate  to manage  the  system  pressure  and  has been  removed  ftom  the  scope.  See  (B)  on

Figute  14.A.

*  North  side  Proposed  well:  removal  of  the  installation  of  the  water  well  located  on  Cemetery  Road  tvith

all  appurtenances,  this  modification  removes  the  land  acquisition  for  the  new  well,  the  hydrogeology

well  study  and  all  electrical  accessories.  See  (C)  on  Figute  14.A.

Wllson & Company, Inc.. Engineers & Architects

d I !i C I l) I I n e i I n t e n S I t '/ i C 011 a b O ( a t 1011 i S It a I e d O W n e L S h I p i != 0111 t 1011 S
i



T or C Water  System Performance  Improvements-2  (WSPI-2) Amendment

8/16/2023
I)g. 2

WlbON
&COMPANY

The  following  sections  have  been  added  to  the  scope:

Lines  east of  the  downtown  area: Approximately  675 feet  of  8"  line  will  be installed  on  East  Riverside

Dr  from  Ash  St to Cedar  St. replacing  existing  6"  waterline.  And  installing  an additional  of  6 water

meter  connections.  This  section  is included  to improve  pressures  on  the  eastern  side  of  the  system  and

provide  further  redundancy  and  tie in  current  projects  being  developed  on  the  downtown  atea. This

work  was previously  specified  in the  PER  for  WSPI-1  See (D)  on  Figute  14.A,  which  was removed

from  that  scope.

An  updated  exhibit  (Figure  14. A),  as well  as the  orig'nal  PER  design  (Figure  14),  shows  the  changes  described

above  are attached.

NEW PROJECT SCOPE

The  project  includes  open  trench  replacement  of  approximately  5,257-I.F  of  6-inch  waterline  witch  an 8-inch

line  east  of  the  Main  Street  District  atea  on  East  Riverside  Dr.  as well  as replacement  of  approximately  8,726-

I,F  of  6-inch  with  a 10-inch  waterline  towards  Williamsburg  cteating  aloop  starting  from  S. Broadway  and  Iron

Street  going  south,  turning  east on  Veater  street  and  North  on  Platinum  St to end back  on S Broadway  St. All

the  waterline  replacements  will  be 3 to 5 feet  and  running  parallel  to the existing  water  lines  with  3' wide  by 4'

deep  trench.  No  additional  land  requirements  are required  for  the  replacement  of  the  water  lines,  and  all new

water  lines  ate within  the  existing  right-of-way.  The  project  also includes  the  installation  of  new  meter  cans,

water  service  lines,  and  connections  to the  existing  system.  Site  work  will  include  roadway  asphalt  removal  and

replacement  as needed.

NEED  FOR PROTECT

Health,  Sanitation,  Security  Issues:  In  addition  to the original  health,  sanitation,  and  security  issues since  the

original  PER  was published  in November  2020,  the  number  of  waterline  breaks,  and  the potable  water  loses

have  increased  significantly.  The  news  article:  "In  drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a City  loses  nearly  half  its

water - to leaky pipes" by Searchlight New Mexico, Independent Investigation Joutnalism on February 15,
2023, states 'Aging water lines burst near-tlai0 in loruth or Consequences, but fimding for tvpairs has run dry.". Other
highlights in the article states "In 2022, over 200 tiiiljion gallons - a stay,ering 43 percent of  the water in the systw - was
lostto leaJeage. Threeyears earlier, losses were at 28 percent. Not only does this show houi qnick0 the system has been deteriomting,
but "it's a sign of things to come,", 'litie  breaks in the fragUe system are a near-da% event, with over 400 repttin made last

year:", and ""U7e'iie had cars drive into sinkholes" ajler subsurftzceseepages destalgijized the ground,". (Full article attached)

NBC  News  Article  March  12,  2023:  "In  Truth  or  Consequences,  N.M.,  lealang  pipes  cause millions  of  gallons

of  water to go down the dtain amid drought", "System shutojfs hai'e becoine routine in the desert ci0 as niork.et:r patch np
mtiquated  underground  lines.....".  Other  highlights  in  the  article  states 'But  ainid  a worsening  regiona!  drought, the town

uiith the cutiom name is lositz 200 million gallons of potable water ayear because ofantiqtmted umlergrvundpipes that leak,@it
and soinetimes gush 30 fiet into the air, putting not otdy its nearly 6,000 residents at risk of haiiing their water shut off but also
threatening operations at the c%'s five pitMic schools and its only hospita! and nursing hoine. 3"choojs has already been forced to
dose without niarning several titim otier the kstyear as uiater is shut off wh'Ue repairs are made, cit)i officials said" and "Jxut
week, they were reiponsiblefotfixing 14 brokm lines, 17 ofnihich occiitred on a siide day, uiastewaterdirectorArnulJo CartaiTeda
said. Resident Susan Abts, 72, said her water was abrttptly cut off last motxth after a break near her home caused a gusher to
shoot 30 fiet". Along with: 'T)uring prexiious hoursjong water outages at Sierra Tiista Horpital and Clinia, emergetuy room
patients were tunied away or taken 75 inijes by ambulance to L7J Cruces Officials at Sierra T.a'ista said they haiie enough reserve
water to last a few %s, but aftertha[, patients would haiie to be sent elsewhere.". (Full article attached)



T or C Water  System  Performance  Improvements-2  (WSPI-2)  Amendment

8/16/2023
4g. 3

VfflBON
&COMP4M1

City Dispatch  Records: The existing system's water leaks from City dispatch records from January 2022 unt'l
September  2022. There  was  a total of  367 pipe  leaks/breaks within  this nine-month range. Past records show
an average  of  4.5  houts  for  the  City  crew  to complete  tepairs.  This  has  increased  the  amount  of  operation  and

maintenance  costs  allocated  to  emergency  repairs  in  2022.  The  City  estimates  that  out  of  a 270-day  period,  the

City  crew  worked  206  days  in  waterline  tepairs  merely;  these  replacements  not  only  increase  the  operation  and

maintenance  but  also  increase  the  health  and  sanitation  issue  for  the  City's  residents  due  to  water  outages.

ENVIRONMENTAI,

The  original  PER  was  replacement  of  existing  waterline  and  a new  water  source,  and  no  environmental  report

was  completed  Eot this  scope.  This  Atnendment  1 temoves  the  new  water  source,  with  the  remaining  scope

now  only  including  the  replacement  of  existing  waterline,  which  should  meet  the  USDA  NEPA  categorial

exclusion  requirements.  This  amendment  removes  the  new  water  source  and modifies  the  waterline

replacements  to meet  the  design  goals,  which  are depicta:l  in  Figure  14.A  and  labeled  as "WSPI  2".  The  new

waterlines  are  in  previously  disturbed  areas  within  the  City's  rights-of-way  but  will  need  to  be  evaluated  to  meet

the  USDA  NEPA  requirements.  The  replacement  waterlines  tvin  be  increased  in  size  to  meet  the  City's  existing

system  requirements  and  the  City's  design  goals.  If  an environmental  report  will  be required,  the  cost  will  need

to be  added  to the  total  cost  of  the  project.

COST  ESTIMATE

By making  these  changes  to the  scope  of  the  ptoject,  the  new  estimated  total  cost  is $9,900,000.00  which  is

approximately  $1,466,487.00  more  than  the orig'nal  total  estimate.  The  increase  in cost  is due to the

construction  cost  increases  since  the  original  PER  was  phiblished  and  the  post  Covid  inflation.  A  detailed  cost

estimate  is attached.

Sincerely,

Mark  A.  Nasi,  PE

Sr. Water/Wastcwater Ptoject  Manager

Wilson  &  Company,  Inc.,  Eng'neers  &  Architects

Cc: Angie  Gonzales,  City  Manager,  City  ofTnitli  or  Consequences

arraci Alvarcz, Assiiiiant City Manager, Cit5i of  Truth  ty Cxiniiequcnces
ilrnulfo  Castaneda, Water/  lVastcwatei'  Director,  City of  Truth or Consequences
Robert  Garcia,  p.b., State  Engineer,  New  Mexico  Stare  Office,  Rural  Developnien+,{ISD.'l

Brian J. j'imlimgi,  PH, Water Resources Operations Manageri Wilson & Co+npany, lnc., Enginecrii & Architects

J. j\lfredo  Holguin, I'E, Senior Pmlect Manager, Wilson & Cnmpa+iy, Inc., H+'igineers & rlrchitects
Daniela  Ducon  IT,  MSHF.,  Water  &  lX'astewater  Designer,  Wilson  &  Coinpany,  lnc.,  F.ngineers  &  Arcliitects

jlttachme+its:  Figui'e  14  -  Original  PER  Recommentl  i'ilternativc

Rgure  14tl  -  Amendment  I revised  mod+ficati+in

Engineers  Estimate  of  Proliable  Cost

News  .Article's



FIGURE  14

Original  PER  Recommend  Alternative



H/faSON
&COMPANY
HIG  H E R R E LA'l 10 N S HI 9 S

PRELIMINARY

ENGINEERING  REPORT

WA'TERSYSTEM IMPROVEMEN'lS

7  CONSEQU-ENe$

Legend

*  Proposed  Well

'-  Well

@ Booster  Station

m Tank

'aaa  Reconmendaj

aasyszaaiu

AND HYDRAULIC

PERFORMANCE

ENHANCEMENTS

FIGURE 14



FIGURE  14.A

Amendment  1 revised  modification



a '=  i

-;d,_

I

t
a-';. "s . 'l ,- :  ,q.,  .i .,  , =o= . __

,- '%__  -_--  - i  .
:.  - II '  :  -  .

':%'*. Ii ;'  (  'f_ ' _ _) - . I A . - ." ""  5'   '  i , a:701

o?:'- '\',  " , =  -  >  !'  a."  3 :-  //-" ':;.- - '+'l .,' _-= iraa, 4  - ,!

i_  %% _'-'y,:, '"o"  - 13!!j'. = _.  % '   __  _ _  __ _ ((

":.laj.,Jla 'illl'
It ]y+;...  __a
ll  0 ,,

a/  , .,

il'i),, :a(:*: - 'l'i':l

,,_,a.i:,,,a.,. i  "%"::,

"o:;;.:,,, 'o }fil,

I ,%  _  .,,  "-,:'.,,  !/
I _ .-  .

l --'  "-  - o ' _ "a-..a"""a"

I - ""  -.  'y-  /.'
I

/. =  "';l-4-
,,;-";  < .

- --- --="=-(""=,=...-,.., .f:."'.,.., -=
-=- .', l: . ., =.'-I -,.=  . .,..  . i 4- a -

I ICOOKST.BOOSTERSTAT10NI - .. _-=[  i I r :' i . :ii.,...,.;=--=f---d  I :'TiaA =[

' .. - "__i=f,-=:'i:l.jj=  -""l-x-+- -""

#2  IT o - ' _ - , ,_ - --  - "  '-  L -1 -- - - " =, ;--"',! ! " a' - f 'I ': ':"  -
MORGAN  57, TANK  '  --'  -g - -a ' a ' - ", H'. -- -a H.x,L ,= _, Y '  /

#6 __ _=  YI , s, .'l  p tpaute4pua:6 MEN:-  "-'  a - a__: .-"   -  4_7't  . ,

=-a  i,-  il

,,.. . , .  I k,  I - - =  I)  .NEWSl:8a

[" "" #=8. =' - ' -';- -.'- =-'i-J":'  = _.  a
675  LF

#4,  ::,  __  ___-

---!/a5  . PIPalNE  REPI.ACEMENT:  - l'PEuNE  REPLACE!IIE:, 3--.2  :'_ I -----":EXIS'nNGSIZE:6a  E)aSTINGSIZE:6a_':f NEWSIZE:8a  NEWM:  8a

=--!  675LF 4,S79LF

-.. - '.,.. ' ; 0 = = - _ i= _ El

""   _I :l -' -  - -l -' o ,-; '  -'  -=

" ' " a a a "a ' .'[___ ./ :}H . - . Il  ii  . I'l . f jj T  4.ai i  PIPELINE REPIACEMEIIIT.'%
 EXISIING!):q  USFeet'

-.N l  . _. '45(_,-"a"""'  0 1,000 2,000- N  I  - - -  -__  =  618E

!' II , S . .-_ - "  ' EX IIN = 2,000 FT', - '_' H 'PIl'B_iNEREF'lACEl4ENTl '" (u-  E)aS'nNGSIZE:6a

'._ /_/, . /ii .'  b  _ -_.. - - -#7 '- - - - _ . . Grandp pgv , 8, ,6  ,,  lo,, NeW MaiC(l Sfflte llnivetstby. Em. HERE. Garmin. SafeGiaph. GeoTechnologies Inc MEn/NAS4 IISGS, Bureau 01 Land Management
/,,  _

 EPA NPS LIS Census Bureau, uSDA

Wll4EaOm
&COMPAJsY
HIGHER  RELATIONSHIPS

WATER  SYSTEM

IMPROVENIENTS  2  (NSPI  2)

AMENDMEHT

mrnurhon  ,.,,..-,
7  CONSEQUENCES

Legend

n  PRVS

6  Wells

[n Tanks

-  Existing Waterlines

-  Removed from WISPI 2

-  !/VISPI I

-  WISPI2

WATER 8YSTBffl
l#ROWJEa2  (W)SP14)

SCOPE AMENDMEHT

FIGIIRE 14A



COST

ESTIMATE

WSPI-2



WatarSysiam %rTomiancs Improvements 2 IWISPI-2)
Open  Trench  Wateillnii

ffEM!i  LIST uNITS QTY uNITCOST EXTEND  COST

General

I Mob/Demob.  (7.S%  of  General  Cost) 1 saoti,gsg.as Saos,ggg.as
2 Traffic  Control  (8%  of  General  Cost) I 6433,482.[17 S433,482.07

3 Conmucklon  Survey/Staking  (2.17%  of  General  Cost) LS I S117,582.01 S117,582.01

4 SWI!)P  Pieparatlon,  Implementatlon,  and  InSpeCtiOn  (1% Of General  Cost) I S54,185.26 S54,185.26

5 Matetiali  Testing  ([1.2% of  General  Cost) 1 S27,092.63 627,092.63

6 SubsurIace  Utlllty  Locating LS 1 S40,000.00 640,000.00

7 11tility  Relocation 1 S40,000.00 540,000.0[]

8 AC Pipe  Removal  and  Dlsposal I SO.O[) 50.00

Watarllne

9 Pi" Watetllne  C-%O  OR-18  PVC Pipe  Instlled  With  Trenching  and  Backfill LF 5254 S100.OO S525,400.00

20 20"  Waterline  C-!10(I OR-18  PVC Plpe Installed  With  Tienchlng  and  BackIill LF 8726 S125.00 51,090,750.00

II lack  and  Bore  w/  18-inch  Caiing  plpe,  CIP LF 30 S375.00 Sll,250.00

12 4-1/2'  Fke Hytkant  w/  piping  valvei,  and connection EA 28 610,000.00 S279,080.00

13 6" Gate  Valves  w/  Valve  Can, CIP EA 8 S3,000.00 S24,000.00

14 8" Gate  Valves  w/  Valve  Can, CIP EA 25 S3,800.00 S!15,0[10.00

15 10"  Gate  Valvei  w/  Valve  Can, CIP EA 74 94,000.00 S296,000.00

16 Pressurized  waterllne  connedlons,  CIP EA 23 Sll,500.OC 5264,500.00

17 [)udile  lion  Ml  Fitkingi,  All  Sizes, Claii  25, CIP LB 4700 S3.OC S14,100.00

18 Joint  Restraints,  CIP EA 134 S150.OC Szo.too.oo
19 l'a Water  Service,  New  single  connedion  to exlsting  watermlan,  clp.  SO 2362 EA gy 61,3001]C 6126,100.00

20 Water  Meter  Box  Remove  & Replace EA 97 S1,300.OC S126,100.00

21 Dewateiing  of  Trench.  CIP IF sggo S50.OC S349,500.00

22 Valve/Pipellne  abandonment 1 S37,129.0( S37,129.00

23 Hydram  removal  and  abandonment LS I 611,819.(M 5u,sig.oa
Roadway

32
Asphalt  Roadway,  Remove,  Dispose  and  Replace  with  SP Ill, 3"  Thick  lay  Reiidenjial  Streeti,

include SuJade Prep, CIP
SY 6213 S70.0[1 5434,932.90

33
Asphalt  Roadway,  Remove,  Dispoie  and  Replace  with  SP Ill, 6"  Thick  for  Arerial  Streets,  include

Subgrade  Ptep,  CIP
SY 4885 S100.OO 9488,500.00

34 Excavate  and Dlspoie  oj  unsuitable  Material,  CIP CY 29310 615.OC S439,650.00

35 Import  ol  Engineered  Flll CY 29310 S25.0( S732,750J]0

36 Geogiid  Bate  Roadway  Reinforcement SY 4885 SS.[)( S24,425.00

37 Remove  and  replace  Curb  and  Gutkei  @ Services,  CIP LF 280 S35. €( 5g,soo.oo
38 Remove  and  replace  Sldewalk  @ Services,  CIP CY 196 S!10.0( 517,640.00

Construction  Cost  Subtotal S6,537,257.36

2-YR  Inflation  @ 4.55%  + Canstnictlon  Cost  Subtotal S6,834,703.00

Contingency  - 10% S683,470.00

NMGRT  @ 8j7S% S629,647.[1[1

Interim  Finance  Interest SIOI,847.75

TOTAL  ESTIMATEO  CONSTRUCTION  COST 98,249,667.75

ENGINEERING  SERV1CE3

39 Bridge  Loan @ 5.0% LS I S69,404.0[1 969,404jX

40 Additlonal  Englneerlng  - Data  Collection' I S186,000. €0 6186,000.1) €

41 Prelimlnary  EnBineerlng  Repork-l'ER ) S35,000.00 535,OOOIIC

42 Environmental  w/  Report l S25,000.00 S25,000.OC

44 Engineering  Design  Services LS 1 S751,817.00 9751,817.OC

45 Englneering  - Bid Phaie LS ) 920,000.00 S20,000.0(

46 Engineering  - Conmuctlon  Inspectlon I S265,000.00 S265,000.0(

48 Engineering  - Construction  Management I S105,254.00 S105,254.0(

Endneerlng  Ssmces  Subtotal S1,457,475.0(

Contlngencl 937,2!111][

NM(iRT  @ 7.6250% Slll,132.0[

Engineering  Total 5i,sos,sgg.ot

FINANaN(i  iERVICES

4!I ILoan Origination Fee INo Fee Fnom Local Bankl I LS I 01 S76.8"lO.00 60.00

Flnanclng  Services  !iubto!al SO.OI

Cantlngency  - 0% SO.OI

NMGRT  @ !1.375% SO.OI

Legal  Services  Total 60.01

LEGA!jERVICES

50 ILegal Fees - Project Attomey (City Atttnney used- Not Neededl l- l- I SI0,000.00 60.00

51 ILegal Fees - Bond Counsel l- l- 621,000.(Xl 621,000.00

Legal  Semces  Subtotal 541,000.CR]

Contingency  - 0% SO.OO

NMGRT  @ 8.375% S3,434.00

Legal  Semces  Total 544,434.00

_GRANDTOTAL 7



NBC  News  Article  March  12,  2023:

"In  Truth  or  Consequences,  'N.M..,

leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of

gallons  of  water  to go down  the

drain  amid  drought",



8/14/23,  3:52 PM In Truth or Consequences,  N.M., leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of gallons  of water  to go down the drain amid drought

CLTMAJE  IN Cl-ilS[S

In Truth  or  Consequences,  N.M.,  leaking  pipes  cause  millions

ofgallons  ofwaterto  go down  the  drain  amid  drought

-  Workers  repair  a pipe  Wednesday  in  Truth  or  Consequences,  N.M.,  which  lost  43% of  its  water  supply

last  year  because  of  lealmg  pipes  the  city  says it cannot  afford  to fix  permanently.  Paul  Ratje  for  NBC News

March  12,  2023,  6:00  AM MDT

By  Deon  J.  Hampton

https://www -go-dr-rcna73629 1/18



8/1  4/23,  3:52  PM In Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of  gallons  of  water  to go down  the drain  amid  drought

TRUTH  OR CONSEQUENCES,  N.M.  -  For  centuries,  Native  American  tribal  leaders  and  others

have  trekked  to  this  oasis  to  unwind  and  relax  in  the  abundant  hot  springs  that  course

underground,  bubbling  up  through  the  crusty  desert  floor.

But  amid  a worsening  regional  drought,  the  town  with  the  curious  name  is losing  200  million

gallons  of  potable  water  a year  because  of  antiquated  underground  pipes  that  leak,  spit  and

sometimes  gush  30  feet  into  the  air,  putting  not  only  its  nearly  6,000  residents  at risk  of  having

their  water  shut  off  but  also  threatening  operations  at the  city's  five  public  schools  and  its only

hospital  and  nursing  home.

Schools  have  already  been  forced  to  close  without  warning  several  times  over  the  last  year  as

water  is shut  off  while  repairs  are  made,  city  officials  said.

'J"f.""Th

-  Water  Department  worker  Andrew  Curry  repairs  a pipe  in Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  where  new

LEAKS spring up nearl)7 eveI7  day. Paul Ratje  for  NBC News

https://www -go-dr-rcna73629 2/18



8/14/23,  3:52  PM In Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of gallons  of  water  to go down  the  drain  amid  drought

The  system  is so old  it  includes  wooden  pipes  built  in  the  1800s  and  is patched  up  by  one  worker

from  the  city's  Water  Department  and  two  others  on  loan  from  the  sewer  department.  Last

week,  they  were  responsible  for  fixing  14 broken  lines,  11 of  which  occurred  on  a single  day,

wastewater  director  Arnulfo  Castafieda  said.

Resident  Susan  Abts,  72, said  her  water  was  abruptly  cut  off  last  month  after  a break  near  her

home  caused  a gusher  to  shoot  30  feet  into  the  air.

'Tm  concerned  where  this  is going,"  she  said.

https://www -go-dr-rcna73629 3/18



8/1 4/23,  3:52  PM In Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of gallons  of water  to go down  the drain  amid  drought

https://www -go-dr-rcna73629 4/18



8/1 4/23,  3:52  PM  In Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of gallons  of water  to go down  the drain  amid  drought

-  Jesus Baray,  33, the  manager  of  El Faro  restaurant  in Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  says the family

business'  wafer  iS frequeltly  Shut  Off  unexpectedly.  Paul  Ratje  for  NBC News

So is Jesus Baray, the manager  of  EI Faro restaurant,  which  lost its water  without  warning  three

weeks  ago  while  meals  were  being  served  and  dishes  were  being  washed.  The  downtown

business  was  closed  for  two  days.

"I  understand  to  a certain  point,  but  it  keeps  happening,"  Baray  said.  "That's  the  frustration."

Last  year,  as many  as 30  water  pipes  broke  in  one  day.  As the  system  continues  to  fail,  water  in

some  parts  of  the  city  could  be  shut  off  for  a week  at a time,  City  Manager  Bruce  Swingle  said.

"It's  a crisis,"  he  said  last  week.  "We're  there."

A geographic  divide

Millions  of  gallons,  representing  43%  of  the  city's  supply,  were  lost  in  the  last  year  as the  West

struggles  under  a drought  so severe  it  threatens  the  power-generating  capabilities  of  lakes  Mead

and  Powell  and  is drying  up  the  Colorado  River,  which  provides  much  of  the  region's  water.

The  situation  also  reflects  the  geographic  divide  in  the  U.S. as rural  communities  compete  with

large metropolitan  areas for a chunk  of  the $555 billion  in the federal  infrastructure  bill  to

upgrade  the  country's  aging  bridges,  roads,  levees  and  pipelines.

https:/ -go-dr-rcna73629 5/18



8/1 4/23, 3:52 PM In Truth or Consequences,  N.M.i  leaking pipes cause millions of gallons of water to go down the drain amid drought

After  Elephant  Butte  Dam,  the  flow  of  the  Rio  Grande  is greatly  reduced,  leaving  a dry  riverbed  for  most

Of [he Year jn sollthern  NEW MeX!CO. Paul Ratje for  NBC News

https:/ -go-dr-rcna73629 6/18



8/14/23,  3:52  PM In Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of gallons  of water  to go down  the  drain  amid  drought

Water  officials  in Truth  or Consequences  estimate  it would  cost $150 million  to overhaul  or

replace  the  deteriorating  system.  Even patching  up the leaks more  permanently  would  cost $20

million,  which  the  city  says  it can't  afford.

Passed in 2021, the Infrastructure  Investment  and  Jobs Act was hailed  by federal  officials  as a

once-in-a-generation  investment  aimed  in  part  to  improve  "communities  that  have too  often

been  left  behind."

But  city  officials  said  that  seems  to  be  happening  in  Truth  or  Consequences,  which  has  received

no  response  to  its applications  last  year  and  this  year  for  federal  infrastructure  money.

Small  cities  typically  rely  on  federal  grants  to  improve  their  infrastructure,  but  what  they  get

usually  isn't  enough  to  cover  an  overhaul,  said  Ken  Rainwater,  who  retired  last  year  as a civil

engineering  professor  at Texas  Tech  University.

"It  costs  money  to  maintain  infrastructure,"  he  said.

https://www -go-dr-rcna73629 7/18



8/14/23,  3:52  PM  In Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of gallons  of water  to go down  the drain  amid  drought

-  City  manager  Bruce  Swingle,  62, in Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  which  says it needs  $150 million  to

overhaul i[S aging wafer  COnve7anCe S37Stem. Paril Ratje  for  NBC News

Swingle  said  that  as pipes  collapse  daily,  he  fears  schools  and  health  care  providers  could  be at

risk  of  biohazard  conditions  if  there  isn't  enough  water  to  wash  hands  or  flush  toilets  in  an

unexpected,  prolonged  outage.

During  previous  hourslong  water  outages  at Sierra  Vista  Hospital  and  Clinics,  emergency  room

patients  were  turned  away  or  taken  75 miles  by  ambulance  to  Las  Cruces.

Officials  at  Sierra  Vista  said  they  have  enough  reserve  water  to  last  a few  days,  but  after  that,

patients  would  have  to  be sent  elsewhere.

"I  can't  imagine  the  hospital  would  have  enough  water  for  three  days,"  said  Swingle,  who  is also

the  chairman  of  the  hospital's  governing  board.

Scott  Williams,  the  administrator  of  the  Sierra  Health  Care  Center  nursing  home,  said  it does

have  an  emergency  plan,  but  he declined  to  say  what  it  would  do  if  water  were  shut  off  for  a long

time.  He  said  the  facility  has  enough  reserve  water  for  at least  a few  days.

Swingle  predicts  outages  will  become  more  frequent  and  last  longer  in  the  summer,  when  usage

increases,  placing  even  more  pressure  on  the  unreliable  system.

https://www -go-dr-rcna73629 8/18



8/14/23,  3:52 PM In Truth or Consequences,  N.M.i  leaking  pipes  cause  millions of gallons of water to go down the drain amid drought

Truth  or Consequences  has been  losing  almost  half  of  its water  supply  to excessive  leakage caused by
antiquatedpipes'bursting.  Paul  Ratje  for  NBC News

Holidaytourism  soars

https:/ -go-dr-rcna73629 9/18



8/14/23,  3:52  PM In Truth  or Consequences,  N.M.,  leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of  gallons  of water  to go down  the  drain  amid  drought

The  city  can  attract  more  than  100,000  visitors  during  holiday  weekends  as people  flOCk  to  the

hot  springs  and  the  state's  largest  lake,  Elephant  Butte,  5 miles  from  downtown.  Any  of  them

could  suffer  a medical  emergency  during  an  outage,  Swingle  said.

Originally  known  as Hot  Springs,  Truth  or  Consequences  underwent  a rebrand  in  1950  when  the

radio  game  show  "Truth  or  Consequences"  vowed  to  broadcast  its  10th-anniversary  episode  in

the  first  U.S.  city  to change  its name  to  the  moniker.  Hot  Springs  won  the  national  contest.

Local  lore  holds  that  the  prominent  Apache  leader  Geronimo  would  soak  in  the  hot  springs  after

battle.

A present-day  political  leader,  state  Sen.  Crystal  Diamond,  a Republican  who  represents  the  city,

last month  introduced  Senate Bill 359, which  would  allocate  $20 million  from  the state's general

fund  to  help  repair  the  pipes.

Diamond  said  she  previously  asked  the  office  of  Gov.  Michelle  Lujan  Grisham,  a Democrat,  for

money  to  fix  the  problem  but  never  got  a response.  Lujan  Grisham  declined  to  comment.

https:/ -go-dr-rcna73629 1 0/18



8/14/23,  3:52  PM  In Truth  or Consequences,  N.M., leaking  pipes  cause  millions  of gallons  of water to go down the drain amid drought

-  Susan  Abts  and  Nancy  Simpson  shop  together  at a Bullocks  Supermarket  in Truth  or Consequences,

N.M.y  On Wednesday.  Abts  had  her  water  off  for  days when  a pipe  burst  on her  street  recently.

Paul  Ratje  for  NBC News

The state Environment  Department  said it gave $5.3 million  to the city  for its drinl<ing  water

system,  but  Swingle  said  the  money  came  from  the  federal  government  for  a downtown  water

project  unrelated  to  the  collapsing  pipelines.

Diamond,  who  insists  there  is enough  money  in  state  coffers  to  pay  for  the  repairs,  said:  "I  don't

think  they're  talang  this  seriously.

"In  rural  and  remote  areas  of  New  Mexico,  when  there's  not  a huge  population,  they  just  don't

get  the  investment,"  she  added.  "Providing  water  is a public  safety  concern  and  should  be

prioritized."

Across  the  U.S.,  water  main  breaks  occur  every  two  minutes,  with  an estimated  6 billion  gallons

of  treated  water  lost  daily,  according  to  the  2021  report  card  from  the  American  Society  of  Civil

Engineers.

"All  we're  doing  is repairing  the  water  lines,"  Swingle  said.  "Once  we  make  the  repair,  it's  going

to  leak  in  very  close  proximity.  The  water  will  just  find  the  next  vulnerable  spot  and  come  to  the

surface."

Deon  J.  Hampton

Deon J. Hampton  is a national reporter  for NBC News.

-go-dr-rcna73629 11/18



Searchlight  New  Mexico,

Independent  Investigation

Journalism  on February  15,  2023

"In  drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a

city  loses  nearly  half  its  water  - to

leaky  pipes"



8/14/23,  3:38  PM In drought-plagued  New Mexico,  a city loses  nearly  half its water  to leaky pipes

SEARCP

,,t,,0 [Rt
I ' i =

One  of  the  city's  old  water  tanks,  which  is no longer  in use, atop  Tower  Hill  in Tnith  or  Consequences.  Michael  Benanav/Searchlight  New

Mexico

In  drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city  loses  nearly

half  its  water  -  to  leaky  pipes
Aging  water  lines  burst  near-daily  in  Truth  or  Consequences,  but  funding  for  repairs  has  run

dry.

by  Michael  Benanav

February  15,  2023

Pnvscy  - Terms

-to-leaky-pipes/ 1/10



8/14/23,  3:38  PM  In drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city  loses  nearly  half  its water  to leaky  pipes

Set  on  the  northern  bank  of  the  Rio  Grande,  along  a bend  in  the  river  about  150  miles  south  of  Albuquerque,

the  city  of  Truth  or Consequences  is home  to some  6,000  people.  Neighborhoods  of  single-story  houses  and

mobile  homes  fan  out  from  a historic  downtown  district  with  galleries  and  restaurants,  a local  pharmacy  and  a

grocery,  and  the  visitor  center  for  Spaceport  America.

Since  at least  the  late  19th  century,  the  area  has been  known  for  its  natural  hot  springs,  and  T or C still

promotes  itself  as a low-key  themial  resort  town.  "Most  people  who  come  here  are on  a magical  getaway  of

some  kind,"  said  John  Masterson,  co-owner  of  the  Truth  or Consequences  Brewing  Company.

Far  less  magical  is what's  happening  beneath  the  ground.  About  half  of  T or C's  water  supply  lines  are more

than  50 years  old;  some  date  to the 1930s,  according  to a 2021  engineering  report.  Many  are "beyond  their

expected  useful  life,"  the report  notes.

The  result:  leaks,  and  lots  of  them.

Water  lines being  replaced  in downtown  Truth  or Consequences.  Michael  Benanav/Searchlight  New Mexico

https://searchlightnm -to-leaky-pipes/ 2/1 0



8/14/23,  3:38 PM In drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city loses nearly  half its water  to leaky  pipes

In 2022,  over  200 million  gallons  -  a staggering  43 percent  of  the water  in the system  -  was lost to leakage,

according  to T or C's  city  manager,  Bruce  Swingle.  Three  years  earlier,  losses  were  at 28 percent. Not only

does  this  show  how  quickly  the system  has been  deteriorating,  but  "it's  a sign  of  things to come," Swingle

said  during  an interview  at his office.

Line  breaks  in the fragile  system  are a near-daily  event,  with  over  400  repairs  made  last  year.  As soon  as one

section  is fixed,  Swingle  said, "the  water  finds  the next  most  vulnerable  spot"  and bursts  through  it, like  an

endless  game  of  water-line  Whac-a-Mole.  "We've  had  cars drive  into  sinkholes"  after  subsurface  seepages

destabilized  tlie  ground,  he added.

While  some  residents  accept  the leaks  and related  water  outages  with  patience,  believing  the city  is doing the

best  it can, a certain  amount  of  frustration  is unavoidable.  "Unless  there's  a geyser  coming  out of  the ground,

it's  not  a priority  to the city,"  local  artist  June Jewell  wrote  in an email.  Last  year  there  was a leak in front  of

her  house  for  four  months,  she elaborated,  adding  that  since  September  there's  also been  "a  steady flow  of

water  24/7"  from  another  leak  down  the block.

Work  on  a waterline  in the  city's  downtown.  Michael  Benanav/Searchlight  New  Mexico

https:/ -to-leaky-pipes/ 3/1 0



8/14/23,  3:38  PM In drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city  loses  nearly  half  its water  to leaky  pipes

Robin  McBroom,  who  has lived  in  T or C for  less than  a year,  is "worried  that  the whole  system  is going  to go

down."  There  are leaks  all  the time,  she said,  which  can  "make  a little  lake  in  the middle  of  the street."  Still,

she's  happy  about  her  move.  "This  is where  I've  always  wanted  to retire.  I'd  buy  a 500-gallon  water  tank  and

hook  it  up if  I had  to."

From  its six  wells,  the  city  atu'uially  pumps  475  million  gallons  of  water,  which  is also  piped  to the adjacent

village  of  Williamsburg  and  its 500  residents.  Utility  crews  are constantly  performing  triage,  applying  one

Band-Aid  after  another  to a water  system  tliat  needs  major  surgery.

Two  areas  of  town  -  the  east side  and  the so-called  metal  streets,  with  names  like  Nickel  and  Tin  -  are in

"critical  condition,"  Swingle  said.  "We  have  to replace  those  lines  as soon  as possible.  It's  literally  a crisis,

and  it's  only  going  to get  worse  in  the  next  few  months."  If  nothing  is done,  the  city  faces  system-wide  failure.

Replacing  those  lines  will  cost  an estimated  $20  million,  engineers  have  concluded.  Performing  all  of  the

improvements  that  the  system  needs  has a price  tag  closer  to $150  million.  T or  C cannot  afford  either  option.

And  it  is not  alone.

https:/ -to-leaky-pipes/ 4/1 0



8/14/23,  3:38  PM In drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city  loses  nearly  half  its water  to leaky  pipes

t  t Ill  .-'

Sediment  buildupinside  a section  of a pipe removed  from  the  water  system  in Truth  or Consequences.  Michael

Benanav/Searchlight  New  Mexico

Widespread  problem,  few  solutions

In  drought-ridden  New  Mexico,  concerns  about  water  supply  are paramount,  yet  hundreds  of  water  utilities

have  urgent  infrastructure  needs  and  almost  no way  to  pay  for  them.  Smaller  systems  are affected

disproportionately,  and  two-thirds  of  the  state's  water  systems  serve  500  people  or fewer.

Revenue  from  user  rates  in  these  small  communities  is dwarfed  by  the costs  of  the  needed  upgrades.  And  the

process  for  obtaining  grants  and  loans  is prohibitively  baroque  for  smaller  systems  to pursue.

"The  state's  water  finance  system  is fragmented  and  lacks  a consistent  strategy  or  goal,"  the  Legislative

Finance  Committee  reported  in  2021,  casting  the  problem  in  dire  terms.  New  Mexico's  water  infrastructure

(including  wastewater  systems)  likely  needs  more  than  $2.8  billion  in repairs,  the LFC  concluded.

https:/ -to-leaky-pipes/ 5/1 0



8/14/23,  3:38  PM  In drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city  loses  nearly  half  its water  to leaky  pipes

Additionally,  the  LFC  found  that  funding  is too  often  provided  piecemeal,  which  increases  the  risk  that  work

will  flounder  or stall  indefinitely  because  the money  runs  out.  In  the  village  of  Maxwell,  south  of  Raton,  for

example,  a $1 million  well  project  was  stymied  by  a budget  shortfall  of  about  $30,000,  the  LFC  found.

Problems  like  this  also  plague  water  systems  around  the  country,  according  to a 2021  "report  card"  issued  by

the  American  Society  of  Civil  Engineers.  "There  is a water  main  break  every  two  minutes  and  an estimated

6 billion  gallons  of  treated  water  are lost  each  day  in  the  United  States,"  tlie  grorip  found.

Paul Tooley, chief  of  the volunteer  fire  departmentin  Truth  or Consequences.  Michael  Benanav/Searchlight  New Mexico

Financial  drains

How  was  the water  system  in  T or C allowed  to deteriorate  to such  a degree  of  disrepair?  "I  think  it's  a case of

out  of  sight,  out  of  mind,"  said  T or C's  fire  chief,  Paul  Tooley,  who  joined  the volunteer  department  40 years

ago  and  has led  it since  2009.  As long  as water  continued  to flow,  small  problems  buried  underground  could

be overlooked  while  the city's  budget  was  charu'ieled  toward  other  priorities.

https:/ -to-leaky-pipes/ 6/10



8/14/23,  3:38  PM  In drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city  loses  nearly  half  its water  to leaky  pipes

But  the  situation  in which  T or C now  finds  itself  is also  a result  of  past  budgetary  decisions.

Water  utilities  are intended  to function  as "enterprise  systems,"  according  to the LFC,  meaning  that  revenue

from  customers  should  cover  the costs  of  operations  and  maintenance.  Any  money  unspent  at the  end  of  a

fiscal  year,  it adds,  should  be set aside  for  future  projects.

T or C, however,  has habitually  moved  income  earned  by  its water  ritility  into  its general  fund,  to be spent  on

other  things,  depleting  its reserves,  budget  documents  show.  Using  ratepayer  money  for  anything  other  than  its

intended  purpose  is gelly  discouraged;  in some  parts  of  the country,  it's  even  been  outlawed.  The

practice  can  "conceal  poor  budgeting,  ineffective  planning,  and  other  mismanagement  that  could  spell  disaster

for  the  city  and/or  its utilities  in  the long  term,"  according  to the  city  of  Elkins,  West  Virginia,  which  is

about  the  same  size as T or C, and  where  such  transfers  are illegal.

Truth  or Consequences  City Manager  Bruce  Swingle.  Michael  Benanav/Searchlight  New Mexico

Swingle,  who  has been  in his  position  for  less than  two  years,  said  he has raised  this  issue  with  T or C's

commissioners.  "It's  going  to be corrected,"  he said.  But  he said  he is more  interested  in focusing  on

https:/ -to-leaky-pipes/ 7/10



8/14/23,  3:38  PM  In drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city  loses  nearly  half  its water  to leaky  pipes

comes  next  than  in  reviewing  past  decisions.  "Let's  not  point  fingers,  let's  solve  the problem."

That  won't  be easy. Though  Swingle  isn't  daunted  by  the scope  of  tlie  work,  finding  enough  money  to move

forward  poses  a major  challenge.

Currently,  water  lines in the downtown  district  are being  replaced  with  the  help  of  a $3.9 million  rural

development  grant from  tlie  U.S. Department  of  Agriculture,  along  with  a $5.4 million  loan  that  the city

obtained  from  the  local  Bank  of  the Southwest,  Swingle  said.  None  of  that  work  will  touch  the  two

neighborhoods  that  are in critical  condition,  and  it will  barely  make  a dent  in  the  city's  overall  needs.

In  the past  couple  of  years,  T or  C has raised  water  prices  by  more  than  30 percent  to increase  revenue  for

operations  and  improvements.  Voters  approved  a bond  measure  last  November  to provide  $1 million  for  water

infrastnicture.  And  the  city  has asked  U.S.  Sen. Martin  Heinrich  for  $54  million  in federal  appropriations  to

address  the  problems.  But  thus  far  Senator  Heinrich  has only  been  able  to provide  $1.6  million  to "get  the  ball

moving,"  according  to his  office.

Though  water  utilities  in  New  Mexico  can  apply  for  funding  from  several  state  agencies,  T or C has exhausted

those  avenues,  said  Swingle,  and  it  cannot  take  on any  more  debt.  With  its options  dwindling  and  its water

system  rapidly  degrading,  it  needs  what  amounts  to a bailout  by  the  state  legislature  or  the federal

government.

https:/ -to-leaky-pipes/ 8/10



8/14/23,  3:38  PM In drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city  loses  nearly  half  its water  to leaky  pipes

m

r

. 5
'v Y
'1

Mi d.

State  Sen. Crystal  Diamond  talks  with  Sen. Leo JaramNlo  on the Senate  floor  at the State Capitol  in Santa Fe. Michael

Benanav/Searchlight  New Mexico

Wanted:  Pools  of  money

T or  C's  last  best  hope  to avoid  disaster  is an infusion  of  cash  drawn  from  the  pools  of  discretionary  monies

that  the governor  and  state  legislators  can  use to fund  high-priority  projects.  On  February  10,  Swingle  and

State  Sen. Crystal  Diamond  said  they  met  with  Gov.  Michelle  Lujan  Grisham  to ask  for  $19 million,  to which

Diamond  pledged  to add  $1 million  -  aborit  one-third  of  the  total  capital  oritlay  that the senator guesses  she

will  be able  to distribute  this  year,  which  she needs  to spread  among  constituents  in  four  counties.  (The

governor  could  not  immediately  be reached  for  comment.)

"We  can't  kick  the can  down  the  road  on  this  anymore,"  Diamond  said  during  an interview  at the

Roundhouse.  "This  is time-sensitive;  it's  a basic  need  for  our  community."  Noting  that  the  state  expects  a

budget  surplus  in  the  range  of  $3.5 billion  to $4 billion,  she said that the best way  to spend the windfall  is on

infrastnicture

https:/ -to-leaky-pipes/ 9/10



8/14/23,  3:38  PM In drought-plagued  New  Mexico,  a city  loses  nearly  half  its water  to leaky  pipes

State  Rep.  Gail  Armstrong,  whose  district  includes  T or C, agrees  that  spending  on infrastiucture  should  be the

top  priority.  But  her  optimism  is muted.  "There's  all  this  money  now  and  e'veryone  wants  it. There's  a priority

list,  and  a waiting  list,  and  other  communities  that  also  have  critical  infrastnicture  needs.  Hopefully,  the

situation  in  T or  C doesn't  become  a crazy  emergency."

For  Swingle,  patience  is not  an option.  "We  don't  have  years  to deal  with  this,"  he said.  "There  are fewer

problems  in  winter.  In  a few  months,  that's  wlien  you'll  see catastrophic  faiture."

fi k:i'i

4saa

State  Rep. Gail Armstrong  at her seat on the floor  ofthe  legislature.  Michael  Benanav/Searchlight  New Mexico

https:/ -to-leaky-pipes/ 1 0/1 0



,lpl-_As(,!1, €lDrT[UTThD[€DNS[OU[N€
<:':kl!If::la'$> MEETING""'DcA"TuE"':A"ucg"usut'l>4r,'2"02"4v';%ertda Item #: I, 7

-il0aP'
SUBJECT: Discussion/Action  -  GRO Special Appropriation  Intergovernmental  Services Agreement  with South
Central  Council  of  Governments  as Fiscal  Agent

DEPARTMENT:  Community  Development

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  9, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Traci  Alvarez

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE  ITEM:  Angie  Gonzales,  City  Manager

Summary/Background:
City  received  a GRO Special  Appropriation  from Senator  Brantley  in the  amount  of  SIO0,000.00  to  support

law  enforcement  costs  and  resources.  The  legislation  assigned  SCCOG to  be the  fiscal  agent  and  responsible

manager  of  all  funding,  uses  and  administration  of  GRO  Special  Appropriation.  Signature  was  executed  by

required  deadline.

Recommendation:

Approve  Agreement

Attachments:

*  GRO Special  Appropriation  Intergovernmental  Services  Agreement

*

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

Click  here to enter  text

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Approved  For  Submittal  By:  € Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  € Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Clid< here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  Cl'ick i'iei-e  to eiiter  text.  Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€ Approved  € Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24



South  Central

Ejepkatlt  mtt&,  IIIM  87!Dll

(IffQ  744-lW7

INTERGOVERNMENT  AL  SERVICES  AGREEMENT

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences

"GRO  SPECIAL  APPROPRIATIONS

Sierra City Law Enforcement  Prozrammatic  Costs and Resources (Brantley)

WHEREAS,  in the  2024  Legislative  Session,  via  House  Bill2  as appropriated  and  enacted  by Governor

Michelle  Lujan  Grisham,  contained  an appropriation  to support  programmatic  costs,

resources  and  services  for  Sierra  City  & The  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  (Hereinafter

called  "City")  and

WHEREAS,  the  legislation  further  articulated  that  the  South-Central  Council  of  Governments  would

be the  fiscal  agent  and responsible  manager  of  all funding,  uses,  and  administration  in

alignment  with  all applicable  State  laws  and contracts  including  the  attached  grant

agreement(s);  and

WHEREAS,  the  South-Central  Council  of  Governments  (hereinafter  "SCCOG")  provides  a range  of

planning  services  on behalf  of  the  City  and  other  entities  in the  south  central  region  of

New  Mexico,  and  moreover  has  specific  knowledge  of  the  background  and  intent  of  said

planning  grant;  and

WHEREAS,  SCCOG was  statutorily  established  to  function  as a multi-jurisdictional  planning  entity,

formed  by and in service  to a voluntary  association  of  units  of local  government  in

Planning  , pursuant  to:  the  Regional  Planning  Act,  Section  3-56-1  through  3-56-

9, NMSA  1978;  the  Planning  District  Act,  Sections  4-58-1  through  4-58-6,  NMSA  1978,

NMSA  1978;  and  Executive  Orders  of  the  New  Mexico  Governor  dated  January  2, 1969

and  January  10,  1973  regarding  Planning  and  Development  Districts  in the  State  of  New

Mexico;  and

WHEREAS,  The  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  is an active  member  of  the  SCCOG  and  holds  a voting

seats  on the  Board  of  Directors  thereof;  and

WHEREAS,  the  New  Mexico  Department  of  Finance  and  Administration  further  encourages  the  use

of  intergovernmental  services  agreements  as appropriate  to  the  efficient  procurement

of  inter-agency  services;  and

WHEREAS,  The  SCCOG reviewed  the  GRO allocations  with  each  legislator  providing  funding.  These

meetings  provided  guidance  and  direction;  and



GRO Special  Appropriation  #24-ID134  SCCOG

Effective:  July 1,  2024

Page 2

WHEREAS,  the  SCCOG desires  to engage  The City of  Truth  or Consequences  to implement  these

proposed  services  based  its experience  with  partners,  provides,  and track  record  in the

use and accountability  that  comes  with  government  funding;  and

THEREFORE,  this  agreement  is entered  into  by and between  The  City of  Truth  or Consequences

(CITY) and the  South  Central  Council  of Governments  (SCCOG) pursuant  to  the  following  purposes,

conditions  and terms:

GRO SPECIAL  APPROPRIATIONS  PROJECT  # 24-1D134  (S200,000)

Two  Hundred  Thousand  Dollars  and  Zero  Cents  (5200,000.00)  for  programmatic  costs  and

resources  for  law  enforcement  departments  in Sierra  City  and  the  city  of  Truth  or Consequences.

One-Hundred-Thousand  Dollars  and  Zero  Cents  for  Sierra  County

One-Hundred-Thousand  Dollars  and  Zero  Cents  for  The City  of  Truth  or Consequences

A. PURPOSE:  The purpose  of this  Agreement  shall  be for  The City of Truth  or Consequences  to

manage,  implement,  procure,  deliver,  report,  on programs  required  to support  law enforcement

cost  and  resources;

1.  Funds  may  be  used  for,  but  not  limited  to:

i. Capital  (Government  entity  only)

ii. Employee  costs  for  salaries.

iii.  Employee  costs  for  supportive  services.

iv.  Reports  and  studies.

v. Property  improvements  projects.

vi.  Contracts  to provide  services.

vii.  Non-Profit  contracting  and supportive  services  (In compliance  with  the  Anti-

Donation  Clause)

B. PROGRAM  REQUIREMENTS:

1.  TheCityofTruthorConsequencesShall:

*  Developascopeofwork(SOW)andbudget45daysfromthedateoffinalsignature

between  the  City  and SCCOG.

*  Understand  that  this  funding  is part  of  two-year  agreement  that  can be expended

sooner  and/or  as needed.
*  GRO Funds are not recurring,  and must  be spent  prior  to the  two-year  period

expiring  June  30, 2026

*  Ensure  that  grant  funds  are expended  in compliance  with  all applicable  laws,

regulations,  and  grant  agreement  and  the  transactions  are appropriately  accounted

for  in compliance  with  such  laws,  regulations,  and grant  agreement.

*  Commit  to all upfront  payments  for  all legitimate  request  for  payments  

request  reimbursed  through  the  SCCOG. The  SCCOG will  request  reimbursement

from  the  Department  of Finance  and Administration  per  the  agreements.

*  Pay requests  shall  be submitted  to  the  SCCOG grant  administrator  quarterly.  Pay

request  must  provide  all the  appropriate  information  necessary  to create  a good

pay  request.  The  reimbursement  will  be mailed  to  the  agency  net  30 days  via check.

SCCOG will  not  make  ACH payments.



GRO Special  Appropriation  #24-1D134  SCCOG

Effective:  July  1,  2024

Page 3

*  Provide  quarterly  reporting  with  pay  request  for each appropriation  above

including  but  not  limited  to  amount  encumbered,  expenses,  remaining  and

program  beneficiaries  and any  other  performance  metrics  that  are  currently  being

tracked  by the  City  /City/SCCOG or its sub-contractors.

*  Quarterly  reports  and  pay request  may  be submitted  via email,  USPS, private  carrier

or  hand  delivery.  All correspondence  shall  be to  the  address  provided  in Section  O.

*  Submit  reports  and  pay  requests  on forms  approved  by the  SCCOG.

*  For  any  Non-Profit  agreements,  Sub-contractor  agreements,  assure  proper

procuring,  vetting,  and  management  of  portions  of  the  agreements.

*  All Non-Profit  agreements,  Sub-contractors  agreements  shall  be provided  to  SCCOG

in accordance  with  local  and  State  procurement  codes;

*  Ensuresafeguardingofgrantfundsandassetsacquiredwithgrantfundsandproper

accounting  thereof  in compliance  with  applicable  laws, regulations,  and grant

agreement;

*  Act  as liaison  between  SCCOG and appropriate  NM state  agencies;

*  Work  and support  the  SCCOG with  the  Department  of Administration  to  solve  any

discrepancy  that  may arise  that  would  hold up project  reimbursements  to the

SCCOG and acting  as a facilitator  if disagreement  arises.

2. South-Central  Council  of  Governments  Role  and  Responsibilities.  The  SCCOG understands

it remains  ultimately  responsible  for  executing  and  complying  with  all applicable  Federal,

State,  and Local Laws and  grant  agreement  requirements  such as flow  down  provisions,

executing  procurement  responsibilities  and subcontractor  management,  including  all

reporting  requirements  established  by the  State  of New  Mexico.

C. TIMEFRAME:

1.  Work  pursuant  to this  agreement  shall  be effective  no sooner  than  July  1, 2024,  but  not

before  the  Notice  of  obligation  is signed  by SCCOG and DFA. Projects  shall  be completed

by June 15,  2026.  Funds  not  spent  by June  30, 2026,  shall  revert  to the  State  of New

Mexico.  Final payment  request  may  be submitted  by July  lO'h, 2026  (5pm/MST).

D. COMPENSATION:

1.  TotalcompensationunderthisagreementshallnotexceedOne-Hundred-Thousand

Dollars(9100,000)   4-
2. Within  the  total  compensation  amount,  The City  of  Truth  or Consequences  shall  be

authorized  to subcontract  work  to qualified  parties  for  expert  assistance  with  the

"PURPOSE"  herein.

E. Method  of  Payment:

1.  The City  of  Truth  or  Consequences  shall  present  to the  SCCOG invoices  for  services

not  more  frequently  than  quarterly.  Upon  receipt  of  a complete  pay request  to  the

SCCOG fiscal  agent,  payment  for  the  reported  fees  and reimbursable  expenses  shall



GRO Special  Appropriation  #24-1 D134  SCCOG

Effective:  July 1, 2024

Page 4

be made  within  thirty  (30) days.  ALL reimbursements  shall  be made  by check  mailed

to  the  address  of  record.  ACH payments  shall  not  be utilized.

F. Record  Keeping  and  Retention:

1.  The City of Truth  or Consequences  shall  maintain  detailed  time  and expenditure

records  that  indicate  the  date,  time,  nature  and  cost  of  services  rendered  during  the

Agreement"s  term  and effect  and retain  them  for  a period  of  three  (3) years  from

the date  of final  payment  under  this  Agreement.  The records  shall  be subject  to

inspection  by the  SCCOG or its designees.  The SCCOG shall  have  the  right  to audit

billings  both  before  and after  the  payment.  Payment  under  this  Agreement  shall  not

foreclose  the  right  of  the  SCCOG to  recover  excessive  or  illegal  payment.

G. ACCESS  TO INFORMATION:

1.  It is agreed  that  the  SCCOG and its agencies  shall  furnish  all available  information,

data,  reports,  records  and maps  to  The City  of  Truth  or Consequences.  No charge

shall  be made  to  the  City  for  such  information,  and  the  SCCOG and its agencies  shall

cooperate  with  the City to facilitate  performance  of the work  described  in this

agreement.

H. OWNERSHIP  OF DOCUMENTS:

1.  All documents  and data  produced  pursuant  to  this  agreement  shall  be the  property

of SCCOG. The City shall  be permitted  to retain  reproducible  copies,  to cite  itself

and/or  its consultants  as producers  of said work, and to disseminate  such documents
as permitted  by the  City.

1. LIMIT  ATION  OF LIABILITY:

1.  ThisAgreementshallnotcreateageneralliabilityoftheconstituentmembersofthe

City.

2. The City  shall  hold  the  SCCOG harmless  with  respect  to any damages,  expenses  or

claims  arising  or  in  connection  with  any  negligent  acts,  errors  or omissions

performed  by the City under  this  Agreement.  This shall not  be construed  as a

limitation  of  the  City  's liability  under  this  Agreement  or as otherwise  provided  by

law.

J. MODIFICATION  ANDTERMINATION:

1.  Any  modifications  or  amendments  to this  Agreement  shall  be in writing,  and when

signed  by both  parties  shall  be made  part  of  the  Agreement.  The  Agreement  may  be

terminated  by either  party  upon  thirty  (30) days  written  notice  to  the  other.



GRO Special  Appropriation  #24-ID134  SCCOG

Effective:  July  1,  2024

Page 5

K. CERTIFICATION:

1.  The City  shall  comply  with  the  requirements  of all applicable  laws,  rules  and

regulations,  and  shall  assume  full  responsibility  for  payment  of  federal,  state  and

local  taxes  and  contributions  imposed  or required  under  Social  Security,  Workers

Compensation  and  income  tax  laws.

L. ADEQUATE  APPROPRIATIONS:

1.  This  agreement  is contingent  upon  sufficient  appropriations  and  authorization  being

made  for  the  performance  of this  Agreement.  If sufficient  appropriations  and

authorization  are not  made,  this  Agreement  shall  terminate  immediately  upon

written  notice  being  given  by the  SCCOG  to the  City.  The  SCCOG"s  decision  as to

whether  sufficient  appropriations  are  available  shall  be accepted  by the  City  and

shall  be final.  Ifthe  SCCOG  proposes  an amendment  to  the  Agreement  to  unilaterally

reduce  funding,  the  City  shall  have  the  option  to  terminate  the  Agreement  or  agree

to  the  reduced  funding,  within  thirty  (30) days  of receipt  of the  proposed

amendment.

M. ST ATUS  OF  CONTRACTOR:

1.  The  city  and its  officers,  agents  and employees  are  independent  contractors

performing  professional  services  for  the  City  and  are  not  employees  of  the  SCCOG.

The  City  and  its agents  and  employees  shall  not  accrue  leave,  retirement,  insurance,

bonding,  or  any  other  benefits  afforded  to employees  of  the  SCCOG as a result  of

this  Agreement.  The  City  agrees  not  to  purport  to  bind  the  SCCOG unless  the  City  has

express  written  authority  to do so and  then  only  within  the  strict  limits  of  that

authority.

N. PEN  ALTIES:

1.  The  Procurement  Code,  § 13-1-28  through  §13-1-199,  NMSA  1978,  imposes  civil  and

criminal  penalties  for  its violation.  In addition,  the  New  Mexico  criminal  statutes

impose  felony  penalties  forillegal  bribes,  gratuities  and  kickbacks.

0.  NOTICES,  PAY  REQUESTS,  REPORTS:

1.  Any  notices,  payment  requests  and  quarterly  reports  required  to be given  to  either

party  bythis  Agreement  shall  be in writing  and  may  be delivered  in person,  by courier

service  or by u.s. mail,  either  first  class or certified,  return  receipt  requested,

postage  prepaid,  as follows;

2.  Pay requests  and  reports  (only)  may  also  utilize  email.



GRO Special  Appropriation  #24-ID134  SCCOG

Effective:  July 1,  2024

Page 6

To the  SCCOG:

Jay Armijo,  Executive  Director

p.o.  Box 1072

Elephant  Butte,  NM 87935

Fiscal  Reporting:

Gary  Whitehead,  GRO Coordinator

Pa Box 1072

Elephant  Butte,  NM 87935

gwhitehead@sccog-nm.com

To: City  of  Truth  or  Consequences

Angie  Gonzales

401  McAdoo  St

Truth  or  Consequences,  NM 87901

IN WITNESS  WHEREOF,  the  parties  affix  their  signatures  here  below:

South  Central  Council  of  Governments:

BY: Date:  Jul23, 2024
Jay Armijo,  Executive  Director

City  of  Truth  or  Consequences:

BY: e(Jul  25, 2024 09 46 MDT) Date:
Jul25,  2024

Angie  Gonzales,  City  of  Truth  or  Consequences



FINAL  Gov  to Gov  Contract  City  of  T or C 24-

1D134
Final  Audit  Report

Created:

B7:

Status:

Transaction  ID:

2024-07-23

Gary Whitehead (gwhitehead@sccog-nm.com)

Signed

CBJCHBCAABAApnrgtUlf-Oz01XwNhAXl  kl-sz8xhNOw9

2024-07-25

"FINAL  - Gov  to Gov  Contract  - City  of  T or C 24-lDl34"  History

Document created by Gary Whitehead (gwhitehead@sccog-nm.com)
2024-07-23  - 3:12:29  PM GMT

C% Document emailed to Jay Armijo (jarmijo@sccog-nm.com)  for signature
2024-07-23  - 3:14:52  PM GMT

5 Email viewed by Jay Armijo (jarmijo@sccog-nm.com)
2024-07-23  - 3:56:28  PM GMT

t@ Document  e-signed by Jay Armijo (jarmijo@sccog-nm.com)
Signature  Date:  2024-07-23  - 3:58:21  PM GMT  - Time  Source:  server

P+ Document  emailed to agonzales@torcnm.org  for signature
2024-07-23-3:58:22  PM GMT

Email viewed by agonzales@torcnm.org
2024-07-24-3:56:08  PM GMT

4  Signer agonzales@torcnm.org  entered name at signing as Angela Gonzales
2024-07-25  - 3:46:41  PM GMT

4  Document  e-signed by Angela Gonzales (agonzales@torcnm.org)
Signature  Date:  2024-07-25  - 3:46:43  PM GMT  - Time  Source:  server

@ Agreement  completed.

2024-07-25  - 3:46:43  PM GMT

OAdobe Acrobat Sign



(2ity of'l'ruth orConsequences
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

Agendaztem #; I.8
MEETING  DATE:  August  14,  202j1

SUBJECT: Approval  of Purchase Requisitions  Over S20,000
DEPARTMENT:  Finance

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  9, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Leiandra  Guerra,  CPO

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Angie  Gonzales,  City  Manager

Summary/Background:

Per Resolution No 46 20/21 Execution of Contracts;  Grant Agreements;  Memoranda  of Understanding;  Joint
Powers Agreements;  Settlement  Agreements;  Purchases (Contract  and Purchases More Than S20,000)

Recommendation:

Approval  Recommended  by Finance  Director

Attachments:

*  Listing of Purchase Requisitions  S20,000 or  More

*  Purchase  Requisitions,  Procurement  Documentation

Fiscallmpact(Finance):  Choose  an iten"i.

As Per  Total  on Listing  of  Purchase  Requisitions

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Choose  an item.

Click  here  to enter  text

Approved  For  Submittal  8y:  % Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  Z City  Clerk  [Y Finance  € Legal  €  Other:  Clid<  here  to enter  text

FinalApproval:  % City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No. Clid<  i'ieie  to enter  text.  Ordinance  No.  Clic:< i'iere  t<:i eriter  'i-=xt.

Continued  To: Click  l'iere  to  ei'iter  a da(=.  Referred  To:  Cii-:k  here  to enter  text.

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  Clid<  f'isre  to  et'iter  text.

File Name:  CC agendas  8-14-24



PURCHASE REQUISITION APPROVAL 2024-25 Fiscal Year

COMMISSION MEETING 08/14/2024

Number Vendor Name Description Requested By

92732 Full Send LineWork LLC Pole Replacement- Austin Street Priscilla Fuentes/Bo Easley

92733 Marto Energy Pole Replacement- Marshall Street Priscilla Fuentes/Bo Easley

92810 Western United Electric Padmount Transformer-Comfort Inn Charging Station Priscilla Fuentes/Bo Easley

ATTEST:

Angela Torres, Clerk-Treasurer Date

Rolf Hechler, Mayor Date



REQUISITION

Requisition  #: 92732

0BiB,  07/25/2024

Vendor  #: 8772

ISSUED  TO:  FULL SEND LINEWORK, LLC
104  HUMMINGBIRD  PLACE

CLOVIS,  NM  88101-

SHIP  TO:  City of Truth or Consequences
505  Sims  St,

Truth  or  Consequences,  NM  87901

ITEM  , UNITS  DESCRIPTION  , PROJECT  #  '  PRICE GL ACCOUNT  NUMBER  . AMOUNT

1  0 POLE REPLACEMENT-  AUSTIN  STREET  O.00 503-3702-47415  56,517.56

Pa  DesCripttoni  POLE REPL_ACEMENT- AUSTIN STREET

Detailed  Descriptloni

POLE REPLACEMENT- AUSTIN STREET
3 QUOTES: FULL SEND LINEWORK, MARTO ENERGY, AK TOOLING, LLC

SUBTOTAU 52,150.OC

TOTALTAXi 0,00

A  a2<7  C,<
5nAPPAINu;  I  IJ / i J  (l

TOTAL 56,517.5e



REQUISITION

Requisition  #: 92733

Date:  07/25/2024

Vendor  #: 8748

ISSUED  TO: MARTO ENERGY
Pa BOX 20651

ALBUQUERQUE,  NM 87154-

SHIP  TO:  City of Truth or Consequences
505  Sims  St.

Truth  or  Consequences,  NM 87901

ITEM  UNITS  DESiCRIPTION  PRCUECT#  PRICE  GLACCOUNT'NUMBER AMOUNT

1  0 POLE  REPLACEMENT-  MARSHALL  STREET  O.00  503-3702-47415  55,379.62

PODescription:  POLEREPLACEMENT-MARSHALLSTREET

Detailed  Description:

POLE REPLACEMENT-  MARSHALL  STREET'
3 QLIOTES: MARTO  ENERGY, FULL SEND LINEWORK,  B&D INDUSTRIESN  INC,

SUBTOTALi 51,100,QC

TOTALTAX: 0,QC

A )70  4:
:5nllt'at'a  Am5i 'r  / (_ / ji  %J &

TOTAL 551379,6;



REQUISITION

Requisition  #: 92810

Date:  08/05/2024

Vendor  #: 7498

ISSUED  TO:  WESTERN UNITED ELECTRIC
SUPPLY  CORPORATION

100  BROMLEY  BUSINESS  PKWY

BRIGHTON,  CO  80603

SHIP  TO:  City of Truth or Consequences
505  Sims  St,

Truth  or  Consequences,  NM  87901

ZTEM . 4mxispesc=pr7ory  , . PRQJECT'#, ' I, p4ctqx<ournriuHaiffi"..  '4;6tmr

1  0PADMOUNTTRANSFORMERS750KVA31  0.00503-3702-44607  42,000.00

Pa  Descriptioni  pADMOUNT TRANSFORMER- COMFORT INN CHARGING STATION

Detailed  Descriptioni

PADMOkJNT TRANSFORMER- COMFORT INN CHARGING STATION
3 QtlOTESi WESTERN UNITED ELECTRIC, SLINBELT SOLOMON, LARSON ELECTRONICS, LLC

SUBTOT  AL: 42,000.OC

TOTALTAX: 0.00

ri no
orut't'uiiui

TOTAL 42,000.0(



.Jy  ci-worrpti-rt-mg>coxsr_otitxcr_s
m'

A(itNUA  Kt(lUt5  I tOHM

'<W;a"!X')' MEETINGDATE:Augustl4,2024
,%ertda Item #: 1.9

"iti'Wa"'
SUBJECT: Review, Approve and/or  Allocate Funds for Sierra County Rock & Gem Society (SCRAGS) -
Application  #1 for  2025  Sierra  Co. Rock  & Gem  Show

DEPARTMENT:  City  Manager's  Office

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  6, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Tammy  Gardner

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Tammy  Gardner

Summary/Background:
Commission  approval  of  SCRAGS  application  for  the  2025  Sierra  Co. Rock  & Gem  Show.

Recommendation:

The applicant  requested  !;20,555.00  and the LTAB recommended  to fully  fund  the project  plus an additional
93,000.00  for  additional  tables.

Attachments:

*  SCRAGS  Application

*  SCRAGS  Contract

*  Approved  Scope  of  Work

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

S23,555.00

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Approved  for  Submittal  By: [g Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  € City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Clid<  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  € City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  - Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-24



FY25  Lodgers'  Tax  Award

Approved  Scope  of  Work

Lodgers'  Tax  Meeting  Date:  July  22, 2024

Applicant:  Sierra  County  Rock  & Gem  Society

Project(s)  Applied  For:  Sierra  County  Rock  & Gem  Show

Amount Requested: 520,555 Amount  Approved:  523,555

Approved   Postponed Denied

provided  so that  the  organization  could  buy  additional  tables

Scope  of  Work Award  Amount  Approved

1) M Graphics S2500
2) Ready  Web  Service S2000

3) Got  Pr nt  (post  ca rds/posters)
4) NM Magazine

5) Santa  Fe Reporter

6) Local  IQ (ABQ)

7) Neighbors

8) Desert  Exposure

9) The  Ink

10)  EI Paso  Spotlight

11)  El Defensor  Chieftain

12) Facebook/lnstagram
13)  Gem  Show  websites

14) USPS/UPS

15)  Talon  Septic

16)  Security

17)  WX  Fire  Graph

18)  TBA  (tables)

S4300

51500

SIOOO

S 300

S 900

S 800

S 200

S 400

SIOOO

S 300

S 350

S 800

SIOOO

S 400

S4500

Total: S23,555



ADVERTISING  &  PROMOTION  CONTRACT

THIS  AGREEMENT  is made  and  entered  into  by  and  between  the City  of  Truth

or Consequences,  New  Mexico,  herein  referred  to as "City"  and SIERRA  COUNTY

ROCK  AND  GEM  SOCIETY  (Sierra  Co.  Rock  &  Gem  Show  2025)  herein  referred  to

as "Contractor".

WHEREAS  the City  and Contractor  desire  to enter  into  a Contract  to provide

Lodgers  Tax  funds  to the  Contractor  to aid  the  Contractor's  promotion  and  advertising  of

the  City  as a tourist  attraction  which  will  aid  in  the  economic  growth  of  the  City.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  IN  CONSIDERATION  of  the mutual  promises  of  the

parties,,  it  is hereby  covenanted  and  agreed  by  and  between  the  parties:

1.  The  City  shall  provide  up to the sum  of  $23,555.00  to the Contractor  for  a

one (1) year  period  cornmencing  on August  14,  2024  and  continuing  through

June  30,  2025.

2.  The  Contractor  shall:

a. Advertise,  p

attraction.  Such  publicizing  and promoting  shall  include  but  not  be

limited  to the advertising  of  the fairgrounds,  civic  center,  museums,

convention  center  and  other  City  and  area  resources  and  attractions.

b.  Said  promotion  and  advertising  shall  specifically  consist  of  the plan  as

presented  (and  approved  by the Lodgers  Tax  Board)  in the Contractor's

application  for  Lodgers  Tax  Funds.  The  Scope  of  Work  is set forth  within

the  application.

3.  Fund  Expenditures:  Funding  under  this  contract  is from  Lodgers  Tax.  Such

funds  may  be spent  for  promotion  and  advertising  only.

4.  Procurement  by  Contractor:  The  Procurement  Code,  Sections  13-1-28

through  13-1-199  NMSA  1978,  imposes  civil  and criminal  penalties  for

violation  of  this  statute.  Any  property  purchased  by Contractor,  the cost  of

which  is to be paid  under  this  agreement,  shall  be purchased  in compliance

with  the  Procurement  Code.

a. The  City  and  the Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  shall  determine  which  of

these  expenditures  are allowable  and are in compliance  with  the  purpose

of  this  contract.

b.  If  determined  to be an eligible  purchase,  the City  will  pay  the Contractor

for  reimbursement.

c. Since  the purpose  of  the Tax  is to bring  visitors  to town,  the Contractor

must  use seventy-five  percent  (75%)  of  the  funds  outside  the  County.  This

will  serve  to increase  the  use  of  hotels,  motels,  and  RV  parks  which  will  in

turn  yield  more  Lodgers  Tax.

Page  I of  7



d.  All  invoices  must  be turned  into  the  City  Manager's  Office  no later  than

the  last  business  day  of  May  2025.

e. Invoices  submitted  a'fter  that  date  WILL  NOT  BE  PAID!  All  unspent

funds  will  revert  to the City's  Lodgers  Tax  Fund  to be used  for  any

purpose  the  City  may  deem  eligible.

f.  Reports  are due  sixty  (60)  days  after  completion  of  event/project.

5.  Termination:  Either  party  shall  have  the right  to terminate  this  Contract

without  cause  by  giving  thirty  (30)  days  written  notice  to the  other  party.

6.  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to keep  accurate  records  of  all time  and

expenses  allocated  to the  performance  of  the  agreed  upon  work.  Such  records

shall  be kept  in  the  office  of  the  Contractor  and  shall  be made  available  to the

City  or  its  authorized  representatives  for  inspection  and copying  upon

reasonable  request.

7.  Ownership  of  Documents:  All  reports,  maps,  ads,  logos,  or documents

prepared  as a part  of  this  Agreement,  including  original  drawings,  estimates,

specifications,  field  notes,  and data  are  the  property  of  the  City.  The

Contractor  may  retain  reproducible  copies  of  drawings  and  other  documents.

8. Claims:  The  Contractor  shall  save  and  hold  the City  free  from  claims  that

might  arise  in connection  with  work  the Contractor  will  perform  under  this

Agreement.  The  Contractor  also  agrees  to pay for  staff  time,  at standard

hourly  billing  rates,  plus  expenses  at cost  that  might  be required  for  expert

testimony  or any  other  court  appearances,  together  with  preparation  time  and

legal  costs  that  might  arise  because  of  Contractor's  involvement  in this

assignment,  whether  subpoenaed  by  the  City  or  any  other  group.

9.  Personnel:

a. The  Contractor  represents  that  they  have,  or will  secure  at their  own

expense,  all personnel  required  in performing  the  services  under  this

Agreement.  Such  personnel  shall  not  be employees  of  or have  any

Agreement  relationship  with  the  City.

b.  All  of  the  services  required  hereunder  will  be performed  by  the  Contractor

or  under  his/her  supervision  and  all  persoru'iel  engaged  in  the  work  shall  be

fully  qualified  and  shall  be authorized  or permitted  under  state  and  local

law  to perform  such  services.

c. None  of  the  work  or  services  covered  by  this  Agreement  shall  be

subcontracted  without  the prior  written  approval  of  the City  and  Lodgers

Tax  Advisory  Board.  Any  work  or services  subcontracted  hereunder  be

specified  by  written  Subcontract  and  shall  be subject  to each  provision  of

this  Agreement.

10.  Assignability:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  any  interest  on  this  Agreement,

and shall  not  transfer  any  interest  in the same  (whether  by assignment  or

notation),  without  the prior  written  consent  of  the Lodgers  Tax  Advisory

Page  2 of  7



Board  and  City  thereto:  Provided,  however,  that  claims  for  money  by the

Contractor  from  the City  under  the Agreement  may  be assigned  to a bank,

trust  company,  or other  financial  institution  without  such  approval.  Written

notice  of  any  such  assignment  or transfer  shall  be furnished  promptly  to the

City.

11.  Authority:  Contractor  agrees  not  to purport  to bind  the City  to an obligation

not  herein  assumed,  unless  Contractor  has expressed  written  authority  to do

so, and  then  only  within  the  strict  limits  of  that  authority.

12.  Reports  and  Information:  The  Contractor,  at such  times  and  in such  forms

as the City  may  require,  shall  furnish  the City  such  periodic  reports  as it may

request  pertaining  to  the  work  or  services  undertaken  pursuant  to  this

Agreement,  the  costs  and  obligations  incurred  or to be incurred  in connection

therewith,  and  any  other  matters  covered  by  this  Agreement.

13.  Copyright:  No  report,  maps,  ads, logos,  or other  documents  produced  in

whole  or in  part  under  this  Agreement  shall  be the subject  of  an application

for  copyright  by  or  on  behalf  of  the  Contractor.

14.  Compliance  with  Local  Laws:  The  Contractor  shall  comply  with  all

applicable  laws,  ordinances  and codes  of  the  State and the City  and the

Contractor  shall  save  the City  harmless  with  respect  to any  damages  arising

from  any  tort  done  in  performing  any  of  the  work  embraced  by  this

Agreement.

15.Equal  Employment  Opportunity:  During  the  performance  of  this

Agreement,  the  Contractor  agrees  as follows:

a. The  Contractor  will  not  discriminate  against  any  employee  or  applicant  for

employment  because  of  race,  creed,  sex, color  or national  origin.  The

Contractor  will  take  affirmative  action  to  ensure  that  applicants  are

employed,  and that  employees  are treated  during  employment,  without

regard  to their  race,  creed,  sex,  color  or  national  origin.  Such  action  shall

include,  but  not  be limited  to, the following:  Employment,  upgrading,

demotion,  or transfer;  recruitment  or recruitment  advertising;  layoff  or

termination;  rates  of  pay  or other  forms  of  compensation;  and  selection  for

training,  including  apprenticeship.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  post  in

conspicuous  places,  available  to  employees  and  applicants  for

employment,  notices  to  be  provided  by  the  City  setting  forth  the

provisions  of  this  nondiscrimination  clause.

b.  The  Contractor  will,  in all solicitation  or advertisements  for  employees

placed  by  or on  behalf  of  the  Contractor,  state  that  all  qualified  applicants

will  receive  consideration  for  employment  without  regard  to race,  creed,

color,  sex,  or  national  origin.

c.  The  Contractor  will  cause  the foregoing  provisions  to be inserted  in all

Subcontracts  for  any  work  covered  by  this  Agreement  so  that  such

Page  3 of  7



provisions  will  be binding  upon  each  subcontractor,  provided  that  the

foregoing  provisions  shall  not  apply  to Agreements  or Subcontracts  for

standard  commercial  supplies  or  raw  materials.

d.  The  Contractor  will  comply  with  all  provisions  of  Executive  Order  11246

of  September  24, 1965,  and  of  the  rules,  regulations  and  relevant  orders  of

the Secretary  of  Labor.

e. The  Contractor  will  furnish  all information  and reports  required  by

Executive  Order  11246  of September  24,  1965,  and by  the  rules,

regulations  and  orders  of  the  Secretary  of  Labor,  or  pursuant  thereto,  and

will  permit  access  to his/her  books,  records  and accounts  by the City's

representative,  the  funding  agency  and  the  Secretary  of  Labor  for  purposes

of  investigation  to ascertain  compliance  with  such  rules,  regulations  and

orders.

f.  In  the  event  of  the  Contractor's  noncompliance  with  the  equal  opportunity

clauses  of  this  Agreement  or  with  any  of  such  rules,  regulations  or orders,

this  Agreement  may  be canceled,  terminated,  or suspended  in  whole  or in

part  and  the  Contractor  may  be declared  ineligible  for  further  governrnent

Agreements  in accordance  with  procedures  authorized  in  Executive  Order

11246  of  September  24, 1965,  and such  other  sanctions  may  be imposed

and  remedies  invoked  as provided  in  Executive  Order  11246  of  September

24, 1965,  or  by rule,  regulation,  or order  of  the Secretary  of  Labor,  or as

otherwise  provided  by  law.

g.  The  Contractor  will  include  the  provisions  of  paragraphs  (a) through  (g)  in

every  Subcontract  or  purchase  order  unless  exempted  by  rules,  regulations

or orders  of  the Secretary  of  Labor  issued  pursuant  to Section  204  of

Executive  Order  11246  of  September  24, 1965,  so that  such  provisions

will  be binding  upon  each  subcontractor  or vendor.  The  Contractor  will

take  such  action  with  respect  to any  Subcontract  or purchase  order  as the

City's  representative  may  direct  as a means  of  enforcing  such  provisions

including  sanctions  for  noncompliance:  Provided,  however,  that  in the

event  the Contractor  becomes  involved  in,  or  is threatened  with,  litigation

with  a subcontractor  or  vendor  as a result  of  such  direction  by  the  City,  the

Contractor  may  request  the United  States  to enter  into  such  litigation  to

protect  the  interests  of  the  United  States.

16.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964:  Under  Title  VI  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  no

person  shall,  on the grounds  of  race,  color,  or national  origin,  be excluded

from  participation  in,  be  denied  the  benefits  of,  or  be  subjected  to

discrimination  under  any program  or activity  receiving  federal  financial

assistance,

17.  Access  to  Records:

a. The  State  Auditor,  the City's  auditor,  the City,  or any  of  their  duly

authorized  representatives,  shall  have  access  to any books,  documents,

papers  and  records  of  the Contractor  which  are directly  pertinent  to this

Page  4 of  7



specific  Agreement,  for  the purpose  of  audits,  examinations,  and making

excerpts  and  transcriptions.

b. All  records  connected  with  this  Agreement  will  be maintained  in a central

location  by the City  and will  be maintained  for  a period  of  three  (3) years

from  the official  date  of  closeout  of  the contract.

18. Third  Party  Rights:  The  provisions  of  this  agreement  are for  the sole  benefit

of  the parties  and shall  not be constnied  as conferring  rights  on any other

person  or entity.

19. Captions  and Headings:  The  captions  and headings  contained  in this

Agreement  are provided  for identification  purposes  only  and shall  not be

interpreted  to limit  or define  the content  of  the provisions  described  under  the

respective  caption  or heading.

20. Severability:  If  any one or more  of  the sentences,  clauses,  paragraphs  or

sections  contained  herein  is declared  invalid,  void  or unenforceable  by a court

of  competent  jurisdiction,  the same  shall  be deemed  severable  from  the

remainder  of  this  Agreement,  and shall  not  affect,  impair  or invalidate  any of

the remaining  sentences,  clauses,  paragraphs  or sections  contained  herein.

21. Venue:  All  proceedings  involving  disputes  over  the  terms,  provisions,

covenants  or conditions  contained  in this Agreement  and all proceedings

involving  any enforcement  action  related  to this  Agreement  shall  be initiated

and conducted  in the  applicable  court  or forum  in Sierra  County,  New

Mexico.

22. Attorney  Fees:  In the event  any action,  suit  or proceeding  is brought  for  the

enforcement  of, or the declaration  of  any right  or obligation  pursuant  to this

Agreement  or as a result  of  any alleged  breach  of  any provision  of  this

Agreement,  the prevailing  party  in such  suit  or proceeding  shall  be entitled  to

recover  its costs  and expenses,  including  reasonable  attorneys'  fees, from  the

losing  party,  and any  judgment  or decree  rendered  in such  a proceeding  shall

include  an award  thereof.

23. Authority  to Sign  Agreement:  The persons  executing  this Agreement  on

behalf  of  the parties  hereto  warrant  that  they  are duly  authorized  to execute

this  Agreement  on  behalf  of  said  parties.

24. Interest  of  Members  of  the  City:  No  member  of  the governing  body  of  the

City  and no other  officer,  employee,  or agent  of  the City  who  exercises  any

functions  or responsibilities  in connection  with  the planning  and carrying  out

of  the program,  shall  have  any personal  financial  interest,  direct  or indirect,  in

this Agreement;  and the Contractor  shall  take appropriate  steps to assure

compliance.

Page  5 of  7



25.  Interest  of  other  Local  Public  Officials  - No  member  of  the  governing  body

of  the City  and no other  public  official  of  the  City,  who  exercises  any

functions  or responsibilities  in  connection  with  the  planning  and  carrying  out

of  the  program,  shall  have  any  personal  financial  interest,  direct  or indirect,  in

this  Agreement;  and the Contractor  shall  take  appropriate  steps  to assure

compliance.

26.  Bribes,  Gratuities  and  Kickbacks:  It is illegal  in this  state  for  any  public

employee  to solicit  or accept  anything  of  value  in connection  with  award  of

this  Agreement  and  for  any  person  to offer  or pay  anything  of  value  to any

such  public  employee  (§30-24-1  through  §30-24-2  NMSA  1978).  Pursuant  to

§13-1-191  NMSA  1978  reference  is made  to the criminal  laws  of  this  state

(including  §30-41-1  through  §30-41-3  NMSA  1978)  which  prohibit  bribes,

kickbacks,  and  gratuities  and  violation  of  which  constitutes  a felony.  Further,

the Procurement  Code  (§13-1-28  through  §13-1-199  NMSA  1978)  imposes

civil  and  criminal  penalties  for  its  violation.

CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES

Angie  Gonzales, City  Manager Date

Finance  Officer,  Reviewed  for Budgetaiy  Sufficiency Date

Jaime Rubin,  City  Attoniey,  Reviewed  for Legal Sufficiency Date

CONTRACTOR

Authorized  Representative  (Signature  & Printed  Name) Date

Page  6 of  7



For  a recipient  of  Lodgers  Tax  to  be eligible  for  the  City,  acting  as the  fiscal  agent,  to

reimburse  their  incurred  financial  obligations  using  Lodgers  Tax,  the  following  must  be
s  adhered  to:

Please€ ach requirement:

PAID  invoices  must  be presented  to tlie  City  Manager's  Office  for  reimbursement  witli  a

copy  of  the  cancelled  check  (front  &  back)  and  a copy  of  the  tear  sheets  or script  within  a

timely  manner  so that  we can maintain  a good  working  relationship  with  the vendors.

The  tear sheets,  scripts,  and invoices  are the responsibility  of  tlie  Contractor.  Please

review  invoices  for  accuracy.  Do  not  assume  that  they  are correct.

No  bill  will  be reimbursed  if  it differs  from  tlie  services  agreed  upon  in tlie  application

and signed  contract  unless  the change  is requested  in writing,  recominended  by the

Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  and  approved  by  the  City  Manager.

It is tl'ie responsibility  of  tlie Contractor  to keep a running  total  of  their  unused  and

available  Lodgers  Tax  award.

It is the responsibility  of  tlie  Contractor  to notify  the City  as to who  are tlie  two  (2)

eligible  people  to turn  in bills  for  reimbursement.  (Please   names  below.)

Designee  No.  1:

Designee  No.  2:

Phone  No.

Phone  No.

No  bill  will  be reimbursed  by  tlie  City  unless  it bears  the signature  of  tlie  City  Manager  or

designee  approving  payment.

Reports  are due 90 days  a'fter  a project/event  is completed.  It is the responsibility  of  the

Contractor  to get  reports  in on time.

By  your  signature  on this  contract,  you  have  agreed  to follow  and  implement  all

conditions  within  the  time  frame  set  forth  and  if  you  deviate  without  prior  approval

from  the  Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  and  the  City  Manager,  then  the  City  has no

further  fiscal  responsibility  per  this  contract.

Dated  this day  of

CONTRACTOR:

BY:

Printed  Name  of  Authorized  Representative

, 2024

Signature  of  Authorized  Representative

Page  7 of  7



(;ITY  Ol-  T[)UTtl  O[)  € OSS[ €)U[S(jj
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

MEETINGDATE:Augustl4,2024  Age"daI'em#:Llo

SUBJECT: Review, Approve  and/or  Allocate  Funds for  Geronimo  Trail Scenic Byway  Application  #3 - National
Park  Journal

DEPARTMENT:  City  Manager's  Office

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  6, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Tammy  Gardner

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Tammy  Gardner

Summary/Background:
Commission  approval  of  Geronimo  Trail  Scenic  Byway  application  and  contract  for  print  & digital  advertising

in National  Park  Journal.

Recommendation:

The applicant  requested  54,745.00  and  the LTAB recommended  to fully  fund  the  project.

Attachments:

*  GTSB Application

*  GTSB Contract

*  Approved  Scope  of  Work

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

S4,7 45.00

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Approved  for  Submittal  By: % Department  Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  - Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  €  Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-24



FY25  Lodgers'  Tax  Award

Approved  Scope  of  Work

Lodgers'  Tax  Meeting  Date:  July  22, 2024

Applicant:  Geronimo  Trail  Scenic  Byway

Project(s)  Applied  For:  Print  & digital  advertising  Grand  Canyon  National  Park  Journal

AmountRequested:   AmountApproved:  S4745

Approved  x Postponed   Denied

Reason for Postponement/Denial/Different  Award Amount:

Scope  of  Work

1) Outside Magazine/National  Park Trips

2) M Graphics

Award  Amount  Approved

S 4495

S 250

Total: S4745



ADVERTISING  &  PROMOTION  CONTRACT

TmS  AGREEMENT  is made  and  entered  into  by  and  between  the  City  of  Truth

or Consequences,  New  Mexico,  herein  referred  to as "City"  and  GERONIMO  TRAIL

SCENIC  BYWAY  (Print  & Digital  Ads-Grand  Canyon  National  Park  Journal)

herein  referred  to as "Contractor".

WHEREAS  the City  and  Contractor  desire  to enter  into  a Contract  to provide

Lodgers  Tax  funds  to the Contractor  to aid  the  Contractor's  promotion  and  advertising  of

the  City  as a tourist  attraction  which  will  aid  in  the  economic  growth  of  the  City.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  IN  CONSIDERATION  of  the mutual  promises  of  the

parties;  it  is hereby  covenanted  and  agreed  by  and  between  the  parties:

1.  The  City  shall  provide  up  to the  sum  of  $4 745.00  to the  Contractor  for  a one

(l)  year  period  commencing  on August  14,  2024  and  continuing  through  June

30,  2025.

2.  The  Contractor  shall:

a. Advertise,  publicize  and  promote  the  City  and its facilities  as a tourism

attraction.  Such  publicizing  and promoting  shall  include  but  not  be

limited  to the  advertising  of  the  fairgrounds,  civic  center,  museums,

convention  center  and  other  City  and  area  resources  and  attractions.

b.  Said  promotion  and advertising  shall  specifically  consist  of  the plan  as

presented  (and  approved  by the  Lodgers  Tax  Board)  in the Contractor's

application  for  Lodgers  Tax  Funds.  The  Scope  of  Work  is set forth  within

the  application.

3.  Fund  Expenditures:  Funding  under  this  contract  is from  Lodgers  Tax.  Such

funds  may  be spent  for  promotion  and  advertising  only.

4.  Procurement  by  Contractor:  The  Procurement  Code,  Sections  13-1-28

through  13-1-199  NMSA  1978,  imposes  civil  and criminal  penalties  for

violation  of  this  statute.  Any  property  purchased  by Contractor,  the cost  of

which  is to be paid  under  this  agreement,  shall  be purchased  in compliance

with  the  Procurement  Code.

a. The  City  and  the  Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  shall  determine  which  of

these  expenditures  are allowable  and  are in compliance  with  the  purpose

of  this  contract.

b.  If  determined  to be an eligible  purchase,  the  City  will  pay  the Contractor

for  reimbursement.

c. Since  the purpose  of  the  Tax  is to bring  visitors  to town,  the Contractor

must  use seventy-five  percent  (75%)  of  the  funds  outside  the  County.  This

will  serve  to increase  the  use  of  hotels,  motels,  and  RV  parks  which  will  in

turn  yield  more  Lodgers  Tax.

Page  1 of  7



d.  All  invoices  must  be turned  into  the City  Manager's  Office  no later  than

the  last  business  day  of  May  2025.

e. Invoices  submitted  a'fter  that  date WILL  NOT  BE PAID!  All  unspent

funds  will  revert  to the City's  Lodgers  Tax  Fund  to be used  for  any

purpose  the  City  may  deem  eligible.

f.  Reports  are due  sixty  (60)  days  after  completion  of  event/project.

5.  Termination:  Either  party  shall  have  the right  to temiinate  this  Contract

without  cause  by  giving  thirty  (30)  days  written  notice  to the  other  party.

6.  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to keep  accurate  records  of  all time  and

expenses  allocated  to the  performance  of  the  agreed  upon  work.  Such  records

shall  be kept  in  the  office  of  the  Contractor  and  shall  be made  available  to the

City  or  its  authorized  representatives  for  inspection  and copying  upon

reasonable  request.

7.  Ownership  of  Documents:  All  reports,  maps,  ads,  logos,  or documents

prepared  as a part  of  this  Agreement,  including  original  drawings,  estimates,

specifications,  field  notes,  and data  are  the  property  of  the  City.  The

Contractor  may  retain  reproducible  copies  of  drawings  and  other  documents.

8. Claims:  The  Contractor  shall  save and  hold  the City  free  from  claims  that

might  arise  in connection  with  work  the Contractor  will  perform  under  this

Agreement.  The  Contractor  also agrees  to pay  for  staff  time,  at standard

hourly  billing  rates,  plus  expenses  at cost  that  might  be required  for  expert

testimony  or any  other  court  appearances,  together  with  preparation  time  and

legal  costs that  might  arise  because  of  Contractor's  involvement  in this

assignment,  whether  subpoenaed  by  the  City  or  any  other  group.

9.  Personnel:

a. The Contractor  represents  that  they  have,  or will  secure  at their  own

expense,  all personnel  required  in performing  the services  under  this

Agreement.  Such  personnel  shall  not  be employees  of  or have  any

Agreement  relationship  with  the  City.

b.  All  of  the  services  required  hereunder  will  be performed  by  the  Contractor

or  under  his/her  supervision  and  all  personnel  engaged  in  the  work  shall  be

fully  qualified  and  shall  be authorized  or permitted  under  state  and  local

law  to perform  such  services.

c. None  of  the  work  or  services  covered  by this  Agreement  shall  be

subcontracted  without  the prior  written  approval  of  the City  and  Lodgers

Tax  Advisory  Board.  Any  work  or services  subcontracted  hereunder  be

specified  by  written  Subcontract  and  shall  be subject  to each  provision  of

this  Agreement.

10.  Assignability:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  any  interest  on  this  Agreement,

and shall  not  transfer  any interest  in the same  (whether  by assignment  or

notation),  without  the prior  written  consent  of  the Lodgers  Tax  Advisory

Page  2 of  7



Board  and City  thereto:  Provided,  however,  that  claims  for  money  by the

Contractor  from  the City  under  the Agreement  may  be assigned  to a bank,

trust  company,  or other  financial  institution  without  such  approval.  Written

notice  of  any  such  assignment  or transfer  shall  be furnished  promptly  to the

City.

11.  Authority:  Contractor  agrees  not  to purport  to bind  the City  to an obligation

not  herein  assumed,  unless  Contractor  has expressed  written  authority  to do

so, and  then  only  within  the  strict  limits  of  that  authority.

12.  Reports  and  Information:  The  Contractor,  at such  times  and  in such  forms

as the City  may  require,  shall  furnish  the  City  such  periodic  reports  as it may

request  pertaining  to  the  work  or  services  undertaken  pursuant  to  this

Agreement,  the  costs  and  obligations  incurred  or to be incurred  in  connection

therewith,  and  any  other  matters  covered  by  this  Agreement.

13.  Copyright:  No report,  maps,  ads, logos,  or other  documents  produced  in

whole  or in part  under  this  Agreement  shall  be the subject  of  an application

for  copyright  by  or  on  behalf  of  the  Contractor.

14.  Compliance  with  Local  Laws:  The  Contractor  shall  comply  with  all

applicable  laws,  ordinances  and codes  of  the State  and the City  and the

Contractor  shall  save  the City  harmless  with  respect  to any  damages  arising

from  any  tort  done  in  performing  any  of  the  work  embraced  by  this

Agreement.

15.Equal  Employment  Opportunity:  During  the  performance  of  this

Agreement,  the  Contractor  agrees  as follows:

a. The  Contractor  will  not  discriminate  against  any  employee  or applicant  for

employment  because  of  race,  creed,  sex,  color  or national  origin.  The

Contractor  will  take  affirmative  action  to  ensure  that  applicants  are

employed,  and that  employees  are treated  during  employment,  without

regard  to their  race,  creed,  sex,  color  or national  origin.  Such  action  shall

include,  but  not  be limited  to, the following:  Employment,  upgrading,

demotion,  or transfer;  recruitment  or recruitment  advertising;  layoff  or

termination;  rates  of  pay  or other  forms  of  compensation;  and  selection  for

training,  including  apprenticeship.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  post  in

conspicuous  places,  available  to  employees  and  applicants  for

employment,  notices  to  be  provided  by  the  City  setting  forth  the

provisions  of  this  nondiscrimination  clause.

b.  The  Contractor  will,  in all solicitation  or advertisements  for  employees

placed  by  or on  behalf  of  the  Contractor,  state  that  all  qualified  applicants

will  receive  consideration  for  employment  without  regard  to race,  creed,

color,  sex,  or  national  origin.

c. The  Contractor  will  cause  the foregoing  provisions  to be inserted  in all

Subcontracts  for  any  work  covered  by  this  Agreement  so  that  such

Page  3 of  7



provisions  will  be binding  upon  each  subcontractor,  provided  that  the

foregoing  provisions  shall  not  apply  to Agreements  or Subcontracts  for

standard  commercial  supplies  or  raw  materials.

d.  The  Contractor  will  comply  with  all  provisions  of  Executive  Order  11246

of  September  24,  1965,  and  of  the  rules,  regulations  and  relevant  orders  of

the Secretary  of  Labor.

e. The  Contractor  will  furnish  all information  and reports  required  by

Executive  Order  11246  of September  24,  1965,  and by  the  rules,

regulations  and  orders  of  the Secretary  of  Labor,  or pursuant  thereto,  and

will  permit  access  to his/her  books,  records  and accounts  by the City's

representative,  the  funding  agency  and  the  Secretary  of  Labor  for  purposes

of  investigation  to ascertain  compliance  with  such  rules,  regulations  and

orders.

f.  In  the  event  of  the  Contractor's  noncompliance  with  the  equal  opportunity

clauses  of  this  Agreement  or  with  any  of  such  rules,  regulations  or  orders,

this  Agreement  may  be canceled,  terminated,  or suspended  in  whole  or in

part  and  the Contractor  may  be declared  ineligible  for  further  governrnent

Agreements  in accordance  with  procedures  authorized  in  Executive  Order

11246  of  September  24, 1965,  and  such  other  sanctions  may  be imposed

and  remedies  invoked  as provided  in  Executive  Order  11246  of  September

24, 1965,  or by rule,  regulation,  or order  of  the Secretary  of  Labor,  or  as

otherwise  provided  by  law.

g.  The  Contractor  will  include  the  provisions  of  paragraphs  (a) through  (g)  in

every  Subcontract  or  purchase  order  unless  exempted  by  rules,  regulations

or orders  of  the Secretary  of  Labor  issued  pursuant  to Section  204 of

Executive  Order  11246  of  September  24, 1965,  so that  such  provisions

will  be binding  upon  each  subcontractor  or vendor.  The  Contractor  will

take  such  action  with  respect  to any  Subcontract  or purchase  order  as the

City's  representative  may  direct  as a means  of  enforcing  such  provisions

including  sanctions  for  noncompliance:  Provided,  however,  that  in the

event  the  Contractor  becomes  involved  in, or  is threatened  with,  litigation

with  a subcontractor  or  vendor  as a result  of  such  direction  by  the  City,  the

Contractor  may  request  the United  States  to enter  into  such  litigation  to

protect  the  interests  of  the  United  States.

16.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964:  Under  Title  VI  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  no

person  shall,  on the grounds  of  race,  color,  or national  origin,  be excluded

from  participation  in,  be  denied  the  benefits  of,  or  be  subjected  to

discrimination  under  any  program  or  activity  receiving  federal  financial

assistance.

17.  Access  to Records:

a. The  State Auditor,  the  City's  auditor,  the City,  or any of  their  duly

authorized  representatives,  shall  have  access  to any books,  documents,

papers  and  records  of  the Contractor  which  are directly  pertinent  to this

Page  4 of  7



specific  Agreement,  for  the purpose  of  audits,  examinations,  and  making

excerpts  and  transcriptions.

b.  All  records  connected  with  this  Agreement  will  be maintained  in  a central

location  by the City  and  will  be maintained  for  a period  of  three  (3)  years

from  the  official  date  of  closeout  of  the  contract.

18. Third  Party  Rights:  The  provisions  of  this  agreement  are for  the  sole  benefit

of  the parties  and shall  not  be construed  as conferring  rights  on any  other

person  or entity.

19.  Captions  and  Headings:  The  captions  and headings  contained  in  this

Agreement  are provided  for  identification  purposes  only  and shall  not  be

interpreted  to limit  or  define  the  content  of  the  provisions  described  under  the

respective  caption  or heading.

20. Severability:  If  any one or more  of  the sentences,  clauses,  paragraphs  or

sections  contained  herein  is declared  invalid,  void  or unenforceable  by a court

of  competent  jurisdiction,  the  same  shall  be  deemed  severable  from  the

remainder  of  this  Agreement,  and  shall  not  affect,  impair  or  invalidate  any  of

the  remaining  sentences,  clauses,  paragraphs  or sections  contained  herein.

21. Venue:  All  proceedings  involving  disputes  over  the  temis,  provisions,

covenants  or conditions  contained  in this  Agreement  and all proceedings

involving  any  enforcement  action  related  to this  Agreement  shall  be initiated

and conducted  in the  applicable  court  or forum  in Sierra  County,  New

Mexico.

22. Attorney  Fees:  In  the event  any  action,  suit  or proceeding  is brought  for  the

enforcement  of, or the declaration  of  any  right  or obligation  pursuant  to this

Agreement  or as a result  of  any alleged  breach  of  any provision  of  this

Agreement,  the  prevailing  party  in  such  suit  or  proceeding  shall  be entitled  to

recover  its costs  and  expenses,  including  reasonable  attorneys'  fees,  from  the

losing  party,  and  any  judgment  or decree  rendered  in such  a proceeding  shall

include  an award  thereof.

23.  Authority  to Sign  Agreement:  The  persons  executing  this  Agreement  on

behalf  of  the  parties  hereto  warrant  that  they  are duly  authorized  to execute

this  Agreement  on  behalf  of  said  parties.

24. Interest  of  Members  of  the  City:  No  member  of  the governing  body  of  the

City  and  no other  officer,  employee,  or agent  of  the City  who  exercises  any

functions  or  responsibilities  in  coru'iection  with  the plaru'iing  and  carrying  out

of  the  program,  shall  have  any  personal  financial  interest,  direct  or  indirect,  in

this  Agreement;  and the Contractor  shall  take  appropriate  steps  to assure

compliance.

Page  5 of  7



25. Interest  of  other  Local  Public  Officials  - No  member  of  the governing  body

of  the City  and no other  public  official  of  the City,  who  exercises  any

functions  or responsibilities  in connection  with  the planning  and carrying  out

of  the program,  shall  have  any  personal  financial  interest,  direct  or indirect,  in

this Agreement;  and the Contractor  shall  take appropriate  steps to assure

compliance.

26. Bribes,  Gratuities  and  Kickbacks:  It is illegal  in this  state for  any public

employee  to solicit  or accept  anything  of  value  in connection  with  award  of

this  Agreement  and for  any person  to offer  or pay anything  of  value  to any

such  public  employee  (§30-24-1  through  §30-24-2  NMSA  1978).  Pursuant  to

§13-1-191  NMSA  1978  reference  is made  to the criminal  laws  of  this state

(including  §30-41-1  through  §30-41-3  NMSA  1978)  which  prohibit  bribes,

kickbacks,  and gratuities  and violation  of  which  constitutes  a felony.  Further,

the Procurement  Code  (§13-1-28  through  §13-1-199  NMSA  1978)  imposes

civil  and criminal  penalties  for  its violation.

CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES

Angie  Gonzales,  City  Manager Date

Finance  Officer,  Reviewed  for  Budgetaiy  Sufficiency Date

Jaiine  Rubin,  City  Attorney,  Reviewed  for  Legal  Sufficiency Date

CONTRACTOR

Authorized  Representative  (Signature  &  Printed  Name) Date

Page 6 of  7



Please(ach  requirement:

PAID  invoices  must  be presented  to the  City  Manager's  Office  for  reimbursement  with  a

copy  of  tlie  cancelled  check  (front  &  back)  and a copy  of  tlie  tear  sheets  or script  within  a

timely  manner  so that  we can maintain  a good  working  relationship  witli  tl'ie vendors.

The  tear  sheets,  scripts,  and invoices  are the responsibility  of  tlie  Contractor.  Please

review  invoices  for  accuracy.  Do  not  assume  that  tl'iey  are correct.

No  bill  will  be reimbursed  if  it differs  from  tlie  services  agreed  upon  in the  application

and signed  contract  unless  the change  is requested  in writing,  recommended  by the

Lodgers  Tax  Advisoiy  Board  and  approved  by  the  City  Manager.

It is tlie responsibility  of  the Contractor  to keep  a running  total  of  their  unused  and

available  Lodgers  Tax  award.

It is the responsibility  of  tl'ie Contractor  to notify  the City  as to who  are the two  (2)

eligible  people  to turn  in bills  for  reimbursement.  (Please  p  names  below.)

Designee  No.  1 :

Designee  No.  2:

Pl'ione  No.

Phone  No.

No  bill  will  be reimbursed  by  tl'ie City  unless  it bears  tlie  signature  of  tlie  City  Manager  or

designee  approving  payment.

Reports  are due  90 days  after  a project/event  is completed.  It is the  responsibility  of  the

Contractor  to get  reports  in on time.

By  your  signature  on this  contract,  you  have  agreed  to follow  and  implement  all

conditions  within  the  time  frame  set  forth  and  if  you  deviate  without  prior  approval

from  the  Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  and  the  City  Manager,  then  the  City  has no

further  fiscal  responsibility  per  this  contract.

Dated  this day  of

CONTRACTOR:

BY:

Printed  Name of  Authorized  Representative

, 2024

Signature  of  Authorized  Representative

Page  7 of  7



€ ,ITY  Ol-  T[)UTtl  O[)  (,0Ml0U[!%ffl,[%
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

MEETINGDATE:Augustl4,2024  Age"daI'em#:Iall

SUBJECT: Review, Approve and/or  Allocate Funds for Veterans Memorial & Museum -  Application #3 for
Billboard  Rental

DEPARTMENT:  City  Manager"s  Office

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  6, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Tammy  Gardner

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE ITEM:  Tammy  Gardner

Summary/8oc&ground:
Commission  approval  of  Veterans  Memorial  Application  #3 for  the  rental  of  the  billboard.

Recommendation:

The applicant  requested  §4,275.00 and the LTAB recommended  to fully  fund  the project.

Attachments:

*  Vets  Mem.  Application

*  Vets  Mem.  Contract

@ Approved  Scope  of  Work

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

S4,275.00

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Approved  for  Submittal  By: [Z Department Director

Reviewed  by:  €  City  Clerk  €  Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  €  City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  -  Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€ Approved  [1 Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-2024



FY25 Lodgers'  Tax  Award

Approved  Scope  of  Work

Lodgers'  Tax  Meeting  Date:  July  22, 2024

Applicant:  Veterans  Memorial  Park  & Museum

Project(s)  Applied  For:

1)  Billboard  Rental

AmountRequested:  j  AmountApproved:  S4275

Approved   Postponed Denied

Reason for Postponement/Denial/Different  Award Amount:

2) Brochure  Reprint

Amount  Requested:  Amount  Approved:  5937.45

Approved   Postponed Denied

Reason for  Postponement/Denial/Different  Award  Amount:

Scope  of  Work Award  Amount  Approved

1) Lamar

2) M Graphics

54275.50

S 937.45

Total for the 2 projects: S5212.95



ADVERTISING  &  PROMOTION  CONTRACT

THIS  AGREEMENT  is made  and entered  into  by  and between  the City  of  Truth

or  Consequences,  New  Mexico,  herein  referred  to  as "City"  and  VETERANS

MEMORIAL  PARK  &  MUSEUM  (Billboard  Rental)  herein  referred  to  as

"Contractor".

WHEREAS  the City  and Contractor  desire  to enter  into  a Contract  to provide

Lodgers  Tax  funds  to the Contractor  to aid the  Contractor's  promotion  and advertising  of

the City  as a tourist  attraction  which  will  aid in  the economic  growth  of  the City.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  IN  CONSIDERATION  of  the mutual  promises  of  the

parties;  it is hereby  covenanted  and  agreed  by and between  the parties:

1.  The  City  shall  provide  up to the sum  of  $4 275.00  to the Contractor  for  a one

(1)  year  period  commencing  on August  14,  2024  and continuing  through  June

30, 2025.

2.  The  Contractor  shall:

a. Advertise,  publicize  and promote  the City  and its facilities  as a tourism

attraction.  Such publicizing  and promoting  shall  include  but not be

limited  to the  advertising  of  the  fairgrounds,  civic  center,  museums,

convention  center  and other  City  and  area  resources  and attractions.

b. Said  promotion  and advertising  shall  specifically  consist  of  the plan  as

presented  (and  approved  by the Lodgers  Tax  Board)  in the Contractor's

application  for  Lodgers  Tax  Funds.  The  Scope  of  Work  is set forth  within

the application.

3. Fund  Expenditures:  Funding  under  this  contract  is from  Lodgers  Tax.  Such

funds  may  be spent  for  promotion  and advertising  only.

4.  Procurement  by  Contractor:  The  Procurement  Code,  Sections  13-1-28

through  13-1-199  NMSA  1978,  imposes  civil  and criminal  penalties  for

violation  of  this  statute.  Any  property  purchased  by Contractor,  the cost  of

which  is to be paid  under  this  agreement,  shall  be purchased  in compliance

with  the Procurement  Code.

a. The City  and the Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  shall  determine  which  of

these  expenditures  are allowable  and are in compliance  with  the purpose

of  this  contract.

b.  If  determined  to be an eligible  purchase,  the City  will  pay  the Contractor

for  reimbursement.

c. Since  the purpose  of  the Tax  is to bring  visitors  to town,  the Contractor

must  use seventy-five  percent  (75%)  of  the  funds  outside  the County.  This

will  serve  to increase  the use of  hotels,  motels,  and  RV  parks  which  will  in

turn  yield  more  Lodgers  Tax.

Page  l of  7



d. All  invoices  must  be turned  into  the City  Manager's  Office  no later  than

the last  business  day  of  May  2025.

e. Invoices  submitted  after  that  date WILL  NOT  BE PAID!  All  unspent

funds  will  revert  to the City's  Lodgers  Tax Fund  to be used for  any

purpose  the City  may  deem  eligible.

f.  Reports  are due sixty  (60)  days  after  completion  of  event/project.

5. Termination:  Either  party  shall  have the right  to terminate  this Contract

without  cause  by giving  thirty  (30)  days  written  notice  to the other  party.

6. Records:  The Contractor  agrees  to keep accurate  records  of  all time  and

expenses  allocated  to the performance  of  the agreed  upon  work.  Such  records

shall  be kept  in the office  of  the Contractor  and shall  be made  available  to the

City  or  its  authorized  representatives  for  inspection  and copying  upon

reasonable  request.

7.  Ownership  of Documents:  All  reports,  maps,  ads, logos,  or documents

prepared  as a part  of  this  Agreement,  including  original  drawings,  estimates,

specifications,  field  notes,  and data are the propeity  of  the  City.  The

Contractor  may  retain  reproducible  copies  of  drawings  and other  documents.

8. Claims:  The Contractor  shall  save and hold  the City  free from  claims  that

might  arise  in connection  with  work  the Contractor  will  perfornn  under  this

Agreement.  The Contractor  also agrees  to pay for staff  time,  at standard

hourly  billing  rates, plus  expenses  at cost  that might  be required  for  expert

testimony  or any other  court  appearances,  together  with  preparation  time  and

legal costs  that might  arise  because  of  Contractor's  involvement  in this

assignment,  whether  subpoenaed  by  the City  or any other  group.

9. Personnel:

a. The Contractor  represents  that  they  have, or will  secure  at their  own

expense,  all personnel  required  in performing  the services  under  this

Agreement.  Such  personnel  shall  not be  employees  of  or have any

Agreement  relationship  with  the  City.

b.  All  of  the services  required  hereunder  will  be performed  by the Contractor

or under  his/her  supervision  and  all  personnel  engaged  in  the work  shall  be

fully  qualified  and shall  be authorized  or permitted  under  state and local

law  to perform  such  services.

c. None  of the  work  or  services  covered  by  this  Agreement  shall  be

subcontracted  without  the prior  written  approval  of  the City  and Lodgers

Tax  Advisory  Board.  Any  work  or services  subcontracted  hereunder  be

specified  by written  Subcontract  and shall  be subject  to each  provision  of

this  Agreement.

10. Assignability:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  any  interest  on this  Agreement,

and shall  not transfer  any interest  in the same (whether  by assignment  or

notation),  without  the prior  written  consent  of  the Lodgers  Tax  Advisory

Page  2 of  7



Board  and City  thereto:  Provided,  however,  that  claims  for  money  by the

Contractor  from  the City  under  the Agreement  may  be assigned  to a bank,

trust  company,  or other  financial  institution  without  such  approval.  Written

notice  of  any  such  assignment  or transfer  shall  be 'furnished  promptly  to the

City.

11.  Authority:  Contractor  agrees  not  to purport  to bind  the City  to an obligation

not  herein  assumed,  unless  Contractor  has expressed  written  authority  to do

so, and  then  only  within  the  strict  limits  of  that  authority.

12.  Reports  and  Information:  The  Contractor,  at such  times  and  in such  forms

as the City  may  require,  shall  :turnish  the  City  such  periodic  reports  as it  may

request  pertaining  to  the  work  or  services  undertaken  pursuant  to  this

Agreement,  the  costs  and  obligations  incurred  or to be incurred  in  connection

therewith,  and  any  other  matters  covered  by this  Agreement.

13. Copyright:  No  report,  maps,  ads, logos,  or other  documents  produced  in

whole  or in part  under  this  Agreement  shall  be the subject  of  an application

for  copyright  by  or  on  behalf  of  the  Contractor.

14.  Compliance  with  Local  Laws:  The  Contractor  shall  comply  with  all

applicable  laws,  ordinances  and codes  of  the State  and the City  and the

Contractor  shall  save  the City  harmless  with  respect  to any  damages  arising

from  any  tort  done  in  performing  any  of  the  work  embraced  by  this

Agreement.

15.Equal  Employment  Opportunity:  During  the  performance  of  this

Agreement,  the  Contractor  agrees  as follows:

a. The  Contractor  will  not  discriminate  against  any  employee  or applicant  for

employment  because  of  race,  creed,  sex, color  or national  origin.  The

Contractor  will  take  affirmative  action  to  ensure  that  applicants  are

employed,  and  that  employees  are treated  during  employment,  without

regard  to their  race,  creed,  sex,  color  or national  origin.  Such  action  shall

include,  but  not  be limited  to, the following:  Employment,  upgrading,

demotion,  or transfer;  recruitment  or recruitment  advertising;  layoff  or

termination;  rates  of  pay  or  other  forms  of  compensation;  and  selection  for

training,  including  apprenticeship.  The  Contractor  agrees  to post  in

conspicuous  places,  available  to  employees  and  applicants  for

employment,  notices  to  be  provided  by  the  City  setting  forth  the

provisions  of  this  nondiscrimination  clause.

b.  The  Contractor  will,  in all solicitation  or advertisements  for  employees

placed  by  or on  behalf  of  the  Contractor,  state  that  all  qualified  applicants

will  receive  consideration  for  employment  without  regard  to race,  creed,

color,  sex,  or  national  origin.

c. The  Contractor  will  cause  the foregoing  provisions  to be inserted  in all

Subcontracts  for  any  work  covered  by  this  Agreement  so that  such

Page  3 of  7



provisions  will  be binding  upon  each subcontractor,  provided  that  the

foregoing  provisions  shall  not  apply  to Agreements  or Subcontracts  for

standard  commercial  supplies  or  raw  materials.

d.  The  Contractor  will  comply  with  all  provisions  of  Executive  Order  11246

of  September  24, 1965,  and  of  the  rules,  regulations  and  relevant  orders  of

the  Secretary  of  Labor.

e. The  Contractor  will  furnish  all information  and reports  required  by

Executive  Order  11246  of September  24,  1965,  and by  the  rules,

regulations  and  orders  of  the Secretary  of  Labor,  or pursuant  thereto,  and

will  permit  access  to his/her  books,  records  and accounts  by the City's

representative,  the  funding  agency  and  the  Secretary  of  Labor  for  purposes

of  investigation  to ascertain  compliance  with  such  rules,  regulations  and

orders.

f.  In  the  event  of  the  Contractor's  noncompliance  with  the  equal  opportunity

clauses  of  this  Agreement  or with  any  of  such  rules,  regulations  or orders,

this  Agreement  may  be canceled,  terminated,  or suspended  in whole  or in

part  and  the  Contractor  may  be declared  ineligible  for  further  government

Agreements  in  accordance  with  procedures  authorized  in  Executive  Order

11246  of  September  24, 1965,  and  such  other  sanctions  may  be imposed

and  remedies  invoked  as provided  in  Executive  Order  11246  of  September

24, 1965,  or by  rule,  regulation,  or order  of  the Secretary  of  Labor,  or as

otherwise  provided  by  law.

g.  The  Contractor  will  include  the  provisions  of  paragraphs  (a) through  (g)  in

every  Subcontract  or  purchase  order  unless  exempted  by  rules,  regulations

or orders  of  the Secretary  of  Labor  issued  pursuant  to Section  204 of

Executive  Order  11246  of  September  24, 1965,  so that  such  provisions

will  be binding  upon  each  subcontractor  or vendor.  The  Contractor  will

take  such  action  with  respect  to any  Subcontract  or purchase  order  as the

City's  representative  may  direct  as a means  of  enforcing  such  provisions

including  sanctions  for  noncompliance:  Provided,  however,  that  in the

event  the  Contractor  becomes  involved  in,  or  is threatened  with,  litigation

with  a subcontractor  or  vendor  as a result  of  such  direction  by  the  City,  the

Contractor  may  request  the United  States  to enter  into  such  litigation  to

protect  the  interests  of  the  United  States.

16.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964:  Under  Title  VI  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  no

person  shall,  on the grounds  of  race,  color,  or national  origin,  be excluded

from  participation  in,  be  denied  the  benefits  of,  or  be  subjected  to

discrimination  under  any  program  or activity  receiving  federal  financial

assistance.

17.  Access  to Records:

a. The  State  Auditor,  the  City's  auditor,  the  City,  or any of  their  duly

authorized  representatives,  shall  have  access  to any books,  documents,

papers  and  records  of  the Contractor  which  are directly  pertinent  to this

Page  4 of  7



specific  Agreement,  for  the  purpose  of  audits,  examinations,  and  making

excerpts  and  transcriptions.

b.  All  records  connected  with  this  Agreement  will  be maintained  in a central

location  by  the City  and  will  be maintained  for  a period  of  three  (3)  years

from  the  official  date  of  closeout  of  the  contract.

18.  Third  Party  Rights:  The  provisions  of  this  agreement  are for  the  sole  benefit

of  the parties  and shall  not  be construed  as conferring  rights  on any other

person  or  entity.

19.  Captions  and  Headings:  The  captions  and headings  contained  in  this

Agreement  are provided  for  identification  purposes  only  and shall  not  be

interpreted  to limit  or  define  the  content  of  the  provisions  described  under  the

respective  caption  or  heading.

20.  Severability:  If  any one or more  of  the sentences,  clauses,  paragraphs  or

sections  contained  herein  is declared  invalid,  void  or unenforceable  by  a court

of  competent  jurisdiction,  the  same  shall  be deemed  severable  from  the

remainder  of  this  Agreement,  and  shall  not  affect,  impair  or invalidate  any  of

the  remaining  sentences,  clauses,  paragraphs  or sections  contained  herein.

21.  Venue:  All  proceedings  involving  disputes  over  the  terms,  provisions,

covenants  or conditions  contained  in this  Agreement  and all proceedings

involving  any  enforcement  action  related  to this  Agreement  shall  be initiated

and conducted  in the  applicable  court  or forum  in Sierra  County,  New

Mexico.

22.  Attorney  Fees:  In the  event  any  action,  suit  or proceeding  is brought  for  the

enforcement  of, or the  declaration  of  any  right  or obligation  pursuant  to this

Agreement  or as a result  of  any  alleged  breach  of  any provision  of  this

Agreement,  the  prevailing  party  in  such  suit  or proceeding  shall  be entitled  to

recover  its costs  and  expenses,  including  reasonable  attorneys'  fees,  from  the

losing  party,  and  any  judgment  or decree  rendered  in such  a proceeding  shall

include  an award  thereof.

23.  Authority  to Sign  Agreement:  The  persons  executing  this  Agreement  on

behalf  of  the parties  hereto  warrant  that  they  are duly  authorized  to execute

this  Agreement  on  behalf  of  said  parties.

24. Interest  of  Members  of  the  City:  No  member  of  the governing  body  of  the

City  and  no other  officer,  employee,  or agent  of  the City  who  exercises  any

functions  or responsibilities  in  coru'iection  with  the  planning  and  carrying  out

of  the  program,  shall  have  any  personal  financial  interest,  direct  or indirect,  in

this  Agreement;  and the  Contractor  shall  take appropriate  steps to assure

compliance.

Page  5 of  7



25.  Interest  of  other  Local  Public  Officials  - No  member  of  the  governing  body

of  the City  and no other  public  official  of  the City,  who  exercises  any

functions  or responsibilities  in  connection  with  the  planning  and  carrying  out

of  the  program,  shall  have  any  personal  financial  interest,  direct  or  indirect,  in

this  Agreement;  and the Contractor  shall  take appropriate  steps to assure

compliance.

26.  Bribes,  Gratuities  and  Kickbacks:  It is illegal  in this  state  for  any public

employee  to solicit  or accept  anything  of  value  in connection  with  award  of

this  Agreement  and  for  any  person  to offer  or pay  anything  of  value  to any

such  public  employee  (§30-24-1  through  §30-24-2  NMSA  1978).  Pursuant  to

§13-1-191  NMSA  1978  reference  is made  to the criminal  laws  of  this  state

(including  §30-41-1  through  §30-41-3  NMSA  1978)  which  prohibit  bribes,

kickbacks,  and  gratuities  and  violation  of  which  constitutes  a felony.  Further,

the Procurement  Code  (§13-1-28  through  §13-1-199  NMSA  1978)  imposes

civil  and  criminal  penalties  for  its  violation.

CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES

Angie  Gonzales,  City  Manager Date

Finance  Officer,  Reviewed  for Budgetaiy  Sufficiency Date

Jaime Rubin,  City  Attorney,  Reviewed  for  Legal Sufficiency Date

CONTRACTOR

Authorized  Representative  (Signature  & Printed  Name) Date

Page  6 of  7



Please€ ach requirement:

PAID  invoices  must  be presented  to the City  Manager's  Office  for  reimbursement  with  a

copy  of  the  cancelled  check  (front  &  back)  and  a copy  of  tlie  tear  sheets  or script  within  a

timely  manner  so that  we can maintain  a good  working  relationship  witli  the vendors.

The  tear  sheets,  scripts,  and invoices  are the responsibility  of  the Contractor.  Please

review  invoices  for  accuracy.  Do  not  assume  tliat  tliey  are correct.

No  bill  will  be reimbursed  if  it differs  from  the services  agreed  upon  in the application

and signed  contract  unless  tlie cliange  is requested  in writing,  recommended  by tlie

Lodgers  Tax  Advisoiy  Board  and  approved  by the City  Manager.

It is the responsibility  of  the Contractor  to keep  a running  total  of  tlieir  unused  and

available  Lodgers  Tax  award.

It is the responsibility  of  the Contractor  to notify  the City  as to who  are the two  (2)

eligible  people  to turn  in bills  for  reimbursement.  (Please   names  below.)

Designee  No.  1:

Designee  No.  2:

Phone  No.

Phone  No.

No  bill  will  be reii'nbursed  by  tl'ie City  unless  it bears  tlie  signature  of  the  City  Manager  or

designee  approving  payment.

Reports  are due 90 days  after  a project/event  is completed.  It is the responsibility  of  the

Contractor  to get  reports  in on time.

By  your  signature  on this  contract,  you  have  agreed  to follow  and  implement  all

conditions  within  the  time  frame  set  forth  and  if  you  deviate  without  prior  approval

from  the  Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  and  the  City  Manager,  then  the  City  has no

further  fiscal  responsibility  per  this  contract.

Dated  this day  of

CONTRACTOR:

BY:

Printed  Name  of  Authorized  Representative

, 2024

Signature  of  Authorized  Representative

Page  7 of  7



€,ITY  €)r  T[)UTtl  O[)  € (!%IS[0U[N(,[%
AGENDA  REQUEST  FORM

MEETING  DATE:  August  14,  2024  A8e'da I'em #: I' 12

SUBJECT: Review, Approve and/or  Allocate Funds for MainStreet  -  Application #1 for 2025 Desert Ultra
DEPARTMENT:  City  Manager's  Office

DATE  SUBMITTED:  August  6, 2024

SUBMITTED  BY:  Tammy  Gardner

WHO  WILL  PRESENT  THE  ITEM:  Tammy  Gardner

Summary/Background:
Commission  approval  of  MainStreet  application  #1 for  the  2025  Desert  Ultra.

Recommendation:

The applicant  requested  56,800.00 and the LTAB recommended  to fully  fund  the project.

Attachments:

*  MainStreet  Application

*  MainStreet  Contract

*  Approved  Scope  of  Work

Fiscal  Impact  (Finance):  Yes

S6,800.00

LegalReview(CityAttorney):  Yes

Approved  for  Submittal  By: % Department Director

Reviewed  by:  € City  Clerk  € Finance  €  Legal  €  Other:  Click  here  to enter  text.

FinalApproval:  € City  Manager

CITY  CLERK'S  USE ONLY  - COMMISSION  ACTION  TAKEN

Resolution  No.  - Ordinance  No.  -

Continued  To: - Referred  To:  -

€  Approved  € Denied  € Other:  -

File Name:  CC Agendas  8-14-24



FY25  Lodgers'  Tax  Award

Approved  Scope  of  Work

Lodgers'  Tax Meeting  Date:  July  22, 2024

Applicant:  MainStreet  Truth  or Consequences

Project(s)  Applied  For: Truth  or Consequences  Desert  Ultra

AmountRequested:   AmountApproved:  96800

Approved  x Postponed   Denied

Reason  for  Postponement/Denial/Different  Award  Amount:

Scope  of  Work Award  Amount  Approved

1) Facebook

2) Sentinel

3) Talon  Septic

4) TBA  (graphic  design)

5) Morningstar  Sports

6) Lobo  Photo  NM

7) UltraRunning  Magazine

8) Selfie  Station  design  & construction

S 200

S 350

S 250

S 400

S1750

51000

S 850

S2000

Total: S6800



ADVERTISING  &  PROMOTION  CONTRACT

THIS  AGREEMENT  is made  and entered  into  by and  between  the City  of  Truth

or Consequences,  New  Mexico,  herein  referred  to as "City"  and  MAINSTREET  (Desert

Ultra  2024  herein  referred  to as "'Contractor".

WHEREAS  the City  and Contractor  desire  to enter  into  a Contract  to provide

Lodgers  Tax  funds  to the Contractor  to aid  the Contractor's  promotion  and advertising  of

the City  as a tourist  attraction  which  will  aid  in the economic  growth  of  the City.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  IN  CONSIDERATION  of  the mutual  promises  of  the

parties;  it is hereby  covenanted  and  agreed  by and  between  the  parties:

1.  The  City  shall  provide  up to the sum  of  $6 800.00  to the Contractor  for  a one

(1)  year  period  cornmencing  on August  14, 2024  and continuing  through  June

30, 2025.

2. The  Contractor  shall:

a. Advertise,  publicize  and promote  the City  and its facilities  as a tourism

attraction.  Such publicizing  and promoting  shall  include  but not be

limited  to  the  advertising  of  the fairgrounds,  civic  center,  museums,

convention  center  and other  City  and  area  resources  and  attractions.

b.  Said  promotion  and advertising  shall  specifically  consist  of  the plan  as

presented  (and  approved  by the Lodgers  Tax  Board)  in the Contractor's

application  for  Lodgers  Tax  Funds.  The  Scope  of  Work  is set forth  within

the application.

3. Fund  Expenditures:  Funding  under  this  contract  is from  Lodgers  Tax.  Such

funds  may  be spent  for  promotion  and advertising  only.

4. Procurement  by  Contractor:  The Procurement  Code,  Sections  13-1-28

through  13-1-199  NMSA  1978,  imposes  civil  and criminal  penalties  for

violation  of  this  statute.  Any  property  purchased  by Contractor,  the cost  of

which  is to be paid  under  this  agreement,  shall  be purchased  in compliance

with  the Procurement  Code.

a. The  City  and the Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  shall  determine  which  of

these  expenditures  are allowable  and are in compliance  with  the purpose

of  this  contract.

b.  If  determined  to be an eligible  purchase,  the City  will  pay the Contractor

for  reimbursement.

c. Since  the purpose  of  the Tax  is to bring  visitors  to town,  the Contractor

must  use seventy-five  percent  (75%)  of  the funds  outside  the County.  This

will  serve  to increase  the  use of  hotels,  motels,  and  RV  parks  which  will  in

turn  yield  more  Lodgers  Tax.

Page 1 of  7



d.  All  invoices  must  be turned  into  the City  Manager's  Office  no later  than

the  last  business  day  of  May  2025.

e. Invoices  submitted  after  that  date  WILL  NOT  BE  PAID!  All  unspent

funds  will  revert  to the City's  Lodgers  Tax  Fund  to be used  for  any

purpose  the City  may  deem  eligible.

f.  Reports  are due  sixty  (60)  days  after  completion  of  event/project.

5.  Termination:  Either  party  shall  have  the right  to ternninate  this  Contract

without  cause  by  giving  thirty  (30)  days  written  notice  to the  other  party.

6.  Records:  The Contractor  agrees  to keep  accurate  records  of  all time  and

expenses  allocated  to the  perfornnance  of  the  agreed  upon  work.  Such  records

shall  be kept  in  the  office  of  the  Contractor  and  shall  be made  available  to the

City  or  its  authorized  representatives  for  inspection  and copying  upon

reasonable  request.

7.  Ownership  of  Documents:  All  reports,  maps,  ads, logos,  or documents

prepared  as a part  of  this  Agreement,  including  original  drawings,  estimates,

specifications,  field  notes,  and data are  the property  of  the  City.  The

Contractor  may  retain  reproducible  copies  of  drawings  and  other  documents.

8. Claims:  The  Contractor  shall  save  and hold  the City  free  from  claims  that

might  arise  in connection  with  work  the Contractor  will  perform  under  this

Agreement.  The  Contractor  also  agrees  to pay for  staff  time,  at standard

hourly  billing  rates,  plus  expenses  at cost  that  might  be required  for  expert

testimony  or any  other  court  appearances,  together  with  preparation  time  and

legal  costs  that might  arise because  of  Contractor's  involvement  in this

assignment,  whether  subpoenaed  by  the  City  or any  other  group.

9.  Personnel:

a. The Contractor  represents  that  they  have,  or will  secure  at their  own

expense,  all personnel  required  in performing  the services  under  this

Agreement.  Such  persoru'iel  shall  not  be employees  of  or have  any

Agreement  relationship  with  the  City.

b.  All  of  the  services  required  hereunder  will  be performed  by  the  Contractor

or under  his/her  supervision  and  all  persoru'iel  engaged  in  the  work  shall  be

fully  qualified  and  shall  be authorized  or permitted  under  state  and  local

law  to  perform  such  services.

c. None  of  the  work  or  services  covered  by  this  Agreement  shall  be

subcontracted  without  the prior  written  approval  of  the City  and  Lodgers

Tax  Advisory  Board.  Any  work  or services  subcontracted  hereunder  be

specified  by written  Subcontract  and  shall  be subject  to each  provision  of

this  Agreement.

10.  Assignability:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  any  interest  on  this  Agreement,

and shall  not  transfer  any interest  in the same (whether  by assignment  or

notation),  without  the prior  written  consent  of  the Lodgers  Tax  Advisory

Page  2 of  7



Board  and City  thereto:  Provided,  however,  that  claims  for  money  by the

Contractor  from  the City  under  the Agreement  may  be assigned  to a bank,

tnist  company,  or other  financial  institution  without  such  approval.  Written

notice  of  any  such  assignment  or  transfer  shall  be furnished  promptly  to the

City.

11.  Authority:  Contractor  agrees  not  to purport  to bind  the City  to an obligation

not  herein  assumed,  unless  Contractor  has expressed  written  authority  to do

so, and  then  only  within  the  strict  limits  of  that  authority.

12.  Reports  and  Information:  The  Contractor,  at such  times  and  in such  forms

as the  City  may  require,  shall  furnish  the City  such  periodic  reports  as it may

request  pertaining  to  the  work  or  services  undertaken  pursuant  to  this

Agreement,  the  costs  and  obligations  incurred  or to be incurred  in connection

therewith,  and  any  other  matters  covered  by  this  Agreement.

13.  Copyright:  No report,  maps,  ads, logos,  or other  documents  produced  in

whole  or in part  under  this  Agreement  shall  be the subject  of  an application

for  copyright  by  or  on  behalf  of  the  Contractor.

14.  Compliance  with  Local  Laws:  The  Contractor  shall  comply  with  all

applicable  laws,  ordinances  and codes  of  the State and the City  and the

Contractor  shall  save  the City  harmless  with  respect  to any  damages  arising

from  any  tort  done  in  performing  any  of  the  work  embraced  by  this

Agreement.

15.Equal  Employment  Opportunity:  During  the  performance  of  this

Agreement,  the  Contractor  agrees  as follows:

a. The  Contractor  will  not  discriminate  against  any  employee  or  applicant  for

employment  because  of  race,  creed,  sex, color  or national  origin.  The

Contractor  will  take  affirmative  action  to  ensure  that applicants  are

employed,  and that  employees  are treated  during  employment,  without

regard  to their  race,  creed,  sex,  color  or  national  origin.  Such  action  shall

include,  but  not  be limited  to, the following:  Employment,  upgrading,

demotion,  or transfer;  recruitment  or recruitment  advertising;  layoff  or

termination;  rates  of  pay  or  other  forms  of  compensation;  and  selection  for

training,  including  apprenticeship.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  post  in

conspicuous  places,  available  to  employees  and  applicants  for

employment,  notices  to  be  provided  by  the  City  setting  forth  the

provisions  of  this  nondiscrimination  clause.

b.  The  Contractor  will,  in all solicitation  or advertisements  for  employees

placed  by  or on  behalf  of  the  Contractor,  state  that  all  qualified  applicants

will  receive  consideration  for  employment  without  regard  to race,  creed,

color,  sex,  or  national  origin.

c. The  Contractor  will  cause  the foregoing  provisions  to be inserted  in all

Subcontracts  for  any  work  covered  by  this  Agreement  so that  such

Page  3 of  7



provisions  will  be binding  upon  each subcontractor,  provided  that  the

foregoing  provisions  shall  not  apply  to Agreements  or Subcontracts  for

standard  cornrnercial  supplies  or  raw  materials.

d.  The  Contractor  will  comply  with  all  provisions  of  Executive  Order  11246

of  September  24,  1965,  and  of  the  rules,  regulations  and  relevant  orders  of

the Secretary  of  Labor.

e. The  Contractor  will  furnish  all information  and reports  required  by

Executive  Order  11246  of September  24,  1965,  and by  the  rules,

regulations  and  orders  of  the  Secretary  of  Labor,  or  pursuant  thereto,  and

will  permit  access  to his/her  books,  records  and accounts  by the City's

representative,  the  funding  agency  and  the  Secretary  of  Labor  for  purposes

of  investigation  to ascertain  compliance  with  such  rules,  regulations  and

orders.

f.  In  the  event  of  the Contractor's  noncompliance  with  the  equal  opportunity

clauses  of  this  Agreement  or  with  any  of  such  rules,  regulations  or orders,

this  Agreement  may  be canceled,  terminated,  or suspended  in  whole  or in

part  and  the  Contractor  may  be declared  ineligible  for  further  governrnent

Agreements  in accordance  with  procedures  authorized  in  Executive  Order

11246  of  September  24, 1965,  and  such  other  sanctions  may  be imposed

and  remedies  invoked  as provided  in  Executive  Order  11246  of  September

24, 1965,  or by  rule,  regulation,  or order  of  the  Secretary  of  Labor,  or as

otherwise  provided  by  law.

g.  The  Contractor  will  include  the  provisions  of  paragraphs  (a) through  (g)  in

every  Subcontract  or purchase  order  unless  exempted  by  rules,  regulations

or orders  of  the Secretary  of  Labor  issued  pursuant  to Section  204 of

Executive  Order  11246  of  September  24, 1965,  so that  such  provisions

will  be binding  upon  each  subcontractor  or vendor.  The  Contractor  will

take  such  action  with  respect  to any  Subcontract  or  purchase  order  as the

City's  representative  may  direct  as a means  of  enforcing  such  provisions

including  sanctions  for  noncompliance:  Provided,  however,  that  in the

event  the  Contractor  becomes  involved  in,  or is threatened  with,  litigation

with  a subcontractor  or  vendor  as a result  of  such  direction  by  the  City,  the

Contractor  may  request  the United  States  to enter  into  such  litigation  to

protect  the  interests  of  the  United  States.

16.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964:  Under  Title  VI  of  the Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  no

person  shall,  on the grounds  of  race,  color,  or national  origin,  be excluded

from  participation  in,  be  denied  the  benefits  of,  or  be  subjected  to

discrimination  under  any  program  or activity  receiving  federal  financial

assistance.

17.  Access  to Records:

a. The  State  Auditor,  the City's  auditor,  the  City,  or any of  their  duly

authorized  representatives,  shall  have  access  to any books,  documents,

papers  and  records  of  the Contractor  which  are directly  pertinent  to this

Page  4 of  7



specific  Agreement,  for  the purpose  of  audits,  examinations,  and  making

excerpts  and  transcriptions.

b.  All  records  connected  with  this  Agreement  will  be maintained  in  a central

location  by the  City  and  will  be maintained  for  a period  of  three  (3)  years

from  the  official  date  of  closeout  of  the  contract.

18.  Third  Party  Rights:  The  provisions  of  this  agreement  are for  the  sole  benefit

of  the parties  and  shall  not  be construed  as conferring  rights  on any other

person  or  entity.

19.  Captions  and  Headings:  The  captions  and headings  contained  in  this

Agreement  are provided  for  identification  purposes  only  and shall  not  be

interpreted  to limit  or define  the  content  of  the  provisions  described  under  the

respective  caption  or  heading.

20. Severability:  If  any one or more  of  the sentences,  clauses,  paragraphs  or

sections  contained  herein  is declared  invalid,  void  or unenforceable  by  a court

of  competent  jurisdiction,  the  same  shall  be  deemed  severable  from  the

remainder  of  this  Agreement,  and  shall  not  affect,  impair  or invalidate  any  of

the  remaining  sentences,  clauses,  paragraphs  or sections  contained  herein.

21. Venue:  All  proceedings  involving  disputes  over  the  te'nns,  provisions,

covenants  or conditions  contained  in this  Agreement  and all proceedings

involving  any  enforcement  action  related  to this  Agreement  shall  be initiated

and conducted  in the  applicable  court  or  forum  in  Sierra  County,  New

Mexico.

22.  Attorney  Fees:  In  the event  any  action,  suit  or proceeding  is brought  for  the

enforcement  of, or the declaration  of  any  right  or obligation  pursuant  to this

Agreement  or as a result  of  any alleged  breach  of  any provision  of  this

Agreement,  the  prevailing  party  in  such  suit  or  proceeding  shall  be entitled  to

recover  its costs  and  expenses,  including  reasonable  attomeys'  fees,  from  the

losing  party,  and  any  judgment  or  decree  rendered  in  such  a proceeding  shall

include  an award  thereof.

23. Authority  to Sign  Agreement:  The  persons  executing  this  Agreement  on

behalf  of  the parties  hereto  warrant  that  they  are duly  authorized  to execute

this  Agreement  on  behalf  of  said  parties.

24.  Interest  of  Members  of  the  City:  No  member  of  the governing  body  of  the

City  and  no other  officer,  employee,  or agent  of  the  City  who  exercises  any

functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning and catBing  out
of  the  program,  shall  have  any  personal  financial  interest,  direct  or  indirect,  in

this  Agreement;  and  the Contractor  shall  take  appropriate  steps  to assure

compliance.

Page  5 of  7



25.  Interest  of  other  Local  Public  Officials  - No  member  of  the  governing  body

of  the City  and no other  public  official  of  the City,  who  exercises  any

functions  or responsibilities  in  connection  with  the planning  and  carrying  out

of  the  program,  shall  have  any  personal  financial  interest,  direct  or  indirect,  in

this  Agreement;  and the Contractor  shall  take  appropriate  steps  to assure

compliance.

26.  Bribes,  Gratuities  and  Kickbacks:  It is illegal  in this  state  for  any  public

employee  to solicit  or accept  anything  of  value  in coru'iection  with  award  of

this  Agreement  and  for  any  person  to offer  or pay  anything  of  value  to any

such  public  employee  (§30-24-1  through  §30-24-2  NMSA  1978).  Pursuant  to

§13-1-191  NMSA  1978  reference  is made  to the  criminal  laws  of  this  state

(including  §30-41-1  through  §30-41-3  NMSA  1978)  which  prohibit  bribes,

kickbacks,  and  gratuities  and  violation  of  which  constitutes  a felony.  Further,

the Procurement  Code  (§13-1-28  through  §13-1-199  NMSA  1978)  imposes

civil  and  criminal  penalties  for  its  violation.

CITY  OF  TRUTH  OR  CONSEQUENCES

Angie  Gonzales,  City  Manager Date

Finance Officer,  Reviewed  for Budgetary  Sufficiency Date

Jaime Rubin,  City  Attorney,  Reviewed  for  Legal  Sufficiency Date

CONTRACTOR

Authorized  Representative  (Signature  & Printed  Name) Date

Page  6 of  7



Please€ ach requirement:

PAID  invoices  must  be presented  to the City  Manager's  Office  for  reimbursement  with  a

copy  of  the cancelled  check  (front  &  back)  and a copy  of  the  tear  sheets  or script  within  a

timely  manner  so that  we can maintain  a good  working  relationsliip  with  the vendors.

The  tear  slieets,  scripts,  and invoices  are tl'ie responsibility  of  the Contractor.  Please

review  invoices  for  accuracy.  Do  not  assume  that  they  are correct.

No  bill  will  be reimbursed  if  it differs  from  the services  agreed  upon  in the application

and signed  contract  unless  the change  is reqriested  in writing,  recommended  by the

Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  and  approved  by  the  City  Manager.

It is tlie responsibility  of  the Contractor  to keep  a running  total  of  tlieir  unused  and

available  Lodgers  Tax  award.

It is the responsibility  of  the Contractor  to notify  the City  as to who  are the two  (2)

eligible  people to turn in bills  for reimbursement.  (Please py%  names below.)

Designee  No.  1:

Designee  No.  2:

Phone  No.

Phone  No.

No  bill  will  be reimbursed  by  tlie  City  unless  it bears  the  signature  of  the  City  Manager  or

designee  approving  payment.

Reports  are due 90 days  after  a project/event  is completed.  It is the responsibility  of  the

Contractor  to get  reports  in on time.

By  your  signature  on this  contract,  you  have  agreed  to follow  and  implement  all

conditions  within  the  time  frame  set  forth  and  if  you  deviate  without  prior  approval

from  the  Lodgers  Tax  Advisory  Board  and  the  City  Manager,  then  the  City  has no

further  fiscal  responsibility  per  this  contract.

Dated  this day  of

CONTRACTOR:

BY:

Printed  Name  of  Authorized  Representative

, 2024

Signature  of  Authorized  Representative

Page  7 of  7


	8-14-24 CC Agenda
	C1. Service Anniversary Awards
	F1. Consent Calendar. 7-10-24 CC Minutes
	F2. Consent Calendar. 7-24-24 CC Minutes
	F3. Cpnsent Calendar. July 2024 AP
	F4. Consent Calendar. Take Home Vehicle Form
	G1. Public Hearing-Final Adoption of Ord. No. 766 Solid Waste
	G2. Public Hearing-Final Adoption of Ord. No. 767. Loan & Intercept Agreement
	G3. Public Hearing-Final Adoption of Ord. No. 768. Safekeeping of Animals
	H1. Resolution No. 05 24-25 Solid Waste & Recycling Rates
	H2. Resolution No. 11 24-25 City Park Rental Fees Amendment
	H3. Resolution No. 12 24-25 State of NM Water Distribution Line Grant Agreement
	I1. New Business. Revised Parcel Survey
	I2. New Business. FY 25 Clean & Beautiful Grant
	I3. New Business. Extending Swimming Pool Season
	I4. New Business. Comprehensive Plan Revision Update
	I5. New Business. ALTSD Junior Bill Appropriations Agreement
	I6. New Business. USDA WSPI 2 Project Financing
	I7. New Business. GRO Special Appropriation. SCCOG
	I8. New Business. PO's Over $20,000
	I9. New Business. Allocation of Funds for SCRAGS
	I10. New Business. Allocation of Funds for GTSB
	I11. New Business. Allocation of Funds for Veterans Memorial & Museum
	I12. New Business. Allocation of Funds for Mainstreet
	Loan Agreement (City Commission Version 8-12-24) (W5145568x7A92D).pdf
	LOAN AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS
	ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES
	ARTICLE III LOAN AGREEMENT TERM
	ARTICLE IV LOAN; APPLICATION OF MONEYS
	ARTICLE V LOAN TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT; PAYMENTS BY THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT
	ARTICLE VI THE PROJECT
	ARTICLE VII COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND RULES; OTHER COVENANTS
	ARTICLE VIII PREPAYMENT OF LOAN AGREEMENT PAYMENTS
	ARTICLE IX INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE X EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
	ARTICLE XI MISCELLANEOUS
	EXHIBIT “A”
	EXHIBIT “B”
	EXHIBIT “C”
	EXHIBIT “D”




